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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIFTH JU-

DICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF

IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY
OF BANNOCK

BERTHA E. BOWMAN,
Plaintiff,

vs.

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

Filed in the State Court, October 25, 1937.

The plaintiff complains and alleges

:

I.

That the defendant now is and at all the times wherein

it is hereinafter mentioned was a corporation organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State

of Missouri ; that said corporation has complied with the

Constitution and laws of the State of Idaho, and now is,

and at all the times wherein it is hereinafter mentioned
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was authorized to do and transact business within the

State of Idaho.

11.

That heretofore and on or about the 25th day of

February, 1926, the Continental Life Insurance Com-

pany was a corporation duly organized and existing un-

der and by virtue of the laws of the State of Missouri;

that said corporation had complied with the Constitution

and laws of the State of Idaho, and at the date of the

issuance of the insurance policy as hereinafter men-

tioned, and ever since said date until the said company

was taken over by the defendant herein, as hereinafter

alleged, was authorized to do business within the State of

Idaho.

III.

That on or about the 25th day of February, 1926,

Continental Life Insurance Company, St. Louis, Mis-

souri, in consideration of the application of one John D.

Bowman, and the payment of a premium of $87.58,

issued and delivered to said John D. Bowman, its policy

of insurance number 80,480, to which was attached a

supplemental contract forming a part of said policy,

providing for double indemnity benefits for accidental

death, and thereby insured the life of the said John D.

Bowman in the sum of $2,500.00, and agreed to pay Ber-

tha E. Bowman, wife of the said John D. Bowman, the

beneficiary therein named, the sum of $5,000.00, being

double the face amount of said policy, in the event of ac-

cidental death of the said John D. Bowman as defined
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in said supplemental contract and payable as therein pro-

vided, which said policy, supplemental contract for double

indemnity for accidental death, supplemental contract for

major surgical operations and dismemberment benefits

and application of said insured, all forming a part of said

policy are in words and figures as follows

:

NUMBER
80480

CONTINENTAL
LIFE

INSURANCE
COMPANY

ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI

Business Policy

Ordinary Life Policy

Premiums Payable for Life

Non-Participating with Privilege of Ex-
changing for a Profit-Sharing Policy

at the end of Twenty Years.

Life Income and Waiver of Premiums in Event
of Total and Permanent Disability.

$2500
Insurance on the life of

JOHN D. BOWMAN
Annual Premium, $87.58
Date February 25, 1926

REGISTER OF CHANGE OF BENEFICIARY
Note—No change or designation shall take effect until

endorsed on this policy by the Company at the

Home Office

Date Endorsed Beneficiarv Endorsed by
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
CONTINENTAL

LIFE
INSURANCE COMPANY

St. Louis, Missouri.

NUMBER AGE
80480 45

Agrees to Pay
Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars

which is the face amount of this policy

to Bertha E. Bowman, Wife

immediately upon receipt of due proof of the death

of John D. Bowman the Insured.

PRIVILEGE OF EXCHANGING FOR A PROFIT-
SHARING POLICY AT THE END OF

TWENTY YEARS

This policy is issued on the non-participating plan, but

the Company agrees to exchange it, without cost, for a

Profit Sharing Annual Dividend Ordinary Life Policy

for the face amount hereof at the end of twenty years

from the date hereof, if all premiums shall have been
duly paid. The new policy will contain the same benefits

as this policy and will be subject to the continued payment
of the same premium as is provided herein.

TOTAL AND PERMANENT DISABILITY
BENEFITS

In addition to all other benefits provided by this policy,

the Company will pay for the Insured the premiums re-

quired hereon, and will pay to the Insured a life income of

Twenty Five Dollars per month, commencing six months
after receipt of due proof that Insured has become totally

and permanently disabled, as provided on the third page
hereof.
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PROFIT-SHARING INSTALMENT AND TRUST
FUND PRIVILEGES

The Insured may change the mode of payment of the

proceeds of this poHcy from payment in one sum to

payment by instahiients, as provided on the fourth page;

hereof; such instahnents will be increased by dividends

as provided on said page.

The Insured may place the proceeds of this policy in

trust with the Company to secure a guaranteed annual

cash income, with dividends in addition thereto, as pro-

vided on the fourth page hereof.

Business Policy; Ordinary Life Policy; Premiums Pay-

able for Life. Non-participating, with Privilege of Ex-
changing for a Profit-Sharing Policy at the End of

Twenty Years ; Life Income and Waiver of Premiums in

Event of Total and Permanent Disability:

PREMIUM PAYMENTS
Grace in Premium Payments. A grace of thirty-one

days, without interest charge, will be allowed in the pay-

ment of any premium after the first year, during which
time this policy will continue in force.

Facility in Paying Premiums. Premiums are payable

annually, in advance, but may be changed to semi-annual

or quarterly payments in accordance with the Company's
table of rates applicable hereto ; and the Company will al-

low a change from one to another of such modes of pay-

ment upon the Insured's written request therefor on the

Company's form.

All premiums shall be payable either at the Home Office

of the Company in Saint Louis, Missouri, or to an auth-

orized agent of the Company upon delivery of receipt

signed by the President or Secretary and countersigned

by such agent. If any premium is not paid on the date

when due, this poHcy shall cease and determine, except as

herein provided.

Reinstatement. If any premium is not paid on the date
when due or within the period of grace, and this policy
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has not been surrendered, the Company will reinstate the

policy as of said due date at any time thereafter upon evi-

dence of insurability satisfactory to the Company, and the

payment of all arrears of premiums, together with the

payment or reinstatement of any indebtedness on this

policy on said due date, with interest thereon at the rate

of six per cent per annum.
Automatic Premium Loans. The Company will ad-

vance any premium becoming due hereon and remaining

unpaid on the last day of grace as a loan against this pol-

icy, provided the cash value of this policy at the end of the

period covered by such premium, less any indebtedness

on or secured by this policy, shall be sufficient to pay such

premium together with interest in advance to the end of

the period covered by such premium, and provided that

the Insured shall have made written request for the auto-

matic premium loan privilege either in the application for

this policy or otherwise. If the net available cash value

be insufficient to advance the premium then due, the

Company will continue this policy in force until such cash

value is exhausted, that is, for a period which bears the

same ratio to the full premium period then ensuing as the

net cash value bears to the premium then due, and if prior

to the expiration of such reduced period, if any, the last

due premium be not paid in full, all liability of the Com-
pany on this policy shall thereupon terminate, subject to

notice as hereinafter provided.

Such premium loans shall be subject to the same terms

and conditions as cash loans and the automatic payment
of premiums under this clause will be discontinued at any
time on receipt at the Home Office of the Insured's writ-

ten request therefor. While this policy is thus kept in

force, the insured may, without medical examination, re-

sume payment of premiums as provided herein.

NON-FORFEITURE AND LOAN VALUES
Non Forfeiture Provisions. After the payment of pre-

miums for at least two full years if any subsequent pre-

mium shall not be paid when due and remains unpaid at
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the end of the period of grace the insured shall then have

the following

OPTIONS

:

( 1 ) Extended Insurance, automatic. To have the in-

surance for the face amount hereof continued as

non-participating term insurance reckoned from
the due date of the unpaid premium ; or

(2) Paid-up Life Insurance. To surrender this pol-

icy for paid-up life insurance; or

(3) Cash Value. To surrender this policy for its cash

value.

If the Insured shall not within the period of grace make
written request accompanied by this pohcy that it be en-

dorsed for paid-up life insurance as provided in Option

(2), or surrender the policy for its cash value as provided

in Option (3) the insurance will be automatically contin-

ued as provided in Option ( 1 )

.

The Company will allow a cash surrender value at any
time on any paid-up life or paid-up term insurance.

Cash Loans. The Company will loan on the sole secu-

rity of this policy, properly assigned, any sum within the

cash value available at the end of the year in which the

loan is made. The loan must be made before default in

the payment of any premium and the Company will de-

duct therefrom any indebtedness hereon and any unpaid
premiums for the year in which the loan is available. In-

terest at six per cent per annum will be payable in ad-

vance to the end of the aforesaid policy year and will

thereafter be payable annually in advance. If interest is

not paid when due it shall be added to the principal.

Loans will in like manner be made on the security of a

paid-up Hfe pohcy provided under Option (2) of non-for-
feiture values for any amount up to the reserve thereon.

Failure to repay any loan or interest thereon shall not
avoid the policy unless and until the total indebtedness
hereon shall equal the then cash value of the policy nor
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until thirty-one days after notice shall have been mailed

by the Company to the last known address of the insured

or any assignee of record.

Loan Insurance. The insured may cover any loan made
under this policy by loan insurance on the following con-

ditions : ( 1 ) The Insured shall furnish evidence of in-

surability satisfactory to the Company. (2) Loan Insu-

rance takes effect upon delivery to the Insured of the

Company's certificate therefor, and is payable upon re-

ceipt of due proof of the Insured's death. (3) The pre-

mium shall be computed at the attained age of the Insured

at the time the loan insurance is made or renewed. (4)
Loan insurance shall not extend beyond the next anniver-

sary of the policy, but may under the same conditions be

renewed from year to year. No loan insurance shall be
made or renewed after age sixty, (5) Such loan insu-

rance shall in the event of the death of the Insured be

applied to the cancellation of the indebtedness. (6) If

the loan insurance exceeds the indebtedness, the Company
may cancel the excess and refund the unearned premiums.

PREMIUMS FOR EACH $100 of LOAN
INSURANCE

Attained Age of Insured |20-30|31-40|41-45|46-50|51-55|56^

Annual Premium |$0.90|$L00[$1.20|$L40|$1.80|$2.60

For a period of less than one year the premium
shall be at the rate of one-tenth of the annual premium
for each month or fraction thereof.

Reserve. The reserve on the life insurance benefit of

this policy shall be computed on the American Experience
Table of Mortality with interest at the rate of three and
one-half per cent per annum and the preliminary term
method modified on the twenty payment life basis. Sub-
ject to such modification, the first year's insurance here-

under is term insurance, purchased by the whole or part

of the first year's premium. The non-forfeiture and cash

values hereon are equivalent and are equal to the said

reserve less a sum in no event in excess of 2.4 per cent of
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the Slim insured hereunder. After the twentieth year the

said values will be equal to the full reserve.

TABLE OF GUARANTEED VALUES
No deductions from these values will be made for a

surrender charge.

As this policy is for $2500, the cash and paid-up Hfe

insurance values hereunder are 2^ times the values in

the table; the term of extended insurance applies to this

policy without modification.

The non-forfeiture values in this table are available if

premiums have been paid in full for the number of years

stated, subject to any indebtedness, and will be adjusted

proportionately for any semi-annual or quarterly pre-

miums paid after the second policy year in addition to the

premiums for complete policy years.
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After
Completion

of

Cash
Value

For Each $1000 of

Face Amount

Paid-Up Life

Insurance
For Each $1000 of

Face Amount

Term of

Extended
Insurance

Policy Year Yrs. Mos.

1st None None N(3ne

2nd $ 15 $ 32 1 3

3rd 35 71 2 10

4th 55 111 4 4

5th 76 150 5 7

6th 98 188 6 9

7th 120 226 7 8

8th 142 262 8 6

9th 165 297 9 2

10th 188 331 9 8

11th 210 363 10 1

12th 233 394 10 5

13th 255 424 10 8

14th 278 453 10 10

15th 301 481 10 11

16th 324 508 11

17th 347 533 11

18th 370 558 10 11

19th 393 582 10 11

20th 416 605 !
10 10

Values will increase annually thereafter and an exten-

sion of this table covering later years will be furnished

on application to the Home Office, if the policy does not

terminate in the meantime.

ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGES

Change of Beneficiary. The Insured may at any time

and from time to time, during the continuance of this

policy, with the consent of the Company, subject to any
assignment of this policy, change the beneficiary or ben-

eficiaries hereunder by fifing at the Home Office a written
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request on the Company's form therefor, duly acknowl-

edg-ed, accompanied by this poHcy. Such change shall

take effect only upon the endorsement of the same on this

policy by the Company, whereupon all rights of the for-

mer beneficiary or beneficiaries shall cease. If any bene-

ficiary shall die before the Insured, the interest of such

beneficiary shall vest in the Insured, unless otherwise

stipulated herein.

Control of Policy. This poHcy is issued with the ex-

press understanding that the Insured may, without the

consent of the beneficiary, receive every benefit, exercise

every right and enjoy every privilege conferred on the

Insured by this policy.

Privilege of Exchange. This policy may be exchanged

while no premium is in default or waived, for any other

non-participating form of policy in use by the Company
at the time this policy is issued, provided such policy shall

contain no provision or benefit under which the insurance

risk is greater than the risk assumed under this policy, on

the following conditions

:

If the premium rate per $1,000 of insurance is not

thereby diminished, the change may be made without med-
ical examination on the payment of such an amount as

may be required by the Company.

If the premium rate per $1000 of insurance is thereby

diminished, evidence of insurabihty satisfactory to the

Company must be furnished, and adjustment shall be

made of the difference between the reserves of the respec-

tive policies.

The new policy shall be written at the same age, bear

the same date, and be for an amount not in excess of the

face amount of this policy.

TOTAL AND PERMANENT DISABILITY
BENEFITS

The Company will pay for the insured the premiums
required on this policy for every policy year, commencing
with the anniversary next following the date of approval



12 Kansas City Life Insurance Company

by the Company of proof that the Insured, before attain-

ing the age of sixty years, has become totally and perma-

nently disabled as hereinafter defined.

The Company will also pay to the Insured a monthly

income of $10 for each $1,000 of the face amount of this

policy if the Insured shall become totally and permanently

disabled as hereinafter defined, before attaining age six-

ty. The first payment of such income shall be made six

months after receipt and approval of such proof and sub-

sequent payments will be made monthly thereafter as long

as the Insured lives and suffers such disability.

The sum payable in any settlement of this policy shall

not be reduced by income payments nor by premiums
waived under the above provisions and this policy will

continue in full force to maturity with loan, cash and
other guaranteed values increasing from year to year in

like manner as if the premiums were being duly and reg-

ularly paid by the Insured. If there be any indebtedness

on this policy the interest thereon will be deducted from
any income payment or payments.

Total and permanent disability may be due either to

bodily injury or to disease which has existed for not less

than sixty days and which must occur and originate while

this policy is in full force after one full year's premium
has been paid.

Disability shall be deemed to be total, (a) whenever the

Insured is totally disabled by bodily injury or disease so

that the Insured is prevented thereby from engaging in

any occupation whatsoever for remuneration or profit;

or (b) if the Insured has suffered the total and irrecover-

al)le loss of the sight of both eyes or of the use of both
hands or of both feet or of one hand and one foot.

Disability shall be presumed to be permanent whenever
the Insured will presumably be so totally disabled for life.

The Company may from time to time demand due proof
of the continuance of such disability and the right to

examine the person of the Insured, but not oftener than
once a year after such disabihty has continued for two
full years. Upon failure to furnish such proof, or if it
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shall appear to the Company that the Insured is able to

engage in any occupation whatsoever for remuneration

or profit, income payments shall cease and the Insured

shall be required to pay the premiums thereafter becom-
ing due on this policy in accordance with the original

terms hereof.

These disability benefits will not apply if the disability

of the Insured shall result from self-inflicted injury or

from mihtary or naval service in time of war, nor to dis-

ability occurring while this policy is continued in accord-

ance with any non-forfeiture option.

In the event of the total and permanent disability of

the Insured, the provisions of this policy entitled "Privi-

lege of Exchange," and any endowment option, will not

be available.

The annual premium for the total and permanent dis-

ability benefits is $6.27 and is included in the premium
stated in the consideration clause of this policy.

The provisions for total and permanent disability ben-

efits and the premium therefor may be discontinued at

any time on written request of the Insured accompanied
by the policy for endorsement. In any event any pre-

miums payable after the anniversary of this policy near-

est to the sixtieth anniversary of the date of birth of the

Insured shall be so reduced.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Incontestable After One Year, as follows : This policy

is free from conditions as to residence, occupation, travel,

place of death and military or naval service in time of

peace or war, and shall be incontestable after one year

from date of issue if the premiums are duly paid, pro-

vided, however, that the benefits for total and permanent
disability and those granting additional insurance speci-

fically against death by accident, if any, attached to or in-

corporated in this policy shall become void and cease to

be in force for the causes and under the conditions as

stated therein.

If the age of the Insured has been mis-stated the
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amount payable under this policy shall be such as the pre-

mium paid would have purchased at the correct age of the

insured. The Company will admit the age of the Insured

when furnished with satisfactory evidence of the date of

birth.

Assignment. Any assignment of this policy must be

made in duplicate and both documents sent to the Home
Office, one to be retained by the Company and the other

to be returned. The Company assumes no responsibility

for the validity of any assignment.

Non-Participating. This policy is issued on the Non-
Participating plan and the cost of the insurance does not

depend on the profits or surplus of the Company.
General Provisions. All benefits under this policy are

payable at the Home Office of the Company in Saint

Louis, Missouri, and proof of interest of claimant will be

required. Due proof of death or application for any oth-

er benefit or settlement hereunder must be furnished to

the Company at its Home Office in writing. Any indebt-

edness herein to the Company will be deducted from any
settlement of this poHcy or from any cash surrender value

available hereunder; the period of extended insurance

and the amount of paid-up life insurance provided in Op-
tions (1) and (2) of non-forfeiture provisions will be
such as the net cash surrender value, after deducting any
indebtedness hereon, will purchase at the attained age of

the Insured at net single premium rates according to the

reserve standard named herein. In the settlement of this

policy as a death claim any unpaid premium for the cur-

rent policy year in which death occurs shall be considered
an indebtedness hereon to the Company.

Payment of the cash value or the making of a loan, ex-
cept for the purpose of paying renewal premiums hereon,
may be deferred for a period of ninety days after appli-

cation shall have been made therefor.

Only the President or Secretary has power in behalf of
the Company to make or modify this or any contract of
insurance, or to extend the time for paying any premium,
and the Company shall not be bound by any promise or
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representation heretofore or hereafter made unless made
in writing by one of said officers.

Death by self-destruction, while sane or insane, within

one year from date hereof, shall limit the amount payable

by the Company to the total premiums paid on this policy.

Entire Contract. This policy and the application there-

for, copy of which is attached hereto, constitute the entire

contract. All statements made by the Insured shall, in the

absence of fraud, be deemed representations and not war-
ranties, and no such statement shall avoid the policy un-

less it is contained in the written application herefor.

CONSIDERATION
This insurance is granted in consideration of the appli-

cation herefor, which is made a part hereof, and of the

payment in advance of Eighty-Seven and 58/100 Dollars

being the premium for the term ending on the 25 day of

February 1927, which is term insurance and for the legal

reserve, if any. The insurance will be continued there-

after upon the payment of the annual premium
of Eighty-Seven and 58/100 Dollars on before the

25th day of February in every year during the continu-

ance of this policy.

After delivery of this policy to the Insured, it takes

effect as of the date stated below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CONTINENTAL
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY has caused this pol-

icy to be signed by its proper officers at Saint Louis, Mis-
souri, this 25 day of February, 1926.

J. DeWITT WILLS EDMUND P. NELSON
Secretary President

Countersigned Examined
(SEAL) Assistant Secretary

INSTALMENT AND TRUST FUND PRIVILEGES

The Insured may direct in writing that settlement of

the proceeds of this policy shall be made by payment in in-

stalments in accordance with any of the following options
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instead of by immediate payment in one sum at maturity,

if the policy is not assigned. The beneficiary can neither

assign nor commute unpaid instalments unless such right

is given by the Insured to the beneficiary. If the benefi-

ciary should die before the total specified number of in-

stalments certain shall have been paid and if there be no
contingent beneficiary designated by the Insured or by
the beneficiary after the death of the Insured, the remain-

der of these instalments will be commuted at the rate of

three and one-half per cent per annum and paid in one

sum to the beneficiary's estate, unless otherwise directed

by the Insured.

The beneficiary upon the death of the Insured, provided

the Insured has not otherwise directed, or the Insured

upon surrender for the cash value may direct settlement

of the whole or any part of the proceeds of this policy in

accordance with any one of the following benefits

:

Annual, Semi-annual or Quarterly Instalments com-
puted at the rate of three and one-half per cent per annum
compound interest, will be paid upon request, in lieu of

monthly instalments.

Selection of any of the aforesaid methods of settlement

of the proceeds of the policy shall take efifect only when
endorsed on this policy by the Company. After endorse-
ment the policy will be returned to the Insured.

Payment of the first instalment shall be made immedi-
ately upon receipt of due proof of the death of the In-
sured, and subsequent instalments shall be paid annually,
semi-annually, quarterly or monthly thereafter as may
have been directed.

In no event shall any option be available if the amount
of each instalment payable thereunder is less than Ten
Dollars.

The following tables are based upon a policy of $1,000
and will apply pro rata to the amount payable under this
policy.
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MONTHLY INSTALMENTS FOR DEFINITE
NUMBER OF YEARS

Number of years Dur-
ing which Monthly
Instalments are paid

1 2 3 4 5 6

Amount of Monthly
Instalments per

$1000 of Proceeds
$84.75 $43.10l$29.24

1

$22.26 $18.18 $15.34

Number of years Dur-
ing which Monthly
Instalments are paid

7 8 9 10 11 12

Amount of Monthly
Instalments per

$1000 of Proceeds
$13.39 $11.91 $10.79 $9.87 $9.09 $8.47

Number of years Dur-
ing which Monthly
Instalments are paid

13

Amount of Monthly
Instalments per

$1000 of Proceeds

14 15 16
I

17
I

18 I 19

|$7.94 $7.49j$7.13 $6.77 $6.46|$6.20 $5.97

Number of years Dur-
ing which Monthly
Instalments are paid

20 21 22 23 24
I

25

Amount of Monthly
| | |

Instalments per |$5.78|$5.57|$5.40|$5.24|$5.10|$4.96!

$1000 of Proceeds
I I I I ! I I

ILLUSTRATION: If payment is to be made by
monthly instalments for twenty years, the amount of each
installment will be $5.78 for each $1,000 of proceeds.
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CONTINUOUS MONTHLY INSTALMENTS FOR
DEFINITE NUMBER OF YEARS AND THERE-
AFTER DURING BENEFICIARY'S LIFETIME

Definite Age of Beneficiary at Maturity of Policy
Number
of Years
Specified

15

and
Under

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
!

23

5 years

10 years

15 years

20 years

$4.00

$3.95

$3.88

$3.80

$4.02

$3.96

$3.89

$3.82

$4.03

$3.98

$3.91

$3.84

$4.05

$4.00

$3.92

$3.86

$4.07

$4.02

$3.94

$3.88

$4.09

$4.04

$3.95

$3.90

$4.11

$4.06

$3.97

$3.92

$4.13

$4.08

$3.99

$3.94

$4.15

$4.10

$4.01

$3.96

24 25 26 27
1

28 29
1

30 31 32

5 years

10 years

IS years

20 years

$4.17

$4.12

$4.03

$3.98

$4.20

$4.14

$4.05

$4.00

$4.22

$4.17

$4.08

$4.02

$4.25

$4.19

$4.10

$4.04

$4.28

$4.22

$4.13

$4.06

$4.30

$4.25

$4.16

$4.09

$4.33

$4.28

$4.20

$4.12

$4.37 $4.42

$4.31 $4.34

$4.24 $4.28

$4.15 $4.18

1
1

1

33
1

34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41

5 years

10 years

15 years

20 years

$4.46

$4.38

$4.32

$4.22

$4.51

$4.43

$4.37

$4.26

$4.56

$4.49

$4.41

$4.30

$4.62

$4.55

$4.46

$4.34

$4.68

$4.61

$4.51

$4.38

$4.74

$4.66

$4.56

$4.42

$4.80

$4.72

$4.61

$4.47

$4.87

$4.79

$4.67

$4.52

$4.95

$4.86

$4.73

$4.57

1

1

42
!

43
1

44 45 46 47 48 49 50

5 years $5.02

10 years $4.93

15 3Aears $4.79

20 years $4.62

$5.11

$5.01

$4.86

$4.68

$5.19

$5.09

$4.93

$4.73

$5.29

$5.18

$5.00

$4.78

$5.38

$5.27

$5.08

$4.84

$5.49

$5.37

$5.16

$4.90

$5.60

$5.47

$5.24

$4.96

$5.72

$5.57

$5.32

$5.01

$5.85

$5.67

$5.40

$5.07

1 1 1

51
1

52 1 53 54 55 56 57 58 59

5 years

10 years

15 years

20 years

$5.98|$6.13

$5.79 $5.91

$5.49 $5.57
$5.13l$5.19

$6.29

$6.04

$5.66

$5.25

$6.45 $6.62

$6.17 $6.30

$5.75 $5.85

$5.30 $5.35

$6.80

$6.45

$5.95

$5.40

$7.00

$6.60

$6.04

$5.44

$7.21

$6.75

$6.13

$5.49

$7.43

$6.91

$6.22

$5.53
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60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67
1

68

5 years

10 years

15 years

20 years

$7.66

$7.07 ,

$6.31 .

$5.56.

$7.90

$7.24

$6.39

$5.59

$8.16

$7.41

$6.47

$5.62

$8.44

$7.58

$6.55

$5.65

$8.73

$7.75

$6.63

$5.67

$9.04

$7.92

$6.70

$5.69

$9.36

$8.09

$6.77

$5.71

$9.69

$8.26

$6.83

$5.72

10.05

$8.42

$6.88

$5.73

69 70 71 72 and
Over

5 years

10 years

1 5 years

20 years

$10.42

$ 8.58

$ 6.93

$ 5.74

$10.80

$ 8.74

$ 6.97

$ 5.75

$11.19

$ 8.90

$ 7.01

$ 5.75

$11.59

$ 9.06

$ 7.04

$ 5.75

ILLUSTRATION: If at the death of the Insured

the beneficiary should be thirty years of age last birthday,

the amount of each monthly instalment will be $4.12 pay-

able thereafter for a period of twenty years and as long-

thereafter as the beneficiary shall live.

TRUST FUND PRIVILEGE

The whole or a part of the proceeds of this policy, but
not less than $1,000, may be placed in trust with the Com-
pany during a specified period or until the death of the

beneficiary. The Company will pay a guaranteed income
thereon at the rate of three and one-half per cent per an-
num. The first payment of income shall be made one
year after maturity of this policy and subsequent pay-
ments annually thereafter. Upon the termination of the
trust, the amount thus placed in trust shall be paid to the
beneficiary or to the beneficiary's estate unless otherwise
directed by the Insured.

DIVIDENDS UNDER INSTALMENT AND
TRUST FUND PRIVILEGES

Each instalment and each payment of interest will be

increased by such dividends from the interest earnings as

may be apportioned by the Company.
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CONTINENTAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI

Supplemental Contract attached to and forming a part

of the Company's Policy No. 80480 on the life of John
D. Bowman the Insured. Face Amount of Policy $2,500.

DOUBLE INDEMNITY BENEFITS FOR
ACCIDENTAL DEATH

The Company agrees to pay Five Thousand Dollars

which is double the face amount of the aforesaid policy

and in lieu thereof, to the beneficiary named therein, in

event of the accidental death of the Insured as hereinafter

defined.

The additional sum payable in event of the accidental

death of the Insured shall be due if the Company shall

receive due proof that such death occurred during the

premium paying period before default in the payment of

any premium, before the allowance of any total and per-

manent disability benefit, and prior to attaining the age

of sixty years, and that such death resulted directly and
independently of all other causes from bodily injuries,

effected solely through external, violent and accidental

means, and occurred within ninety days from the date of

the accident, except that this double indemnity benefit

shall not be payable if the Insured's death shall result di-

rectly or indirectly, wholly or partly from suicide, wheth-

er sane or insane, from poisoning, infection or any kind

of illness or disease, or from bodily injuries received while

engaged in military or naval service or from participating

in aeronautics or submarine operations.

The annual premium for this double indemnity benefit

is $3.75 and is included in the premium stated in the con-

sideration clause of the policy.

The provisions for double indemnity benefits and the

premiums therefor may be discontinued at any time on
written request of the Insured accompanied by the policy

for endorsement. In any event any premiums payable

after the anniversary of this policy nearest to the sixtieth
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anniversary of the date of birth of the Insured shall be so

reduced.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Continental Life In-

surance Company has caused this Supplemental Contract

to be signed by its proper officers at Saint Louis, Mis-

souri, this 25 day of February 1926.

J. DeWITT WILLS EDMUND P. NELSON
Secretary. President

Countersigned

:

Examined
Assistant Secretary.

(Seal)

CONTINENTAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI

Supplemental Contract attached to and forming a part

of the Company's Policy No. 80480 on the life of John D.

Bowman, the Insured. Face Amount of Policy $2,500.

MAJOR SURGICAL OPERATIONS AND
DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS

The Company will pay for major surgical operations

an amount not exceeding Fifty Dollars for each $1,000
face amount hereof, provided the Company shall receive

due proof that the Insured within the premium paying
period, before default in the payment of any premium,
prior to attaining age 60 and prior to becoming totally

and permanently disabled has by reason of bodily injuries

or disease contracted after the date hereof and after the

payment of two full years' premiums on this policy, un-
dergone a major surgical operation as herein defined

which shall not result in death or total and permanent dis-

ability within ninety days from the date of such opera-
tion. The amount claimed by the Insured under the sur-

gical operation benefit shall not exceed the actual cost of
surgical and hospital fees. If the amount is less than the

maximum benefit, the balance of that amount will be
available to apply on future operations. Only such major
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surgical operations as are performed in a hospital in the

United States or Canada and which require complete and
general anaesthesia, shall be regarded as within the mean-
ing of this provision. Tonsillectomy shall not be consid-

ered a major surgical operation within the meaning of

this provision.

The Company will pay benefits for dismemberments,
subject to the conditions set forth below, in the amounts
stated in the following schedule

:

Benefit for each $1000
face amount hereof

Loss of right arm above the elbow $250.00
Loss of right arm below the elbow LSO.OO

Loss of left arm above the elbow L^O.OO

Loss of left arm below the elbow 100.00

Loss of either leg above the knee 250.00

Loss of either leg below the knee 125.00

Loss of entire sight of either eye 100.00

The foregoing benefits are payable provided the Com-
pany shall receive due proof that the Insured within the

premium paying period, before default in the payment of

any premium, prior to attaining age 60 and prior to be-

coming totally and permanently disabled has, by reason
of bodily injury or disease contracted after the date here-

of and after the payment of one full year's premium on
this policy, sustained a loss as herein defined, which shall

not result in death or total and permanent disability with-

in ninety days from the date of such loss.

The surgical operations benefit shall not be available

for any surgical or hospital fees incurred in connection

with a claim for dismemberment for which a specified

amount of benefit is herein provided. The Company
shall be liable for payment of only one of the dismember-
ment benefits herein mentioned.

Major surgical operations and dismemberments bene-
fits shall in no event be payable in excess of the amount
applicable to a policy for $10,000, regardless of the num-
ber and amount of policies in force containing this benefit.
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The annual premium for the major surgical operations

and dismemberments benefits is $3.13 and is included in

the premium stated in the consideration clause of the

policy.

The provisions for major surgical operations and dis-

memberments benefits and the premium therefore may
be discontinued at any time on written request of the In-

sured accompanied by the policy for endorsement. Any
premium paid for any period not covered will be returned

to the Insured.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Continental Life In-

surance Company has caused this Supplemental Contract

to be signed by its proper officers at Saint Louis, Mis-

souri, this 25 day of February 1926.

P. Marks E. J. Maus
Secretary. President

Examined
Countersigned

:

Assistant Secretary

(Seal)

To CONTINENTAL LIFE INSURANCE COM-
PANY, ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI

1. I, John D. Bowman hereby apply for a policy on my
( Write full name

)

Hfe for $2500.00 on the Bus. Policy and Life Plan,

(For Income Policies, state amount of income)
Non-Participating, Rate C with Double Indemnity

(A,B,C. or D)
for Accidental Death, with Major Surgical opera-

tions and dismemberments benefits, premiums pay-
able ann annually first year ann annually
thereafter.

2. I was born at Heber City, Ut. on the 25 day of
December 1880. My age nearest birthday is 45 years.



24 Kansas City Life Insurance Company

3. My residence is (No.R.F.D. #3 Blackfoot

Street or R.D.F. Town

Bingham Idaho

County State

six miles in Northeast

direction from Blackfoot

Send premium
notices to

(Insert "Residence"

( or "Business")

4. I have resided at present address 4 years and for

three years prior at Heber City, Utah
(City, State, Street and Number)

5. My place of Business is No. Blackfoot, Bingham,
Idaho

Street City or Town County State

6. My occupation is Mgr. of my own farm & Leased

farm.

(State exact duties in detail)

7. The name and address of my employer is Myself

8. Make policy payable to Bertha E. Bowman
(Write full name)

Relationship Wife
whose age is (born on the day of 1 )

(Fillout for Continuous income Policies only)

9. I do make application for the Automatic Pre-

mium Loan Privilege.

(Insert the words "do not" if this privilege is not

desired. The above statement is of no effect if ap-

plication be for term insurance.)

10. I hereby request Please issue 2500 additional
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(This space is for Special Requests, such as PreHm-
inary Insurance, Issuance of Separate PoHcies, etc.)

11. The amount of insurance now in force on my life is,

Life, $1000 Disability, $ , D. I., $
of which $ has been issued within the last

three years by the following Companies C.L.I.C.

12. I do not have any application pending in any other

company except

(If there is not an application pending erase the word
"except" but if an application is pending give name
of company and amount.)

13. I have never been declined nor postponed for insu-

rance, nor offered a policy different from that w^hich

I made application except

(If there is not an exception erase the w^ord "except"
but if there is exception give name of company and
amount)

14. My acceptance of any
policy issued on this

application will, with-

out further notice,

constitute a ratifica-

tion by me of any cor-

rection in or addition

to this application

made by the Company
in the space provided

for "Home Office En-
dorsements Only."

FOR HOME OFFFICE
ENDORSEMENTS

ONLY

Statement No

corrected to read as fol-

lows
;

15. I have paid to the agent taking this application, cash
$87.58 being the first annual premium on
policy applied for.

16. I agree on behalf of myself and any person or per-

sons, firm or corporation, who may have claim or any
interest in any insurance issued on this application as
follows

:

(1) If the first premium is paid in cash at the time
this application is made and this application is thereafter
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approved by the Company for the amount, on the plan,

and in accordance with the terms of this apphcation, the

insurance will be in force from the date of such approval

;

and the first policy year shall, unless otherwise requested,

begin with the date of such approval. (2) If the first

premium is not paid in cash at the time the application is

made, or if a policy different from the one described in

this application is issued, the insurance shall not take ef-

fect until the first premium thereon has actually been paid

to and accepted by the Company, or its duly authorized

agent and the policy delivered to and accepted by me dur-

ing my life and good health; but in that event the policy

shall bear the date of its issuance and all future premiums
shall become due on such policy and all policy values shall

be computed therefrom.

Dated at Bingham Blackfoot JOHN D. BOWMAN
(Signature of Applicant in full)

this 12 day of Feb. 1926
(Signature of GuarcHan if required)

J. H. WOOD H. A. JONES
Soliciting Agent Only Should Sign Here
(If two or more persons actually engaged
in soliciting this application, the full name
of each should appear hereon.)

General Agent J. H. WOOD
(If Applicant is a female, answer questions

on back; if a minor, written consent of

parent or guardian must be obtained. The
agent's certificate on reverse side must be
completed in all cases.)

No. 33853

CONTINENTAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
APPLICATION, PART II — STATEMENT TO

MEDICAL EXAMINER
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THE APPLICANT MUST BE EXAMINED IN
PRIVATE. THE EXAMINER MUST MAIL THE
COMPLETED EXAMINATION TO CONTINEN-

TAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
ST. LOUIS, MO.

1. a. Full Name JOHN D. BOWMAN
b. Age (last birthday) 45

c. Race? White

2. Has any life insurance organization ever declined or

failed to issue a policy on your life or offered one dif-

ferent than applied for? No Names of companies,

dates and details?

3. a. What are your present occupations? (Explain
exact duties)

b. What were your former occupations ? a. Farming
c. Have you changed occupation or resi- b. Same

dence to improve your health? c. No
d. Do you contemplate a change of

either? d. No
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4. a. Family Record
Age Health (Good or Bad)
if If not good, give

Living full details

Age
at

Death

Cause
of

Death

How
Long
111 1 1

Husband or Wife 43 Good

Father 46 Accdl. 1

Mother 52 Pneum. 10 da 1

Brothers
(living 3

±}rotners
^^^^^^ 3

55

42
40

Good
Good
Good

lyr
2yr
47

not known
not known
not known 2 da 1

Sisters
(Living 2

Msters
^j^^^^^ Q

47
38

Good
Good

b. Age attained by Father's Father? 75 Mother? Not
Known Mother's Father ? 65 Mother's Mother ? 85

c. Have any of your family or relatives had tuberculosis

or been insane? No

5. Have you ever had
any disease or im-

pairment of

Yes
or

No

Disease Date Duration
Results

A

A

a. Brain or nervous
system ? No

b. Heart? No
c. Lungs? No

d. Stomach, bowels,

abdomen Yes
Appendi-

citis

1905 8 days

Operated
Good

Recovery

e. Kidneys or bladder No
f. Eyes or ears? No
g. Any other disease

or injury? No
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6. a. Do you contemplate undergoing a

surgical operation ?

b. Have you ever raised or spat blood,

c. Ever had syphilis?

d. Have you gained or lost weight in

the past year. (State amount and
cause)

e. Have you ever been on a restricted

diet of any kind?

f . Has your urine ever contained

sugar or albimien or casts?

(Give details.)

g. Has your blood pressure ever been

found to be above normal?

h. Have you ever applied for Govern-
ment Compensation for War Dis-

ability? For what injuries?

7. a. To what extent if any do you use

alcoholic drinks? (Give daily or

other average.)

b. Have you ever taken treatment for

any drug or liquor habit ?

8. Are you now in good health ? if not,

state cause of ill health.

I certify the above answers are full, correct and true,

and agree that all of the above shall constitute Part H of

my application.

I expressly waive, on behalf of myself and of any per-

son who shall have or claim any interest in any policy is-

sued hereunder all provisions of law forbidding any phy-

sician or other person who has attended or examined me,

a. No

b. No.

c. No

d. No

e. No

f. No

cr
?3- No

h. No

a. None

b. No

Yes
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or who may hereafter attend or examine me, from disclos-

ing any knowledge or information which he thereby ac-

quired.

Dated at Blackfoot, State of Idaho, this 13 day of

February 1926.

Witness

:

W. W. BECK
M.D.

Signature ( JOHN D. BOWMAN
of (To be written in prescence

Applicant ( of Medical Examiner)

IV.

That the said original policy, supplemental contracts

and application, of which the above is a copy, are in the

possession of the defendant herein, having been delivered

by the plaintiff to said defendant at its instance and re-

quest upon submission of proof of death of said insured,

John D. Bowman.

V.

That on or about the 16th day of February, 1937, the

said John D. Bowman died at Blackfoot, Bingham Coun-

ty, Idaho, before the allowance of any total or permanent

disability benefits and prior to his attaining the age of

60 years; and that the death of the said John D. Bow-

man resulted directly and independently of all other

causes from bodily injuries effected solely through ex-

ternal, violent and accidental means, to-wit: By the ac-

cidental discharge of a shot gun, which struck the person

and body of the said John D. Bowman ; and that the death

of the said John D. Bowman occured within 90 days
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from date of said accident and while said policy was in

full force and effect.

VI.

That the plaintiff was the wife of said John D. Bow-

man at the time said policy was issued to him and so re-

mained at the time of his said death and is the beneficiary

named in said policy.

VII.

That up to the time of the death of the said John D.

Bowman all premiums on said policy, including the prem-

ium for double indemnity benefits for accidental death as

provided in said policy and supplemental contract, form-

ing a part of said policy, were paid, and that in all other

respects the said John D. Bowman duly performed all

agreements and conditions of said policy on his part.

VIII.

That under and by virtue of the proceedings had in the

Circuit Court of the City of St. Louis in the State of

Missouri at the April term 1934, and proceedings had in

said court subsequently thereto in the matter of R. Em-

met O'Malley, Superintendent of the Insurance Depart-

ment of the State of Missouri vs. Continental Life In-

surance Company, a corporation, the said defendant,

Kansas City Life Insurance Company, a corporation,

took over under order of and by virtue of order of

sale by the court the possession and title to all of

the assets of the said Continental Life Insurance Com-

pany, including the policy of insurance hereinabove
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mentioned and assumed liability on said policy of

insurance ; that in said court proceeding and by vir-

tue of the power vested in the said plaintiff in said ac-

tion, R. Emmet O'Malley, Superintendent of Insurance

Department of the State of Missouri in charge of Con-

tinental Life Insurance Company, the said Superintend-

ent of the Insurance Department of the State of Mis-

souri, under order of the court, did sell and transfer to

the plaintiff herein all of the assets of the said Continen-

tal Life Insurance Company, including the policy of in-

surance hereinabove referred to and by the terms of said

sale and transfer of the assets of said company to the de-

fendant herein the said defendant assumed the obligation

of the said Continental Life Insurance Company and the

obligations of said policy of insurance, and that said sale

and assignment were duly ratified by decree of said court

and which proceedings are duly recorded as instrument

No. 189750 in Book 10 of Miscellaneous Records at page

195 of the records of Bannock County, Idaho, to which

reference is hereby made for further particulars.

IX.

That after the death of the said John D. Bowman

plaintiff" furnished to the defendant due proof of the ac-

cidental death of said assured, and that the said defend-

ant at the time it received said proof demanded of and re-

ceived from the plaintiff said policy, which policy the de-

fendant retains and still has in its possession.



vs. Bertha E. Bozvinan 33

X.

That no part of said sum has been paid by the defend-

ant, although payment thereof has been demanded by this

plaintiff, and that there is now due and owing from the

defendant to the plaintiff upon said policy the sum of

$5,000.00 with interest from the 16th day of February,

1937, at the rate of 6% per annum, together with costs

of suit.

WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFF DEMANDS JUDG-
MENT against the defendant for the sum of $5,000.00,

together with interest thereon at the rate of 6% per

annum from the 16th day of February, 1937, and for

costs of suit herein incurred.

Jones, Pomeroy & Jones,

Attorneys for the Plaintiff,

Residence and P. O. Address

:

Pocatello, Idaho

(Duly verified)

(Title of Court and Cause)

ORDER OF REMOVAL
Filed in the State Court, December 2, 1937.

The defendant, Kansas City Life Insurance Company,

a corporation, having filed its petition in due time and

form for the removal of this cause to the District Court
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of the United States for the District of Idaho, and hav-

ing at the same time offered its bond in the sum of

$500.00 with good and sufficient surety conditioned ac-

cording to law

;

NOW, THEREFORE, this court does hereby accept

and approve said bond and accepts said petition and does

order that this cause be removed for trial to the District

Court of the United States for the District of Idaho,

and the Clerk of this court is hereby directed to prepare

and certify a transcript of the record herein to be entered

in the said United States District Court, and that no fur-

ther proceedings be had herein in this case in this court.

Done in open court this 2nd day of December, 1937.

J. L. DOWNING,
Judge.

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO,

EASTERN DIVISION,

BERTHA E. BOWMAN,
Plaintiff,

vs.

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
A Corporation,

Defendant.
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No. 1032

ANSWER
Filed February 25, 1938.

For answer to plaintiff's complaint defendant:

I.

Admits paragraph I of said complaint.

II.

Admits paragraph II of said complaint.

III.

Admits paragraph III of said complaint.

IV.

Admits paragraph IV of said complaint.

V.

Denies all of the allegations of paragraph V of said

complaint except that defendant admits that on or about

the 16th day of February, 1937, the said John D. Bow-

man died at Blackfoot, Bingham County, Idaho, before

the allowance of any total or permanent disability benefits

and prior to his attaining the age of 60 years and admits

that the said policy was in full force and effect at the time

of plaintiff's death

;

Further answering said paragraph V of plaintiff's

complaint defendant alleges that said insurance policy

referred to in plaintiff's complaint provides among other

things that double indemnity benefit shall not be payable

if the Insured's death shall result directly or indirectly,

wholly or partly from suicide, and defendant alleges that

Insured's death resulted from suicide.
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IX.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph IX of

said complaint except that it admits that defendant re-

tains and still has in its possession the policy therein re-

ferred to.

X.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph X of

said complaint except that it admits that no part of said

sum alleged as due and owing has been paid, and alleges

that there is nothing due and owing from the defendant

to the plaintiff upon said policy except the sum of $2,-

500.00 which said sum was before the commencement of

this action tendered by defendant to plaintiff, same being

the full amount to which plaintiff was entitled, which said

sum defendant, coincident with the filing of this answer

deposits in court for the plaintiff.

WHEREFORE, Defendant prays that plaintiff take

nothing in excess of judgment for the amount tendered

into court and here offers to allow judgment to take judg-

ment against it for said amount, to-wit, $2,500.00, and

that defendant have its costs.

Dan B. Shields,

Residence: Salt Lake City,

Utah.

F. M. Bistline,

Residence: Pocatello, Ida-

ho.

Attorneys for Defendant.
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(Duly verified)

(Service accepted February 23, 1938)

(Title of Court and Cause)

MINUTES OF THE COURT OF MARCH 25, 1938

This cause came on for trial before the Court and jury,

Jones, Pomeroy & Jones, Esquires, appearing for the

plaintiff, and F. M. Bistline and Dan B. Shields, Es-

quires, appearing as counsel for the defendant.

The Clerk, under directions of the Court, proceeded to

draw from the jury box the names of twelve persons,

one at a time, written on separate slips of paper to secure

a jury. G. M. Parish, whose name was so drawn was ex-

cused for cause; S. R. Rostad, Ronald Lundstrom and

Frank Siddoway, whose names were likewise drawn were

excused on the plaintiff's peremptory challenge and Floyd

Bradbury, J. P. Sorensen and Wm. P. Camp, Jr., whose

names were also drawn, were excused on the defendant's

peremptory challenge.

Following are the names of the persons whose names

were drawn from the jury box, who were sworn and ex-

amined on voir dire, found duly qualified, and who were
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sworn to well and truly try said cause and a true verdict

render, to-wit

:

Ronald Clark Wilkie Noble

Chas. Briggs Thomas H. Barnes

Hugo L. Clark J. H. Sommercorn

R. C. Pettingill Charles Shumway

Hugo Elg Ronald H. Miller

A. B. Brough James Peterson

After a statement of the plaintiff's case by her counsel,

Verna A. Bowman, Bert Bowman, Rose L. Barris, Melvin

Bowman, Brigham Harrocks, John N. Barnard, John C.

Sanberg, E. C. Peck, Byron Jackman, J. D. Gibbs, L. C.

Adams and Bertha E. Bowman were sworn and examin-

ed as witnesses and other evidence was introduced on the

part of the plaintiff.

After admonishing the jury, the Court excused them

to ten o'clock A. M. on March 26th, 1938, and continued

the trial to that time.

(Title of Court and Cause)

MINUTES OF THE COURT OF MARCH 26, 1938

The trial of this cause was resumed before the Court

and jury. Counsel for the respective parties being pres-

ent, it was agreed that the members of the jury were all

present.

Dr. H. E. Miller was sworn and examined and Melvin
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Bowman was recalled and further examined as witnesses

on the part of the plaintiff, and here the plaintiff rests.

Counsel for the defendant moved the Court for a judg-

ment of non suit upon the question of double indemnity.

The motion was submitted without argument and was

by the Court denied. The defendant asked and was grant-

ed exceptions.

The defendant's counsel made a statement of the de-

fense to the jury, whereupon Howard Packham, Ira

Corey and Dr. A. N. Newton were sworn and examined

as witnesses and other evidence was introduced on the

part of the defendant and here both sides close.

The defendant's counsel renewed the motion for a

judgment of non-suit upon the question of double in-

demnity. The motion was denied by the Court. The de-

fendant asked and was granted exceptions to the order.

The cause was argued before the jury by counsel for

the respective parties, after which the Court instructed

the jury, and placed them in charge of a bailiff duly

sworn, and they retired to consider of their verdict.

On the same day the jury returned into court, counsel

for the respective parties being present, the jury pre-

sented their written verdict, which was in the words fol-

lowing :

(Title of Court and Cause)

VERDICT
'We, the Jury in the above entitled cause, find for
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the plaintiff and assess her damages against the de-

fendant in the sum of $5,000.00.

Chas. Briggs,

Foreman."

The verdict was recorded in the presence of the jury

and then read to them, and they each confirmed the same.

(Title of Court and Cause)

VERDICT
Filed March 26, 1938.

We, the Jury in the above entitled cause, find for the

plaintiff and assess her damages against the defendant in

the sum of $5,000.00.

CHAS. BRIGGS,

Foreman.

(Title of Court and Cause)

JUDGMENT
Filed March 26, 1938.

This action came on regularly for trial, said parties

appearing by their attorneys. A jury of twelve persons

was regularly empaneled and sworn to try said action

and witnesses on the part of the plaintiff and defendant

were sworn and examined. After hearing evidence,
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the argument of counsel and instructions of the Court,

the jury retired to consider of their verdict, and subse-

quently returned into court, and being called, answered

to their names and presented their written verdict, as

follows

:

(Title of Court and Cause)

Verdict

"We, the Jury in the above entitled cause find for

the plaintiff and assess her damages against the de-

fendant in the sum of $5,000.00.

Chas. Briggs,

Foreman."

WHEREFORE, By virtue of the law, and by reason

of the premises aforesaid, it is ordered and adjudged that

said plaintiff have and recover from said defendant the

sum of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), with interest

thereon from the date hereof until paid, together with

said plaintiff's costs and disbursements incurred in this

action, amounting to the sum of $144.20.

WITNESS The Honorable Charles C. Cavanah,

Judge of said court, and the seal thereof this 26th day of

March, 1938.

(SEAL) W. D. McREYNOLDS,
Clerk.
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(Title of Court and Cause)

MINUTES OF THE COURT OF JUNE 15, 1938

The defendant's motion for a new trial was presented

to the Court and argued by F. M. Bisthne, Esquire, on

the part of the defendant and by T. D. Jones, Esquire,

on the part of the plaintiff. At the conclusion of the

argument, the Court announced his conclusions and or-

dered that the motion for a new trial be, and the same

hereby is denied. The defendant asked and was granted

exceptions to the order.

(Title of Court and Cause)

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

Lodged August 13, 1938.

Filed August 29, 1938.

Be it remembered that the above entitled cause come

on for trial on March 25, 1938, being one of the days

of the March Term of said Court, before C. C. Cavanah,

Judge of said court, and a jury duly impaneled. Jones,

Pomeroy & Jones, Pocatello, Idaho, attorneys for plain-

tiff; and Dan B. Shields, Salt Lake City, and F. M.

Bistline, Pocatello, Idaho, attorneys for defendant.

A jury first having been empaneled and sworn ac-

cording to law and counsel for plaintiff having made

their opening statement, the following testimony of wit-
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nesses was offered by the plaintiff to maintain her com-

plaint.

VERNA A. BOWMAN, a witness called on behalf of

plaintiff being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

My name is Verna Bowman. I live in the house back

of the sugar factory at Blackfoot. I was living there

on the date John D. Bowman met his death. This house

is about 200 or 250 feet from the barn where Mr. John

Bowman met his death. It is north or northwest from

the barn. There was a chicken coop about 150 feet from

the barn between my house and the barn,—maybe 100

feet from my house to the chicken coop and 150 feet from

the chicken coop to the barn. My husband made some

measurements by stepping it off. I didn't make any

measurements myself. I have been living there about one

year. Prior to and at the time of John D. Bowman's

death there were birds all over the place. There was a

granary by our place and there were holes in the granary

where the birds could get in.

I know where the door is that leads into the barn where

Mr. Bowman was found dead. It is on the north side of

the barn. I saw Mr. Bowman the first time on the date

of his death when he was helping one of the boys load

hay. The second time I saw him was when he came to

my house for the gun about one-thirty and got the gun.

He worked the mechanism of it, I guess you would call

it. I said there is no shells and he picked up the gun and
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walked out. I followed him to the door, and as he opened

the door the birds flew out of the tree and he said "birds."

He appeared as he always did. He came to the house

and asked me for something. I thought he wanted his

pipe wrench. He talked to the children and tapped or

touched them on the heads. His appearance was cheer-

ful. He smiled all the time. As he left with the gun,

he said "birds" and motioned to the birds which were

flying around from the trees, with the gun. I didn't

notice where he went.

I next saw him that day about 3 :30 going toward the

barn. He wasn't far from the barn when I saw him, but

I can't say how far it was. I went into the coop and

raked up the straw, and while I was taking that straw out

I heard a shot about five minutes from the time I saw him

going towards the barn. I didn't think anything about

the shot at the time. I noticed the birds there, there were

so many flying around in all directions. Nothing else

attracted my attention. I went on changing the straw

out and putting fresh straw in there, and then I went to

the house and I picked up some sewing that I had been do-

ing before I went to the chicken coop and started sewing

and I heard another shot. It was about twenty minutes

later, between the first and second shot. These shots

came from the direction of the barn.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:
Mr. Bowman had been ill for about a year before that.

He had had a stroke at the beginning of the illness, but

he was recovering. He had recovered all but his speech.
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He did not walk with a limp ; his right arm was affected

;

it was getting better though, but on cold days he would

drop things. The day he came to me, I could not make

out in the first place what he wanted. I first offered the

wrench which we had borrowed but he said "No." The

gun was in plain sight. He got it himself. He was at my
house about a half hour. He visited with and talked with

the kids, and I didn't pay any attention to what he said

to them.

There are two houses to the north of the barn. I

live in the south house. The other house is farther north.

The barn is about 60 feet by 30 feet wide. The long way

is east and west and the wide way is north and south and

it is two story. The barn is to the south and east of my
house, and the chicken coop is diagonally to the south be-

tween the barn and my house.

When Mr, Bowman went away from my house he

carried this gun. I never noticed whether he had the gun

or not when he came back. I was in the chicken coop

when I saw him in the barn lot at the barn.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

There is no obstruction between the chicken coop and

the barn to prevent a person from seeing from one place

to the other. When I heard the shots, I never thought

anything about it, I never heard of Bowan's death until

the evening of the same day.

BERTRAM N, BOWMAN, a witness on behalf of

plaintiff being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

My name is Bertram N, Bowman. I live just west of

the sugar factory. I am a son of John D. Bowman. The

house where I Hve sets diagonally northwest of the barn

about 250 feet, and the chicken coop is about 100 feet

from the house, in between the house and the barn on a

little of an angle.

I first saw my father on the day he died with my bro-

ther with a team and wagon back of the house about 10

or 10:30 in the morning. He got on the wagon and rode

to the barn with me. I had a conversation with him at

that time. He appeared just the same at that time as he

had for days before. His physical condition appeared

perfect; he could do practically anything that the rest

of us could do.

I next saw him about one-thirty or two-thirty o'clock

in the afternoon just inside the barnyard gate between

my house and the barn taking the gun toward his house.

Within the week prior to the time that I saw him with

the gun, he would help us with the chores, and the day

before he had helped us to repair a sleigh tongue, and

did numerous jobs around the barnyard. He would do

most everything there. In the summer of 1936 he went

out with me and did some irrigating, and before that he

showed me cuts to take out. He supervised all of the ir-

rigation. He drove the derrick team and milked some of

the cows. He told me less than two weeks before the ac-

cident that he would be on the farm helping us this sum-

mer and show us more how to farm.
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As to his family relationship with my mother, I never

knew of them to have a cross word. His right side was

affected by the stroke. The condition of his right arm

was different from the rest. In cold weather when he

would pick things up in his right hand, he would some-

times drop them because his grip wasn't as good with the

right hand. I have seen him around the cows. He would

often run the cows in and he would quite often have a

part of them all milked when we would come in. He had

been able to milk cows the latter half of the summer pre-

ceeding his death, but when it was cold he couldn't grip

the cow's teats. I saw him possibly twice a day, and prac-

tically every day from the time of the stroke up to the

time of his death. It was between two and three months

after sustaining the stroke that I noticed he was begin-

ning to improve. I observed that his recovery was slow.

At first his leg was a little lame, and his arm wasn't near-

ly as strong, but his feeling and the use of his leg came

back, and it came into use more each day, and contin-

ued to get better every day up to the day of the accident.

There was an awful lot of birds around our barn, and

also around the feed lot adjoining the barn. And you

could never go into the loft of the barn without scaring

a lot of birds out. The barn is a frame structure about

28 by 46 feet. It has a gable roof and tie arms across

the rafters. It is about ten feet from the hay loft floor

to the tie-arm. The barn has two windows in the west

and two in the east. There is a large hay door between

the east two. Those windows were between two and a
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half and three feet square, and they are about four and a

half feet from the floor of the loft of the barn. The win-

dows had no glass in them. There was a canvas that was

tacked down diagonally across the window which came

down diagonally from the north side. There was about

one-third of the window that was not covered. There

were birds in the loft of this barn. There were always

birds and lots of them. There were lots of birds all over

at the time my father met his death ; they were in the hay

loft and around the granary,—lots of them. They were

sparrows.

The oat granary is back of the barn on the west side,

—

down below this southwest window with a lean-to roof to

the south, and the doors to this granary have never been

very tight. You can never go in there but what a lot of

birds will fly out of there. We also have a wheat gran-

ary where we stored the seed wheat, and the birds could

get in there some, but not so much.

I recognize what has been marked as plaintiff's ex-

hibit No. 1 as the gun. There has been a slight change

in it since I saw it. The stock has been repaired ; it was

repaired by Roswell Barris; and also the gun is cleaned

up a great deal since it was at my house.

My father was around five foot six in height and of

stocky build. My youngest brother is about the same

build and size.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

I am the husband of Mrs. Verna Bowman who testi-

fied The gun had been at my house three or four days.
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I had it on the feed lot shooting sparrows out there. I

think I had it over there at the house altogether between

six weeks and two months. It had not been in the pos-

session of my father for something like five or six

months before that time. I hardly think there are as

many sparrows out there now as there were last winter.

My father did not have a paralytic stroke ; it was throm-

bosis. It occurred December 1, 1935.

He was prostrate in bed for six weeks, after which

he slowly got well, but was somewhat lame to begin with.

He had a halt in his right leg, and his right hand was

numb, and at first he could not use that hand as well.

There was no time after he had this illness when he actu-

ally could use this hand as well as before this sickness,

and he always had to a certain extent favored that hand.

He had some difficulty with his speech; articulating was

difficult for him, and that was true up to the day that he

died with some words, but other words he could say all

right. The words he pronounced from the point of his

tongue, or short sharp words, he said well, and I saw no

marked difference in these words. At the time he died,

he was about the same weight as he was before his ill-

ness, having regained his normal weight.

It is a twelve-gauge gun.

The gun had some repairs to it. The stock was an-

other stock and did not have this shoulder bolt on it. It

is the same gun, and has been considerably cleaned up.

The trigger is just the same as it was. I will explain

where the alterations were made in the gun stock. This
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piece (indicating) that was off, and we had no shoulder

bolt, and it was more or less a little rough in here (indi-

cating). This piece on here in the gun (indicating) you

will notice had been spliced in. We found this gun when

we were coming over the Lincoln Creek Divide. A hun-

ter had lost it, and someone had run over it and broken

this off, and we put this piece in here (indicating). The

tape that is around here (indicating) was on here at all

times during the last year. The tape to which we are re-

ferring is immediately under the Clerk's mark. The

upper part of the stock is repaired, and the lower one-

half is the original.

I was not with my father every day. The contact

that I had with him was just accidental meetings or oc-

casionally, or when I went over to see my parents. I

would see him about the place as I would drive back and

forth ; sometimes I would get through around 1 1 :20 at

noon, and he would be around the barn and I would help

him take care of the chores and things. On account

of my employment I am compelled to say that the contact

between me and my father was not as close as it had

been when I was growing up, but I was there to dinner

about a month or so prior to the accident and stayed there

from 11 :30 to 1 :00, o'clock. On the day of the accident

I saw him carrying a gun through the gate into the barn

yard at about 1 :30 or 2 :00 o'clock in the afternoon. He
was headed toward the house. He was walking toward

the east or toward the south. At that time I was going

with a load of beet pulp to the scales to weigh it. The
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scales were south between the barn and dad's house and

he had to walk by there. I did not pay any attention to

how father was carrying the gun. I was about twenty

or thirty feet from him at that time.

Father would help with the chores. We had from

twelve to sixteen horses in the corral, four cows, a couple

of calves that had to be fed and watered twice a day,

and the cows put in the barn and milked. On the day in

question there was no hay in this loft of the barn and had

not been for sometime prior thereto. To do the chores

would involve putting hay in the stalls. Part of the win-

ter it would have required somebody going up in the loft.

We put a little of the third crop of hay in the hay-mow

and fed the cows when we kept them in during the cold

nights. I don't remember what time the last of the hay

was put in there; it could have been a month, and it

could have been a month and a half. I never took care of

feeding the cowg, but would help milk. Birds can

come in and go out of the windows in the loft of the barn.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

My father used another gun from the latter part of

November up to the time of his death there on the prem-

ises. He used a gun to kill a stray dog soon after the

first of December in the yard there. He took one shot

at this dog, which was about fifty or sixty feet away.

The gun was a twenty-two single shot.

He sometimes got into the loft of the barn to feed hay

to the stock. When we were harvesting the beets, he

used to feed the horses practically every night for us.
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ROSWELL H. BARRIS, a witness on behalf of the

plaintiff, being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:
My name is Roswell H, Barris. I then lived at

Groveland three miles north and west of Blackfoot in

Bingham County, Idaho for over thirty years. I am not

in any way related to the Bowmans. I know that Ex-

hibit No. 1 is a twelve-gauge Winchester repeating shot

gun. I bought this gun at an auction sale at the Boyle

Hardware Company on February 26, 1938, and recon-

ditioned it. I took it apart and cleaned the works and

reconditioned the stock. The works of the gun were all

gummed up with hard grease, and it was corroded until

I had a lot of difficulty in cleaning it out. I had to use

soap and water and a brush, to clean the grease and grit

from the works of the gun.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:
I am now the owner of this gun. I know nothing

about the gun before. I had never seen it before the sale.

MELVIN BOWMAN, witness on behalf of plaintiff,

having been first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:
My name is Melvin Bowman. I live at Riverside five

miles out of Blackfoot. I am the son of John D. Bow-

man, deceased. I know my father sustained an illness in

December, 1935, and I saw him nearly every day until

this winter, and then maybe it would be two or three days.

At first he was in bad shape ; he was bad off, and then he
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seemed to improve a lot and get out and around. At the

time of his death his physical condition was pretty near

normal, all but his speech and one arm. That was the

only thing very noticeable at all. In cold weather his arm

would get more numb and he would not have use of it

that he would on days that were warmer.

I saw him the day before his death hitching up some

colts to break them, and we broke the sleigh tongue out

and we fixed it. By "we" I mean him and my brother

and me. He vv^ould get the tools and help, just like any

of us. I think the first thing he did was to start to heard

the cows after he got out of bed. He took them to the

pasture, and then he would supervise the irrigating, and

in the second and third crop of hay he drove the derrick

team for about two hundred tons of hay. I saw him do

other things also. He helped with the threshing, and in

the fall he helped by feeding the cows and the horses

and repairing the machinery. He would drive a 1937

Plymouth car around the farm. He drove it practically

all summer. He was greatly improved and seemed to be

better in the fall of 1936 than he was in the summer. I

never saw him milk, but I saw him there ; I did the chores

on my own place. I knew he fed the cows. I had a talk

with him shortly before his death, in the spring when

we were breaking the colts, as to his future plans. He
told me he would help me run the place this coming sum-

mer.

The last time I saw him was about three o'clock in the

afternoon on the day before the accident. A few days
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before his death, I was fixing a beet drill and I changed

it from a twenty to twenty-two inch row, and he knew the

difference. I could tell from his appearance whether he

was despondent, or cheerful, or happy, or how he was;

he appeared to be happy, just like normal. I don't re-

member that he ever said anything to me about his con-

dition. He was never pressed for finances because they

were all right.

I am about five foot six tall. Compared with the

height of my father, I don't think there was a fraction of

an inch difference in the two of us, and my build was

practically the same as his. I will stand up and take Ex-

hibit No. 1. His arms were about the same length as

mine.

I saw that gun in the barn lying diagonally across him

in the southwest corner of the loft. There was a perpen-

dicular ladder that went up on the north side of the barn

to reach the loft.

It was around a quarter to five on that same day, in

the afternoon, that I first learned of my father's death.

I went to the place where he was found after I had been

up to the undertaker's and sheriff's office. I went up to

see the sheriff and undertaker. I found my father in the

southwest corner of the barn ; his feet were about one and

a half feet from the wall, lying in a southeasterly direc-

tion. His feet were about one and a half feet from the

west wall and a little north, about four inches, of the

southwest window. His body was about one and a half

feet from the wall and just three or four inches north



vs. Bertha E. Bozvman 55

of the window, that is, the north portion of the window,

and the gun was lying horizontally across the left leg

with the butt toward his feet. I made no close inspection

of my father.

Later that evening I looked around with the others for

evidence of shot in the barn loft at the same time the

sheriff was there or about five o'clock. I discovered where

the shot had taken effect; it was two feet from the west

wall and ten feet from the floor of the loft to a two by

four it hit in the wall, just a little southeast from his

feet ; it was just over his feet and back just a little. It

was just two feet from the west wall, nearly perpendic-

ular. I didn't look closely at the point where the shot was

embedded, but there was flesh and little shreds of cloth-

ing, and they were scattered about the floor of the loft. I

noticed one empty shell lying on his right side, and an

empty shell in the gun. I made some examination to see

whether any other shots had taken effect in the barn and

found no shot except the one I have described. Where

the body lay, I found a two by six board around three

feet long ; it had not been moved because the print where it

was lying was still just the same.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 1 (shotgun) was

offered in evidence at this time and admitted without ob-

jection.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. BISTLINE:
I heard of my father's death just as I got into Black-

foot about five o'clock. I went out to the barn. I think

the sheriff, coroner and I went into the barn together.
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We went in the outside door of the barn. I don't re-

member who went up the ladder into the loft first. I

was there when the body was moved. My father was

lying on his back with the gun across his body diagon-

ally across his left leg with the butt of the gun resting

between his feet. The muzzle of the gun was up along

his side, the gun being on top of him or across his body.

The shot had hit the ceiling by the two by four in the

ceiling and his feet in reference to the position of the

shot were just a little west, about six inches west, al-

most directly under and a little to the north. He was

under the first rafter, beginning from the west ; it would

be the first rafter two feet from the end. I don't re-

member whether there was any shot in the cross member

that comes across the rafter, but there were a few scat-

tered shot in the top of the sheeting upon which the

shingles are fastened. I noticed parts of his clothing,

just threads, up close in there where the shot had taken

effect. I noticed this myself. I looked around at other

boards in the roof but found only the spot where one shot

had taken effect. I did not notice closely, but I remember

flesh on the roof of the barn. It was in the top and looked

to be in the supports. There was also flesh on the floor.

I don't remember where my father's arms were as he lay

there. It is too long ago, and I guess I didn't take very

close notice of that. I didn't look very closely at the

condition of his face, but I have a pretty plain picture of

it. I noticed his chin. The shot had hit him in the left

side of the face, but I don't remember whether his chin
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was still discernible. I do not recall the condition of his

mouth as I only saw him this once, nor do I recall the

condition of the left ear. I never examined his left

shoulder. I only looked at him generally and didn't make

any minute examination.

I am almost of the same height as my father; there is

but a fraction of an inch difference, and I am of the same

dimensions generally.

Witness Melvin Bowman stepped down from the witness

box in front of the jury and the stock or butt of the gun

was placed on the floor by his feet with gun in a nearly

perpendicular position to the floor against his body with

the muzzle or end of the barrel pointing upward along-

side his left breast and in this position was requested to

reach the trigger with his finger. But the witness was

unable to reach the trigger with his finger while the gun

was in this position without bending his body. With the

gun in the same position he then bent over and reached

the trigger with his finger and in so doing the muzzle or

end of the barrel extended above the top of the left

shoulder of the witness.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

I know that these shoes that have been marked plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 2 are the shoes my father was wearing

at the time of the accident. I think they are in the same

condition now as they were at that time. They have not

been used.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 2 received in evi-

dence.

This winter we had quite a Httle snow before the ac-

cident, and there had been a lot of sparrows there.

These granaries were open so that they could go in and

out, and we were feeding a little wheat which was quite

a treat for the sparrows. There was no hay on the floor

of the barn at the point where father was found lying

after the accident, but there were a few lucern leaves

on the floor.

BRIGHAM HORROCKS, a witness on behalf of the

plaintiff, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:
My name is Brigham Horrocks. I lived at Blackfoot

since 1919, I was acquainted with John D. Bowman,

having known him as long as I can remember, both being

born in Heber, Utah. I have been in the merchandising

business at Blackfoot since 1924, new and second hand

furniture, and other kinds of things, operating under the

name of Clegg Furniture Company. Mr. Bowman

worked in the same store about a month before in the

winter.

I recall the day the accident occurred. I saw Mr. Bow-

man at the store on that date at about 2:30 in the after-

noon. He got two shot gun shells at that time. He had

gotten shells there before. He would come in in the win-

ter time and buy not more than 25c worth of shells at a

time, and very often he would get two, three or four
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shells. The price on shells was five cents per shell. When

he got the shells he said he was going to shoot birds.

I knew he had a stroke. I went to his home many

times when he was sick. After he had the stroke, for

the first few months I was there every day and some-

times twice, and as he improved I didn't call so often, but

I saw him two or three times a week. I could see a very

marked improvement as time went on. At the time of

the accident, he seemed to favor his right hand, and other

than that his physical condition was good. He would

show us he was getting better. His speech had an impedi-

ment. It was not too plain ; I could understand lots of his

words but not all of them. At times he could be under-

stood better; he would say three or four words without

any trouble at all, and at other times he would only say

one or two words.

I think he left the store that day about 2:30 in the

afternoon. He seemed to be the same to me as he did for

days. He was alright and gaining all the time and was

happy about it. He would always say "Hello" and "How
are you" when he met you, and whenever you went to

his house to see him, he was tickled to see you, and when

you left he would always say to come again or don't go

now, or something like that. His family relationship

was very good.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

He bought two twelve-gauge shotgun shells from me.

I did not wait on him as he helped himself. He did not

pay for them on that day. It was his habit to buy shot-
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gun shells in two and three and never more that a quar-

ters worth ; this was over a period of five years, longer

than that. The time he bought a quarter's worth of

shells before this day, I cannot say, but it would be in

1934, making an interval of at least two years that he

didn't buy any shells. These were the only shells that

he bought from me during the period from the time that

he was taken up with his sickness to the present time.

This time he came in and helped himself. He was famil-

iar with the store. I walked up to where he was and

wrapped up a package I had that another fellow had

bought, and he showed me that he had two shells. I said

to him, "You don't want them. Leave them here." I

said that to him in a kind of a kidding way, and he said

"I am going to shoot birds," and he walked out as I

wrapped up the package for this other fellow. As I

remember it, it is every detail. I do not remember any

conversation about telling him I didn't know what he was

taking away.

I did not see the body of the deceased after the acci-

dent until it was in the casket and prepared for burial.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES.
It was his custom to come in and if we were not ready

to wait on him, he would wait on himself. As he started

to leave with the shells, I said "Jack, you don't want

them. Leave them here." I always kidded with him. and

he did with me. There is nothing unusual in this ; he told

me he was shooting birds, and I knew it was his custom,

so I dismissed it from my mind entirely.
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JOHN N. BARNARD, a witness on behalf of plain-

tiff, being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

My name is John N. Barnard. I have lived at Black-

foot approximately thirty years. I am a sugar factory

employee. I work as a mechanic outside, and when they

operate I am foreman. I was at the sugar factory on the

day uhat John D. Bowman met his death. I quit work

at 4:00 that day and went into the shop which is separ-

ate from the factory. I went to the Bowman barn about

4:20 that afternoon to get my horse and lead him out

to water, and when I got him outside in the light I noticed

there was blood on his side. There was no puncture in

the skin. On tracing its source, I found it had leaked

through the floor of the hay loft, and I went up and found

Mr. Bowman lying on his back in the southwest corner

just under the window. I did not examine the body at

that time. I then notified one of the boys and told him

that his father had met with an accident and he said we

better get brother Bert and the other brothers who are

in town and we then notified Bert. I did not notify any

officer until after I found the boys in town, and they went

to the sheriff's office. I didn't go back with the boys and

the officers.

When I went back the sheriff and the coroner were

there, two of the Bowman boys, and I think another gen-

tleman was there too. I observed what they were doing.

I went up into the loft. The body was in the same posi-

tion and condition when I got there with the coroner as
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it was when it was when I saw it first. I noticed that

the gun lay across the body in a kind of diagonal position,

with the butt of the gun toward his feet and the muzzle

toward his head. It was not lying in a perpendicular pos-

ition, that is, perpendicular with the body, but it was

more across, and the muzzle pointing toward the left.

His feet were about a foot and a half from the wall, a

trifle north of the north side of the window. There was

one shell to the right of the body. There were no other

shells on the floor, but the sheriff extracted one from the

gun. Both shells were empty. I noticed that one shot

had taken effect in the roof of the barn about two feet

from the west wall and about ten feet from the floor.

It was directly over the window. It was back kind of.

The shot in the roof was more horizontal than perpen-

dicular from where his feet were. I observed threads

of a denim coat, and blood and particles of flesh at the

point where the shot had taken effect in the roof. I

believe his cap was laid just to the side there. There was

a piece of two by six, lying on the left side of the body,

and it looked like it had never been disturbed from the

dust and leaves that were around there. I observed noth-

ing else, no contrivance of any kind. So far as I could

see no other shot took effect in the barn. The height

of the window from where the body was lying was about

four and a half feet from the floor. There was a canvas

kind of dropped down about half-way across the window.

There was nothing to obstruct a load of shot being fired

through the window.
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Mr. Bowman was dressed in khaki pants and a blue

denim jumper. He had shoes with rubbers on over the

shoes. He was dead the first time I saw him as far as I

could tell. The shot looked as if it had struck the left

side of his coat and gone into his chin and took the left

side of his face off.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

I did not examine the face of the dead man closely as

he lay there. I took no notes. I did not notice the jum-

per that he had on very carefully. I don't know as I

said there was a hole in the jumper, but part of the lapel

was shot away, I do remember that. I didn't pay a

whole lot of attention to that jumper for I was just a little

bit excited. I cannot tell whether there was one or two

holes in the jumper. My best judgment is that there was

some of the lapel gone, because there were some of the

threads in the roof.

When we went back to the loft of the barn, so far as

we could tell the body had not been moved from the time

we left until we came back. And the gun was in the same

position with the barrel, or muzzle of the gun pointing

at the man's head, or in that direction, and the butt was

on the ground, or near his feet, and his body lay in a

slanting direction not square with the building or length-

wise. I think it laid more toward the north and the gun

lay across the body, and the barrel of the gun, the muzzle

pointed toward the left side of his head and was still

lying on his chest. I don't remember the position of his

hands. I did not examine the gun, but I did see this dis-
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charged shell lying to the north of the prone body, and

while I was there the sheriff extracted the second dis-

charged shell from the gun.

I am not able to give a very definite description of the

dead man's face. The statement which I made with

respect to this shot having gone in under the chin is the

way it looked to me. I cannot say for sure that part of

the chin was still there. I was not accustomed to a sight

of this kind, and I didn't pay very much attention to it;

the things I have spoken of are the things that forcibly

struck me. I was the first one to find the body and under

the circumstances I have related. I did not see the body

after it was taken to the undertaking parlor. The search

I made for the shot was just a casual examination. The

place where the shot went into the roof was three or four

feet over my head. I did not climb up to it. Whatever

judgment I have was obtained from the floor, from look-

ing at it from the floor of the loft. There was no light

there. It was fairly light in the barn at that time. When
the sheriff and undertaker got back, it was about five

o'clock. That was on February 16. The window was not

quite half covered with canvas, dropping away from the

top, and I believe the cover dropped about half way at the

bottom, and it kind of feathered, so to speak, away to-

ward the south.

JOHN C. SANDBERG, witness on behalf of plaintiff,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES

:

My name is John C. Sandberg. I live at Blackfoot,
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am coroner of Bingham County, Idaho, was such on the

16th clay of February, 1937, was called officially that day

about five o'clock, or possibly a few minutes after. I

went to the sheriff's office and to the sugar factory barn.

The sheriff, Mr. Barnard, and one or two of the sons

of Mr. Bowman went with me. When we got to the

loft of the barn we found the body of Mr. Bowman in

the southwest corner near the window. I made no meas-

urements of the window. We found the deceased near

the window, his head to the southeast, not quite in line

with the barn. We found a gun lying across his body

near the feet; the butt was near his feet but not quite

in line with the body; it was diagonal toward the left

side. We also found that Mr. Bowman had been shot

in the left side of the face. The sheriff found an emp-

ty shell to the right of the body, and then he extracted

another empty shell from the gun. I did not discover

any contrivance of any kind that could be used there

at all. There were some hay leaves on the floor, and

I believe a plank, a two by six, back near the window.

When the sheriff Hfted the plank, it showed an im-

print or impression on the leaves, indicating that it

probably was there for some considerable time. We
examined the roof above the deceased, and in the raf-

ter we found shot with particles of flesh and threads of

clothing. That evening we made an examination to de-

termine whether there was any other shot that took effect

in the hay loft. It was beginning to get a little dark, and

the following morning the coroner's jury was summoned
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and the jury with myself and the sheriff made a thorough

investigation of the hay loft. We found no other shot

except the one I just testified to in the roof above the

deceased. The jury returned a verdict and I signed the

standard death certificate of the state as coroner. Mr.

Peck of the Brown-Eldridge Mortuary took the body

out of the barn. As near as I could determine, the left

side of his face was pretty well shot away, indicating to

me that the shot had probably been under the left side

of the chin where the shot first went in. He was dressed

in a jumper, and a sweater that was under the jumper,

a shirt, and the usual underwear. There was a hole on

the left side of the denim jumper near the shoulder, and

a larger hole near the top of the shoulder on the left side.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

I made the usual preliminary examination to see if

the cause of death could be determined. The examina-

tion made at the barn was somewhat superficial, without

definitely diagnosing any cause of death.

When I went to the mortuary, I found that the evi-

dence of injury was to the left side of the face, and as

near as I can describe it, that side had been shot away.

If I recall, the chin was there. I don't know whether the

entire chin was there or whether the shot extended down

to the left side to include the chin, but it was down the

left side quite a distance. I don't hardly think the flesh

was all there on the left side underneath the chin. The

undertaking work had not all been done when I got there

a second time, but they were doing some of it, and they
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were preparing the body for that work. Part of the chin

and the jaw bone on the left side had been shattered,

and the left side extending to the eye was pretty well torn

away. I don't recall how much of the flesh on the left

side under the chin had been knocked away from there.

I don't recall whether the sweater underneath this jumper

had a hole in, or not, but there was some markings the

same as the jumper. I am not sure whether they were

just the same, or if they had been torn away, or what,

but it would seem that the shot was through the jumper,

but I don't recall whether that sweater was intact, or not,

but the jumper had a small hole in the shoulder, in that

piece of material that goes across there, and then there

was a larger hole near the top. I am not sure whether the

larger hole was closer or farther away from the collar,

but as I recall, it was about half way. Exhibit No. 3 is

the same jumper of which I have been speaking. The

smaller hole is closer to the collar than the larger one I

observe from this exhibit. He wore this jumper at the

time I saw him lying there.

E. T. PECK, a witness on behalf of plaintiff being

first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES

:

My name is E. T. Peck. I live at Blackfoot, am a

funeral director and also in the furniture business, being

so engaged a number of years. I went to the barn of

Mr. John D. Bowman on February 16, 1937. I do not

recall who accompanied me. I think the sheriff, the cor-

oner, a Mr. Barnard, and some of the Bowman boys were
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there when I went into the loft of the barn. I did not

make any particular examination at that time. Several

men were standing in the west end of the barn, and I

could see the body lying there. It was near the window

of the west end of the barn with the head lying toward

the north and the feet toward the south. The left side

of the face was badly shattered and there was a gun ly-

ing over the body. I think they were examining the

shells that lay on the floor near the body. I do not know

whether any other shells were ejected from the gun

while I was there. I took no part in the examination of

the loft to determine where, if any place, shot had taken

effect, but they were making an examination. After this

examination, with the assistance of the sheriff and some-

body else, we put this body into the receiving case and

I took it to the east end of the barn and let it down

through the doors to the car and took it to the mortuary.

I saw the jumper the deceased had on at that time, but I

made no particular examination except to say that it had

a hole in the left shoulder. The wound on the deceased's

face, according to the best description I can give was the

entire length of the left side of the face from the chin

clear up past the eye.

I was at the undertaking parlor when they took the

clothes off and put the body on the table, being there

when the coroner came. I cannot say that I made any

closer inspection of the face, because I had my opinion

formed as to where the wound was. I saw the wound

again, and it confirmed my former opinion. The coroner
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was there and wanted to see the body before it was

touched by us.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

Most of the left side of the face was gone. There were

flaps of flesh at the left of the eye hanging down, but I

don't remember as to the flaps of flesh from the chin. I

cannot positively answer as to the mouth, what its condi-

tion was. The left eye was out of its socket. I can't an-

swer as to the left ear. There was no reason for me to

make any particular detailed examination or inspection

of the body. I have an embalmer there who takes care

of that work. I don't do very much of that actual work

any more, and he did that work on this body. When the

body was prepared to be put in the casket, I saw that it

was properly done, and that is the last attention I paid

to it, except of course, taking care of the funeral,

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

I think I said that the left side of the face was mostly

destroyed, and that would be true with reference to the

left side of the chin. I didn't embalm this body. The

party who did embalm the body was not a certified em-

balmer; he was an apprentice.

BYRON JACKMAN, a witness on behalf of plaintiiT,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:
My name is Byron Jackman. Since 1911 I have lived

seven miles north of Blackfoot. I am not related to the

Bowman family in any way. On the day Mr. Bowman
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lost his life, I arrived at the sugar factory around three-

thirty o'clock. I heard a shot just as I turned into the

barnyard gate. I know where John D. Bowman's barn

was. It was about 150 to 200 feet from the barn when

I heard this shot. Later I heard another shot. It was

about 15 or 20 minutes between the two shots. I heard

the first shot around three-thirty or twenty-five minutes

to four.

I have been up in the loft of the barn before as I kept

my team in the barn. As evidence of life in the barn there

was a large number of birds that would fly out of the win-

dow as I went up to the loft. I did not hear of Mr. Bow-

man's death on that day. I had occasion to examine the

loft the next morning. I can't say who all was there, but

I know that Sheriff Corey and one or two of the Bowman

boys were there. I went around with Mr. Corey. The

only thing I ever saw there was where one shot had hit

the top of the barn up near the window. There was some

blood there and some particles of flesh and clothing that

was in the top of the barn at the point where the shot

was embedded in the wood. We went over the barn

from one end to the other on the floor looking for other

shots. It was light enough to see the top of the barn

too, but I could not find anything.

NO CROSS EXAMINATION
J. D. GIBBS, a witness on behalf of plaintiff, being

first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:
My name is J. D. Gibbs. I have lived at Blackfoot
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for 30 years. I knew John D. Bowman about ten years.

I first learned of his death on February 16 between four

and five o'clock. The body was still there when I went

to the place where it was found. At the time the sheriff,

the coroner, Mr. Peck, and one of the Bowman boys and

some others were there. When we went in the body was

lying in the west part of the barn, and there was a gun

lying across the body, and the left portion of the face

was shot away. There was a piece of two by four that

didn't look as though it had ever been moved and there

were hay leaves all over the floor, and some parts of his

clothing and flesh was in the rafter and roof of the barn.

About the clothing there was flesh and blood. There was

shot in the ceiling right over the window and back to the

north, right over the body. I did not make any examin-

ation to ascertain if any other shot had taken efifect in

there. The cloth in the roof was pieces of blue denim

jumper, part of the jumper that Mr. Bowman had on

when I saw him. His head was lying in a southeasterly

direction with reference to his body. Some of the shot

had cut through his jumper on the left side.

NO CROSS EXAMINATION.

L. P. ADAMS, a witness on behalf of the plaintiff,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

My name is L. P. Adams, of Riverside, about five miles

west of Blackfoot. I have lived in this section since

1886. Farming has been my occupation most of the time,
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but in the last years I have followed road construction

for contractors. I knew Mr. Bowman.

I went to the barn as a member of the coroner's jury

about the middle of the next afternoon. It was quite

light in the barn. We went with the coroner and the

sheriff, and they explained to us where the body was ly-

ing and they showed us where the shot was that they had

found in the rafter of the barn. There were two win-

dows in the west and two in the east of the barn, and

this was the south window of the two in the west. This

shot was right to the side and part of the shot was in

the rafter, the first rafter from the west end of the barn,

about a few inches north of the line of the north side of

the window. This was the southmost window in the

barn, and I observed that there was particles of flesh

and blood where the shot took effect in the barn, and also

particles of the blue denim jumper at that place. The

entire jury, including myself, stayed better than an hour

and looked closely all over the barn. There were five

other jurymen besides myself, and the sheriff and cor-

oner. We could not find any other shot, but this shot

showed quite plain, like it was fresh marked on a board

rather shortly after it is done. I don't think the under-

taker had done a great deal to the wound on his face be-

cause the jury went to the undertaker's before we went

to the barn. The left side of his face was practically shot

away. As near as I can recall, the wound started on the

left side of the center of the chin, but I do not recall ex-

actly where it would be.
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CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

I didn't pay any particular attention to the condition

of the deceased's mouth at the undertaking parlor, but

I recall that there was some skin kind of laid back just

above one ear and close to the eye. It was just laid back.

I do not remember some skin lying back on his neck nor

his ear being torn away nor the eye being out of the soc-

ket. If I paid very much attention, I do not recall it

now. I haven't thought any more about it since that time,

but I remember it was quite a bad looking sight. I knew

the left side of his face was pretty well gone. The wound

began right about the center, probably off center a little,

of his chin and clear up to his eye; I would not be sure

whether the chin was all left or not. From the eye up

was left fairly good as I remember it now. I don't recall

that there was any flesh down underneath the jaw. As

to the mouth, it seems to me like there was a little of the

skin still visible there. I am pretty sure the nose was

partially visible. He didn't have clothes on when I saw

him but was on the cooling board at the mortuary, cov-

ered with a sheet. On his shoulder there was a mark ex-

tending from about the left nipple upward to his shoulder.

It veered just a trifle toward the shoulder. The direc-

tion was probably closer to the center where it started

and probably veered a little bit. It has been quite a while

and I could be mistaken about this. The only informa-

tion I had about this was that which came to me in the

course of my official capacity as a member of the cor-

oner's jury that was viewing the scene of the alleged ac-



74 Kansas City Life Insurance Company

cident and the remains. I had known Mr. Bowman for

about 15 years and knew of the ilhiess which had over-

taken him in the latter part of his life. I saw him fre-

quently after that, although I would say sometimes it was

quite a spell in between times. After he began convalesc-

ing I saw him at times ; the summer after he was sick I

was away quite a lot, but that following fall and winter

I saw him quite often. In the latter part of the season I

saw him two or three weeks apart, and later in the year I

saw him more often. I have talked with him and I not-

iced the impediment in his speech. At times I had some

difficulty in understanding him. Sometimes when he

would talk he could say two or three words, and then

maybe some word would bother him and he would have

to finish the sentence more by motion; and other times

he could the words right plain. I noticed the last time

I was with him for any length of time that his right

hand was a little awkward.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

I knew Mr. Bowman very well. I saw him after the

harvesting season of 1936, having a long talk with him

in November. Of course, I might be off on those dates. I

went to the house and nobody was home, so I went down

to this shed where he keeps his machinery and I think

he was repairing some double-trees. I just walked up

and slapped him on the back and he whirled around and

took hold of my hand. At that time he looked good and

acted quite good. Of course, I cannot remember any-

thing particularly that he said outside of I do remember
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of asking him about some third crop hay that was there,

and I asked him what he was feeding that to and he said

to the cows. He was very cheerful in his action ; he was

always cheerful when I saw him. I don't think it would

be over a week before the accident that I last saw him

for I generally saw him when I went to Blackfoot.

The mark on his shoulder was kind of a black mark

running up there.

BERTHA E. BOWMAN, plaintiff, being first duly

sworn, testified as follows on her own behalf:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES

:

I am Bertha E. Bowman, the widow of John D. Bow-

man; we had been married about 35^ years and had

lived in Idaho about 22 years, either in Riverside or

Blackfoot. We moved to Blackfoot four years ago, in

January, 1934. I have one son in college, and at the time

of the accident my husband and I lived alone. He always

was very kind to both me and his family and he was of a

happy and cheerful disposition. He had always been kind

to me from the time I married him. His financial condi-

tion was good; he never did go in debt. He was not in

debt at that time. He sustained or suffered an illness

some fourteen or fifteen months before he met his death,

or about the first of December, 1935. He was very ill

for a few weeks in bed. His right side was paralyzed,

but he began to improve and as time went on the improve-

ment was continual until the time of his death. He was

confined in bed about six on seven weeks. After he got

out of bed, he continued to improve up until the day of
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his death. At the time of his death his physical condition

was perfect with the exception of his speech and his right

hand. He couldn't grasp things like he did before his

sickness, and at times he dropped objects, and especially

the dishes when he was wiping them for me.

He told the boys in my presence that he would show

them how to farm, speaking of his future plans, and sta-

ted to me that he wanted to help them with the crops in

the spring of 1937, and that as soon as our son was out

of school in June we would take a trip to California to

visit our daughter.

Mr. Bowman had a custom or practice of shooting

birds, while we were living on the farm. We lived at

Riverside until 1934, after which we moved to the place

where he died. He shot birds the first winter that we

were there, the winter of 1934. His stroke was on De-

cember 1, 1935. After his stroke he spent his evenings

and his time listening to the radio and reading the papers,

and I always talked to him and we read together. We
read many chapters each night. We went to shows and

entertainments, and in the fall we went to political ral-

lies. He went down town and back whenever he wished.

He always went down on Wednesday and Saturday morn-

ings to my son's barber shop. If he wished to go down

he walked down and back at other times. He nearly al-

ways walked. It is a little less than a mile from our

home to Blackfoot's center of town. He talked about his

physical condition. I cannot mention any dates, but we

often talked about it, but I can't say the time and place.
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but it was evening on many different times, and also in

the day time he would tell me that he was better, and he

went through a lot of movements to show that his arm

was better, movements to show how strong and better

it was, for it had been so weak.

We had two guns in the house after his stroke, one a

twenty-two and the shotgun on display here. The twen-

ty-two was always in the house and there were shells

there for it. The shotgun was not always in the house be-

cause we loaned it, and it was with other members of the

family part of the time, and then it would be brought

back and put in the same place in the clothes closet that

it always was. It was in and out. The shotgun was in

our house during the summer that Mr. Bowman was re-

covering from his illness.

There were times when I left Mr. Bowman at home

alone for a considerable period of time; I went every

week to Relief Society meetings and then I went to Utah

in the fall and was gone for three days and no one stayed

with him at that time. I can't give the date I went, but I

returned the evening of Thanksgiving; that was the No-

vember before he died. I was gone nearly three days and

two nights. As to shells around the house, there w^re

twenty-two shells at all times, but we never kept any shot

gun shells at any time.

The day of his death he got up and made the fires,

and we had our breakfast together, and then he went

down to the barnyard to help haul some hay, and he came

in at noon and ate a hearty dinner and helped me to clear
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up the table, and wiped the dishes. I went to my meeting

and he went out toward the barn, and that is the last I

saw him. Before he came in at noon, he was at the barn-

yard helping the boys. After this stroke he did many lit-

til things around the place to help me. He milked the

cows and did a lot of chores around the place. He chop-

ped kindling, shoveled snow and made paths for me to

hang my clothes out,—I can't mention all the things that

he did for us. He always helped with the dishes; if he

was in the home at all he would help so that we could be

together. He could read but not very long at a time be-

fore his eyes were weak from this stroke but he could

read. I didn't observe him when he first started milking

the cows, but I have seen him later on. I cannot give the

positive dates that the shotgun was in our house during

the six months period before the date of Mr. Bowman's

death, but I know that it had been in our home and where

it always had been kept. My son would not know about

that. He could not know it was not there. It could come

and go without his knowledge. Our son had the gun

for a continued period of time for six weeks, or two

months, and then the other son had it at his house for

some period of 60 days at one stretch before Mr. Bow-

man came over for it. I am almost positive the gun was

in our house during the month of January, 1936. I can-

not tell when it was taken away the first time after Jan-

uary, nor when the boys borrowed it. It was in the

closet and if the boys wanted it they came and got it. I

do not know for sure that it was away for six weeks im-
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mediately prior to the date that Mr. Bowman used it on

the 16th day of February and I know that they were

shooting birds at the feed yard about every day.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

After my husband's death someone purporting to rep-

resent the Insurance Company brought me papers to fill

out about the particulars of my husband's death, which

I filled out and signed.

MR. SHIELDS : I am not going to make any point

of the fact that proof was not filed. Whereupon it was

stipulated between counsel that plaintiff in this action

made and furnished and delivered to the defendant proof

of the accidental death of John D. Bowman and all proof

that was required under the Dolicy for double indemnitv

under the accident death clause of the policy and that no

question is raised by the defendant as to that matter,

nor will be raised during the progress of the trial or at

any time, and it is admitted by the defendant that this

stipulation extends to and goes to the making of claim

by the plaintiff for double indemnity under the accidental

death clause of the policy, but defendant does not admit

that John D. Bowman came to his death by accidental

means.

WITNESS RESUMING: Mr. Bowman's recovery

from this illness was slow at first, but it seemed so grad-

ual that we could see the improvement continually. Un-
til the time of his death he had a rather pronounced

speech impediment and had marked dif^culty with his

hand, especially in cold weather. It would become numb
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and the circulation was bad in cold weather, and I would

have to run him. I thought it was the circulation that

was bad. I don't know whether the stroke impaired his

eye-sight so much as his eyes have been weak for quite

a few years.

DR. A. E. MILLER, witness on behalf of the plaintiff,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

I am Dr. A. E. Miller of Blackfoot, a surgeon and

physician by profession. I have lived in Blackfoot since

January, 1934, a little over four years. I knew John D.

Bowman during his Hfetime, and I had occasion to see

the body at the undertaking parlor while it was there

after his death; it was the day after his death. I grad-

uated from the University of Oregon Medical School at

Portland, Oregon, served my interneship at the Los An-

geles County Hospital, and am now licensed as a practic-

ing physician and surgeon in the state of Idaho.

At the time I examined the body of John D. Bowman

at the undertaking parlor the day following his death, I

found there was some friction marks, or what you might

call an abrasion approximately from the nipple, that is,

starting at the nipple and terminating at the collar bone

along the left side, and then on his face there was—

I

might say the undertaker had done some repairing on

the face, but there was a place approximately near the

outer third of the jaw bone on the left side where there

had been some repairing on the jaw, and on the inside
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middle there was quite a bit of repairing, and quite a good

deal on the outer side that he had repaired, that is, his

plastic work was done, and there was some softening on

the skull on the left side. From the examination I made,

it was my impression that the load had possibly split out

the jaw bone from going in from out here (indicating).

The left eye was dropping out, sort of a dropping of the

socket a little. The cause of that was possibly a dis-

truction of the muscle of the cheek bone which was de-

pressed. I didn't feel it, but it gave the impression that

it was depressed. It was in the area of the external

wound on the left side of the face, in the same place.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

My examination was not merely perfunctory for the

purpose of signing a death certificate. I signed the death

certificate with this reservation : I made a notation of

what the coroner's jury had agreed on as the cause of

death. I didn't examine the body with the intention of

making a certificate of the cause of death or for the pur-

pose of being a witness or anything like that. I looked

into the mouth. The mouth was partially drooping open.

I didn't feel around there, but there had been some re-

pair work done that I could see. I was there during the

time of the examination about 10 or 15 minutes.

A thrombosis is the clotting of blood in a vessel, and

a cerebral thrombosis is a clot on the brain which pro-

duces an action akin to paralysis. It does produce par-

alysis, depending of course on the amount of damage to

the brain tissue and depending of course on the pressure,
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or the edema. Of course, when brain cells are destroyed,

they do not regenerate, but as I say, depending on the

pressure, it might clear up. Depending upon its loca-

tion, it might also cause instant death.

REDIRECT EXAA/[INATION BY MR. JONES:

I observed Mr. Bowman during his lifetime to de-

termine if he was recovering from the illness which he

had received in December, and he was recovering nicely.

He came in for a check-up fore this time, and was doing

nicely.

RECROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:
In the thrombosis, that is, if there is an actual destruc-

tion of the brain tissue or the nerve cells, they never re-

generate, if the brain cells are actually destroyed ; but if

the paralysis is through edema, they will gradually come

back as the pressure is released.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:
The extent to which the area is destroyed would de-

pend largely upon which the result of the recovery is,

and if there is a good recovery, it is demonstrated, of

course, that there was not much destroyed. There was a

good recovery in this case.

RECROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS

:

His mind was alert but he could not coordinate his

speech. He knew, of course, what he wanted to say, but

his speech remained hampered as a result of this throm-

bosis that he had the prior year.

PLAINTIFF RESTS.



vs. Bertha E. Bozvman 83

MR. SHIELDS : Comes now the defendant, the Kan-

sas City Life Insurance Company, a corporation, and the

defendant in this action, and makes a motion for a non-

suit upon the ground that the plaintiff has not estabhshed

accidental death in the case in question here. The de-

fendant believes that the obligation and the burden of

establishing death in this particular action by reason of

accidental, violent and external cause is upon the plaintiff,

and we believe that they have failed to establish this in

that manner. They have established the death, but we

feel that the proof is entirely lacking as to the accidental

feature, in connection with this case, and for that reason,

and upon that ground, we asked the Court for an order

of non-suit at this time.

THE COURT : And do you want to be heard upon

this motion?

MR. SHIELDS : I am willing to submit it.

MR. JONES : Certainly.

THE COURT : Then it, the motion, will be denied.

MR. SHIELDS : May we have an exception?

THE COURT : You may have your exception.

HOWARD PACKHAM, witness on behalf of the de-

fendant, having been first duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS

:

I am Howard Packham of Blackfoot, Idaho, age 25.

I have lived there about a year and a half this last time

;

I had Hved there before. I was living in Blackfoot on

the 16th of February, 1937, being employed there as an
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embalmer for the Brown-Eldredge Mortuary. I was

not registered as I was an apprentice embalmer at that

time. I was working in connection with preparation of

bodies for burial then, and on that date I had occasion to

see the body of John Bowman. I first saw it in a receiv-

ing case when it was opened in our establishment after

being brought into the Mortuary. I made an examina-

tion of the body, coming in contact with it at that time.

I worked on the body. As I remember, the body was

brought to our establishment by Mr. Peck, my employer,

and that was the first time I saw it. The clothing was re-

moved with the assistance of other people, I don't remem-

ber who. He was dressed with shoes and ordinary socks,

trousers and an ordinary gray work shirt, a blue jumper

of some kind, and other than that I don't remember much

about the clothing. The body was placed on the prepara-

tion table. I immediately set about washing away any

blood that had accumulated so as to get down to the flesh

and set about repairing his damaged features. As soon

as I had gotten the blood and the loose matter washed

away, I set about embalming the body with an injection

of embalming fluid which takes about several hours to

accomplish embalming. After this was done, I began the

reconstruction of the features of the face. The first

thing I remember is that the left eye was completely out

of the socket, the left eye ball that is. It was lying on

what we call the temporal region of the left side. The

left ear was split from the lobe up about halfway in the

ear, and there seemed to be about three distinct rents or
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tears in the flesh of the left cheek. It seemed to be in

more of a fanhke shape ; the smaller part was down here

(indicating) and they were extending in a fan-like shape

over this side, over to the upper part of the head and down

here (indicating) to the point of the jaw. The palate

seemed to be in about five different pieces, more or less,

but there were about five distinct sections or broken

pieces of the palate. A section of the right jaw bone

protruded through the skin, breaking through the skin

on the right side about three inches between the point of

the chin and the right ear, about half way from the right

point of the chin to the right ear. I felt the head of the

deceased with my hand ; it felt loose to the touch and was

not solid. I was not able to tell distinctly where his

mouth had been or was. I tried to reconstruct the mouth

from a comparative measurement of the other anatomy

of the face, and did so. On the region of the left shoulder

there seemed to be a slight scratch of some type, about

two inches in length. No other mark was there, and there

was no other mark or wound on the right side except the

protruding jaw bone on the face. As to bruises or dis-

colorations other than those described, I am afraid I

cannot be very definite about bruises or broken flesh

around this wound on the face. The broke tissue was

red. Of course, in the process of embalming, through

the lack of tissue off from the broken tissue, the latter

assumes a rather burned appearance, which is the action

of the formaldehyde on the broken flesh or tissues. The

roof of the mouth was in about five different pieces,
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still seeming to be connected together by some connecting

tissue. They were not wholly destroyed, there being

enough that I could distinguish that it was the roof of the

mouth. There was blood and matter of some sort oozing

through these breaks, but it would be hard for me to tell

what it would be. On the left side under the chin and

neck as I remember, was a tear about three inches long,

extending somewhere on the left side sort of diagonally

down toward the side of the neck, from this point here

(indicating) on down. The flesh was still there at the

place where this tear was, going down on both under

part of the chin on both sides, but not very much of the

chin was left on the left side; hardly any of it was left.

By fan-like tears, I mean that they get larger towards

the extremities and are smaller at the base. Practically

all of the left side of the face was gone. It seemed as

though those tears could not be reconstructed definitely

into their original shape, but only to a point about mid-

way of the cheek. They seemed to be extending out to

here (indicating the breaks on the flesh.)

I removed the jumper among the clothes, with the as-

sistance of Mr. Peck. That is the jumper and is in the

same condition at it was when it was removed from the

body of the man. I don't recall whether he had a sweater

or suit of underclothes. Exhibit No. 3 is the jumper I

removed from Mr. Bowman.

EXHIBIT No. 3 admitted in evidence.

IRA COREY, witness on behalf of the defendant, be-

ing first duly sworn, testified as follows

:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. BISTLINE

My name is Ira Corey. On February 16, 1937, I was

sheriff of Bingham County, serving- in such capacity for

four years. At the present time I am a state traffic offi-

cer, having held that post since August 7, 1937. I saw

the body of John D. Bowman in the southwest corner

of the hay loft of the barn back of the sugar factory at

Blackfoot about five o'clock in the evening along with

Coroner Sandberg, Jack Gibbs, two sons of Mr. Bowman

and John Barnard. We went into the hayloft, no one

ahead of me, but Mr. Sandberg, the coroner, Gibbs and

Barnard and the two sons all going in, following one an-

other up the ladder, which was made of a one by four

nailed on a siding on the north wall of the barn, a little

to the east of the center of the north side. This was

the only entrance to the loft I noticed. I saw the body

lying in the west end of the hayloft and proceeded to

make an examination as to who it was and the conditions

surrounding. Mr. Sandberg and I made an examination

and the rest of them stood back and said or did nothing.

We looked to examine the wound on the face, the pos-

ition of the gun, the position in which the body was lying

relative to the location of the barn walls, and then I re-

moved the gun from the body, just reaching down and

picking it up. It was lying with the butt of the gun be-

tween the feet of the deceased, kind of lying between his

legs, more by his left arm, kind of diagonally across his

body. The muzzle of the gun was just a little to the left

of the position of the heart of the body. His left hand
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was lying down to the side of him. When I picked

up the gun, I noticed that it had blood stains on it, and an

empty shell in the barrel. A little piece of flesh was in

the muzzle and fell out when I tipped the gun up. I ex-

tracted the shell which had been discharged. The trigger

hammer was down pressing the firing pin against the

shell. I extracted the shell and looked around for other

shells, finding one empty shell lying to the right side of

the body. These two were all the shells we were able to

find. I took the gun into my possession, took it to the

sheriff's office where we made a further examination that

same evening. We found that it was workable, that is,

whether it would extract the shells from the gun and

whether the hammer would fall on the firing pin and

cause the shell to explode; in general, to see whether the

gun was in condition to shoot or not. The trigger pres-

sure was just average. We examined the gun to see if

it could be discharged without pulling the trigger; we

raised the hammer and dropped the gun on the floor a

distance of one foot with a sudden jar to see if the jar

would set the gun off, but the test failed to cause the gun

to go off or fire. We made probably a dozen such tests.

At the loft we examined the surroundings. The hay

mow was empty with the exception of a few alfalfa

leaves on the floor of the barn there. The floor was en-

tirely covered with leaves. The ceiling was bare and we

found a little at the left and over the body where a

charge of shot had entered the roof. At this point was

a little piece of denim pinned to the roof where a shot
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had held it there ; there was some small particles of flesh

and blood with stains there, and from there north for a

distance of probably six feet were pieces of flesh up in

the roof, and some particles on the cross bar or the bin-

der from one side of the building to the other. There

were pieces of flesh on that. At the window in the west

part of the barn, just above the seat of the body, were

small particles of flesh and bloody spots on the sill. The

window in the west part of the barn was about three feet

square and about five feet from the base of the window

to the floor. There were particles of flesh on the edge

of a 2 X 4 or a 2 X 6 at the bottom of the window, which

protruded into the barn. I don't remember about any

glass in the window, but there was some canvas there on

the window to the south of that one. This was about

eighteen inches to the wall, north of Mr. Bowman's body,

and then it was about five feet above him. His feet were

in front of that window, at the bottom of the window,

but the body laid away. The window closest to him

was the one with particles of flesh on. His body was

in the southwest corner of the barn.

The left side of his face was practically gone, and

no mouth was there. I didn't notice the right jaw bone,

but the left eye was not in the proper position. It was

lying over with the flesh, apparently partly out of the

eye socket. He was lying directly on the back of his

head. His lower plate was broken into pieces in several

places and lying with the mangled part of his face, and

the upper plate was out and lying along the side of the
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face. Neither plate was in his mouth, the upper plate

being to the left of his face, lying along with the torn

part of his face. His teeth were where his face was torn

and strung out. I made no observation as to the teeth

in the plates. Either the coroner or myself picked up the

plates, but the coroner took possession of them and turn-

ed them over to Mr. Peck, the undertaker. There was not

much blood on the floor, but the part of the face that was

injured was bloody. I couldn't tell one part of the face

from another very easily because of the blood being

commingled with the flesh and torn parts of the face.

His left ear was practically covered with a piece or pieces

of flesh lying back over it, flapped back over his ear.

The first time I was in the barn, I stayed possibly

three-quarters of an hour. Outside the time one of the

other people went out to phone for the undertaker, the en-

tire group of us remained there during that time. The

undertaker came about thirty minutes after we arrived,

put the body in a carrying case and took it down either

the ladder or the north side. It was just starting to get

dark when we left there. It was still daylight during

this time so we didn't need or use any artificial light to

make our examination.

I went back to the barn on the following morning,

February 17, with the county coroner, the deputy sheriff,

and the younger Bowman boy, the short and heavy set

one, about 9:30 in the morning. We examined the inter-

ior of the barn closely to see where there could be another

discharge of shot, and also examined the location of the
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particles of the flesh and shot in the ceihng above the

body. We didn't get up to where the shot was, examin-

ing it from the floor, which is about ten feet below the

marks above. These marks were made where the shots

entered the roof and the rafters. The shot was in the

rafter and in the sheeting with shot holes sprinkled all

around either side of the rafter. The greater part of

the shot was on the west side of the rafter. I don't re-

member seeing any shot holes in the shingles at that time.

We made an examination to determine at what angle

the shot entered the sheeting and rafter ; they had appar-

ently come from the direction or angle where the body was

lying. There was nothing I hadn't seen the day before.

The piece of blue denim, pinned to rafter by a shot forc-

ing a raveling into the wood, had fallen to the floor. It

was about an inch in diameter, the size of a twenty-five

cent piece. We picked it up and looked at it, but didn't

keep it. I don't know what became of it. I noticed, as I

had the night before, the flesh in the rafter, th»i greater

portion of which was a little north, and that there was but

little flesh where the shot was. I examined the flesh

again, being better able to see than I had the evening be-

fore. It was exactly the same as it was on the previous

evening; small particles of flesh up to the top; on this cross

bar there was also little pieces of flesh that had dried

and stuck fast there. It was sort of a mattery, gooey,

sticky particles that had been blown into real fine pieces,

sort of a pink or whitish color. Being on the cross bar,

it was about eight feet above the floor and about four feet
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above the point where the other flesh would be. The

highest marking of flesh was nearly at the gable. No one

moved the flesh then or any subsequent time, while I

was there.

Mr. Bowman had on a denim jacket; underneath that

I do not know^ what he was wearing. The jacket had a

hole in it and we found a scar on the top of the left

shoulder. It was a dark streak across the top of the

shoulder, about three quarters of an inch wide and about

two and one-half inches long. It appeared as if a hot

iron had been laid on there. I saw the body at the under-

takers later, after the embalmer had entirely completed

his work. When I first observed the body the chin was

about half gone, but beneath the chin it was nearly nor-

mal. There were no tears immediately under his chin,

but there were tears to the left of the chin about here

(indicating). The whole side was lain open as if it had

been cut with a clever. These were the only two oc-

casions that I was at the barn where Mr. Bowman died.

I had known Mr. Bowman about six years and knew

his physical condition. I saw him on occasion since his

illness in 1935, having seen him as I was driving by his

place to the sugar factory in discharge of my duty. As

to conversing with him, I only remember passing the

time of day. I don't know that he ever spoke, but he

waived his hand. I have seen him walking and noticed

nothing out of the ordinary. I recall seeing him in the

corral, no particular date, but probably some time when

I was out serving papers in that section. I probably saw
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him two or three times mider such circumstances. I did

not ever see him up town in Blackfoot after his ilhiess.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

I examined the barn thoroughly after the accident

but could find no other place where any other saot other

than the one above his body had taken effect. No con-

trivance was found near the body. We found a piece of

two by four on the floor which a person could tell had

not been moved since the alfalfa leaves had been put there.

As to the position of the shot in the rafter in relation to

the body, I don't recall which rafter it was from the win-

dow in the west end. The area of the place was about

ten inches where the shot was in the roof. I testified at

the coroner's inquest and there said "they were in a cir-

cle of about five inches in diameter," but to my best recol-

lection, it was ten inches. There was one empty shell on

the floor and another in the gun which I extracted, both

of which had been recently fired, also I could not tell by

the gun for it was cold, it having been some time since it

was fired. They were new shells. We found only where

one shot had been fired, but whether it was the first

or second we did not know. I thought the window was

three feet square, but I didn't measure it, nor did I meas-

ure the distance from the bottom of the window to the

floor. It could have been less than five feet. I noticed

the jumper and the fact that the left side of his face was

shot off. I said at the coroner's inquest, in response to

a question about the two shots, that "The shot that went

through his face would have to go through the hole in
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his jumper before it hit his face." If it hit his face, it

would have to go through his jumper.

Where I discovered the biggest portion of the flesh

was a httle bit north, about four feet north from the point

where the shot had taken effect. There was some blood

and flesh on the lower sill of the window. His feet were

about eighteen inches from the west wall, which would

make the shot somewhat perpendicular, veering a trifle

oft" to the south from where his feet were lying. The only

thing I found around the body was a piece of two by four

which was three or four feet long with some alfalfa

leaves on it and had the appearance of not having been

moved. The scar on the left shoulder had the appearance

of a burn and was in close proximity of where the face

had been shattered by the shot. I could not say on which

window the canvas was. The body was at the southwest

corner of the hayloft, but at this time it appears to me

that it was on the north, but of course it could have been

different, I guess. The lower plate of the artificial teeth

was broken. I don't know whether the upper plate was

in good condition or part of the teeth gone, but it wasn't

broken, but was lying out of his mouth to the side of his

face. It was light enough to make an examination when

we got there and started to get dark just as we left. I

didn't intend to say that half of the chin was gone, nor

nearly gone, but part of it was gone, with more gone on

the left side.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. BISTLINE:

I didn't make any measurement of the shot pattern on
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the roof of the barn, but merely was giving my estimate

when I once said five inches and another time said ten

inches. This estimate was made as I stood on the floor of

the hayloft. Some of the shot showed as far over on the

sheeting as five, six or seven inches. A few stray shots

were on the east side of the rafter; they would be four

or five inches over as they hit while on the diagonal direc-

tion and just missed the rafter. The shot pattern was

about ten inches in diameter in my best judgment. The

piece of denim on the rafter was just mixed up with the

shot, just stuff plastered up there. I did not find any

flesh on the denim. There was less flesh near the denim

than in other places, that, over further, further north.

More flesh was on the window there than where the shot

marks were. The piece of two by four was south and

east of the body, a little above his head to the north, di-

rectly over his head as he lay on the floor. He was lying on

the floor with his head to the southeast, making the board

southeast of his head. The floor just south of where the

deceased lay was a rough board floor. The place to put

the hay down was open, and he was just north of that,

right close. This piece of two by four was close too. I

moved it, noticing the hay leaves as did the others. I

mentioned it to the county coroner and we determined

that it had not been used for any purpose as the leaves

had not been disturbed. I didn't make any particular ex-

amination around the point where his feet rested. Nei-

ther the coroner nor I made any examination in that

regard. I did not discover any footmarks or any dis-
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turbance on the floor at that end of the barn. No one,

in my presence, went up to the g-able of the roof where the

flesh was to look for shot holes. We made no measure-

ments with tape or rule; all figures are only my esti-

mates. I don't know what the condition of the teeth on

the plates was. There was some teeth on the plate, but I

don't know how many. The upper was in a whole piece.

I am not certain whether the coroner or I picked the

teeth up but I think he did. The undertaker may have

picked them up when he moved the body.

When I saw the body at the undertaker's parlor, I

noticed that scar on his shoulder was just a dark reddish

streak. When I said it was three-quarters of an inch

wide, I merely made an estimate for I had not measured

it. When I was testifying at the coroner's inquest and

said that the shot would have to go through his jumper

to hit his face, I did not mean that it actually went

through his jumper and hit his face.

DR. A. M. NEWTON, witness on behalf of the de-

fendant, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

I am Dr. A. M. Newton of Pocatello. I have been a

general surgeon for 25 years at Pocatello. I graduated

from Northwestern and did clinical work afterward.

Thrombosis is a condition within a blood vessel in

which the blood forms a clot and is adherent to the lin-

ing of the vessel. A cerebral thrombosis would be the

same thing in a vessel of the brain, as in any other ves-

sel of the body. There is little difference in the vessels
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of the brain. Of course, there is a difference if it is in

an artery other than in some vessel of collateral circula-

tion in the surface. Complete recovery or restoration of

original health in a case of cerebral thrombosis depends

upon the damage done to the brain tissue.

In a case like the present, where a person suffered

thrombosis which produced an illness requiring inactiv-

ity making him bedridden for approximately six weeks

to two months ; and which, when he got up, caused diffi-

culty in walking, difficulty with his right arm which be-

came numb in cold weather so as to cause him to drop

things, and which caused a partial impediment of speech,

so that at times he could speak clearly and at times not,

the duration of which was from December 1, 1935, to

February, 1937; and from which he recovered slowly, but

continued to improve so that he was apparently quite

well at the time of his death except for a speech impedi-

ment and numbness in his right hand during cold weather

;

but an illness from which he continued to get better after

leaving his bed, that he recovered from and again began

to be interested in things, because of pleasant disposition,

began to work around the house and in the yard once to

the extent of fixing a tongue in a sleigh ; and which left

him with a weak right arm causing him to drop

things, such as dishes when he was helping his wife, and

making him unable to grasp things firmly with his right

hand, and which left with an impaired speech so as to

make it difficult for people to understand; and yet from

which he recovered sufficiently to go to town at least twice
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a week and do chores, milking the cows occasionally. I

think such illness was probably an involvement of a

moderate degree. As to recovery, there is, of course,

practically no regeneration of nerve tissues after eigh-

teen months following a nerve injury. Any improvement

after that would be in my mind, muscle education. In

case of involvement of the nerves after a period of eigh-

teen months, any improvement would be from, as I say,

muscle education which comes in the use, for instance,

if it is the hands or extremities, in the use of the hands

and extremities and the educating and building up of

those muscles by use.

I have had experience with gunshot wounds. I served

in the base hospital in France during the World War, and

I have also seen quite a few of them in civilian practice.

I was in France one year, in the hospital practically all

of the time. My work dealt exclusively, almost, with

treatment of gunshot wounds. I had occasion to see

people who had been injured externally from high ex-

plosives, such as TNT and bomb explosions. I saw

about every kind of gunshot wound and high explosive

wound, and every injury of most every kind and every

kind of wound that was known at that from every kind

of explosive that was in use in the war. And in my
practice at home I have seen gunshot wounds, both rifle,

revolver and shotgun : I think only one case of a gunshot

wound in the face, but rifle and revolver wounds in the

head and about the body generally.

If a man had come to his death as a result of a gunshot
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wound and I found, upon examining the body, that be-

ginning with the lower jaw bone on the right side midway

between the point of the chin and the end of the jaw bone,

the jaw bone was fractured and protruded through the

cheek, while on the left side the jaw bone was completely

shattered to the extent that very little bone was left which

could be used in rebuilding the contours of the chin ; that

on the left side of the face the cheek was shattered and

the flesh lay back in about three distinct flaps, open and

lying back upon the neck; that one of these tears ex-

tended from the left corner of what appeared to have been

the mouth to the lower lobe of the ear with several flaps

equally long running in fan-like courses from the mouth

out ; that the left jawbone was gone and that the roof of

the mouth was broken in about Ave pieces which were

held together by pieces of connecting tissue so that they

might be pushed into something near the original groove

to form the contours of the face, the nose and the upper

part of the jaw bone; that an examination of the head

cavity showed that blood and matter were oozing into

the wound through the breaks in the skull and the skull

was found to be loose and soft and could easily be manip-

ulated with the hand ; that the left eye was out of the soc-

ket and lay upon the temporal part of the head ; that other

than the protruding jaw bone there was no wound on the

right side of the face, but that there was a fan-like tear

on the left side extending from the point of the chin left

to the neck about three inches long, but no hole or wound

that could be distinguished beneath the point of the chin
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on either side, and portions of the flesh, presumably of

the left cheek, were found scattered at various places and

distances from the body at the time the body was found.

Having this in mind, and in the light of my experiences,

I would think that the muzzle of gun that brought about

the damage was probably in the individual's mouth at the

time of the explosion. This would be so because of the

nature of the injury. In my experience with shotgun

wounds at close range, there is an absolute destruction

of the tissue at the point of entrance, and in this instance

there were tears from the mouth radiating on the left

side of the face as much as several inches, back to the ear,

down to the neck, and upward. That would indicate that

there was an explosive effect, rather than a discharge of

the shot alone. I do not believe that a charge of shot en-

tering at some distance, or at any distance, the body and

face would have caused such as wound as this. I can

hardly explain the fracture of the right jaw in any other

way than by the explosive action of the gas, the explosion

at the muzzle of the gun which is always present at the

firing of any gun.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

I don't know that it would have blown his head off if

the muzzle of the gun had been in his mouth when the gun

was fired. It was a twelve-gauge Winchester pump shot-

gun, but I would not say that it would blow his head off.

If the muzzle was in his mouth, it should have damaged

the upper plate ; if it was in the path of the shot, it would

have broken it. As I understand it, the path of the shot
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was outward toward the left cheek; the cheek was blown

out, radiating tears from the mouth backward, upward

and downward. I don't think that if the gun had been

in the side of the face it would blow the entire side of the

face away instead of just leaving tears radiating out. I

have never seen a case where the shotgun exploded in the

mouth of anyone. In war service, wounds I saw were

largely gunshot wounds and high explosives. I never

saw any shotgun wounds during my service.

I don't think that if the load from the shotgun had

struck the chin and gone along the side of the face it

would result in the same wound as has been described.

The actual destruction, and by that I mean the actual

destruction of the tissue itself, is caused by the charge

of shot ; and in addition to that, there would be some de-

struction by the explosive effect. Wherever the shot

took effect there would be an absolute destruction of all

tissue. I have only seen one case of a shotgun wound of

the face. It blew the whole right side of the face off, de-

stroying the tissue. It was at very close range. If this

were in the mouth, it would be at close range ; likewise if

it were under the chin. The eyeball could be blown out of

its socket whether the malar bone was broken or not.

HOWARD PACKHAM, recalled as witness on be-

half of the defendant, previously being sworn, testified

as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SHIELDS:

As I remember the upper plate of the deceased's arti-

ficial teeth, the right side of the plate was entirely in-
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tact. The plate itself was all there, and the teeth were

all there on the right side, but on the left side some of the

teeth were broken or chipped with part of the teeth still

in the plate and some entirely gone, with one or two scat-

tered over the left side of the plate. I did not find those

teeth. I don't remember anything definitely about the

front part of the teeth.

IRA COREY, recalled as witness on behalf of the

defendant, previously being sworn, as follows

:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. BISTLINE:

Since testifying this morning I have been out to the

barn where the body of John D. Bowman was found on

February 16, 1937, going out there at 12:40 today. I

measured the distance across and the circumference of

the shot that hit the wall, and the distance from the floor

to the top of the sill at the window, and the distance from

the floor to where the shot were in the roof, and from

the floor to the cross bar, and from the cross bar up to the

sheeting, and the distance of where the flesh is north from

the cross bar. The window on which the flesh was show-

ing was the south window on the west end of the barn.

The diameter of the shot pattern I found to be eight in-

ches. It was in the roof right where the cross bar con-

nects to the rafter, just where they come together as the

shot hit. The shot marks on the west side of the rafter

were there and closer in, and from these I could observe

the course of the shot from the marks. They had come

nearly straight up and down, slanting just a little to the

south and a trifle to the east. There was a little slope
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a little in the southeasterly direction. It was fifty-seven

inches from the floor to the bottom of the window sill. I

didn't measure the size of the window. The canvas was

still hanging on it, appearing to be exactly the same. It

was one one hundred and sixteen inches from the floor

up to the shot pattern, which was the distance also to

the cross bar on which the flesh rested. It was twenty-

eight inches from this cross bar to the roof of the loft

from the point where I saw flesh on the rafter of the

building; twenty-five inches to the place on the gable

where there was flesh. It was thirty-eight inches from

the pattern on the roof to where the flesh was on the ceil-

ing, and also on the cross bar.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. JONES:

There was other flesh than on the pattern. The im-

print of the shot was on the rafter and in the sheeting,

not in the shingles, but the cross bar, rafter, and some in

the sheeting, and some into the shingles. This was the

only place where the shot had taken effect and was almost

straight up from where the body lay, about two feet to

the south of where the feet were on the ceiling, inside the

walls and on the roof.

Defendant rests.

MR. SHIELDS: If the court please, comes now the

defendant the Kansas City Life Insurance Company and

moves the Court to instruct the jury in this case to bring

in a verdict in favor of the defendant so far as the claim

or demand of the plaintiff is concerned with respect to
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double idemnity in this case on the ground that no cause

of action is shown here, and I will submit it, if the Court

please.

THE COURT : That request will be denied.

MR. SHIELDS: And we may have an exception?

THE COURT : Yes, the exception is allowed.

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY:

THE COURT : Gentlemen of the jury, because of the

apparent agreement of counsel that there is but one con-

trolling issue in this case, it will be unnecessary to give

my instructions a very wide range.

The plaintiff's claim grows out of a contract commonly

called or known as a Hfe insurance poHcy. As in the case

of any other contract, such a policy is binding upon all

the parties thereto, and the beneficiaries of the insured.

By its terms all the rights and obligations of the parties,

including the litigants here, the plaintiff and defendant

company are defined. In the light of the instructions I

give you and the evidence before you, you are to adjudge

the rights of the parties fairly and impartially and to

render a true and impartial verdict free from all other

consideration.

It was competent for the parties to make such agree-

ment as they saw fit to make, and it is your duty as jur-

ors and my duty as presiding judge to enforce the con-

tract as it is written and hold the company to its liabil-

ity as such liability is defined in the contract of insurance,

called the policy, but not beyond that.



vs. Bertha E. Bowman 105

I should say to you further that you are not to deal in

mere surmises or conjecture as to how the death of the

insured occured. You are to base your findings upon the

facts as they are before you, the testimony of the witnes-

ses who have testified before you, and all the facts and

circumstances in evidence and reasonable inferences from

the proven facts. It is frequently necessary to rely upon

inferences to some extent, but they must be inferences

and not mere guesses, conjectures, surmises or imagin-

ation. Your verdict must be based upon facts. By facts,

I mean facts themselves and rational legitimate fair in-

ferences drawn therefrom.

Now then, passing to the consideration of the policy

and the real critical issue, the policy provides for insur-

ing the life of John D. Bowman in the sum of two thous-

and five hundred dollars and provides for and agreed to

pay Bertha E. Bowman, the wife of John D. Bowman,

the beneficiary therein named, the sum of five thousand

dollars, being double the face amount of the policy in the

event of accidental death of John D. Bowman, as defined

in the policy. It is conceded that the decedent John D.

Bowman died from a gunshot wound and there were no

other contributing causes. It therefore follows that if

the plaintiff is entitled to recover on the item of insurance

in the event of accidental death resulting directly and in-

dependently from all other causes, from bodily injuries

effect solely through external, violent, and accidental

means, that is five thousand dollars, if she is entitled to

recover on that item ; and if she is not entitled to recover
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on that item, she would be entitled to recover the sum of

two thousand five hundred dollars.

This is a contract subject to all of the ordinary consid-

erations of a contract, binding upon both parties, and

with only such rights and obligations as it defines. It

was entirely competent for the insurance company to

write a policy excluding its double Hability if death was

caused by suicide. It did choose to do so, and the insured

did not choose to have a policy covering suicide for double

indemnity, hence there is no double indemnity for death

resulting from intentional or self-inflicted wounds, or sui-

cide. If the insured committed suicide, plaintiff should

recover only two thousand five hundred dollars; hence

if under the instructions I have given you, and from the

evidence you find suicide, then your verdict will be for

the plaintiff for only two thousand five hundred dollars.

The burden is on the plaintiff to prove by a preponder-

ance of the evidence the facts alleged in her complaint.

The answer alleges that the death of the insured, John D.

Bowman, was caused by suicide.

Now, gentlemen, the responsibility is upon you fairly

and conscientiously to weigh all of the evidence in the

case and to determine this controlling issue. The burden

of proof, as I have indicated to you, was upon the plain-

tiff, and in order to recover against the defendant the

sum of five thousand dollars, being the double indemnity,

the plaintiff must prove that the injury resulted directly

and independently of all other causes from accidental bod-

ily injury, and this accidental bodily injury was not cans-
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ed by means or acts self-inflicted by the insured, and un-

less the plaintiff has established these facts by a prepon-

derence of the evidence, that is, unless the facts appear by

a preponderance of all of the evidence before you, the

plaintiff can only recover the sum of two thousand five

hundred dollars.

I need hardly say to you that a preponderance of the

evidence does not necessarily mean the greater number of

witnesses; it means the greater weight of the testimony

or evidence, before you taken as a whole. This is the pri-

mary meaning of preponderance and is the meaning used

in the law.

It is admitted that the premiums on the policy were

paid and that it was in full force and effect at the time

of the death of the insured, John D. Bowman, and it is

also admitted that there was made due and sufficient proof

of death.

As already explained to you, if you find from a pre-

ponderance of the evidence that the death of John D.

Bowman, the insured by accident resulting directly and

independently from all other causes from bodily injury

effect solely through external, violent and accidental

means, you will find for the plaintiff for five thousand

dollars. On the other hand, if you do not find from a pre-

ponderance of the evidence that the death of John D.

Bowman, the insured, was caused by accident resulting

directly and independently from all other causes from

bodily injury effect solely through external, violent and

accidental means, then your verdict should be in favor
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of the plaintiff for only two thousand five hundred dol-

lars.

It is your duty, gentlemen, to follow the instructions

in good faith and try to apply them to the evidence fairly

and impartially, entirely apart from any consideration

except the facts in this case, and conscientiously and

impartially render a verdict. The fact that one party is a

corporation and the other a natural person, you must dis-

regard.

All of you must concur in finding a verdict. A form of

verdict has been prepared. You will have no difficulty in

using it. You will notice a blank space left, and as you

reach your verdict you will insert therein the amount you

arrive at. Your foreman alone need sign the verdict. I

will hand you the complaint, the answer and the verdict.

Let the bailiff be sworn and you may retire with the

baihff.

MR. SHIELDS : We would like to save an exception

to the instructions.

THE COURT : You may have an exception.

(Whereupon, upon a rendition of a verdict in favor

of the plaintiff in the sum of $5,000.00, the following

proceedings were had.)

MR. BISTLINE: We would like an exception, and

our motion made for an order or a regular order entered

as to the time allowed for the preparation of a bill of ex-

ceptions.

THE COURT: You may have your exception; you

will have to take that and make your record.
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The following orders extending time for preparation,

settlement and filing of this Bill of Exceptions (omitting

captions) were made and entered:

"The time to file the bill of exceptions and statement

of the case by defendant in the above entitled cause is

hereby extended to May 27, 1938, and the present term

of court is hereby extended for such purposes.

Dated at Pocatello, Idaho, this 28th day of March,

1938."

*'The time to file the bill of exceptions and statement

of the case by plaintiff in the above entitled cause is here-

by extended to July 26, 1938, and the present term of

Court is hereby extended for such purpose.

Dated at Pocatello, Idaho, this 27th day of May, 1938."

'The time to file the bill of exceptions and statement of

the case by defendant in the above entitled cause is here-

by extended to August 15, 1938, and the present term of

court is hereby extended for such purpose.

Dated this 18th clay of July, 1938."

That on April 20, 1938, defendant filed and served up-

on plaintiff motion for new trial as follows

:

"Comes now the defendant, Kansas City Life Insur-

ance Company, a corporation and moves the Court for

new trial of the above entitled cause upon the following

grounds, to-wit:

1. That the evidence is insufficient to justify the ver-

dict in the following particular, to-wit : That there is no

evidence whatsoever that the death of John D. Bowman
resulted directly and independently of all other causes
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from bodily injuries affected solely through external,

violent and accidental means, which is required by the

provisions of the insurance policy sued upon.

2. Error in law occuring at the trial in that the Court

erred in not granting defendant's motion for a directed

verdict in that there is no evidence whatsoever that the

death of John D. Bowman resulted directly and indepen-

dently of all other causes from bodily injuries affect

solely through external, violent and accidental means,

which is required by the provisions of the insurance

policy sued upon.

This motion is based upon the minutes of the court

and the records and files in the above entitled cause."

That said motion was duly heard by the Court on June

15, 1938, and denied, and order denying same made and

entered on said date, to which ruling of the court deny-

ing said Motion, exception was made by the defendant

and allowed by the Court,

(Title of Court and Cause)

STIPULATION

In this cause it is stipulated by and between the

respective parties, through their counsel of record, that

the proposed Bill of Exceptions heretofore prepared and

lodged is a true, correct, and a complete and perfect Bill
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of Exceptions, and that the plaintiff and respondent has

no objections thereto or corrections or amendments to

offer; and that the same may be settled, signed, sealed,

allowed, and certified as the Bill of Exceptions herein,

and that there may be included therein the orders extend-

ing the time for the settlement of the bill of Exceptions

since said Bill of Exceptions was lodged, and that said

orders may be made a part thereof and included therein.

It is further stipulated and agreed that said Hon. C. C.

Cavanah may sign, seal, settle, allow and certify said

Bill of Exceptions at such time and place as said Hon. C.

C. Cavanah shall desire; and that the plaintiff and res-

pondent and her counsel waive any notice of the signing,

sealing, settling and certifying of said Bill of Exceptions,

or the time and place thereof; and said plaintiff and re-

spondent and her counsel waive their right to be present

thereat, or notice thereof.

DATED At Pocatello, Idaho, this 15th day of Aug-

ust, 1938.

Dan B. Shields,

F. M. BistHne,

Attorneys for Defendant.

Jones, Pomeroy & Jones,

T. D. Jones,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.
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(Title of Court and Cause)

CERTIFICATE OF JUDGE TO BILL OF

EXCEPTIONS.

I, C. C. Cavanah, United States District Judge, before

whom the above-entitled action was tried do hereby cer-

tify that the matters and proceedings embodied in the

foregoing Bill of Exceptions are matters and proceed-

ings occurring in said cause, and the same are hereby

made a part of the record therein, and that the above and

foregoing Bill of Exceptions contains all the material

facts, matters, and proceedings heretofore occurring in

said cause and not already a part of the record therein;

and contains all the instructions of the Court, and all of

the evidence, oral and in writing therein, and is a true

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS, and the above and foregoing

Bill of Exceptions was duly and regularly filed with the

Clerk of the said Court and thereafter duly and regular-

ly served within the time authorized by law and the rules

of the United States District Court in the District of

Idaho; and that no amendments were proposed to said

Bill of Exceptions excepting such as are embodied there-

in ; and that due and regular notice of time for settlement

and certifying said Bill of Exceptions was waived by stip-

ulation of counsel, and the said stipulation is hereby made

a part of the Bill of Exceptions ; that said Bill of Excep-

tions was duly lodged, notice served on appellee's counsel,

and was signed and settled by the Court within the time
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authorized by the Court by orders made extending the

time for the settHng and fihng of said Bill of Exceptions,

which said orders extending the time are hereby made a

part of the Bill of Exceptions.

Done at Boise, Idaho, this 29th day of August, 1938.

CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

(Title of Court and Cause)

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO FILE

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

Filed March 28, 1938.

The time to file the bill of exceptions and statement

of the case by defendant in the above entitled cause is

hereby extended to May 27th, 1938, and the present term

of court is hereby extended for such purpose.

Dated at Pocatello, Idaho, this 28th day of March

1938.

CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

(Service accepted March 28, 1938.)
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(Title of Court and Cause)

ORDER EXTENDING TIME TO FILE

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS

Filed May 25, 1938.

The time to file the bill of exceptions and statement of

the case by plaintiff in the above entitled cause is hereby

extended to July 27th, 1938, and the present term of

court is hereby extended for such purpose.

Dated at Pocatello, Idaho, this 25th day of May, 1938.

CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

(Service Accepted May 27, 1938.)

(Title of Court and Cause)

ORDER EXTENDING TIME FOR FILING
BILL OF EXCEPTIONS AND EXTENDING

TERM OF COURT.
Filed July 18, 1938.

The time to file the bill of exceptions and state of the

case by defendant in the above entitled cause is hereby

extended to August 15th, 1938, and the present term of

court is hereby extended for such purpose.

Dated this 18th day of July, 1938.

CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

(Service Accepted)
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(Title of Court and Cause)

ORDER

Filed August 8, 1938.

Application of the defendant now being made for

further extension of time within which to prepare bill

of exception and extending the term of Court in the above

cause, and after consideration of the same the Court de-

nies said application or the granting of Order extending

the time for filing bill of exceptions and extension of

the term of Court in said cause.

Dated August 8th, 1938.

CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

(Title of Court and Cause)

PETITION FOR APPEAL
Filed August 31, 1938.

TO THE HON. CHARLES C. CAVANAH, Judge of

the District Court of the United States of America

in and for the District of Idaho, Eastern Division

:

Your petitioner, Kansas City Life Insurance Com-

pany, a corporation, who is defendant in the above enti-

tled cause, prays that it may be permitted to make an ap-

peal from the judgment entered in the above cause on the
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26th day of March, 1938, to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals of the Ninth Circuit, for the reasons

specified in the Assignments of Error which are filed

herewith and your petitioner desires that an order be

made fixing the amount of security which said petitioner

and defendant shall give to furnish or secure the costs

upon appeal and to supersede and stay the judgment

pending appeal.

Dated this 30th day of August, 1938.

DAN B. SHIELDS,

F. M. BISTLINE,

Attorneys for Petitioner,

Kansas City Life Insurance

Company, a corporation.

(Service Accepted August 30, 1938.)

(Title of Court and Cause)

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

Filed August 31, 1938.

Defendant and appellant, Kansas City Life Insur-

ance Company, a corporation, in connection with its

petition for an appeal in the above entitled cause, files

the following assignments of error upon which it will

rely in the prosecution of the appeal herewith petitioned

for in said cause

:
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1. The court erred in denying defendant's motion for

nonsuit at the close of the plaintiff's case.

2. The Court erred in denying defendant's motion

for a directed verdict at the close of all of the evidence.

3. The court erred in denying defendant's motion

for a new trial.

4. That the verdict of the jury was and is contrary

to the evidence.

5. The judgment of the court entered herein is con-

trary to the law.

6. That the evidence was and is insufficient to sup-

port a verdict for the plaintiff in excess of $2,500.00 and

accrued interest thereon for the reason that there is no

evidence that the insured, John D. Bowman, came to his

death by accidental means.

7. That the verdict of the jury is contrary to the evi-

dence for the reason that taking the evidence as a whole,

the physical facts are such that they conclusively estab-

lish that John D. Bowman's death resulted from suicide.

8. The court erred in entering judgment against the

defendant and in favor of plaintiff for the reason that

there is no evidence in the record to support said judg-

ment, and that said judgment is contrary to the evidence

and contrary to law and that the evidence does not, as a

matter of law, justify a judgment in favor of plaintiff.

Dan B. Shields,

F. M. Bistline,

Attorneys for Appellant.

(Service Accepted August 30, 1938.)
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(Title of Court and Cause)

ORDER ALLOWING APPEAL

Filed August 31, 1938.

Upon the Petition for Appeal, accompanied by assign-

ments of error heretofore filed herein, it being made to

appear that said petition should be allowed,

IT IS ORDERED that said petition for appeal be and

is hereby granted and the appeal allowed ; and that upon

the giving of a cost bond in the sum of $300.00 and a

supersedeas bond in the sum of $6,000.00 all proceedings

to enforce the judgment herein shall be stayed until said

appeal shall be determined, the bonds to be approved by

the Court.

Dated the 31st day of August, 1938.

CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

(Title of Court and Cause)

BOND

Filed August 31, 1938.

WHEREAS, the Defendant, Kansas City Life In-

surance Company, in the above entitled action, is about to

appeal to the Ninth Circuit Court of the United States,
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from a judgment made and entered against it in the above

entitled court on the 26th day of March, 1938, in favor of

the Plaintiff, Bertha E. Bowman, for the sum of FIVE

THOUSAND ($5,000) DOLLARS.

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF

THE PREMISES and of such appeal, the undersigned,

does hereby undertake and promise on the part of the

Defendant, that the said Defendant will pay all dam-

ages and costs which may be awarded against it on the

appeal, or on a dismissal thereof, not exceeding the sum

of ($300.00) THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS, to

which amount the undersigned acknowledges itself bound,

and

WHEREAS, the Defendant herein is desirous of stay-

ing the execution of said judgment so appealed from, the

undersigned does further, in consideration thereof and of

the premises, undertake and promise, and does acknowl-

edge itself to be further bound in the further sum of SIX
THOUSAND ($6000.00) DOLLARS, lawful money

of the United States, that if the said judgment appealed

from, or any part thereof, be affirmed or the appeal

be dismissed, the Defendant will pay the amount directed

to be paid by the said judgment, or the part of such

amount as to which the said judgment shall be affirmed

if affirmed only in part, and all damages and costs which

may be awarded against the Defendant upon such appeal,

and if the Defendant does not make payment of such

judgment within thirty (30) days after the filing of the
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remittitur from the Ninth Circuit Court of the United

States, in the court from which the appeal is taken, judg-

ment may be entered upon motion of the plaintiff in her

favor and against the undersigned Surety, for such

amount, together with interest that may be due thereon,

and the damages and costs which may be awarded against

the Defendant upon the appeal.

AMERICAN SURETY COMPANY
OF NEW YORK
By J. A. HODSON,

Resident Vice-President.

Attest : M. KLOTZ,
Resident Asst. Secretary.

(SEAL) Countersigned: A.B.CHASE,
Resident Agent at Pocatello, Idaho.

Approved

:

August 31,st, 1938.

Charles C. Cavanah,

Judge.

(Title of Court and Cause)

CITATION ON APPEAL.

Filed September 2, 1938.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA—ss.

To the plaintiff, Bertha E. Bowman, and her attorneys,

Jones, Pomeroy & Jones, of Pocatello, Idaho: GREET-
INGS:
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You are hereby cited and admonished to be and appear

at the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, at the City of San Francisco, State of Cal-

ifornia, within thirty days from the date hereof, pur-

suant to an order allowing appeal from the District Court

of the United States in and for the District of Idaho,

Eastern Division, in a suit wherein Kansas City Life In-

surance Company is appellant, and you, the said Bertha E.

Bowman, is the appellee, to show cause, if any there be,

why a judgment rendered against Kansas City Life Insur-

ance Company, a corporation, should not be corrected,

and why speedy justice should not be done to the par-

ties on that behalf.

WITNESS the HONORABLE CHARLES C. CA-

VANAH, Judge of the District Court of the United

States in and for the District of Idaho, Eastern Div-

ision, this the 31st day of August, 1938.

(SEAL) CHARLES C. CAVANAH,
District Judge.

ATTEST

:

W. D. McREYNOLDS, Clerk.

(Service Accepted September 1, 1938.)

(Title of Court and Cause)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SERVICE.

Filed September 2, 1938.

Service of the Following papers, for and on behalf of



122 Kansas City Life Insurance Company

the plaintiff, and for and on behalf of ourselves, the un-

dersigned, is admitted

:

Cost bond on appeal and Supersedeas Bond

Praecipe for transcript of record

Order allowing Appeal

Citation on Appeal

Petition for Appeal, and

Assignment of Errors.

Dated this 1st day of Sept., 1938.

JONES, POMEROY & JONES,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

(Title of Court and Cause)

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

Filed September 2, 1938.

TO : The Clerk of the above entitled Court, Hon. W.

D. McReynolds, and the plaintiff, Bertha E. Bowman,

and her attorneys, Jones, Pomeroy & Jones, of Pocatello,

Idaho

:

The Clerk is hereby requested to make a transcript of

the record to be filed in the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals of the Ninth Circuit, pursuant to an appeal

allowed in the above entitled cause, and to include in such
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transcript of the record the following and no other pa-

pers, and exhibits, to-wit

:

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Judgment Roll, consisting of

:

The complaint.

The order for removal to Federal Court.

Defendant's Answer.

Verdict of jury.

Judgment. Also, the

Order overruling motion for new trial.

Bill of Exceptions, duly settled and allowed

by the Court, including all orders extend-

ing the time for filing the bill of exceptions

;

and certify up all exhibits introduced in

evidence.

All minute entries and orders made in said

cause from the beginning to the end there-

of.

Petition for appeal.

Assignments of error.

Order allowing appeal.

Cost and supersedeas bond on appeal, show-

ing approval by the Court.

Citation on appeal, including acknowledge-

ment of service thereof by the plaintiff and

his counsel, or proof of service thereof.

Stipulations between counsel fied in this case.

This praecipe, together with acknowledge-

ment or proof of service thereof.
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Said transcript to be prepared as required by law and

the rules of this Court, and the rules of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, and to be filed

in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

DATED This 1st day of Sept., 1938.

F. M. BISTLINE,

DAN B. SHIELDS,

Attorneys for Appellant

Kansas City Life Insurance Co.

(Service accepted September 1, 1938.)

(Title of Court and Cause)

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK.

I. W. D. McReynolds, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States for the District of Idaho, do hereby

certify the foregoing transcript of pages numbered from

1 to 125 inclusive, to be full, true and correct copie

of the pleadings and proceedings in the above entitled

cause, and that the same together constitutes the trans-

cript of the record herein upon appeal to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

as requested by the Praecipe filed herein.

I further certify that the cost of the record herein
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amounts to the sum of $152.65 and that the same has been

paid by the appellant.

Witness my hand and the seal of said Court this 28th

day of September, 1938.

(SEAL) W. D. McREYNOLDS,
Clerk.





No. 8993

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

BERTHA E. BOWMAN,
Appellee.

Appeal From the District Court of the United States

for the District of Idaho, Eastern Division

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

DAN B. SHIELDS,
F. M. BISTLINE,

Attorneys for Appellant.





No. 8993

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

BERTHA E. BOWMAN,
Appellee,

ippeal From the District Court of the United States

for the District of Idaho, Eastern Division

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

DAN B. SHIELDS,
F. M. BISTLINE,

Attorneys for Appellant.





INDEX
Page

A?ument 13

Aiignment of Errors 8, 13, 19

Ciclusion 20

Jrisdictional Facts 1

Mtive 16

Sitement of the Case 2

Sinmary of Argument 9

STATUTES AND RULES

Icho District Court, Rule 75 2

U;3. C. A. Title 28, Section 41 1

US. C. A. Title 28, Section 71 1

CASES CITED

A na Life Insurance Company vs. Alsobrook, 299 S.

W. 743 12, 18

A na Life Insurance Co. vs. Tooley, (C C. A. 5th)

16 F. {2d) 243, 244 12, 17, 18

B^kett vs. New York Life Insurance Co., (C. C. A.
; 5th) 56 F. (2d) 105 11, 12, 15, 17, 18

Ci-udiers vs. Sterns & Culver Lumber Co., 173 N. W.
198, 201 11, 15

Ckago, M. & St. P. R. Co. vs. Coogan, 271 U. S. 472,

j

478; 70 L. Ed. 1041, 1045; 46 S. Ct. 564 11, 15

D. Vecchio vs. Bowers, 296 U. S. 280; 56 S. Ct. 190;
80 L. Ed. 229 11, 15

D^Tpixm vs. United States Casualty Co. (C. C. A. 1st)

89 F. {2d) 43, 44 10, 16

Fyelity & Casuxdty Cornpany vs. Driver {C. C. A. 5th)

79 F. {2d) 933, 935 10, 12, 16, 18

Fielity Mutual Life Insurance Co. vs. Wilson, 2 S. W.
{2d) 80 12, 19

F'.nkel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., {C. C. A.
10th) 51 F. {2d) 933, 935 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 18

Gtf, M. & N. R. Co. vs. Wells, 275 U. S. 455, 459; 72
L. Ed. 370, 372; 48 S. Ct., 151 11, 15



INDEX
Pag

CASES CITED—Cont'd

Hawkins vs. Kronick Cleaning & Laundry Co., 157

Minn. 33; 195 N. W. 766 11,

Jefferson Standard Life Insurance Co. vs. Clemmer,

(C. C. A. Ath) 79 F. {2d) 724; 103, A. L. R. 171.... 10,

.

Johnson vs. Industrial Commission, 35 Ariz. 19; 274

P. 161 11,

Love vs. New York Life Insurance Co., (C. C. A. 15th)

65 F. (2d) 829 12, 14,

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Alman, (CCA. 5th)

22 F. (2d) 98-- 11, 12, 15,

New York Life Ins. Co. vs. Anderson, (C C A. Sth) 66

F. (2d) 705 10, 11, 12, 14, 15,

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Gamer, 303 U. S. S.

at. 161; 82 L. Ed. 480 10, 14,

New York Life Ins. Co. vs. Trimble, (C C A. 5th) 69

F. (2d) 849, 851 12, 14, 17,

New York C R. Co. vs. Ambrose, 280 U. S. 486; 74 L.

Ed. 562; 50 S. Ct., 198 11,:

Ocean Accident & G. Corp. vs. Schachner, (C C A.

1th) 70 F. (2d) 28,31 10,

Pennsylvania Railroad Co. vs. Chamberlain, 77 L. Ed.

819, 825; 288 U. S. 333 11,

Samulski vs. Menasha Paper Co., 147 Wis. 285; 133

N. W. 142, 145

Stevens vs. The White City, 285 U. S. 195; 76 L. Ed.

699, 704; 52 S. Ct. 347 11,

Sugar vs. Industrial Commission of Utah, 75 P. (2d)

311 12,

Supreme Tent K. of M. vs. King, 142 Fed. 678 10,

:

Travelers Insurance Company vs. Wilkes, (C C A.

5th) 76 F. (2d) 701, 705 10,

:

United States vs. Crume (C C A.) 54 F. (2d) 556,

558 :



No. 8993

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

BERTHA E. BOWMAN,
Appellee.

'^ Appeal From the District Court of the United States

for the District of Idaho, Eastern Division

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

JURISDICTIONAL FACTS

Bertha E. Bowman, a citizen of Idaho, filed her com-

jaint in the District Court of the Fifth Judicial District

c the State of Idaho in and for Bannock County, on

<^tober 25, 1937 (p. 1) against the Kansas City Life In-

srance Company, a corporation existing under and by

\?ftue of the laws of the State of Missouri, for the sum
$5,000.00. There being a diversity of citizenship and

is amount involved being in excess of $3,000.00 (U. S. C. A.

l|tle 28, Section 41 (1) ) appellant removed the case to

t3 Federal court for the District of Idaho, the order

(. 33) therefor having been made by the judge of said

Istrict Court on December 2, 1937, and filed in said

Fderal Court on December 2, 1937. (U. S. C. A. Title 28,

Sction 71.) After removal of the cause to Federal Court,



defendant filed its answer on the 25th of February, 19i

(p. 35).

Judgment for plaintiff was entered March 26, 19^

(p. 41). On April 20, 1938, defendant filed and serve

upon plaintiff Motion for New Trial (p. 109) pursuai

to Rule of the District Court as follows

:

''Rule 75. (Idaho District Court) Within Thirty

days after the entry of judgment, the applican

shall serve upon the adverse party and file witl

the Clerk a petition for a new trial, stating th<

grounds upon which he relies,
*****"

This motion for new trial was over-ruled on June It

1938. (p. 110.) Under said rule 75, the time for appea

was stayed until the disposition of said petition for ne^

trial, said rule being as follows

:

"A petition for a new trial served and filed unde

this rule shall be deemed to be entertained by th

Court, and shall suspend the operation of the judg

ment, and of any process that may have been issuei

thereon, and of any writ of error that may hav

been granted; and thereafter no writ of error sha'

be taken out, or any process issued upon said judg

ment until the disposition of said petition for ne^

trial."

Appellant appealed and order allowing appeal wa

filed August 31, 1938. (p. 118.)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

John D. Bowman died February 16, 1937, by gunsho

His life was insured by a policy with appellant by whic

it agreed to pay his beneficiary (plaintiff and appellee

$2,500 upon proof of death regardless of cause or $5,0C



in case of accidental death as defined by a provision of the

poHcy, the pertinent parts of which are

:

"The additional sum payable in event of the ac-

cidental death of the Insured shall be due if the

Company shall receive due proof * * * that such

death resulted directly and independently of all

other causes from bodily injuries, effected solely

through external, violent and accidental means * * *

except that this double indemnity benefit shall not

be payable if the insured 's death shall result directly

or indirectly, wholly or partly from suicide, whether

sane or insane * * * * *." (p. 20.)

Appellee sued for $5,000. The Complaint alleges that

the death of the insured resulted directly and independently

of all other causes from bodily injuries effected solely

through external, violent and accidental means, to-wit, by

the accidental discharge of a shot gun, which struck the

j

person and body of the said John D. Bowman (p. 30).

I

Defendant's answer conceded that plaintiff is entitled

to the face of the policy, and offers judgment for that

amount. It denies that death resulted from bodily injury

effected through accidental means and specifically alleges

that the death of the insured resulted from suicide, (p. 35.)

The case came on for trial, and at the close of plaint-

iff's case defendant moved for nonsuit upon the ground

that plaintiff had not established accidental death. This

motion was denied (p. 38). At the close of all the e\'idence

defendant moved for a directed verdict upon the ground
that no cause of action was shown from the evidence, which

(was also denied (p. 105).

The jury gave plaintiff a verdict for $5,000 with in-

terest and the court entered judgment in her favor for



that amount. Defendant moved for a new trial npon the

ground that the evidence was insufficient to justify the

verdict in that there was no evidence that the death of the

Insured resulted directly and independently of all other

causes from bodily injuries effected solely through ex-

ternal, violent and accidental means, and that the court

further erred in not granting plaintiff's motion for a

directed verdict on said ground.

The only question involved is the sufficiency of the

evidence, it being contended by appellant that there is

no evidence in the record that insured 's death resulted from

bodily injuries effected through external, violent and acci-

dental means alone. This question w^as raised by defend-

ant's motions for non-suit, for directed verdict, and for

new trial, all of which were denied and exceptions taken.

In order that this question may be properly presented,

we deem it necessary at this point to set out succinctly the

facts and circumstances surrounding the death of said

Insured, same being:

On December 1, 1935, deceased, John D. Bowman,
suffered a cerebral thrombosis, a clot on the brain which

produces an action akin to paralysis (p. 81). As a result

of this he was very ill and was confined to bed about six

or seven weeks (p. 75). His right side was paralyzed.

Improvement from that time continued until the time of

his death, at which time his physical condition was, to

outward appearances, about normal, with the exception

of his speech and his right hand. He couldn't grasp objects

as he did before his sickness, at times dropping articles,

such as dishes when he was wiping them. Cold weather

would cause his right hand to become numb. He had a

rather pronounced speech impediment ; articulation was

difficult and he could speak but a few words at a time.



Aftor lu' was ahlo to he out of heel, lie i;i-a(lually i'osuitkmI

iloiiiK chores, such as herding- the cows, supervising the

irriji:atinjj:, driviiiu' the hay derrick for about two hundred

tons of liay, helping witli the tliresliiui;-, feeding;' tlie cows

and horses, rcpairini; the iiiacliinei'y and drivin.u: a car

around the fai'ni.

About one-tliirty on the day of his death, February

1(), 1!K')7, lie went to Ids son's liome and i;ot the shotgun

(Exliibit 1). As lie left the house with the gun, his

daughtei-in-law, Verna A. Bowman, followed him to the

door, and as he opened tlie door the birds flew out of the

tree and he said "birds." She also noticed that he talked

to the children and tapped or touched them on the heads

as he was leaving, and that lie appeared cheerful and

smiled all the time. He was next seen by his son Bertram

X. Bowman taking the gun tow^ard his own house. About

two-thirty that same afternoon he w^as seen at the store in

Blackfoot o])erated by Brigham Horrocks by said Brigham

Horrocks. He took two shot gun shells without waiting

to be served. He was familiar with the store, having pre-

viously worked there for about a month. When he showed

Horrocks the two shells, Horrocks said to him: "You don't

want them. Leave them here." and Bowman told him he

was going to shoot "birds."

Bowman w^as next seen by Verna A. Bowman about

3:30 that same afternoon going toward the barn. About
five minutes later she heard a shot from the direction of

the barn. At that time she was in the process of changing

"^traw in the chicken coop and went on about her work
and later went into the house, whence she heard another

shot fired about 20 minutes after the first one. It also

came from the direction of the barn. At the time she

noticed a lot of birds flying around.



Deceased was found in the hay loft of the barn back

of the sugar factory at Blackfoot, Idaho, about 4:20 that

same afternoon by John N. Barnard (p. 61), who in tracing

the source of blood on the back of his horses went to the

hay loft and found Mr. Bowman lying on his back in the

southwest corner of the hay loft just under a window

which had no glass in it. He did not examine the body

at that time, but notified one of the Bowman boys, who in

turn notified the sheriff and coroner. The Sheriff, Coroner,

Jack Gibbs, two of the Bowman boys and John Barnard

went to the hay loft of the barn at about five o'clock that

same afternoon and made observations as to the location

of the body in the barn, the position of the body and its

condition, as well as the condition of the loft in the vicinity

of the body.

They found the body of deceased lying on his back,

diagonally with the head to the southeast and the gun

diagonally across the body with the butt between the feet

of the deceased. The muzzle was just a little to the left of

the position of the heart of the body. The left hand was

lying down at his side. The sheriff picked up the gun and

ejected an empty shell. The gun had blood stains on it.

A little piece of flesh was in the muzzle and fell out when

the sheriff tipped the gun up. The trigger hammer was

down pressing the firing pin against the shell. There was

one empty shell at the right side of the body.

The hay mow was empty with the exception of a few

alfalfa leaves on the floor of the barn. The ceiling was

bare ; a little to the left and over the body was the pattern

of a charge of shot that had entered the roof at the junc-

ture of a rafter and a cross member. There was a little

piece of denim pinned to the roof by a shot at that point.

There were some small particles of flesh and blood with

stains there, and from there north for a distance of probably



f«M't Were pit'ccs ot" I'lcsli ii)> in the I'ool" and some

juirtifU's on till' cross l)ar or tlic l)iii(U'r of tlic huildinic.

\t tlu' window Just west of the body were small ])artic'los

• t flesh and bloody spots on the sill. This window was

d)ont three feet square and about five feet fi-oni the base

if the window to the floor, rarticlos of flesh rested on

he edire of the sill at the bottom of the window. His

'•'ot were in front of that window about 18 inches from the

ill. No sliots were found in the barn otlier than the

latlmi iinnii'diately above the body.

Tli(> left side of Bowman's face was .i>:one and there

^as no mouth. The left eye was out of the socket, lying

• vcr with the flesh. He wore artificial teeth and his lower

)lat(' was broken into pieces in several places and lying

'^ith the mangled ])art of his face, and the upper plate

as out lying along the side of the face. There was not

I |iueh blood on the floor, but i)art of the face was injured

« |nd bloody. The different parts of the face were not dis-

: tnguishable, being commingled with the flesh and torn

fi jarts of the face. The left ear was practically covered

a Inth a piece or pieces of flesh lying back over it.

The body was removed to the undertaking parlor

here a further examination was made which disclosed

lat in addition to the above that the left eye was completely

ut of the socket, lying on the temporal region of the left

ide: the left ear was split from the lobe up about half

ay in the ear, and there were about three distinct rents

r tears in the flesh of the left cheek which seemed to

more of a fan-like shape. The right jaw bone was broken

p iid protruded through the skin. The h(»ad of the deceased

i;- 'as loose to the touch and not solid. The mouth was
itirely shot away. The roof of the month was in about

ve different pieces connected only by some so-called

•nnective tissue, with blood or matter of some sort oozing
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through these breaks. On the underside of the chin w^

a tear about three inches long extending somewhere

the left side sort of diagonally down toward the side

the neck. The flesh remained where the tear was, goii

do^vn under part of the chin on both sides ; not very md
of the chin was left on the left side. Practically the enti^

left side of the face was gone. The tears of the che^

could not be reconstructed definitely into their origii

shape, but could be reshaped only to a point about midwj

of the cheek (p. 86). On the left shoulder was a scratch

sear about two inches long extending from about the nip}

upward and slightly toward the left shoulder.

At the time of his death, Mr. Bowman was wearii

the jumper (Exhibit 3) and the shoes (Exhibit 2) wM

rubbers over them, trousers and an ordinary gray wol

shirt (p. 63). The jumper had two holes in it to the It

of the lapel, (p. 66).

Deceased's family relations had always been good ai

on the date of the death he was of cheerful dispositi(

The sheriff tested the gun by dropping it sevei

times a distance of one foot to see if it would discharf

from impact, but it would not do so. (p. 88.)

It is appellant's contention that the facts, which

as above set forth, are not sufficient to establish thj

the deceased came to his death ''from bodily injurie

effected solely through external, violent and acciden|

means."

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS

1. The court erred in denying defendant's moti«

for nonsuit at the close of the plaintiff's case.

2. The Court erred in denying defendant's motil

for a directed verdict at the close of all of the evidenj

I
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'.]. The Court oiTcd in deiiyinii: defendant's motion

or a now trial.

4. Tliat tlio verdict of the jnry was and is contrary

) the evidence,

5. The jud^Tnent of court entered herein is contrary

• the hiw.

(). Tliat the evidence was and is insufficient to sup-

ort a verdict for the plaintiff in excess of $2,500.00 and

t'crued interest thereon for the reason that there is no

V idence that the insured John D. Bowman, came to his

cath by accidental means.

7. That the verdict of the jury is contrary to the

. idence for the reason that taking the evidence as a whole,

le physical facts are such that they conclusively establish

lat John D. Bow^man's death resulted from suicide.

8. The court erred in entering judgment against the

:'fendant and in favor of plaintiff for the reason that

lere is no evidence in the record to support said judgment,

id that said judgment is contrary to the evidence and

'•iitrary to law and that the evidence does not, as a matter

< law, justify a judgment in favor of plaintiff.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

All the errors assigned are to the same effect: That

jere is no evidence to prove that Bowman's death was

3idental.

The burden was on plaintiff to prove by a preponder-

iice of the evidence that the deceased met his death by

tjcident as defined in the contract of insurance, that is;

te beneficiary has. the burden of proof that the insured's

ciath resulted solely from accidental means within double

idemnity meaning of the life policy.
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New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Gamer, 303 U. S
Ct. 161, 82 L. Ed. 480.

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 51 Fed. {2d

933, 935.

Supreme Tent K. of M. vs. King, 142 Fed. 678.

New York Life Insurance Company vs. Anderson,

Fed. {2d) 707.

Presumption that a violent death was accidental rathe

than suicidal is not evidence and may not be given weigl

as evidence.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Gamer, 303 U. S. /

Ct. 161, 82 L. Ed. 480, 484.

Despiau vs. United States Casualty Co. {C. C. A. Isi

89 F. {2d) 43, 44.

Jefferson Standard Life Insurance Co. vs. Clemme

{C. C. A. Uh) 79 F. {2d) 724, 103 A. L. R. 171.

Travelers Insurance Company vs. Wilkes, {C. C. ^

5th) 76 F. {2d) 701,705.

Fidelity <& Casualty Company vs. Driver {C. C. A. 6t}

79 F. {2d)713,7U.

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., {C. C. .

imh)51F. (2^)933,935.

Ocean Accident & G. Corp. vs. Schachner, {C. C. :

7th) 70 F. (2^)28,31.

A verdict cannot rest upon mere speculation and co

jecture. Whenever circumstantial evidence is relied upi

to prove a fact, the circumstances must be proved and nt

themselves presumed. Speculation and conjecture are rc

enough, and a verdict that rests upon speculation ail

conjecture cannot be allowed to stand.

k
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I*r)nisiflrania Railroad Co. vs. Chamberlain, 77 L. Ed.

1, SJ5; 288 U. S. 333.

,
Chicago, M. ct St. P. R. Co. vs. Coogan, 271 U. S. 472,

h 70 L. Ed. 1041, 1045; 46 S. Ct. 564.

Gulf, M. (& N. R. Co. vs. Wells, 275 U. S'. 455, 459;

2'.. Ed. 370, 372; 48 S. Ct., 151.

Xcw York C. R. Co. vs. Ambrose, 280 U. S. 486, 74

, >/. 562, 50 S. Ct., 198.

Stevens vs. The White City, 285 U. S. 195, 76 L. Ed.

? 704, 52 S. Ct. 347.

/>>e/ Vecchio L-s. Boivers, 296 t^. S. 280; 56 >S'. Cf. 190;

Ol.. ^rf. 229.

.Yew York Life Ins. Co. vs. Anderson, {C. C. A. Sth)

S\\ {2d) 705.

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., {C. C. A.

) 51 F. {2d) 933.

Xew York Life Insurance Co. vs. Alman, {C. C. A.

t) 22 F. {2d) 98.

Burkett vs. New York Life Insurance Co., {C. C. A.

t) hQF.{2d)lOf>.

Johnson vs. Industrial Commission, 35 Ariz. 19; 274

\
Hawkins vs. Kronick Cleaning S Laundry Co., 157

f^•^.33;195iV. T7.766.

Chaudiers vs. Sterns d Culver Lumber Co., 173 N. W.
:9^201.

'It is a matter of common knowledge that persons

51 nit suicide notwithstanding abundant reasons to be

it fied mth their lot in life.



12

Burkett vs. New York Life Ins. Co., {C. C. A. 5)

56 F. {2d) 105.

New York Life Ins. Co. vs. Trimble, (C. C. A. b]

69 F. {2d) 849,851.

Aetna Life Insurance Co. vs. Tooley, {C. C. A. 5i

16 F. (2^;) 243,244.

In the following cases it was held as a matter of j

that there was no evidence to support a verdict resting u]ii

accidental death.

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 51 {2d) i;3.

Burkett vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 56 F. (!)

105.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Anderson, 66 F. (')

707.

Fidelity & Casualty Co. of New York vs. Driver

F. {2d) 713.

ii

Neiv York Life Insurance Co. vs. Alman, 22 F. {2d'ii

Aetna Life Insurance Co. vs. Tooley, 16 F. {2d) ^.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Trimble, 69 F. (i)

849.

Sugar vs. Industrial Commission of Utah, 75 P. (i)

311.

Aetna Life Insurance Company vs. Alsobrook, 29;^

W. 743.

Fidelity Mutual Life Insurance Co. vs. Wilson, 2 S.^'

{2d) 80.

Love vs. New York Life Insurance Co., {C. C. A. Vh]

6b F. {2d) 829.
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ARGUMENT
In view of the fact that all of the assignments of error

nd upon assignment six, we are taking up the argument

at first.

"6. That the evidence was and is insufficient to

support a verdict for the plaintiff in excess of $2,500

I

and accrued interest thereon for the reason that

I

there is no e\ddence that the insured John D. Bow-

! man came to his death by accidental means."

The burden was upon plaintiff to establish by a pre-

i|3rance of the evidence that the deceased met his death

Sieged. The plaintiff proved no other facts than that

i^sed came to his death from gun shot wound. The

'y.n was upon her to prove that the discharge of the

ijras accidental.

We Supreme Court of the United States has set at

till doubt upon this question and in a very recent

w uncement upon appeal from this court, said

:

"Under the contract in the case now before us,

I

double indemnity is payable only on proof of death

I by accident as there defined. The burden ivas on

the plaintiff to allege and by a preponderance of\

the evidence to prove that fact. The complaint

alleged accident and negatived self-destruction. The
answer denied accident and alleges suicide. Plaint-

iff's negation of self-destruction, taken with de-

;

fendant's allegation of suicide, served to narrow
the possible field of controversy. Only the issue

of accidental death vel non remained. The question

of fact to be tried was precisely the same as if the

plaintiff merely alleged accidental death and the

defendant interposed denial without more." (Italics

supplied.)
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New York Life Ins. Co. vs. Gamer, 303 V. S. 8. Ct. K,

82 L. Ed. 460.

See also

:

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 51 F. (i)

933.

Supreme Tent K. of M. vs. King, 142 F. 678.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Anderson, 66 F. (!)

707.

There were no eye-witnesses to this death. As to h
the gun was discharged is not known but the burden wasn

plaintiff to prove that fact. That the gun may have biD

accidentally discharged by dropping or in some other nn

ner is of course a possibility, but certainly not a probabi^

in view of no showing that it was or could be so discharjd

"Verdicts must rest on probabilities, not on Irt

possibilities."

Love vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 64 F. {2d) :I9,

832.

Samulski vs. Menasha Paper Co., 147 Wis. 285,

N. W. 142, 145.

United States vs. Crume (C. C. A. ) 54 F. {2d) ft

558. }
I

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Trimble, 69 F. i^i)

849, 850.

The possibility of an accidental discharge of thiSiUD

was left entirely to the imagination of the jury. Plaiiiff

made no attempt to prove that it was possible for this M

to be discharged other than by pulling the trigger, ''he

theory of accidental discharge was left entirely to speda

tion and conjecture. And a verdict cannot rest lion
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eculatioii and conjecture. The circumstances must be

I'oved and not presumed.

Pennsylvania Railroad Co. vs. Chamberlain, 77 L. Ed.

[9,S2b;28SU.S.S3'S.

Chicago, M. d St. P. R. Co. vs. Coogan, 271 U. S. 472,

^8; 70 L. Ed. 1041, 1045; 46 S. Ct. 564.

Gulf M. d N. R. Co. vs. Wells, 275, U. S. 455, 459; 72

} Ed. 370, 3T2;iSS.Ct. 151.

New York C. R. Co. vs. Ambrose, 280 V. S. 486; 74

} Ed. 562, 50 S. Ct. 198.

Stevens vs. The White City, 285 U. S. 195; 76 L. Ed.

€9;52^. C^. 347.

Del Vecchio vs. Bowers, 296 U. S. 280; 56 S. Ct. 190;

8 L. Ed. 229.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Anderson, 66 F. {2d)

7).

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 51 Jf^. {2d)

91

\ New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Alman, 22 F. {2d) 98.

Burkett vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 56 F. {2d)

1).

Johnson vs. Industrial Commission, 35 Ariz. 19; 274

1161.

Hawkins vs. Kronick Cleaning S Laundry Co., 157

A WW. 33; 195 iV. TF. 766.

Chaudier vs. Sterns d Culver Lumber Co., 173 N. W.

It may be that plaintiff was attempting to rely upon
ti; presumption that a person will not kill himself, as
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evidence of accidental death, but if so, the Supreme Courl

of the United States in the very recent case of New Yorl

Life Insurance Co. vs. Gamer, (supra) very definitely rulec

that out when it held

:

"The presumption is not evidence and may not b

given weight as evidence."

Ne2v York Life Insurance Co. vs. Gamer (supra) 8!

L. Ed. 484.

Despiau vs. United States Casualty Co., 89 F. (2d

43, 44.

Jefferson Standard Life Insurance Co. vs. Clemmei

79 F. (2d) 724, 730; 103 A. L. R. 171.

Travelers Insurance Co. vs. Wilkes, 76 F. (2d) 701

705.
i

Fidelity & Casualty Co. vs. Driver, 79 F. (2d) 713, lU

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 51 F. (2d\

933, 935.
(

Ocean Accident S G. Corp. vs. Schachner, 70 F. (2d) 21

31.
I

Thus, under these rules, the plaintiff is left with ni

evidence whatsoever that the deceased's death was tlij

result of accident. iij

MOTIVE
[

During trial, plaintiff's counsel argued to some exteij

that there was a lack of motive for suicide. We are nc

concerned with motive, as the burden of disproof is upo,

the plaintiff.

**It is a matter of common knowledge that persoi'

commit suicide notwithstanding abundant reasoi!

to be satisfied with their lot in life.

"

!
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Burkett vs. Neiv York Life Insurance Co., 56 Fed. {2d)

:)5, 107.

"Motive is helpful but is not essential. This is so

because in this life men who have no apparent motive

for it, do commit suicide. Perhaps always in the

case of a sane person who commits suicide there

is motive, but in many cases the motive is not and

could not be proved. '

'

' New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Trimble, 69 F. {2d)

i9, 851.

' Aetna Life Insurance Co. vs. Tooley, 16 F. {2d) 243,

i

I
Burkett vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 56 F. {2d)

is.

,

However, it is our contention that the evidence shows

tSat motive was not lacking : Here is a man who had been

S'icken with cerebral thrombosis, which in all likelihood

vuld leave him permanently disabled (Tr. 82, 98). Men in

tit condition have been known to commit suicide much
E»re frequently than men who are in good health and have

a their faculties. His actions within three hours of his

d'lth were unusual. A crippled man getting a gun and

cefully explaining that he was going to shoot birds and

p:ting his grandchildren on the heads (Tr. 44), walking

a, aggregate distance of two or more miles to get two

s)(lls, and going to the extreme effort of pulling himself

U; into the hay mow with a crippled arm—all this only

t( shoot sparrows with only two shot gun shells—and
tin shooting himself with one of them in such a way
a!|to blow his left cheek into shreds, which lay outward,

ajjl shooting away his entire mouth, would, we believe,

ii^icate to the normal person that this man had other
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motives in his mind than just shooting at sparrows for the

welfare of the farm. But even if these circumstances

did not exist, it did not relieve plaintiff of the burden of

proving the death by accident and this she did not do,

The physical facts in the case clearly indicate thai

the deceased took his own life, and particularly the fad

that his face was blown from the inside outward, (Tr. 85)

that a piece of flesh fell from the end of the muzzle oi

the gun when the sheriff picked it up (Tr. 88) and the,

further and most significant fact that the gun could no1

be discharged accidentally, as shown by a thorough tesi

made by the sheriff shortly after the accident (Tr. 88)

In the following cases, evidence was examined by th(

appellate courts and held to be evidence of suicide anc

not accident.

Frankel vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 51 Fed. {2d]

933. !

Burkett vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 56 F. {2d]

105.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Anderson, 66 F. {2d

707.

Fidelity/ and Casualty Co. of New York vs. Driver, 7!

F. {2d) 713.

New York Life Insurance Co. vs. Alman, 22 Fed. {2d\

98. r

Aetna Life Insurance Co. vs. Tooley, 16 F. {2d) 242

New York Life Insurance vs. Trimble, 69 F. {2d) 84£

Sugar vs. Industrial Commission of Utah, 75 P. {2d

311.

Aetna Life Insurance Co. vs. Alsobrook, 299 S. W. 74^

I

^
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Fidelity Mutual Life Insurance Co. vs. Wilson, 2 S. W.
2d) 80.

Love vs. New York Life Insurance Co., 65 F. (2d) 829.

But, it was not for defendant to prove suicide; the

)urden was on plaintiff to prove death by accident.

Taking up the remaining assignments of error, to-wit

:

"1. The court erred in denying defendant's motion

for nonsuit at the close of the plaintiff's case.

' * 2. The Court erred in denying defendant 's motion

for a directed verdict at the close of all of the evi-

dence.

'*3. The court erred in denying defendant's motion

for a new trial.

''4. That the verdict of the jury was and is con-

trary to the evidence.

"5. The judgment of the court entered herein is

contrary to the law.

'^7. That the verdict of the jury is contrary to the

evidence for the reason that taking the evidence as

a whole, the physical facts are such that they con-

clusively establish that John D. Bowman's death

resulted from suicide.

'^8. The court erred in entering judgment against

the defendant and in favor of plaintiff for the reason

I that there is no evidence in the record to support

said judgment, and that said judgment is contrary

to the evidence and contrary to the law, and that

the evidence does not, as a matter of law, justify

a judgment in favor of plaintiff.
'

'
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Appellant adopts the argument of assignment 6 in suppor'l

of its contention that the court erred in these other respects'

CONCLUSION

The burden of proving that the death of the decease(

was by accident is on the plaintiff. It is submitted tha

she failed to meet this burden by any evidence, let alon

the preponderance thereof, and that therefore, the refuse

of the court to grant defendant's motion for nonsuit, th

motion for directed verdict, and motion for new trial wer

error prejudicial to defendant; and that the judgmer

should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted, '

j

DAN B. SHIELDS, '

F. M. BISTLINE,
|

Attorneys for Appellant
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IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

KANSAS CITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
a Corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

BERTHA E. BOWMAN,
Appellee,

Brief of Appellee

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The statement of the case made by appellant is substan-

tially correct, except the statement of the facts surrounding

the death of the insured is incomplete and omits some very

material evidence bearing upon the case. In view of which

we deem it necessary to make a succinct statement of the facts

shown by the record.

John D. Bowman died February 16, 1937, from gun-shot

wound. He was a resident of Blackfoot, Idaho, at the time of

his death and was survived by his wife Bertha E. Bowman,

with whom he had been married for thirty-five years and had

lived in Idaho twenty-two years, at Riverside and Blackfoot,

and since 1934 at Blackfoot. Their children were grown;

they had one son who was in college at the time of the acci-

dent. Mr. Bowman was engaged in farming. His family

relationship was good and he had always been very devoted

to his wife and kind during the whole of their married life.



,His financial condition was good as he never did go in debt

and was not in debt at the time of his death (p. 75). On

December 1, 1935, deceased, John D. Bowman, suffered a

stroke or cerebral thrombosis. Cerebral thrombosis is a clot

on the brain which produces an action akin to paralysis and

does produce paralysis depending on the amount of damage

to the brain tissue and on the pressure (p. 81) or the edema.

If there is an actual destruction of the brain tissue or the nerve

cells they never regenerate, but if the paralysis is through

edema they will gradually come back as the pressure is released.

Where there is a good recovery it demonstrates that thpre was

not much destruction of the brain cells (p. 82) .
There was

a good recovery in this case (p. 82)

.

His right side was paralized and he was confined to bed

about six or seven weeks. After he got out of bed he con-

tinued to improve up until the day of his death (p. 75) .
At

the time of his death his physical condition was perfect with

the exception of his speech and his right hand (p. l(i)
,
and

he was about the same weight he was before his illness, having

regained his normal weight (p. 49) ; he couldn't grasp things

like he did before his sickness, his grip wasn't as good with his

right hand (p. 47) , and at times he dropped objects and

especially dishes when he was wiping them (p. 76) .
He had

a rather pronounced speech impediment and difficulty with

his right hand (p. 79) . After he was able to be out of bed he

did many things around the home: He milked the cows and

chopped the kindling, shovelled snow (p. 78), did other

chores consisting among other things, in feeding and watering

horses, cows, calves, and milking cows. The decedent at times



went up in the loft of the barn to feed hay to the stock (p. 51).

In addition, he would do most everything around the farm.

In the summer of 1936, after the stroke, he did some irri-

gating; he supervised all of the irrigating (p. 46) ; drove the

derrick team for about two hundred tons of hay (p. 53) ;

helped with the threshing and repairing of machinery; drove

the Plymouth car around the farm practically all summer

(p. 53).

After the stroke he spent his evenings listening to radio,

reading the papers, going to shows, entertainments and poli-

tical rallies, and always went to Blackfoot, about a mile from

their home, twice a week, on Wednesdays and Saturdays, to

the barber shop, and nearly always walked. At numerous times

he talked about his physical condition (p. 76) and stated that

he was better and went through movements to show how his

arm was better and how much stronger and better it was

(p. 77) , and told his boys in the presence of his wife that he

wanted to help them with the crops in the spring of 1937,

and planned to take a trip with his wife to California in June

as soon as their son was out of college (p. 76) . He stated he

was going to help the boys run the farm the coming summer

I (pp. 46, 53).

The day before his death the decedent, John D. Bowman,

hitched up some colts to break, and helped repair a sleigh

tongue (p. 53)

.

On the day of his death he got up and made the fires and

after breakfast went to the barnyard to help haul some hay

(p. 77).



There were a lot of birds around the barn and around

the feed lot adjoining the barn and in the loft of the barn

(p. 47) , and the decedent had a custom of shooting birds on

the farm (p. 76) . He shot birds at the place where they were

living in the winter of 1934 (p. 76) . There were two guns

in the house of decedent after the stroke, one a twenty-two

caliber and the other Exhibit 1. The twenty-two was always

in decedent's house and there were twenty-two shells always

there for it but the decedent never kept any shotgun shells in

the home at any time (p. 11) . The shotgun, Exhibit 1, was

not always in the house. It was loaned to members of the

family part of the time (p. 76) and it would be brought

back and put where it was always kept in the clothes closet

(p. 11) . It was in the decedent's house during the summer he

was recovering from the illness (p. 11) , but it was not there

for about six weeks before the decendent got it on the date

he was killed. It was at that time being used to shoot birds

on the feed yard adjoining the barn about every day (p. 79)

.

The decedent was at home alone from time to time and for

as much as three days at a time during his convalescence

(p. 77).

The gun. Exhibit 1, was found by the family of the

decedent on the Lincoln Creek divide in a damaged condition

and the stock thereof was afterward repaired (p. 50) . It is a

twelve-gauge Winchester repeating shotgun. After the de-

cedent's death it was bought by Barris from the Boyle Hard-

ware and was taken apart and cleaned. The works of the

gun were all gummed with hard grease and grit and it was

corroded (p. 52)

.



The day of his death, February 16, 1937, the decedent

was in his home at noon, ate a hearty dinner, helped his wife

clear up the table and wiped the dishes (p. 11). At about

1:30 he went to his son's home, which is about two hundred

or two hundred fifty feet northwest of the barn, and got the

shotgun. Exhibit 1 (p. 43). He appeared as he always did,

cheerful and smiled all the time. He was informed by his

daughter-in-law Verna A. Bowman that there were no shells

for the gun. As he left the house with the shotgun. Exhibit 1,

birds flew out of the trees and he motioned to the birds flying

around from the trees and said, "Birds" (p. 44).

About 1:30 or 2:30 in the afternoon he was seen just

inside the barnyard gate between the house of Bertram M.

Bowman and the barn taking the gun toward the house of

decedent (p. 46). About 2:30 the same afternoon he was at

the store of the Clegg Furniture Company in Blackfoot, Idaho,

and was seen by Brigham Horrocks who was in the merchan-

dising business under the name of Clegg Furniture Company.

Mr. Horrocks stated that decedent took two twelve-gauge

shotgun shells without waiting to be served. The decedent was

familiar with the store, having previously worked there for

:

about a month in the winter. When decedent showed Horrocks

the two shells Horrocks said to him, "You don't want them.

I

Leave them here," in a kidding way. Mr. Horrocks stated,

"I always kidded with him and he did with me," and that

"there was nothing unusual in this. He told me he was shoot-

ing birds and I knew it was his custom." The decendent said,

"I am going to shoot birds." It was the habit (p. 59) of

decedent to buy shotgun shells two or three at a time and



never more than a quarter's worth. This continued over a

period of five years or longer than that (p. 60) . It was the

custom of the decedent to wait upon himself if there was no

one ready to wait upon him (p. 60)

.

The decedent was next seen by Verna A. Bowman on

the day of his death about 3:30 going towards the barn. She

was at the chicken coop at that time and was in the process

of changing straw. There was no obstruction between the

chicken coop and the barn to prevent a person from seeing

from one place to the other (p. 45) . About five minutes from

the time she saw the decedent going toward the barn she

heard a shot coming from the direction of the barn and

noticed birds flying in all directions. She went to the house

and later heard another shot fired about twenty minutes after

the first shot. It also came from the direction of the barn

(pp. 45, 70) . There were two houses to the north of the barn

and she lived in the one to the south. The barn was south and

east of her house and the chicken coop diagonally to the south

between the barn and the house (p. 45)

.

Deceased was found in the hay loft of the barn back of

the sugar factory at Blackfoot, Idaho, at about 4:20 that

same afternoon by John N. Barnard (p. 61), who, in trac-

ing the source of the blood on the back of his horses which

had been kept in some stalls in the barn, went to the hay loft

and found Mr. Bowman lying on his back in the southwest

corner of the hay loft just under a window which had no glass

in it. He did not examine the body at that time but notified

one of the Bowman boys of the accident, who in turn notified



the sheriff and coroner. The sheriff, coroner. Jack Gibbs, two

of the Bowman boys and John Barnard went to the hay loft

of the barn. The body was in the same position and condition

when the coroner arrived (p. 61), about 5:00 o'clock (p. 65)

as it was when first seen by Barnard.

They found the body of the decedent lying on his back

in the southwest corner of the barn near the window, his

head to the southeast not quite in line with the barn (p. 62)

,

his feet were about one and a half feet from the west wall and

a little north—about four inches—of the southwest window

(pp. 54, 62).

The gun was lying diagonally across the body near the

feet. The butt was near the feet but not quite in line with the

body (p. 65) , and the muzzle pointed towards the left side of

his head and still lying on his chest (pp. 63, 65) . There was

an empty shell to the right of the body and another empty shell

which was extracted from the gun (p. 65). There was no

contrivance of any kind that could be used there at all (p. 65,

94) . The only thing found around the body was a piece of

2" X 4", which was three or four feet long with some alfalfa

leaves on it (p. 94) which was south and east of the body,

which had not been used for any purpose as the leaves had not

been disturbed (p. 95)

.

When the gun was picked up a little piece of flesh was in

I the muzzle and fell out when the sheriff tipped the gun up
and there were blood stains on the gun (p. 88) . The trigger

hammer was down pressing the firing-pin against the shell.

The decedent Bowman had been shot in the left side of



8

his face (p. 65) . Part of the chin and the jaw bone on the left

side had been shattered and the left side, extending to the eyes,

was pretty well torn away (p. dl) . The wound was the

entire length of the left side of the face from the chin clear

up past the eye (p. 68) . The eye was dropping out of the

socket a little. The cause of that was possibly a destruction

of the muscle of the cheek bone which was depressed. It was

in the area of the external wound on the left side of the face

in the same place (p. 81) . The left side of his face was pretty

well shot away indicating that the shot had probably been

under the left side of the chin where the shot first went in

(p. 66) . The roof of the mouth was in about five different

pieces (p. 85) still connected together by some connecting

tissue. They were not wholly destroyed, there being enough

to distinguish that it was the roof of the mouth (p. 86)

.

The upper plate of the decedent's artificial teeth was all

there and intact. The teeth were all there on the right side but

on the left some of the teeth were broken or chipped with

part of the teeth still in the plate (p. 101-102) . The lower

plate was broken to pieces in several places and lying with

the mangled part of his face (p. 89) . Neither plate was in his

mouth, the upper plate being to the left of his face and right

along the torn part of his face (p. 90)

.

There was a little of the skin of the mouth visible. There

was no flesh noticed down underneath the jaw (p. 73)

.

The ceiling was bare and a little to the left and over the

body was the pattern of a charge of shot that had entered the

roof at the juncture of the rafter and the cross-member (p. 88)

.



The shot pattern on the ceiling was almost directly over

decedent's feet (p. 56).

There were particles of flesh and blood where the shot

took effect in the barn and also particles of the blue denim

jumper embedded at that place and particles of flesh spattered

about. There were no other shots that took effect in the barn

(p. 72).

There were no marks or wounds on the right side of the

decedent's face except the right jaw bone which protruded

through the skin about three inches between the point of the

chin and the right ear. The head of the deceased was loose to

the touch and not solid (p. 85)

.

There was a friction mark or what might be called an

abrasion along the left side starting at the nipple and termin-

ating at the collar bone.

The body was taken to the mortuary. It was dressed in a

jumper (Exhibit 3) and sweater that was under the jumper,

usual underwear (p. 66) , khaki pants, shoes (Exhibit 2)

on with rubbers on over the shoes, and an ordinary gray work

shirt (p. 63) . The shoes (Exhibit 2) were in the same condi-

tion as they were at the time of the death of the decedent

(p. 57). The denim jumper had two holes in it. The shot

looked as if it had struck the left side of his coat and gone into

his chin and took the left side of his face off (p. 63). The
shot that went through his face would have to go through

the hole in his jumper before it hit his face (p. 93)

.

The barn is a frame structure about 28' x 46'. It has

a gable roof and tie arms across the rafters. It is about ten

feet from the hay loft floor to the tie arms. There are two
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windows in the west and two in the east and a large hay door

between the east two. The windows are between two to three

feet square and are about four and a half feet from the floor

of the loft of the barn and have no glass in them. The oat

granary is back of the barn on the west side down below the

southwest window with a lean-to roof to the south and the

doors to this granary were never very tight for birds would

always fly out of there. There was also a wheat granary where

seed wheat was stored and birds could get in there to some

extent (p. 48) . Access to the loft of the barn was gained by a

perpendicular ladder on the north side of the barn to reach

the loft (p. 54)

.

Melvin Bowman is 5' 6" tall, and compared with his

father John D. Bowman, there is not the fraction of an inch

difference in the two of them. Their build is practically the

same; their arms were about the same length (p. 54) ; they

are the same dimensions generally. Melvin Bowman stepped

down from the witness box in front of the jury and the

stock or butt of the gun, Exhibit 1, was placed on the floor

by his feet with the gun in nearly a perpendicular position to

the floor in line with his body with the muzzle or end of the

barrel pointing upward along side his left breast, and in this

position he was requested to reach the trigger with his finger,

but the witness was unable to reach the trigger with his finger

while the gun was in this position without bending his body.

With the gun in the same position he then bent over and

pressed the trigger with his finger and in so doing the muzzle

or end of the barrel extended above the top of the left shoulder

of the witness (p. 57).
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
The weight, sufficiency or probative force of the evidence

is for the jury.

Gold Hunter Mining ^ Smelting Co. vs. Johnson,

233 F. 849, 147 C. C. A. 523;

Supreme Lodge K. of P. vs. Beck, 181 U. S. 49;

45 L.Ed. 741.

The court is justified in directing a verdict only when the

testimony will not support any other verdict.

U. S. Fidelity ^ Guaranty Co. vs. Blake, 285 P.

449; certiorari denied, 43 S. C. Ct. 523; 262
U. S. 748;

Tipsword vs. Potter (Idaho), 174 Pac. 133;

Smith Booth Usher Co. vs. Detroit Copper Mining
Co. of Ariz., 220 F. 600, 136 C. C. A. 58;

Southern Pac. Co. vs. U. S., 22 F. 46, 137 C. C. A.

584;

McAlinden vs. St. Maries Hospital Ass'n, 156 Pac.

115, 28 Ida. 657;

Gamer vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., 76 F. (2d) 543

;

N. Y. Life Ins. Co. vs. Gamer, 303 U. S. S. Ct. 161,

82 L. Ed. 480-484.

In actions on double indemnity clause of life policy where

death of insured can be accounted for upon any reasonable

hypothesis other than suicide, case for jury.

Gamer vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., 76 F. (2d) 543;
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Conn. Gen. Life Ins. Co. vs. Maher, (C. C. A.) 70

F. (2d) 441-445.

In determining whether or not evidence is sufficient to

submit the case to the jury the court will assume that the jury

will take the view most favorable to opposing party.

N. Y. Life Ins. Co. vs. Gamer, 303 U. S. S. Ct.

161, 82 L. Ed. 480-484;

Gamer vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., l(i Fed. (2d) 543;

Gamer vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., 90 Fed. (2d) 817.

Inferences from evidence where fair minded men might
\

honestly differ as to the conclusion to be drawn from facts j

whether controverted or not, the question at issue is for the

jury.

Adams vs. Bunker Hill ^ Sullivan Min. Co.,
j

(Idaho), 89 Pac. 624;

Brown vs. Jaeger, (Idaho) 271 Pac. 464.

Evidence reasonably tending to prove, either directly or ,

\

by permissible inferences, the essential facts, is sufficient to '

sustain verdict of the jury.

Midland Valley R. Co. vs. Goble, 186 Pac. 723;

Missouri O. ^ G. Ry. Co. vs. Smith, 155 Pac. 233;

Ruerat vs. Stevens, (Conn.) 155 A. 219;

Brooks-Bischoffberger vs. Bischoffberger, (Me.)

149 A. 606;
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Buttrick vs. Snyder. 210 N. W. 311 (236 Mich.

300).

Facts from which another fact may be rationally inferred

are evidence of that fact.

Olberg vs. Kroehler, 1 F. (2d) 140;

Perry vs. Johnson Fruit Co., 243 N. W. 655
(Nebr.) ;

Nardone vs. Public Service Electric ^ Gas Co., 1 74

A. 745 (N. J.)

If there is any doubt as to the inferences to be drawn from

the evidence, it is for the jury.

Rhoads vs. Herbert, (Pa.) 148 A. 693-694.

Finding reasonably inferable from facts and conditions

directly proved is "legal evidence" and not mere conjecture.

Horrick vs. Bethlehem Mines Corp., 161 Atl. 75,

(307 Pa. 264).

The plaintiff is not bound to prove by eye-witnesses that

the injuries which caused insured's death were accidental, but

the fact may be shown by circumstantial evidence.

Wilkinson vs. Aetna Life Ins. Co., (111.) 88 N. E.

550;

U. S. Fidelity ^ Guaranty vs. Blum, (C. C. A.)
270 F. 946;

Cooky's Briefs on Insurance, Vol. 6, p. 5287;

Gamer vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., 76 F. (2d) 543.
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Experimental evidence depends for its value on the fact

that the experiment has been made when the conditions affect-

ing the result are as nearly as may be identical with those

existing at the time of and operating to produce the same

effect.

People vs. Woon Tuck Wo., (Cal.) 52 Pac. 833;

Maris vs. Crummey, (Cal.) 204 Pac. 259;

22 C. J. Page 758, Sec. 852;

American Bell Tel. Co. vs. Nat'l Tel. Mfg. Co. 109

F. 976.

ARGUMENT
While appellant makes eight separate assignments of error,

it is conceded in appellant's brief, at Page 9, that they are all

to the same effect, that there is no evidence to prove that

Bowman's death was accidental. Appellant devotes its entire

argument in its brief to assignment six.

"That the evidence was and is insufficient to sup-

port a verdict for the plaintiff in excess of $2,500
and accrued interest thereon for the reason that there

is no evidence that the insured John D. Bowman came

to his death by accidental means."

It will be observed by Page 19 of appellant's brief that

the argument made in support of assignment No. 6 is adopted

for the remaining assignments of error, to wit:

"1. The court erred in denying defendant's motion for

nonsuit at the close of the plaintiff's case.

"2. The court erred in denying defendant's motion

for a directed verdict at the close of all of the

evidence.
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"3. The court erred in denying defendant's motion for

a new trial.

"4. That the verdict of the jury was and is contrary to

the evidence.

"5. The judgment of the court entered hereein is con-

trary to the law.

"7. That the verdict of the jury is contrary to the evi-

dence for the reason that taking the evidence as

a whole, the physical facts are such that they con-

clusively establish that John D. Bowman's death

resulted from suicide.

"8. The court erred in entering judgment against the

defendant and in favor of plaintiff for the reason

that there is no evidence in the record to support

said judgment, and that said judgment is contrary

to the evidence and contrary to the law, and that

the evidence does not, as a matter of law, justify

a judgment in favor of plaintiff."

EVIDENCE SUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT VERDICT
The courts attention is called to the fact that on the day

of the death that the decedent's body was found at the south-

west window of the barn with his feet within about eighteen

inches of the west wall and the north side of the window, with

his head lying in a southeasterly direction, with one empty

shell lying near him and the other in the gun which was lying

on his body. There were two holes in the jumper decedent was

wearing in the left side near the breast and there was a wound

in the left side of his face showing that the shot had entered

under the left part of his chin and gone along the side of his

face and into the rafter and cross-pieces of the ceiling almost

directly over the feet of the decedent. The fact that there were

shreds and particles of the blue denim jumper worn by the
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decedent in the shot pattern above in the ceiling showed that

the shot which passed through the blue denim coat was the

shot that struck the left side of the decedent's face and entered

the ceiling above.

The fact that no other shot took effect in the barn leads

reasonably to the conclusion that the first shot was fired

through the open window, and that the second shot which

occurred some twenty minutes after the first shot, was the shot

that inflicted the wound in decedent's face and killed him.

The evidence further discloses there was no contrivance

around the body of the decedent by which the trigger could

have been pressed or touched by the decedent. The shape and

size of the shoes and rubbers over them. Exhibit 3, worn by

the decedent were such that the decedent could not have pressed

the trigger by his foot. Moreover, the record discloses (p. 57)

that Melvin Bowman, son of the decedent, who was practi-

cally the same height and build as the decedent, with arms

about the same length (p. 54) , made a demonstration of the

gun, Exhibit 1, before the jury to determine whether it would

be possible for the decedent to have pressed the trigger of the

gun with his finger and received the wound that was inflicted.

In making the demonstration, the stock or butt of the gun was

placed on the floor by his feet, with the gun in a perpendicular

position to the floor in line with his body with the muzzle or

end of the barrel pointing upward along the side of his left

breast, and while in this position he was unable to reach the

trigger with his finger without bending. He then bent over

and pressed the trigger with his finger and while he was in this
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position the muzzle or end of the barrel extended above the

top of his left shoulder (p. 57), which conclusively demon-

strated to the jury that the decedent could not have touched the

trigger of the gun with his finger, and from such proven facts

the jury could and would naturally infer that the gun was dis-

charged accidentally.

Evidence reasonably tending to prove, either directly or

by permissible inferences, the essential facts, is sufficient to

sustain a judgment.

Midland Valley Ry. Co. vs. Goble, 186 Pac. 723;

Missouri O. « G. Ry. Co. vs. Smith, 155 Pac. 233.

Facts from which another fact may be rationally inferred

are evidence of that fact.

Olberg vs. Kroehler, 1 F. (2d) 140.

In the case of Butrick vs. Snyder, (Mich.) 210 N. W.

311, the court in its opinion, commencing at the bottom of

p. 312, said:

"While it is true that a verdict may not rest upon bare

conjecture (Fuller vs. Ann Arbor Railroad Co., 141
Mich. 66, 104 N. W. 414), it is also true that a find-

ing as to a particular fact may be based upon inferences

fairly drawn from other facts established by proof.

Waidelich vs. Andros, 182 Mich. 374, 148 N. W.
824. The burden was on the plaintiff to prove that the

dynamite caps were left in the tool shed by defendant's

employees. If unable to furnish positive evidence of
this fact, he might establish it by circumstantial proof
of such a nature as would create a probability suffi-

ciently strong to lead the jury to conclude that such
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was the fact. Dunbar vs. McGill, 64 Mich. 676, 31

N. W. 578. The reasonable inferences which may be

drawn from the affirmative facts proven are evidence,

and not presumptions.

"Applying these rules to the proofs submitted, we are

of the opinion that the finding of the jury that the

dynamite was left in the shed by the stone company
did not rest on conjecture."

It is contended in the brief of appellant, at p. 18, that the

gun could not have been discharged accidentally, as shown by

a test made in the sheriff's office in the evening of the same day.

In this connection the record shows that the only test made

was by cocking the gun and dropping it several times to the

floor a distance of one foot to see if the jar would set the gun

off, and by such test the gun did not go off (p. 88)

.

The test made in the sheriff's office had no probative value

in determining whether or not the gun would go off by a

jar if it were dropped against the floor a greater distance than

one foot, or even one foot under different conditions.

Experimental evidence in corroboration of disproof de-

pends for its value on the fact that the experiment has been

made when the conditions affecting the result are as nearly

as may be identical with those existing at the time of and

operating to produce the particular effect.

People vs. Woon Tuck Wo, (Cal.) 52 Pac. 833;

Maris vs. Crummey, (Cal.) 204 Pac. 259.

The burden is on the party making the experiment to

show similarity of essential conditions.
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People vs. Hill, (Cal.) 56 Pac. 443;

People vs. Wagner, (Cal.) 155 Pac. 649;

22 C J. Sec. 852, pp. 758-9.

The appellant failed to show that the conditions v^rere

similar. The test was made in the sheriff's ofRce during winter

weather (p. 58) by cocking a hammerless gun and dropping it

to the floor a distance of one foot for several times. Whereas,

the evidence was that the body was found in the loft of a

barn, and it is not shown that the temperature was the same

in the loft of the barn as it was in the sheriff's office. Nor was

it shown that the floor of the sheriff's office was a bare floor

such as the floor of the loft of the barn; nor whether the floor

of the sheriff's office was carpeted or otherwise. It was not

shown whether the firing device was in contact in the same

manner or that the gun was loaded at the time of the test, or

that the firing parts were in contact in the same manner as

when the decedent met his death, or that the force was applied

at the same angle or same distance in dropping the gun. It is

apparent that the conditions were so absolutely dissimilar that

the evidence offered by the test made in the sheriff's office

would not show whether the gun would go off accidentally by

a jar from dropping the same when the accident occurred.

The record shows that there were two shots fired and that

only one load took effect in the barn, which naturally forces

the conclusion that the other shot must have been fired through

the open window where the body was later found. The jury

had a right to conclude that a man 5' 6" tall, firing a shot
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through the window, would be holding the butt of the gun

against his shoulder, which would be about five feet from the

floor, and holding the gun normally, waiting to fire or in the

process of raising it to shoot again through the window, the

butt of the gun would be from two to five feet from the

floor, and that dropping the butt of the gun from such a

distance would considerably more than double the force that

was applied by the sheriff in the test made.

The test so made by the sheriff, although offer€d in evi-

dence, was a matter for the jury to determine whether or not

it had sufficient weight to be of any importance in the case.

Courts may properly take judicial notice of facts that may

be regarded as forming part of the common knowledge of

every person of ordinary understanding and intelligence.

23 C J. 59 Sec. 1810;

23 C. J. 173 Sec. 2007.

The record discloses that the gun, Exhibit 1, was old and

that when it was taken apart after the death of decedent the

mechanism and works of the gun were all gummed with hard

grease and grit and that it was corroded (p. 52)

.

It is common knowledge that difference in temperature,

whether the device is clean or dirty, whether well oiled or

gummed, whether the force of contact is applied in the same

direction, or with the same force, makes a difference in the

operation or failure of operation of any mechanical device.

Every such person knows that when the mechanism of a gun

is gummed with hard grease, corroded, and full of grit, it will
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not work as accurately and properly when cold as when the

gun is warm.

It is contended by appellant in its brief on Page 1 8 that the

physical facts indicate that the deceased took his own life

because his face was blown from the inside outward and a

piece of flesh fell from the end of the gun when the sheriff

picked it up. It is submitted that such contention is fallacious

for the following reasons: It is apparent that where the gun

was discharged along the side of the decedent's face in such

close proximity that flesh would naturally be blown in many

directions, as particles of flesh were found in several places.

The record does not disclose as contended by appellant that

the face was blown from the inside outward. It was sought to

be shown by the appellant that the muzzle of the gun was

placed in the mouth of decedent, which was the theory upon

which the appellant tried its case. The appellant's expert. Dr.

Newton, in answer to a hypothetical question, stated (pp. 98,

99, 100) that he thought that the muzzle of the gun that

brought about the damages was probably in the decedent's

mouth at the time of the explosion, but the doctor stated that

he had only seen one case of gunshot wound and that was

in the face. He further stated that there would be an absolute

destruction of the tissue where the charge of the shot took

effect (p. 101), and stated that if the muzzle was in the mouth
it would have broken the upper plate, yet the evidence shows

that there was connecting tissues in the roof of the mouth
and that the upper plate was not broken although there were

some teeth chiped or broken (pp. 101-2) on the left side of

the plate, confirming the fact that the shot was along the left
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side of the face. Moreover, the lower plate was broken to

pieces (p. 89), showing that the shot entered under the left

part of the chin and went up along ihe left side of the face

rather than in the mouth.

It having been shown by the re<;ord that the decedent

could not have inflicted the wound ihat was found on his

person either by pressing the trigger with his finger or his foot

and that there were no contrivances found whereby he could

have done so, the inference therefrom v\'ould be that the injury

was not self-inflicted, but was accidental; such being the case,

it was properly submitted to the jury, as the jury, and they

alone, would have the right to draw thf inferences that would

flow from such evidence.

Supreme Lodge K. of P. vs. Beck, 181 U. S. 50,

45 L. Ed. 741.

In the above case, which involved death by gunshot
'

wound, the verdict was rendered for the plaintiff. The ques-

tion before the court was whether there was sufficient evidence

to sustain the verdict. On page 54 of the U. S. Report and

page/^6 of L. Ed. the court, having un(ier consideration the
[

question as to whether the deceased co\ild have discharged

the gun said:

"There was a dispute as to wheth(;r, in view of the

length of the gun and the shortmjss of his arm, he

could have reached the trigger without the aid of a

pencil or piece of wood, no trace oi which was found
or indeed looked for. Under those ( ircumstances it is

impossible to say that beyond dispute he committed
suicide. The discharge of the gun may as well have

happened from careless conduct of a drunken man as
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from an intentional act. At any rate, the question was
one of fact and the jury found that he did not com-
mit suicide and, after its finding has been approved by
the trial court and the court of appeals, we are not

justified in disturbing it."

In the case of Gamer vs. New York Life Ins. Co., Id F.

(2d) 543, the court, in the course of its opinion, said:

"The question for our consideration is whether or not

the death of insured can be accounted for upon any
reasonable hypothesis other than suicide. Conn. Gen.

Life Ins. Co. vs. Maher, (C. C. A. 70 F. (2d) 441-
445)."

"In determining whether or not the evidence is sufficient

to submit the case to the jury, we mast assume the

jury will take the view most favorabl2 to the appel-

lant. The evidence as to the means of the death is

entirely circumstantial."

After reviewing the evidence, the court concluded that the

circumstances where such that the jury should have been left

to determine whether or not the death was accidental and

reversed the lower court. Upon re-trial judgment- was rendered

in favor of the plaintiff and affirmed by this court in the case

of Gamer vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., 90 F. (2d) 817, and was

taken to the Supreme court of the United States and reported

in the case of New York Life Ins. Co. vs. Gamer 303 U. S. S.

Ct. 161, 82 L. Ed. 480-484. In the course of its opinion, the

Supreme Court said:

"The Circuit Court of Appeals has twice held the
evidence sufficient to sustain a verdict for plaintiff,

and found that the facts brought forward at the second
trial are not substantially different from those pre-
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sented on the first appeal. There is no substantial

controversy as to the principal evidentiary circum-

stances, upon which depends decision of controlling

issue whether the death of insured was accidental. As
we are of the opinion that the trial court erred in

giving the challenged instruction, the judgment is

therefore reversed; case remanded to district court

where another trial may be had. We refrain from

discussion of the evidence. We find it is sufficient to

sustain a verdict for or against either party. Defendant

was not entitled to a mandatory instruction."

THERE WAS NO MOTIVE FOR
SELF-DESTRUCTION

It is contended by appellant, at page 1 7, that motive was

not lacking, and in support of such contention it cites only a

part of the evidence and draws an unreasonable inference

from the fact that the decedent had suffered a stroke and had

purchased certain shells on the day of the accident to shoot

sparrows. The record discloses that the decedent sustained a

stroke on December 14, 1935, about fourteen months prior

to the date of his death, which confined him to his bed for

about six or seven weeks, and after which he was up and

around and continued to improve until the day of his death

(p. 75) . At the time of his death his physical condition was

perfect with the exception of an impediment to his speech and

the fact that he couldn't grasp things in his right hand as he

did before the stroke (p. 47) ; that he had recovered to such

an extent that he was doing the usual and ordinary things

around the farm and home (p. 78) , which included his going

to the loft of the barn to feed hay long prior to the date of his
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death, and that he was very pleased with his recovery (p. 76)

and frequently went through movements to show how much

stronger and better he was (p. 11), and was of a cheerful

disposition, enjoyed his home life with his wife with whom

he had been happily married for a long period of time, and

was planning things that he was to do in the future on the

farm and a trip that was to be taken with his wife (p. Id) ; that

on the day of the accident he acted just the same as he always

had acted; that his financial condition was good, he didn't

owe any debts; that there was nothing unusual about his buy-

ing two shells on the date in question as it was his custom and

practice, over a period of years, to buy shells in quantities of

two, three, and not to exceed five, for the purpose of shooting

sparrows; that it was not unusual for him to wait upon him-

self at the store; that it was his practice to shoot sparrows on

the farm and never to keep any shotgun shells around the

house. And the evidence discolses that the granary lying under-

neath the window where the body was found, as well as

the loft of the barn, was usually infested with large flocks of

birds; that there was grain in the granary which was a lean-to

and adjoined right under where the window was located;

that he had been left at home alone on different occasions when
the shotgun was in the house as well as a twenty-two rifle, one

time as long as three days and nights, while he was convalesc-

ing and when he was not in as good physical condition as he

was at the time of his death. If he had desired to commit suicide

on account of his physical condition it is reasonable to infer

that he would likely have done so when his wife was away

from home in Utah and before he had made such a good
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recovery (p. 11) . Further, he was capable of handling a gun

in December because he killed a stray dog on the premises with

the twenty-two. The record further discloses that birds were

bothersome because they were shot on the feed yard prior to

the date of his death (p. 49) ; in fact, he had shot birds upon

the farm in the winter of 1934 and had done so on their farm

at Riverside (p. l(i) for a period of years before moving to

Blackfoot. The record shows that he was not despondent

(p. 54).

In the face of this record, it is submitted that not only

was there no reason for his desiring to take his own life, but

on the contrary there was every reason why he should desire

to live. A significant fact is that when the decedent was going

to the barn just before the first shot was fired he was seen by

Verna Bowman who was at the chicken coop near the barn,

and it is fair to infer that decedent could likewise have seen

her. The record shows that it was twenty minutes between the

first and second shots and that the shot by which the decedent

was killed was the second shot. Isn't it reasonable to infer that

if the decedent had intended to commit suicide that he would

not have fired a shot at the birds through the window of the

barn and waited twenty minutes then to have shot himself, as

he knew that the first shot would naturally attract attention.

When the first shot was fired birds flew in all directions and it

could be reasonably inferred that he was waiting for part of

the birds to come back to get into the granary, and, while he

was so waiting, the gun was accidentally discharged either by

the gun slipping from his hand and the butt striking on the

floor with such force or under such conditions that it dis-
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charged, or that the mechanism of the gun did not properly

function and ft was discharged, accidentally killing the

decedent.

CASES CITED BY APPELLANT
It will be obesrved from an examination of the cases cited

by appellant in support of the proposition that the evidence

in the instant case is insufficient to support the verdict only

a part of the cases so cited involve death by firearms. In order

to show the dissimilarity we will briefly state the facts in such

cases.

In the case of Frankel vs. N. Y. Life Ins. Co., 51 Fed.

(2d) 933, Frankel was found unconscious on the floor at the

rear end of the store with a gunshot wound in his head, which

had entered over the left ear and emerged slightly higher on

the right side. He was lying in a curved position, a Colt's

automatic pistol beside him in a curve near the left hand, and

an empty shell from the pistol on the floor at his back. Powder

burns were found on the left side of his head indicating the

pistol was fired at close range. He was left-handed. To fire the

pistol it was necessary to have the side safety down, grip the

handle and pull the trigger. The pistol could not be discharged

by falling or a blow. The pistol had some blood on it.

\ Held the only evidence to support the theory of accident

'consisted of circumstances tending to show the insured had a

:omposed mental attitude and apparently no motive for self-

iestruction.

It will be observed no evidence was introduced to show

;:hat it was impossible for Frankel to shoot himself.
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In the case of New York Life Ins. Co. vs. Anderson, 66

Fed. 707, the facts are: Insured was found early in the morn-

ing in the basement of the store where he worked, lying some-

what on his right side, with a bullet hole in his right temple

about which there were powder burns and singed hair, and a

twenty-two rifle with the barrel pointing to the feet by his

right side; that the insured was right-handed; had no married

or financial troubles but was a heavy drinker and was quarrel-

some only when drinking, and had been threatened with

discharge the next time he got drunk; that he was drunk the

day before and had previously talked of suicide to end his

troubles; that the store had not been disturbed; insured's

clothes were in order; there was no sign that he had slipped.

The rifle belonged to another employee and was kept at

the store.

Held: That the evidence was compatible only with the

hypothesis of suicide with rifle. It will be observed that he had

talked of suicide and that there was nothing in this case to

show the impossibility of committing suicide or any reason

why the employee would be in the basement with the twenty-

two rifle.

In the case of Fidelity and Casualty Co. of N. Y. vs.

Driver, 79 Fed. (2d) 713, insured was killed by a shotgun

discharged into his breast while hunting doves. Insurance

company claimed suicide; widow alleged accidental death.

Held the facts were sufficient to go to the jury and the jury

found for the plaintiff. The case was appealed to the Circuit

Court. It was reversed on appeal because of a faulty instruction
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ind not because of insufficiency of the evidence. This case

nstcad of being an authority for the appellant in suport of

ts assignment of error is an authority in support of the

ippcllee's contentions.

In the case of N. Y. Life Ins. Co. vs. Alman. 22 Fed. (2d)

9S. the facts briefly are: Dr. Alman was found dead in his

bedroom early in the morning. He was lying on his back diag-

Dnally across the bed with a gunshot wound about one inch

below his left nipple. His left foot was on the floor and his

right foot was just about touching the floor. He was in his

night shirt, and his double-barrel shotgun with the butt on

'.he floor near the right foot was leaning against the left knee.

He had committed an indiscretion with his neighbor's wife a

ihort time before and had been threatened by her husband with

2xposure. The jury rendered a verdict for the plaintiff and

the case was appealed. The court held:

"On appeal the plaintiff contends that it was
showed by circumstances in evidence to be impossi-

ble that Dr. Alman could have fired the fatal shot

because of the position of the gun, the range and size

of the wound, and the lack of powder marks. It is

not denied that he could have reached the trigger either

with his hand or foot ( italics ours) ; but it is said that,

if he had done either, the gun would not have been

between his legs, but would have fallen on the left of

his left knee. The reason urged for the conclusion is

that the physician who examined the body testified

the wound ranged not only upward but towards the

right shoulder. Arguments of this kind have very

little weight, especially in the absence of reliable exam-
ination. No definite conclusion can be safely based

upon the superficial examination that was made. But
assuming that the wound ranged to the left of its
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i
entrance such a result could have been produced by

placing the butt sidewise on the floor with the left foot

on it to hold it in place and the trigger on the right

side where the right foot would be. In this way the

bend in the stock would throw the muzzle to the left

and after being fired it would naturally come to rest

between the legs. Dr. Alman, the insured was six feet

in height, weighed two hundred pounds; the gun

barrel was twenty-eight inches."

It is important to observe that in this case it was not

denied that he could have reached the trigger with either his

hand or his foot, which is just the opposite in respect to facts

in the present case, for the reason it was demonstrated to

the jury that it would be impossible for the decedent Bowman

in the present case to have reached the trigger with his hand

or to have pressed the trigger with his foot, because of the

size of the shoes and trigger guard and the further fact there

was considerable difference in the size of Dr. Alman and Mr.

Bowman, and in the Alman case there was a good motive

established why he would want to take his own life, which,

of course, is absent in the present case.

In the case of Aetna Life Ins. Co. vs. Tooley, 1 6 Fed. (2d)
'

243, the facts are the body of the insured, shot through the

temple, was found in a car which he had driven alone from his
\

home and stopped a short distance away but out of sight from,

it. The bullet was of the caliber of his own revolver, not self-

cocking, which lay on the seat and had recently been fired.

There were powder burns in and close around the wound.

There was no robbery or evidence of a struggle or an accident.

He had for some time previously been in ill health, depressed
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ind despondent, though his business was prosperous and his

lome hfe pleasant. There was no evidence that it was impos-

iblc for the deceased to take his own Hfe,

In the case of N. Y. Life Ins. Co. vs. Trimble. 69 Fed.

< ^dj 849. the facts briefly are that insured, who was right-

landed. was found, shot through the head from the right to

eft. with powder burns on the right temple and an automatic

pistol gripped in his right hand: that the forefinger was not

esting on tlie trigger, but that all lour fingers were clasped

iround the handle; that the clip or magazine of the pistol

.vason the bed about eighteen inches away from the right side

pf and between the body and the foot of the bed; that the

:Iip could not be released from the pistol with the forefinger

Arhile one had a firm grip on the handle; that two days before

he fifteenth of the month and on the day of his death insured

^'nt in his semi-monthly statement of his salary and remained

It the office after his co-workers had left for the day. which

.vas the last time he was seen alive; that there were no signs

:»f struggle, nor had any of his personal effects been inter-

cred with or taken away. It is very apparent that the facts

n this case do not resemble in any way the facts as disclosed

•^y the record in ihc present case.

In the case of Sugar vs. Industrial Commission of Utah.

^5 Pac. (2d) 311, the facts briefly are that the decedent was
I.

"ound in a store in which he worked, shot ihrougli the heart.

i\s body was found on the floor behind a counter by persons

ater entering the store. A .38 revolver was found on the

ounter at or near where he fell. An empty shell therein cor-
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responded with the ball taken from his body. Powder burns

were found on the clothing of the deceased and a powder

burn on the counter at or near where the gun was lying. One

of the deceased's pockets was pulled inside out when he was

found. The cash register drawer was about half an inch

open. The drawers in the safe were partly pulled out. On the

floor beside him was found his wallet and two black tin

cash boxes, opened or partly opened, and appearing to have

been gone through. There were some insurance policies in

one of the boxes and papers standing up in the drawers that

were pulled out. There was evidence that the deceased's life

was heavily insured, to a total of $43,000, over half of which

was procured within a few months before his death, and

$20,000 additional insurance had been recently applied for

and refused by the insurance company. The Industrial Com-

mission found from all the evidence that the death was by

suicide rather than by accident. Appeal was taken to the

Supreme Court. Held:

"We think there is sufficient evidence to sustain

the findings made by the commission. Certainly, it

does not compel the opposite theory as matter of law.

Granting that there is some evidence or inference

favoring the applicant's theory, yet the commission

was not bound to adopt that theory. It was the com-

'

mission's duty to decide between the opposing:
theories and inferences.

"Whether Industrial Commission should have in

law arrived at conclusion of fact different from that:

at which it did arrive from the evidence, presents

question of law reviewable by Supreme Court only

when it is claimed that commission could only arrive
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at one conclusion from the evidence, and that it found

contrary to the inevitable conclusion.

"At bar that is the very question in dispute and

found against by the commission."

'hat there were two conflicting theories and inferences that

3uld be drawn from the evidence and the commission was

t liberty to draw whichever conclusion or inference they

lought proper.

It is clear that the foregoing case not only does not support

le contention of appellant in this case but is directly in point

D far as the position of appellee is concerned because of the

act that the only thing that the court decided in the Utah case

^as that there was ample evidence to justify the finding that

le Industrial Accident Commission made and for that reason

le order of the commission was affirmed.

In the case of Aetna Life Ins. Co. vs. Alsobrook, 299

'. W. 743, the facts briefly are: In action on life insurance

olicy evidence showing that barrel of shot gun must have

een in insured's mouth at time it was fired; his face was

loody and a Mr. Lee who discovered him, did not at first

xognize him although well acquainted with him. He made

n examination and found that Alsobrook was shot in the

louth, the shot ranging from roof toward the back of head,

'ithout any visible wounds or powder burns on the outside

f his face anywhere. The skull had been torn to pieces by

le shot; the back of his head being mushy and soft; that

ie skin on the outside of the head was not broken, none of

le shot passing through the head to the outside. He was shot
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with a double-barrel shotgun, the right-hand barrel having

been fired, the other barrel being cocked.

In the case of Fidelity Mutual Life Ins. Co. vs. Wilson,

2 S. W. (2d) 80, the facts briefly are: That insured was

wounded in the mouth with a revolver and he was found in a

locked hotel room; that the shooting occurred subsequent to a

period of treatment at hospital for excessive drinking; that he

was badly involved financially. By no stretch of the imagina-

tion can we see how this case serves any helpful purpose and

clearly does not support the assignments of error made in the

present case for the reason of the marked dissimilarity in the

facts.

In the case of Burkett vs. New York Life Ins. Co., 56

F. (2d) 105, the evidence as stated in the case was:

The insured's body was found lying across the

cement pavement about three and a half feet from
the door through which he had gone in leaving the

store. The top of his head from just above his right

ear was blown off. Blood and some of his brains were

found on the roof, which was about eight feet high.

The gun was lying on the walk about three feet from

deceased's body; the butt being towards the body. It

contained an exploded shell in the right-hand barrel.

The shell was of a kind kept in the store for sale. The
gun was a cheap one. To shoot it the hammer had to

be cocked and the trigger pulled. It was usual for Mr.

Jennings to keep it unloaded. He stated that he thought

it was not loaded. In the rear of the store next to the

concrete walk was a small open space and beyond that

thick bushes and trees. Several witnesses testified that

there were powder burns on the face of the deceased

near the part that was blown off, and that there was

a ring on the face like the mark of a gun barrel. Other

f
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witnesses, including the undertaker who prepared the

body for burial, testified that they did not see powder
burns or the mark of a gun barrel on his face. The
undertaker said, "There might have been some there

I did not sec." A gun would have to be very close,

I
less than one foot, to one's face when fired to make
powder burns on the skin. A man of the height of

the insured, about five feet and seven inches, could

fire the gun while in a standing position, the muzzle

being so placed with reference to his person that the

shot would produce the results shown by the evidence.

It will be observed that there was testimony in the case

hat the insured could fire the gun while in a standing position,

he muzzle being placed with reference to his person that the

hot would produce the result shown by the evidence. It will
i

e noted also that the wound inflicted was above the right

ar, which would be at least six inches above the point of the

bin, where the evidence showed the load entered the face of

ie decedent in the instant case, and a greater distance above

he holes in the jumper.

In view of the fact that the other cases cited by appellant

not involve firearms and are based upon facts so entirely

ifferent from the facts in this record, it is thought that it

i^ill not aid the court to make an analysis of such cases herein.

Inasmuch as the appellant has only submitted argument in

ipport of assignment six and adopts such argument in sup-

ort of its contention that the court erred as set forth in the

ther assignments, we will adopt the argument made herein

1 answer to all appellant's assignments of error.
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1
In conclusion it is submitted that the evidence in this case

and the reasonable inferences to be drawn therefrom were

amply sufficient to support the verdict, and that the court did

not err in denying appellant's motion for nonsuit and directed

verdict. It is further submitted that the said verdict is not

contrary to the evidence and the judgment entered thereon is

not contrary to law. and that the court did not err in denying

the motion for a new trial, and that accordingly the judgment

entered herein should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

T. D. Jones

c. w. pomeroy

Ralph H. Jones
Attorneys for Appellee



No.

3n tljp BnUri §>tnUB

Oltrrmt (Banvt af AppmU
3ot tl|? Nintij (Etrruit.

f

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee of the Estate of Globe

Drug Company, Inc., Bankrupt,

Complainant,

vs.

LEW O. STELZNER and T. E. KLIPSTEIN,

Defendants.

T. E. KLIPSTEIN,
Appellant,

vs.

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee in Bankruptcy of the

Estate of Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

Appellee.

©ranarrtpt of iA^avh
Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Northern Division.

FILED

ft.Ajl: ?. O'S RirM,.

Parker & Baird Company, Law Printers, Los Angeles.



fl



No.

Jin tl|p Uuitrii §tatrB

(Eirrutt (Eourt of A^tppab
¥ar tlj^ 5fintl| (Eirrutl.

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee of the Estate of Globe

Drug Company, Inc., Bankrupt,

Complainant,

vs.

LEW O. STELZXER and T. E. KLIPSTEIN,

Defendants.

T. E. KLIPSTEIN,
Appellant,

vs.

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee in Bankruptcy of the

Estate of Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

Appellee.

©ransrrtpt of Swnrti
Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Northern Division.

Parker & Baird Company, Law Printers, Los Angeles.





'< !aa4 • ^. .-« A\m. A..a>^l « b4 tea !! IteX

f«*^ r«' '• •- ^
'•

/I

II

16

71



PAGE

Praecipe, Dated July 25, 1938 94

Praecipe, Filed August 2, 1938 95

Statement of Evidence 38

Testimony on Behalf of Plaintiff:

Landes, C. H.

—

Direct examination 39

Pawson, Richard A.

—

Direct examination 45

Stelzner, Lew O.

—

Direct examination 52

Testimony on Behalf of Defendant:

Klipstein, T. E.

—

Direct examination 60

Sears, Herbert B.

—

Direct examination 64

Plaintiff's Exhibit 1—List of 15 Checks 43

Plaintiff's Exhibit 4—Several Pages of Note Paper Contain-

ing Interest Payments 48

Plaintiff's Exhibit 6—Stubs From Which Certificate of Stock

Had Been Detached Containing Notations 55

Plaintiff's Exhibit 8—Summary of Debts and Assets of the

Bankrupt 57

Defendants' Exhibit A—Promissory Note 63

Defendants' Exhibit B—Telegram, Dated October 21, 1937.... 64

Stipulation for Filing of Amended Bill of Complaint 4

Stipulation of May 24, 1938, Regarding Certain Omissions

From Transcript 93

Stipulation for Order of Severance 67

Trial Brief of Defendant Klipstein Summary of Points Discussed 23

Undertaking on Appeal 90

Waiver of Jury 20



Names and Addresses of Attorneys.

For Appellant:
'^

HOMER JOHNSTONE, Esq.,

SIDNEY H. WYSE, Esq.,

801 Bartlett Building,

Los Angeles, California.

For Appellee:

ARTHUR L. SHANNON, Esq.,

CLARENCE A. SHUEY, Esq.,

1240 Merchants Exchange Building,

San Francisco, California.



IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,
NORTHERN DIVISION

—ooOoo

—

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee of

the Estate of Globe Drug Company,

Inc., Bankrupt,

Complainant,

vs.

LEW O. STELZNER and T.

KILPSTEIN,
E.

No. E-4

In Equity

CITATION

Defendants.

THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES:

To HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee in Bankruptcy of

the Estate of Globe Drug Company, Inc., Greetings:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and appear

in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, in the City of San Francisco, State of

California, thirty days from and after the date of this

citation, pursuant to an appeal allowed and filed in the

office of the Clerk of the District Court of the United

States for the Southern District of California, from a de-

cree in said cause, filed and entered on the 29th day of

December, 1937, as modified and amended by an order

of said Court made and entered the 2nd day of April,



1938. wherein T. E. Klipstein is appellant and you are

appellee, to show cause, if any there be, why the decree

rendered against said appellant as in said appeal men-

tioned should not be corrected, and wdiy speedy justice

should not be done the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS, THE HONORABLE LEON R. YANK-
WICH, JUDGE OF THE UNITED STATES DIS-

TRICT COURT FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT

OF CALIFORNIA, this 25th day of April, 1938.

Leon R. Yankwich

Judge of the United States District Court for the

Southern District of California

Due, personal service of the within citation, by copy,

is hereby admitted this 29th day of April, 1938.

A. L. Shannon

C, A. Shuey

Attorneys for Appellee

Due, personal service of the appellant T. E. Klipstein's

assignment of errors heretofore filed in the above action,

by copy, is hereby admitted this 29th day of April, 1938.

A. L. Shannon

C. A. Shuey

Attorneys for Appellee

[Endorsed] : Filed May 3, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By Edmund L. Smith, Deputy Clerk.



[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION FOR FILING OF AMENDED
BILL OF COMPLAINT

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between the

above named complainant and the above named defend-

ant, T. E. KHpstein, that the foregoing Amended Bill

of Complaint attached hereto may be filed herein as of

course; and it is further stipulated that the Answer to

the original Bill of Complaint heretofore filed herein by

said defendant, T. E. KHpstein, be considered in all re-

spects as his Answer to said Amended Bill of Complaint;

it being expressly understood by and between the parties

to this stipulation that the said defendant, T. E. KHpstein,

reserves the right to assert each and every defense avail-

able to him under his Answer as originally filed, and any

and all objections to the legal sufficiency of said BiU of

Complaint, and is not to be deemed to have waived any \

such matter of defense hereby.

Dated: December 18, 1936.

Clarence A. Shuey '

Arthur L. Shannon

Attorneys for Complainant
I

HOMER JOHNSTONE and

SIDNEY H. WYSE
By Homer Johnstone

Attorneys for Defendant T. E. KHpstein

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 24, 1936. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.



IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,
NORTHERN DIVISION

—ooOoo

—

No. E4

IN EQUITY

AMENDED
BILL OF

COMPLAINT

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee of

the Estate of Globe Drug Company,

Inc., Bankrupt,

Complainant,

vs.

LEW O. STELZNER and T. E.

KLIPSTEIN,

Defendants.

—ooOoo

—

TO THE HONORABLE DISTRICT COURT OF
THE UNITED STATES, IN AND FOR THE
NORTHERN DIVISION OF THE SOUTHERN
DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA:

Now comes the above named complainant and files here-

in his amended bill of complaint of course as follows, to

wit:

I.

In or about the month of April, 1936, Globe Drug Com-
pany, Inc., was adjudicated a bankrupt by an order duly

made and entered by the above entitled court, and there-

after, on April 18, 1936, by proceedings duly had in the

administration of said bankrupt's estate, plaintiff was

appointed as trustee of said estate, thereupon duly quali-



fied as such, and ever since has been and now is the duly

appointed, quaHfied, and acting trustee of the estate of

said bankrupt.

11.

At all times herein mentioned said Globe Drug Com-

pany, Inc. was a corporation duly organized and existing

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Cali-

fornia; at all of such times Lew O. Stelzner was a stock-

holder, the president, and one of the members of the

board of directors of said corporation, and T. E. Klip-

stein was a stockholder, the vice-president, and one of the

members of the board of directors of said corporation.

III.

In about the year 1928 the defendants Lew O. Stelzner

and T. E. Klipstein borrowed the sum of $17,000.00 from

the Bank of America, and in consideration of such loan

executed to such bank their personal joint and several

promissory note for the same; said sum of $17,000.00

was thereupon used by said defendants for the purpose

of purchasing certain issued and outstanding shares of

the Globe Drug Company, Inc., for their own personal

and individual account.

IV.

During the period of time from the execution of said

note up to October 19, 1935, various payments were made

on account of the principal and interest of said note,

aggregating a sum in excess of $12,200.00; all such pay-

ments were made by, and directly from and with the

funds of, said corporation; at all of the times when said

payments were made as aforesaid, said corporation owed

various sums of money to various creditors, and was in



an insolvent condition; no consideration whatever was

ever received by said corporation for or in connection with

said payments; said payments were made as aforesaid

with the purpose and intent on the part of said corpora-

tion, and of said defendants, of hindering, delaying, and

defrauding said creditors; complainant does not know the

true aggregate amount of the sums so paid out as afore-

said, and it is therefore necessary that defendants render

to this court a true and accurate account thereof.

V.

On or about October 19, 1935, there remained unpaid

on said promissory note a balance of $4,800.00; on or

about said date defendants, acting as directors and officers

of said corporation, caused to be executed to said Bank

of America the promissory note of said corporation in

the sum of $4,800.00; said note was thereupon accepted

by said bank in payment of the balance due on said promis-

sory note of the defendants; said corporation received no

consideration for the execution of the said note, either

directly or indirectly.

VI.

Shortly after the execution of said last mentioned

promissory note, the defendant Klipstein purchased the

same from said bank and thereupon, and on October 19,

1935, commenced an action in the Superior Court of the

State of California, in and for the County of Kern, to

recover from said corporation the amount alleged by him

to have been so paid in the purchase of said note; there-

after the defendants fraudulently permitted said corpora-

tion to suffer a default judgment to be entered in said

action against it for the sum of $5,364.00; thereafter exe-

cution was issued on said judgment, pursuant to which
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all of the properties and assets of said corporation were

sold at public auction by the sheriff of said county. On

information and belief, plaintiff alleges that the value of

said property so sold upon execution was the sum of

$5,000.00.

VII.

At the time said action was commenced and said execu-

tion sale was effected as aforesaid, said corporation owed

various sums of money to various creditors, and was in-

solvent; said defendants, acting in concert and conspiracy

with one another, caused said action to be commenced and

said execution sale to be effected, with the purpose and

intent of hindering, delaying, and defrauding the creditors

of said corporation.

VIII.

The above mentioned creditors of said corporation have

duly proved their claims in said bankruptcy proceedings;

there are not sufficient assets in the bankrupt's estate with

which to pay such claims in full, and unless said payments

made by said corporation, and said property, or its value,

are restored to the bankrupt's estate, the claims of said

creditors will remain unsatisfied.

For a separate, further, and second cause of action,

complainant alleges that:

I.

All of the allegations and statements set forth in para-

graphs I, II and III of the foregoing first cause of action

are hereby incorporated in this second cause of action as

if fully set forth herein.
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Within three years ininiechately prior to ])laintifT's ap-

pointment and (|ualilication as snch trn^tee as aforesaid,

various payments were made on aeconnt of the principal

and interest of said note, a^gre^atini; tlie sum of $5,-

132.71 ; all of such i)aymcnts were made with funds with-

drawn from the assets of said corporation at the willful

instigation, authorization, and direction of said defend-

ants, acting as ofhcers and directors of said corporation,

and while they were stockholders thereof; at said times

said corporation had no surplus or net i)rofits of any kind

out of which to ])ay dividends on its shares, nor was

said corporation then in the process of winding up or

dissolution: nor were said withdrawals made upon the

vote or written consent of the holders of any of the

shares of said corporation other than the shares then

held by the defendants, nor did the Commissioner of

Corporations of the State of California ever issue any

permit authorizing such withdrawals: therefore, the

witlidrawals of the funds and assets of said corporation

as aforesaid were in violation of Section 363 of the Civil

Code of the State of California, and of Section 309 of

said code as it existed prior to the adoption of said Sec-

tion 363: at all of the times when said funds and assets

were withdrawn as aforesaid, said cori)oration owed to

various creditors sums of money which, as plaintiff is in-

formed and believes, aggregated in excess of the aggre-

gate of the sums so withdrawn as aforesaid.



10

III.

The above mentioned creditors of said corporation have

duly proved their claims in said bankruptcy proceedings;

there are not sufficient assets in the bankrupt's estate with

which to pay such claims in full, and unless said payments

and withdrawals are restored to the bankrupt's estate,

the claims of said creditors will remain unsatisfied.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, and inasmuch

as complainant is remediless, according to the strict rule

of common law, and can only have relief in a court of

equity where matters of this nature are cognizable, said

complainant prays that said defendants, and each of them,

be required, according to his best and utmost knowledge,

remembrance, information, and belief, to make a full,

true, and correct answer to this amended bill of com-

plaint, but not under oath, or affirmation, the benefit of

which is hereby expressly waived; that this court direct

said defendants to render herein a true and accurate ac-

count of the sums of money paid out and withdrawn as

hereinbefore alleged; and that this court render a decree

against said defendants, and each of them, for such sums

of money and the value of such property as is found to

have been paid out by, and taken or withdrawn from,

the bankrupt corporation as aforesaid, and for such other

and further relief as to the court may seem meet and

proper.

Clarence A. Shuey

Arthur L. Shannon

Attorneys for Complainant

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 24, 1936. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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(Title of District Court and Cause.]

AXSWKR

Climes now T. I*'.. Klii)stcin. one ni the defendants in

the abovc-entiiled action, and in answer to plaintitY's bill

of complaint on lile herein, and in his own behalf and

not for any other defendant, admits, denies and allej^es

as follows:

I.

Admits tlie allej^atittns of paragrapli I of plaintiff's bill

of complaint.

II.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph 11 of

plaintiff's bill of complaint, except that defendant admits

that, at all times therein mentioned, the Globe Drug Com-

l)aiiy. Inc., was a corporation duly organized and existing

under and by virtue of the Laws of the State of Cali-

fornia.

HI.

Denies each and every allc,elation of paragraph III of

plaintiff's bill of complaint, except that defendant admits

that on or about the 3rd day of January, 1928, Lew O.

Stelzner borrowed the sum of $17,000.00 from the Bank

of America, or its predeces.sor bank at Rakersheld, Cali-

fornia: that in consideration for said loan said Lew O.

Stelzner executed his promissory note to said bank; that

defendant affixed his signature on and to the said note:

but in this connection defendant alleges that he received

no consideration of any description at the time of the

signing of said note or at any time thereafter, and that

no consideration whatever passed to this defendant for

his said signature.
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IV.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph IV of

plaintiff's bill of complaint, except that defendant admits

that certain payments were made on the said note; the

amount and extent and dates of such payments being un-

known to this defendant.

V.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph V of

plaintiff's bill of complaint, except that defendant admits

that on or about the 19th day of October, 1935, there

was a balance unpaid on the said promissory note, the

exact amount thereof being unknown to defendant; and

defendant further admits that the Bank of America re-

ceived a note from said corporation on or about said date,

VI.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph VI of

plaintiff's bill of complaint, except that defendant admits

that on or about the 19th day of October, 1935, an action

was filed by him in the Superior Court of the State of

California, in and for the County of Kern, against the

said corporation.

VII.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph VII of

plaintiff's bill of complaint.

VIII.

Alleges that he has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations

of paragraph VIII of plaintiff's bill of complaint, and

I
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l)lacing- his denial on that ground denies each and every

allegation of said paragraph.

IX.

Answering paragraph I of plaintiff's second cause of

action, defendant hereby refers to and incorporates herein

as if fully set out hereinafter, all of paragraphs I, II and

III of this answer.

X.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph II of

plaintiff's second cause of action contained in plaintiff's

said bill of complaint.

XL

Alleges that he has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations

of paragraph III of plaintiff's second cause of action,

and placing his denial on that ground denies each and

every allegation of said paragraph.

AS A FURTHER SEPARATE AND DISTINCT
DEFENSE TO PLAINTIFF'S BILL OF COM-
PLAINT, Defendant alleges:

I.

That the i)laintiff is estopped from, and should not be

permitted to say that this defendant is liable for any with-

drawals from the funds of said Globe Drug Company,

Inc., for the reason that any and all transaction or trans-

actions by and between this defendant and the said alleged

bankrupt were initiated and maintained at the solicitation
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of the said bankrupt and for the purpose of enabling

it to carry on its business affairs, and in order to pro-

cure funds with which to protect and save its creditors

from imminent loss and losses with which they were con-

fronted at the time of the aforementioned transactions,

and that the said creditors received all the benefits there-

of; that this defendant received no consideration or bene-

fit or benefits whatsoever from any of such transactions,

but in fact sustained personally heavy monetary losses by

reason thereof.

AS A FURTHER SEPARATE AND DISTINCT

DEFENSE TO PLAINTIFF'S BILL OF COM-

PLAINT, Defendant alleges:

L

That as to any withdrawals of funds from the Globe

Drug Company, Inc., alleged to have been made more

than three years prior to the commencement of this action

plaintiff's cause of action is barred by the California Code

of Civil Procedure, Section 338, subdivisions (1) and

(4) thereof.

WHEREFORE, defendant prays that plaintiff take

nothing by his bill of complaint, and that defendant re-

cover his costs of suit incurred herein.

Homer Johnstone

Attorney for Defendant T. E. Klipstein.

936 A. G. Bartlett Bldg.

Los Angeles, California.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) ss.

COUNTY OF KERN )

T. E. KLIPSTEIN, bein<^ first duly sworn deposes and

says : That he is one of the defendants in the foregoing

and above entitled action; that he has read the within An-

swer and knows the contents thereof; and that the same

is true of his own knowledge except as to the matters

which are herein stated on his information or belief, and

as to those matters he believes it to be true.

T. E. Klipstein

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this 6th day of

December, 1936

[Seal] Cara Pfuhl

Notary Public in and for said County and State

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 7, 1936. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.



16

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF DEFENDANT LEW O. STELZNER

Comes now LEW O. STELZNER, one of the defend-

ants in the above entitled action, and in answer to the bill

of complaint on file herein, and in his own behalf and

not for any other defendant, admits, denies and alleges as

follows, to-wit:

L

Admits the allegations of Paragraph I of the said bill

of complaint.

II.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph II of said bill of complaint,

except that defendant admits that at all times therein men-

tioned the Globe Drug Company, Inc., was a corporation

duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the

laws of the State of California.

III.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph III of said bill of complaint,

except that defendant admits that on or about the 3rd

day of January, 1928, defendant borrowed from the Bank

of America the sum of $16,000.00 and executed his

promissory note to said bank for said sum; that T. E.

Klipstein endorsed said note for the accommodation of de-

fendant; that defendant used the proceeds of the said loan

for the purchase of stock of the Globe Drug Company,

Inc., and caused the said stock to be issued to the said

T. E. Klipstein as security for said endorsement.
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IV.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph IV of said bill of complaint,

except that defendant admits that during the period from

the execution of said note up to October 19th, 1935, or

thereabouts, various payments were made on account of

said note, and that all of such payments were made with

the funds of the said corporation, but defendant alleges

that all of said payments were made out of the surplus

profits of said corporation.

V.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph V of said bill of complaint,

except that defendant admits that on or about the 19th

day of October, 1935, there remained unpaid on said

promissory note a balance of $4800.00, and that on or

about the said date the said corporation executed to the

Bank of America its promissory note in the sum of

$4800.00.

VI.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph VI of said bill of complaint,

except that defendant admits that on or about the 19th

day of October, 1935, the defendant Klipstein purchased

the said note from the Bank of America and commenced

an action in the Superior Court of the State of Cali-

fornia, in and for the County of Kern, against said cor-

poration upon the said note executed by said corporation;

that judgment in said action was rendered in favor of

this answering defendant in the sum of $5364.00, or there-

abouts, and execution thereon issued; that pursuant to

said execution a certain stock of goods belonging to the

said corporation was sold by the sheriff at public auction,
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and that the reasonable value of the said stock of goods

was the sum of $1900.00.

VII.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph VII of said bill of complaint.

VIII.

This defendant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations

of Paragraph VIII of the said bill of complaint, and

placing his denial upon that ground, denies generally and

specifically, each and every allegation of said paragraph.

IX.

Answering paragraph I of complainant's second cause

of action, defendant hereby refers to and incorporates

herein as if fully set out hereinafter all of paragraphs

I, II and III of this answer.

X.

Denies generally and specifically, each and every allega-

tion contained in Paragraph II of the second cause of

action contained in said bill of complaint.

XL
This defendant has no knowledge or information suf-

ficient to form a belief as to the truth of the allegations

of Paragraph III of the second cause of action contained

in said bill of complaint, and placing his denial upon that

ground, denies generally and specifically, each and every

allegation of said paragraph.

As a FURTHER AND SEPARATE DEFENSE to

said bill of complaint, defendant alleges that the causes

of action alleged therein are, and each of them is, barred

by the provisions of Subdivisions 1 and 4 of Section 338

of the Code of Civil Procedure of the State of California.
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As a FURTHER AND SEPARATE DEFENSE to

said bill of complaint, defendant alleges that the above

entitled court has no jurisdiction of the subject matter

of this action.

WHEREFORE, defendant prays that complainant take

nothing by his bill of complaint, and that defendant re-

cover his costs of suit incurred herein.

David E. Peckinpah

Attorney for Defendant, LEW O. STELZNER.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) ss.

COUNTY OF FRESNO. )

DAVID E. PECKINPAH, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says: That he is the attorney for the defend-

ant, LEW O. STELZNER, in the above entitled action;

that said defendant is absent from the County of Fresno

where his attorney has his office and for that reason

affiant makes this verification; that affiant has read the

foregoing Answer and knows the contents thereof; that

the same is true of his own knowledge, except as to the

matters as are therein stated on his information and

belief, and as to those matters that he believes it to be

true.

David E. Peckinpah

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 9th day of

June, 1937.

[Seal] June Johnson

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the County of

Fresno, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jun. 11, 1937. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District CouPvT and Cause.]

STIPULATION TO SET FOR TRIAL

' IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between the

respective parties hereto that the above entitled action

may be set down for trial on any date convenient to the

court during the term commencing on the first Monday

in October, 1937.

IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that a jury for the

trial of such action is hereby waived.

Dated: July 7, 1937,

Clarence A. Shuey

Arthur L. Shannon

Attorneys for Complainant

David E. Peckinpah

Attorney for Defendant

Lew O. Stelzner

Homer Johnstone

Attorney for Defendant

T. E. Klipstein

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 4, 1937. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By Edmund L. Smith, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AMENDMENT TO THE ANSWER OF THE
DEFENDANT T. E. KLIPSTEIN

Comes now the defendant T. E. Kilpstein, and by leave

of Court pursuant to the written stipulation of the plain-

tiff on file herein, files this amendment to the answer of

said defendant to complainants Bill of Complaint, (which

by the terms of said stipulation was extended to and

deemed to be the answer of said defendant to Complain-

ants Amended Complaint), and by w^ay of such amended

answer admits, denies and alleges as follows:

1.

Denies each and every allegation of paragraph 11 of

plaintiffs amended Bill of Complaint, except that defend-

ant admits that Articles of Incorporation were filed with

the Secretary of State of the State of California on the

17th day of July, 1920.

Defendant further alleges that no other or further

steps of any kind were ever taken to complete the or-

ganization of said Corporation; that no stock was ever

issued by said corporation; that no bylaws were ever

adopted by said corporation; and, that the persons who

executed the said articles and caused the same to be filed

as aforesaid thereupon became the Directors of said Cor-

poration and still are such directors thereof.
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11

Except as to foregoing amendment to paragraph 11

of this defendants answer as originally filed herein de-

fendant hereby adopts and re-states herein to the same

extent as if fully set out hereinafter each and all of the

respective recitals, allegations and paragraphs of said an-

swer to be deemed to be and considered as the answer of

this defendant to Complainants amended Bill of Complaint

herein.

WHEREFORE, defendant prays that complainant take

nothing by his Bill of Complaint herein, and that defend-

ant recover his costs of suit incurred herein.

Homer Johnstone

S. H. Wyse

Attorneys for defendant T. E. Klipstein

801 Bartlett Bldg

Los Angeles, Calif

[Endorsed] : Filed October 27, 1937. R. S. Zimmer-

man, Clerk By Louis J. Somers, deputy.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

TRIAL BRIEF OF DEFENDANT KLIPSTEIN
SUMMARY OF POINTS DISCUSSED

I. There was a complete failure of proof necessary to

entitle complainant to a recovery against defendant Klip-

stein.

C. There was no proof that defendant Klipstein re-

ceived anything by reason of any transaction in question,

and in fact the proof showed affirmatively that he was

the loser by such transactions of more than $5,000.00.

D. There was no proof that defendant Klipstein was

a de jure director of the bankrupt, and there was insuf-

fficient proof to hold him as a de facto director.

IV. Complainant is estopped from asserting that de-

fendant Klipstein is liable on the causes of action stated.

Defendant Klipstein therefore asks this Court to de-

clare by its judgment that neither in equity or law has

the complainant the right to recover any part of the

moneys by him claimed.

Respectfully submitted,

Homer Johnstone

Sidney H. Wyse.

Attorneys for defendant Klipstein.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 13, 1937. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By Louis J. Somers, Deputy Clerk.
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At a stated term, to-wit: The April Term, A. D.

1937, of the District Court of the United States of

America, within and for the Northern Division of the

Southern District of Cahfornia, held at the Court Room

thereof, in the City of Fresno on Saturday the 4th day

of December in the year of our Lord one thousand nine

hundred and thirty-seven.

Present

:

The Honorable: Leon R, Yankwich District Judge.

HERBERT P. SEARS,

Plaintiff,

vs. No. E-4

LEW O. STELZNER, et al

Defendants.

This cause having been heard upon the issues raised

by the Bill of Complaint and the Answer, and evidence

oral and documentary having been introduced, and the

cause having been submitted to the Court for decision,

and the Court having considered the evidence and the law

and the arguments and briefs of counsel, now finds in

favor of the plaintiff and (upon the authority of In re

Wright Motor Company (C. C. A. 9, 1924) 299 Fed

106) orders a decree entered ordering and decreeing that

plaintiff do have and recover from the defendants Lew

O. Stelzner and T. E. Klipstein and each of them, the



siiiii of $4255.54 and acnied interest, the same being the

sums shown to have been illcL;al]y withdrawn and paid out

by the defendants and for which they are Hable to account

to the plaintiff.

The Court finds that there is undisputed proof in the

record as to the amounts withdrawn and that therefore

an accounting" is not necessary.

Decree is to provide that the recovery of the full amount

named and accrued interest shall be contingent upon the

needs for funds to satisfy the claims against the estate

and recovery shall be had in full only if the above amount

when added to the cash now in the hands of the trustee

is needed to satisfy all the debts of the estate. Other-

wise recovery to be reduced proportionately and surplus

be returned to the defendants.

Findings and decree to be prepared by plaintiff under

Rule 44.

Exception to the defendants.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW

This cause came on regularly for trial before the above

entitled Court, sitting without a jury, plaintiff appearing

by his counsel, Arthur L. Shannon and Clarence A. Shuey,

defendant Lew O. Stelzner appearing by his counsel,

David E. Peckinpah and L. N, Barber, and defendant

T. E. Klipstein appearing by his counsel, Homer John-

stone and S. H. Wyse; and evidence both oral and docu-

mentary having been introduced and received, and the

Court having considered the evidence and the law and

the arguments and briefs of respective counsel, the Court

now makes its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

as follows, to wit:

FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

That on March 6, 1936, Globe Drug Company, Inc.

was adjudicated a bankrupt by an order duly made and

entered by the above entitled Court, and thereafter, on

April 18, 1936, by proceedings duly had in the administra-

tion of said bankrupt's estate, plaintiff was appointed as

trustee of said estate, thereupon duly qualified as such,

and ever since has been and now is the duly appointed,

qualified, and acting trustee of the estate of said bankrupt.

II.

That at all times herein mentioned said Globe Drug

Company, Inc. was a corporation duly organized and

existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

California; that ever since January 3, 1928, the defend-

ant Lew O. Stelzner was a stockholder, the president, and
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one of llic members of the Board of Directors of said

corporation, and the defendant T. E. Klipstein was a

stockholder, the secretary, and one of tlie members of

the Board of Directors of said corporation.

III.

That on January 3, 1928, the defendants Lew O. Stelz-

ner and T. E. KHpstein borrowed the sum of $17,000.00

from the Bank of America, and in consideration of such

loan executed to such bank their personal joint and several

promissory note for the same; that said sum of $17,000.00

was thereupon used by said defendants for the purpose of

purchasing; certain issued and outstanding" shares of said

Globe Drug- Company, Inc., for their own personal and

individual accounts.

IV.

That during the period of time from the execution of

said note up to October 19, 1935, various payments were

made on account of the principal and interest of said note,

aggregating a sum in excess of $12,200.00; that all of

such payments were made by, and directly from and with

the funds of, said corporation; that at each and all of the

times when said payments were made as aforesaid, said

corporation owed various sums of money to various cred-

itors, such indebtedness at such times being in excess of

the amounts of such respective payments; that no con-

sideration w^hatever was ever received by said corporation

for or in connection with any of said payments; that for

a period of at least three years prior to the date of its

adjudication in bankruptcy, said corporation was in an

insolvent condition; that the payments made by said cor-

poration on the personal note of said defendants during

said three-year period aggregated a sum of at least
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$4,255.54; that each and ail of said payments were made

as aforesaid with the purpose and intent on the part of

said corporation, and of said defendants, of hindering,

delaying, and defrauding the creditors of said corporation.

V.

That on or about October 19, 1935, there remained un-

paid on the principal of said promissory note a balance

of $4,800.00; that on or about said date defendants, act-

ing as directors and officers of said corporation, caused to

be executed to said Bank of America the promissory note

of said corporation in said sum of $4,800.00; that said

note was thereupon accepted by said bank in payment of

the balance due on said promissory note of the defend-

ants; that said corporation received no consideration for

the execution of said note, either directly or indirectly.

VL
That shortly after the execution of said last mentioned

promissory note, the defendant Klipstein purchased the

same from said bank and thereupon, and on October 19,

1935, commenced an action in the Superior Court of the

State of California, in and for the County of Kern, to

recover from said corporation the amount alleged by him

to have been so paid in the purchase of said note; that

illegally and without right or cause [L.R.Y.. J.]

thereafter the defendants, fraudulently permitted said cor-

poration to suffer a default judgment to be entered in said

action against it for the sum of $5,364.00; that thereafter

execution was issued on said judgment, pursuant to which

all of the properties and assets of said corporation were

sold at public auction by the sheriff of said county.
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VII.

That at the time said action was commenced and said

execution sale was effected as aforesaid, said corporation

owed various sums of money to various creditors and was

insolvent, and said action was commenced and prosecuted,

such judgment was suffered to be taken, and said execu-

tion sale effected with the purpose and intent on the part

of said corporation and the defendants of hindering, de-

laying, and defrauding the creditors of said corporation.

VIII.

That the payments made out of said corporation's

funds as aforesaid, were authorized and consented to by

the defendants while acting as officers and directors of

said corporation, and while they were stockholders there-

of; that said payments were not made out of surplus or

net profits of said corporation, nor was said corporation

then in the process of winding up or dissolution; that

said payments were made without the vote or written

consent of any of the shares of said corporation other

than the shares held by the defendants ; that no permit

of the Commissioner of Corporations of the State of Cali-

fornia was ever applied for or issued authorizing such

payments.

IX.

That this action is not barred by any statute of limita-

tions of the State of California, or otherwise; nor is

plaintiff chargeable with any laches in the commencement

and maintenance of this action; nor is plaintiff estopped

from commencing and maintaining this action.

X.

That this Court has jurisdiction over this action.
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CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
From the foregoing facts the Court concludes as fol-

lows, to wit:

I.

That all the payments made out of said corporation's

funds as above described, were wrongfully and illegally

made, and were and are fraudulent in law and void as to

plaintiff.

IL

That defendants shall pay to plaintiff, as trustee in

bankruptcy of said corporation, such sum of money which,

together with the present assets of the estate of said

bankrupt, will suffice to satisfy all just and proper claims

and reasonable allowances and expenses in such bank-

ruptcy proceedings, which amount is tentatively estimated

at the sum of $4,500.00.

III.

That as soon as may be after the payment by defend-

ants of said sum of $4,500.00 and plaintiff's costs here-

in, a report shall be filed in this proceeding by the Referee

in Bankruptcy, showing the exact amount necessary to

satisfy all just and proper claims and reasonable allow-

ances and expenses in the said bankruptcy proceedings,

and plaintiff shall thereupon have and recover of and

from the defendants, and each of them, the amount, if

any, shown by such report to be yet necessary to satisfy

all just and proper claims and reasonable allowances and

expenses in said bankruptcy proceedings, and plaintiff

shall be entitled to have execution therefor; that if such

report shows that there is a balance remaining out of said

sum of $4,500.00, after paying all just and proper claims
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and reasonable allowances and expenses in said bankruptcy

proceedings, the excess thereof, if any, is to be paid to

said defendants.

IV.

That plaintiff shall have and recover from defendants

his costs herein.

Let a decree be made and entered accordingly.

To all of which said defendants, and each of them,

except, and exception allowed.

Dated: December 29, 1937.

Leon R. Yankwich

United States District Judge

Not approved as to form; Decree does not correctly

state matters previously determined (see written State-

ment of objection on file with Clerk.

Homer Johnstone &

S H Wyse

Solicitors for Defendant T. E. Klipstein

Dec. 16, 1937

Receipt of a copy of the foregoing Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law is hereby admitted this 16th day

of December, 1937.

Homer Johnstone

S. H. Wyse

Solicitors for Defendant T. E. Klipstein

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 29, 1937. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By Louis J. Somers, Deputy Clerk.
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,
NORTHERN DIVISION

—oOo

—

No. E-4

In Equity

DECREE

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee of the

Estate of Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

Bankrupt,

Complainant,

vs.

LEW O. STELZNER and T. E.

KLIPSTEIN,
Defendants.

—oOo—

The Court having heretofore duly made its Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law herein:

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to such Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered, ad-

judged and decreed as follows, to wit:

That the plaintiff, Herbert P. Sears, as trustee in

bankruptcy of Globe Drug Company, Inc., a corporation,

do have and recover of and from the defendants, Lew O.

Stelzner and T. E. Klipstein, and each of them, such sum

of money which, together with the present assets of the

estate of said bankrupt, will sufhce to satisfy all just and

proper claims and reasonable allowances and expenses

in such bankruptcy proceedings, which proceedings are

pending in this court and numbered #4171 upon the

records of said court, and have heretofore been referred

to C. E. Arnold, Esq., Referee in Bankruptcy; that the
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plaintiff herein, Herbert P. Sears, as trustee of said bank-

rupt estate, do presently have and recover of and from

the defendants, Lew O. Stelzner and T. E. Klipstein,

and each of them, the sum of $4,500.00.

That as soon as may be after the payment by defend-

ants of said sum of $4,500.00, together with plaintiff's

costs herein, a report shall be filed in this action by said

C. E. Arnold, Referee in Bankruptcy, showing the exact

amount necessary to satisfy all just and proper claims and

reasonable allowances and expenses in the said bank-

ruptcy proceedings, and plaintiff" shall thereupon have and

recover of and from said defendants, and each of them,

the amount, if any, shown by such report to be necessary

to satisfy all just and proper claims and reasonable al-

lowances and expenses in said bankruptcy proceedings,

and plaintiff shall be entitled to have execution therefor;

that if such report shows that there is a balance remain-

ing out of said sum of $4,500.00, after paying all just

and proper claims and reasonable allowances and expenses

in said bankruptcy proceedings, the excess thereof, if

any, is to be paid to said defendants ; but in no event shall

plaintiff recover of defendants any amount in excess of

said sum of $4500.00 together with interest at 6 per cent

from date of entry of this decree, and costs herein as-

sessed. [L.R.Y., Judge.]

That plaintiff shall have and recover from defendants,

and each of them, his costs herein. Cost taxed at $73.68.

To all of which defendants, and each of them, except,

and exception allowed.

Dated: December 29, 1937.

Leon R. Yankwich

United States District Judge
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Not approved as to form by defendant Klipstein for

the reason that same do not correctly state matters pre-

viously determined (see statement of objections on file

with Clerk.

Dec. 16th, 1937

Homer Johnstone and

S. H. Wyse

Solicitors for defendant, T. E. Klipstein.

Receipt of a copy of the foregoing Decree is hereby ad-

mitted this 16th day of December, 1937.

Homer Johnstone

S. H. Wyse

Solicitors for defendant, T. E. Klipstein.

Decree entered and recorded Dec. 29, 1937

R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk

By Louis J. Somers,

Deputy Clerk

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 29, 1937. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By Louis J. Somers, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court axd Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

TO THE PLAINTIFF, HERBERT P. SEARS,
AND TO ARTHUR L. SHANNON AND CLARENCE
A. SHUEY, HIS ATTORNEYS:

Upon reading- the verified petition of T. E. Klipstein,

one of the defendants in the above entitled cause, and

the affidavits of Mel G. Brittan, T. E. Klipstein and

Homer Johnstone, copies of which documents are attached

hereto, and upon the motion of said Homer Johnstone,

attorney for said defendant,

IT IS ORDERED that the plaintiff in said action show

cause, if any he have, on the 31st day of March, 1938,

at Court Room, Post Office Building, in the City of

Fresno, County of Fresno, State of California, why a re-

hearing should not be granted in said action, or in the

alternative, why the findings of fact, conclusions of law,

and decree, heretofore entered, should not be modified,

in accordance with the prayer of said petition.

Service of this order and the documents described here-

in shall be made upon the attorneys for plaintiff, either

personally or at their office, on or before the 28th day of

March, 1938.

Meanwhile, and until further order of this Court, let

all proceedings under said decree in said cause be stayed.

Dated this 25th day of March, 1938.

Leon R. Yankwich

Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 25, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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At a stated term, to wit: The October Term, A. D.

1937, of the District Court of the United States of

America, within and for the Northern Division of the

wSouthern District of CaHfornia, held at the Court Room

thereof, in the City of Fresno, on Saturday, the 2nd day

of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and thirty-eight.

Present

:

The Honorable LEON R. YANKWICH, District

Judge.

Herbert P. Sears, Trustee, etc.,

Plaintiff,

vs.

Lew O. Stelzner, et al.

Defendants.

No. E-4-Eq.

This cause coming on for hearing on order to show

cause, filed March 25, 1938, on petition of T. E. Klipstein

for rehearing, or in the alternative, for modification of

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree; Ar-

thur L. Shannon, Esq., appearing for the plaintiff; Homer

Johnstone, Esq., appearing for petitioner T. E. Klipstein;

David E. Peckinpah, Esq., appearing for defendant Lew

O. Stelzner, who is also present in court;
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Defendant Stelzner joins in the petition for rehearing

etc.. there being- no objections thereto; and Attorney John-

stone argues in support of said petition; Attorney Shan-

non makes reply thereto; and Attorney Johnstone makes

a statement in closing, and thereupon,

It is ordered that the Decree herein be modified as fol-

lows : by inserting in line 23, after the word "defend-

ants"
—

"but in no event shall plaintiff recover of defend-

ants any amount in excess of said sum of $4500.00, to-

gether with interest at 6 per cent from date of entry of

this decree, and costs herein assessed" and the decree here-

tofore entered is modified accordingly, the Court making

the change upon the face of the decree.

It is further ordered that the Petition for Rehearing

herein be hereby denied and exception allowed to Petition-

ers. A stay of execution for twenty days is allowed.

It is further ordered that the term of court herein be

hereby extended for a period of thirty days from this

date within which to prepare Bill of Exceptions herein

and for filing same.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE

Defendant and appellant T. E. Klipstein herewith pre-

sents the following statement of the evidence produced

upon the trial of the above-entitled action deemed by said

defendant and appellant necessary for the consideration

of the errors assigned:

The cause came on for hearing on the 27th day of

October, 1937, before the above-entitled Court, at Fresno,

California, the Honorable Leon R. Yankwich, Judge pre-

siding, plaintiff appearing by Arthur L. Shannon and

Clarence A, Shuey, defendant Lew O. Stelzner by David

E. Peckinpah and L. N. Barber, and defendant T. E.

Klipstein by Homer Johnstone and Sidney H. Wyse,

whereupon the following proceedings were had and the

following evidence produced

:

A preliminary motion to dismiss said action was made

on behalf of defendant T. E. Klipstein upon the ground

that the Court had no jurisdiction over said cause, as

follows

:

"MR. JOHNSTONE: I understand . . . that

there is a motion to be made as to the jurisdiction of this

court to handle this particular matter, and on behalf of

the defendant Klipstein we desire to say that we object

to the jurisdiction of this court and that we shall join

with the defendant Stelzner in the same motion.

May it be stipulated, Mr. Shannon, that we may join

in that motion without it being in a written form?
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(Testimony of C. H. Landes)

MR. SHANNON: What motion is that?

MR. JOHNSTONE: A motion to dismiss by reason

of lack of jurisdiction.

MR. SHANNON : That motion has been disposed of

already.

MR. JOHNSTONE: We propose to renew it at this

time. We haven't made any such motion, but by the

stipulation to which I referred, we were given the right

to present the motion at this time.

iMR. SHANNON: All right.

TtlE COURT: I am going to overrule the motion,

C. H. LANDES,

called as a witness for plaintiff, testified as follows : I

have been an officer of the Bank of America at Bakers-

field, California, for the past 13 years; I am not familiar

with any transaction between said bank and the defend-

ants except in so far as the bank records show; said

records indicate that on January 3, 1928, a loan of

$17,000.00 was made by said Bank to Lew O. Stelzner,

which loan was evidenced by a note in said sum payable

April 3, 1928, with interest at the rate of 7 per cent per

annum, and that the note was endorsed or secured by

the signature of T. E. Klipstein; said records show that

payments were made on the principal amount of said

loan, upon the dates and in the amounts as follows, to wit

:

DATE AMOUNT
March 29, 1929 $ 500.00

June 24, 1929 500.00

Sept. 26, 1929 500.00
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(Testimony of C. H. Landes)

DATE

Dec. 24 , 1929

March 25 , 1930

June 23 , 1930

Sept. 22 1930

Dec. 23 1930

Mar. 23 1931

June 19 1931

Sept. 21 1931

Dec. 28 1931

March 19 1932

June 16 1932

Dec. 13 1932

Aug. 1 1933

Sept. 15 1933

Jan. 29 1934

Feb. 20 1934

Mar. 20 1934

Apr. 28 1934

May 26 1934

June 25 1934

July 23 1934

Aug. 24, 1934

Sept. 22 1934

Oct. 23 1934

Nov. 28, 1934

Dec. 24, 1934

Jan. 31 1935

Feb. 28, 1935

Mar. 27 1935

June 10 1935

Aug. 9 1935

AMOUNT
$1,000.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

250.00

250.00

500.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

200.00

100.00

100.00
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(Testimony of C. H. Landes)

The record of a separate interest account shows pay-

ments of interest on said loan, upon the dates and in the

amounts as follows, to wit

:

DATE AMOUNT

April 3, 1928 $ 300.81

July 6, 1928 304.11

Oct. 1, 1928 297.50

Nov. 24, 1928 12.60

March 29, 1929 294.24

June 24, 1929 291.19

Sept. 26, 1929 280.00

Dec. 24, 1929 271.25

Mar. 25, 1930 253.75

June 23, 1930 245.00

Sept. 22, 1930 238.82

Mar. 23, 1931 208.75

Sept. 21, 1931 201.25

Dec. 28, 1931 192.50

Mar. 9, 1932 184.15

June 16, 1932 175.00

Sept. 14, 1932 166.25

Dec. 13, 1932 166.25

July 10, 1933 32.42

Aug. 1, 1933 47.25

Sept. 15, 1933 15.74
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(Testimony of C. H. Landes)

DATE AMOUNT
Oct. 19, 1933 $ 47.93

Jan. 29, 1934 170.23

Feb. 20, 1934 34.22

Mar. 20, 1934 42.47

Apr. 28, 1934 44.43

Mar. 26, 1934 43.16

June 25, 1934 43.40

July 23, 1934 40.83

Aug. 24, 1934 40.99

Sept. 22 , 1934 39.79

Oct. 23 1934 34.85

Nov. 24 1934 37.38

Dec. 24 1934 35.00

Jan. 31 1935 32.70

Feb. 28 1935 33.66

Mar. 27 1935 29.40

Apr. 30 , 1935 31.35

June 10 , 1935 29.17

Aug. 9 1935 74.32;

from the notations contained thereon certain checks can

be identified as having been applied on said principal and

interest accounts.

The checks so identified by Mr. Landes were offered

into evidence in a group as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, over

the objection of defendant T. E. Klipstein, as follows:

"MR. SHANNON: I am going to introduce all of

these checks as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, as one exhibit.

MR. JOHNSTONE: We object, may it please the

court, to the introduction in evidence of these checks on

the ground that they are incompetent, irrelevant and im-

material and if offered for any purpose it is to show pay-
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(Testimony of C. H. Landes)

nicnts of more than three years prior to the fihng of the

within action, and therefore the Statute has run against

the cause of action; and upon the further ground that

there is no identification of the defendant Klipstein with

the Globe Drug Company.

THE COURT : All right. The objection will be over-

ruled.

THE CLERK: 1, in evidence.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Exception."

Said Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 consists of 15 checks, each

drawn on Bank of America National Trust & Savings

Association in favor of Bank of America National Trust

& Savings Assocation by Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

by Lew O. Stelzner, said checks having been drawn on

the following dates and for the following amounts re-

spectively :

DATE OF LSSUE AMOUNT
Jun. 16 1932 $675.00

Sep. 13 1932 166.25

Dec. 13 1932 666.25

Mar. 15 1933 157.50

Jun. 10, 1933 157.50

Jul. 10, 1933 42.00

Aug. 1, 1933 297.25

Sep. 15, 1933 302.74

Oct. 3, 1933 29.75

Oct. 19, 1933 47.93

Jan. 29, 1934 170.23

Feb. 20, 1934 234.22

Jan. 31, 1935 232.70

Feb. 28, 1935 233.66

Mar. 27, 1935 229.40
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(Testimony of C. H. Landes)

Mr. Landes further testified: On October 19, 1935,

the balance in said loan account was $4,800.00; on said

day said balance was paid in full by the note of the Globe

Drug Company, endorsed or secured by the signature of

T. E. Klipstein, in the sum of $4,800.00.

The witness further testified that he could not locate

any records that would indicate that Globe Drug Com-

pany, up to October 19, 1935, had any loan or outstanding

loans with the bank.

Mr. Landes then identified photostatic copies of certain

original records pertaining to the said loan transaction

and said copies were offered into evidence as Plaintiff's

Exhibit 3. Said exhibit shows what purports to be a

loan account in the name of Lew O. Stelzner on the books

of Bank of America National Trust & Savings Associa-'

tion; that on the 3rd day of January, 1928, a loan in

the sum of $17,000.00, was made; that said amount was

reduced from time to time until the 19th day of October,

1935, when the balance remaining was $4,800.00; that

said balance was paid on that date. Said account carries

in the margin the notation that said account is "endorsed

or secured" by T. E. Klipstein.

It was thereupon stipulated by and between counsel for

plaintiff and counsel for defendant and appellant T. E.

Klipstein that the note of the Globe Drug Company was

paid in full by said defendant and appellant T. E. Klip-

stein.
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(Testimony of Richard A. Pawson)

RICHARD A. PAWSON,

called as a witness for plaintiff, testified: I am the

assistant credit manager and in charge of the cus-

tomers' accounts receivable ledger of McKesson &

Langley; I am familiar with the account of the Globe

Drug Company; I have made a comparison of the dates

on which payments w^ere made on the $17,000.00 loan

transaction, as testified to by Mr. Landes, with the state

of the account of the Globe Drug Company.

Thereupon the following question was asked of the

witness and the following proceedings had:

''MR. SHANNON: Now, during the recess, have

you made a comparison between all the dates of pay-

ment of the $17,000.00 obligation testified to by Mr.

Landes, and a comparison of the dates of those payments

with the condition of the account of the Globe Drug

Company on those corresponding dates?

WITNESS: I did.

MR. SHANNON: And what did you find with re-

spect to the account of the Globe Drug Company, how

it stood, whether there was a debit balance or whether

it was paid up?

MR. JOHNSTONE: Just a minute; to which we

object on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial and hearsay as to defendant Klipstein, and

for the further ground that before this evidence is ad-

missible, may it please the court, they must show that
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(Testimony of Richard A. Pawson)

Klipstein had knowledge of some insolvent condition if

there was any insolvent condition. Under any circum-

stances he could not be charged with knowledge of pre-

ference.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Note an exception."

Plaintiff's Exhibit 4 was thereupon introduced into

evidence over the objection of defendant T. E. Klipstein,

as follows

:

"MR. SHANNON: Now, Mr. Pawson, did you make

a form of capitulation, or list of those claims and the con-

dition of the account of the Globe Drug Company?

MR. PAWSON : Yes, I did.

MR. SHANNON: Did you reduce it to writing on

a piece of paper?

MR. PAWSON: Yes.

MR. SHANNON: Have you it with you?

MR. PAWSON: Yes.

MR. SHANNON: Now, you refer to that list hav-

ing before you the dates of the payments on the $17,000.-

00 account, and the amount of those payments, is that

correct?

MR. PAWSON: Yes.

MR. SHANNON: And those figures that you have

set forth on that statement, showing the condition of the
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(Testimony of Richard A. rawson)

accDunts, the debit balances of the (ilobe DruLi;' Company

on those particular dates, is that ri^iiht?

MR. PAWSON: Yes.

MR. SHANNON: We offer it in evidence.

MR. JOHNSTONE: To which we object on the

ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and

is not binding on the defendant Klipstein. There has been

nothing to bring him within the action at the present

time. He is not a stockholder, not a director, and if it is

offered for the purpose of showing any apparent insol-

vent condition of the corporation, this is not the way to

do it. They should show, for instance—I call your

Honor's attention to the situation as it now stands, and

that we believe will be shown here, that there never was

any capital stock liability of the corporation; there never

was any insolvent condition from a technical or actual

standpoint, in all this period of time they have been

bringing in evidence before here.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Exception."

Said Plaintiff's Exhibit 4 consists of several pages of

note paper containing the following words and figures,

in pencil:
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(Testimony of Richard A. Pawson)

"Interest payments

Globe Drug Company

1601 — 19th St.

Bakersfield, California

DATE BALANCE OUTSTANDING

McKESSON

4/ 3/28 $ 884.22

7/ 6/28 790.76

10/ 1/28 629.34

11/24/28 1,154.71

3/29/29 693.74

6/24/29 1,163.16

9/22/29 1,332.75

12/24/29 1,850.96

3/25/30 923.46

6/23/30 1,607.22

9/22/30 1,422.44

3/23/31 1,492.74

9/21/31 1,565.34

9/28/31 1,103.76

3/19/32 1,264.92

6/16/32 986.32

9/14/32 899.86

12/13/32 1,697.23



49

( 'l\'stini(iny of Richard A. rawson)

7/10/33 1,433.25

8/ 1/33 1.717.11

12/15/33 1,535.18

10/19/33 1,795.49

1/29/34 1,496.45

2/20/34 1,630.81

3/20/34 1,520.27

4/28/34 1,373.28

3/26/34 1,453.26

6/25/34 1,137.31

7/23/34 996.53

8/24/34 845.23

9/22/34 808.99

10/23/34 1,468.61

11/24/34 1,649.92

12/24/34 2,068.52

1/31/35 1,472.29

2/28/35 1,746.98

3/27/35 1,943.21

4/30/35 2,135.50

6/10/35 1,620.45

8/ 7/35 1,307.56

10/30/35 1,314.02

12/ 2/35 1,314.02"
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(Testimony of Richard A. Pawson)

"Payments

Principal

DATE BALANCE DUE McKESSON

3/29/29 $ 693.74

6/24/29 1,163.16

9/26/29 1,102.83

12/24/29 1,850.96

3/25/30 923.46

6/23/30 1,607.22

9/22/30 1,422.44

12/23/30 1,986.22

3/23/31 1,492.74

6/19/31 1,255.78

9/21/31 1,565.34

12/28/31 568.95

3/19/32 1,264.92

6/16/32 986.32

12/13/32 1,697.23

8/ 1/33 1,717.11

9/15/33 1,655.51

1/29/34 1,496.45

2/20/34 1,630.81

3/20/34 1,520.27

4/28/34 1,373.28

5/26/34 1,237.37

6/25/34 1,137.31

7/23/34 996.53

8/24/34 845.23
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(Testimuny oi Richard A. Pawson)

9/22/34 808.99

10/23/34 1,468.61

11/28/34 1,767.04

12/24/34 2,068.52

1/31/35 1,472.29

2/28/35 1,746.98

3/27/35 1,943.21

6/10/35 1,620.45

8/ 9/35 1,307.56

10/19/35 1,314.02"

Thereupon the following questions were asked of the

witness and the following proceedings had

:

"MR SHANNON: Did you, or your firm, file a claim

in the harkruptcy proceedings of the Globe Drug Com-

I)any, Inc.?

MR. PAWSON: Yes. We filed our claim in the

San Francisco Board of Trade.

i^IR. SHANNON: Do you remember the amount of

that claim?

MR. PAWSON: $1,314.02.******
MR. BARBER: Do you know whether, as a matter

of fact, you filed your claim with the Board of Trade

before the bankruptcy proceedings were commenced or

after ?

MR. PAWSON : I can't answer that question."
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LEW O. STELZNER,

one of the defendants, called as a witness for plaintiff,

testified: I was an officer and director of the Globe Drug

Company.

Thereupon Plaintiff's Exihibt 5 was offered into evi-

dence over the objection of defendant T. E. Klipstein, as

follows

:

"MR. SHANNON: Now, Mr. Stelzner, do you recog-

nize that book?

MR. STELZNER: (Examining document) Yes, I do.

MR. SHANNON: Is that the minute book of the

Globe Drug Company, Inc.?

MR. STELZNER: It is.

MR. SHANNON: We are going to offer this in

evidence, your Honor, the whole book for what it is

worth to either side in this case, as Plaintiff's Exhibit

next number in order.

MR. JOHNSTONE: We object to its introduction on

the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and

upon the grounds stated before, that the corporation has

never been organized and the document itself it not the

official record of the corporation that has completed its

organization, and upon the ground that as to the defendant

Klipstein it is entirely hearsay.

THE COURT: The objection is overruled.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Exception."

Said Plaintiff's Exihibt 5 shows that Globe Drug Com-

pany, Inc., was incorporated in the State of California on

the 17th day of July, 1920, by Lew O. Stelzner, V. J.
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Moore and James F. Brazill, with an authorized capital

stock of $25,000.00 divided into 25,000 shares of the par

value of $1.00 each, and with a Board of Directors con-

sisting of three members. Written entries in said minute

book purport to record the following transactions:

On December 31, 1927, at a stockholders' meeting of

Globe Drug Company, Inc., Vergne J. Moore, Lew O.

Stelzner, and G. D. Holmquist, holding 24,980 shares,

were present and voting, T. E. Klipstein, Lew O. Stelzner,

and Dorothy L Stelzner were nominated and elected di-

rectors of the corporation for the ensuing year.

On December 31, 1927, at a Directors Meeting of Globe

Drug Company, Inc., Lew O. Stelzner, T. E. Klipstein

and Dorothy I. Stelzner being present and acting, T. E.

Klipstein was nominated and elected Vice-President of the

corporation.

On January 4, 1928, at a Directors Meeting of Globe

Drug Company, Inc., Lew O. Stelzner, T. E. Klipstein and

Dorothy I. Stelzner being present and acting, T. E. Klip-

stein was nominated and elected Secretary of the corpora-

tion; the minutes of said meeting were attested by the

signature of T. E. Klipstein, Secretary.

From and after January 23, 1928, there is no record of

any meetings of directors or stockholders of Globe Drug

Company, Inc., until October 19, 1935, on which date

was held a directors meeting, Lew O. Stelzner, T. E.

Klipstein and Dorothy I. Stelzner being present, at which

meeting a resolution was passed authorizing the corpora-

tion to borrow from the Bank of America National Trust

& Savings Association the sum of $5,000.00; T. E. Klip-

stein signed his consent to the holding of said meeting as
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a director, and was present and acting. The minutes of

said meeting were attested by the signature of T. E.

Klipstein, Secretary.

No further proceedings appear in said Minute Book.

Thereupon Plaintiff's Exhibit 6 was offered into evi-

dence over the objection of defendant T. E. KHpstein,

as follows:

"MR. SHANNON: Mr. Stelzner, isn't this what

purports to be a stock certificate book? Look at it and

see if you can recognize that.

MR. STELZNER: (Examining document.) Yes.

MR. SHANNON : Is that the stock certificate book of

the Globe Drug Company?

MR. JOHNSTONE: To which we object on the

grounds already stated, that, if it is a part of the plain-

tiff's case here, if we are going to, for any purpose at

all, show that, they must show, as a part of their case,

that Klipstein was a stockholder, and then the way to do

it is to show that he had legal stock issued to him. They

cannot by documents of this kind, made without authority

of law, tie him in as a stockholder.

MR. SHANNON: We offer in evidence the stock

book as the next in order.

MR. SHANNON: The stock book is admitted?

THE COURT : Yes.

MR. JOHNSTONE: An exception."

Certain stubs in said Plaintiff's Exhibit 6, from which

certificates of stock have been detached, contain nota-

tions purporting to show that said detached certificates
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had been issued on the following dates, for the following

number of shares, and to the following persons respec-

tively :

.\. J. J. J.

NO. DATED NO. SHARES ISSUED TO

12 Jim 30, 1927 3000 Lew O. Stelzner

13 Dec 21, 1927 10 T. E. Klipstein

17 Jan 5, 1928 9990 T. E. Klipstein

19 Jun 14, 1932 5 Lew O. Stelzner

20 Jun 14, 1932 5 Dorothy I. Stelzner

21 Jun 14, 1932 3996-2/3 Thomas Lew Stelzner

22 Jun 14, 1932 3996-2/3 Gretchen Stelzner

23 Jun 14, 1932 3996-2/3 Mary Jean Stelzner

Said stub No. 17 bears the following notation: 'Re-

ceived Certificate No. 17 for 9,990 shares this 16th day

of January, 1928/ such notation being signed by T. E.

Klipstein.

Mr. Stelzner further testified: I am the beneficial

owner of the shares evidenced by certificates Nos. 21, 22

and 23, in the names of Thomas Lew Stelzner, Gretchen

Stelzner and Mary Jean Stelzner, respectively; they are

my children; T. E. Klipstein is my brother-in-law; the

note for $17,000.00 given the Bank of America was

signed by me and by Mr. Klipstein as joint makers; I

received the proceeds of said loan and used the same to

buy the stock held by the two other stockholders of the

Globe Drug Company; all of the payments testified to

by Mr. Landes as having been made upon said loan had

been made from "store funds", corporate funds; said

Company issued its note in the sum of $4,800.00 in pay-
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ment of the balance of said loan on October 19, 1935;

nothing was received by said Company in consideration

for payments on the $17,000.00 note or for the execu-

tion of the $4,800.00 note; the corporation used the cor-

porate funds to pay for the stock that I bought; I was

served with a summons and complaint in the action of T.

E. Klipstein v. Globe Drug Company, Inc., in the Super-

ior Court for Kern County; I had not talked with T. E.

Klipstein prior to said service and I knew nothing con-

cerning said suit prior to said service; I took said copy of

the summons and complaint in said action to my attor-

neys; I do not know what my attorneys did with said

documents and to my knowledge no defense was put in on

behalf of the Globe Drug Company; I had no real defense

to said action and I knew that the money was owed to

Mr. Klipstein and that I "just had to get out".

A certified copy of the judgment roll in said action

was introduced into evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit 7.

Said exhibit shows that on the 19th day of October,

1935, an action was brought in the Superior Court of the

State of California in and for the County of Kern, by

T. E. Klipstein against Globe Drug Company, Inc., for

the recovery of the sum of $5,364.00 alleged to be due

from the defendant to plaintiff for moneys advanced

to defendant, that the complaint in said action was verified

by T. E. Klipstein, that said Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

was the only party defendant in said action, that service

of the summons and complaint in said action was made

on the 19th day of October, 1935, at Bakersfield, upon

Lew O. Stelzner, individually and as President of Globe

Drug Company, Inc., that the default of defendant was

entered on the 5th day of November, 1935, and that judg-
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nieiit a.qain>t defendant and in favor of jjlainliff in the

sum of $5,383.82 and $177.00 costs was entered on the

8th day of November, 1935.

Mr. Stelzner further testified: The note for $17,-

000.00 was sig^ned by Mr. Khpstein as a personal accom-

modation to me and Mr. Klipstein never received any

l)art of said moneys or anything else for said accommoda-

tion and had no interest in the drug business; no permit

had ever been issued by the Corporation Commissioner

of the State of California authorizing said Company to

issue its shares.

A schedule in bankruptcy of the Globe Drug Company,

Inc.. was identified by Mr. Stelzner as that filed by him

on behalf of said Company and was offered into evidence

as Plaintiff's Exhibit 8.

Said Plaintiff's Exhibit 8 contains the following sum-

mary of the debts and assets of the bankrupt:

Summary of Debts and Assets

Taxes and Debts due U. S. None
Taxes due States, Counties, Districts and

Municipalities $ 163.35

^Vages 600.00

Unsecured claims 10,280.52

Total debts $11,043.87

Cash on hand $ 1,881.48

Debts due on Oi)en Accounts 2,104.15

Total assets $ 3.985.63

Said Plaintiff's Exhibit 8 further shows that included in

the Unsecured Claims against said bankrupt is an item in

the sum of $5,708.90, concerning which there appears the

following notation:
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"T. E. Klipstein, Brower Bldg., Bakersfield, California.

This debt is represented by a judgment obtained on

November 7, 1935 by the creditor against the corporation

in an action filed in the Superior Court of the State of

California, in and for the County of Kern, entitled "T. E.

Klipstein, plaintiff, vs. Globe Drug Company, Inc., a

corporation. Defendant," being Action Number 29015,

for moneys advanced by said creditor to the corporation

from time to time during the last four years; that an

execution was issued upon this judgment and the fixtures

and merchandise of the debtor were sold upon the same;

that at said sale the sum of $1,935.00 was realized; that

said money received from the sale, less the fees and

expenses of said sale in the sum of $608.75 is being held

by said judgment creditor for the benefit of all of the

creditors in proportion to their claims"

Said Plaintiff's Exhibit 8 further shows an item of

$1,316.31 included in the list of personal property, con-

cerning which item there appears the following notation:

'Held by Brittan and Mack, attorneys for the benefit

of creditors.'

Said Plaintiff's Exhibit 8 further shows an item of

$565.17 included in the list of personal property, con-

cerning which item there appears the following notation:

"Held by D. D. Cornwell, deputy Constable, to be

returned for the benefit of the creditors. This amount

was taken upon execution in an action entitled "T. E.

Klipstein, plaintiff, vs. Globe Drug Company, Inc., a

corporation, defendant", being an action brought in the

Superior Court of the State of California, in and for

the County of Kern, being action No. 29015, and the

«
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judgment creditor in said action, Mr. T. E. Klipstein,

of Bakersfield, California, has agreed with all of the

creditors that this amomit may be ratably distributed

among the creditors in proportion to their claims."

Among the list of unsecured claims set forth in said

schedule is one of McKesson, Langley and Michaels Co.

for $1,314:02.

Plaintiff thereupon rested.

A motion to dismiss plaintiff's complaint was then

made on behalf of T. E. Klipstein, as follows:

"MR. JOHNSTONE: May it please the court, on

behalf of the defendant Klipstein, we move to dismiss

as against that defendant on the grounds heretofore

urged at the outset of the case: First, that this action

is one that the cause of action is given to the trustee

in bankruptcy, unquestionably by the Civil Code of this

State, but he has mistaken the forum in which to try

the action. The federal court, as such, has no jurisdic-

tion over this type of action in the face of an objection

by the defendant. I will not urge that argument further.

I think the case is on all fours with the case decided by

Justice Holmes.

On the further ground, may it please the court, as to

the first cause of action, the defendant Klipstein cannot

be held in this action for the reason that it shows if any

moneys were paid to any person they were paid to the

bank, and not to the defendant Klipstein. Klipstein cannot

be held in this action on the theory that he received prop-

erty that was taken, admittedly, for the sake of argument.
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from the corporation's funds by the defendant Stelzner,

and paid out on Stelzner 's primary Hability to the Bank.

We make the further objection, and ask the court to

include it as one of the grounds of our motion to dismiss,

that there has been absolutely no showing that Klipstein

was a director, either de facto or otherwise, in view of

the failure on the part of the plaintiff to show that there

was ever a valid bona fide issue of stock. The minute

book purports to show that Klipstein was elected at a

meeting of the stockholders. There could have been no

meeting of the stockholders unless there were valid shares

issued under the laws as they stood at that time.

We make the further objection and ask to dismiss upon

the ground that the cause of action, if it be under Section

363, or Section 366, is barred by the Statute of Limita-

tions by the Civil Code of the State of California, Section

338, subdivisions 1 and 4."

THE COURT : The motions will be denied, gentlemen

Exceptions to the parties."

MR. T. E. KLIPSTEIN,

defendant and appellant, was called as a witness for the

defense and testified: In 1928 I aided Lew O. Stelzner

in procuring the $17,000.00 from the Bank of America

to buy out his partners ; I was in the title business and had

no interest in the drug company; the $17,000.00 was

received by Mr. Stelzner; I never received any con-

sideration of any kind for placing my name on said note;

I never knew the Company had any unpaid creditors until

several months immediately prior to filing the action of

T. E. Klipstein v. Globe Drug Co. ; I did not make any
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investigation to determine who the creditors were but

subsequent to the fiHng of said action it was my under-

standing that all creditors were notified; the $17,000.00

loan had been paid down to $4,800.00 by Mr. Stelzner

and at that time he was behind in his payments and I

demanded that the corporation give me the $4,800.00 note

to protect me; I at all times regarded Mr. Stelzner and

Globe Drug Company as one and the same; my action

against the Company was filed on advice of my attorney;

at that time Mr. Stelzner wasn't able to pay his rent,

was going into the hole from day to day, had a depleted

stock of goods and no credit, and said action was brought

for the good of Stelzner and everyone else; there is no

question but that a saving was effected ; the note of Globe

Drug Company for $4,800.00 was never paid and was

given back by me to the Company; that amount sued

for, $5,364.00, in my action against the Company covered

the $4,800.00 note and some $500.00 which I paid when

Mr. Stelzner was behind in his payments to the bank in

1934; said action was brought to protect the Globe Drug

Company from any further losses; all the creditors were

sent a notice that they would share equally; I had no

intention of taking any advantage by reason of the judg-

ment; I instructed my attorney to file a claim in the

bankruptcy proceedings of the Globe Drug Company and

I further instructed my attorney to offer to waive said

claim at the creditor's meeting; I was not at such meet-

ing; the property of the Company was sold pursuant to

an attachment issued in said action; prior to the sale the

stock and fixtures were appraised by a druggist at $2,-

200.00; 11 or 12 persons bid at the sale and that the

sheriff accepted the highest bid from a Mr. Vest; the
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proceeds of said sale less costs and expenses were turned

over to the trustee in bankruptcy and that nothing had

ever been paid on the judgment.

Mr. Klipstein further testified on cross-examination;

I do not remember whether Certificate No. 17 for 9,990

shares of Globe Drug Company stock was issued to me;

I presume it was as shown by the stub but I do not have

the certificate;

(At this point the minutes of the meetings of January

4, 1928 and October 19, 1935 were read to the witness.)

I am not familiar with the minutes of the Company

but I signed the minutes of the directors meeting of

January 4, 1928, and October 19, 1935, as shown in the

minute book, Plaintifif's Exhibit 5 ; to the best of my
knowledge I was made a director of the Company some

ttime in January of 1928 I think; there were no meetings

after that until the meeting held on October 19, 1935

;

the Company's note for $4,800.00 was executed pursuant

to a resolution passed at said latter meeting; I signed

the note as secretary of the Company; I presume the

company weren't getting anything for the execution of

that note; there wasn't any money exchanged; at the

time I instructed my attorneys to bring suit against the

Globe Drug Company I did not know that the same

attorneys were also attorneys for the Company; I con-

sidered the judgment in said action a judgment against

Lew O. Stelzner; I had a claim against Stelzner for

$4,800.00 on the note and $500 advanced during 1934;

I told my attorneys to protect me in any possible way

and left it to them; said attorneys said nothing about not

being able to represent me; my understanding from my
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attorneys was that all creditors were notified that suit

was going to be brought; I have seen copies of letters

written to some of the creditors; I don't know if they

were sent out to all the creditors; savings to the creditors

were effected by said suit; I was one of the creditors of

Mr. Stelzner along with the others; I cannot get it out

of my mind that Mr. Stelzner was the Globe Drug Com-

pany; I recognize a note given by me to the Bank of

America, for $4,800.00; said note was given to the bank

in connection w^th the balance of $4,800.00 on the $17,-

000.00 loan; said note was exchanged at the bank for

the $4,800.00 of the Globe Drug Company; said note was

paid by me with my own funds.

Said note was thereupon offered into evidence as de-

fendant Klipstein's Exhibit A, being a promissory note

in words and figures as follows

:

"$4800.00 Bakersfield, Calif Oct 10, 1935

On January 9, 1936, for value received, I promise to

pay in lawful money of the United States of America,

to the order of the Bank of America National Trust &
Savings Association at its office in this city Forty-eight

hundred Dollars, with interest from date at the rate of

7 per cent per annum until paid. Payable on January 9,

1936 and thereafter, and in addition

thereto in the event of commencement of suit to enforce

payment of this note, such additional sums as attorneys'

fees as the court may adjudge reasonable.

(Signed) T. E. KLIPSTEIN"

Mr. Klipstein further testified: It is my understand-

ing that for a period of several months there was an

attempt to bring about a composition of creditors to
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prevent bankruptcy proceeding's in regard to the Globe

Drug Company; I think my attorney and Mr. Sears, the

plaintiff in this action, represented all of the creditors.

It was stipulated by and between counsel for plaintiff

and counsel for defendant and appellant T. E. Klipstein

that the Corporation Commissioner of the State of Cali-

fornia, if called as a witness for defendant would testify

in accordance with the terms of a certain telegram offered

into evidence as defendant Klipstein's Exhibit B, and

being as follows

:

"SACRAMENTO CALIF Oct. 21, 1937

HOMER JOHNSTONE
BARTLETT BLDG LOSA

GLOBE DRUG COMPANY FILED APPLICATION
IN 1920 BUT NO PERMIT ISSUED

J. T. MCMENAMIN"

MR. HERBERT B. SEARS,

plaintiff in this action, was called as a witness for

defendants and testified: I remember a meeting of

creditors held in my office in an attempt to adjust the

matters of the bankruptcy; I have in my possession a

carbon copy of a letter written by me to the cred-

itors; this letter was sent to the Board of Trade at

San Francisco and the Los Angeles Wholesalers'

Board of Trade; the letter is dated November 4,

1935 ; I don't believe I could tell you whether or not the

creditors whose names were included in any schedule on

file with me were given copies of this letter; Howard
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Cravath, T. E. Klipstein and I were the members of a

committee of creditors ; I generally represent the said

Boards of Trade and I figured that said Boards of Trade

would be in touch with all creditors; said Boards of

Trade send out a regular notification sheet to all creditors

;

I have in my possession a copy of a letter dated Novem-

ber 14, 1935, which was sent to some of the creditors;

I really can't say whether it was a regular circular letter

or not; it might not contain anything of value; here is

one paragraph:

"This office has been asked by Mr. Brittan, to handle

the disbursement of the proceeds from the sale to the

various creditors on a pro rata basis, which we have

agreed to do. Therefore, if you will kindly file your

claim for your account either with the Board of Trade

of San Francisco or the Los Angeles Wholesalers' Board

of Trade, or with this office, the same will be taken care

of. If it is filed with either one of the Boards of Trade

they will send the claim to this office as we represent

them in this vicinity."; I was informed that it was the

filing of the attachment suit that brought on the bank-

ruptcy proceeding; the records of the Globe Drug Com-

pany, when they came into my hands, were very incom-

plete, very difficult to examine or ascertain anything

from; we had quite a bit of trouble; the cancelled checks

that were introduced this morning were all that I was

able to find; I had looked for others, but couldn't find

them.

All parties thereupon rested.
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ORDER SETTLING STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE

It appearing to the Court that defendant and appellant

T. E. Klipstein has filed herein his Statement of Evi-

dence in said cause, together with the admission of service

of counsel for plaintiff and appellee Herbert P. Sears of

copies of said Statement of Evidence and of Notice of

Lodgment thereof, and said plaintiff and appellee Herbert

P. Sears having filed his Proposed Amendments to said

Statement of Evidence, and said Statement of Evidence

and said Proposed Amendments having been duly pre- |

sented to the Court, pursuant to notice duly given, and

the same having been duly considered by the Judge of
j

this Court who presided at the trial of said cause, and

said Statement of Evidence having been amended pur- j

suant to the direction of said Judge, and the same, as |

amended, appearing to contain all of the material evidence

in said cause and to be in all respects complete and proper

;

IT IS ORDERED AND CERTIFIED that the above

and foregoing instrument denominated Statement of Evi-

dence and composed of pages 1 to 23 inclusive be and

the same is hereby approved, settled and allowed as the

Statement of Evidence in the above-entitled cause.

Done at Los Angeles, California, this 18th day of July,

1938.

Leon R. Yankwich
,

Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 18, 1938 R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By Edmund L. Smith, Deputy Clerk.
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STIPULATION FOR ORDER OF SEVERANCE

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between

defendant T. E. Klipstein and defendant Lew O. Stelzner,

through their respective attorneys, that defendant Lew

0. Stelzner has been duly notified and requested by

defendant T. E. Klipstein to join with said defendant

in a petition for an appeal from the decree hitherto made

and entered in the above entitled cause, that defendant

Lew O. Stelzner has failed and refused to join in said

appeal, and that an order may be made and entered by

the above entitled Court granting leave to defendant T.

E. KHpstein to prosecute his said appeal without joining

defendant Lew O. Stelzner as a party appellant.

Dated this 10th day of May, 1938.

HOMER JOHNSTONE
SIDNEY H. WYSE
By Homer Johnstone

Attorneys for defendant T. E. Klipstein

DAVID E. PECKINPAH
L. N. BARBER
By L. N. Barber

Attorneys for defendant Lew O. Stelzner

[Endorsed] : Filed May 20, 1938 R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk
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ORDER OF SEVERANCE

Upon reading and filing the Stipulation heretofore

entered into by and between defendant T. E. Klipstein

and defendant Lew O. Stelzner, through their respective

attorneys, and it appearing therefrom that said defendant

T. E. Klipstein has duly notified and requested said

defendant Lew O. Stelzner to join with said defendant

T. E. Klipstein in an appeal from a decree of this Court

made and entered in the above entitled cause and that

said defendant Lew O. Stelzner has failed and refused

so to join in such appeal,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that defendant T. E.

Klipstein be allowed to prosecute said appeal alone, with-

out joining defendant Lew O. Stelzner as a party appel-

lant, and that the appeal of said defendant T. E. Klipstein

is hereby severed for such purpose.

Dated this 20th day of May, 1938.

Leon R Yankwich

Judge of the United States District Court for the

Southern District of California, Northern

Division.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 20, 1938 R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.



69

IX THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,

NORTHERN DIVISION

—ooOoo

—

HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee

of the Estate of Globe Drug

Company, Inc., Bankrupt,

Complainant,

vs.

LEW O. STELZNER and

T. E. KLIPSTEIN,

Defendants.

No. E-4

In Equity

PETITION FOR
APPEAL AND

ORDER
ALLOWING
APPEAL

To the Honorable Leon R. Yankwich, Judge of the United

States District Court for the Southern District of

California

:

Your petitioner, T. E. Klipstein, one of the defendants

in the above entitled action, respectfully shows

:

That he is aggrieved by the decree entered in said

cause on the 29th day of December, 1937, as modified

and amended by an order of this Court made and entered

on the 2nd day of April, 1938; that the errors upon which

your petitioner proposes to base his appeal are contained

in an assignment of errors filed herewith.
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Wherefore, your petitioner prays that he be allowed

to appeal from said decree to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit; that a citation

be issued in accordance with law; that an authenticated

transcript of the record, proceedings and exhibits on the

trial be forwarded to the said United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, at San Francisco,

California;

And your petitioner further prays that an order be

made fixing the amount of security to be given by appel-

lant as provided by law and that execution on said decree

be superseded until final determination of said appeal

Homer Johnstone

Sidney H. Wyse

Attorneys for Defendant and Appellant T. E. Klipstein

IT IS ORDERED that an appeal herein be allowed

upon appellant furnishing a bond on appeal in the amount

of Six Thousand ($6000.00) Dollars, the same to operate

as a supersedeas as well as a bond for costs and damages.

By the Court:

Leon R, Yankwich

Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 25, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS

Comes now T. E. Klipstein, defendant and appellant

herein, and files the following assignment of errors upon

which he will rely upon appeal to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

I

The Court erred in denying defendant's motion to

dismiss plaintiff's complaint herein, as follows

:

"MR. JOHNSTONE: I understand . . . that

there is a motion to be made as to the jurisdiction of this

court to handle this particular matter, and on behalf

of the defendant Klipstein we desire to say that we

object to the jurisdiction of this court and that we shall

join with the defendant Stelzner in the same motion.

May it be stipulated, Mr. Shannon, that we may join

in that motion without it being in a written form?

MR. SHANNON: What motion is that?

MR. JOHNSTONE: A motion to dismiss by reason

of lack of jurisdiction.

MR. SHANNON: That motion has been disposed of

already.

MR. JOHNSTONE: We propose to renew it at this

time. We haven't made any such motion, but by the

stipulation to which I referred, we were given the right

to present the motion at this time.

MR. SHANNON : All right.

THE COURT: I am going to overrule the motion,
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II

The Court erred in overruling defendant's objection to

the introduction into evidence of Plaintiff's Exhibit 1,

as follows:

"MR. SHANNON: I am going to introduce all of

these checks as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, as one exhibit,

MR. JOHNSTONE: We object, may it please the

Court, to the introduction in evidence of these checks

on the ground that they are incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial and if offered for any purpose it is to show

payments of more than three years prior to the filing of

the within action, and therefore the Statute has run i

against the cause of action; and upon the further ground

that there is no identification of the defendant Klipstein '

with the Globe Drug Company.

THE COURT: All right. The objection will be !

overruled.

THE CLERK: 1, in evidence.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Exception."

Ill
j

The Court erred in overruling defendant's objection to

the question asked plaintiff's witness, Mr. Pawson, on

direct examination, as follows:

"MR. SHANNON: Now, during the recess, have

you made a comparison between all the dates of payment

of the $17,000.00 obligation testified to by Mr. Landes,

and a comparison of the dates of those payments with

the condition of the account of the Globe Drug Company

on those corresponding dates ?

WITNESS : I did.
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MR. SHANNON: And what did you find with respect

to the account of the Globe Drug Company, how it stood,

whether there was a debit balance or whether it was

paid up?

MR. JOHNSTONE: Just a minute; to which we

object on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial and hearsay as to defendant Klipstein, and

for the further ground that before this evidence is

admissible, may it please the court, they must show that

Klipstein had knowledge of some insolvent condition if

there was any insolvent condition. Under any circum-

stances he could not be charged with knowledge of

preference.

THE COURT : Overruled.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Note an exception."

IV

The Court erred in overruling defendant's objection to

the introduction into evidence of Plaintifif's Exhibit 4,

as follows:

"MR. SHANNON: Now, Mr. Pawson, did you make

a form of capitulation, or list of those claims and the

condition of the account of the Globe Drug Company?

MR. PAWSON : Yes, I did.

MR. SHANNON: Did you reduce it to writing on a

piece of paper?

MR. PAWSON : Yes.

MR. SHANNON: Have you it with you?

MR. PAWSON: Yes.

MR. SHANNON: Now, you refer to that list having

before you the dates of the payments on the $17,000.00
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account, and the amount of those payments, is that

correct ?

MR. PAWSON: Yes.

, MR. SHANNON: And those figures that you have

set forth on that statement, showing the condition of

the accounts, the debit balances of. the Globe Drug Com-

pany on those particular dates, is that right?

MR. PAWSON : Yes.

MR. SHANNON : We ofifer it in evidence.

MR. JOHNSTONE: To which we object on the

ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and

is not binding on the defendant Klipstein. There has

been nothing to bring him within the action at the present

time. He is not a stockholder, not a director, and if it

is offered for the purpose of showing any apparent in-

solvent condition of the corporation, this is not the way

to do it. They should show, for instance—I call your

Honor's attention to the situation as it now stands, and

that we believe will be shown here, that there never was

any capital stock liability of the corporation; there never

was any insolvent condition from a technical or actual

standpoint, in all this period of time they have been bring-

ing in evidence before here.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Exception."

V
The Court erred in overruling defendant's objection to

the introduction into evidence of Plaintiff's Exhibit 5,

as follows:

''MR. SHANNON: Now, Mr. Stelzner, do you

recognize that book?
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MR. STELZNER: (Examining document.) Yes,

I do.

MR. SHANNON: Is that the minute book of the

Gluhe Drui^ C()mi)any Inc.?

MR. STELZNER: It is.

MR. SHANNON: We are going to offer this in

evidence, your Honor, the whole book for what it is

\\n)rth to either side in this case, as Plaintiff's Exhibit

next number in order.

MR. JOHNSTONE: We object to its introduction

on the ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial

and upon the grounds stated before, that the corporation

has never been organized and the document itself is not

the official record of the corporation that has completed

its organization, and upon the ground that as to the

defendant Klipstein it is entirely hearsay.

THE COURT: The objection is overruled.

MR. JOHNSTONE: Exception."

VI

The Court erred in overruling defendant's objection to

the introduction into evidence of Plaintiff's Exhibit 6,

as follows:

"MR. SHANNON: Mr. Stelzner, isn't this what

purports to be a stock certificate book? Look at it and

see if you can recognize that.

MR. STELZNER: (Examining document.) Yes.

MR. SHANNON: Is that the stock certificate book

of the Globe Drug Company?

MR. JOHNSTONE: To which we object on the

grounds already stated, that, if it is a part of the plain-

tiff's case here, if we are going to, for any purpose at all,
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show that, they must show, as a part of their case, that

KHpstein was a stockholder, and then the way to do it is

to show that he had legal stock issued to him. They

cannot, by documents of this kind, made without authority

of law, tie him in as a stockholder.

MR. SHANNON: We offer in evidence the stock

book as the next in order.

MR. SHANNON: The stock book is admitted?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. JOHNSTONE: An exception."

vn
I

The Court erred in denying defendant's motion to i

dismiss plaintiff's complaint at the close of plaintiff's

evidence as follows: '

"MR. JOHNSTONE: May it please the court, on
,

behalf of the defendant KHpstein, we move to dismiss as !

against that defendant on the grounds heretofore urged

at the outset of the case: First, that this action is one

that the cause of action is given to the trustee in bank-

ruptcy, unquestionably by the Civil Code of this State,

but he has mistaken the forum in which to try the action.
|

The federal court, as such, has no jurisdiction over this i

type of action in the face of an objection by the defendant.

I will not urge that argument further. I think the case

is on all fours with the case decided by Justice Holmes.

On the further ground, may it please the court, as to

the first cause of action, the defendant KHpstein cannot

be held in this action for the reason that it shows if any

moneys were paid to any person that they were paid to

the bank, and not to the defendant KHpstein. KHpstein

cannot be held in this action on the theory that he received

property that was taken, admittedly, for the sake of
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argument, from the corporation's funds by the defendant

Stelzner, and paid out on Stelzner's primary liabiHty to

the bank.

We make the further objection, and ask the court to

include it as one of the grounds of our motion to dismiss,

that there has been absokitely no showing that KHpstein

was a director, either de facto or otherwise, in view of

the failure on the part of the plaintiff to show that there

was ever a valid bona fide issue of stock. The minute

book purports to show that KHpstein was elected at a

meeting of the stockholders. There could have been no

meeting of the stockholders unless there were valid shares

issued under the laws as they stood at that time.

We make the further objection and ask to dismiss

upon the ground that the cause of action, if it be under

Section 363, or Section 366, is barred by the Statute

of Limitations by the Civil Code of the State of Cali-

fornia, Section 338, subdivisions 1 and 4."

THE COURT: The motions will be denied, gentle-

men. Exceptions to the parties."

VIII

The Court erred in denying defendant's motion, made

at the conclusion of the case after all parties had rested,

for judgment in favor of defendant by reason of an entire

failure of proof. Said motion, among others, was pre-

sented in writing by the defendant in lieu of oral presenta-

tion, and was denied by the Court with exceptions to the

defendants, as follows:

"THE COURT : What do you desire in regard to

this matter, gentlemen?
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MR. SHANNON: Well, if your Honor would like

oral argument I will stay and argue, but I would be just

as willing to go home and submit on briefs.

MR. JOHNSTONE: I think in view of the several

questions involved that we would prefer to submit it on

briefs.

THE COURT: The case will stand submitted on

briefs."

(DEFENDANT'S BRIEF) : "There was a complete

i failure of proof necessary to entitle complainant to a

recovery against defendant Klipstein."

"Defendant Klipstein therefore asks this Court to de-

clare by its judgment that neither in equity or law has the

complainant the right to recover any part of the moneys

by him claimed."

Whereupon, and after consideration thereof, the Court

made the following order

:

".
. . the cause having been submitted to the Court

for decision, and the Court having considered the evidence

and the law and the arguments and briefs of counsel, now

finds in favor of the plaintiff and (upon the authority of

In re Wright Motor Company (C. C. A. 9, 1924) 299

Fed 106) orders a decree entered ordering and decree-

ing that plaintiff do have and recover from the defend-

ants Lew O. Stelzner and T. E. Klipstein and each of

them, the sum of $4,255.54 and accrued interest, the same

being the sums shown to have been illegally withdrawn

and paid out by the defendants and for which they are

liable to account to the plaintiff."

Exception to the defendants."
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IX

The Court erred in denying defendant's motion, made

at the conclusion of the case after all parties had rested,

for judgment in favor of defendant by reason of com-

plainant's failure to prove that defendant Klipstein re-

ceived any benefit whatever from any transaction in ques-

tion. Said motion, among others, was denied by the

Court with exceptions to the defendants.

X
The Court erred in denying defendant's motion, made

at the conclusion of the case after all parties had rested,

for judgment in favor of defendant by reason of com-

plainant's failure to prove that said defendant Klipstein

ever became or ever was a director of the Globe Drug

Company. Said motion, among others, was denied by

the Court with exceptions to the defendants.

XI

The Court erred in denying defendant's motion, made

at the conclusion of the case after all parties had rested,

for judgment in favor of the defendant upon the ground

that complainant was estopped from asserting his alleged

cause of action. Said motion, among others, was denied

by the Court with exceptions to the defendants.

XII

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding

of Fact Number II as follows;

"That at all times herein mentioned said Globe Drug

Company, Inc. was a corporation duly organized and ex-

isting under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

California; that ever since January 3, 1928, the defend-

ant Lew O. Stelzner was a stockholder, the president and
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one of the members of the Board of Directors of said

corporation and the defendant T. E. Klipstein was a stock-

holder, the secretary, and one of the members of the Board

of Directors of said corporation.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.

XIII

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding

of Fact Number III, as follows:

"That on January 3, 1928, the defendants Lew O.

Stelzner and T. E. Klipstein borrowed the sum of $17,-

000.00 from the Bank of America, and in consideration

of such loan executed to such bank their personal joint

and several promissory note for the same; that said sum

of $17,000.00 was thereupon used by said defendants for

the purpose of purchasing certain issued and outstanding

shares of said Globe Drug Company, Inc., for their own

personal and individual accounts.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendants

was duly allow^ed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.

XIV

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding of

Fact Number IV, as follows:

"That during the period of time from the execution of

said note up to October 19, 1935, various payments were
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made on account of the principal and interest of said note,

aggregating- a sum in excess of $12,200.00; that all of

such payments were made by, and directly from and with

the funds of, said corporation; that at each and all of the

times when said payments were made as aforesaid, said

corporation owed various sums of money to various cred-

itors, such indebtedness at such times being in excess of

the amounts of such respective payments; that no con-

sideration whatsoever was ever received by said corpora-

tion for or in connection with any of said payments; that

for a period of at least three years prior to the date of

its adjudication in bankruptcy, said corporation was in an

insolvent condition; that the payments made by said cor-

poration on the personal note of said defendants during

said three-year period aggregated a sum of at least

$4,255.54; that each and all of said payments were made

as aforesaid with the purpose and intent on the part of

said corporation, and of said defendants, of hindering,

delaying, and defrauding the creditors of said corpora-

tion.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.

XV
The Court erred in making and entering its Finding

of Fact Number V, as follows:

"That on or about October 19, 1935, there remained

unpaid on the principal of said promissory note a bal-

ance of $4,800.00; that on or about said date defendants,

acting as directors and officers of said corporation, caused



82

to be executed to said Bank of America the promissory

note of said corporation in the sum of $4,800.00; that

said note was thereupon accepted by said bank in payment

of the balance due on said promissory note of the defend-

ants; that said corporation received no consideration for

the execution of said note; either directly or indirectly.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.

XVI

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding

of Fact Number VI, as follows:

"That shortly after the execution of said last men-

tioned promissory note, the defendant Klipstein purchased I

the same from said bank and thereupon, and on October

19, 1935, commenced an action in the Superior Court of

the State of California, in and for the County of Kern, 1

to recover from said corporation the amount alleged by
j

him to have been so paid in the purchase of said note;

illegally and without right or cause [LRY] 1

that thereafter the defendants, fraudulently permitted said

corporation to suffer a default judgment to be entered

in said action against it for the sum of $5,364.00; that
j

thereafter execution was issued on said judgment, pur-

suant to which all of the properties and assets of said
j

corporation were sold at public auction by the sheriff of

said county.";
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to which said tinding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.

XVII

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding

of Fact Number VII, as follows

:

"That at the time said action was commenced and said

execution sale was effected as aforesaid, said corporation

owed various sums of money to various creditors and was

insolvent, and said action was commenced and prosecuted,

such judgment was suft'ered to be taken, and said exe-

cution sale effected with the purpose and intent on the

part of said corporation and the defendants of hindering,

delaying, and defrauding the creditors of said corpora-

tion.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allow^ed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.

XVIII

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding of

Fact Number VIII, as follows:

"That the payments made out of said corporation's

funds as aforesaid, were authorized and consented to by

the defendants while they were acting as officers and
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directors of said corporation, and while they were stock-

holders thereof; that said payments were not made out of

surplus or net profits of said corporation, nor was said

corporation then in the process of winding up or dissolu-

tion; that said payments were made without the vote or

written consent of any of the shares of said corporation

other than the shares held by the defendants; that no

permit of the Commissioner of Corporations of the State

of California was ever applied for or issued authorizing

such payments.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in
j

the record to support such finding.
j

XIX

The Court erred in making and entering its Finding '

of Fact Number IX, as follows

:

"That this action is not barred by any statute of limita-

tions of the State of California, or otherwise; nor is '

plaintiff chargeable with any laches in the commencement

and maintenance of this action; nor is plaintiff estopped

from commencing and maintaining this action.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence in

the record to support such finding.
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XX
The Court erred in making- and entering its Finding

of Fact Number X, as follows:

"That this Court has jurisdiction over this action.";

to which said finding an exception in favor of defendant

was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the Findings

of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that said finding is erroneous in law.

XXI

The Court erred in making and entering its Conclu-

sion of Law Number I, as follows:

"That all the payments made out of said corporation's

funds as above described, were wrongfully and illegally

inlaw [LRY]
made, and were and are fraudulent /^ and void as to

plaintiff."

to which said conclusion of law an exception in favor

of defendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of

the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that such conclusion of law is not sup-

ported by the evidence or by the facts found.

XXII

The Court erred in making and entering its Conclusion

of Law Number II, as follows

:

'That defendants shall pay to plaintiff, as trustee in

bankruptcy of said corporation, such sum of money which,

together with the present assets of the estate of said

bankrupt, will suffice to satisfy all just and proper claims
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and reasonable allowances and expenses in such bank-

ruptcy proceeding's, which amount is tentatively estimated

at the sum of $4,500.00."

to which said conclusion of law an exception in favor of

defendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that such conclusion of law is not sup-

ported by the evidence or by the facts found;

And for the further reason that said conclusion of law

is void for uncertainty in that it cannot be determined

therefrom what are the "just and proper claims and rea-

sonable allowances and expenses" by which the liability of

defendant to plaintiff is to be determined.

XXIII

The Court erred in making and entering its Conclusion

of Law Number III, as follows:

"That as soon as may be after the payment by de-

fendants of said sum of $4,500.00 and plaintiff's costs

herein, a report shall be filed in this proceeding by the
I

Referee in Bankruptcy, showing the exact amount neces-

sary to satisfy all just and proper claims and reasonable

allowances and expenses in the said bankruptcy proceed-

ings, and plaintiff sTiall thereupon have and recover of and
|

from the defendants, and each of them, the amount, if

any, shown by such report to be yet necessary to satisfy

all just and proper claims and reasonable allowances and
j

expenses in said bankruptcy proceedings, and plaintiff shall

be entitled to have execution therefor; that if such re-
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port shows that there is a balance remaining- out of said

sum of $4,500.00, after paying all just and proper claims

and reasonable allowances and expenses in said bank-

ruptcy proceedings, the excess thereof, if any, is to be

paid to said defendants.

to which said conclusion of law an exception in favor of

defendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that such conclusion of law is not sup-

ported by the evidence or by the facts found;

For the further reason that said conclusion of law is

void for uncertainty in that it cannot be determined there-

from what are the "just and proper claims and reasonable

allowances and expenses" by which the liability of de-

fendant to plaintiff is to be determined.

And for the further reason that said conclusion of law

is void in that the liability of defendant to plaintiff is

made by said conclusion to depend upon a report to be

filed by the Referee in Bankruptcy in the matter of the

estate of the Globe Drug Company, Inc., bankrupt, in

which proceeding in bankruptcy defendant is not repre-

sented and has no standing and defendant is therefore

by said conclusion deprived of his day in court to litigate

the reasonableness and propriety of any allowances and

expenses included in said report to be filed by said Referee.

XXIV
The Court erred in making and entering its decree, as

amended, for the reason that there is no substantial evi-

dence to sustain said decree.
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XXV
The Court erred in making and entering its decree, as

amended, for the reason that the facts found do not sus-

tain said decree.

XXVI
The Court erred in making and entering its decree, as

amended, for the reason that said decree is void for un-

certainty in that the amount of defendant's liabiHty to

plaintiff cannot be determined therefrom.

XXVII

The Court erred in making and entering its decree, as

amended, for the reason that said decree is void in that

the liability of defendant to plaintiff is made by said de-

cree to depend upon a report to be filed by one C. E.

Arnold, Referee in Bankruptcy in the matter of the estate

of the Globe Drug Company, Inc., bankrupt, in which

proceeding in bankruptcy defendant is not represented

and has no standing and defendant is therefore by said

decree deprived of his day in court to litigate the reason-

ableness and propriety of any allowances and expenses

included in said report to be filed by said Referee.

XXVIII

The Court erred in denying defendant's petition for a

rehearing upon the ground of newly discovered evidence,

said evidence being that no claim of defendant against

Globe Drug Company, based either upon the judgment

in the sum of $5,364.00, or otherwise, had ever been filed

with plaintiff, as trustee in bankruptcy of the Globe Drug



89

Company, and that the time fur such tiHng had expired,

an exception to which ruhng was taken by defendant and

duly allowed by the Court.

PRAYER FOR REVERSAL

Comes now T. E. Klipstein, defendant and appellant

herein, and prays for a reversal of the decree of the

United States District Court for the Southern District of

California, made and entered the 29th day of December,

1937, as amended by an order of said Court made and

entered on the 2nd day of April, 1938.

Dated this 25th day of April, 1938.

HOMER JOHNSTONE
SIDNEY H. WYSE
By Homer Johnstone

Attorneys for appellant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 25, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

UNDERTAKING ON APPEAL FROM A MONEY
JUDGMENT, AND FOR COSTS

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS : That

we, T. E. Klipstein as principal, and Hartford Accident

and Indemnity Company, a corporation organized and ex-

isting under the laws of the State of Connecticut and

duly licensed to transact a general surety business in the

State of California, as surety, are held and firmly bound

unto the above-named HERBERT P. SEARS, Trustee

of The Estate of Globe Drug Company, Inc., Bankrupt,

in the sum of Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) ; to

which payment well and truly to be made, we bind our-

selves jointly and severally, our heirs, executors, successors

and assigns, respectively, firmly by these presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this 26th day of April,

1938.

WHEREAS, the above-named defendant, T. E. Klip-

stein, has prosecuted his appeal to the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to reverse the

decree entered in said cause, by the United States District

Court for the Southern District of Cahfornia, Northern

Division, on the 29th day of December, 1937, as modified

and amended by an order of said Court made and entered

on the 2nd day of April, 1938, against said defendant

T. E. Klipstein for the sum of Four Thousand Five Hun-

dred Dollars ($4,500.00), including interest and costs.



91

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obhgation

is such that if the above-named defendant T. E. KHp-

stein, shall prosecute his appeal to effect and answer all

costs and damages if he fails to make good his plea, then

this obligation to be void, otherwise in full force and

virtue.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said principal has affixed

his signature hereto, and the said HARTFORD ACCI-

DENT AND INDEMNITY COMPANY, has caused

these presents to be executed and its official seal attached

hereto by its duly authorized ATTORNEY IN FACT,

at Los Angeles, California this 26th day of April A. D.,

1938.

T. E. Klipstein

Principal

[Seal] HARTFORD ACCIDENT AND
INDEMNITY COMPANY,

By E. H. Clare

Its Attorney-in-Fact

APPROVED

:

Leon R. Yankwich

Judge.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) ss.

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

On this 26th day of April, 1938, before me, a Notary

Public in and for the State of California and the County

of Los Angeles, personally appeared T. E. KLIPSTEIN,

known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed

to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that

he executed the same.

[Seal] Helen M. Kilgore

Notary Public in and for the County of Los

Angeles, State of California

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
)

) ss.

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

On this 26th day of April, in the year 1938, before me,

a Notary Public in and for the State and County afore-

said, personally appeared E. H. CLARE, known to me

to be the attorney-in-fact of the corporation that executed

the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such

corporation executed the same.

[Seal] Helen M. Kilgore

Notary Public in and for the County of Los

Angeles, State of California

Examined & recommended for approval as provided

in Rule 28.

Homer Johnstone & S. H. Wyse
Attorneys for Appellant

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 26, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between Her-

bert P. Sears, plaintiil and appellee, and T. E. Klipstein,

defendant and appellant, in the above-entitled cause, by

and through their respective attorneys, that there may be

omitted from the transcript of the record of said cause

on appeal to the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit all affidavits of personal service or service by

mail and all acknowledgments of service of the various

pleadings and documents to be incorporated in said tran-

script.

Dated this 24 day of May, 1938.

A. L. Shannon

C. A. Shuey

Attorneys for plaintiff and appellee

Herbert P. Sears.

Homer Johnstone

Sidney H. Wyse

Attorneys for defendant and appellant

T. E. Klipstein.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 2, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By L. B. Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE

TO THE CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF
THE UNITED STATES FOR THE SOUTH-
ERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA:

You will please incorporate in the transcript of the

record on appeal to the Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, in the above entitled cause, the fol-

lowing, omitting therefrom all affidavits of personal

service or service by mail, acknowledgments of service,

and endorsements, except the dates of filing.

1. Answer of Defendant Lew O. Stelzner.

2. If Motion to Dismiss Bill of Complaint is inserted,

order denying such motion should also be inserted.

Dated: July 25, 1938.

A. L. Shannon

C. A. Shuey

Attorneys for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 26, 1938. R. S. Zimmerman,

Clerk By R. B. Clifton, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE

TO THE CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF
THE UNITED STATES FOR THE SOUTH-
ERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA:

You will please incorporate in the transcript of the

record on appeal to the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, in the above entitled cause, the following,

omitting therefrom all affidavits of personal service or

service by mail, acknowledgments of service, and endorse-

ments, except the dates of filing.

1. Amended Bill of Complaint

2. Stipulation for Filing of Amended Bill of Com-

plaint

3. Answer of Defendant T. E. Klipstein

4. Amendment to the Answer of the Defendant T. E.

Klipstein

5. Stipulation to Set for Trial

6. Trial Brief of Defendant Klipstein, submitted in

lieu of oral argument, omitting therefrom every-

thing except the date of filing and the following

designated portions thereof, to-wit:

"There was a complete failure of proof necessary to

entitle complainant to a recovery against defendant Klip-

stein."
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"There was no proof that defendant Khpstein received

anything by reason of any transaction in question, and

in fact the proof showed affirmatively that he was the

loser by such transactions of more than $5,000.00."

"There was no proof that defendant Klipstein was a

de jure director of the bankrupt, and there was insuf-

ficient proof to hold him as a de facto director."

"Complainant is estopped from asserting that defendant

Klipstein is liable on the causes of action stated."

"Defendant Klipstein therefore asks this Court to de-

clare by its judgment that neither in equity or law has

the complainant the right to recover any part of the I

moneys by him claimed."
j

7. Minute Order of December 4th, 1937 \

8. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (in-

cluding interlineations in long-hand)
,

9. Decree (including interlineations in long-hand)
'

10. Order to Show Cause

11. Minute Order of April 2nd, 1938.

12. Petition for Appeal and Order Allowing Appeal

13. Assignment of Errors

14. Undertaking on Appeal

15. Stipulation for Order of Severance

16. Order of Severance
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17. Statement of Evidence and Order Settling State-

ment of Evidence

18. Citation on Appeal

19. Stipulation of May 24, 1938, regarding certain

omissions from transcript on appeal

20. This Praecipe, with admission of service

You will please print a total of forty (40) copies of

said transcript on appeal.

Homer Johnstone

Sidney H. Wyse

Attorneys for defendant and appellant

T. E. Kilstein

[Endorsed] : Receipt of copy is hereby acknowledged

this 25th day of July, 1938. A. L. Shannon C. A. Shuey

Attorneys for plaintiff and appellee, Herbert P. Sears.

Filed Aug. 2 - 1938. R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk By L. B.

Figg, Deputy Clerk.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE.

I, R. S. Zimmerman, clerk of the United States District

Court for the Southern District of California, do hereby

certify the foregoing volume containing 97 pages, num-

bered from 1 to 97, inclusive, to be the Transcript of

Record on Appeal in the above entitled cause, as printed

by the appellant, and presented to me for comparison and

certification, and that the same has been compared and

corrected by me and contains a full, true and correct cop)

of the citation; stipulation for filing of amended bill of

complaint; amended bill of complaint; answer of T. E.

Klipstein; answer of Lew O. Stelzner; stipulation to set

for trial; amendment to answer of T. E. Klipstein; trial

brief of Klipstein, summary of points discussed; order

of December 4, 1937 finding for plaintiff; findings of

fact and conclusions of law; decree; order to show cause;

order of April 2, 1938 modifying decree, etc. ; statement

of evidence; stipulation for order of severance; petition

for appeal and order allowing appeal; assignment of er-

rors; undertaking on appeal from a money judgment and

for costs; stipulation; praecipe for appellee; praecipe for

appellant.

DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the amount paid for

printing the foregoing Record on Appeal is $ and

that said amount has been paid the printer by the appellant

herein and a receipted bill is herewith enclosed, also that

the fees of the Clerk for comparing, correcting and certi-
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fying the foregoing Record on Appeal amount to $

and that said amount has been paid me by the appellant

herein.

IN TESTIMOxVY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

hand and affixed the Seal of the District Court of the

United States of America, in and for the Southern

District of California, Central Division, this

day of September, in the year of Our Lord One

Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty-eight and of our

Independence the One Hundred and Sixty-third.

R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk of the District Court of the

United States of America, in

and for the Southern District

of California.

By

Deputy.
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T. E. Klipstein,

JIerbert p. Sears, Trustee in Bankruptcy of the Estate

of Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

BASIS OF JURISDICTION.

The basis on which it is contended that the District

Court had jurisdiction, as disclosed by complainant's

amended bill [Tr. p. 5J, is section 70(e) of the National

Bankruptcy Act (Act of July 1, 1898, c. 541, §70(e), 30

Stat. 565, as amended by Act of Feb. 5, 1903, c. 487, §16,

32 Stat. 800, U. S. C. A. (1928), Title 11, §1 10(e).

This appeal is from a fmal decree entered in a suit in

equity before the District Court for the Southern District

of California. [Tr. p. 32.]
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This is a separate appeal by the defendant T. E. Klip-

stein from a final decree in a suit in equity brought by

the complainant Sears, as trustee of the estate of Globe

Drug Company, Inc., bankrupt, to compel the defendant

Lew O. Stelzner and the defendant and appellant T. E.

Klipstein to account for moneys alleged to have been

illegally diverted from the corporation.

Complainant's amended bill [Tr. p. 5] alleged that at

all times since 1928 Globe Drug Company, Inc., was a

duly organized California corporation of which defend-

ants Stelzner and Klipstein were stockholders, directors

and officers ; that in 1928 Stelzner and KHpstein borrowed

$17,0CX).00 from Bank of America on their joint promis-

sory note and used the proceeds to purchase certain out-

standing shares of the corporation; that from that time

until October 19, 1935, at least $12,200.00 was paid from

corporate funds upon the note, for which payments the

corporation received no consideration; that during this

period the corporation owed various sums to various

creditors and was insolvent and that such payments were

made for the purpose of hindering, delaying and defraud-

ing creditors; that on October 19, 1935, the balance unpaid

on the note was $4,800.00 and that on that day Stelzner

and Klipstein, as directors and officers, executed a promis-

sory note of the corporation to the bank in said amount;

that Klipstein thereupon purchased the corporate note

from the bank and brought an action against the corpora-

tion in which a default judgment was allowed to be en-

tered and all of the assets of the corporation, of the value

of $5,000.00, sold at public auction by the sheriff; that

said suit and sale were effected for the purpose of hinder-

ing, delaying and defrauding creditors; that the corpora-
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tion was adjudicated a bankrupt in April, 1936; that Sears

was appointed trustee of its estate on April 18, 1936;

that creditors have proved their claims in the bankruptcy

proceedings and that the assets of the estate are insuf-

ficient to pay such claims in full.

Defendant Stelzner, answering separately [Tr. p. 16],

admitted that he had personally borrowed the money from

the bank and had used the same to purchase stock of the

corporation ; alleged that Klipstein had endorsed Stelzner's

note to the bank for the accommodation of Stelzner, who

caused the stock purchased to be issued to Klipstein as

security; admitted that payments were made as alleged

on the note but denied that the corporation was insolvent

at such times; admitted that suit had been brought by

Klipstein and a sale held, but alleged that the reasonable

value of the stock of goods sold was $1,900.00; denied

that any actions were taken by either Stelzner or Klip-

stein with the intent to hinder, defraud or delay creditors.

Klipstein, also answering separately [Tr. p. 11;

also p. 21], admitted that the corporation had filed its

articles but denied that it was otherwise at any time duly

organized or existing; denied that Klipstein was ever a

stockholder, director or officer of the corporation ; admitted

the bankruptcy and the appointment of Sears as trustee;

admitted the loan from the bank to Stelzner but denied

that any part thereof was received by Klipstein, or that

any stock was purchased for him ; alleged that Klipstein

signed the note as an accommodation party only and re-

ceived no consideration at any time for his signature; ad-

mitted that certain payments were made on the note, the

amounts of which were unknown to him, but denied that

the payments were made from corporate funds; denied

that tlic purported corporation had creditors and denied
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that the purported corporation was insolvent at the time

of making any such payments ; denied that the drug com-

pany received no consideration for such payments; denied

that such payments were made for the purpose of hinder-

ing, delaying or defrauding creditors ; admitted that a note

was given by the purported corporation to the bank on

October 19, 1935 ; admitted that a suit was brought by

Klipstein against the corporation but denied that said suit

was brought for any fraudulent purpose and denied that

the assets sold were of the value of $5,000.00; denied that

the corporation was insolvent on October 19, 1935 ; denied

for lack of information and belief that the corporation

had creditors still unpaid and that there were insufficient

assets to pay such creditors in full; pleaded the statute of

limitations and alleged that Sears was estopped from

any claim against KHpstein.

The suit was tried by the court, a jury having been

waived, upon the issues raised by the amended bill and

the respective answers of the defendants Stelzner and

Klipstein. At the trial the only evidence introduced by

complainant was the testimony of Stelzner, C. H. Landes

(an officer of Bank of America) and Richard A. Pawson

(a representative of a creditor of the corporation), and

certain exhibits. On behalf of the defendants there was

produced the testimony of Klipstein and Sears and sev-

eral exhibits. There were no conflicts in the evidence,

which undisputedly shows the following state of facts:

Articles of Incorporation of Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

were filed with the Secretary of State of the state of Cali-

fornia on July 17, 1920, by Stelzner, V. J. Moore and

James F. Brazill. The authorized capital stock of the

corporation was 25,000 shares of a par value of $1.00 per

share. The board of directors was to consist of three (3)

members. [Tr. pp. 52-53.]
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No permit to issue any such shares was at any time

granted to the corporation by the Commissioner of Cor-

porations of the state of CaHfornia. [Tr. pp. 57, 64.]

Some time prior to January 3, 1928, an agreement was

reached among Stelzner, Moore and one G. D. Holmquist,

the then sole stockholders, by which Stelzner was to buy

out the interests of Moore and Holmquist for the sum of

$17,000.00. KHpstein, Stelzner's brother-in-law, agreed

to aid Stelzner in raising the necessary funds. [Tr. pp.

55, 60.]

On January 3, 1928, the sum of $17,000.00 was bor-

rowed by Stelzner from Bank of America, at Bakers-

field. A note for that amount was signed and Klipstein

affixed his signature to the note as an accommodation

maker. [Tr. pp. 55, 57.] The stock held by the other

parties was purchased by Stelzner and the certificates

placed in the name of Klipstein. [Tr. p. 55.] At the

same time proceedings were held to make Klipstein an

officer and director of the drug company. At stockholders

and directors meetings on December 31, 1927, Klipstein

was purportedly elected a director and vice-president, and

at a directors meeting on January 4, 1928, purportedly

elected secretary. [Tr. p. 53.] Klipstein never at any

time received any consideration for placing his signature

on the note. [Tr. pp. 57, 60.]

No meetings of directors or stockholders were held for

the next ensuing seven years, that is between January 23,

1928, and October 19, 1935. [Tr. pp. 53, 62.] During

this period Stelzner was in sole charge of the drug store

and Klipstein, who was in the title business, took no part

and had no interest therein. [Tr. pp. 57, 60.] Between

these dates payments of principal and interest on the loan

were made by Stelzner to the bank. All such payments,
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with the exception of $500.00 paid in 1934, were made

from the funds of the drug company, which received no

consideration therefor. [Tr. pp. 55, 61.] On each of the

dates when any such payment was made the drug com-

pany was indebted to McKesson & Robbins, a wholesale

drug concern, in at least the amount paid on the principal

of the loan, on open credit account. [ Tr. pp. 48-51.]

On October 19, 1935, the balance due on the principal

of the loan was $4,800.00. [Tr. p. 44.] Several months

prior to this date Klipstein hrst learned that Stelzner had

unpaid creditors. [Tr. p. 60.] Klipstein thereupon con-

sulted his attorneys at Bakersfield as to what should be

done. [Tr. p. 62.] Pursuant to their advice the follow-

ing steps were taken. On October 19, 1935, Klipstein

demanded that the drug company execute a note to the

bank in the sum of $4,800.00. A meeting was held on

that day and the note was authorized, executed and de-

livered to the bank. Klipstein thereupon delivered his

personal note in such amount to the bank in exchange for

the drug company's note, which personal note was subse-

quently paid in full by Klipstein from his personal funds.

[Tr. pp. 60-63.]

A suit was immediately commenced by Klipstein against

the drug company for the amount of the note and $500.00

which he had paid to the bank in 1934. [Tr. p. 56.]

This action was brought without prior notice to Stelzner

for the purpose of preventing a further loss to the drug

company, which at the time was unable to pay its rent,

had a depleted stock and was losing money from day to

day. [Tr. pp. 56, 61.]

Stelzner, believing there was no defense, defaulted.

[Tr. p. 56.] Judgment was entered, execution issued and

the stock and fixtures, which prior to the sale had been
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appraised by a druggist at $2,200.00, were sold at public

sale by the sheriff to Mr. Vest, an outsider, for $1,935.00.

[Tr. pp. 58, 61.] The proceeds of the sale, less costs and

expenses, were held by Klipstein's attorneys for the benefit

of creditors and subsequently paid to Sears. [Tr. p. 58.]

Creditors were notified of the proceedings by letters sent

by Sears to the Board of Trade at San Francisco and the

Los Angeles Wholesalers' Board of Trade. [Tr. pp. 64-

65.] Klipstein instructed his attorneys to file a claim

based on this judgment in the bankruptcy proceedings

and to waive the claim at the meeting of creditors. [Tr.

p. 61.]

During all of the period in consideration, and at the

trial, Klipstein was unable to recognize the legal distinc-

tion between Stelzner as an individual and the drug com-

pany as a corporate entity. Klipstein regarded himself as

a creditor of the corporation as well as of Stelzner and

considered the judgment against the drug company as a

judgment against Stelzner. [Tr. pp. 61-63.] Stelzner

shared this belief. [Tr. p. 56.]

Globe Drug Company, Inc., was adjudicated a bank-

rupt on March 6, 1936, and Sears appointed trustee of its

estate on April 18, 1936. This suit was commenced on

October 20, 1936.

After trial by the court a decision in favor of Sears

was announced by minute order made on December 4,

1937 [Tr. p. 24], and on December 29, 1937, the court

made special findings and entered its decree [Tr. pp. 26-

33], which decree was modified by a further order made
on April 2, 1938. [Tr. pp. 36-37.] Stelzner has not ap-

pealed. [Tr. p. 68.]

This appeal was taken by Klipstein from the decree of

the trial court, as amended. Being an equity appeal the
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whole case is before the appellate court for decision on

the merits, giving due weight to the findings of fact made

by the trial judge. More particularly the questions to be

considered arise from the exceptions taken below to (1)

the findings of fact on the ground that certain designated

and material findings are unsupported by any substantial

evidence, (2) to the decree on the ground that it is unsup-

ported by the evidence and the findings and (3) to the

decree on the ground that such decree is void upon its

face. These objections were made to the trial court and

the fact thereof noted by the allowance of exceptions to

the findings of fact and conclusions of law at the foot

thereof and a further allowance of exception noted at the

foot of the decree, as amended.

(Index to)

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERRORS RELIED UPON.

Assigned Error No. XII [Transcript page 79]

Assigned Error No. XIII [Transcript page 80]

Assigned Error No. XIV [Transcript page 80]

Assigned Error No. XV [Transcript page 81]

Assigned Error No. XVI [Transcript page 82]

Assigned Error No. XVII [Transcript page 83]

Assigned Error No. XVIII [Transcript page 83]

Assigned Error No. XXI [Transcript page 85]

Assigned Error No. XXIV [Transcript page 87]

Assigned Error No. XXV [Transcript page S8]

Assigned Error No. XXVII [Transcript page 88]
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.

A. The appellate court in an appeal from a decree

entered in an equity suit has before it both the facts and

the law. It may consider the evidence supporting the find-

ings and decree and may finally dispose of the case in

accordance with its view of such evidence. Due weight is

to be given to the findings made by the trial court but the

appellate court is not bound by the findings, when clearly

contrary to the weight of the evidence. This is true even

in cases where there is substantial evidence in support of

such findings.

B. There is no substantial evidence to support, in

whole or in part, certain material findings of fact made by

the trial court. Such findings are:

1. Finding of Fact. No. Ill [Tr. p. 27]

2. Finding of Fact No. I\' [Tr. p. 27]

3. Finding of Fact No. II [Tr. p. 26]

4. Finding of Fact No. VIII [Tr. p. 29]

5. Findings of Fact Nos. V, VI and VII [Tr. pp.

28-29], considered as a group.

C. Complainant's substantive rights under the cause

of action asserted in his amended bill are governed exclu-

sively by the statutes and decisions of the state of Cali-

fornia.

1. The evidence does not support the decree under the

CaHfornia law relating to fraudulent transfers for the
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reasons that (a) there is no evidence of a transfer within

the meaning of such law, (b) there is no evidence and no

finding of actual fraud on the part of Klipstein, and (c)

there is no evidence that the drug company was insolvent

at any time prior to the date of the adjudication in bank-

ruptcy.

2. The evidence does not support the decree under the

'CaHfornia law relating to the liabilities of directors and

officers of corporations for the reasons that (a) the un-

disputed evidence shows that Klipstein was never a de jure

officer or director of the drug company and there is no

substantial evidence that he was a de facto officer or direc-

tor, and (b) there is no evidence that there were creditors

existing at the time of the alleged transfers whose claims

equal the amount of the decree and are still unpaid.

D. The decree is not supported by the findings in that

there is no finding that any creditors have proved their

claims in the bankruptcy proceedings and remain unpaid.

E. The decree entered is void in that the extent of

Klipstein's liability is made thereby to depend upon a re-

port made by a referee in a proceeding in which KHpstein

is not represented and has no standing to dispute the

propriety of any items in such report.
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ARGUMENT.

The appellate court in an appeal from a decree entered

in an ecpity suit has before it both the facts and the law.

It may consider the evidence supporting the findings and

decree and may finally dispose of the case in accordance

with its view of such evidence. Due weight is to be given

to the findings made by the trial court but the appellate

court is not bound by the findings, when clearly contrary

to the weight of the evidence. This is true even in cases

where there is substantial evidence in support of such

findings.

This action is in equity and was so pleaded and tried.

The scope of the appellate court's review on an appeal

from a final decree entered in an equity action has been

stated by the Supreme Court in the case of Keller v. Po-

' tomac Electric Power Company, 261 U. S. 428, 43 S. Ct.

445 (1923), to be as follows:

"In that (equity) procedure, an appeal brings up

the whole record and the appellate court is authorized

to review the evidence and make such order or decree

as the Court of first instance ought to have made,

giving proper weight to the findings on disputed

issues of fact which should be accorded to a tribunal

which heard the witnesses."
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In accord with this statement are the cases of:

Presidio Mining Company v. Overton, 270 Fed.

388 (C. C A. 9th, 1921);

Title Guarantee & Trust Company v. United

States, 50 Fed. (2d) 544 (C. C. A. 9th, 1931);

Johnson v. Umsted, 64 Fed. (2d) 316 (C. C. A.

8th, 1933);

Aro Equipment Corporation v. Herring-Wissler

Company, 84 Fed. (2d) 619 (C. C. A. 8th,

1936).

This rule has not been changed by the adoption, in 1930,

of Equity Rule 70^, requiring the separate statement of

findings of fact and conclusions of law. The effect of the

new equity rule is merely to give the findings made by the

trial court on disputed questions of fact the presumption

of correctness. See Broughton & Wiggins Navigation

Company v. Hammond Lumber Company, 84 Fed. (2d)

496 (C. C. A. 9th, 1936), construing the identically

worded admiralty rule (Admiralty Rule 46^); Hyland

V. Miller s National Insurance Company, 91 Fed. (2d) 735

(C. C. A. 9th, 1937).

Due to the undisputed character of all of the testimony

in the case at bar this court is free to make whatever

disposition of the cause appears to it just, accepting or

rejecting the theories indulged in by the trial court. The

basis of that court's decision is disclosed in its order direct-

ing judgment for plaintiff in which it "finds in favor of

the plaintiff and (upon the authority of In re Wright

Motor Company (C. C. A. 9th, 1924), 299 Fed. 106)

orders a decree, etc." [Tr. p. 24.]
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In so doing the court, as appellant respectfully contends,

indulged in either one or the other of the following unten-

able theories, namely:

(a) that the question involved was one of general

law as to which the court was not bound by the

statutes and decisions of the state of California, or

(b) that the law of California had remained un-

changed since the date of the Wright Motor Com-
pany case (1924) and that under such law complain-

ant was not required to establish by evidence such

material facts as the insolvency of the drug company

at any time prior to its adjudication in bankruptcy or

the existence of creditors still unpaid whose claims

antedate the alleged withdrawals.

It may be noted in passing that the order referred to

was entered on December 4, 1937, prior to the overruling

of Szcift V. Tyson, 41 U. S. 1, 10 L. Ed. 865 (1842), by

the decision of the Supreme Court of the United States

in Erie Railroad Company v. Tompkins, 304 U. S. 64, 58

S. Ct. 817, decided in April of 1938. The Erie Railroad

Company case has the result of rendering decisions of the

federal courts on general law questions no longer au-

thoritative and limits the substantive law administered by

such courts to the substantive law of the state in which

the particular cause arose. As will be pointed out in this

brief the applicable California laws were not followed in

deciding this case. In addition to the wholly different

factual set-up involved in the Wright Motor Company

case the statutory and constitutional provisions upon

which that case was based had been entirely changed be-

fore the occurrence of events involved in the case at bar.
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Assignment of Error No. XIII.

There is no substantial evidence to support finding of

fact No. Ill, upon the issues raised by the amended bill,

paragraph III [Tr. p. 6], and KHpstein's answer, para-

graph III [Tr. p. 11], assigned as error on this appeal as

follows [Tr. p. 80] :

"The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number III, as follows:

That on January 3, 1928, the defendants Lew O.

Stelzner and T. E. Klipstein borrowed the sum of

$17,000.00 from the Bank of America, and in con-

sideration of such loan executed to such bank their

personal joint and several promissory note for the

same; that said sum of $17,000.00 was thereupon

used by said defendants for the purpose of purchas-

ing certain issued and outstanding shares of said

Globe Drug Company, Inc., for their own personal

and individual accounts.'; to which said finding an

exception in favor of defendants was duly allowed

and noted at the foot of the Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."

There is no evidence whatever that Klipstein ever bor-

rowed the sum of $17,000.00 or any other sum from

Bank of America or that Klipstein ever used any money

borrowed by Stelzner or anyone else from the bank for

the purpose of purchasing shares of Globe Drug Com-

pany, Inc., for his account. The evidence indisputably

shows that the sum mentioned was borrowed by Stelzner,

that Stelzner purchased the stock, that KHpstein's signa-

ture on the note at the bank was made for accommodation
(
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only and that the shares purchased were placed in Klip-

stein's name as security only.

Mr. Landes, an officer of the bank, called as a witness

by Sears, testified that the bank records showed a loan to

Stelzner, evidenced by a note "endorsed or secured" by the

signature of Klipstein. [Tr. p. 39.] Photostatic copies

of the bank records in question, introduced into evidence

as Plaintiff's Exhibit 3 [Tr. p. 44], corroborate Mr.

Landes and sh()^^- that the loan account was carried in the

name of Stelzner only and that in the margin of said ac-

count there was a notation that the account was "en-

dorsed or secured" by Klipstein.

Stelzner testified that the note was signed by KHpstein

as a personal accommodation to Stelzner and that Klip-

stein never received any part of the money borrowed or

anything else for his accommodation. [Tr. p. 57.] Con-

cerning the purchase of the stock Stelzner testified that 'T

received the proceeds of said loan and used the same to

buy the stock * * *" [Tr. p. 55], and Stelzner subse-

quently referred to the shares as "the stock that I bought."

[Tr. p. 56.]

Klipstein testified that in 1928 he "aided" Stelzner in

procuring the money from the bank "to buy out his part-

ners." [Tr. p. 60.] Klipstein further testified that the

money was received by Stelzner and that Klipstein never

at any time received any consideration of any kind for

placing his name on the note. [Tr. p. 60.]

This was the only evidence produced on the issue as

to the intention of the parties in regard to the stock placed

in the name of Klipstein on the books of the drug com-

pany. It is perfectly obvious that the stock purchased was

])urchased by Stelzner from money which Stelzner bor-

rowed, that Klipstein's entire connection with the trans-
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action was in the character of a guarantor and that the

stock was put in his name for security only, as alleged in

Stelzner's answer. [Tr. p. 16.] There was no evidence

nor can the inference be drawn from any evidence in the

record that it was ever at any time the intention of either

Stelzner or Klipstein that Klipstein should be beneficially

interested to any extent in the shares purchased.

Assignment of Error No. XIV.

There is no substantial evidence to support finding of

fact No. IV upon the issues raised by the amended bill,

paragraph IV^ [Tr. p. 6], and Klipstein's answer, para-

graph IV [Tr. p. 12], assigned as error on this appeal as

follows [Tr. p. 80] :

''The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number IV, as follows

:

'That during the period of time from the execu-

tion of said note up to October 19, 1935, various pay-

ments were made on account of the principal and in-

terest of said note, aggregating a sum in excess of

$12,200.00; that all of such payments were made by,
|

and directly from and with the funds of, said cor-
|

poration; that at each and all of the times when said
j

payments were made as aforesaid, said corporation
|

owed various sums of money to various creditors,
j

such indebtedness at such times being in excess of

the amounts of such respective payments; that no
j

consideration whatsoever was ever received by said
|

corporation for or in connection with any of said

payments; that for a period of at least three years
j

prior to the date of its adjudication in bankruptcy,

said corporation was in an insolvent condition; that
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the payments made by said corporation on the per-

sonal note of said defendants during said three-year

period aggregated a sum of at least $4,255.54; that

each and all of said payments were made as afore-

said with the purpose and intent on the part of said

corporation, and of said defendants, of hindering,

delaying, and defrauding the creditors of said cor-

poration.'; to which said finding an exception in

favor of defendant was duly allowed and noted at

the foot of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."

The only evidence in the record in any way bearing

upon the finding ''that at each and all of the times when

said payments were made as aforesaid, said corporation

owed various sums of money to various creditors, such

indebtedness at such times being in excess of such re-

spective payments;" is the testimony of Mr. Pawson, as-

sistant credit manager of McKesson & Langley, who pre-

pared lists [Complainant's Exhibit 4, Tr. p. 48], showing

the debit balance of Globe Drug Company, Inc. on the

books of McKesson & Langley on the various dates when

payments of principal and interest were made to the

bank. [Tr. p. 45.] The testimony and the exhibit shows

only that the drug company during a period of some seven

and a half years maintained an open credit account with

one wholesale drug concern and that the average balance

in said account during that period was around $1,000.00.

There is no evidence in the record that the drug store had

any other creditors during this period, so that the finding

that there were "various creditors" is absolutely unsup-

ported. This lack of evidence is very important to appel-
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lant because appellee's rights in this action are limited

to the rights of creditors whom he represents. Davis v.

Willey, 273 Fed. 397 (C. C. A. 9th, 1921).

Sears pleaded in his amended bill that the drug store

was insolvent from date of the execution of the note

(January 3, 1928) to October 19, 1935 [paragraph IV,

Tr. p. 6], which allegation was specifically denied by Klip-

stein in his answer. [Paragraph IV, Tr. p. 12.] The

court found that "for a period of at least three years prior

to the date of its adjudication in bankruptcy, said corpora-

tion was in an insolvent condition."

There is an absolute lack of evidence to sustain any such

finding. The only proof in the record in any way relevant

to this issue is: (1) Mr. Pawson's testimony that the

drug store was indebted to McKesson & Langley on open

account during the entire period [Tr. p. 45] ; (2) Klip-

stein's admission in his answer [paragraph I, Tr. p. 11],

of complainant's allegation in its amended bill [paragraph

I, Tr. p. 5] that Globe Drug Company, Inc., was adjudi'

cated a bankrupt in the month of April, 1936; and (3)

Klipstein's testimony that he first learned that there were

"unpaid creditors" [Tr. p. 60], a few months prior to the

filing of the Kern County action, i. e., prior to October 19,

1935. [See Complainant's Exhibit 7, Tr. p. 56.]

There is no further evidence bearing in any way upon

the financial standing of the company at any time during

the period of the withdrawals. This evidence without

more is obviously insufficient to establish the fact of in-

solvency for any three-year or other period prior to the

date of the adjudication in bankruptcy.

Appellant will not here argue the sufficiency of the evi-

dence to support the finding that "each and all of said

payments were made as aforesaid with the purpose and
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intent on the part of said corporation and of said defend-

ants, of hindering, delaying and defrauding the creditors

of said corporation." It is appellant's contention in this

regard that this and certain other findings containing

similar language must be interpreted in view of the find-

ings as a whole in order to determine the intent of the

trial court in making such findings. Appellant will there-

fore reserve his argument on this point for a later part

of his brief.

Assignment of Error No. XII.

There is no substantial evidence to support finding of

fact No. II, on the issues raised by the amended bill,

paragraph II [Tr. p. 6], and the amendment to Klip-

stein's answer, paragraph I [Tr. p. 21], assigned as error

on this appeal as follows [Tr. p. 79] :

"The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number II as follows:

'That at all times herein mentioned said Globe

Drug Company, Inc., was a corporation duly organ-

ized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of

the State of California; that ever since January 3,

1928, the defendant Lew O. Stelzner was a stock-

holder, the president and one of the members of the

Board of Directors of said corporation and the de-

fendant T. E. Klipstein was a stockholder, the secre-

tary, and one of the members of the Board of Direc-

tors of said corporation.';

to which said finding an exception in favor of de-

fendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the

Findings of Fact and' Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."
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The point raised in this assignment of error will be dis-

cussed at some length infra in the argument addressed to

the question of the propriety of the decree under the Cali-

fornia law relating to liabilities of directors and officers of

corporations.

In view of the evidence of Stelzner [Tr. p. 57] and

the Commissioner of Corporations [Tr. p. 64] that no

permit to issue stock was ever procured, Klipstein never

became a de jure director or officer under the California

law then in effect.

General Laws of California (Deering, 1923), Act

3814, Sec. 12;

Klinker v. Guarantee Title Co., 98 Cal. App. 469,

277 Pac. 177 (1929);

Regan v. Albin, 219 Cal. 357, 26 Pac. (2d) 475

(1933).

Moreover there was no evidence whatever of any acts

which might make Klipstein a de facto officer during the

period of the withdrawals. The first payment to the bank

was on April 3, 1928 [Tr. p. 41], the last on August 9,

1935. [Tr. pp. 40, 42.] There is absolutely no evidence

that Klipstein ever attended any meeting, or signed any

documents, or authorized or consented to any withdrawal,

or otherwise in any manner whatsoever took any part in

the management or business of the drug store from Janu-

ary 23, 1928, to October 19, 1935. There is therefore no

evidence of any kind from which it could be inferred that

KHpstein was a de facto officer or director of the corpora-
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tion durini;" any part of the period in which the acts com-

plained of occurred.

"One in actual possession of an oflice under claim

and color of election or appointment, and coiitiiiiially

exercising its fiiiictioiis and discharging its ditties, is

an officer de facto."

Fletcher, Cyclopedia of Corporations (Perm. Ed.

1931), Vol. 2, p. 145.

Assignment of Error No. XVIII.

There is no substantial evidence to support finding of

fact Xo. Mil, upon the issues raised by the amended

bill, paragraph II [Tr. p. 9] and Klipstein's answer, para-

graph X [Tr. p. 13], assigned as error on this appeal as

follows [Tr. p. 83] :

"The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number VIII, as follows:

'That the payments made out of said corporation's

funds as aforesaid, were authorized and consented to

by the defendants while they were acting as officers

and directors of said corporation, and while they were

stockholders thereof ; that said payments were not

made out of surplus or net profits of said corporation,

nor was said corporation then in the process of wind-

ing up or dissolution ; that said payments were made

without the vote or written consent of any of the

shares of said corporation other than the shares held

by the defendants; that no permit of the Commis-

sioner of Corporations of the State of California was

ever appHed for or issued authorizing such payments'

;

to which said finding an exception in favor of de-
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fendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of

the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."

There is not one word of evidence that Klipstein ever

"authorized" or "assented to" any withdrawal of corpo-

rate funds, or that he even knew or suspected the source

from which Stelzner procured the money to pay the bank.

Neither was there any word of evidence from which a

finding could be made that such payments were not made

from net surplus. It is impossible for any court to say,

on the record in this case, at what time, if ever, the capital

stock of the drug company became impaired prior to Octo-

ber, 1935. In these respects finding of fact No. VIII is

absolutely and completely unsupported.

Assignments of Error Nos. XV, XVI & XVII.

There is no substantial evidence to support findings of

fact Nos. V, VI and VII upon the issues raised by the

amended bill, paragraphs V, VI and VII [Tr. pp. 7, 8],

and Klipstein's answer, paragraphs V, VI and VII [Tr.

p. 12], assigned as errors on this appeal as follows [Tr.

pp. 81-83] :

Assignment of Error No. XV.

"The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number V, as follows

:

That on or about October 19, 1935, there remained

unpaid on the principal of said promissory note a

balance of $4,800.00; that on or about said date de-

fendants, acting as directors and officers of said cor-

poration, caused to be executed to said Bank of
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America the promissory note of said corporation in

the sum of $4,800.00; that said note was thereupon

accepted by said bank in payment of the balance due

on said promissory note of the defendants; that said

corporation received no consideration for the execu-

tion of said note; either directly or indirectly.';

to which said finding an exception in favor of defend-

ant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of the

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."

Assignment of Error No. XVL

'The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number VT, as follows

:

'That shortly after the execution of said last men-

tioned promissory note, the defendant Klipstein pur-

chased the same from said bank and thereupon, and

on October 19, 1935, commenced an action in the

Superior Court of the State of California, in and for

the County of Kern, to recover from said corpora-

tion the amount alleged by him to have been so paid

in the purchase of said note; that thereafter the

illegally and without right or cause [LRY]
defendants, fraudulently permitted said corporation

to suffer a default judgment to be entered in said

action against it for the sum of $5,364.00; that there-

after execution was issued on said judgment, pursuant

to which all of the properties and assets of said

corporation were sold at public auction by the sheriff

of said county.'

;

to which said finding an exception in favor of de-

fendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of

the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.



—24—

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."

Assignment of Error No. XVII.

"The Court erred in making and entering its Find-

ing of Fact Number VII, as follows

:

'That at the time said action was commenced and

said execution sale was effected as aforesaid, said cor-

poration owed various sums of money to various

creditors and was insolvent, and said action was com-

menced and prosecuted, such judgment was suffered

to be taken, and said execution sale effected with the

purpose and intent on the part of said corporation and

the defendants of hindering, delaying, and defrauding

the creditors of said corporation.';

to which said finding an exception in favor of de-

fendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot of

the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that there is no competent evidence

in the record to support such finding."

The three assignments of error above set out deal as a ,

. ... .
i

group with the action brought by Klipstein in the Superior

Court of the state of CaHfornia for Kern county. Most )

of the facts stated in these three findings are in accordance ,

with the undisputed evidence produced. The finding that !

the corporations owed various sums of money to various

creditors and was insolvent on the date that judgment was

entered in that action has already been considered in con-
j

nection with Assignment of Error No. XIV, supra. The

finding that the sale was made for the purpose of hinder-

ing, delaying and defrauding creditors and the legal con-

clusion that the default was suffered "illegally and without
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right or cause" will be considered below in connection with

the question of intent expressed by the findings as a whole.

Appellant desires to raise the question of these three

assignments of error as a group because they relate to a

phase of the case that is absolutely irrelevant to the relief

granted by the trial court. It is appellant's belief that these

findings are unsupported in the particulars above men-

tioned but that these findings whether supported or not

have no bearing on the case. No one was injured by the

execution of the corporate note—the note was never paid

and was returned to the company. [Tr. p. 61.] No one

was injured by the judgment—nothing was ever paid on

it. [Tr. p. 62.] No one w^as injured by the execution

sale—the proceeds were turned over to Sears, as trustee,

and there is no hint in the record that the sales price

was not absolutely fair. [Tr. pp. 58, 62.] As a matter

of fact Klipstein's testimony that the creditors in fact

benefited by the whole proceeding was undisputed. [Tr.

p. 61.] Whether Klipstein had any right of action against

the company depends on the law of alter ego. It is ob-

vious that he believed he had such a right and Stelzner

himself shared this belief. [Tr. pp. 63, 56.] Klipstein's

action was undoubtedly taken as the result of poor advice

by his then attorneys, who should have known that such

a suit would appear improper to creditors even if brought

for the purpose of preventing Stelzner from further de-

pleting the assets of the corporation. Klipstein's good

faith in the matter is conclusively shown, however, and

since there is no evidence that the corporation was in any

way injured the findings based on this phase of the case

are irrelevant and unnecessary. Appellant does not be-

lieve that appellee will attempt to use any portions of such

findings to sustain the decree. In fairness they should be

stricken as needlessly coloring the record.
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Complainant's substantive rights under the cause of

action asserted in his amended bill are governed exclu-

sively by the statutes and decisions of the state of Cali-

fornia.

The jurisdiction of the court below was invoked, and

could only be invoked, under section 70(e) of the National

Bankruptcy Act as it existed at the time when suit was

brought (Act of July 1, 1898, c. 541, §70(e), 30 Stat. 565,

as amended by Act of Feb. 5, 1903, c. 487, §16, 32 Stat.

800, U. S. C. A. (1928), Title 11, §110 (e)). Diversity

of citizenship was neither pleaded nor proved so that the

claimed jurisdiction must rest within the exceptions, stated

in section 23(b) of the Act, to the general rule that the

trustee, except with the consent of the proposed defend-

ants, may only sue in the federal courts in which the bank-

rupt could have sued had bankruptcy not intervened. See

Wood V. A. Wilbert's Sons Shingle & Lumber Company,

226 U. S. 384, 33 S. Ct. 184 (1912). There is of course

no question of consent in this case. [See Assigned Error

No. I, Tr. p. 71.]

The only actions excepted from the general rule by the

express provisions of section 23(b) are those brought for

the recovery of property under sections 60(b), 67(e) and

70(e). Both 60(b) and 67 {t) relate solely to actions

brought to invalidate certain enumerated transactions oc-

curring within four months of the bankruptcy. Since in

the case at bar all transfers are conceded to have been

made more than four months prior to the bankruptcy it is

obvious that jurisdiction can only be sustained, if at all,

under section 70(e). If appellee on this appeal should

attempt to sustain the decree under any other section of

the Bankruptcy Act he would automatically forfeit his

right to claim that the court below had jurisdiction.
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Section 70(e) of the National Bankruptcy Act, in effect

during- the entire period under consideration, was as fol-

lows :

"e. The trustee may avoid any transfer by the

bankrupt of his property which any creditor of such

bankrupt might have avoided, and may recover the

property so transferred, or its value from the person

to whom it was transferred, unless he was a bona

fide holder for value prior to the dates of the adjudi-

cation. Such property may be recovered or its value

collected from whoever may have received it, except

a bona fide holder for value. For the purpose of such

recovery any court of bankruptcy as hereinbefore de-

fined, and any State court which would have had

jurisdiction if bankruptcy had not intervened, shall

have concurrent jurisdiction."

It is well settled that this section does not confer upon

the trustee in bankruptcy any substantive rights in addi-

tion to those which creditors would have possessed had

bankruptcy not intervened. See:

Stellzuagcn v. Cliim, 245 U. S. 605, 38 S. Ct. 215

(1918);

Davis V. VVilley, 273 Fed. 397 (C. C. A. 9th,

1921);

Peier Barcelona Company v. Buffuui, 61 Fed. (2d)

145 (C. C. A. 9th, 1932), reversed on other

grounds sub iioni. Buffum v. Barceloiix, 289

U. S. 227, 53 S. Ct. 539 (1933).

In the case last cited the Circuit Court of Appeals states

:

".
. . it has been uniformly held that this pro-

vision (section 70e) of the Bankruptcy Act does not

give any substantive right in cases of transfer made
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more than four months before the institution of the

bankruptcy proceeding, but merely authorizes the

trustee to enforce the rights of creditors in accord-

ance with the laws of the state applicable to the

transaction."

Since all the transactions involved in this case took

place entirely within the state of California and no extra-

state contacts were involved, the rights of creditors seek-

ing to secure the relief which the trustee is now asking de-

pend upon the substantive law of the state of California

as contained in its statutes and decisions. This would of

course be true in any action brought by a creditor in the

state courts and would be true as well in any similar action

in the federal courts, which are bound to follow both the

statutes and decisions of the state, (See Act of Septem-

ber 24, 1789, c. 20, §34, 1 Stat. 92, U. S. C. A. (1928),

Title 11, §725; Erie Railroad Company v. Tompkins, 304

U. S. 64, 58 S. Ct. 817 (1938).)

Assignment of Error No. XXI. [Tr. p. 85.]

"The Court erred in making and entering its Con-
i

elusion of Law Number I, as follows:

'That all the payments made out of said corpora-
j

tion's funds as above described, were wrongfully and
\

[LRY] in law i

illegally made, and were and are fraudulent ^ and void
;

as to plaintiff.'
|

to which said conclusion of law an exception in favor
;

of defendant was duly allowed and noted at the foot '

of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

For the reason that such conclusion of law is not

;

supported by the evidence or by the facts found."
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Assignment of Error No. XXIV. [Tr. p. 87.]

"The Court erred in making and entering its de-

cree, as amended, for the reason that there is no

substantial evidence to sustain said decree."

The Cahfornia law applicable to this case is contained

in two groups of statutory provisions, together with the

decisions of the California courts construing these pro-

visions. These are, first, the provisions relating to the

rights of creditors to set aside fraudulent transfers, and,

second, the provisions relating to the liability to creditors

of directors and officers of corporations. It is obvious

that Sears' amended bill was drawn in two counts with

this distinction in mind. The first count [Tr. pp. 5-8] al-

leges the transfer of funds from the bankrupt with intent

to defraud creditors, made without consideration, while

the bankrupt was insolvent. The second count [Tr. pp.

8-9] alleges a violation of the statutory duties of officers

and directors of corporations.

The evidence does not support the decree under the

California law relating to fraudulent transfers for the

reasons that (a) there is no evidence of a transfer w^ith-

in the meaning of such law, (b) there is no evidence

and no finding of actual fraud on the part of Klipstein,

and (c) there is no evidence that the drug company was

insolvent at any time prior to the date of the adjudica-

tion in bankruptcy.

The law of California relating to the rights of creditors

to invalidate transfers made by a debtor is contained in

sections 3439 and 3442 of the Civil Code, as follows

:

"§3439. Every transfer of property or charge

thereon made, every obligation incurred, and every

judicial proceeding taken, with intent to delay or de-
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fraud any creditor or other person of his demands,

is void against all creditors of the debtor, and their

successors in interest and against any person upon

whom the estate of the debtor devolves in trust for the

benefit of others than the debtor."

"§3442. In all cases arising under section twelve

hundred and twenty-seven, or under the provisions

of this title, except as otherwise provided in section

thirty-four hundred and forty, the question of

fraudulent intent is one of fact and not of law; nor

can any transfer or charge be adjudged fraudulent

solely on the ground that it is not made for a valuable i

consideration; provided, however, that any transfer
,

or encumbrance of property made or given voluntar- ^

ily, or without a valuable consideration, by a party
\

while insolvent or in contemplation of insolvency, '

shall be fraudulent, and void as to existing creditors."
i

I

The elements of the creditors' cause of action as pro- '

vided for in these sections is clear. There must occur,
\

first, a transfer of a property right and, second, fraud, ;

either actual or constructive, the latter being treated as a '

conclusive presumption resulting from a showing of no i

consideration plus insolvency. See, Hopkins v. White, 20
|

Cal. App. 234, 128 Pac. 780 (1912).

The first question to be considered is whether there is
,

any evidence of a "transfer" within the meaning of the
;

statutory provisions. There is no dispute as to the me-

chanics of the transactions in question. Corporate funds :

were paid out on corporate checks signed by Stelzner, to
I

the order of the bank. [Tr. p. 43.] These funds were

appHed upon a personal indebtedness of Stelzner to the

bank, for which Klipstein was secondarily liable as surety.

[Tr. p. 44.]
I



—31—

For reasons best known to himself Sears has not sought

to impose liabihty upon the real transferee of the corpo-

rate assets, the bank. Instead he seeks to hold Klipstein,

who was scarcely more than an outsider in the whole

transaction. The bank was the party primarily benefited

in that the money borrowed from it was repaid. Stelzner

benefited directly by the cancellation of his personal and

primary obligation. Klipstein's benefit was wholly inci-

dental in that the cancellation of Stelzner's primary obliga-

tion extinguished pro tanto Klipstein's contingent liability

to pay the bank if Stelzner defaulted on an obligation

created wholly for Stelzner's benefit. No money or prop-

erty passed to Klipstein at the time of the original loan,

or at the time of the asserted "transfers."

California decisions go further than the decisions in a

majority of the other states in imposing liability upon a

fraudulent transferee who has re-transferred the property

received by him, on the theory that the proceeds of such

re-sale create a trust fund. (See Pedro v. Soares, 18 Cal.

App. (2d) 600, 64 Pac. (2d) 766 (1937), and cases cited

therein.) But no California case known to appellant goes

so far as to make liable a party who has never had in his

hands any cash or property transferred by the debtor.

This was the position of Klipstein. Even under the most

liberal trust rules there was here no fund, 'Uo property nor

anything else ever in the hands of Klipstein to which a

trust might attach.

In addition to a transfer, the creditor invoking sections

3439 and 3442 must prove fraud, either actual under sec-

tion 3439 or constructive under section 3442. Construc-

tive fraud is shown when there is a lack of consideration

for a transfer made at a time when the transferor is in-

solvent or contemplates insolvency, and renders the trans-
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action void as to existing creditors only. Intent is here

,

immaterial. i

Atkinson v. Western Development Syndicate, 1701

Cal. 503, 150 Pac. 360 (1915);
'

Hanscome-James-Winship v. Ainger, 71 Cal. App.

735, 236 Pac. 325 (1925).

Appellant does not believe that appellee will claim on

this appeal that the trial court found Klipstein guilty of
'

actual fraud under these statutory provisions. Actual]

fraud means an actual intent or design in the mind of
j

Klipstein to prevent creditors of the corporation from

reaching its assets.
|

Ross V. Sedgwick, 69 Cal. 247, 10 Pac. 400 !

(1886); ;

Goldncr v. Spencer, 163 Cal. 317, 125 Pac. 347
|

(1912). i

i

The court found that the payments made to the bank

'

were made "with the purpose and intent on the part of
i

said corporation, and of said defendants, of hindering, '\

delaying, and defrauding the creditors of said corpora-
j

tion." [Finding of Fact No. IV, Tr. p. 28] ; as to the suit
|

by Klipstein against the drug company that "said action i

was commenced and prosecuted, said judgment was suf-

1

fered to be taken, and said execution sale effected the pur-

1

pose and intent on the part of said corporation and the

defendants of hindering, delaying, and defrauding the
j

creditors of said corporation." [Finding of Fact No.
|

VII, Tr. p. 29.] But the court in Finding of Fact No.

VI [Tr. p. 28] found not that the defauh judgment was
^

fraudulently permitted to be entered but that this was

done "illegally and without right or cause" and for itS'



—33—

general conclusion drawn from all of the findings of fact

the court concluded "That all the payments made out of

said corporation's funds as above described, were wrong-

fully and illegally made, and were and are fraudulent in

laiv and void as to plaintiff." [Conclusion of Law No. I,

Tr. p. 30.]

It is obvious that the findings and conclusions must be

construed together in order to determine the intent of the

trial court. That intent is clear from the phraseology of

the findings and conclusions and from the only opinion

rendered, that contained in the minute order of December

4, 1937, wherein the court held the defendants liable in the

sum of $4,255.54," the same being the sums shown to have

been illegally withdrawn and paid out by the defendants

and for which they are liable to account to the plaintiff."

[Tr. p. 25.]

A consideration of the law and the evidence will show

indisputably that the trial court could not have intended

to find otherwise on this issue. In the early case of Dana

V. Stanfords, 10 Cal. 269 (1858), the Supreme Court of

California stated

:

''To avoid the conveyance (i. e. on the ground of

actual fraud), there must be a real design on the

part of the debtor to prevent the application of his

property, in whole or in part, to the satisfaction of

his debts."

This language was cited and approved after the adop-

tion of the codes in Ross v. Sedgwick, 69 Cal. 247, 10

Pac. 400 (1886).

All presumptions are against actual fraud and must be

overcome by clear and convincing evidence before war-

ranting a finding. Levy v. Scott, 115 Cal. 39, 46 Pac.
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892 (1896). In the case of Triiett v. Onderdonk, 120

Cal. 581, 53 Pac. 26 (1898), the court stated in this con-

nection :

"The presumption is always against fraud, a pre-

sumption approximating in strength to that of inno-

cence of crime, and it should not be deemed overcome,

even prima facie, upon a showing so intangible and

shadowy."

It is sufficiently obvious that there is no proof in the

record of this case sufficient to establish actual fraud un-

der the stringent California requirements. In the first

place the most Sears could possibly claim under any cir-

cumstances is that Klipstein should have known the source

of the payments, should have determined their legal im-

propriety and should have taken active steps to prevent

Stelzner from making further payments. There is no

evidence whatsoever that Klipstein had any connection of

any sort with the affairs of the corporation between Janu-

ary 23, 1928 and October 19, 1935. [Tr. pp. 53, 57, 62.]

January 23, 1928, was prior to the first payment to the

bank, and October 19, 1935, was subsequent to the last

payment. [Tr. pp. 39-42.] There is not a word of tes-

timony that KHpstein knew anything about the condition

of the company during this period or that he even knew

that the payments were being made from the company's

funds. Indeed, from his behef in the identity of Stelzner

and the company it is obvious that, had he known the

source of the payments, in all probability he would have

considered them perfectly proper. [Tr. p. 61.]

Under these circumstances no finding of actual fraud

could have been made or contemplated in connection with

the payments to the bank.
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The same is true as to the findings relating to the suit

and execution sale, already shown to be irrelevant to

Sears' cause of action by reason of the fact that the cor-

poration was in no way injured thereby. Klipstein's mo-

tives in this regard are clear and uncontradicted. He dis-

covered the condition of Stelzner's business a few months

prior to October, 1935. [Tr. p. 60.] He believed him-

self a creditor of the company as well as of Stelzner and

he admitted that his actions were motivated by a desire to

protect himself, as well as Stelzner and the other creditors.

[Tr. p. 61. J If there had been the slightest desire on his

part to obtain any secret advantage or delay creditors it

is hardly conceivable that he would have caused a public

sale, procured cash bidders, and have notified creditors of

the proceedings through the local representative of the

Los Angeles and San Francisco Boards of Trade who

now prosecutes this action on behalf of the creditors, nor

would he in addition have offered to yield the claim to

which he considered himself entitled, for their benefit.

[Tr. pp. 61, 63, 64-65.]

Klipstein w^as obviously ill-advised but his motives were

entirely disclosed in his testimony and entirely consistent

with the course of action which he pursued. As stated

by the Supreme Court of California in Levy v. Scott, 115

Cal. 39, 46 Pac. 892 (1896):

".
. . while there are circumstances in and of

themselves unusual, or perhaps in their nature sus-

picious—circumstances upon which respondent builds

a somewhat plausible 'theory' of collusion and fraud

—these circumstances comport equally with the

theory of honesty and fair-dealing. . . ."

'Tt is quite true that evidences of fraud are not

left lying patent in the sunlight; that fraud itself is
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always concealed, and that the truth is to be discov-

ered more often from circumstances, from the inter-

ests of the parties, from the irregularities of the

transaction, coupled with injury worked to an inno-

cent party, than from direct and primary evidence of

the fraudulent contrivance itself. Nevertheless, the

evidence of these matters, facts, and circumstances,

taken together, must amount to proof of fraud, and

not to a mere suspicion thereof, for the presumption

of the law, except where confidential relations are

involved, is always in favor of the fair-dealing of the

parties."

There is one exception to the rule that actual fraud is

essential in fraudulent transfer cases in California. This

exception arises from the conclusive presumption created

by section 3442 when there combine the elements of (1) a

transfer without consideration (2) while the transferor is

insolvent or contemplates insolvency. If these two ele-

ments are present the transfer is void as to existing cred-

itors. Both elements must be pleaded and proved by the

creditor.

Emmons v. Barton, 109 Cal. 662, 42 Pac. 303

(1895);

Bank of Willows v. Small, 144 Cal. 709, 78 Pac.

263 (1904);

Parkinson Brothers Company v. Figel, 24 Cal.

App. 701, 142 Pac. 135 (19K);

Careaga v. Moore, 70 Cal. App. 614, 234 Pac. 121

(1925);

Foster v. Foster, 123 Cal. App. 1, 10 Pac. (2d)
'

796 (1932); I

Fross V. Wotton, 3 Cal. (2d) 384, 44 Pac. (2d)

350 (1935). I
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There was admittedly no consideration flowing to the

corporation from the payments to the bank. [Tr. p. 56.]

Proof of such lack of consideration is alone insufficient,

however, and such proof does not cause the burden to

shift to the defendants to prove solvency. In Bank of

Willows V. Small, 144 Cal. 709, 78 Pac. 263 (1904), an

action to cancel a deed alleged to have been delivered in

fraud of creditors the court commented upon this ques-

tion as follows:

'It was necessary for plaintiff to show that it could

not collect its claim from the estate of Julian, nor

from other property of Nancy Small, before it could

complain as to the deed. The deed would not have

injured plaintiff if it could still collect the amount of

its claim from other sources."

See, also:

Fross V. Wotton, 3 Cal. (2d) 384, 44 Pac. (2d)

350 (1935).

Here there is an entire lack of any proof of insolvency

at any time prior to the actual adjudication in bankruptcy.

This phase of the evidence has already been considered in

the argument addressed to Finding of Fact No. IV and

will not be here re-argued.

It is further evident that even if appellee had proved

a case of constructive fraud any transfer within the statu-

tory period would only be void as to existing creditors.

This means as to creditors having claims at the time of

the questioned transfer which claims remain now unpaid.

In so far as any creditor has been paid he is not injured.
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Any new advance would make him only a ''subsequent

creditor" who has no standing to attack the transaction.

Scales V. Holje, 41 Cal. App. 72>2>, 183 Pac. 308

(1919).

See, also:

Globe Bank v. Martin, 236 U. S. 288, 35 S. Ct.

377 (1915).

The failure to prove the existence of such creditors has

already been considered in the argument addressed to

Finding of Fact IV and will be further considered infra

with reference to the failure to find the fact that any

creditor or creditors remains or remain unpaid.

The decree cannot therefore be sustained under the

sections of the Civil Code above considered. Reiterating

appellant's contentions briefly, there is no evidence of a

"transfer," or of "actual fraud," or of insolvency neces-

sary to create constructive fraud, or of existing creditors

still unpaid whose claims total the amount of the decree.

These failures of proof entail an entire failure to sustain

a decree based upon the California law considered.

The evidence does not support the decree under the

California law relating to the liabilities of directors

and officers of corporations for the reasons that (a)

the undisputed evidence shows that Klipstein was

never a de jure officer or director of the drug company

and there is no substantial evidence that he was a

de facto officer or director, and (b) there is no evi-

dence that there were creditors existing at the time of

the alleged transfers whose claims equal the amount

of the decree and are still unpaid.
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The theory ul Scars' secund count is that Stelzncr and

KHpstcin were g'liilty of violation of the law relating to

liabilities to creditors of directors and officers of corpora-

tions. [Tr. p. 9. 1 The statutory provisions in this re-

gard are contained in section 3(^3 of the Civil Code, re-

placing former section 309. Inasmuch as section 363 and

its predecessor have been subject to frequent amendment

it is of exceeding importance to note the changes in the

statutory provisions over the period of the existence of

these sections in order properly to interpret the judicial

decisions construing them.

Former section 309 was enacted as part of the Civil

Code of California on March 21, 1872, and was based on

Stats. 1850, p. 348; Stats. 1861, p. 607, section 50; Stats.

1865-66, p. 747, section 12; Stats. 1865-66, p. 757, section

13: Stats. 1861. p. 626, section 56; and Stats. 1853, p. 89,

sections 13 and 14. Minor amendments were made in

1891 (Stats, and Amdts. 1891, p. 468) and 1905 (Stats,

and Amdts. 1905, p. 558). As amended to and including

1905 (omitting immaterial portions) section 309 read as

follows

:

"The directors of corporations must not make divi-

dends except from the surplus profits arising from

the business thereof; nor must they create any debts

beyond their subscribed capital stock; nor must they

divide, withdraw, or pay to the stockholders, or any

of them, any part of the capital stock, except as here-

inafter provided, nor reduce or increase the capital

stock, except as herein si)ecially provided. For a vio-

lation of the provisions of this section, the directors

under whose administration the same may have hap-

pened (except those who may ha\e caused their dis-

sent therefrom to be entered at large on the minutes
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i

of the directors at the time, or were not present when
.

the same did happen) are, in their individual or pri-
\

vate capacity, jointly and severally liable to the cor-
\

poration, and to the creditors thereof, to the full
|

amount of the capital stock so divided, withdrawn, ;

paid out, or reduced, or debt contracted;" •

Thereafter no amendments were passed until 1917, when
\

certain provisions of the section were eliminated by Stats,

and Amdts. 1917, p. 657. As so amended and in effect
i

at the date of the incorporation of Globe Drug Company,
;

Inc., section 309 read as follows (omitting immaterial

portions)

:

i

"Unless they shall have been first permitted or !

authorized so to do by the commissioner of corpora-
'

tions, directors of corporations must not make divi-
i

dends except from the surplus profits arising from :

the business thereof; nor must they create any debts '

beyond their subscribed capital stock; nor must they
]

divide, withdraw, or pay to the stockholders, or any

of them, any part of the capital stock, except as here-

inafter provided, nor reduce or increase the capital

stock, except as provided in section three hundred !

fifty-nine of this code. For a violation of the pro-
'

visions of this section, the directors under whose

administration the same may have happened (except i

those who may have caused their dissent therefrom to

be entered at large on the minutes of the directors at

the time, or were not present when the same did hap-

:

pen) are, in their individual or private capacity, jointly
:

and severally liable to the corporation, and to the cred-

itors thereof, to the full amount of the capital stock

so divided, withdrawn, paid out, or reduced or debt

contracted." i
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Section 309 remained in the above form until 1929

when a radical change in its provisions was, affected by

Stats, and Amdts. 1929, p. 1266, by which the section

was amended to read as follows (omitting immaterial

portions) :

"Unless they shall have been first permitted or

authorized so to do by the commissioner of corpora-

tions, directors of corporations must not make divi-

dends except from the surplus profits arising from

the business thereof; nor must they divide, withdraw,

or pay to the stockholders, or any of them, any part

of the capital stock, except as hereinafter provided;

provided that dividends may be paid upon shares en-

titled to cumulative preferential dividends from paid-

in surplus, as well as from profits arising from the

business, but the holders of such shares shall be noti-

fied when dividends are paid from paid-in surplus.

Nothing herein prohibits a division and distribution

of the capital stock of any corporation which remains

after the payment of all its debts, upon its dissolution

or the expiration of its term of existence.

In case of any wilful or negligent violation of the

provisions of this section, the directors under whose

administration the same shall have happened, except

those who cause their dissent therefrom to be entered

on the minutes of such directors at the time, or were

not present at that time, shall be jointly and severally

liable to the shareholders of such corporation to the

full amount of any loss sustained by such sharehold-

ers, or in case of the insolvency of the corporation

to the corporation or its receiver, liquidator or trustee

in bankruptcy to the full amount in either case of any

loss sustained by the shareholders or creditors by

reason of such unauthorized dividend, withdrawal or

distribution."
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In the general revision of the corporation law of Cali-

fornia in 1931 the material covered by section 309 was

amended and re-numbered 363 by Stats. 1931, p. 1850,

which section as amended went into effect on August 14,

1931. This new section (omitting immaterial portions)

reads as follows:

"Except as provided in this title, the directors

of a corporation shall not authorize or ratify the

purchase by it of its shares with corporate funds nor

declare or pay dividends nor authorize or ratify the

withdrawal or distribution of any part of its assets

among its shareholders.

In case of any wilful or negligent violation of the

provisions of this section, the directors under whose

administration the same shall have happened, except

those who may have caused their dissent therefrom to

be entered on the minutes of the meeting at which such

action was authorized, or who were not present at the

time, shall be jointly and severally liable to the cor-

poration and to shareholders and subscribers for the

full amount of any loss sustained by the corporation,

the shareholders and/or subscribers.

In case of the insolvency of the corporation the

directors shall be jointly and severally liable to the

corporation or its receiver, liquidator or trustee in

bankruptcy to the full amount of any loss sustained

by the shareholders or creditors by reason of such

unauthorized dividend, withdrawal or distribution.

A director shall not be held to have been negligent

within the meaning of this section if he relied and

acted in good faith upon a balance sheet or profit and

loss statement of the corporation represented to him

to be correct by the president or the officer of the cor-

poration having charge of or supervision of its ac-
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counts, or certified to be correct and according to the

books of the corporation by a public accountant or

firm of public accountants selected with reasonable

care."

The latest amendment to section 363 was passed in

1933 (Stats, and Amdts. 1933, p. 1396) and the section

as thus amended went into effect on August 21, 1933, and

has not been further modified since that time. The present

section (omitting immaterial portions) reads as follows:

"Except as provided in this title, the directors of

a corporation shall not authorize or ratify the pur-

chase by it of its shares or declare or pay dividends

or authorize or ratify the withdrawal or distribution

of any part of its assets among its shareholders.

In case of any wilful or negligent violation of the

provisions of this section the directors under whose

administration the same shall have happened, except

those who may have caused their dissent therefrom

to be entered on the minutes of the meeting at which

such action was authorized, or who were not present

at the time the board acted, shall be jointly and sev-

erally liable to the corporation or to its receiver, liqui-

dator or trustee in bankruptcy for the benefit of the

creditors of the corporation or any of them and of

the shareholders and owners of shares at the time of

such violation, for its debts and liabilities existing

at the time of such violation, and for the full amount
of any loss sustained by such holders and owners of

shares other than shares upon which any such pay-

ment or distribution was made, in any such case not

exceeding the amount of such unlawful dividends,

purchase price, withdrawal or other distribution.

Any judgment creditor of the corporation, or two
or more such creditors, if the debt or claim arose prior
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to the time of such violation, may sue the corporation

and any or all of its directors in one action and re-

cover judgment for the amount due such creditors or

claimants from the corporation against any or all of

such directors guilty of any such violation up to the

amount of such unlawful di\idends, purchase price,

withdrawal or other distribution. An action against

such directors for any such violation may be brought

by the corporation or by its receiver, liquidator or

trustee in bankruptcy for the benefit of all of such

creditors, owners of shares and shareholders without

the necessity of any prior judgment against the cor-

poration, for the recovery of the amount of such divi-

dends, purchase price, withdrawal or other distribu-

tion as far as needed to satisfy such debts and lia-

bilities and the full amount of loss sustained by such

shareholders.

A director shall not be held to have been negligent

within the meaning of this section if he relied and

acted in good faith upon a balance sheet or profit and

loss statement of the corporation furnished or ex-

hibited to him by the president or the officer of the

corporation having charge of or supervision of its

accounts, or certified to be correct and according to the

books of the corporation by a public accountant or

firm of public accountants selected with reasonable

care."

The trend in statutory provision is clear from these sec-

tions. Section 309 established an absolute liability. Cer-

tain acts were prohibited and in the event of the occurrence

of any prohibited act liability was automatically imposed

upon the designated persons. Whether or not anyone,

creditor or stockholder, had been injured was immaterial.
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Talcott Land Company v. Hershiser, 184 Cal. 748, 195

Pac. 653 (1921). Good faith on the part of a director

was of no significance. Southern California Home Build-

ers V. Young, 45 Cal. App. 679, 188 Pac. 586 (1920).

The period of existence of section 309 in its more severe

form corresponds roughly with the period during which

stockholders in California w^ere subject to liability for cor-

porate debts under section 3 of Article XII of the Califor-

nia Constitution of 1879, and former section 322 of the

Civil Code. California corporations were made true lim-

ited liability companies by the elimination of this constitu-

tional provision in 1930. Thereafter, in 1931, followed a

general revision of the corporation law^s, bringing them

more in harmony with modern provisions and practice in

other states.

The change with reference to the liability of directors

is explained by Professor Henry Winthrop Ballantine,

who served as draftsman of the Committee of the State

Bar on Revision of the California Laws for the 1929 and

1931 sessions of the legislature, in his treatise on CaHfor-

nia Corporation Laws (1932), as follows:

"Under the former law the liability of directors for

unauthorized dividends did not depend upon their

wilfulness or negligence and the fact that no one was
injured by an unauthorized dividend did not excuse

the directors. The corporation could sue without

reference to any damage to creditors or shareholders.

This rule was changed by the amendment of 1929.

Under section 309 as amended, as under the present

law, the right to recover against directors depends

upon culpability and whether creditors or sharehold-

ers have been injured."
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In considering the substantiality of the evidence to sup-

port the decree on the basis of section 363 the first point

to be noticed is that KHpstein was at no time a de jure

director or officer of the drug company. No permit to

issue its shares was ever issued to the company by the

Corporation Commissioner of the State of Cahfornia.

[Tr. pp. 57, 64.] Under the California Corporate Se-

curities Act prior to 1931 shares issued without a permit

or contrary to the terms of any permit were absolutely

void. See

:

Ballantine, opus cit., p. 606;

General Laws of California (Deering, 1923), Act

3814, section 12;

Klinker v. Guarantee Title Co,, 98 Cal. App. 469,

277 Pac. 177 (1929);

Castle V. Acme Ice Cream Company, 101 Cal. App.

94, 281 Pac. 396 (1929),

The shares placed in Klipstein's name as security did not

therefore make him a de jure stockholder. He would not

have been liable to the creditors of the corporation on any

stockholder's liability. Regan v. Alhin, 219 Cal. 357, 26

Pac. (2d) 475 (1933). At this time only stockholders

could be de jure directors. See former section 305 of the

Civil Code (Stats, and Amdts. 1905, p. 503) ; Roaecrans

Gold Mining Co. v. Morey, 111 Cal. 114, 43 Pac. 585

(1896). A subsequent change in the law did not operate

to make him such. Rosecrans Gold Mining Co. v. Morey,

supra. In addition he would not be a de jure director

in any event after the ending of the term for which he

was elected. Kinard v. Ward, 21 Cal. App. 92, 130 Pac.

1194 (1913).
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Any liability on Klipstein's part must therefore be

predicated on the theory that he was a de facto director

and officer. Before considering- the substantiality of the

evidence in this connection it is appropriate to discuss

briefly the principles underlying the idea of de facto

directors and officers.

The law relative to de facto officers arises from the

same considerations which govern the law in its dealing

with apparent agents in the held of contracts, or of promis-

sory estoppel in the field of offer and acceptance, or of

equitable estoppel in the general field of the law. The

underlying idea is that a person who assumes to act where

he has no right will be held responsible as if he had that

right and that other persons who allow him to assume

any such position will not be heard to say that the assump-

tion was not rightful. In the case of officers and directors

of corporations the most common instance of the use of

the principles of de facto directorship is where the cor-

poration is trying to evade an obligation entered into on

its behalf by persons who may not have been authorized

so to act with all due formalities. It would of course be

grossly inequitable to allow such an avoidance of an obli-

gation, especially if the stockholders have acquiesced in the

actions of the purported directors, and the law is settled

that in such a case the corporation will be bound. See

6 Cal. Jur., p. 1046, section 423, and cases therein cited.

This is in reality no more than the law of apparent or

ostensible agency. See American Concrete Units Co.,

Inc., 7'. National Stone Tile Corp., 115 Cal. App. 501,

1 Pac. (2d) 1084 (1931); Morawetz, Private Corpora-

tions (2d Ed.), Vol. 2, section 640. Likewise, a person

assuming to act as a director is held to the same duties
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to shareholders as a legally elected director and cannot

evade his obligations by pointing to an imperfection in his

title to office. People v. Leonard, 106 Cal. 302, 39 Pac.

617 (1895). This is simply a part of the law of estoppel.

The character of the acts which a person must perform

in order to be tagged with the designation ''de facto direc-

tor" varies with the type of relief sought. This is not

explicit in the decided cases but can be seen clearly below

the surface. Eel River Navigation Co. v. Strnver, 41 Cal.

616 (1871); First African M. E. Zion Church v. Hillery, \

51 Cal. 155 (1875); People v. Leonard, 106 Cal. 302,

39 Pac. 617 (1895); Rosecrans Gold Mining Company

v. Morey, 111 Cal. 114, 43 Pac. 585 (1896); Barrell v.

Lake View Land Co., 122 Cal. 129. 54 Pac. 594 (1898);
;

Sherwood v. Wallin, 154 Cal. 735, 99 Pac. 101 (1908);

Chandler v. Hart, 161 Cal. 405, 119 Pac. 516 (1911);
\

Kinard v. Ward, 21 Cal. App. 92, 130 Pac. 1194 (1913). :

Inasmuch as the California decisions are not numerous

and contain few discussions of the basis of de facto direc- •

tors' liability the underlying considerations upon which

the doctrine is founded must be kept in mind in order to

understand the results in particular cases. The definition
,

from Fletcher, Cyclopedia of Corporations (Perm. Ed.

1931), Vol. 2, p. 145, already quoted supra, by its very

wording illustrates these considerations:
{

"One in actual possession of an office under claim :

and color of election or appointment, and continually

exercising its functions and discharging its duties, i

is an officer de facto.''
;

The point most stressed is the "assumption" of cor- ,'

porate office. Turning to the record on this appeal it is

evident that there is absolutely no proof of any sort that
!
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Klipstein "assumed" to act for the corporation in any

capacity during the entire period of the withdrawals. The

meetings in December, 1927, and January, 1928, were

ob\iously perfunctory. All such meetings were prior to

any withdrawals of corporate funds. [Tr. pp. 39-42.]

From the time of the last of these meetings until the

i.ieeting of October 19, 1935, the drug company was run

entirely by Stelzner, Khpstein was in the title business

and had no interest in the drug store. There is no evi-

dence that he ever took part in the management of the

store in any capacity or that he knew anything at all about

its affairs. This was the period when Stelzner withdrew

over his own signature all of the funds which were paid

to the bank. It was only subsequent to all such with-

drawals and in an attempt to salvage something for the

benefit of all parties that Klipstein again assumed to act

as director of the company in forcing Stelzner to execute

with him a corporate note for the balance of the debt

owed to the bank. [Tr. pp. 60-61.] As shown above, the

corporation in so far as creditors are concerned was unin-

jured by the giving of the note, which it never paid, or

by the suit and execution sale which followed. The cor-

poration and its creditors received all the benefits of these

actions.

Under these circumstances how can it be said that

Klipstein ever assumed to act for the corporation at the

times when the \'arious withdrawals of funds were made?

There is absolutely no evidence of any action on his part

of any nature as a corporate officer during this time. To
say that the purported election in 1928 placed upon Klip-

stein the duty to remain in contact with the affairs of the

drug store would be to ignore the fact that Stelzner was
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the sole person interested in the business and would make

the mechanics of the transaction by which Klipstein aided

his brother-in-law a veritable trap in which he would be

caught and made to answer for acts with which he had no

connection whatsoever. The original incorporators, who

were the only de jure directors of the company, were as

much connected with the corporate affairs as Klipstein,

which is to say not at all. To Klipstein Stelzner and the

drug store were identical. Klipstein had no interest in the

business, knew nothing about it, and paid no attention to

it. The transactions involving the withdrawal of funds

were entirely between Stelzner and the bank. As long as

Stelzner made payments from any source which kept the

bank satisfied Klipstein had no cause to investigate or

question anything. There is of course no evidence that

the drug store was Stelzner's only asset and no showing

that Klipstein had any reason to believe that such payments

were not being made from Stelzner's personal funds.

It is just and reasonable that anyone assuming to act

for a corporation should be held to a strict standard of

accountability. It would be most unjust and unreasonable,

on the other hand, to ignore the realities of a one-man

corporation and to say that any connection, however nom-

inal, would entail a liability in a case where the person

sought to be held liable never at any time received any

benefit at all and took no active part in any of the trans-

actions.

A further reason why Klipstein cannot be held liable

under the provisions of section 363 is that this section

specifically excepts from liability any director who was not

present at the time when a prohibited withdrawal was

authorized by the Board. In this case it is undisputed



—51—

that Klipstein never attended any Board meetings during

any part of the period over which the withdrawals were

made. As a matter of fact Stelzner completely filled the

position ordinarily occupied by a board of directors and

his affairs and those of the company were so far identical

that Klipstein had ample reason, under California law,

to consider one the alter ego of the other in relation to

all the transactions in question. See Sargent v. Palace

Cafe Co., 175 Cal. 737, 167 Pac. 146 (1917); Scales v.

Holje, 41 Cal. App. 733, 183 Pac. 308 (1919). Under

these circumstances Klipstein is completely within the

exception mentioned and no liability on his part can be

l)redicated upon the provisions of this section.

Even assuming that Klipstein were otherwise liable

under section 363 a reading of that section will disclose

that the liability created therby is so limited that the evi-

dence in this case could not support a decree for the

amount found due by the trial court. By its provisions

liability is imposed upon directors only "/or the debts and

liabilities existing at the time of such violation." Para-

graph 3 of the section provides that any judgment creditor

may sue a director "// the debt or claim arose prior to

the time of such violation' and further provides that when

the action is brought by a trustee in bankruptcy it is con-

sidered to be for the benefit of all such creditors and re-

covery is limited to the amount needed to satisfy such

debts and liabilities.

The extent of the liability created by this section is clear.

It is limited to the amount due to any creditor, whether

suing on his own behalf or through a trustee in bank-

ruptcy, and part of the creditor's cause of action is to

slioic that the debt still unpaid arose prior to the time of
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the asserted znolation. Appellant has already discussed

the failure of proof on this score above in this brief. All

that Sears attempted to show at the trial was that at the

time of any one particular withdrawal there existed one

certain creditor whose claim at the moment upon an open

book account exceeded the amount of the withdrawal. For

all the proof shows this one creditor might have been paid

in full on the next day following- each withdrawal. There

is no showing that the same obligation remained through-

out the entire period and as a matter of fact it is obvious

that Stelzner was constantly purchasing from this creditor

so that the current balance would have no significance

whatsoever. Sears has proved nothing to take McKesson

and Langley out of the class of ''subsequent creditors"'

who, by the very words of the statute, cannot complain.

The decision of the trial court in this case was rested

by it solely upon the authority of one case. In re Wright

Motor Company, 299 Fed. 106 (C. C. A. 9, 1924), in

which this Court affirmed the decision of the District

Court for the Northern District of California in Oliver

V. Bremian, 292 Fed. 197 (192v3). See Minute Order

of December 4, 1937 [Tr. p. 24].

The decision in the Wright Motor Company case rests

upon facts entirely different from those in the case at bar

and was based upon provisions of law not in effect when

the events in this case took place.

In that case OHver, trustee in bankruptcy of Wright

Motor Company, Ltd., brought suit in equity against one

Brennan to set aside certain transfers of money and per-

sonal property made by the bankrupt. The evidence

showed that the bankrupt was incorporated on February

26, 1920, for the purpose of dealing in automobiles, and
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that the incorporators were one West, one Wright, and

the defendant Brennan, who was an attorney at law.

The capital stock was $37,500, divided into 375 shares of

the par value of $100. In March, 1920, 125 shares were

issued to Brennan and 125 shares to Wright, for which

each paid $12,500 cash, and 125 shares to West for cer-

tain physical assets. These three parties continued as sole

stockholders, directors and officers until July 14, 1920.

On April 24, 1920, by written contract, Wright agreed

to buy Brennan's 125 shares and West's 125 shares (for

which Brennan had originally put up the money) and to

l)ay Brennan $25,000 in designated installments. At the

time when this contract was executed Wright had no per-

sonal funds, a fact which was known to Brennan. Per-

formance of the contract was undertaken and on the day

of its execution an initial payment of $10,000 was made.

This money was paid directly by the corporation to Bren-

nan by a corporate check signed by Brennan. The cor-

poration received a note from Wright for $10,000, which

note seems to have subsequently disappeared. Thereafter

and up to August 31, 1920, other corporate checks were

delivered to Brennan, for which the corporation received

no notes or other consideration. By that day Brennan

had received a total of $18,472.92 and in addition sub-

stantial personal property from the corporation. By No-

vember 13, 1920, all but $500 of the purchase price of the

stock had been paid to Brennan, either in cash or in prop-

erty. On February 26, 1921, exactly a year after its in-

corporation, the corporation assigned for the benefit of

creditors and on May 4, 1921, was adjudicated a bankrupt.

On this day it had assets of v$868.40 against claims amount-

ing to $9,436.95. The evidence further showed that Bren-
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nan, an attorney, was at all times acquainted with the

condition of the business and had deliberately attempted

to dispose of his shares and recover back his investment

in order to avoid liabihty to creditors of the company.

The difference in the factual situation in the Wright

Motor Company case and in the case at bar is apparent.

There Brennan was a de jure director and officer and

actively participated in the automobile business. Here

Klipstein was never a de jure director or officer and never

took any part in the management of the drug- business.

Brennan was the beneficial owner of a large proportion

of the legally issued stock and himself participated in the

very transaction by which actual cash and personal prop-

erty, in fact almost the entire assets of the corporation,

were transferred directly to him. Klipstein never bene-

ficially owned any stock and even the pledged stock was

void, unknown to him. Klipstein took no part at all in

any transaction involving any withdrawal of funds from

the corporation and never received one cent in cash or any

other property of any kind belonging to the drug com-

pany. Brennan knew intimately the financial condition of

the auto company, knew that under California law stock-

holders were proportionately liable for its debts and de-

liberately attempted to rid himself of his stock and escape

with his investment. Klipstein knew nothing of the drug

company's affairs, knew nothing about creditors until a

few months prior to October, 1935, and his actions there-

after were taken in order to preserve rather than dissi-

pate the assets of the corporation. Wright Motor Com-

pany, Inc., made an assignment for the benefit of creditors

one year to the day after its incorporation and was ad-

judicated a bankrupt within three months thereafter. Klip-
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stein, according- to the undisputed evidence, had not the

slightest connection with the drug company for a period

of over seven and one-half years prior to the time when

he first heard that there were any unpaid creditors. Such

contrasts between the two sets of facts could be continued

almost throughout exery step of the two cases. In fact

it is obvious that the positions of Brennan in the Wright

Motor Company case and of Klipstein in the case at bar

are as different as day and night.

The Wright Motor Company case could not have been

decided otherwise than it was. In 1920, when the events

m that case took place, every stockholder of the corporation

was liable for his proportionate part of its debts (Cali-

fornia Constitution of 1879, Article XII, section' 3; Civil

Code, section 322; Kerr's Cyc. Codes, 2d Ed., 1920).

This w'as the liability that Brennan attempted to evade.

In 1920, under section 309 of the Civil Code, directors

were liable for impairment of the capital stock regardless

of good faith or injury to any person. Southern Cali-

fornia Home Builders v. Young, 45 Cal. App. 679, 188

Pac. 586 (1920); Talcott Land Company v. Hershiser,

184 Cal. 748, 195 Pac. 653 (1921). When the events

in the case at bar took place these provisions had all been

abolished. Klipstein would not have been personally liable

for any part of the corporation's debts even had he been

the beneficial owner of legally issued stock. The absolute

liability provided for in former section 309 of the Civil

Code had been eliminated and replaced by section Z^yZ

establishing liability of directors only on a basis of bad

faith or negligence plus actual injury to stockholders or

creditors. At the time of the decision in the Wright Motor

case the Federal Court was free, under the doctrine of
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Swift V. Tyson, 41 U. S. 1, 10 L. Ed. 865 (1842), to con-

sider the decisions of other states or the general law in

deciding the case. This is no longer proper since the de-

cision in Erie Railroad v. Tompkins, 304 U. S. 64, 58

S. Ct. 817 (1938). Both as to the law and as to the facts

the Wright Motor Company case is no authority whatever

for the imposition of liability upon Klipstein in the case

at bar.

A corporation is only a form of business organization

and the fictions built up around the idea of corporate

entity have never blinded the courts to the realities lying

beneath, these fictions. While there were three persons

actively interested in the Globe Drug Company the cor-

porate device served a useful and practical purpose. Cor-

porate stock distribution determined the property interests

of the parties and corporate practice provided a method for

the settlement of business policies. After Stelzner bought

out the interests of his co-owners the corporate form was

entirely disregarded. To all intents and purposes the

business was a sole proprietorship with Klipstein holding

what might be called an equitable lien on a portion of the

assets for moneys advanced to the proprietor. Stelzner

alone ran the drug business, determined its policies and

knew the condition of its financial affairs.

To hold that the retention of the shell of corporate

organization, never legally completed by the issue of valid

stock, should give Stelzner the power to impose upon

Klipstein personal liability through transactions in which
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Klipstein took no part, of which he had no knowledge

and from which he derived no benefit, would be to throw

a commercial loss upon a party not in the least responsible

for its creation. The very creditor whose representative

testified at the trial knew more about Stelzner's business

than did Klipstein. It saw fit to deal with Stelzner over

a period of more than seven years in which it allowed him

open credit to the extent of several thousand dollars. It

in no way relied upon Klipstein's connection with the

enterprise. Now, through the trustee, it desires to recoup

its loss from a person whom it probably never knew

existed and who took no part in its relations with Stelzner,

No such result is legally sustainable or intrinsically just.

The decree is not supported by the findings in that

there is no finding that any creditors have proved their

claims in the bankruptcy proceedings and remain un-

paid.

Assignment of Error No. XXV [Tr. p. 88].

"The Court erred in making and entering its de-

cree, as amended, for the reason that the facts found

do not sustain said decree."

In his amended bill Sears alleged as follows:

"The above mentioned creditors of said corporation

have duly proved their claims in said bankruptcy pro-

ceedings; there are not sufficient assets in the bank-

rupt's estate with which to pay such claims in full,

and unless said payments made by said corporation,
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and said property, or its value, are restored to the

bankrupt's estate, the claims of said creditors will

remain unsatisfied." [Paragraph VIII, Tr. p. 8.]

These allegations were specifically denied by Klipstein

in his answer. [Paragraph VIII, Tr. p. 12.]

No proof was introduced that any creditor's claim had

been proved or approved in the bankruptcy proceedings

or that any creditor remained unpaid at the time of the

commencement of this suit, and the trial court made no

attempt to find on these issues. This failure to make a

finding is fatal to Sears' case on appeal. Equity rule No.

70^ provides that the trial court must find specially upon

the issues raised. The sufficiency of the findings to sup-

port the decree in this case is before this court and ob-

viously, no matter what Stelzner or Klipstein might have

done in any event, there is no legal damage shown and

therefore no liability unless creditors prove some injury

existing at the time of the commencement of the suit.

Appellant has already shown that under both the "con-

structive fraud" theory and under section 363 of the Civil

Code part of the creditor's case is the proof of a claim

(1) in existence at the time of the transaction attacked,

and (2) unpaid at the commencement of the action, and

no further citation of authorities is necessary on this

point. The absence of a finding that there was any such

creditor so injured and that there were insufficient assets

within which to pay approved claims makes, the affirmance

by this court of any decree in any amount impossible.
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The decree entered is void in that the extent of

Klipstein's liability is made thereby to depend upon a

report made by a referee in a proceeding in which

Klipstein is not represented and has no standing to

dispute the propriety of any items in such report.

Assignment of Error No. XXVII [Tr. p. 88].

"The Court erred in making and entering its de-

cree, as amended, for the reason that said decree is

void in that the liability of defendant to plaintiff is

made by said decree to depend upon a report to be

filed by one C. E. Arnold, Referee in Bankruptcy in

the matter of the estate of the Globe Drug Company,

Inc., bankrupt, in which proceeding in bankruptcy

defendant is not represented and has no standing and

defendant is therefore by said decree deprived of his

day in court to litigate the reasonableness and pro-

priety of any allowance and expenses included in said

report to be filed by said Referee."

The trial court in its decree [Tr. p. 32] provided that

Klipstein's liability should be determined by a report to

be filed in the action by the referee in bankruptcy appointed

in the bankruptcy proceedings of the corporation, and

further directed that Sears have execution against Klip-

stein for the amount shown in such report.

In making and entering any such decree the trial court

obviously exceeded its jurisdiction. Federal District

Courts have the power to appoint referees in appropriate

cases but the opportunity of each party to be heard in the

proceedings before such referee is indispensable (see for-

mer Equity Rule 60; Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,

Rule 53), and no report rendered by any such referee is
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of any effect until approved by the court. North Carolina

R. R. Co. V. Szvasey, 90 U. S. 405, 23 L. Ed. 136 (1875).

Klipstein is not represented, personally or otherwise, in

the bankruptcy proceedings and would have no standing

to contest the propriety of any claims or any expense allow-

ances. As was said in Postal Telegraph-Cable Co. v.

Newport, 247 U. S. 464, 38 S. Ct. 566 (1918): "The

opportunity to be heard is an essential requisite of due

process of law in judicial proceedings." The fact that the

decree summarily deprives Klipstein of his day in court

to litigate the extent of his liability renders the decree void

on its face irrespective of all other considerations.

Conclusion.

Ths legislature of California has enacted as an im-

portant and integral part of the new California law sec-

tion 363 of the Civil Code.

The opinion on this appeal will constitute the first inter-

pretation of any court as to the meaning, validity and effect

of certain amendments to that section.

Incidental to such interpretation this Honorable Court

will also determine whether and how such amendments

apply to this case.

It is presumed that the legislature knew the prior state

of the law, as it stood at the time of the decision in the

case of In re Wright Motor Co., supra, and sought by

the amendments to make some change therein. Other

things being equal, it will also be presumed that the legis-

lature used the words of such amendments in their plain,

ordinary meaning.
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The legislative intent being plain,, there is no need or

room for consideration of policy, and it becomes the duty

of the courts to give to such legislative enactments the

meaning intended by the legislature.

A rule of a branch of the substantive law of the State

of California, has expressly placed upon the appellee the

duty of establishing the several elements of the case neces-

sary to support a decree. Appellee must have recognized

this necessity or he would not have attempted to plead

these elements in his bill of complaint.

No evidence being given ''his case fails."

As we have pointed out there is no evidence of (a)

fraudulent intent on the part of Klipstein, or actual fraud

of any kind on his part, (b) insolvency of the drug com-

pany at any time prior to its adjudication in bankruptcy,

(c) that the claims of creditors, or any creditor, was

equal to the amount of the decree, or, (d) that any creditor

remained unpaid or does now remain unpaid.

Without again enumerating them, it clearly appears that

appellee has also failed to give any evidence, or sustain

the burden of proof, or comply with the Civil Code pro-

visions, on other equally important propositions of law,

each essential to a valid decree.

Appellant, therefore, respectfully requests that the de-

cree as entered by the trial court herein be reversed.

Respectfully submiitted.

Homer Johnstone,

Sidney H. Wyse,

Attorneys for Appellant,
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

[Appellee takes the liberty of setting forth his own

i^atement of the case, and the facts involved, for the

lason that certain statements made by appellant in

liS opening brief, or at least the conclusions based on

t[.em, appear to us to be inaccurate.

The complainant, as trustee of the estate of the

Unkrupt corporation, Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

seks to recover from the defendants certain money

^irongfully paid out by the bankrupt corporation to

c for the personal benefit of the defendants while

hy were directors, officers, and stockholders of said



corporation. The following is a brief resume oi

facts upon which the claim is based.

Grlobe Drug Company, Inc., was incorporated und''

the laws of California in 1920, with an authoriz

capital stock of 25,000 shares of the par value
'

$1.00 each, and with a Board of Directors consistrt

of three members. (Tr. pp. 52, 53.) On Decembi'

31, 1927 the defendants were elected as directors atv

stockholders' meeting duly called and held. On t)

same day, the directors met and elected officers, ti)

appellant Klipstein then being chosen as vice-preij-

dent.

On January 3, 1928 the defendants Stelzner aij.

Klipstein executed to the Bank of America their pe-

sonal promissory note in the sum of $17,000.00. ThI'

signed this note as joint makers. Stelzner, the pre;|-

dent of the corporation, used the x^roceeds of this loi|i

to x)urchase stock of the corporation from certain othj'

stockholders. Almost contemporaneously with tj;

completion of such purchase, on January 5, 191|,

9990 shares of such stock were issued to the appella|:

Klipstein. (Tr. p. 55.)
|

From the date of the maturity of said note, April
i,

1928, periodical payments were made on account ;:

the principal and interest thereof during a period '.

over seven years. (Tr. pp. 39-42.) All these paymer;

were made out of the corporation's own funds. (Jh

p. 55.) They were made by corporate checks payab'^

direct to the order of the bank, signed by Stelzner 5

president. No consideration was ever received by !'

for the corporation for such payments. (Tr. p. 56.) \



jNeitlicr of* tlic defendants has ever reimbursed the

tirporation ioi- any of these payments. There is no

gjowinu: that these payments were made out of surplus

jl'ofits of the eorporation, or that, at the time they

vre made, the eorjjoration ever had any surphis

Ij-ofits. TluM-e are no records in the Minute Book

(jen authorizing- the payments.

I On each and all of the dates when these payments

>l?re made, the corporation was indebted in an amount

(tceeding the amount of each payment. (Tr. pp.

^*.-51.)

There is an incidental element in the facts which,

^hile having nothing to do with the extent of the re-

(I'very souglit and awarded by the trial court, has an

idirect bearing upon the position of the appellant

fcre. On October 19, 1935, when the $17,000.00 note

lul been i)aid down to a balance of $4800.00, the cor-

pration, at the instance and direction of its Board of

lirectors, and at a meeting at which the defendants

>ere present and acting as such, executed its own

i'omissory note directly to the bank for said sum of

^tSOO.OO in payment of the balance then due on the

J;.7,000.00 note. (Tr. pp. 55, 56.) The corporation

iceived absolutely no consideration for the execution

( this note. (Tr. p. 56.) Contemporaneously with its

^ecution and delivery, Klipstein purchased the note

i'om the bank, and immediately, on the same day,

••nmienced an action in the Superior Court of Kern

•punty, against the corporation. Globe Drug Com-

imy. Inc., for the recovery of $5364.00 claimed by

lipstein in his verified complaint to be due to him



from the defendant corporation. (Tr. p. 56.) $4800.1

of this claim was represented by the $4800.00 noi,

The same attorneys who represented Klipstein in tli;

action were at the same time also attorneys for t;

defendant corporation. (Tr. p. 62.) A default judf

ment was suffered to be entered against the corpoil-

tion in favor of Klipstein, for the sum of $5373.^1,

together with $177.00 costs. Pursuant to this judg-

ment all of the remaining property and assets of t|;

corporation were sold by the sheriff on execution s^i

for the sum of $1935.00. (Tr. p. 58.) From thi,

Klipstein, the judgment creditor, has withheld t:;

sum of $608.75. Subsequent to the filing of the i'-

voluntary petition in bankruptcy as hereinafter ]•

lated, said judgment creditor turned over the balan^.

to the trustee in bankruptcy. 1

On the petition of other creditors involuntary pij-

ceedings in bankruptcy were filed against the corpoi-

tion on February 14, 1936, and it was adjudicated i

bankrupt on March 6, 1936. On behalf of the bank-

rupt, Stelzner, its president, filed a schedule in ban-

ruptcy, showing debts of $11,043.87 and assets :

$3985.63. Thus it appears that there is not enouii

money or property in the bankrupt's estate with whii

to pay its creditors and the expenses of administratic

The question at issue in the case is whether the^

two defendants, directors, officers, and shareholders :

the bankrupt corporation, are liable to the trustee !i

bankruptcy for the funds of the corporation thus m -

appropriated by them, to an extent sufficient to satis f

all just and proper claims and reasonable allowancii



ajd exj)enses in the bankruptcy proceediiii;-. Tlie court

blow lias determined by its decree that they are so

lible, and has limited that liability to the maximum

lit of $4500.00, calculated by the court to be suf-

mcnt to pay all such claims, allowances, and expenses.

Ike defendant Stelzner has prosecuted no appeal, and

a|to him the decree is final. Ilis co-defendant, Klip-

s?in, the appellant here, has appealed, claiming the

dcree is erroneous.

APPELLEE'S THEORY OF THE CASE.
i

This is a i)lenary suit in which the trustee of the

bnkrupt seeks to recover for the estate property now

blonging- to it and necessary to pay the claims of

o^ditors.
i

There ai-c various sections in the former Bank-

rptcy Act conferring upon the trustee the right to

rpover such property. These are Sections 47, 67, and

~i. For the purposes of this discussion w^e can dis-

r^ard Section 67, which has to do with the special and

iculiar right of the trustee to avoid preferences. In

tje instant case it is not necessary for the trustee to

asert a preference or to rely upon Section 67, and he

Ces not do so.

iSince the amendment of 1910 to the Bankruptcy

ipt, the trustee's title to such property is three-fold,

ti.raely, he takes, first, the title of the bankrupt;

g3ond, the title of creditors; and third, the peculiar

l^ht to set aside preferences. The second title, that



which he derives from creditors, is itself three-folb

First, the right to recover property fraudulently he!

;

second, the right to avoid transactions which are vd

as to existing creditors; and third, the right oi:a

creditor imder state law, armed with process, whetlr

or not, in fact, there be such creditor actually in :-

istence. (Remington, Vol. 4, Sec. 1508.) Here e

trustee has all of these rights, except the right Jo

avoid a preference, which, as stated above, he does it

assert.
j

As appears from the allegations in the bill (Tr. ]).

5-10), the defendants have a dual responsibility to I'e

trustee. In the first j)lace, they occupy the positih

of recipients of the benefits of the wrongful transf^s

by the bankrupt corporation of its property. In 1e

second place, they are not only the recipients of the

benefits, but are also the agents and representati^is

of the corporation through whom it acted in disposi:?

of the property. And inasmuch as the bankrupt i^a

corporation and the defendants were its directo*!,

officers, and stockholders, there come into play [1

those legal rules and principles under which such cd-

porate agents and representatives are held liable, lit

only imder statutory law, but the common law as w(.,

for wrongfully disposing of, misappropriating, al

wasting the corporation's property to their own bei-

fit. i

There is one general fallacy in the position taken 7

the appellant Klipstein in the arguments advanced i

his opening brief. He would seek to have his liabilif

measured exclusively by a particular statute, which s



iu^ied to impose a liability upon corporate directors

1 specitic wrongs done during their administration

office. Appellant forgets or disregards the common

w, and all the other general legal principles recog-

Ized not only in California but in all the states, which

jive always imposed upon corporate directors and

fficers liability for malfeasance or misfeasance in

^ce, or for participating in or benefiting from a

sappropriation of the corporation's assets. Indeed,

l)roper regard for this aspect of the law pertinent

• this case reveals a complete answer to almost the

iltire brief of the appellant. We will attempt to make

jiis clear in our argument hereinafter set forth.

ARGUMENT.

LIPSTEIN WAS A DIRECTOR, OFFICER, AND STOCKHOLDER
OF THE CORPORATION DURING ALL OF THE TRANSAC-
TIONS INVOLVED.

, Appellant seeks to escape his liability upon the spe-

l-ous contention that he w-as never a director, officer,

r stockliolder of the corporation, and even that Globe

j>rug Company, Inc., was never organized as a cor-

oration.

I
In his original verified answer there was a clear

Idmission of the allegation of the bill that the corpo-

ation was duly organized and existing under and by

|irtue of the laws of the State of California. (Tr. p.

11.) The same admission appears in Stelzner's an-

wer. (Tr. p. 16.) Klipstein, at the trial, filed an

.mendment to his answer in which, in the face of his
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sworn admission in his original answer, he sought
j

deny the organization of the corporation. (Tr. p. 21

1

Of course the evidence clearly shows the due organizij

tion of the corporation as such, with all the requisi

incidents, such as an authorized capital stock, a Boail

of Directors, and officers, all functioning as suci

(Tr. p. 53.)
i

i

The corporate records further show that on Decenl

ber 31, 1927, at a meeting of directors at which l!

was present and acting, Klipstein was elected as tl|

vice-president of the corporation, and that on Januai''

4, 1928, at a directors' meeting at which he was preseii

and acting, he was elected secretary of the corporatioj

This corporate record was attested by Klipstein 's ow'

signature. (Tr. p. 53.)

JA great deal of argument is indulged in by Klij:

stein in which, in the face of these records, he seeV
i

to disavow his capacity as a director, now directing

!

collateral attack against his qualification as such. W,

believe such a discussion is wholly unnecessary aBi

futile, for various reasons. It must be rememberei
i

that Klipstein was continuously a director from an!

after December 31, 1927, when he was elected. Thei

is no evidence that he ever resigned or that any su('

cessor to him was ever elected. He acted as a directc

at the meeting of October 19, 1935. (Tr. p. 53.) BJ

denies that he was a de jure director, because he we'

not a stockholder. The evidence shows that stock w^i
i

issued to him on December 21, 1927, prior to his ele*;

tion, and again on January 5, 1928. He accepted an|



i-j^eipted for this stock. (Tr. p. 55.) He never trans-

fiiTed it. He now claims that this stock was void

hicause it was issued without the permit of the Cor-

pration Commissioner; that, therefore, he lacked the

n^al qualification for a de jure director. Even if such

ai^ontention were important here, this appellant would

r't be permitted to seek refuge behind it to the preju-

Gce of a third party. Moreover, the acts complained

ci here took place in and after the year 1933, at which

tne it was no longer necessary for directors of Cali-

i|mia corporations to be stockholders in order to

cialify. (Section 305, Civil Code.) If there were any

dtubt of his de jure capacity, certainly there could be

nne that he was, and acted as, a director de facto.

\k Cal. Jur. p. 1068.)

jKlipstein does not, and cannot, deny that he was

£JL
officer, the secretary, of the corporation, during

t|e times involved. He was elected as such on Janu-

i'j 4, 1928. We find him acting as such on October

1,', 1935. We must assume that he continuously oc-

ci.pied such office during all such interval of time and

tereafter, because there is no record or other proof

i a successor to him ever beino- elected.
1

I

There is ample evidence in the record to sustain

fe court's finding that at all of the times involved

];hpstein was a director, officer, and stockholder of

|e corporation.



10

KLIPSTEIN PEIiSONALLY BENEFITED FROM THE MISAPPR-

PRIATION OF THE CORPORATION'S ASSETS.

Klipstein says that he received no benefit from tl

payments made by the corporation to the bank on h

and Stelzner's personal note. He makes such coi

tentions as these : that he was but an accommodatioj

maker; that he received no part of the consideratioi

for the note; that the bank regarded him as only

surety on the note, etc. These are such contentioij

as he might be expected to make if he were beinj

sued on the note.

But he is not here being sued on the note; he

being sued for misappropriating and wasting the coi

poration's assets, and the fact that he personal!

benefited from the disposition of those assets linl

him closer to the wrong and accentuates his liabilitj

It is conceded by Klipstein that he was liable on th

note. It is immaterial whether his liability was thf

of joint maker, guarantor, surety, or otherwise. H
recognized his liability, because when payments b(

came delinquent the bank called upon him and he mad

them. (Tr. p. 61.) It is apparent that every tim

the corporation made a j)ayment on the note,

satisfied pro tanto Klipstein 's liability on it. Cons(

quently, he was in the position of a corporate d

rector and officer, using the corporation's funds t

satisfy his own personal obligation, and appropriating

and consenting to the appropriation of, the corporat;

assets to his own use. Clearly it was a misappropria:

tion, because the corporation never owed anything t'

Klipstein and received no consideration for thus pay

ing out its funds. All this is to say nothing of th
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incidental fact that the corporation's funds were used

idirectly to pui'chase outstanding stock, 9990 shares

^: which went to Klipstein upon its purchase, which

i but an additional indication that Klipstein was a

Imeficiary of the misappropriation of the corporate

ksets. He says in his brief that he was not beneficially

iterested in this stock; Stelzner admitted in his an-

iver that the stock was put in Klipstein 's name as

i'lcurity. (Tr. p. 16.) But the stock records set forth

b such qualifying entries; they show Klipstein to

fe the absolute owTier thereof. (Tr. p. 55.) In either

ase he was benefited.

THE NATURE OF KLIPSTEIN' S LIABILITY.

I

In considering the nature of Klipstein 's liability

I this case, it is necessary at all times to bear in

^lind the position which he occupies. Not only was

3 a director and officer of the cor^Joration, and as

iich an actor in the disposition of the corporate

insets, but also he was the recipient of the benefits

Insulting therefrom. Moreover, this complainant-

'ustee in bankruptcy not only represents the cred-

ors of the bankrupt estate, with the incidental rights

mferred by the Bankruptcy Act, but he also repre-

imts the bankrupt corporation and stands in its

fioes, a corporation which was under the complete

Dmination and control of the defendants. He has

icceeded to any and all rights that the bankrupt

id against any and all parties for the recovery of

ly of the corporation's property that might have
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been wrongfully dissipated, wasted, given away, <

misappropriated. Also, we must not forget that thi

appellant in the eyes of the law occupied a fiducial

i

relationship to the bankrupt corporation, in line wii

which he was at all times bound to exercise the h.ig.\

est degree of good faith and honesty in connecti(

with its affairs.
j

We are reminded by counsel, unnecessarily, (|

course, that the liability of the appellant depends upc*

the law of the State of California. They studious'

draw attention to a recent decision of the Unit(|

States Supreme Court in Erie Railroad Company
\

Tompkins which, by overruling Stvift v. Tyson, prj

duced a marked change in the conception of the lai

governing federal courts. But however interestiii

counsel's point may be in the abstract, there is il

necessity for a consideration or discussion of it heri

The trustee quite readily concedes that the appe:

lant's liability must be determined in accordance wit

legal principles recognized in the State of Californi

He denies, however, that these legal principles mui

be confined within the narrow limits contended for t;

the appellant. We maintain that there is here n(

only ample statutor}^ enactments declaring appellant!

liability, but also that in California certain rules an

principles outside the written law have long bee

enforced, under which the appellant must be he],

answerable for the wrongs complained of here.
j
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DEFENDANTS' POSITION AS CORPORATE AGENTS.

jLet US cousider ai)]jellant's position as a director

{id officer, in otlior words, an agent, of the corpora-

fon. A director is charged with the highest degree

<f good faith. Under the circumstances involved in

lis case, he is a trustee for the corporation and as

ach occupies a fiduciary relationship. He must not

^lite his personal and representative character in the

^.me transaction, nor must he use his official position

\ benefit himself individually. {Dean i'. Shingle,

:i8 Cal. at p. 658.)

These duties, and the obligations arising therefrom,

hve always been imposed upon corporate directors

ad officers, and they exist today, regardless of whether

'• not they are the subject of legislative enactment.

A California these principles have always been funda-

lental in the corporation law of that state.

"Directors are also trustees for the stockholders

and indirectly for the creditors. They have al-

ways been held responsible as trustees in their

management of the property and affairs of the

corporation. Like trustees, they must not deal

with the subject of the trust for their own ad-

vantage, * * *.

'^ Directors and officers of corporations, as well

as trustees, have always been held responsible for

loss resulting from misappropriations of the

trust i^roperty made by them or with their con-

sent. The character of the misappropriations

for which the officers who made them can be

held responsible to the corporation has been

settled in many cases. The liability has existed
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ever since there have been courts of equity and

corporations or trustees."

Winchester v. Tlotvard, 136 Cal. at pp. 442, 443. i

In California statutory enactments have never

changed this liability. The legislature has, it is true,!

taken cognizance of situations in which a director

may not be a direct actor in the wrong and, therefore'

individually culpable. Under these particular condi-

tions they have sought to create directors ' liability for

j

certain specific acts, and in doing so they have pre-

scribed certain conditions which must exist for the

imposition of such liability. However, it is incon-

ceivable that California, or any other state, could

ever pass a law affecting the liability of a corporate

director to make restitution to injured parties of'

moneys and assets of the corporation that he has with

drawn and appropriated to his individual use andi

benefit. As said in Southern Cal. Home Builders v.,

Young, 45 Cal. App. at pp. 690, 691 :

''It has always been presumed that directors'

have knowledge of the business of the corpora-

tions it is their duty to manage and control.!

Before the adoption of any of the statutes in

terms making directors liable, among other things,

for declaring dividends out of capital, it wasj

recognized both in the courts of coimnon law and]

in the courts of equity that directors as trustees;

were liable for acts of malfeasance or misfeasance!

by which the capital of the corporation might be

improperly depleted. * * * In the growth of cor-

porate intervention in ordinary business affairs,
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it is inconcoivablc that l)y ilir ;Mln|)tic)ii of thoso

statutes the Icirislatiiri's ul" a miinbiT of states

intended to lessen the n^sjmnsibility of directors

In (hu-larinj; them lial)I(' f<u' speeifie breaolies of

trust, which hv their mention in tlie statute mii^lit

have the cft'ect of i-clievinir tlic dii-ectoi-s from civil

liability \'nv ..tlicr breaches not mentioned."

The fallacy of appellant's position, emphasized

throuufhout his brief, lies in his cffoit to persuade this

•urt that liif measure of his liability in this ease lies

• ntii-ely within the terms and provisions of Section

i:} of the Civil Code of Califoi'nia, as amended in

1 !':):!. lie studiously calls attention to the limitations

lesci'ibed in that statute and contends that the evi-

lence in this case falls short of fulfillinc: the required

•nditions of the liability there declai-ed. It is true

lat in his bill complainant set forth a second cause of

•tion in wiiich was contained a conclusionaiy alleira-

• •n that the misa])j)roj)riation and withdrawal of coi--

'orate funds by the defendants was in violation of

section 3().'5, C C, and its predecessor. Civil Code See-

lion 'M)U. However, consistent with the rule <»f plead-

Miir in e(juity cases, the bill contains a concise state-

ment (d" the facts pertinent to the wronc:s com])lained

' and the liability soupfht to be im])osed, and the

xistence of the liability is none the less affected

Aliether it be by virtue of any particulai' statute, or

111 accordance with lecoanized lecfal princii)les aside

Ironi anv statute.

i
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Appellant in his brief devotes much of his argiimeni

to some of the conditions necessary for the imposition

of the liability prescribed by Section 363, C. C. H(

complains, among other things, that there is no show

ing in the evidence that Klij)stein assumed to act as g

director, that he was present when the withdrawals

were authorized, that he ever assented to such with

drawals, and of the exact amount of the debts whicl

existed at the time of each of the numerous with

drawals over the period of more than seven years

If we were seeking to establish here only the partieu

lar liability declared by Civil Code Section 363, if this

were not a case of downright misappropriation of th

corporation's assets, if Klipstein knew nothing of th^

nature and purpose of the withdrawals, or if the pay

ments to the bank in no way benefited him individualli

and personally, there might then be some reason fo;

a careful consideration of the existence here of thes

particular statutory conditions. But it is plain to b
seen that Klipstein does not occupy a position to whicl

these conditions are necessarily pertinent. Of course]

it is apparent on the face of the situation that eve:

the conditions prescribed by the code section do i

fact exist. As we have demonstrated above, Klipstei;

was a director and acted as such; while no actui

resolutions were adopted authorizing the payments t

the bank, nevertheless Klipstein must have knowi:

that the payments were being made to the bank an(|

credited upon his note obligation; obviously he con!

sented to the making of the payments by accepting thi

benefit thereof ; he actively participated in the passagi

1
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'
I the resolution of the Board of Directors authorizing

I he execution of the $4800.00 note in satisfaction of the

, Ibalance due on his note to the bank ; every time a

I ^withdrawal was made, the corporation w^as indebted

in excess of such withdraw^al. Therefore, even if it

jwere necessary in this case for the trustee to rely

jsolely upon the liability declared by the particular

I [statute, his showing is amply sufficient to justify the

I imposition of it. It must not be forgotten that the

defendants failed to make any showing at the trial

: [justifying the withdrawals. Stelzner alleged in his

ianswer that the withdrawals were made from surplus

Iprotits. (Tr. p. 17.) But no attempt to prove this was

tmade, nor was any attempt made to show that such

[existing indebtedness had ever been paid.

n Klipstein tries to make us believe that he was at all

[times so remote from the situation as to excuse him

'from the liability. He insists that his own case is to be

Idifferentiated from that of his cohort, Stelzner, w^ho

[admits his liability. He now says that he had no

interest in the corporation's drug business. But he

'concedes that he helped his brother-in-law, Stelzner,

to borrow the money from the bank to purchase out-

jstanding stock, some of which he received. He dis-

[avows his directorship, although he consented to his

ielection, accepted the offices of director and secretary,

'and actively participated in regular corporate pro-

'ceedings. He now denies he was a stockliolder, al-

though he took and received a substantial portion of

•the corporation's stock which he helped his brother-

in-law to buy for $17,000.00, without at that time, or
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until now, raising any question as to the regularity

of such stock. He now says that he can never get it

out of his head that there was no corporate entity and!

that the Globe Drug Company, Inc., consisted of an:

individual, his brother-in-law; all in the face of the

fact that he was an experienced businessman engaged

in the title business, lent himself to dealings in the

corporation's stock, and participated in proceedings

appropriate to the conduct of corporate business. In

addition to all this w^e find him commencing an action

against Grlobe Drug Company, Inc., a corporation, noti

against Stelzner, individually, for money which he

swore was due to him from the defendant corporation,

not from Stelzner individually. He now says that he

has never derived any gain or benefit whatsoever from

his relationship with the corporation, and that in fact

he is the loser. But as a result of the loan which hi

helped his brother-in-law make, he acquired 999C

shares of the corporation's stock, practically a two-

fifths' interest in the corporation's business.

It is interesting to reflect for a moment upon whal

the situation might have been if this corporation had

prospered, had made money, and been able to pay al

its debts as they matured. Then, of course, we woulc;

not be here before this court, and there w^ould then hi

no necessity for Klipstein to urge these various fan-^

tastic contentions. But the corporation failed and i.'

now defunct. It is in bankruptcy, with numerous un

paid creditors. Its stock is valueless, and perhaps ii

that sense Klipstein has suffered a loss. But the cor

poration is defmict and in bankruptcy because it usec;
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I

its assets to buy up stock for Klipstein's and Stelzner's

!
account. If that had not been done, there would have

I

been no bankruptcy and no unpaid creditors. Courts

[
are constantly faced with situations where men become

j
connected with corporate business ventures, either

actively or inactively, under which they and their

\ associates at the time give little thought to the possible
i

I consequences in case the venture fails. They willingly

!
assume the probability of gain, but they avoid the

thought of the possibility of losses. When failure

- occurs they seek to disavow any connection with the

' enterprise and urge the courts to relieve them from

I

responsibilities which they should have comprehended

I and appreciated in the beginning. There could be

! little safety in commercial transactions if the law per-

mitted, through the use of the corporate fiction, such a

I violation of creditors' rights.

THE DEFENDANTS ARE CHARGEABLE WITH FRAUD.

' It is contended by appellant's counsel that there is

no showing of either actual or constructive fraud on

the part of the defendants. In our opinion it is wiioUy

unnecessary to indulge in an extended discussion of

,

this point. In so far as it is necessary, the evidentiary

facts are sufficient upon which to base the finding of

the court that the flagrant misappropriation of the

corporation funds, continuously over a long period of

time, constituted fraud.

These defendants here are concededly guilty of tak-

ing the corporation's funds and appropriating them to
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their own use. The law says that this is a fraud. The

courts declare it to be constructively fraudulent as to

the creditors of the corporation. (14a C. J., pp. 180,

188.) Any violation of a duty growing out of a fidu-

ciary relationship is constructively fraudulent.

Under all these circumstances it was incumbent

upon the defendants to show to the court, if they could,

the bona fides of their acts.

''Moreover, whether or not these directors were

trustees for creditors (see cases, 14a C. Jur. 169),

their status was so far fiduciaiy in resx)ect to'

creditors that they are subject to the rule that'

these corporate transfers challenged, the burden,

is defendant's to vindicate them. See Geddes v.;

Mining Co., 254 U. S. 599, 41 Sup. Ct. 209, 65 L.

Ed. 425, and cases therein cited.

'

' That is to say, defendant must prove that the

transfers were in good faith, fair, reasonable, and;

for adequate consideration or at a time when,

excluding them, the corporation was solvent and'

not contemplating insolvency; in brief, defendant

must prove the transfers are not fraudulent in

respect to corporate creditors.
'

'

i

Oliver v. Brennan, 292 Fed. at p. 201 (affirmed,

299 Fed. 106, C. C. A. 9th).

Such showing of constructive fraud was sufficient

to make out a prima facie case of actual intent to

defraud creditors. Consequently, in this respect also,;

it was incumbent upon the defendants to go forward;

with proof of the lack of such intent, and it was the

function of the trial court to determine whether ori

not they had sufficiently complied with this legal re-
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quirement. {Hementvay v. Thaxter, 150 Cal. 737;

Hanscome-James-WinsMp v. Ainger, 71 Cal. Ai)p.

)735; Wilson v. Robinson, 83 Fed. (2d) 397.) Certainly

jit cannot be said that under the circumstances here,

[and still bearing in mind the nature of the wrongful

•acts of these corporate directors and officers, it was

Iplaintiff's duty to show the existence of all the re-

iquirements of the fraudulent conveyance statutes at

jeach time a misappropriation of funds was made ; in

jother words, at the time the defendants caused each

Ipayment to be made on their note with the bank.

Incidentally, the trustee testified: "The records of the

;Grlobe Drug Company, when they came into my hands,

were very incomplete, Yery difficult to examine oi'

ascertain anything from; we had quite a bit of

trouble." (Tr. p. 65.)

THE LIABILITY OF THE DEFENDANTS RUNS TO ALL THE
CREDITORS OF THE BANKRUPT.

AjDpellant's counsel urge that the liability here

sought to be enforced runs only to the benefit of

'creditors existing at the time of each wrongful act, at

,the same time calling attention to the 1933 amend-

ment to section 363 of the Civil Code of California.

But here again they seek to confine our attention to a

specific statutory declaration of directors^ liability

outside the scope of and beyond the fundamental com-

mon law liability here involved. The fact that a statute

I

gives to creditors a direct remedy against directors

for wrongs they commit, certainly does not affect the

common law remedy of the corporation to redress those
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wrongs, or the rights of a trustee in bankruptcy to

recover corporate property unlawfully disposed of by

directors. (See In re Dalton Electric Co., 7 Fed. Supp.

465.) Under this theory of the liability of defendants,

it was only necessary for plaintiff to show that at

least one creditor existed at the times of the misappro-

priations. These directors were just as much liable,

according to these legal principles, whether the cor-

poration was insolvent or not at each and all of the

times of the withdrawals. (See Lytic v. Andrews, 34

Fed. (2d) 252.)

Likewise, according to this theory of the liability, all

of the creditors represented by the trustee, who have

claims against the bankrupt estate, have a definite

right to participate in any recovery from the defend-

ants. The courts of California recognize this rule.

''The argument that the trustee cannot brin^

this action on behalf of creditors whose claim?

were not in existence at the time of the fraud if

also without merit. Subsequent creditors are en

titled to recover (Sherman v. S. K. D. Oil Co.

185 Cal. 534 (197 Pac. 799) ; Clark v. Tompkinsi

205 Cal. 373 (270 Pac. 946)), and the trustee is 'c\

party authorized to sue on their behalf. (SchroeteJ

V. Abbott, 185 Cal. 146 (196 Pac. 39) ; Dean \

Shingle, 198 Cal. 653 (46 A. L. R. 1156, 246 Pac

1094).)"
'

Kahle v. Stepens, 214 Cal. at p. 93.

!

See also

:

\

In re Wright Motor Company, 299 Fed. 106

;

Hanson v. Cal. Bank, 17 Cal. App. (2d) 80.
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THE RULES AND PRINCIPLES DECLARED IN IN RE WRIGHT
MOTOR COMPANY ARE APPLICABLE TO THE INSTANT
CASE.

Appellant's counsel seek to draw distinctions be-

tween the instant case and hi re Wright Motor Com-

,

pany, 299 Fed. 106, C. C. A. 9tli, 1924, decided in this

I

circuit, and followed here by the lower court. They

I

say that there is a difference in the facts involved

;

but we are walling to submit, without an extended dis-

cussion, that fundamentally and substantially there is

a striking similarity in all those essential facts which

are necessary to justify the interposition of a court

of equity to redress the wrong, the character of which

is the same in both cases. Counsel concede the abso-

lute integrity of the decision in the Wright Motor

: Company case, but they say that its effect has been

ii destroyed by Erie Ry. Co. v. Tompkins, and also that

I certain statutory liability touched upon in the opinion

;
has been changed by subsequent legislative amend-

[
ment. This, obviously, is mere sophistry. Although, in

r
. .

[nis opmion affirming the decision of the lower court,

\ Circuit Judge Hunt did discuss certain statutory pro-

visions in the laws of California, it is plain that he

I

recognized that the liability there enforced existed

;

regardless of these statutes, and that independent of

lithem the misappropriation of the corporation's ])rop-

[erties and assets by the defendant there was a fraud
' upon the creditors of the corporation. In this con-

, nection he said

:

= "The rulings were based, not merely upon a lia-

bility imposed by statute, but upon the ground
that it is a fraud upon the creditors of a corpora-
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tion to distribute corporate property to stock-

holders without providing for the payment of

debts of the corporation. Sanger v. Upton, 91 U.

S. 56, 23 L. Ed. 220; Schulte v. Boulevard Gar-

dens Land Co., 164 Cal. 467, 129 Pac. 582, 44 L. R.

A. (N. S.) 156, Ann. Cas. 1914B, 1013."

These principles are still fundamental in the law of

the State of California and have never been changed

either by the legislature or the courts.

It is plain to be seen that the Erie Ry. Co. case has

had absolutely no effect whatever upon the Wright

Motor Company case, for the very obvious reason that

this court in that case strictly followed legal rules and'

principles embodied in the basic law of the State of

California. There is nothing in the opinion of the

court indicating otherwise, or that there was in the

mind of the court any idea of departing from the

California law and granting relief in accordance witl

any legal conception recognized exclusively in the fed-

eral courts.

I

THE DECREE OF THE LOWER COURT IS PROPER AND If

ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF EQUITt

PROCEDURE.

In formulating its decree the lower court followe(!

the practice observed in the Wright Motor Compcmi

case. In effect, the court ordered the defendants t(;

make restitution, to a limited extent, of the fund'

which they took from the corporation and appro'

priated to their own use. The extent of the recover;

was limited to a maximum of $4500.00, which is some

i
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vvhat below the aggregate amount of misappropria-

;ions during the three-year period prior to the adjudi-

3ation of bankruptcy. As the lower court pointed out

11 its opinion, there was no necessity for an account-

ng of the sums misappropriated, for the reason that

proof of the amounts thereof was undisputed. It took

ijudicial notice of the creditors' claims proved in the

Dankruptcy proceedings, as it had a right to do {Hall

V. Glemi, 247 Fed. 997; C. C. A. 9th), and concluded

'hat the amoiuit of the recovery awarded was adequate

Iter all purposes.

I

Appellant objects that under such decree his lia-

[Dility is uncertain. The same objection was made and

j)verruled in the Wright Motor Company case. The

|lecree protects the rights and interests of the appel-

iiant by providing that, if the amomit necessary to pay

Imd satisfy all just and proper claims and reasonable

|illowances and expenses in the bankruptc}^ proceed-

ings is less than the maximum award of $4500.00, the

lixcess shall be returned to the defendants.

Appellant intimates that a special master should

jiave been appointed for the purposes mentioned in

!:he decree. The bankruptcy court is an arm of the

j'ederal district court, and the Referee in Bankruptcy

|s the special referee of that court in all matters hav-

ing to do with the administration of banknipts' estates.

fcippellant further complains that he is not represented

n the bankruptcy proceeding and would have no

[Standing to contest the propriety of any claims or ex-

pense allowances. This is an inconsiderate statement.

iJe has, as the decree provides, an interest in the res
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to be administered, and therefore he is a party in

interest within the purview of section. 57 of the Bank-i

ruptcy Act. Also, paragraph 6 of General Order XXIi

affords to appellant the right of which he thinks he i&

deprived. The defendants are directors and stock-

holders of the bankrupt corporation which, under saic

General Order, could cause the re-examination of an}:

claim against the estate.

CONCLUSION.

Stripped of all the superfluities discussed by appel:

lant in his brief, it would appear that this case ii

after all, quite simple. There is little, if any, disput:

about the essential facts. The money of the bankrup

corporation was taken and paid on the personal obli

gations of the defendants. It has never been pai

back. There could scarcely be a clearer case of th

wrongful misappropriation of a corporation's proj

erty by its directors and officers.

The defendants at the trial offered no defem

worthy of the name. Here the appellant seeks t

justify himself by an argumentative discussion c

points of law more or less mirelated to the princip;,

issue involved and the main question to be determine!

In the conclusion to their brief counsel make the su;

gestion that this court's opinion on this appeal wi

constitute the first interpretation by any court of t]|!

meaning, validity, and effect of section 363 of t]'^

California Civil Code. However interesting a legalist'
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discussion it\' this Icj^islativc (Miactniciit would he, in

our npinion the necessity I'**!- it <l<»('.s imt exist here.

iln other W(»r(ls, wlu'ther the lower couri has ((tinniittctl

)pri*oi- in makinii: its decree, (h)es not (h'pend in any

iN'ital respect on tlie nieanini:: and effect of tliis code

tion. The apix^Uee niii^lit just as well offer the

>imLrcstion that this court consider the elTect of section

)<)<) (»f the California Civil Co(h', holdini: dii-ectoi's and

officers liahle Tor niakini; loans of a corpoi'at ion's

money or propeiiy, which liahility, undei- the circum-

stances invohcd in this case, would seem to exist here.

AVe niiuht even i;-o farther and invite attention to see-

'tion 5f)0 of the Califoinia Penal Code, in effect declar-

ing it to be a ciMnie for a coi-|)oi-ate director t(> concur

in a wronc:ful disti-ihution of coiporate assets, which

liability would also appear to exist here.

j
Since the defendants are unable to otTer any justifi-

cation foi- theii- niisdecils, and since their malfeasance

and plain breach of duty has always been condenuied

imder any standai'd of morals and t;-ood conscience, it

would seem to be unnecessaiy in determininu: their

liability t(» look any fai-ther than to those fundamental

legal i)rLncii)les which, fiom time immemoi-ial, have

always been ap])lied to just such situations as the one

involv(»d here. As the California courts of last resoit

have said, no leuislativ<' act has ever changetl these

legal j)rincii)les in that state.

The lower court has determined that tln-se defend-

,mts must make restitution of the money which they

k from the corporation for their own use instead
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of using it to pay its just debts. We submit that any

other determination would be in violation of the true

legal principles applicable here, and that, therefore,

the decree of the lower court should be affiiTaed.

Dated, San Francisco,

January 11, 1939.

Respectfully submitted,

Arthur L. Shannon,

Clarence A. Shuey,

Attorneys for Appellee.
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APPELLANT'S CLOSING BRIEF.

Statement of the Case.

Appellee's re-statement of the case in his reply brief is

in general merely a reiteration, in less complete form, of
the material already supplied in appellant's opening brief.

Such re-statement, however, contains one or two matters
which appellant believes may be misleading and which
warrant correction by reference to the record.

Following the quite accurate prefatory remark that such
facts have ''nothing to do with the extent of the recovery
sought and awarded", appellee sets out the circumstances
surrounding the execution of the note by Globe Drug
Company, Inc., the action against the company by Klip-
stein, and the execution sale of the company's tangible
assets, concluding with the statement that from the pro-
ceeds of such sale Klipstein "has withheld the sum of
$608.75." (Brief for Appellee, pp. 4-5.) No portion of
the transcript is cited for this last assertion. In fact, the
record affirmatively shows that no attempt was ever made
by Klipstein to withhold any part of such moneys.
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In this connection Klipstein testified that all creditors

were sent notice [Tr. p. 61] and that the proceeds of

the sale, less costs and expenses, were turned over to the

trustee. [Tr. p. 62.] The judgment roll of the action in

question, a certified copy of which was introduced as

Plaintifif's Exhibit 7 [Tr. p. 56], shows that the judgment

was entered on November 8, 1935, and Sears himself

testified that communications were sent out to the San

Francisco and Los Angeles Boards of Trade at least as

early as November 4th. [Tr. p. 64.] Bankruptcy proceed-

ings were not filed until February 14, 1936. The disposi-

tion of the proceeds of the sale is revealed from the bank-

ruptcy schedule filed by Stelzner on behalf of the drug

company [Plaintifif's Exhibit 8, Tr. pp. 57-59], from

which the following table is constructed:

Gross amount received on sale $1,935.00

"Held by Brittan & Mack, attor-

neys, for the benefit of creditors" $1,316.31

"Held by D. D. Cornwell, deputy

constable, to be returned for the

benefit of creditors" 565.17

1,881.48

Balance available for "costs

and expenses" $ 53.52

This tabulation completely disposes of the contention

that Klipstein "has withheld" or over attempted to with-

hold the sum of $608.75 or any other sum whatsoever

from the estate of the drug company, even prior to the

bankruptcy petition.

Appellee's statement of the case contains the further

assertion that the sum of $4,500.00 fixed as the maximum
recovery by the decree was "calculated by the court to be
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sufficient to pay all such claims, allowances and expenses".

(Brief for Appellee, p. 5.) This is an inaccurate state-

ment of the record. In the minute order entered by the

trial court upon the conclusion of the trial [Tr. pp. 24-25]

a decree was ordered in favor of the plaintiff in the sum

of $4,255.54 and accrued interest, representing the sums

"shown to have been illegally withdrawn and paid out by

the defendants". In making and entering its formal find-

ings of fact the trial court entirely failed to find on the

issue of the existence of any creditors whose claims have

been filed and approved and remain unsatisfied and this

failure constitutes one of appellant's main points in seek-

ing a reversal of the decree entered (see App. Op. Br. pp.

57-58). The schedule in bankruptcy prepared by Stelzner

[Plaintiff's Exhibit 8, Tr. p. 57], lists debts aggregating

$11,043.87, including a claim by Klipstein on his judg-

ment in the sum of $5,708.90. Excluding this claim,

which Klipstein directed his attorneys to waive for the

benefit of creditors [Tr. p. 61], the listed debts total only

$5,334.97 against assets in cash and accounts receivable of

$3,985.63, making the excess of liabilities over assets as

shown by such schedule $1,349.34. There is no evidence

anywhere in the record that any of these listed debts were

ever filed or approved or that any of the listed accounts

were not collected.

It therefore appears from the record that, not only did

the trial court not make any such "calculation" as sug-

gested by appellee but that no such determination could

have been made in view of the entire lack of evidence.

This is of course obvious from the terms of the decree

entered [Tr. p. 32] by which the amount necessary to

satisfy such claims, allowances and expenses is left to

the determination of the referee in the bankruptcy action.



ARGUMENT.

In his opening brief appellant Klipstein attempted to

present to this Court certain propositions of law believed

by him to be determinative of this appeal. Many, if not

most, of these propositions remain wholly unanswered in

appellee's brief and will not be further argued herein.

A considerable portion of appellant's opening brief was

devoted to the proposition that the rights of the parties in

this action are to be determined exclusively by the sub-

stantive law of the State of California and that the defi-

nition of such rights must be found in the statutes and

decisions making up two branches of that law, first, the

law relating to fraudulent conveyances and second, the

law relating to the duties and liabilities of directors of

corporations.

Appellee admits that the law of California governs.

(Brief for Appellee, p. 12.) Appellee, further, makes

little more than a desultory effort to meet the argument

that the proof is insufficient to warrant a recovery under

the rules of law relating to fraudulent conveyances. In-

deed, appellee disclaims the necessity for such proof.

(Brief for Appellee, p. 21, lines 3-9.) The only portion

of appellee's brief relevant to this point is that in which

it is asserted that Klipstein was chargeable with fraud.

This argument has been amply covered in appellant's

opening brief, wherein it is contended not only that no

finding of fraud was intended but that the record is barren

of the "unequivocal and convincing" evidence necessary to

support such an allegation. See Marshall v. Gelfand, 99

Fed. (2d) 85 (C. C. A. 6th, 1938). Appellee's main

contention is, apparently, that a recovery against Klipstein

may be sustained under some general principles of law
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existing apart from, and at least partially inconsistent

with, the express statutory provisions of the Civil Code

of the State of California. In arguing this proposition

in general terms appellee has been frequently led astray

from the precise issues presented to this Court on this

appeal.

The Trustee in Bankruptcy, on the Record Presented,

Is Limited to the Assertion of Rights Possessed

by California Creditors and All Discussion At-

tempting to Enlarge Such Rights by Citation of

Rules Governing the Duties of Directors to Their

Corporation and Its Stockholders Is Irrelevant on
This Appeal.

The irrelevancy of those portions of appellee's argu-

ment devoted to a dissertation on the duties owed by

directors of corporations to their corporations or to stock-

holders is conclusively demonstrated by each of two

propositions.

In the first place, as pointed out in appellant's opening

brief, no diversity of citizenship exists in this case. The

District Court has jurisdiction only if Sears has alleged

and proved a cause of action under the provisions of

section 70(e) of the Bankruptcy Act. (See argument in

appellant's opening brief at page 26.) Unless the right

to recover can be sustained under that section Sears is

automatically out of court as there is no other basis for

jurisdiction. The rights of creditors and the rights of

stockholders, or the corporation, against directors are sub-

stantially different. Appellee must build his cause of

action upon the former. It follows that the discussion



in appellee's brief upon the various rights ordinarily pos-

sessed by a trustee in bankruptcy bringing suit in a state

court, or in a federal court under section 23(a) of the

Bankruptcy Act, is not applicable. If Sears would have

any greater rights standing in the shoes of the bankrupt

corporation than he would otherwise have as a represen-

tative of creditors such rights cannot be asserted upon

this appeal. Much of appellee's argument is rendered

ineffectual by the failure to make this distinction.

A further and equally compelling reason why Sears

cannot assert any rights other than those possessed by

creditors is that the corporation itself has no cause of

action of any kind against either Stelzner or Klipstein.

Globe Drug Company, Inc., was a one-man corporation.

Stelzner was the beneficial owner of all of its stock

except that put in Klipstein's name as security, was the

president and in sole and exclusive control of the business.

Under these circumstances he was free to do what he

wished with the corporate assets (Sargent v. Palace Cafe

Co., 175 Cal. 737, 167 Pac. 146 (1917); Scales v. Holje,

41 Cal. App. 733, 183 Pac. 308 (1919)), subject only to

the specific and limited rights assertible by creditors in

the event of insolvency (see Dominguea Land Corporation

V. Daugherty, 196 Cal. 468, 238 Pac. 703 (1925)). Ap-

pellant brought out in his opening brief that no proof of

insolvency prior to the date of the adjudication in bank-

ruptcy had been produced and appellee does not and can-

not dispute this contention.

Sears' right of recovery is therefore that given to cred-

itors by the law of California and upon the determination

of the scope of such creditors' rights the decree in his

favor must stand or fall.
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In the Absence of Proof of a Cause of Action Under

the Rules of Law Relating Generally to Fraudu-

lent Conveyances the Rights of Creditors in This

Case Are Determined by the Provisions of the

General Corporation Law.

In his opening brief appellant called attention to the

significant changes in the statutory provisions of the

Civil Code relating to the liability of directors. This

argument is dismissed summarily by appellee in accord-

ance with his assertion that Sears' cause of action may

be based upon general principles of jurisprudence and the

common law apart from the express statutory provisions.

This assertion entirely overlooks the fundamental point

that the Court, in deciding this case, is undertaking a

decision of first impression because based on a new and

7adicall\\ different lazv of corporations. The present cor-

porate law is in effect a complete corporation code, changed

in many basic particulars from the somewhat fragmentary

condition which characterized it at the time of such deci-

sions as Southern California Home Builders v. Young,

45 Cal. App. 679, 188 Pac. 586 (1920).

"There have been three distinct periods or eras in

Cahfornia corporation law. The first began in 1850

with the statutes of that year. The second began

with the adoption of the Civil Code, effective January

1, 1873. The third begins with the going into effect

of the General Corporation Law of 1931." (6a Cali-

fornia Jurisprudence (1932), Section 1, p. Z7.)

The amendment of Article XII of the Constitution of

1879, in 1930, was intended to give the Legislature a

free hand in reconsidering the matters contained in various

provisions of the Civil Code applicable to corporations,
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enacted at different times without any unified scheme, and

to prepare a new and complete corporation law.

"The purpose of this amendment is to empower the

Legislature to provide, and keep up to date, a modern

system of laws for the organization and regulation

of corporations, better adapted to present-day eco-

nomic and social conditions than the antiquated laws

we now have." (Argument printed on the ballot in

support of Amendment of Article XII, quoted in

Ballantine, California Corporation Lazvs (1938

Edition), Section 2, p. 2.)

Following the constitutional amendment the General

Corporation Law was enacted in 1931 (Stats. & Amdmts.

1931, p. 1762), now comprising sections 277 to 413 of

the Civil Code. A cursory examination of the provisions

of this law with regard to the liabilities of directors

reveals that the new provisions are obviously intended to

cover the entire field. The conditions under which a cor-

poration is authorized to distribute its assets, by dividends,

purchase of its own stock, or otherwise, are carefully

enumerated (see sections 342, 346 and 348b). The condi-

tions necessary for relief in the event of violation of any

such provisions are also carefully and fully stated in

section 363 and the following sections. The effect of the

new provisions is described by Professor Ballantine as

follows

:

"The liability of the directors for declaring or pay-

ing unauthorized dividends, or permitting the un-

authorized withdrawal or distribution of assets among
the shareholders in connection with the purchase of



its own shares or otherwise, is limited to cases of

wilful or negligent violations of the legal limitations.

The directors in such cases, except those who were

absent or who caused their dissent to be entered in

the minutes, are made jointly and severally liable for

the benefit of creditors and other shareholders.

"By amendment in 1933 the direct liability of

directors to shareholders and subscribers was elim-

inated and the right of action against the directors

was conferred upon the corporation or its representa-

tive for the benefit 'of the shareholders and owners

of shares at the time of such violation,' other than

shares upon which any wrongful payment or distri-

bution was made, 'for the full amount of any loss

sustained by such holders and owners,' not exceeding

the amount of the unlawful distribution. The cor-

poration or its representative may also sue for the

benefit of the creditors for its debts and liabilities

existing at the time of such violation.

"The special provision with reference to the right

of recovery by the corporation or its representative

against directors in case of insolvency of the corpora-

tion was also eliminated in 1933 and the corporation

or its representative may sue at any time for the

benefit of creditors and of share owners existing at

the time of the violation other than those to whom
wrongful distribution was made. Any judgment

creditor or creditors whose original claim arose prior

to the violation may also institute an action against

any or all of the directors.

"If all the creditors existing at the time of an

illegal distribution, have been paid in full, they can

claim no loss and other creditors have no right of

action." {Ballantinc, California Corporation Laws

(1938 Edition), Section 262, pp. 257-258.)
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Appellee's attempt to base a liability on some law apart

from this express provision runs into two difficulties. In

the first place it is obvious that the General Corporation

Law of 1931 was meant to cover the entire field of direc-

tors' liability. Appellant does not contend, nevertheless,

that cases might not arise to which no express provision is

applicable and that in such cases it would not be proper

to resort to general principles of the common law. Nor

does appellant contend that appellee is limited by the

express mention of section 363 in his pleading. Of course

this Court could grant any relief warranted by the facts

alleged regardless of the pleading of legal conclusions.

Appellee is, however, in no such fortunate position. He

is attempting to go outside of the Civil Code in one of

the very situations for which the Legislature has pro-

vided the conditions of recover\y.

The case of Southern California Home Builders v.

Young, 45 Cal. App. 679, 188 Pac. 586 (1920), cited in

appellee's brief, was an action by a corporation against

its directors for an illegal payment of dividends, based

on section 309 in the form of that section prior to the

amendment of 1929 (set out in appellant's opening brief,

pages 40-41). The question on appeal from a judgment

in favor of the plaintiff was whether or not the trial court

had correctly excluded testimony that the defendants acted

in good faith. Defendants argued that section 309 was

merely a codification of the existing law under which they

would be liable only for active malfeasance. In affirming

the judgment, contrary to such contention, the Court
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found it unreasonable to suppose that in such a codification

the Legislature would limit the cases of liability to three

only, thus apparently excluding other cases by implica-

tion. Section 309 must therefore have been intended to

extend liability in these cases by making the enumerated

acts ultra vires and good faith immaterial. Directors

might still be held liable under the general existing law

in cases other than those expressly provided for. This

case is not authority for the proposition that the Court is

free to vary the liability of directors in the situation for

which express statutory provision has been made. Indeed,

the reasoning of the decision makes it authority for exactly

the contrary proposition.

The quotation of general statements in opinions handed

down prior to 1931, such as that contained in Winchester

V. Howard, 136 Cal. 432, 64 Pac. 692 (1902), to the

effect that directors are "trustees for the stockholders and

indirectly for the creditors", serves merely to confuse the

issue. Directors in California have not been "trustees"

for creditors in any real sense, except after insolvency,

since the decision in Dominguez Land Corporation v.

Daughert^y, supra, decided in 1925, and their duties in this

regard are now specifically covered by statutory enact-

ment. As pointed out above these duties cannot be en-

larged by any reference to any additional duties owed to

stockholders not only because none exists on the facts of

this case but also because the trustee is excluded from the

assertion thereof due to the jurisdictional peculiarities of

this appeal.
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There Is a Complete Failure of Proof to Support Any
Recovery Under Section 363 of the Civil Code.

In his opening brief appellant contended that there was

a complete failure of proof under section 363 for two

reasons, first, for lack of proof that Klipstein was a

director within the meaning of that section, and, second,

for lack of proof of creditors existing at the time of the

alleged violations, whose claims have been filed, approved,

and remain unpaid.

Appellee is unable to point to anything in the record

contradicting the assertion that Klipstein had absolutely

no connection with or knowledge of the affairs of the drug

company except long before and again long after the en-

tire period of the withdrawals. Nor does appellee seriously

contend that Klipstein was ever a dc jure director. A sub-

sequent change in the law requiring stock ownership by

directors could not afifect his status. Rozecrans Gold Min-

ing Co. V. Morey, 111 Cal. 114, 43 Pac. 585 (1896). Ap-

pellee attempts to assert that Klipstein cannot take ad-

vantage of the defect in his title to office to the prejudice

of third parties. This might be true only if the elements

of an estoppel were pleaded and proved. There was of

course no such evidence here and in the absence of such

proof Klipstein is perfectly free to assert this defense,

under the rule laid down by the California court in Regan

V. Albin, 219 Cal. 357, 26 Pac. (2d) 475 (1933).

Section 363 limits liability to cases of active participa-

tion in a wilful or negligent violation of its provisions.

Even in the case of de jure directors only those taking an

affirmative part in voting for the illegal acts are liable.

Mere acquiescence, even subsequent affirmance, is not

enough. (See Ballantine, cited supra; Western Mortgage

Company v. Gray, 215 Cal. 191, 8 Pac. (2d) 1016 (1932).
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The same facts which would prevent Hability upon

Klipstein even if he had been a de jure director also

operate to prevent him from initially coming? within the

term "director" as used in section 363 in relation to the

alleged illegal distributions and the liability asserted by

Sears. Admittedly he did not participate in any way in

the actual withdrawal of funds. All checks to the bank

were made over Stelzner's signature [Tr. p. 43] and

were drawn without any previous meeting or authoriza-

tion by Klipstein [Tr. p. 53]. Indeed, under the circum-

stances Klipstein could not have very well questioned

Stelzner's actions if he had known of the withdrawals.

There is no evidence anywhere in the record that he did

know the source of the payments to the bank or anything

at all about the company's affairs until after the last of the

payments [Tr. p. 60]. The single act of October 19,

1935, from which the company suffered no injury what-

ever but in fact was prevented from further depletion of

its assets [Tr. p. 61] cannot operate to subject Klipstein

to an onerous liabiHty for events then past in which he

took no part. Western Mortgage Co. v. Gray, supra. The

record shows that as the result of his attempt to aid his

brother-in-law, Stelzner, in acquiring the drug store Klip-

stein has already been subjected to a monetary loss of

over $5,000.00. He never received the benefit of one penny

from the company or from Stelzner for his actions. He
took no part and had no interest in the business. The

suggestion that he might be subject to criminal liability

under section 560 of the Penal Code is ridiculous on the

facts.

The second point precluding relief under section 363

and relied on by appellant as calling for a reversal in

this action is the complete failure to prove and the failure

of the trial court to find that there exist creditors whose
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claims arose prior to the alleged withdrawals, who have

proved such claims in the bankruptcy proceedings and

whose such claims remain unpaid.

The cases cited by appellee to sustain his contention that

subsequent creditors are entitled to recover are not in

point and furthermore were all decided under the disparate

provisions of the former law. Kahle v. Stephens, 214 Cal.

89, 4 Pac. (2d) 145 (1931), involved illegal purchases of

the corporation's own stock taking place between the years

1919 and 1926. The basis of the court's decision is not

clear from the opinion. In support of the statement that

subsequent creditors were entitled to recover the opinion

cites Sherman v. S. K. D. Oil Co., 185 Cal. 534, 197 Pac.

799 (1921), and Clark v. Tompkins. 205 Cal. 373, 270

Pac. 946 (1928), both watered stock cases where only

subsequent creditors would have any cause of complaint.

Moreover, in the Kahle case the trustee, suing in the state

court, could assert any rights possessed by the corpora-

tion and there was evidence of a large number of innocent

shareholders. There was in addition abundant evidence

of actual fraud.

Hansen v. California Bank, 17 Cal. App. (2d) 80,

61 Pac. (2d) 794 (1936), also involved an illegal purchase

of stock, taking place under section 309 as it existed in 1929

(set out in App. Op. Br. p. 41). On the authority of the

Kahle case the court found subsequent creditors entitled

to recover upon the theory that the money received upon

the sale to the corporation of its own stock without the

consent of the Corporation Commissioner created a trust

fund, the transaction being ultra vires and void.

Besides involving questions different from that here

raised both the Kahle case and the Hansen case are no

longer law in the State of California since the amendment
of section 363 in 1933. The plain words of that section



—15—

as so amended restrict recovery to existing creditors. The

rather lengthy quotation above set out from Ballantine

entirely bears out appellant's contentions in this regard

and the point will not be argued further.

Appellee makes the statement (Brief for Appellee, p.

25) that the trial court took judicial notice of the crecHtors'

claims proved in the bankruptcy proceedings. Even if

this were true it would of course not remedy the failure

to show that such creditors were in existence at the time

of the alleged violations and appellee does not attempt this

contention. However, the assertion concerning judicial

notice is clearly only an afterthought. There is nothing

in the record to show that the trial court took such notice

or that there were in existence records of which such

notice could be taken. On the contrary the record affirm-

atively shows that no such notice was taken inasmuch as

by the decree the amount of the recovery depends upon

the report of the referee in the bankruptcy proceedings

to be thereafter filed in the present action. An issue of

fact was tendered as to the existence of unpaid creditors

who had proved their claims [see Amended Complaint,

paragraphs VHT, Tr. p. 8, and III, Tr. p. 10; Answer,

paragraphs VIII, Tr. p. 12, and XI, Tr. p. 13]. No
proof was introduced on this issue nor was the court

asked to take judicial notice of any such facts. The record

shows that no such notice was taken. Tf the trial court

had attempted to supply the lack of proof by any such

means the propriety of its action would have been highly

doubtful. Paridy v. Caterpillar Tractor Co., 48 Fed. (2d)

166 (C. C. A. 7th, 1931); In re Interstate Oil Corpora-

tion, 63 Fed. (2d) 674 (C. C. A. 9th, 1933).

Appellant will not further argue the effect of the de-

cision in /// re Wright Motor Company, 299 Fed. 106
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(C. C. A. 9th, 1924), upon which the trial court based its

decision in the instant case. It is felt that the unavail-

ability of that case to support the decree herein is suffici-

ently set forth in appellant's opening brief and that the

arguments therein contained remain entirely unanswered.

The other cases cited by the appellee, /;/ re Dalton Elec-

tric Co., 7 Fed. Supp. 465 (1934), and Lytle v. Andrews,

34 Fed. (2d) 252 (C. C. A. 8th, 1929), are based upon

the local laws of the states of Mississippi and Iowa

respectively and, particularly since the decision in Erie

Railroad Co. v. Tompkins, 304 U. S. 64, 58 S. Ct. 817

(1938), can afford little aid to appellee in this litigation.

In No Event Would the Trustee in Bankruptcy Be
Entitled to Recover "Reasonable Allowances and

Expenses" Over and Above the Amount of Any
Unpaid Creditors Claims.

In its decree the trial court allowed recovery not only

to the extent sufficient to satisfy all claims approved but

also sufficient to cover all "reasonable allowances and

expenses" in the bankruptcy proceedings, to be determined

by a report to be filed by the referee [Tr. p. od)]. No
matter what decision might be rendered on the other ques-

tions presented on this appeal the impropriety of this

action is obvious. Appellee has cited no authority and

appellant knows of none which could support a recovery

over and above the amount of unpaid creditors claims,

under any circumstances. Not only is the additional re-

covery legally unwarranted but Klipstein would by the

decree be denied his day in court to contest the reason-

ableness of any items sought to be included under the

vague and indefinite denomination of "allowances and

expenses."
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Conclusion.

This Court on this appeal from an equitable decree is

confronted with the problem of considering the evidence

and rendering a decision by the application to such evidence

of statutory provisions hitherto not authoritatively inter-

preted. Yet the very questions vital to a determination

of the legal issues involved are left unanswered by the

proof adduced at the trial and preserved in the record.

When, if ever, prior to the date of its adjudication in bank-

ruptcy, did the Globe Drug Company first become unable

to meet its obligations as they fell due? Were any claims

of creditors allowed in the bankruptcy proceedings and if

so, to what extent, and when did such claims accrue?

These and other questions raised by the pleadings are vital

to the decision in this case and are left entirely unanswered

by the evidence produced by plaintiff in support of his

case. Appellee now seeks to avoid this failure by whole-

sale inferences and resort to principles of law applied

"from time immemorial" "to just such situations as this".

The express statutory enactments governing such cases

are apparently considered mere impediments to the appli-

cation of these principles. But no law applies except the

law of the State of California, determined by the statutes

enacted by its Legislature and the decisions of its Courts.

The principles which appellee seeks to apply seem to exist

only in vacuo, not having their origin in the instrumental-

ities empowered to make and apply the substantive law of

the State.
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The failure to supply the conditions of reHef expressly

provided cannot be remedied by such vague and unsub-

stantial legal principles, unsupported by citation to statutes

or decisions. The lack of proof on essential elements of

plaintiff's case requires a reversal of the decree entered

by the trial court.

Respectfully submitted,

Homer Johnstone,

Sidney H. Wyse,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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T. E. Klipstein,

Appellant,

vs.

Herbert P. Sears, Trustee in Bankruptcy of the Estate

of Globe Drug Company, Inc.,

Appellee.

PETITION FOR REHEARING.

To the Honorable Judges of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

T. E. K)ipstein, appellant in the above cause, respect-

fully requests a rehearing of the appeal in said cause, for

the purpose of more fully considering the jurisdictional

questions and other matters set forth in this petition.

In its opinion sustaining the decree of the District

Court, this Court rested its decision not upon either of the

two theories of Hability set out in the pleadings and exten-

sively argued at the trial and in the briefs, but upon

Section 366 of the Civil Code of California, a statutory

provision not previously considered in the case.

The grounds of this petition are that, in basing its

decision on this section, this Court sustained a recovery

not warranted by the facts, on a cause of action over

which the District Court does not have jurisdiction.
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In the Absence of Diversity of Citizenship, the District

Court Has No Jurisdiction Over an Action by a

Trustee in Bankruptcy Under Section 366 of the

Civil Code.

In the opinion of this Court liability is sustained under

Section 366 of the Civil Code. The nature of plaintiff's

cause of action under this section is described as follows

:

"This is a suit to enforce a right of the corporation

by the trustee against the director for his illegal acts.

Whether the stockholders of the bankrupt or its

creditors will benefit by recovery is of no moment

here. The right enforced exists whether there are

creditors or not." (Opinion, p. 7.)

Such a cause of action is one over which the federal

courts have no jurisdiction in the absence of diversity of

citizenship. This conclusion follows from well settled

principles of federal jurisprudence.

}

The federal courts are courts of limited jurisdiction.

There is a continuing presumption against the existence

of such jurisdiction and a continuing burden upon the

proponent to overcome such presumption, on the record,

when the question is raised at any time. (Turner v.

Bank of North America, 4 U. S. 8, 1 L. Ed. 718 (1799) ; I

McNutt V. General Motors Acceptance Corporation, 298
]

U. S. 178, 56 S. Ct. 780 (1936); Celite Corporation v.
j

Dicalite Company, 96 Fed. (2d) 242 (CCA. 9th, 1938),
'

cert. den. 59 S. Ct. 101 ; Royalty Service Corporation v.

City of Los Angeles, 98 Fed. (2d) 551 (CCA. 9th,

1938). In the instant case this objection was, of course,
|

made throughout. [See Assignment of Errors, No. I,

Tr. p. 71; No. VII, Tr. p. 76; No. XX, Tr. p. 85.]
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Under the provisions of the National Bankruptcy Act

in effect at the time of the transactions here in question

(Act of July 1, 1898, c. 541, 40 Stats. 565, as amended

to 1936), a trustee can sue in the federal courts only

when the bankrupt hiniself could so have sued, subject to

three expressly provided exceptions. (Matthew v. Coppin,

32 Fed. (2d) 100 (CCA. 9th, 1929); In re Prima Com-

pany, 98 Fed. (2d) 952 (CCA. 7th, 1938); Cook v.

Glover, 22 Fed. Supp. 531 (D. C E. D. 111., 1938.)

The applicable provisions of the Act are contained in

Sections 23, 60 (b), 67 (e) and 70 (e). Section 23 reads

as follows:

"Section 23. a. The United States district

courts shall have jurisdiction of all controversies at

law and in equity, as distinguished from proceedings

in bankruptcy, between trustees as such and adverse

claimants concerning the property acquired or

claimed by the trustees, in the same manner and to

the same extent only as though bankruptcy proceed-

I

ings had not been instituted and such controversies

had been between the bankrupts and such adverse

j

claimants.

"b. Suits by the trustee shall be brought or

prosecuted only in the courts where the bankrupt,

whose estate is being administered by such trustee,

I

might have brought or prosecuted them if proceed-

ings in bankruptcy had not been instituted, unless by

j

consent of the proposed defendant, except suits for
'

the recovery of pro^^erty under section 60, subdivi-

sion b; section 67, subdivision e; and section 70, sub-

division e."

There is no question but that this action is a plenary

! suit as distinguished from "proceedings in bankruptcy".
t



Compare appellee's brief, page 5; In re Prima Com-

pany, supra. Nor is there any question of "consent".

See Matthew v. Coppin, supra.

Of the three types of suits excepted from the general

rule only one, that provided by Section 70 (e), could be

relied on by appellee here. Section 60 (b) relates only to

transfers of property or judgments made or suffered by

the bankrupt, within four months of bankruptcy, while

insolvent. In such cases the trustee may recover the

property transferred or avoid the judgment. Here, the

opinion of this Court expressly recognizes the lack of

any evidence of insolvency. Moreover, there was, of

course, no property transferred within the four months

period, the assets of the bankrupt not being reduced by

the execution of the note which was never paid and was

returned by Klipstein to the corporation. [Tr. p. 61.]

The only right the trustee might have in any event under

Section 60 (b) would be to invalidate the judgment ob-

tained by Klipstein against the bankrupt. This relief

could, of course, be granted in these proceedings but the

question is moot as the claim based on the judgment was

waived. [Tr. p. 61.]

Section 67 (e), not relied on by Sears (see Appellee's

Br. p. 5) concerns transfers of property made while in-

solvent or with intend to defraud creditors, both of which

circumstances are explicitly found lacking by this Court

in its opinion.

It follows that jurisdiction does not exist in this case

unless appellee has pleaded and proved a cause of action



under Section 70(e) of tlic Act. This sectl "H icids as

f. ,11. ,\vs

:

"Section 70. e. The trustee may avoid any trans-

fer by the bankrupt of his proixrty which any cred-

itor of such Kinkrupt niijjlit have avoided, and may

recover the property so transferred, or its vahie from

the i)erson to whom it was transferred, . . . r^or

the purpose of such recovery any court of bank-

ruptcy as hereinbefore defined, and any State court

which would have had jurisdiction if bankruptcy had

not intervened, shall have concurrent jurisdicticm."

The crucial (juestion is therefore whether or not the

cause of action created by Section 366 of the C'ivil Code

is one assertible by creditors of the affected coqwration.

A negative answer to this question is implicit in the

portion of the opinion of this Court quoted supra in this

petition.

Section 3C)6 creates a liability dependent solely upon the

consent or lack of consent of a certain proportion of the

voting shares of a corp(;ration. not upon solvency or

insolvency, or the existence or absence of creditors. In

the absence of other circumstances, such as insolvency, no

creditor could complain of any loan or ^^uaranty made in

violation of Section 366. h would certainly be an

anomaly to hold that creditors had a cause of action

under this section, which right was subject to defeat by

the consent of stockholders of a corjwration to a trans-

action otherwise illegal. (Compare the analogous provi-

sions of the Dank Act, 1909 Stat. & Amdts., p. 87, as



amended, General Laws of California (Deering, 1937),

Act 652, Sections 65 and 83.)

Reference to the surrounding sections of the Civil

Code confirms this interpretation. Sections 363, 364 and

365 cover situations where creditors are affected and in

each of these sections creditors are specifically mentioned

and their remedies prescribed. Such provisions are signi-

ficantly omitted from Section 366 and the succeeding

sections, which relate purely to infra-corporate matters.

It seems obvious, therefore, that the liability created

by Section 366 is a liability to the corporation and that no

creditor could attack transactions in violation of that

section if the corporation itself acquiesced therein. The

remedy created is simply an action by the corporation

against any implicated director upon a guaranty implied

in law by reason of such director's "illegal acts". There

is involved no transfer which any creditor might avoid

within the meaning of Section 70 (e) of the Bankruptcy

Act (or any action "null and void as against the creditors"

within the meaning of Section 67 (e), if that section

otherwise applied). See, in general, Doiningues Land
Corporation v. Daugherty, 196 Cal. 468, 238 Pac. 703

(1925).

The federal courts have no jurisdiction over such an

action, when brought by a trustee in bankruptcy, unless

diversity of citizenship is present. {Park v. Cameron,

237 U. S. 616, 35 S. Ct. 719 (1915) ; Kelley v. Gill, 245

U. S. 116, 38 S. Ct. 38 (1917); Carmichacl v. Barrett,

28 Fed. (2d) 692 (CCA. 5th, 1928); Lowcnstein v.

Reikes, 60 Fed. (2d) 933 (CCA. 2d, 1932), cert. den.

287 U. S. 669, 53 S. Ct. 315; Siegel v. Municipal Capital

Corporation, 102 Fed. (2d) 905 (CCA. 2d, 1939).
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No Cause of Action Exists in Any Event Under Sec-

tion 366, on the Facts of This Case.

Apart from the question of the lack of jurisdiction, no

recovery could be sustained in any court under Section 366,

on the facts of this case. That section imposes liability

only where certain actions are taken without the consent

of two-thirds of the stock held by persons not involved.

Here all the stock of the bankrupt, except that held as

security by Klipstein, was beneficially ow^ned by Stelzner.

[Tr. p. 55.] The corporation itself has no complaint

under these circumstances. {Sargent v. Palace Cafe Co.,

175 Cal. 7Z7, 167 Pac. 146 (1917); Scales v. Holje, 41

Cal. App. 7?>Z, 183 Pac. 308 (1919).) Moreover, Section

366 provides that the offending persons are liable to the

corporation ''as guarantors" for the repayment of the

loan or to the extent necessary to hold the corporation

harmless from any prohibited guaranty. Here, since no

money left the corporation, there was nothing to repay.

Nor did the corporation suffer liability by guaranteeing

the obHgation of Stelzner and Klipstein, if the transaction

could be so construed. It suffered only a judgment which

was never paid, all rights under which have been waived,

and which in no way injured the corporation or operated

as a preference. As a matter of fact it is admittedly true

that Globe Drug Company never suffered injury in any

way by any act of Klipstein in connection with the note

executed on October 19, 1935, or by any subsequent act.

Appellee has not contended otherwise.
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This case was tried to determine the question whether

any liability existed by reason of the withdrawals of cash

from the bankrupt to apply upon the Stelzner note. The

trial court heard the evidence and concluded as a matter

of law that "all the payments made out of said corpora-

tion's funds" were illegal, and gave judgment accordingly.

The briefs filed by both parties take up at length the law

applicable to the question of Hability based on the fact of

such payments.

This Court, in its opinion, based its affirmance not on

the fact of such cash withdrawals, heretofore regarded

as the sole basis of liabiHty, but upon other facts and cir-

cumstances, characterized by appellee himself as ''having

nothing to do with the extent of the recovery sought and

awarded" (Br. p. 3), and not adequately briefed. Appel-

lant Klipstein respectfully requests that the appeal be

reheard for the purpose of more fully presenting the new

questions raised by the decision of this Court, and par-

ticularly for consideration of appellant's contention that

by changing the cause of action from one assertible by

creditors to one assertible only by the bankrupt itself, the

sole basis for federal jurisdiction under the Bankruptcy

Act immediately ceases.

Respectfully submitted,

Homer Johnstone,

Sidney H. Wyse,

Attorneys for Appellant.

1204 Bartlett Bldg., Los Angeles, California,



Certificate of Counsel.

The undersigned, attorneys for the appellant in the

above cause, do hereby certify that in our judgment the

above and foregoing petition is well founded and that it

is not interposed for the purpose of delay.

Homer Johnstone,

Sidney H. Wyse,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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APPEARANCES

:

or Petitioner

:

CLAUDE I. PARKER, Esq.,

JOHN B. MILLIKEN, Esq.,

BAGLEY KOHLMEIER, Esq.,

L. A. LUCE, Esq.,

'or Respondent:

D. M. EVANS, Esq.

Docket No. 84895

lETTY ROGERS,
Petitioner,

vs.

OMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DOCKET ENTRIES:
]936

[ay 29—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer noti-

fied. (Fee paid)

[ay 29—Copy of petition served on General

Counsel,

ime 30—Answer filed by General Counsel.

Illy ]—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

1937

uly 20—Hearing set week beginning 9/27/37, Los

Angeles, California.
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1937

Sept. 27—Hearing had before Mr. Mellott on merits

Submitted.

Stipulation of facts filed. Taxpayer's briej

due 11/11/37—respondent's brief du(

12,/ll/37—reply due 12/27/37.
'

Nov. 10—Transcript of hearing 9/27/37 filed.

Nov. 10—Brief filed 1)y taxpayer. 11/11/37 cop3

served.

Dec. 9—Brief filed by General Connsel.

1938

Jan. 10—Motion for leave to file brief filed by tax

payer—brief lodged. 1/11/38 granted.

Jan. 12—Copy of motion and reply brief served oi

General Counsel.

May 18—Opinion rendered—Arthur J. Mellott, Di

vision 11. Judgment will be entered fo:

the respondent.

May 19—Decision entered—Arthur J. Mellott, Di

vision 11.
J

May 20—Order that last paragraph of opinion pro!

mulgated 5/18/38 be corrected, entered!

Arthur J. Mellott, Division 11.
|

Aug. 13—Petition for review by U. S. Circuit Cour

of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, with assign

ments of error filed by taxpayer.

Aug. 13—Proof of service filed by taxpayer.
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:

1938

j5ept.24—Certified copy of order from Ninth Circuit

consolidating with 84896 for briefing and

decision upon a single consolidated tran-

script of record consisting of such por-

tions of the record before the Board as

the parties herein may indicate by their

praecipes for record—copy of this order

to be incorporated in record—filed.

i5ept.29—Agreed statement of evidence lodged.

5e])t.29—Praeci])e for record filed with proof of

service thereon.

^ept.30—Order approving statement of evidence

—

statement ordered filed—entered. [1*]

APPEARANCES

:

i^'or Petitioners:

CLAUDE I. PARKER, Esq.,

JOHN B. MILLIKEN, Esq.,

BAGLEY KOHLMEIER, Esq.,

L. A. LUCE, Esq.

^OY Respondent:

D. M. EVANS, Esq.

*Pai:c i!i:!rl'rr;nLr a]'!'!'-;;.'-! niT at the foor (if page of orij^inal certilW-''

''•^Mi-cript of Record.
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Docket No. 84896

BETTY ROGERS, O. N. BEASLEY, OSCAB
LAWLER, JAMES K. BLAKE, EXECU
TORS OF THE ESTATE OF WILL ROGERS
DECEASED,

Petitioners,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DOCKET ENTRIES

:

1936

May 29—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer noti

fied. (Fee paid)

'' 29—Copy of petition served on Genera

Connsel.

June 30—Answer filed by General Counsel.

Jiily 1—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

1937

July 20—Hearing set week beginning 9/27/37, Lo

Angeles, California.

Sep. 27—Hearing had before Mr. Mellott on meritsj

Submitted. Stipulation of facts filed

Briefs due: Taxpayer's 11/11/37—re

spondent's 12/11/37—reply 12/27/37.

Nov. 10—Transcript of hearing 9/27/37 filed.

" 10—Brief filed by taxpayer. 11/11/37 cop;

served.

Dec. 9—Brief filed by General Counsel.
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1938

jan. 10—Motion for leave to file reply brief filed by

taxpayer—reply brief lodged. 1/11/38

granted.

j" 12—Copy of motion and reply brief served on

! General Connsel.

lav 18—Opinion rendered—Arthnr J. Mellott, Di-

vision 11. Judgment will be entered for the

respondent.

19—Decision entered—Arthur J. Mellott, Di-

vision 11.

20—Order that last paragraph of opinion

i
promulgated 5/18/38 be corrected entered

—

Arthur J. Mellott, Division 11.

^^ig^ 13—Petition for review by U. S. Circuit Court

of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, with assign-

ments of error filed by taxpayer.

I" 13—Proof of service filed by taxpayer.

^ep. 24—Certified copy of order from Ninth Cir-

cuit consolidating with 84895 for briefhig

and decision upon a single consolidated

transcript of record consisting of such

portions of the record before the Board as

the parties herein may indicate by their

praecipes for record—copy of this order to

be incorporated in record—filed.

! " 29—Agreed statement of evidence lodged.

" 29—Praecipe for record filed with proof of

service thereon.

" 30—Order ap]:>roving statement of evidence

—

statement ordered filed—entered. [2]
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United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 84895

BETTY ROGERS,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PETITION

The above named petitioner hereby petitions for

redetermination of the deficiency set forth by th

Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his notice c

deficiency IT:AR:E-1 ML-90D, dated March ^

1936, and as a basis for this proceeding: alleges 2

follows

:

'

1. Petitioner is an individual residing in th'

City of Beverly Hills, State of California.

2. The notice of deficiency (a copy of which i

attached hereto and marked Exhibit A) is date

March 4, 1936, and was ])resumably mailed on ths

date.

3. The taxes in controversy are income taxes <

petitioner for the calendar year 1933 in the amoiii

of $17,055.90.

4. The determination of the tax set forth in tb

notice of deficiency is based upon the followin

errors

:

(a) Respondent erred in determining tha

the loss sustained by petitioner and her hus
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band Will Rogers during the year 1933 in tlie

amount of $54,055.25 in connection with the can-

cellation of a certain contract to purchase real

property [3] and the forfeiture of the pay-

ments theretofore made on the purchase price

of said property was a capital loss.

(b) Respondent erred in refusing to allow

deduction of said loss as an ordinary loss in

computing the tax liability of petitioner for the

calendar year 1933.

(c) Respondent erred in treating such loss

as a capital loss in recomputing the tax liability

I of petitioner for the calendar year 1933.

I
5. The facts upon which petitioner relies as the

asis for this proceeding are as follows:

(a) During September, 1927, petitioner and

her husband, Will Rogers, purchased certain

real property in the County of Los Angeles,

State of California, described as follows:

Lots 163 and 164, Tract 1719, as per Map
recorded in Book 21, Pages 162 and 163 of

Maps, in the office of the County Recorder of

Los Angeles County, State of California.

The total purchase price of said property was

$105,000.00 payable as follows: $15,000.00 in

cash at the time of the purchase; the assump-

tion of a note in the amoimt of $52,000.00 se-

cured by a mortgage on said property and due
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and payable iii 1930, and the giving of a promisi

sory note for the balance of $38,000.00 to be se

cured by a Trust Deed on said property.

Petitioner and her husband, Will Rogers

paid said $15,000.00, assumed the payment o

said $52,000.00 note, and executed and delivere(

to the seller their promissory note for $38,000.0'

payable in 1932. In September, 1927, said prop

erty was conveyed to petitioner and her hiis

band Will Rogers, and they conveyed said prop

erty to the [4] Title Guarantee and Trust Com

pany as trustee, as security for the x^ayment o

said $38,000.00 note. Said property was acquirec

as community ])roperty of petitioner and he]

husband Will Rogers. Said property was busi

ness property and the transaction was enterec

into for a profit.

(b) Prior to April 21, 1933 petitioner anc

her husband. Will Rogers, paid in full said not(

for $52,000.00 which they had assumed. Or

April 21, 1933 said property was reconveyed b}

said trustee to petitioner and her husband Will

Rogers and they immediately conveyed said

property to the party from whom they had pur

chased it in 1927. The said note for $38,000.0(

was cancelled and petitioner and her husbanc

Will Rogers forfeited said property and al

payments made toward the purchase thereof.

(c) Prior to April 21, 1933 petitioner and

her husband Will Rogers paid $67,000.00 to
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ward the purchase of said property and in ad-

dition thereto said escrow expenses in the

amount of $212.02, making a total of $67,212.02.

For the years 1927 to 1932, inchisive, they

claimed and were allowed depreciation on tbr

improvements on said property in the total

amount of $13,156.77. The total unrecovered

cash investment in said property at the time of

the forfeiture and reconveyance to the seller

was $54,055.25. Petitioner and her husband Will

Rogersi each sustained a loss in 1933 from said

transaction in the amount of to-wit, $27,027.62.

[5]

(d) Petitioner and her husband Will Rogers

filed separate income tax returns for the calen-

dar year 1933. In her income tax return foi*

1933 petitioner computed the loss on said

transaction to be $57,643.46 and deducted one-

half of said sum, or $28,821.73 as an ordinary

loss in computing her net taxable income for

said year. Respondent has disallowed the deduc-

tion of said losis as an ordinary loss and has de-

termined that it was a capital loss and has

treated it as a capital loss in recomputing the

tax liabilit.y of |)etitioner for the year 1933. The

deficiency herein in controversy results from re-

spondent's determination that said loss was a

capital loss.
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Wherefore petitioner prays that the Board maj

hear and determine this appeal.

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER

Attorneys for petitioner

808 Bank of America Bldg.

Los Angeles, Calif.

Of Counsel:

L. A. LUCE
937 Mimsey Building,

Washington, D. C.

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss. ,

Betty Rogers, being first duly sworn, deposes anc

says; that she is the petitioner in the foregoing

petition; that she is familiar with the facts statec

therein and the facts so stated are true and correct

except such facts as are stated upon informatior

and belief and those facts she believes to be true.

BETTY ROGERS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th da}

of May, 1936.

CATHERINE A. MACK
Notary Public in and for said county and state. [6,



Comm. of Internal Revenue 11

EXHIBIT A

Mar. 4, 1936

Treasuiy Department

Washington

)ffice of

V^nimissioner of Internal Revenue

JLcldress reply to

i'oinniissioner of Internal Revenue
!

md refer to

T:AR:E-1

IL-90D

Irs. Betty Rogers,

407 Bank of America Building,

Beverly Hills, California.

ladam

:

;

You are advised that the determination of your

income tax liability for the taxable year(s) 1933

discloses a deficiency of $17,055.90, as shown in the

tatement attached.

In accordance with section 272 (a) of the Reve-

ue Act of 1932, as amended by section 501 of the

[Revenue Act of 1934, notice is hereby given of the

eficiency mentioned. Within ninety days (not

iounting Sunday or a legal holiday in the District

f Columbia as the ninetieth day) from the date of

ihe mailing of this letter, you may file a petition

vith the United States Board of Tax Appeals for a

edetermination of the deficiency.

Should you not desire to file a petition, you are

equested to execute the enclosed form and forward
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it to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Wasb

ington, D. C, for the attention of IT:C:P-7. Th

signing and filing of this form will expedite th

closing of your return by permitting an early as

sessment of the deficiency and will prevent the ac

cumulation of interest, since the interest perio(

terminates thirty days after filing the form, or oi'

the date assessment is made, whichever is earlier.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERING
Commissioner.

By (Signed) CHAS. T. RUSSELL
Deputy Commissioner.

Enclosures:

Statement

Form 870 [7]

STATEMENT
IT:AR:E-1

ML-90D
In re: Mrs. Betty Rogers,

407 Bank of America Building,

Beverly Hills, California.

Income Tax Liability

Year—1933
Income Tax Liability—$70,371.20

Income Tax Assessed—$53,315.30

Deficiency-$17,055.90

The deficiency shown herein is based upon the re

port dated October 23, 1935, prepared by Revemif
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Agent P. Blackford, a copy of which was trans-

mitted to yon.

j

Careful consideration has been accorded your pro-

'test dated December 27, 1935, in connection with

findings of the examining officer, and the informa-

tion submitted at a conference held in, the office of

.the internal revenue agent in charge.

i

The return has been adjusted as follows:

' Net Income

Net income reported on the return $141,098.76

'Add:

(1) Salary $ 3,576.47

(2) Reduction of business losses... 2.867.70

(3) Loss on disposition of

property 28,821.73

(4) Contributions 400.00

(5) Fiduciary income 340.00 36,005.90

Ordinary net income adjusted $177,104.66

Capital net loss reported

(6) Capital net loss allowed $ 27,027.62

[8]

Computation of Tax

Net income subject to surtax $177,104.66

Less:

Personal exemption (total amount claimed

by husband )

Balance subject to normal tax $177,104.66

Normal tax at 4% on $4,000.00 $ 160.00

Normal tax at 8% on $173,104.66 13,848.37

Surtax on $177,104.66 59,741.28

Tax at 121/2% on capital net loss of $27,027.62 ( 3,378.45)

Corrected income tax liability $ 70,371.20

Income tax assessed

:

Account No. 809994. 53,315.30

Deficiency in tax _ „ $ 17,055.90
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Explanation of Changes

(1) In the deductions from gross salaries received the fol-

lowing items have been disallowed:

(a) The amount of $500.00 paid to Friar's Club for a

certificate of indebtedness, representing an investment,

has been disallowed.

(b) The travel expense deduction has been adjusted

to eliminate the following:

Personal expenses charged on hotel bills $ 961.08

Accident insurance while traveling in airplanes,

a personal expense 3,075.50

Account #121, consisting of "cash" checks for

personal use while not traveling 2,400.00

Total disallowed $6,436.58

[9]

(c) The amount claimed as depreciation on a Cadillac

automobile has been corrected to allow 50% for business

use instead of 75%, resulting in a disallowance of 1/3

of $649.08, or $216.36.

Summary

:

Amount paid for certificate of

indebtedness $ 500.00

Travel expenses 6,436.58

Depreciation 216.36

Total $7,152.94

One-half applicable to husband 's

return $3,576.47

One-half applicable to wife's

return $3,576.47

(2) Losses from business have been reduced as follows:

(a) Depreciation on Oklahoma ranches has been re-

duced from $3,428.77 to $2,445.41, a difference of $983.36.
j

(b) The loss on Santa Monica ranch has been reduced

by $4,752.03 as follows:

I
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The deduct ion for inaintennnee of a tennis court

has been disallowed as a personal expense $ 215.45

One-half of compensation insurance has been dis-

allowed as bein^ personal 218.50

The insurance on the residence and furnishings

is a personal expense 1,112.40

One-half of the foreman's salary is disallowed as

a personal expense 1 ,500.00

Depreciation on livestock has been disallowed,

because fully depreciated prior to 1933 720.00

One-half of the depreciation of $1,971.36 on

trucks, tractor, and buildings has been dis-

allowed as being personal 985.68

Total disallowed on Santa Monica Ranch $4,752.03

[10]

Brought forward $4,752.03

Total disallowed on Oklahoma Ranches 983.36

Total disallowed on ranches $5,735.39

One-half applicable to husband's return $2,867.69

One-half applicable to wife's return $2,867.70

(3) See (6) below.

(4) The following contributions have been disallowed as

not deductible under the provisions of section 23 (n) of the

Revenue Act of 1932

:

Ruby Adams Benefit $ 200.00

Prescott Frontier Days 1 00.00

Fox Studio Employees 500.00

Total _ $ 800.00

One-half applicable to husband's return $ 400.00

One-half applicable to wife's return $ 400.00

(5) Interest of $340.00 was received from Trust #616,

Beverly Hills National Bank and Trust Company.

(6) and (3) The loss on the disposition of Bundy Bath

House property has been adjusted to take into consideration
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the depreciation which was allowable in 1927 and 1928, and

has been held to be a capital loss rather than an ordinary

loss.

Total loss as claimed $57,643.46

Loss decreased on account of deprecia-

tion allowable

:

1927 (1/2 year) $1,196.07

1928 2,392.14 3,588.21

Loss as corrected $54,055.25

Husband's loss $27,027.63

Wife's loss $27,027.62

[11]

It is held that the transaction whereby yon and

your husband transferred all your right, title and

interest in the Bundy Bath House property to Pa-

cific Palisades Corporation in 1933 in consideration

of the corporation's having cancelled and returned

to you the note for $38,000.00 which you gave in

part payment therefor in 1927, amounted to an ex-

change of one asset for another asset, real estate for

the trust deed note. Accordingly, the loss on the dis-

position is considered to be a capital loss falling

under the provisions of section 101 of the Keveniie

Act of 1932. Having acquired full title to the prop-

erty in 1927, you and your husband upon reconvey-

ing the property to the Pacific Palisades Corpora-

tion sustained a loss comparable to the loss which

you would have suffered if you had lost the prop-

erty through process of law. Such a case was con-
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lidenMl in General ronnsel Mcniorandnni V21M (In-

Henial Revenue Cuiniilative Bulletin XT III, 120),

md it was held that the i-csultinjj: loss was a capital

^oss.

Due to the fact that the ('X|»iratioii <»r the pci'iod

provided in the statute of limitations will presently

bar any assessment of additional tax ou the i-etuni

filed foi- the year U)l];>, the Tneoine Tax Unit will he

.unable to afToi'd yon an o])])ortnnity to ])i-otest this

^letenui nation or to lie aeeorded a heaiin<]: ])rioi- to
'

. . .

the niailinLT <>f this statntoi'v notice of defieieney.

1 Copies of this letter have been mailed to your

^Tppresenta fives, ^Iv. (leorpce TT. Kostei-, P>ank of

lAnieT'iea T-Juildinir, I.os Angeles, r'alifoi-nia, and Mr.

:L. A. Luce, ^funsey I>uildinp^, Washinpfton, 1). (\

fin aeeoi'dance with the authority eonferi-ed U])on

ifheni in powers of attorney on file with the liuj-ean.

[Endorsed]: U.S.B.T.A. Filed May 29, 1936. [12]

.[Title of Board and Cause.]
\

ANSWER
Comes Xow the Commissioner (»f Inteiiial R<'ve-

nue by his attorney, Herman ()lii)han1. (ieneral

'Counsel foi- the I)e])artment of the Treasury, and

for answei- to the above-styled jx'tition admits and

denies a.s follows

:

1. 2, and 2,. Admits the allegations contained in

Paragra])hs 1, 2, and 3 of the petition.
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4(a), (b) and (c). Denies that the Commissioner

erred as alleged in subparagraphs (a), (b), and

(c) of Paragraph 4 of the petition.

5(a) to (d), inclusive. Denies the allegations con-

tained in subparagraphs (a) to (d), inclusive, of

Paragraph 5 of the petition.

Denies generally and specifically each and every

allegation contained in the petition not hereinbefore

admitted, qualified, or denied.

Wherefcn-e, it is prayed that the appeal be denied.

(Signed) HERMAN OLIPHANT
General Counsel for the

Department of the Treasury.

Of Counsel

:

B. H. NEBLETT,
HAROLD F. NONEMAN,

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Filed June 30, 1936. [13]

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 84896

BETTY ROGERS, O. N. BEASLEY, OSCAR
LAWLER, JAMES K. BLAKE, EXECU-
TORS OF THE ESTATE OF WILL
ROGERS, DECEASED,

Petitioners,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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PETITION

The above named petitioners hereby petition for a

redetermination of tlie deficiency set forth ])y the

fcommissionei" of Internal Revenue in liis notice of

'deficiency ITr^VRiE-l ML-90D, dated March 4,

1936, and addressed to Mr. J. K. Blake, Co-executor

of the Estate of Will Rogers, deceased, and as a

!basis for this proceeding allege as follows:

1. Petitioners are individuals residing in the
i

.County of Los Angeles, State of California, and are

the duly appointed, qualified and acting Executors

of the Estate of Will Rogers, deceased. Decedent, a

resident of the City of Beverly Hills, California,

died testate on August 15, 1935. On September 17,

1935, petitioners were duly appointed executors of

the estate of Will Rogers, deceased, by the Superior

Court of the State of California, in and for the

County of Los Angeles. [14]

2. The notice of deficiency (a copy of which is

attached hereto and marked Exhibit A) is dated

March 4, 1936, and was presmnably mailed on that

date.

I

3. The taxes in controversy ar(* income taxes of

'Will Rogers, deceased, for the calendar year 1933

in the amount of $16,894.61.

I

4. The determination of the tax set forth in the

notice of deficiency is based upon the following

errors

:

(a) Respondent erred in determining that

the loss sustained by Will Rogers and his wife.
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Betty Rogers, during the year 1933, in the

amount of $54,055.25 in connection with the can-

cellation of a certain contract a purchase real

property and the forfeiture of the payments

theretofore made on the purchase price of said

property was a capital loss.

(b) Respondent erred in refusing to allow

deduction of said loss as an ordinary loss in

computing the tax liability of Will Rogers for

the calendar year 1933.

(c) Respondent erred in treating such loss

as a capital loss in recomputing the tax liability

of Will Rogers for the calendar year 1933.

5. The facts upon which petitioners rely as the

basis for this proceeding are as follows

:

(a) During September, 1927, Will Rogers

and his wife, Betty Rogers, purchased certain

real property in the County of Los Angeles,

State of California, described as follows: [15]

Lots 163 and 164, Tract 1719, as per Map

recorded in Book 21, Pages 162 and 163 of

Maps, in the office of the County Recorder of

Los Angeles County, State of California.

The total purchase price of said property was

$105,000.00 payable as follows: $15,000.00 in

cash at the time of the purchase ; the assumption

of a note in the amomit of $52,000.00, secured

by a mortgage on said propei*ty and due and

payable in 1930, and the giving of a promissory

note for the balance of $38,000.00 to be secured

by a Trust Deed on said property.
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Will Rogers and his wife, Betty Rogers, i)aid

said $15,000.00, assumed the payment of said

$52,000.00 note, and executed and delivered to

the seller their promissory note for $38,000.00

payable in 1932. In September, 1927, said prop-

erty was conveyed to Will Rogers and his wife

Betty Rogers and they conveyed said property

to the Title Guarantee and Trust Company as

trustee, as security for the payment of said $38,-

000.00 note. Said property was acquired as com-

munity property of Will Rogers and his said

wife. Said property was business property and

the transaction was entered into for a profit.

(b) Prior to April 21, 1933 AVill Rogers and

his wife Betty Rogers T)aid in full said note for

$52,000.00, which they had assumed. On April

21, 1933 said property was reconveyed by said

trustee to Will Rogers and his wife Betty

Rogers and they immediately conveyed said

property to the [16] party from whom they had

purchased it in 1927. The said note for $38,-

000.00 was cancelled and AVill Rogers and his

wife Betty Rogers forfeited said property and

all pa\Tnents made toward the purchase thereof.

(c) Prior to April 21, 1933 Will Rogers and

his wife, Betty Rogers paid $67,000.00 toward

the purchase of said property and in addition

thereto paid escrow expenses in the amount of

$212.02, making a total of $67,212.02. For the

years 1927 to 1932, inclusive, they claimed and

w^ere allowed depreciation on the improvements
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on said property in the total amonnt of $13,-:

156.77. The total nnrecovered cash investment

in said property at the time of the forfeiture

and reconveyance to the seller was $54,055.25.

Will Rogers and his wife Betty Rogers each

sustained a loss in 1933 from said transactioni

in the amoimt of to-wit, $27,027.63.

(d) Will Rogers and his wife Betty Rogers

filed separate income tax returns for the calen-

dar year 1933. In his income tax return for 1933

Will Rogers computed the loss on said transac-j

tion to be $57,643.46 and deducted one-half of-

said sum, of $28,821.73 as an ordinary loss; in

computing his net taxable income for said year.

Respondent has disallowed the deduction of said

loss as an ordinary loss and has determined that

it was a capital loss and has treated it as a capi-

tal loss in recomputing the tax liability of Will

Rogers for the year 1933. The deficiency herein

in controversy results from respondent's de-

termination that said loss was a capital loss.

[17]'

Wherefore, petitioners pray that the Board may;

hear and determine this appeal.

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER

Attorneys for Petitioner,

808 Bank of America Bldg.,

Los Angeles, California.
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15ETTY KOGERS
JAMES K. BLAKE
OSCAR LAWLER

Executors of the (^state of Will

Rogers, dee'd, petitioners.

Of Comisel

:

L. A. LUCE,
937 Mnnsey Bldg.,

Washington, D. C.

|)tate of California

roimty of Los Angeles—ss.

(j James K. Blake, of the city of Beverly Hills,

Jtate of California, being first dnly sworn, deposes

nd says; that he is one of the duly appointed, qnali-

,led and acting executors of the estate of Will

iogers, deceased, and is one of the petitioners in

he foregoing petition ; that he is familiar with the

acts stated therein and the facts so stated are true

nd correct, except snch facts as are stated upon

nformation and belief and those facts he believes to
t

\<e true.

JAMES K. BLAKE

!

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

f May, 1936.

CATHERINE A. MACK
Totary Public in and for the County of Los Angeles,

State of California. [18]
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EXHIBIT A

Treasury Department

Washington

Mar. 4, 1936

Office of

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

Address reply to

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

And refer to

Mr. J. K. Blake, Co-Executor,

Estate of Will Rogers, Deceased,

c/o Mr. Claude I. Parker,

808 Bank of America Building,

liOsi Angeles, California.

Sir:

You are advised that the determination of the in^

come tax liability of Will Rogers, Deceased, for th(

taxable year 1933, discloses a deficiency of $16,

894.61, as shown in the statement attached.

In accordance with section 272(a) of the Revenue

Act of 1932, as amended by section 501 of the Revei

nue Act of 1934, notice is hereby giveui of the de-

ficiency mentioned within ninety days (not counting

Sunday or a legal holiday in the District of Colum

bia as the ninetieth day) from the date of the mail

ing of this letter, you may file a petition with th(

United States Board of Tax Appeals for a rede

termination of the deficiency.

Should you not desire to file a petition, you an

requested to execute the enclosed form and forwarc

it to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Wash
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ntrton, n. (\. for tlic attention of Vr-.CiV-l. Tbe

!;igTiiiig: and filinp; of tliis foi-ni will expedite tbe clos-

iic: of the vetni-n ])y ]M'nnittiiig an early assessment

-r tlie defieiency and will ])revent tlie aeennmlation

if interest, since the int(rest period terminates

hirty days aft(M- filin<i: the form, oi- on the date as-

sessment is made, whichever is earlier.

Resy)ectfnlly,

GUY T. HELVERING,
Commissioner.

By CHAS. T. RUSSELL
Depnty Commissioner.

Enclosures:

Statement

Eorm 870 [19]

STATEMENT
IT:AR:E-1

ML-90D

In re : Mr. J. K. Blake

Co-Executor, Estate of Will Rogers, Deceased,

c/o Mr. Claude I. Parker,

808 Bank of America Building,

Los Angeles, California.

Income Tax Liability

Year—1933
Tnconu^ Tax Liability—$71,799.02

Income Tax Assessed—$54,904.41

Deficiency—$16,894.61

The deficiency shown herein is based upon the re-

port dated November 19, 1935, prepared by Revenue
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Agent P. Blackford, covering the income tax lia

bility of Will Rogers, Deceased, a copy of whicl

was transmitted to you.

Careful consideration has been accorded your pro

test dated December 27, 1935, in connection witl

findings of the examining officer, and the informa

tion submitted at a conference held in the office o

the internal revenue agent in charge.

The return has been adjusted as follows

:

Net Income

Net income reported on the return $144,350.72

Add:

(1) Salary $ 3,576.47

(2) Reduction of business losses 2,867.69

(3) Loss on disposition of

property 28,821.73

(4) Contributions 400.00 35,665.89

Ordinary net income adjusted $180,016.61

Capital net loss reported

(5) Capital net loss allowed $ 27,027.63

Computation of Tax

Net income subject to surtax $180,016.61

Less:

Personal exemption and credit for

dependents 2,900.00

Balance subject to normal tax $177,116.61;

[20

Normal tax at 4% on $4,000.00 $ 160.00

Normal tax at 8% on $173,116.61 13,849.33

Surtax on $180,016.61 61,168.14

Tax at 121/2% on capital net loss of $27,027.63 (
3,378.45

Corrected income tax liability $ 71,799.02
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!icome tax assessed:

Account No. 809995 54,904.4

1

;eficiency of tax $ 16,894.61

Explanation of Changes

, (1) In the deductions from jiross salaries received tlie fol-

lowing items have been disallowed :

(a) The amount of $500.00 paid to Friar's Club for

a certificate of indebtedness, representing an investment,

has been disallowed:

(b) The travel expense deduction has been adjusted

to eliminate the folloAving:

Personjil expenses charged on hotel bills $ 961.08

Accident insurance while traveling in airplanes,

a personal expense 3,075.50

Account #121, consisting of "cash" checks for

personal use while not traveling 2,400.00

Total disallowed $6,436.58

(c) The amount claimed as depreciation on a Cadillac

automobile has been corrected to allow 50% for business

use instead of 75%, resulting in a disallowance of 1/3

of $649.08, or $216.36.

Summary

:

Amount paid for certificate

of indebtedness $ 500.00

Travel expenses 6,436.58

Depreciation 216.36

Total $7,152.94

One-half applicable to husband's

return $3,576.47

One-half applicable to wife's

return $3,576.47

[23]
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(2) Losses from business have been reduced as follows:
,

(a) Depreciation on Oklahoma ranches has been reii

duced from $3,428.77 to $2,445.41, a difference of $983.36^

(b) The loss on Santa Monica ranch has been reduced

by $4,752.03 as follows

:

The deduction for maintenance of a tennis court

has been disallowed as a personal expense $ 215.4f

One-half of compensation insurance has been dis-

allowed as being personal 218.5(

The insurance on the residence and furnishings

is a personal expense 1,112.4(

One-half of the foreman's salary is disallowed

as a personal expense 1,500.0(1

Depreciation on livestock has been disallowed,
]

because fully depreciated prior to 1933 720.0(

One-half of the depreciation of $1,971.36 on

trucks, tractor, and buildings has been dis-

allowed as being personal 985.6ii

Total disallow^ed on Santa Monica Ranch $4,752.0''

Total disallowed on Oklahoma Ranches 983. 3(

Total disallowed on ranches $5,735.3f|

One-half applicable to husband's return $2,867.6{i

One-half applicable to wafe's return $2,867.7(;

(3) See (5) below.

(4) The following contributions have been disallowed a;

not deductible under the provisions of section 23 (n) of th('

Revenue Act of 1932

:

Ruby Adams Benefit $ 200.0(|

Prescott Frontier Days 1 00.0(

Fox Studio Employees 500.0(

Total $ 800.0(

One-half applicable to husband's return $ 400.0(

One-half applicable to wife's return $ 400.0(

(5) and (3) The loss on the disposition of Bundy Batl

House property has been adjusted to take into consideration

the depreciation which was allowable in 1927 and 1928, a\u

has been held to be a capital loss rather than an ordinary loss

[22;
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)t;il loss as claimed $57,643.46

[OSS decreased on account of deprecia-
' tion allowable

:

1 927 ( 1/2 year ) $1 ,196.07

1928 2,392.14 3,588.21

}oss as corrected $54,055.25

[usband's loss $27,027.63

hfe's loss $27,027.62
I

It is beld that the transaction whereby the de-

ledent and his wife transferred all their right, title,

jnd interest in tlie l:>undy Bath Honse property to

[^acific Palisades Coi'poration in 1933 in considera-

iion of the corporation's having cancelled and re-

'iimed to them the note for $38,000.00 which they

I'ave in part payment therefor in 1927, amonnted to

111 exchange of one asset for another asset, real es-

ate for the trust deed note. Accordingly, the loss on

he disposition is considered to be a capital loss fall-

ing imder the provisions of section 101 of the Reve-

j.ue Act of 1932. Having acquired full title to the

i)roperty in 1927, the decedent and his wife upon

[econveying the property to the Pacific Palisades

corporation sustained a loss comparable to the loss

^^'hich they would have suffered if they had lost the

iu'07)erty through process of law. Such a case was'

considered in General Counsel Memorandum 12737

Internal Revenue Cumulative Bidletin XIII-1,

20), and it was held that the resulting loss was a

'apital loss.

Due to the fact that the expiration of the period

)i'ovided in the statute of limitations will presently
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bar any assessment of additional tax on the retuni

filed for the year 1933, the Income Tax Unit will be I

imable to afford you an opportimity to protest this

determination or to be accorded a hearing prior to

the mailing of this statutory notice of deficiency.

Copies of this letter have been mailed to your

representatives, Mr. George H. Koster, Bank of

America Building, Los Angeles, California, and Mr. i

L. A. Luce, Munsey Building, Washington, D. C.,'

in accordance with the authority conferred upon

them in powers of attorney on file with the Bureau.

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Filed May 29, 1936. [23]

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket No. 84896.]

ANSWER
Comes Now the Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue by his attorney, Herman Oliphant, General

Coimsel for the Department of the Treasury, and

for answer to the above-styled petition admits and

denies as follows:

1. Admits that petitioner James K. Blake is one

of the duly appointed, qualified, and acting execu-

tors of the Estate of AVill Rogers, Deceased. Admits

that the decedent died testate on August 15, 1935.

The respondent, having no information upon which

to form a belief as to the remaining facts alleged in

Paragraph 1, denies the same.

2 and 3. Denies the allegations contained in

Paragraphs 2 and 3.
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4(a), (b) and (c). Denies that the Commissioner

iTed as alleged in subparagraphs (a), (b) and (c)

f Paragraph 4.

5(a) to (d), inehisive. Denies the allegations eon-

uned in subparagraphs (a) to (d), inclusive, of

!*aragraph 5.

Denies generally and specifically each and every

negation contained in the petition not hereinbefore

'dmitted, qualified, or denied. [24]

Wherefore, it is prayed that the appeal be denied,

ji (Signed) HERMAN OLIPHANT
General Counsel for the

Department of the Treasury.

Of Counsel:

B. H. NEBLETT,
HAROLD F. NONEMAN,

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Filed June 30, 1936. [25]

.Title of Board and Cause.]

Docket Nos. 84895, 84896. Promulgated

May 18, 1938.

Decedent and wife purchased business prop-

erty for which they paid cash, assumed a note

secured by a mortgage upon the property, and

executed and delivered a note secured by trust

deed on the same property. The first note was
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paid, but the second note was not paid when it

became due in 1932. In 1933, pursuant to an;

agreement entered into with the holder of the;

second note, the property was conveyed to it and

the note was surrendered and canceled. Held,

the conveyance of the property by decedent and

his wife in consideration for the cancellation of

their debt was a ^'sale" within the meaning of;

that word as used in section 101 (c) (2) of the

Revenue Act of 1932 and the loss sustained wasi
j

a capital loss.

Claude I. Parker, Esq., John B. Milliken, Esq.,

Bayley Kohlmeier, Esq., and L. A. Luce, Esq., foi

the petitioners.

DeAVitt M. Evans, Esq., for the respondent.

OPINION.

Mellott: These consolidated proceedings involve

deficiencies in income taxes for the year 1933 in the

amount of $17,055.90 in Docket No. 84895 and $16,-

894.61 in Docket No. 84896. The respondent de-

creased a marital community loss, one-half of whicl

was deducted by each member of the community af-j

an ordinary loss, from $57,643.46 to $54,055.25, and;

treated it as a capital loss sustained equally by eaclj

member of the community. The only question in

volved is whether such loss is a capital loss or ar

ordinary loss.

The proceedings were submitted upon two stipn

lations of facts which, except for the purely forma
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arts, are substantially the same. These stipiilntioiis

re inchided herein by reference, a combined snm-

ary beinp: sufficient for the pupose of the report.

[26]

I

The petitioner, Betty Rogers, a resident of Cali-

fornia, is the widow of Will Rogers, who died

jestate, a resident of California, on August 15, 1935.

•^he, and the others shown in the caption in Docket

K'o. 84896, wer(> appointed executors of the estate

)f the decedent by the Superior Court of the Stato

|)f California in and for the County of Los Angeles,

)n September 17, 1935.

I

During September 1927 the decedent and his wife

Ipurchased for profit certain business real estate

situated m the county of Los Angeles, California, at

I price of $105,000, payable as follows: $15,000 casli

at the time of j)urchase, the assumption of a note in

hie amount of $52,000, which was secured by a mort-

gage on such property and became due and j)ayable

iin 1930, and the giving of their promissory note for

the balance of $38,000, secured by a trust deed on

the property.

I

The decedent and his wife ])aid the $15,000 cash

[and prior to 1933 paid in full the $52,000 note.

The note for $38,000 and the beneficial interest

und(;r the deed of trust which secured it were trans-

ferred and assigned to the California Trust Co., a

corporation. The note became due and payable o\\

August 19, 1932.

On August 25, 1932, pa3Tiient of the note and ac-

crued interest thereon was demanded of decedent
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and his wife and notice was given that, unless the

principal and interest were paid, the holder of siicli

note wonld proceed to enforce its rights under the

provisions of the deed of trust given to secure pay-

ment of it.

Thereafter it was agreed by and between decedent

and his wife and the holder of the $38,000 note and

trust deed that the property be conveyed by the

former to the latter and that the note be canceled,

and surrendered. Thereafter the property was recon-i

veyed by the Title Guarantee & Trust Co. to the de-:

cedent and his wife and on April 21, 1933, they'

transferred and conveyed it to the California Trust

.

Co., and the $38,000 note was surrendered to de-

1

cedent and his Avife and canceled.

In addition to the $67,000 paid by the decedent

and his wife upon the purchase price of the prop-

erty they also paid, prior to April 21, 1933, escrow

;

expenses in the amount of $212.02, or a total of $67,-

'

212.02. For the years 1927 to 1932, inclusive, they

were allowed depreciation on the improvements on

the property in the total amount of $13,156.77. Their

'

total unrecovered cash investment in such property

at the time of its conveyance to the California Trust

Co. was $54,055.25. The decedent and his wife each

sustained a loss in 1933 from the transaction in the
,

amount of $27,027.62.

The decedent and his wife filed separate returns

for 1933. They computed a loss on the transaction

in the amount of $57,643.46 and [27] each deducted

one-half of that simi, or $28,821.73, as an ordinary
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ks, under the provisions of section 23 (e) of the

fevenue Act of 1932. The respondent reduced the

tnount of the lo?s to $54,055.25, and, in recomputing

jhe tax liability of each of them, treated the loss as

I capital loss within the meaning of section 101 of

lie Revenue Act of 1932. The deficiencies result

^•om respondent's determination that the loss was a

jipital loss.

' The pertinent provisions of the Revenue Act of

932 are shown in the margin.^

i^ec. 23. Deductions From Gross Income.
,
In computing net income there shall be allowed as

eductions:
I
***** *

i (e) Losses hy Individuals.—Subject to the limi-

jitions provided in subsection (r) of this section, in

tie case of an individual, losses sustained during the

ixable year and not compensated for by insurance

r otherwise

—

******
(2) if incurred in any transaction entered into

or profit, though not connected with the trade or

iusiness. * * *

t^ec. 101. Capital Net Gains and Losses.
I ***** *

' (b) Tax in Case of Capital Net Loss.—In the

':ise of any taxpayer, other than a corporation, who
pr any taxable year sustains a capital net loss (as

jereinafter defined in this section), there shall be

inned, collected, and paid, in lieu of all other taxes

inposed by this title, a tax determined as follows: a

(artial tax shall first be computed upon the basis of

iie ordinary net income at the rates and in the

lanner as if this section had not been enacted, and
jie total tax shall be this amount minus 12^^ per

|?ntum of the capital net loss; but in no case shall

|ie tax of a taxpayer who has sustained a capital
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Petitioners argue that Rogers and his wife did

not "have whole title to the property * * * but * * *
;

merely an equity and a right to receive whole and '

complete title on completion of payment of the pur-

chase price." That may be true; however, the prop-

erty was deeded to them subject to the indebtedness

which they assumed and paid, and it is stipulated

that they claimed and w^ere allowed depreciation on

the improvements on it in the total amount of $13,-
'

156.77. The property was acquired in a transaction •

entered into for profit. It will be noted that " 'capi-
j

tal assets' means property held by the taxpayer for
i

more than tw^o years." Under the facts as stipu-

'

lated, we think that the conclusion is inescapable

that the real estate was "held" for more than two

years within the purview of the statute.

net loss be less than the tax computed without re-

gard to the provisions of this section.

(c) Definitions.—for the purposes of this title

—

*******
(2) "Capital loss" means deductible loss ref=ult-

ing from the sale or exchange of capital assets.
\

* * * * * * *'i,

(6) "Capital net loss" means the excess of the)

sum of the capital losses plus the capital deductions
j

over the total amount of capital gain.
\

* * * * * * *
i

(8) "Capital assets" means property held by the;

taxpayer for more than tw^o years (whether or notj

connected with his trade or business), but does not;

include stock in trade of the taxpayer or other prop-

'

erty of a kind which w^ould properl}^ be included in:

the inventory of the taxpayer if on hand at the close
j

of the taxable year, or property held by the tax-j

payer primarily for sale in the course of his trade

or business. * * * [28]
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Petitioners insist, however, that even though tlie

io|)erty was a capital asset, the loss sustained upon

s disposition was not a capital loss, as defined ]\v

le statute, because it was neither sold nor ex-

liangcHl. Having decided that the property was a

apital asset, the only remaining question is whether

was sold or exchanged.

On brief y)etitioners argue that Avhen the entire

iransaction was completed they were left with

lothing which they did not have prior to entering

into the contract or purchase and that they had suf-

ered an actual loss in the amount of $54,055.25

$67,212.02 less $13,156.77); that in construing or

.nter])reting a statute the ordinary meaning of the

vords used therein should be taken, citing Old

Mony Railroad Co. v. Commissioner, 284 U. S. 552

;

!ind that the transaction in question did not involve

ii "sale or exchange" within the ordinary meaning

)f these words because they connote an acquisition

)f property by the bargaining parties through the

(exercise of a free will to buy and sell rather than

':he compromise of an outstanding indebtedness, the

'enforced collection of which had been threatened by

'neans of legal proceedings.

We agree wath petitioners that in construing or

interpreting a statute the ordinary meaning of the

jWords used should be taken. "A sale, in the ordinary

Isense of the word is a transfer of property for a

fixed price in money or its equivalent." Iowa v.

McFarland, 110 U. S. 471, 478. "An exchange of

•property is a mutual transfer of one or more pieces
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of property for property other than money." 23

C. J. 184. " 'The distinction between a sale and ex-

change of property is rather one of shadow than of

substance. In both cases the title to property is

absolutely transferred; and the same rules' of law

are aj^plicable to the transaction, whether the con-

sideration of the contract is money or by way of

barter.' " Hale v. Helvering, 85 Fed. (2d) 819.

Prior to the transaction here involved petitioners

had paid for the real estate $67,212.02 in cash, and

had given their note for $38,000 to the vendor. This

note had been transferred and assigned by the

vendor to the California Trust Co. It is apparent,

therefore, that the real property cost petitioners

$105,212.02 and this amoimt (less depreciation al-

lowed, $13,156.77) was their basis for gain or loss

upon its sale or other disposition. We are not im-

pressed with petitioners' argument that when they

transferred the property to their creditor they

merely paid their debt of $38,000, and that therefore

there was no sale or exchange. We agree that they

paid a debt ; but the payment of a debt does not en-

title a taxpayer to a loss deduction. Petitioners'

claim for a deduction is based on the fact that they

made a disposition of property and thereby sus-

tained a loss. It can not be said that they received

no consideration because then their loss [29] would

have been $92,055.25 ($105,212.02 less $13,156.77)

and not $54,055.25. By reason of the transfer of the

property to their creditor petitioner were released

from their promise to pay $38,000, and their credi-
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ar relinquished its right to collect this amount. In

ur opinion the transaction should be treated either

s a sale of petitioners' right, title, and interest in

,ie property for the price of their obligation or as

n exchange of real estate for the obligation, both

troperties having an equal value. We prefer to re-

:ard the transaction as a sale. This view is sup-

ported by a decision of the Supreme Judicial Court

if Massachusetts in Gallus v. Elmer, 193 Mass. 106

;

,8 N. E. 772. In that case Gallus, who conducted a

•utcher and grocery business, sold certain fixtures,

pols, utensils, and goods used in carrying on that

lUsiness to one Kopec for $500, of which $100 was

laid in cash, and the balance was to be paid on

'une 9, 1905. On June 9 Gallus demanded j)ayment

f the amount due, w^hich was not paid. Kopec

tated he was willing that Gallus should take all of

ihe property in payment of the debt due, and an in-

urnment was prepared reciting that Kopec, in con-

iideration of $400 paid by Gallus, sold, transferred,

nd delivered all of the property back to Gallus.

}%e question arose w^hether the transfer of the prop-

irty to Gallus in payment of the debt due consti-

'ited a sale under the "Bulk Sales" act. In holding

iiat it did the court said

:

* * * While it is true that in its strictest sense

a sale is a transfer of personal property in con-

sideration of money paid or to be paid, still in

the interpretation of statutes it is often held to

include barter and any transfer of personal
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property for a valuable consideration. "In a

general and popular sense, the sale of an article

signifies the transfer of property from one

person to another, for a consideration of value,

without reference to the particular mode in

which the consideration is paid." Bigelow,

C. J., in Howard v. Harris, 8 Allen 297, 299.

* * *

In support of their contention that the transac-

tion was neither a sale nor an exchange petitioners

:

rely upon Hale v. Helvering, supra; Commonwealth,

Inc., 36 B. T. A. 850 ; and Dallas Transfer & Ter-

minal Warehouse Co. v. Commissioner, 70 Fed. (2d)
I

95.

In Hale v. Helvering, supra, the taxpayers in 1925

sold an orange grove for the sum of $60,000. Title

was transferred to the purchaser upon the payment

of $20,000 in cash and the execution and delivery

of $40,000 in notes secured by first mortgage. The

taxpayers each reported their pro rata share of the

profit upon this transaction in 1925, and paid the

tax thereon. Upon maturity of the notes in 1927, the

maker, although financially able to pay, refused to

do so. A suit was instituted during the year 1929 tc

collect in the amount of $22,418.24, but prior U

judgment, and during that year, a settlement wa^

agreed to which resulted in a loss to the taxpayers

of [30] $7,497.22. In holding that the loss was ai

ordinary loss the Court of Appeals for the Distric

of Columbia said:

I
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Accepting the definitions relied upon by the

petitioner ay constituting the ordinary meaning

of the words in question, such definitions do not

include the disposition of the notes under the

facts hei-e. 'Phere was no acquisition of prop-

erty by the de])tor, no transfer of property to

him. Neither business men nor hn^yers call the

compromise of a note a sale to the maker. In

point of law and in legal parlance property in

the notes as capital assets was extinguished, not

sold. In business parlance the transaction was

a settlement and the notes were turned over to

the maker, not sold to him. In John H. Watson,

Jr., V. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 27

B. T. A. 463, overruling Henry P. Werner v.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 15 B. T. A.

482, it was held that the payment at maturity,

of the face amount of bonds purchased at a

premium, was not a sale or exchange resnlting

in a capital loss. If the full satisfaction of an

obligation does not constitute a sale or ex-

change, neither does partial satisfaction.
* * *

' The court held, as this Board has held, "that the

•compromise with the maker, who was able to pay

hem, of promissory notes, for less than their face

7akie, does not constitute a sale or exchange of capi-

al assets."

While we agree with the court that under the

facts of the Hale case the compromise of a note was

lot a "sale" or an "exchange", because the prop-
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erty in the notes was extinguished, and not sold, we

do not believe that this case is controlling of the in-

stant proceedings. Petitioners disposed of real

property. They are claiming the right to a loss de-

duction for the reason that the amount realized was

less than the cost of the property to them. No com-

promise of a note is involved. Petitioners gave up

all of their right, title, and interest in the real prop-

1

erty for the equivalent of $38,000, and thereby re-j

duced the amount of the loss resulting from their

investment in the property by that amount. If pe-

titioners had transferred the property for $38,000

in cash and then had used the cash to satisfy their

indebtedness, it is clear that they would have made a

sale of their property. We do not believe that the

situation is changed where the property is trans-

ferred directly to the creditor in satisfaction of the

indebtedness. Cf. United States v. Hendler,

U. S (Mar. 28, 1938) ; E. F. Simms, 28 B. T. A.

988, 1030. We do not construe the decision in the

Hale case as meaning that the surrender of notes or

cancellation of an indebtedness is not sufficient or

proper consideration to support a sale. Many courts

have held that the extinguishment of a preexisting

debt may constitute a valuable consideration for a

sale of property. Ferguson v. Larson (Cal.), 33 Pac

(2d ) 1061 ; Bank of Centralia v. Chicago, Burling-

ton & Quincy Railroad Co., 245 111. App. 211 ; David

Bradley & Co. v. Kingman Implement Co., 79 Neb.

144; 112 N. W. 346; Rachman v. Clapp, 50 Neb. 648:
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It N. W. 259; Billings v. Warren, 21 Tex. Civ. App.

: : -lO S. W. 625. [31]

iln Conimonwealtli, Iiie., su])ra, also cited and re-

M upon ])y petitioners, the owner of realty, snb-

ict to a nioi'tgap^e, deeded the property to the niort-

{i^ee without consideration and thereby sustained

{ loss. AVe lield tlint the loss so sustained was an

('•dinary loss, and not a capital loss, and, among

cher things, said:

* * * The purported release of liability under

the mortgage was of no benefit to the petitioner,

for it had no liability under the mortgage.

Neither' the petitioner nor its grantor assumed

the mortgage liability, but took title, subject to

it. Hence, there was no personal liability on

the part of the petitioner. Hulin v. Veatch, 148

Or. 119; 35 Pac. (2d) 253; Metropolitan Bank

V. St. Louis Dispatch Co., 149 IT. S. 436; Fulton

Gold Corporation, 31 B. T. A. 519. Inasmuch as

there was in fact no consideration to the peti-

tioner, the transfer of title was not a sale or

exchange. The execution of the deed marked the

close of a transaction whereby petitioner aban-

I doned its title. Cf. A. J. Schwarzler Co., 3

B. T. A. 535, Greenleaf Textile Corporation, 26

B. T. A. 737, holding that a taxpayer does not

sustain a deductible loss of the value of real es-

tate while retaining title to it.

The instant proceedings are clearly distinguish-

ble from Commonwealth, Inc., supra. In that case
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the taxpayer received nothing in consideration of

the transfer of the property to the mortgagee. Here,

however, the taxpayers received a consideration of

$10 and "in addition * * * full satisfaction of all

obligations secnred by the deed of trnst [the $38,000

note]." The deed recites that "the consideration re-

ceived by the grantors is eqnal to the fair value of

grantors interest in said land."

The remaining case relied upon by the petitioners

in Dallas Transfer & Terminal Warehouse Co. v.

Ooivimissioner, supra. There the taxpayer leased a

wnrf^liouse for 20 yoars nt a rental of $7,000 a month.

By September 1928 the taxpayer owed its lessor

$107,880.79 and was in an insolvent condition. It

entered into an agreement with its lessor under the

terms of which it conveyed to the latter certain

property in which it had an equity of $17,507.20, and

the lessor canceled the balance of the debt, charging

it off as worthless. The Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Fifth Circuit, in holding that the transac-

tion did not constitute income to the taxpayer, said:

* * * The transaction was not in form or sub-

stance a sale for $107,880.77 of property which

had an appraised value of $17,507.20. In effect

the transaction was similar to what occurs in

an insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding when,

upon a debtor surrendering, for the benefit of

his creditors, property insufficient, in value to

pay his debts, he is discharged from liability for

his debts. This does not result in the debtor ac-
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quiring soiiiething of exchangeable value in ad-

dition to what he had before. There is a reduc-

tion or extinguishment of liabilities without any

increase of assets. There is an absence of such a

gain or profit as is required to come within the

accepted definition of income. * * * It hardly

would be contended that a discharged insolvent

! or bankrupt receives taxable income in the

amount by which his provable debts exceed the

value of his surrendered assets. * * * Taxable

income is not [32] acquired by a transaction

which does not result in the taxpayer getting or

having anything he did not have before. Gain'

or profit is essential to the existence of taxable

income. A transaction whereby nothing of ex-

changeable value comes to or is received by a

taxpayer does not give rise to or create taxable

, income. * * *

In our opinion there is nothing in the decision of

le court which is contrary to the conclusion we

'ave reached in the instant proceedings. We are

onvinced that petitioners made a sale of a capital

sset to their creditor. We therefore hold that the

espondent's determination that the loss sustained

-as a capital loss is correct.

Reviewed by the Board.

Judgment will be entered for the respondent. [33]
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United States Board of Tax Appeals

Washington

Docket No. 84895.

BETTY ROGERS,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DECISION.

Pursuant to the determination of the Board, as

set forth in its report promulgated May 18, 1938,

it is

Ordered and Decided: That there is a deficiency

in income tax for the year 1933 in the amount of

$17,055.90.

Entered May 19, 1938.

[Seal] (Signed) ARTHUR J. MELLOTT,
Member. [34]

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Washington

Docket No. 84896.

BETTY ROGERS, O. N. BEASLEY, OSCAR
LAWLER, JAMES K. BLAKE, Executors of

the Estate of Will Rogers, Deceased,

Petitioners,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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DECISION.

Pursuant to tlic (Ictcriniimtion of tlic Board, as

k fortli in its r('j)ort ])roniul,iiato(l Afay 18, 1938,

is

Ordered and Decided: Tliat there is a deficiency

\ income tax for the year 1933 in the amount of

16,894.61.

Entered May 19, 1938.

[Seal] (Signed) ARTHUR J. MELLOTT,
Member. [35]

(Title of Board and Cause.]

Docket No. 84895

PETITION FOR RK\aEW BY THE UNITED
STATES CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

I'o the Honorable Judg^es of the United States Cir-

cuit (^urt of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

Comes now Betty Rosters, l)y her attorneys,

'laude I. Parker, John B. Milliken, Bayley Kohl-

neier, Harriet Geary and L. A. Luce and respect-

ully shows:

I.

Jurisdiction
I

Betty Rogers, your petitioner, respectfully peti-

jions this Honorable Court to review the decision

'f the United States Board of Tax Appeals entered

I'll May 19, 1938, and finding a deficiency in income

ax due from your petitioner for the calendar year

933 in the amount of $17,055.90.
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Your petitioner at the time of filing tlrs petitioi

is a. citizen of the United States and resides in Lor

Angeles County, State of California. [36]

The return of income tax in respect of whicl

the aforementioned tax liability arose was filed bj

your petitioner with the Collector of Internal Rev

enue for the Sixth Internal Revenue Collectioi

District of California, located in the City of Lo;

Angeles, State of California, which is located withii

the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court of Appeal;

for the Ninth Judicial Circuit.
,

Jurisdiction in this Court to review the decisioi

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals afore

said is foimded on Sections 1001-3 of the ReveniK;

Act of 1926 as amended by Sections 603 of the Rev

enue Act of 1928, 1101 of the Revenue Act of 193!^

and 1519 of the Revenue Act of 1934.

The Commissioner determined a deficiency in pei

titioner's income taxes for the calendar year 193li

in the amoimt of $17,055.90 and on March 4, 193*

in accordance with the provisions of Section 274 o

the Revenue Act of 1926, sent to petitioner by regis

tered mail a notice of said deficiency. Thereafte

petitioner filed an appeal from said determinatioi

of deficiency with the United States Board of Ta:

Appeals.

Said appeal was called for hearing by the Boar('

of Tax Appeals on September 27, 1937 at Los Ai

geles, California. At said hearing upon motion o

counsel, it was ordered that said appeal be consoli

dated for hearing and decision with the appeal o

Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler, Jame

K. Blake, Executors of the Estate of Will Roger?
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.is(m1, \\)V llic same yciw .-iikI iii\til\inu idciitical

psucs of fact and law. Dod.rl Nn. S4S<)(;. On Alav

1. 19!^8 tlic Board proniuluatcd its npininn in wliidi

p ['H] stipulation of facts of tlu' pai'tios oou-

liiniTijz' the only fads jH'cscnlcd in llic pi-iUMMMlinii:

I'as in('oi'])oi'atcd hy I'clVrcncc and on May 1?), 19!*)^,

Iw Board of Tax Apjx'als cntci-cd its decision, as

(foresaid.

11.

\atiire of roiitro\('rsy.

I
The dofiei(>ncy foi- the ycai- in.'l:!. v" liirh was in

ontrovoi'sy ])efoi'e the Boaid of Tax .\|)])eals. arose

n(\ resulted from the delei-niinat ion of the Com-

iiissionei- that the loss (d' $27,027. ()2 sustained by

petitioner in that year constituted a capital loss for

iieonie tax ])ur])oses as distiniiuished fi-oi»i an ordi-

lary loss as claimed and maintained by ])el it inner.

During Se])tember 1927, petitionei' and her hus-

'»and Will Rop:ers, now deceased, ])nrchased from

|)ren B. Waite certain real ]n'o])erty in the Tounty

•f Los Angeles, State of California, for a total ]>ur-

••liase price of $105,000.00 paynble as follows:

?15,000.00 cash at time of purchase. assum])tion of

' Tiote in the amount of $52,000.00 secured by a

Mort<iai;e on the ^iroperty and the ui\in,i2: of a ]»i"oin-,

ssory note for the balance of $.'^8,000.00 secui'ed by

\ tnist deed on the ])ropert>-. The $15,000.00 cash

Aas ])aid, the payment of the note was assumed and

)etitioner and her husband executed and delivered

'o the seller their note in the amount of .4^:^8.000.00,

iiayable on or before Aufjust 19, 19:^2 with intei-(>st
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at seven per cent per annum. The property was,

conveyed to petitioner and her husband subject to':

the mortgage and immediately thereafter they con-

veyed it to Title Guarantee and Trust Company, aj

corporation, as trustee, to secure payment of the

$38,000.00 note. [38]

This property was acquired by petitioner and her

husband as connnunity property. It was business

property and the transaction was one entered into

for profit.

Before 1933 petitioner and her husband paid the

$52,000.00 note which had been assumed by them inii

full. Also, before 1933, the $38,000.00 note payable

to Oren B. Waite, the seller, and the beneficial in-

terest imder the trust deed were duly transferred

and assigned to California Trust Company, a cor-

poration. On August 19, 1932 the note became due

and payable. It was not paid on the due date and

on August 25, 1932, payment was demanded of pe-

titioner and her husband and notice was given that

unless the same was paid, the holder thereof would

proceed to enforce its rights under the deed of trust.

Threafter it was agreed by petitioner and her

husband and the holder of said $38,000.00 note that'

cancellation of said note could be accomplished by

conveyance of the property by which it was secured

to the holder of the note. Thereafter, in the vear)

1933, this was done and the note was surrendered

to petitioner and her husband and cancelled. Thus,

prior to April 21, 1933, petitioner and her husband

paid $67,000.00 toward the purchase price of the

property, and in addition thereto, paid escrow

li
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jxpenses in the amount of $212.02, or a total of

67,212.02. For the years 1927 to 1932, inclusive,

Petitioner and her husband claimed and were al-

)wed depreciation on the improvements on said

?roperty in the total amount of $13,156.77. The

otal loss in cash investment was therefore $54,-

'55.25 and petitioner by reason of the commimity

iroperty character of the property sus- [39] tained

tne-half of said total loss or the sum of $27,027.62.

• The Commissioner determined that the loss on

his transaction constituted a capital rather than

,n ordinary loss to petitioner for the year 1933 and

iisallowed the ordinary loss claimed by petitioner

\n her return and treated the loss in the amount

aforesaid as a capital loss.

The Board of Tax Appeals sustained the Com-
iriissioner's aforesaid determination and affirmed

Ihe deficiency resulting therefrom.

III.

j

Assignment of Error.

In making its decision as aforesaid, the United

States Board of Tax Appeals committed the fol-

lowing errors on which your petitioner relies as the

oasis of this proceeding:

1. The United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in ordering a deficiency in petitioner's in-

come tax for the calendar year 1933 in the

amount of $17,055.90.

2. The United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in deciding that the loss sustained by
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petitioner in the year 1933 on reconveyance of

the property in question in payment and can-

cellation of her and her husband's liability on

their outstanding note leaving unrecovered a

cash investment in the property in the amount

of $27,027.62 was a capital loss for income tax

purposes for the reason that as a matter of law

the loss occurring under such circumstances

constituted an ordinary loss imder the applic-

able Revenue Act. [40]

3. The United States Board of Tax Appeals]

erred in holding that the loss sustained by ai

purchaser of real property upon reconveyance

of said property to cancel the lialance due on

the purchase money note and forfeiture of

prior cash payments, constituted a capital

rather than an ordinary loss under the Revenue

Act of 1932.

4. The United States Board of Tax Appeals!

erred as a matter of law in deciding that the

reconveyance of purchased premises, sub.ieet to

a trust deed given to secure the payment of a

purchase money note, in cancellation of the|

indebtedness thereon, constituted a sale of al

capital asset, the loss suffered from the sale of

which was a capital loss.

5. The United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in ordering that petitioner wns not en-

titled to deduct for income tax ])ui'poses an

ordinary loss in the amoimt of $27,027.62 in the!

calendar year 1933 by reason of the reconvey

ance of certain property, which she had pur
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chased and whicli was subject to a trust deed

to secure tlie payuient of tlie reuiniuder of tlie

purchase price, and forfeiture of the casli ])ur-

chase price theretofore paid thereou. for the

reason tliat such order of the Ignited States

Board of Tax Appeals is contrary to tlie facts

stipulated by the parties to this proceeding

and the law applicable thereto.

i

I Wherefore vour petitioner pravs that this Hon-
f

'

.
."

.

[rable Court may review the decision and order of

j:ie United States Board of Tax Appeals and set

side the same and direct the entry [41] of a deci-

ion by said Board determining that there is no

eficiency in income tax for the year 1933, greater

ban $5,028.61, whicli amount is conceded by peti-

ioner herein, due from the petitioner, and for such

ther and further relief as may to this Court seem

proper in the premises.

i CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLTKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER
HARRIET GEARY
L. A. LUCE

Attorneys for Petitioner.

>tate of California

'oimty of Los Angeles.—ss.

Harriet Geary being first duly sworn says: I am
)ne of the attorneys for the petitioner in this pro-

ceeding. I prepared the foregoing petition and am
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familiar with the contents thereof. The allegation

of fact contained therein are true to the best o

my knowledge, information and belief. This peti

tion is not filed for the purpose of delay and I be

lieve the petitioner is justly entitled to the rehe

sought.

HARRIET GEARY
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th da^^

of August, 1938.

PEARL ANDERSON
Notary Public in and for the County of

Los Angeles, State of California.

[Endorsed]: U.S.B.T.A. Filed Aug. 13, 1938

[42;

[Title of Board and Cause—No. 84895.]

To : Hon. Guy T. Helvering,

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Internal Revenue Building,

Washington, D. C.

Hon. J. P. Wenchel, Attorney for Respondent,

Chief Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Internal Revenue Building,

Washington, D. C.

You Are Hereby Notified that on the 13th daj

of August, 1938, a petition for review by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit of the decision of the United States Board oi
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bax Appeals heretofore rendered in the above en-

i*tled cause, was filed with the Clerk of the Board.

I copy of the petition as filed is attached hereto and

iprved upon you.

Dated

:

CLAUDE I. PAEKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER

I

I

HARRIET GEARY
Attorney for Petitioner

j

808 Bank of America Bldg.

Los Angeles, California.

Of Counsel

:

L. A. LUCE
937 Munsey Bldg.,

Washington, D. C. [43]

Service of the foregoing notice of filing and of a

3py of the petition for review is hereby acknowl-

iged this 13th day of August, 1938.

!
J. p. WENCHEL

Chief Counsel for the

Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Attorney for Respondent.

[Endorsed] : U.S.B.T.A. Filed Aug. 13, 1938. [44]
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[Title of Board and Cause—Docket No. 84896.]

PETITION FOR REVIEW BY THE UNITEI
STATES CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

To the Honorable Judges of the United States Cir

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

Come now Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscai,

Lawler, James K. Blake, Executors of the Estate o^

Will Rogers, deceased, by their attorneys, Claude I

Parker, John B. Milliken, Bayley Kohlmeier,

Harriet Geary and L. A. Luce, and respectfully

show

:

I.

Jurisdiction

Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler<

James K. Blake, Executors of the Estate of Will

Rogers, deceased, your petitioners, respectfully pe

tition this Honorable Court to review the decision o

the United States Board of Tax Appeals entere<

on May 19, 1938, and finding a deficiency in incom"!

tax due from the estate of Will Rogers, deceasedj

for the calendar year 1933 in the amount of $16,'

894.91. [45]

Your petitioners at the time of filing this petitio]

are citizens of the United States and reside in Lol

Angeles County, State of California.

The return of income tax in respect of which th

aforementioned tax liability arose was filed by Wil

Rogers, now deceased, with the Collector of Interna

Revenue for the Sixth Internal Revenue Collection
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district of California, located in the City of Los

ingeles, State of California, which is located within

16 juT'isdiction of the Circnit Conrt of Appeals for

!ie Ninth Judicial Circnit.

I Jurisdiction in this Conrt to review the decision

If the United States Board of Tax Appeals afore-

aid, is founded on Sections 1001-3 of the Revenue

let of 1926 as amended by Sections 603 of the Eeve-

ue Act of 1928, 1101 of the Revenue Act of 1932

nd 1519 of the Revenue Act of 1934.

' The Commissioner determined a deficiency in pe-

itioner's income taxes for the calendar year 1933

II the amoimt of $16,894.91 and on March 4, 1936 in

ceordance with the provisions of Section 274 of the

:levenue Act of 1926, sent to petitioners by re^is-

;ered mail a notice of said deficiency. Thereafter

letitioners filed an appeal from said determination

»f deficiency with the United States Board of Tax

Appeals.

Said appeal was called for hearing by the Board

,)f Tax Appeals on September 27, 1937 at Los

iVngeles, California. At said hearing upon motion

)f counsel, it was ordered that said appeal be con-

|;olidated for hearing and decision with the ap])eal

)f Betty Rogers for the same year and involving

dentical issues of fact and law. Docket No. 84895.

3n May 18, 1938 the [46] Board promulgated its

iipinion in which the stipulation of facts of the

barties containing the only facts presented in the

hroceeding was incorporated by reference and on
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May 19, 1938, the Board of Tax Appeals entered it?

decision, as aforesaid.

II.

Nature of Controversy.

The deficiency for the year 1933, which was inl

controversy before the Board of Tax Appeals, arose

and resulted from the determination of the Com-;

missioner that the loss of $27,027.63 sustained by^

Will Rogers in that year constituted a capital loss

for income tax purposes as distinguished from an

ordinary loss as claimed by Will Rogers and main-

1

tained by petitioners.

During September 1927, Will Rogers and his

wife, Betty Rogers, purchased from Oren B. Waite

certain real property in the County of Los Angeles,

State of California, for a total purchase price of

$105,000.00 payable as follows: $15,000.00 cash at

time of purchase, assumption of a note in the

'

amoimt of $52,000.00 secured by a mortgage on the

property and the giving of a promissory note for

the balance of $38,000.00 secured by a trust deed on ';

the property. The $15,000.00 cash was paid, the pay-

1

ment of the note was assumed and Mr. and Mrs. i

Rogers executed and delivered to the seller their i

note in the amount of $38,000.00, payable on or
;

before August 19, 1932, with interest at seven per i

cent per annum. The property was conveyed to Mr. !

and Mrs. Rogers subject to the mortgage and im- '

mediately thereafter they conveyed it to Title Guar-

antee and Trust Company, a corporation, as trustee, !
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:0 [47] secure payment of the $38,000.00 note.

This property was acquired by Mr. and Mrs.

Jiogers as community property. It was business

property and the transaction was one entered into

'or profit.

Before 1933 Mr. and Mrs. Rogers paid the $52,-

;)00.00 note which had been assumed by them in full.

jUso before 1933, the $38,000.00 note payable to

Dren B. Waite, the seller, and the beneficial interest

•inder the trust deed were duly transferred and as-

igned to California Trust Company, a corporation.

i)n August 19, 1932 the note became due and pay-

able. It was not paid on the due date and on August

|!5, 1932, payment was demanded of Mr. and Mrs.

|-iogers and notice was given that unless the same

i^'as paid, the holder thereof would proceed to en-

orce its rights under the deed of trust.

I Thereafter it was agreed by Mr. and Mrs. Rogers

nd the holder of said $38,000.00 note that cancella-

jion of said note could be accomplished by con-

veyance of the property by which it was secured to

[he holder of the note. Thereafter in the year 1933

Ihis Avas done and the note was surrendered to Mr.

nd Mrs. Rogers and cancelled. Thus prior to April

1 ,1933 Mr. and Mrs. Rogers paid $67,000.00 toward

fie purchase price of the property, and in addition

hereto, ])aid escrow expenses in the amount of

j212.02 or a total of $67,212.02. For the years 1927

p 1932 inclusive, Mr. and Mrs. Rogers claimed and

ere allowed depreciation on the improvements on

laid property in the total amoimt of $13,156.77. The
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total loss in cash investment was: therefore $54,

055.25 and by reason of the community propert}

character of [48] the property Will Rogers sus-

tained one-half of said total loss or the sum oi

$27,027.62.

The Commissioner determined that the loss or

this transaction constituted a capital rather than an

ordinary loss to Mr. Rogers for the year 1933 and.

disallowed the ordinary loss claimed by him on hi?!

return and treated the loss in the amount aforesaid

as a capital loss.

The Board of Tax Appeals sustained the Commis-

sioner's aforesaid determination and affirmed the

deficiency resulting therefrom.

III.

Assignment of Error.

In making its decision as aforesaid, the United

States Board of Tax Appeals committed the fol-

lowing errors on which your petitioners rely as the

basis of this proceeding:

1. The United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in ordering a deficiency income tax of

Will Rogers, deceased, for the calendar year

1933 in the amount of $16,894.61.

2. The United States Board of Tax Appeals

ei-red in deciding that the loss sustained by Will

Rogers, deceased, in the year 1933 on recon-

veyance of the property in question in payment

and cancellation of his and his wife's liability
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(HI flu'ir outstanding note leaving unrocoverod a

cash investment in the ])r(»i)('rty in the amount

of $27,()'J7.<):). was a [4!)] capital loss Ini- incnrne

tax jnirposes for tlic reason tliat as a maltei- of

law the loss orcni'rinc: under such cii'cumstanees

constituted an ni-dinary loss niider the applic-

able Reveinie Act.

W. The rnited States IJoard of Tax Ap)>eals

ej'i'ed in holdinix that tlie loss sustained hy a

])urchaser of ?-eal propeity ujxtn rec(>n\-eyan<'e

of said property to canc(l tlie halaiwe due on

the ])ur(diase money note and forfeiture (d' pi-ioi-

casli ]iayments constituted a eapital rath<'r tlian

an ordinary loss under the Revemu' Act of 1932.

4. The United States Board (f Tax A])p(>als

(M-i-ed as a matter of law in deeidinj]: that the

reeonveyance of purchased ])remises subject to

a ti-nst deed <2[iven to secui'e the ])aynient (d' a

piu'chase money note, in can<'ellat ion of the

indebtednesvS thereon constituted a sale of a

capital asset, th<' loss suffered fiv.ni the sale of

which was a capital loss.

o. The United States Board of Tax Appeals

eri-ed in ordei-inji: that Will "Roarers was not

entitled to deduct for income tax pur])oses aii

ordinaiy loss in the amount of '^'lisyil iV> in the

calendai- yeai- If);})') by reason of the recon-

v<'yance of certain pr(>perty which be bad pur-

ehased and whi(di was subject to a trust i\{'V{\

to secui'e the ])ayment ^A' the i-eniaindei- of the

purchase ])rice and forfeiture of the cash i)ur-
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chase price theretofore paid thereon, for the

reason [50] that such order of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals is contrary to the

facts stipulated by the parties to this proceed-

ing and the law applicable thereto.

Wherefore your petitioners pray that this Hon-

orable Court may review the decision and order of

the United States Board of Tax Appeals and set
j

aside the same and direct the entry of a decision '

by said Board determining that there is no de-
j

ficien'cy in income tax due from petitioners, as

executors of the estate of Will Rogers, deceased,

greater than $4,867.31, which amomit is conceded by

petitioners, and for such other and further relief

as may to this Court seem proper in the premises.

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER
HARRIET GEARY
L. A. LUCE

Attorneys for Petitioners.

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Harriet Geary being first duly sworn says; I am
one of the attorneys for the petitioners in this pro-

ceeding. I prepared the foregoing petition and am
familiar with the contents thereof. The allegations

of fact contained therein are true to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief. This petition

is not filed [51] for the purpose of delay and I be-
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lieve the petitioners are justly entitled to the relief

sought.

,1

HARRIET GEARY

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

bf August, 1938.

I

PEARL ANDERSON
'Notary Public in and for the County of Los

I

I

Angeles, State of California.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Aug. 13, 1938.

[52]

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket No. 84896.]

To : Hon. Guy T. Helvering,

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Internal Revenue Building,

Washington, D. C.

Hon. J. P. Wenchel, Attorney for Respondent,

Chief Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Internal Revenue Building,

Washington, D. C.

I You are hereby notified that on the 13th day of

August, 1938, a petition for review by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

;3uit of the decision of the United States Board of

Fax Appeals heretofore rendered in the above

entitled cause, was filed with the Clerk of the
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Board. A copy of the petition as filed is attached

hereto and served upon yon.

Dated

:

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER
HARRIET GEARY
Attorneys for Petitioners.

808 Bank of America Bldg.,

Los Angeles, California.

Of Counsel:

L. A. LUCE
937 Munsey Bldg.,

Washington, D. C. [53]

Service of the foregoing notice of filing and of a

copy of the i)etition for review is hereby acknowl-

edged this 13th day of August, 1938.

J. P. WENCHEL
Chief Counsel for the Bureau

of Internal Revenue

Attorney for Respondent.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Aug. 13, 1938.

[54]

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket Nos. 84895 and

84896.]

STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE.

The above entitled cases came on for hearing at

Los Angeles, California, before the Hon. Arthur J.
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I

\Iellott, Member of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals on the 27th day of December, 1937, Claude

1. Parker, John B. Milliken and Bayley Kohlmeier.

Esqs., appearing on behalf of petitioners and J. 1*.

iWenchel, Esq., appearing on behalf of the re-

[spondent.

i At the time of said hearing, said above mentioned

3ases were consolidated for the purpose of hearing

^nd argument pursuant to the order of said Hon.

Arthur J. Mellott, Member, presiding. [55]
' Thereupon the petitioners, to maintain the issues

in their behalf, introduced in evidence Stipulations

of Facts together with certain exhibits attached to

jsaid Stipulations, the same being all of the facts

jand evidence introduced at said hearing. For the

Ireason that each of said Stipulations covers and

[I'elates to identical facts with the exception of

Icertain formal facts having to do with the death of

the taxpayer, AVill Eogers, and the appointment of

^petitioners Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar

Lawler and James K. Blake, as executors of his

jestate, and for the reason that the exhibits referred

ito and attached to the sepai'ate Stipulations are

jidentical, the Stipulation of Facts in the case of

Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler and

James K. Blake, Executors of the Estate of Will

Rogers, deceased, vs. Commissioner of Internal

iRevenue, Docket No. 84896, will be set out in full

iin this statement of evidence together with the ex-

hibits attached thereto and only those paragraphs in

the Stipulation filed in the case of Betty Rogers v.
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Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Docket No.;

84895 in whicli there are any facts substantially new >

or different from those presented in the Stipula-

tion in Docket No. 84896 will be included in this

statement of evidence in order that the record may

not be encumbered by the repetitious matter:

[56]

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket No. 84896.]

STIPULATION OF FACTS.

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and between

the parties hereto, through their respective coimsel

of record, that the following are true and material

facts involved in this cause and may be found as

facts by the Board of Tax Appeals.

I.

Petitioners are individuals residing in the County

of Los Angeles, State of California, and are the

duly appointed, qualified and acting Executors of

the Estate of Will Rogers, deceased. Decedent, a

resident of the City of Beverly Hills, California,

died testate on August 15, 1935. On September 17,

1935, petitioners were duly appointed executors of

the estate of Will Rogers, deceased, by the Super-

ior Court of the State of Califoniia, in and for the

County of Los Angeles.

II.

The notice of deficiency herein was mailed on

March 4, 1936. A true copy of said notice of de-
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iiciency is attached to the petition herein and

inarked Exhibit A.

III.

' The taxes in controversy are income taxes of Will

;logers, deceased, for the calendar year 1933 in the

Imoimt of $16,894.61.

IV.

During September, 1927, Will Rogers and his

vife, Betty Rogers, purchased from Oren B. Waite

certain real property in the County of Los Angeles,

i^tate of California, described as follows: Lots 163

md 164, Tract 1719, as per map recorded in Book

!1, pages 162 and 163 of Maps in the Office of the

poimty Recorder of Los Angeles County, State of

California. The total purchase price of [57] said

property was $105,000.00, payable as follows: $15,-

)00.00 cash at the time of the purchase, the assump-

jion of a note in the amount of $52,000.00, which

lote was secured by a mortgage on said property

md became due and payable in 1930, and the giving

'f a promissory note for the balance of $38,000.00

be secured by a trust deed on said property.

In September, 1927, Will Rogers and Betty

Rogers paid said $15,000.00 cash and assumed the

oayment of said note for $52,000.00, which was

jecured by a mortgage on said property. Also in

|5eptember, 1927, Will Rogers and Betty Rogers

hade, executed and delivered to the seller, Oren B.

/Taite, their promissory note in the amomit of $38,-

•00.00, which note was made pa.yable to Oren B.
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Waite, or his order, was dated August 19, 1927, pro-i

vided for the payment of interest at the rate of

seven per cent per annmn and was payable on oi

before August 19, 1932.

The above described property which was pur-

chased by Will Rogers and Betty Rogers, as afore-

said, w^as conveyed to Will Rogers and Betty Rogers

subject to said mortgage for $52,000.00 and immed-'

lately thereafter Will Rogers and Betty Rogers

conveyed the said property to the Title Guarantee

and Trust Company, a corporation, as Trustee, to be

held in trust as security for the payment of said

promissory note in the amount of $38,000.00 given

by Will Rogers and Betty Rogers to said Oren B.

Waite. A true copy of said deed of trust is attached

hereto, marked Exhibit A, and hereby made a part

hereof.

V.

Said property was acquried by Will Rogers and

his wife, Betty Rogers, as community property.

Said i)roperty was business property and the acqui-

sition thereof by Will Rogers and his wife, [58]

Betty Rogers, was a transaction entered into for

profit.

VI.

Prior to 1933 Will Rogers and Betty Rogers'

paid in full said note in the amount of $52,OO0.0C

which had been assumed by Will Rogers and Betty
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.,ogers at the time of the purchase of said ])rop-

VII.

Prior to 1933 said note of Will Rogers and Betty

logers, in the amount of $38,000.00, payable to

•ren B. Waite, and the beneficial interest imder

he deed of trust which secured said note, were duly

jransferred and assigned to the California Trust

fompany, a corporation.

On August 19, 1932, said note in the amount of

i38,000.00 became due and payable. Said note was

ot paid on the due date but was surrendered and

ancelled in the manner described below. On August

[5, 1932 payment of said note in the amount of

;38,000.00 and accrued interest thereon was de-

manded of Will Rogers and Betty Rogers, and

liotice was given that imless said principal and

nterest were ])aid, the holder of said note would

)roceed to enforce its rights under the provisions

,>f the deed of trust given to secure payment of said

ndebtedness.

Thereafter it was agreed by and between Will

Rogers and Betty Rogers and the holder of said

338,000.00 note and the trust deed securing said note

hat said property be conveyed by Will Rogers and

Betty Rogers to the holder 'of said note and that

!:aid note be cancelled and surrendered.

Thereafter said property was re-conveyed by

ritle Guarantee and Trust Company, the trustee
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in tlie said deed of trust attached hereto as Ex

hibit A, to Will Rogers and Betty Rogers [59] an(

on April 21, 1933 Will Rogers and Betty Rogers

transferred and conveyed said property to the Call

form' a Trust Company, a corporation, and said note'

in the amount of $38,000.00 was surrendered to Willi
'

Rogers and Betty Rogers and cancelled. A true

copy of said deed of Will Rogers and Betty Rogers

to the California Trust Company is attached hereto,

marked Exhibit B, and hereby made a part hereof.

VIII.

Prior to April 21, 1933 Will Rogers and Betty

Rogers paid $67,000.00 toward the purchase price

of said property and, in addition thereto, paidi

escrow expenses in the amount of $212.02, or a total!

of $67,212.02.

For the years 1927 to 1932 inclusive Will Rogers

and Betty Rogers claimed and were allowed depre-

ciation on the improvements on said property in

the total amount of $13,156.77. The total unrecov-

ered cash investment in said property of Will

Rogers and Betty Rogers at the time of the con-

veyance of said property to the California Trust

Company on April 21, 1933, as aforesaid, was $54,-

055.25. Will Rogers and Betty Rogers each

sustained a loss in the year 1933 from said transac-

tion in the amount of $27,027.62.

IX.

Will Rogers and his wife, Betty Rogers, filed sep-

arate income tax returns for the year 1933. Will
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I)gers; duly filed his income tax return for the year

133 with the Collector of Internal Revenue for the

^xth District of California, at Los Angeles, Cali-

irnia. In his said income tax return for the year

]>33 [60] Will Rogers computed a loss on said

tansaction in the amount of $57,643.46 and de-

acted one-half of said sum, or, to-wit, $28,821.73,

L an ordinary loss under the provisions of Section

'l>(e) of the Revenue Act of 1932, in computing his

id taxable income for said year. Respondent

Muced the amomit of said loss to $54,055.25 and

:irther determined that said loss was a capital loss

^ithin the meaning of Section 101 of the Revenue

Jet of 1932 and treated said loss as a capital loss in

^computing the tax liability of Will Rogers for

i!ie year 1933. The deficiency herein in controversy

iisults from respondent's determination that said

ss was a capital loss.

Respectfully submitted,

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER

Coimsel for Petitioner.

J. P. WENCHEL
Counsel for Respondent.
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EXHIBIT A.

DEED OF TRUST.

This Deed of Trust, made this 19th day of Angus,

1927 between Will Rogers and Betty Rogers, h

wife, herein called Trustor,

Title Guarantee and Trust Company

a Corporation, of Los Angeles, California, herei

called Trustee, and

Oren B. Waite

herein called Beneficiary, [61]

Witnesseth: That Trustor hereby Grants i

Trustee, in Trust, With Power of Sale, all thai

property in the County of Los Angeles, State o

California, described as:

Lots One Hundred Sixty-three (163) aQo|

One Hundred Sixty-four (164) of Tract Niun

ber Seventeen Hundred Nineteen, in the County

of Los Angeles, State of California, as per maji

recorded in Book 21 pages 162 and 163 of Maps

in the office of the County Recorder of saic'

County.

Subject to a mortgage of $52,000.00 of date?

August 19, 1927.

For the Purpose of Securing:

First. Payment of the indebtedness evidenced by

one promissory note (and any renewal or extension

thereof) substantially in form as follows:

i



Comm. of Internal Revenue 73

58,000.00 Los Angeles, California, August 19, 1927.

n or before five (5) years after date, for value

Bceived, We promise to pay to Oren B. Waite, or

fder, at Los Angeles, California, the sum of Thirty-

ight thousand 00/100 Dollars, with interest from

ate until paid, at the rate of seven per cent per

;mum, payable semi-annually.

i Should interest not be so paid it shall become part

I the principal and thereafter bear like interest,

fhould default be made in payment of interest when

ae, the whole sum of principal and interest shall,

j: the option of the holder of this note, become im-

iediately due. Principal and interest payable in

Tnited States gold coin. This note is secured by a

Jeed of Trust to Title Guarantee and Trust Com-

•ompany, a corj)oration, of Los Angeles, California.

(Signed) WILL ROGERS
(Signed) BETTY ROGERS

This note and deed of trust are given for part

prchase price of the premises mentioned.

Second. Pajnuent and/or performance of every

oligation, covenant, promise or agreement herein

^mtained.

To have and to hold said property upon the fol-

Jwing express trusts, to-wit:

A. Trustor promises and agrees, during contin-

imce of these Trusts

:

1. For the purpose of protecting and preserving

1ie security of this Deed of Trust: (a) to properly

ure for and keep said i)roperty in good condition
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and repair; (b) not to remove or deniolish an'

building thereon; (c) to complete in a good an

workmanlike mamier any building which may I

constructed thereon, and to pay wdien due all claim

for labor performed and materials furnished theri

for; (d) to comply with all laws, ordinances an

regulations requiring any alterations or improv(

ments to be made thereon; (e) not to commit c

permit any waste or deterioration thereof; (f) nc

to commit, suffer or permit any act to be done i

or upon said property in violation of any law o

ordinance; (g) to cultivate, irrigate, fertilize, fum

gate, prune and/or do any other act or acts, all i

a timely and proper manner, which, from the chai

acter or use of said property, may be reasonabl;

necessary to protect and [62] preserve said securitj'

the specific enumerations herein not excluding th^,

general. )l

2. To provide, maintain and deliver to Benefic

iary fire insurance satisfactory to and with loss pa}

able to beneficiary. The amoimt collected under an.

fire insurance policy shall be credited first, t

accrued interest; next, to expenditures hereunde

and any remainder upon the principal, and interes

shall thereupon cease upon the amount so credite<

upon principal; provided, however, that at optio}

of Beneficiary, the entire amomit so collected or an;

part thereof may be released to Trustor, withoii

liability upon Trustee for such release.

3. To appear in and defend any action or pro

ceeding purporting to affect the security of this
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)eed of Trust, the interests of Beneficiary or the

•ights, powers and duties of Trustee hereunder ; and

pay all costs and expenses, including cost of evi-

ence of title and attorney's fees in a reasonable

uni, in any such action or proceeding in which

ieneficiary and/or Trustee may appear.

4. To pay before default or delinquency: (a) all

axes, assessments or incumbrances (including any

lebt secured by Deed of Trust), which appear to be

)rior liens or charges upon said property or any

)art thereof, including assessments on appurtenant

vater stock, and any accrued interest, cost or pen-

ity thereon; (b) all costs, fees and expenses of

ihese Trusts, including cost of evidence of title and

frustee's fees in connection with sale, whether

ompleted or not, which amounts shall become due

ipon delivery to Trustee of Declaration of Default

nd Demand for Sale, as hereinafter provided.

5. To pay within thirty days after expenditure,

without demand, all sums expended by Trustee or

beneficiary under the terms hereof, with interest

rem date of expedniture at the rate of ten per cent

ler annum.

B. Should Trustor fail or refuse to make any

|)ayment or to do any act, which he is obligated

lereunder to make or do, at the time and in the

iianner herein provided, then Trustee and/or Bene-

leiary, each in his sole discretion, may, without

lotice to or demand upon Trustor and without

eleasmg Trustor from any obligation hereof;
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1. Make or do the same in such manner and tc

such extent as may be deemed necessary to protect

the security of this Deed of Trust, either Trustee oi

Beneficiary being authorized to enter upon and tak(

possession of said property for such purposes.

2. Commence, appear in or defend any action oi

proceeding affecting or purporting to affect th(

security of this Deed of Trust, the interests oij

Beneficiary or the rights, powers and duties oil

Trustee hereunder, whether brought by or against

Trustor. Trustee or Beneficiary; or

3. Pay, purchase, contest or compromise any

prior claim, debt, lien, charge or incumbrance which

in the judgment of either may affect or appear to

affect the security of this Deed of Trust, the inter-

ests of Beneficiary or the rights, powers and duties,

of Trustee hereunder. i

Provided that neither Trustee nor Beneficiary

shall be under any obligation to make any of the!

payments or do any of the acts above mentioned

but, upon election of either or both so to do, em-;

ployment of an attorney is authorized and payment

of such attorney's fees is hereby secured. i

C. Trustee shall be under no obligation to notify!

any party hereto of any action or proceeding of any

kind in which Trustor, Beneficiary and/or Trustee;

shall be named as defendant, unless brought by

Trustee.

D. Acceptance by Beneficiary of any sum in

pajmient of any indebtedness secured hereby, after

the date when the same is due, shall not constitute

[63] a waiver of the right either to require prompt
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)ayment, when due, of all other sums so secured or

iQ declare default as herein provided for failure so

pay.

E. Trustee may, at any time, or from time to

ime, without liability therefor and without notice,

ipon written request of Beneficiary and presenta-

ion of this Deed of Trust and the note secured

lerebj^ for endorsement, and without affecting the

)ersonal liability of any person for payment of the

•ndebtedness secured hereby or the effect of this

3eed of Trust upon the remainder of said property

:

1. Reconvey any part of said property;

2. Consent in writing to the making of any map
)r plat thereof; or

^ 3. Join in granting any easement thereon.

F. Upon payment of all sums secured hereby

md surrender to Trustee, for cancellation, of this

)eed of Trust and the note secured hereby, Trustee,

ipon receipt from Beneficiary of a written request

'eciting the fact of such payment and surrender,

hall reconvey, without warranty, the estate then

leld by Trustee, and the Grantee in such reconvey-

mce may be described in general terms as ''the per-

on or persons legally entitled thereto", and Trustee

!s authorized to retain this Deed of Trust and such

'lote. The recitals in such reconveyance of any mat-

ers or facts shall be conclusive proof against all

)ersons of the truthfulness thereof.

G. 1. Should breach or default be made by

IC'rustor in payment of any indebtedness and/or in

|he performance of any obligation, covenant, prom-
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ise or agreement herein mentioned, then Beneficiary

may declare all sums secured hereby immediately

due, and in such case, shall execute and deliver to

Trustee a written Declaration of Default and De-

mand for Sale and shall surrender to Trustee this

Deed of Trust, the note and receipts or other docu-

ments evidencing any expenditure secured hereby.

Thereafter there shall be recorded in the office of

the recorder of the comity or counties wherein said

real property or some part thereof is situated, a

notice of such breach or default and of election to|

sell or cause to be sold the herein described prop-

erty to satisfy the obligations hereof.

2. After three months shall have elapsed follow- \

ing such recordation of said notice. Trustee, with-

'

out demand on Trustor, shall sell said property as

herein provided, having first given notice of the
;

time and place of such sale in the manner and for a
i

time not less than that required by the laws of the

State of California for sales of real property under

Deeds of Trust.

3. Trustee may postpone sale of all, or any por- *

tion, of said property by public announcement at i

the time fixed by said notice of sale, and may there- '

after postpone said sale from time to time by public
!

announcement at the time fixed by the preceding !

postponement; and without further notice it may

make such sale at the time to which the same shall

be so postponed
;
provided, however, that the sale or !

any postponement thereof must be made at the

place fixed by the original notice of sale.
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4. At tlic time of sale so fixed, Trustee may sell

le propc^rty so advertised, or any part thereof,

• tlier as a wliole or in separate pai'cels at its sole

(iseretion, at i)ul)li(' auction, to the Inchest hidch'i"

i)r cash in United States gold coin, all payable at

inie of sale, and after any such sale and due pay-

'ient made, shall execute and deliver to such ])U]'-

uasc]- a (UmhI oi- deeds conveying the pro])erty so

i|)ld, but without covenant or warranty, express or

iiplied, regarding title, possession oi' incHni])iances.

I'ustor liereby agrees to suri'ender iinitiediately

id without demand possession of said property to

Mch ])urchaser. The recitals in such deed or deeds

<' any matters or facts affecting the regularity or

Mlidity of said sale shall [64] be conclusive proof

(' the truthfulness thereof and snch deed or deeds

fiall be conclusive against all persons as to all

latters or facts therein recited. Trustee, Benefic-

iry, any person on behalf of either, or any other

yrson, may ])iirchase at such sale.

H. Trustee shall apply the proceeds of any such

^le to payment of:

L (a) Expenses of sale; (b) all costs, fees,

narges and expenses of Trustee and of these Trusts,

eluding cost of evidence of title and Trustee's fee

connection with sale;

2. All sums expended imder the terms hereof,

i>t then repaid, with accrued interest at the rate of

111 per cent per annum;

3. Accrued interest on said note

;
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4. Unpaid principal of said note; or if mord

than one, the unpaid principal thereof pro rata anc

without preference or priority; and

5. The remainder if any to the person or persons

legally entitled thereto, upon proof of such right.

I. This Deed of Trust in all its parts applies to.

inures to the benefit of, and binds all parties hereto

their heirs, legatees, devisees, administrators, ex-i

ecutors, successors and assigns.

J. Trustee accepts these Trusts when this Deed

of Trust, duly executed and acknowledged, is made

a public record as provided by law.

In this Deed of Trust, whenever the context so

requires, the masculine gender includes the femin-

ine and/or neuter, and the singular number includes

the plural.

Witness the hand of Trustor, the day and year

first above written.

(Signed) WILL ROGERS
(Signed) BETTY ROGERS

•State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

On this 28th day of September, 1927, before me,

undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said

County, personally appeared Will Rogers and Betty

Rogers, husband and wife, known to me to be the

persons whose names are subscribed to the within
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nstniment, and acknowledged that they executed

he same.

Witness my hand and official seal.

(Signed) HENRY C. CLARKE, JR.

Notary Public in and for said

Coiinty and State.

Notarial Seal]

EXHIBIT B.

GRANT DEED.

Will Rogers and Betty Rogers, his wife in con-

ideration of Ten and no/100 Dollars, to them in

jiand paid, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

to hereby [65] grant to California Trust Company,

,. corporation, as Trustee under that certain Trust

ndenture entered into betw^een Pacific Palisades

Usociation and California Trust Company, dated

^pril 1, 1926, and recorded May 27, 1926, in the

>ffice of the County Recorder of Los Angeles

bounty, California, in Book 6031, Page 1 of Official

•Records, and as modified by a certain Supplemental

ndenture, the real property in the County of Los

^.ngeles. State of California, described as

Lots One Hundred sixty-three (163) and One

Hundred sixty-four (164) of Tract Number
Seventeen Hundred Nineteen, in the County of

i Los Angeles, State of California, as per Map
recorded in Book 21 Pages 162 and 163 of

Maps, in the office of the Comity Recorder of

said County.
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Subject to conditions, restrictions, reserve

tions, easements, and rights of way of record

and

Subject to all taxes for the fiscal year 1933

34 and thereafter; and also subject to all im

provement district taxes, assessments, and/o:

bonds, if any, now or hereafter a lien upon w
assessed against said realty.

''This deed is an absolute conveyance, th(i

consideration therefor, in addition to that abov(

recited, being full satisfaction of all obligations

secured by the deed of trust executed by Will

Rogers and Betty Rogers, to Title Guarantee

and Trust Company, trustee, for Oren B.

Waite, beneficiary, recorded in Book 7661 Page

389 of Official Records of Los Angeles County."

"Grantors acknowledge that this conveyance

is freely and fairly made; that the considera-

tion received by grantors is equal to the fair

value of grantors interest in said land, and that

there are no agreements, oral or written, other

than this deed between grantors and grantee

with respect to said land. '

'

To have and to hold to said Grantee, its succes-

sors or assigns.

Witness our hands this 14th day of April, 1933.

WILL ROGERS
BETTY ROGERS
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(Reverse side)

Btate of California

"'ouiity of Los Angeles—ss.

On this 14th day of April, 1933, before me Pearl

yi. Stout, a Notary Public in and for said Los

:ingeles County, personally appeared Will Rogers

"66] and Betty Rogers, his wife, known to me to be

he persons whose names are subscribed to the fore-

I ^oing instrument and acknowledged that they

t executed the same.

Witness my hand and official seal.

PEARL M. STOUT
iS^otary Public in and for said County and State.

My Commission expires Feb. 16, 1934.

;Title of Board and Cause—Docket No. 84895.]

STIPULATION OF FACTS.

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and be-

ween the parties hereto, through their respective

counsel of record, that the following are true and

naterial facts involved in this cause and may be

'ound as facts by the Board of Tax Appeals.

I.

Petitioner is an individual residing in the City of

Beverly Hills, State of California.
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II.

The taxes in controversy are income taxes of peti

tioner for the calendar year 1933 in the amount o

$17,055.90.

III.

Paragraphs III to VII inchisive are omitted fo

the reason that they are substantially identical witl

Paragraphs IV to VIII inchisive of the preceding

Stipulation of Facts. [67]

VIII.

Petitioner and her husband, Will Rogers, filec

separate income tax returns for the year 1933. Peti

tioner duly filed her income tax return for the yeai

1933 with the Collector of Internal Revenue for th(

Sixth District of California, at Los Angeles, Cali-
i

fornia. In her said income tax return for the yeaij

1933, petitioner computed a loss on said transactioDj

in the amount of $57,643.46 and deducted one-hali

of said sum, or, to-wit, $28,821.73, as an ordinary

loss under the provisions of Section 23(e) of the

Revenue Act of 1932, in computing her net taxable

income for said year. Respondent reduced the

amount of said loss to $54,055.25 and further de-:

termined that said loss was a capital loss within the

meaning of Section 101 of the Revenue Act of 1932

and treated said loss as a capital loss in recomput-

ing the tax liability of petitioner for the year 1933.

The deficiency herein in controversy results from
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respondent's determination that said loss was a

capital loss.

Respectfully submitted,

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER

Counsel for Petitioner

J. P. WENCHEL
Counsel for Respondent. [68]

The foregoing Stipulations of Fact were all of

the evidence introduced on behalf of the respective

petitioners in these cases. Respondent introduced no

: evidence. Thereupon counsel for petitioners and

counsel for respondent stated that they had no

further evidence to present and submitted the cases

to the Member of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals hearing the proceeding. Petitioners Betty

Rogers and Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar

Lawler and James K. Blake, executors of the estate

of Will Rogers, deceased, tender and present the

I

foregoing as their statement of evidence in this case

;

as consolidated by order of the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals and pray that the same may
be approved by the United States Board of Tax

I

Appeals and made a part of the record in this

cause.

Respectfully submitted,

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER
HARRIET GEARY

Attorneys for Petitioners [69]
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[Title of Board and Cause—Docket Nos. 84895 and

84896.]

STIPULATION.

It is hereby stipulated by and between the parties

to the above entitled cases through their respective

counsel that the foregoing statement of evidence

constitutes a statement of all the material evidence

adduced at the hearing before the United States

Board of Tax Appeals in said above entitled cases,

and the same is approved by the undersigned as

attorneys for the petitioners on review and by the

undersigned, J. P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel for the

Bureau of Internal Revenue, as attorney for the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent on

review. [70]

Dated this 29th day of September, 1938.

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER
HARRIET GEARY

Coimsel for Petitioners.

J. P. WENCHEL
Counsel for Respondent. [71]

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket Nos. 84895 and

84896.]

ORDER APPROVING STATEMENT OF
EVIDENCE.

The foregoing Statement of Evidence constitutes

all of the material evidence adduced at hearing of



Conn)}, of hifcuHil Ih vonic 87

the above entitled eases and in oi'der that the same

may be preserved and made a part of tlie record in

said eases whieli have been ordei-ed consolidated by

the order of the Circnit Conrt of Appeals, this

Statement of Evidence is dnly ai)pJ'<)ved and settled

this 30th day of Sept., 1938.

(S) ARTHUR J. MELLO^JT
Member of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals.

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. ^1\ A. Lodged Sept. 29, 1938.

Filed Sei)t. 30, 1938. [72]

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket Nos. 84895 and

84896.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT.

To the n(Mk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals:

You will please prepare, transmit and deliver to

the Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of

A])peals for the Ninth Circuit copies, duly certified

as correct, of the following documents and records

in the above entitled causes in connection with the

petitions for review by the said Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit heretofore fih^l by

the above named petitioners.

1. Docket entries of all i)roceedings before

the Board of Tax Appeals in Docket No. 84895.
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2. Docket entries of all proceedings before

the Board of Tax Appeals in Docket No. 84896.

[73]

3. Petition for redetermination in Docket

No. 84895 filed on May 29, 1936.

4. Petition for redetermination in Docket

No. 84896 filed on May 29, 1936.

5. Answer to petition filed on June 30, 1936,

in Docket No. 84895.

6. Answer to petition filed on June 30, 1936,

in Docket No. 84896.

7. Opinion of the Board of Tax Appeals

promulgated on May 18, 1938.

8. Decision of the Board of Tax Appeals in

Docket No. 84895.

9. Decision of the Board of Tax Appeals in

Docket No. 84896.

10. Petition for Review in Docket No.

84895 filed on August 13, 1938.

11. Petition for Review in Docket No.

84896 filed on August 13, 1938.

12. Notice for filing petition for review filed

on August 13, 1938 in Docket No. 84895.

13. Notice for filing petition for review filed

on August 13, 1938 in Docket No. 84896.

14. Stipulation for Consolidation for Re-

view and Order for Consolidation for Review.

15. Statement of Evidence approved and

filed on
, 1938.

16. This Praecipe for record. [74]
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Said transcript to be prepared as required by law

md the Rules of the United States Circuit Court of

ippeals for the Ninth Circuit.

CLAUDE I. PARKER
JOHN B. MILLIKEN
BAYLEY KOHLMEIER
HARRIET CxEARY

Attorneys for Petitioner.

Service of a copy of this Praecipe is hereby

(idmitted this 29th day of September, 1938. Agreed

0.

J. P. WENCHEL
vhief Counsel, Bureau of Internal Revenue, At-

torney for Respondent.

"Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Sept. 29, 1938.

[75]

i

'Title of Board and Cause—Docket Nos. 84895 and

84896.]

ORDER.

Upon consideration of the motion of the above-

lamed petitioners on review, and it appearing to

he Court that coimsel for the respondent on review

las consented to the granting thereof, it is, by the

]ourt, this 15th day of September, 1938, ordered

1. That the motion is granted as made, and that

he causes appearing in the caption hereof are

lereby directed to be consolidated herein for brief-

ng, hearing, argument, and decision upon a single
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coijsolidated transcript of record, consisting of such

portions of the record made before the United

States Board of Tax Appeals as the parties herein

mny indicate by their praecipes for record.

And the Clerk of this Court is directed to trans-

mit a (-ertified copy of this order to the Clerk of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals, to be by him

incorporated in the record on review as certified

an<l transmitted by him to this Court.

CURTIS D. WILBUR
U. S. Circuit Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed September 19, 1938.

A true copy. Attest: Sept. 19, 1938.

[Sea]] PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk.

By FRANK H. SCHMIDT,
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Sept. 24, 1938.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk. [76]

I

[Title of Board and Cause—Docket Nos. 84895 and

84896.]

CERTIFICATE.

I, B. D. Gamble, Clerk of the U. S. Board of Tax

Appeals, do hereby certify that the foregoing pages,

1 to 76, inclusive, contain and are a true copy of

the transcript of record, papers, and proceedings on
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file and of record in my office as called for by the

Praecipe in the appeals as aboA^e numbered and

entitled.

In testimony wherein, I here\into set my hand

and affix the seal of the United States Board of

Tax A])peals, at Washington, in the Distrir^t of

Cohimbia, this 5th day of October, 1938.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE
Clerk, United States Board of

Tax Appeals.

[Endorsed]: No. 9007. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Betty

Rogers, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, Respondent, and Betty Rogers, O. N.

Beasley, Oscar Lawler, James K. Blake, Executors

I

of the Estate of Will Rogers, Deceased, Petitioners,

vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Respondent.

Transcript of the Record Upon Petitions to Review

Decisions of the United States Boai'd of Tax

Appeals.

Filed October 10, 1938.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

I F
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Betty Rogers,

Petitioner,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

and

Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler, James
K. Blake, Executors of the Estate of Will Rogers,

Deceased,

Petitioners,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITIONERS' OPENING BRIEF.

Jurisdictional Statement.

This is a consolidated appeal from a final order of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in two appeals affirm-

ing the action of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue

in determining deficiencies for the calendar year 1933

against petitioner Betty Rogers in the sum of $17,055.90

and against petitioner Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar

Lawler, James K. Blake, executors of the Estate of Will

Rogers, deceased, in the sum of $16,894.61. [R. 46, 47.]
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On March 4, 1936, in accordance with the provisions of

Section 272(a) of the Revenue Act of 1932, as amended

by Section 501 of the Revenue Act of 1934, the Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue, respondent herein, notified

petitioners that the determination of petitioner Betty

Rogers' and the decedent Will Rogers' income tax lia-

bility for the year 1933 disclosed the above mentioned

deficiencies. [R. 11, 24.] From these determinations peti-

tioners duly filed their appeals to the United States Board

of Tax Appeals, in accordance with the provisions of said

Section 272(a) of the Revenue Act of 1932 as amended

by Section 501 of the Revenue Act of 1934. Said ap-

peals were given docket number 84895 in the case of the

appeal of Betty Rogers, petitioner, and docket number

84896, in the case of the appeal of Betty Rogers, O. N.

Beasley, James K. Blake and Oscar Lawler, executors

of the Estate of Will Rogers, deceased, petitioners.

Said appeals were called for hearing by the United

States Board of Tax Appeals on September 27, 1937

at Los Angeles, California. [R. 2, 4.] At said hearing

upon motion of counsel, it was ordered that said appeals

be consolidated for the purpose of hearing and argument.

Stipulations of facts were filed at said hearing, and these

stipulations containing all the evidence to be presented, the

appeals were submitted to the Board of Tax Appeals for

decision. [R. 2, 4.]

On May 18, 1938, the Board of Tax Appeals promul-

gated its findings of fact and opinion in said appeals [R.

31] and on May 19, 1938, the Board of Tax Appeals en-

tered its decisions and final orders determining deficiencies

in petitioner Betty Rogers' income tax for the year 1933

in the amount of $17,055.90 and in decedent Will Rogers'

income tax for said year 1933 in the amount of $16,894,61.

[R. 46, 47.]
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Petitioners being individuals, residing in California,

and the income tax returns of petitioner Betty Rogers and

decedent Will Rogers having been filed with the Collector

of Internal Revenue for the Sixth District of California

at Los Angeles, California, the appeals from the decisions

and orders of the Board of Tax Appeals were brought to

this Court. Separate petitions for review were filed on

August 13, 1938 pursuant to the provisions of Section

1001-1003 of the Revenue Act of 1926, as amended by

Section 603, Revenue Act of 1928, and Section 1101 of

the Revenue Act of 1932, and Section 519 of the Revenue

Act of 1934. [R. 47, 56.]

On September 19, 1938, this Court made its order con-

solidating the appeals herein for briefing, hearing, argu-

ment and decision upon a single consolidated transcript

of record. [R. 89.]

Statement of Facts.

There is but one issue involved in this consolidated ap-

peal, the facts in regard to which were stipulated by the

parties before the Board of Tax Appeals, substantially

identical Stipulations of Facts having been filed, in the

two appeals before the Board and incorporated in the

Statement of Evidence approved by the Board as part of

the record in this consolidated appeal. [R. 64, et seq.]

Petitioners are individuals residing in the County of

Los Angeles, State of California, and petitioners Betty

Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler and James K. Blake

are the duly appointed, qualified and acting executors of

the Estate of Will Rogers, deceased. [R. 66.] Decedent

Will Rogers, a resident of the City of Beverly Hills,

CaHfornia, died testate on August 15, 1935 [R. 66]

and on September 17, 1935, petitioners were appointed
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executors of his estate. [R. 66.] During Septem-

ber, 1927 petitioner Betty Rogers and her husband,

decedent Will Rogers, purchased from Oren B. Waite

certain real property in the County of Los An-

geles, State of California, described as lots 163 and 164,

tract 1719, as per map recorded in book 21, pages 162

and 163 of maps in the office of the County Recorder of

Los Angeles County. [R. 67.] The total purchase price

of this property was $105,000.00 payable as follows:

$15,000.00 cash at the time of the purchase, the assump-

tion of a note in the amount of $52,000.00, which note

was secured by a mortgage on the property and became

due and payable in 1930, and the giving of a promissory

note for the balance to be secured by a trust deed on the

property. [R. 67.]

In September, 1927, petitioner Betty Rogers and her

husband Will Rogers paid the $15,000.00 cash and as-

sumed payment of the $52,000.00 note. [R. 67.] Also in

September, 1927 petitioner and her husband executed to

the seller, Oren B. Waite, their promissory note in the

amount of $38,000.00, which note was made payable to

Oren B. Waite or his order, was dated August 19, 1927

and provided for the payment of interest at the rate of

7 per cent per annum. [R. 67-68.] The note was pay-

able on or before August 19, 1932. Accordingly the above

described property was conveyed to petitioner and her hus-

band, subject to the mortgage for $52,000.00, and imme-

diately thereafter petitioner and her husband conveyed the

property to the Title Guarantee and Trust Company, as

trustee, to be held in trust for the payment of the promis-

sory note in the amount of $38,000.00. |
R. 68.] The

deed of trust by which this promissory note of $38,000.00

was secured is set forth in full in the record in this appeal

at page 72. This property was acquired by Will Rogers
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and his wife, petitioner Betty Rogers, as community prop-

erty. fR. 68.] It was business property and the ac-

quisition thereof by Mr. and Mrs. Rogers was a transac-

tion entered into for profit. [R. 68.] Prior to 1933 Mr.

and Mrs. Rogers paid in full the note in the amount of

$52,000.00 which had been assumed by them at the time

of the purchase of the property. [R. 68.] Also prior to

1933 the $38,000.00 note payable to Oren B. Waite and

the beneficial interest under the deed of trust which se-

cured said note had been transferred and assigned to the

California Trust Company. [R. 69.] On August 19,

1932 this note in the amount of $38,000.00 became due

and payable. [R. 69. | It was not paid on the due date

and on August 25, 1932 payment of said note and the

interest accrued thereon was demanded of Mr. and Mrs.

Rogers and notice was given that unless the principal and

interest were paid, the holder of the note would proceed to

enforce its rights under the provisions of the deed of trust

given to secure payment of the indebtedness. [R. 69.]

Thereafter it was agreed by and between decedent Will

Rogers and petitioner Betty Rogers and the holder of the

$38,000.00 note and trust deed that the property be con-

veyed by decedent and his wife to the holder of the note

and that the note be cancelled and surrendered. There-

after the property was reconveyed by Title Guarantee and

Trust Company, the trustee in the deed of trust which

secured said $38,000.00 note to petitioner and her husband,

and on April 21, 1933, they conveyed the property to the

California Trust Company and the note in the amount of

$38,000.00 was surrendered and cancelled. The deed by

which the conveyance was made is set forth in full at

page 81 of the record.

Before the relinquishment of their interest in the prop-

erty and the cancellation and surrender of their note, peti-



tioner Betty Rogers and her husband had paid $67,000.00

toward the purchase price of the property and, in addi-

tion thereto, had paid escrow expenses in the amount of

$212.02. [R. 70.] For the years 1927 to 1932 inclusive,

petitioner Betty Rogers and her husband had claimed and

were allowed depreciation on the improvements on this

property in the total amount of $13,156.77. [R. 70.]

Thus the total unrecovered cash investment in the prop-

erty was $54,055.25. [R. 70.] Therefore, Will Rogers

and Betty Rogers each sustained a loss in the year 1933

from the transaction in the amount of $27,027.62. [R. 70.]

Will Rogers and Betty Rogers filed separate income

tax returns for the year 1933. [R. 70.] Each of these

returns were filed with the Collector of Internal Revenue

for the Sixth District of California at Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia. [R. 70, 84.] In his return for said year, Will

Rogers computed a loss on this transaction in the amount

of $57,643.46 and deducted one-half of this sum or

$28,821.73 as an ordinary loss under the provisions of

Section 23(e) of the Revenue Act of 1932, in computing

his net taxable income for said year. [R. 71.] Petitioner

Betty Rogers likewise computed a loss on this transaction

in the amount of $57,643.46 and deducted one-half of

the sum or $28,821.73 as an ordinary loss under the same

section of the same Revenue Act. Respondent reduced the

amount of the total loss of Will Rogers and Betty Rogers

to $54,055.25 and further determined that the loss was

a capital loss within the meaning of Section 101 of the

Revenue Act of 1932 and treated this loss as a capital

loss in recomputing the tax liability of petitioner Betty

Rogers and decedent Will Rogers for that year.

The deficiencies here in controversy result from respond-

ent's determination that the loss suffered was a capital



one [R. 71] and therefore the sole question or issue be-

fore this Court to determine is whether or not, under the

facts above stated, the loss suffered can be said as a mat-

ter of law to be an ordinary or a capital loss within the

meaning of the applicable sections of the Revenue Act of

1932.

Specifications of Error.

1. The Board of Tax Appeals erred in finding and de-

termining that the loss suffered by petitioner Betty Rogers

and decedent Will Rogers in the transaction culminating

in their relinquishment of their equity in real property to

the seller of such property in payment of the remaining

portion of the purchase price and their forfeiture of the

purchase price payments already made constituted a capi-

tal loss rather than an ordinary loss. (Assignments of

Error 1-5, inclusive, Docket No. 84895 [R. 51-53] and

Assignments of Error 1-5, inclusive. Docket No. 84896

[R. 60-62]. These assignments are set forth in full im-

mediately preceding Argument.)

Summary of Argument.

(a) The loss suft'ered in the instant case was not a

capital loss for the reason that it did not result from the

sale or exchange of a capital asset.

(1) Payment of an obligation does not result in

a sale or exchange.

(2) In order for there to have occurred a sale

or exchange, parties to any transaction must receive

something of exchangeable value.

(b) The decision of the Board of Tax Appeals in the

case at bar is inconsistent with and contrary to its recent

decisions where taxpayers have lost property by fore-

closure or transactions in lieu of foreclosure.



ARGUMENT.

Assignments of Error—Docket No. 84895:

1. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred in

ordering a deficiency in petitioner's income tax for the

calendar year 1933 in the amount of $17,055.90. [R. 51.]

2. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred

in deciding that the loss sustained by petitioner in the

year 1933 on reconveyance of the property in question in

payment and cancellation of her and her husband's lia-

bility on their outstanding note leaving unrecovered a

cash investment in the property in the amount of $27,027.62

was a capital loss for income tax purposes for the reason

that as a matter of law the loss occurring under such

circumstances constituted an ordinary loss under the ap-

plicable Revenue Act. [R. 51.]

3. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred in

holding that the loss sustained by a purchaser of real

property upon reconveyance of said property to cancel the

balance due on the purchase money note and forfeiture of

prior cash payments, constituted a capital rather than an

ordinary loss under the Revenue Act of 1932. [R. 52.]

4. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred as

a matter of law in deciding that the reconveyance of pur-

chased premises, subject to a trust deed given to secure

the payment of a purchase money note, in cancellation of
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the indebtedness thereon, constituted a sale of a capital

asset, the loss suffered from the sale of which was a

capital loss. [R. 52.]

5. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred

in ordering that petitioner was not entitled to deduct for

income tax purposes an ordinary loss in the amount of

$27,027.62 in the calendar year 1933 by reason of the re-

conveyance of certain property, which she had purchased

and which was subject to a trust deed to secure the pay-

ment of the remainder of the purchase price, and for-

feiture of the cash purchase price theretofore paid there-

on, for the reason that such order of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals is contrary to the facts stipulated

by the parties to this proceeding and the law applicable

thereto. [R. 52.]

Assignments of Error—Docket No. 84896:

1. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred

in ordering a deficiency income tax of Will Rogers, de-

ceased, for the calendar year 1933 in the amount of

$16,894.61. [R. 60.]

2. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred

in deciding that the loss sustained by Will Rogers, de-

ceased in the year 1933 on reconveyance of the property in

question in payment and cancellation of his and his wife's

liability on their outstanding note leaving unrecovered a
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cash investment in the property in the amount of $27,-

027.63, was a capital loss for income tax purposes for the

reason that as a matter of law the loss occuring under

such circumstances constituted an ordinary loss under the

applicable Revenue Act. [R. 60.]

3. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred in

holding that the loss sustained by a purchaser of real

property upon reconveyance of said property to cancel the

balance due on the purchase money note and forfeiture

of prior cash payments constituted a capital rather than

an ordinary loss under the Revenue Act of 1932. [R. 61.]

4. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred as

a matter of law in deciding that the reconveyance of pur-

chased premises subject to a trust deed given to secure

the payment of a purchase money note, in cancellation

of the indebtedness thereon constituted a sale of a capital

asset, the loss suffered from the sale of which was a capi-

tal loss. [R. 61.]

5. The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred

in ordering that Will Rogers was' not entitled to deduct

for income tax purposes and ordinary loss in the amount

of $27,027.63 in the calendar year 1933 by reason of the

reconveyance of certain property which he had purchased

and which was subject to a trust deed to secure the pay-

ment of the remainder of the purchase price and for-

feiture of the cash purchase price theretofore paid there-

on, for the reason that such order of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals is contrary to the facts stipulated

by the parties to this proceeding and the law applicable

thereto. [R. 61.]
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ea) The Loss Suffered in the Instant Case Was Not
a Capital Loss for the Reason That It Did Not
Result From the Sale or Exchange of a Capital

Asset.

1. Payment of an Obligation Does Not Result in

A Sale or Exchange.

It is believed that the issue involved in this case, as it

is defined by the specific facts, is one which has never

been passed upon by the Courts or the Board of Tax Ap-

peals in any instance other than the decision in these cases

before the Board of Tax Appeals. However, the under-

lying principle disclosed by an analysis of these facts

is not new and has been decided by the Courts and the

Board of Tax Appeals in cases so analogous to the instant

case as to be indistinguishable. Such decisions have been

in accord with petitioner's contentions.

A brief summary of the events which define the pres-

ent issue shows that the taxpayers (petitioner Betty

Rogers and decedent Will Rogers) entered into a contract

of purchase of real property, paying for the property a

substantial amount in cash and assuming the liability for

payment of an already existing encumbrance and execut-

ing a note secured by a trust deed to the seller for the

balance of the purchase price. The purchase price, with

the exception of the note in favor of the seller, was paid

before August, 1932. At that time the note in favor

of the seller came due but was not paid. Suit was threat-

ened and thereafter, in order to pay the obligation, the

taxpayers relinquished their equity in the property to the

sellers' assignees in return for the cancellation of their

indebtedness, suffering as a loss the entire purchase price

already paid. The amount of the loss suffered is not in

question in this case, the sole question for determination
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being whether as a matter of law the taxpayers' loss

should be treated as an ordinary loss, as petitioners con-

tend, or whether it should be treated as a capital loss

as is urged by the respondent.

The sections of the Revenue Act of 1932 which pertain

to a determination of the above question, are as follows

:

"Section 23. Deductions from Gross Income.

"In computing net income there shall be allowed

as deductions:

"(e) Losses by Individuals.—Subject to the limita-

tions provided in subsection (r) of this section, in

the case of an individual, losses sustained during the

taxable year and not compensated for by insurance

or otherwise

—

"(2) If incurred in any transaction entered into

for profit, though not connected with the trade or

business;" * * *

**Sec. 101. Capital Net Gains and Losses.

"(b) Tax in Case of Capital Net Loss.—In the

case of any taxpayer, other than a corporation, who
for any taxable year sustains a capital net loss (as

hereinafter defined in this section), there shall be

levied, collected, and paid, in lieu of all other taxes

imposed by this title, a tax determined as follows:

a partial tax shall first be computed upon the basis

of the ordinary net income at the rates and in the

manner as if this section had not been enacted, and

the total tax shall be in this amount minus 12^ per
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centum of the capital net loss; but in no case shall

the tax of a taxpayer who has sustained a capital

net loss be less than the tax computed without re-

gard to the provisions of this section,

"(c) * * *

"(2) 'Capital loss' means deductible loss resulting

from the sale or exchange of capital assets."

"(8) 'Capital Assets' means property held by the

taxpayer for more than two years (whether or not

connected with his trade or business), but does not

include stock in trade of the taxpayer or other prop-

erty of a kind which would properly be included in

the inventory of the taxpayer if on hand at the close

of the taxable year, or property held by the taxpayer

primarily for sale in the course of his trade or busi-

ness." * * *

It is clear from a reading of the statutes above quoted

that the loss suffered by the taxpayers in the case at bar

is one which is deductible for income tax purposes since

it resulted from a transaction entered into for profit.

[R. 68, 84. J
(Sec. 23 (e) (2).) It is likewise clear by

the definition contained in the statute itself that the loss

cannot be treated as a capital loss for income tax pur-

poses unless it resulted "from the sale or exchange of

capital assets".

Petitioners submit that the series of events at the cul-

mination of which petitioner Betty Rogers and decedent

Will Rogers had nothing which they did not have at the

commencement of the transaction, but were concededly

out of pocket to the extent of some $54,000.00, did not

constitute such sale or exchange.
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It is a familiar tenet of the law, repeatedly reiterated

by the Courts, that in interpreting taxing statutes the

language should be taken in its ordinary meaning. {Hale

V. Helvering, 85 Fed. (2d) 819 (C. A. D. C—1936)

;

John H. Watson v. Commissioner, 27 B. T. A. 463

(1932).) This rule has been stated by the United States

Supreme Court in Old Colony R. R. Co. v. Commissioner,

284 U. S. 552, 560, 52 Sup. Ct. 211, 76 L. Ed. 484, as

follows

:

"The rule which should be applied is established by

many decisions. 'The legislature must be presumed

to use words in their known and ordinary significa-

tion.' Levy V. M'Cartee, 6 Pet. 102, 110, 8 L. ed.

334, 337. The popular or received import of words

furnishes the general rule for the interpretation of

public laws.' Maillard v. Lawrence, 16 How 251, 261,

14 L. ed. 925, 930. And see United States v. Buffalo

Natural Gas Fuel Co., 172 U. S. 339, 341, 43 L. ed.

469, 470, 19 S. Ct. 200; United States v. First Nat.

Bank, 234, U. S. 245, 258, 58 L. ed. 1298, 1303, 34

S. Ct. 846; Caminetti v. United States, 242 U. S.

470, 485, 61 L. ed. 442, 452, L. R. A. 1917F, 502,

37 S. Ct. 192, Ann. Cas. 1917B, 1168. As was said

in Lynch v. Alworth-Stephens Co., 267 U. S. 364,

370, 69 L. ed. 660, 662, 45 S. Ct. 274, ''the plain,

obvious and rational meaning of a statute is always

to be prefered to any curious, narrow, hidden sense

that nothing but the exigency of a hard case and in-

genuity and study of an acute and powerful intellect

would discover.' This rule is applied to taxing acts;

De Ganay v. Lederer, 250 U. S. 376, 381, 63 L. ed.

1042, 1044, 39 S. Ct. 524."

Quoting and applying this rule, the Court of Appeals

for the District of Columbia in Hale v. Helvering, supra,

has held that an ordinary as distinguished from a capital
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loss was sustained in the following situation. During the

year 1925 the Hale brothers sold an orange grove for

the sum of $60,000.00. Title was transferred to the pur-

chaser upon payment of $20,000.00 in cash and $40,000.00

in notes secured by a first mortgage. The brothers each

reported their pro-rata share of the profit on the trans-

action in 1925 and paid the tax due thereon. Upon

maturity of the notes in 1927, the maker, although finan-

cially able, refused to pay. During the year 1929 suit

was commenced to collect the notes. Prior to judgment

a settlement was entered into which resulted in loss to

each of the Hale brothers of approximately $7,500.00.

The Commissioner refused to allow the deduction of such

loss by the Hale brothers as a capital loss, but asserted

that it was allowable only as a bad debt. In determining

that the loss suffered was not a capital loss for the reason

that it did not arise from the sale or exchange of a capital

asset, the Court states:

"There was no acquisition of property by the

debtor, no transfer of property to him. Neither

businessmen nor lawyers call the compromise of a

note a sale to the maker. In point of law and in legal

parlance, property in the notes as capital assets was

extinguished, not sold. In business parlance, the

transaction was a settlement and the notes were

turned over to the maker, not sold to him."

Hale V. Hdvcring, 85 Fed. (2d) 819, 821.

Thus it appears that a loss suffered by mortgagee in a

transaction similar to the one in the case at bar has been

held not to result in capital loss. It would seem incredible
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that a different rule should apply when it is the mortgagor

who suffers the loss as in the instant case. What was

actually accomplished in Hale v. Helvering, and likewise in

the case at bar, as well as in certain other Court and

Board cases to be hereinafter discussed, was that a debt

existing between two persons standing in the position of

debtor and creditor was satisfied and paid.

It has frequently been held by the Courts and the Board

of Tax Appeals that the payment of a debt does not con-

stitute a sale or exchange of property and, therefore, does

not result in capital gain or loss.

In John H. Watson, Jr. v. Commissioner, 27 B. T. A.

463 (1932), it was held that the payment at maturity of

the face amount of bonds purchased at a premium was not

a sale or exchange resulting in a capital loss.

Again in George A. Hellman, Commissioner, 33 B. T.

A. 901 (1936), it was held that the gain realized upon

the surrender of combined insurance and annuity policies

was taxable as ordinary income and could not be treated

as capital gain for the reason that such surrender did not

constitute a sale or exchange. So also in United States

V. Fairbanks, 95 Fed. (2d) 794 (C. C. A. 1938), decided

just this year by this Court and citing and following the

John H. Watson, Jr. case, supra, it was held that the gain

realized on the redemption of debenture bonds was not a

capital gain but an ordinary one.

The principle upon which all of the above cited cases

were decided was the same; namely, that the payment of

an obligation does not effect a sale or exchange and that

therefore the gain or loss on such disposition of the asset

affected cannot be a capital one. The cases holding in
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accord with this principle arc legion, among which are:

Arthur E. Braun v. Cmninissioner, 29 B. T. A. 1161

(1934); Ernest W. Brown v. Commissioner, 36 B. T. A.

182 (1937) ; Felin v. Kyle, 22 Fed. Supp. 556 (D. C. Pa.

1938). Interestingly enough respondent appears to agree

with this principle and it is submitted that the position he

takes in the instant case is inconsistent. Respondent gave

notice of his accjuiescence in the case of John H. Watson,

Jr., supra, and in the other cases above cited where there

was a gain instead of a loss involved, he was successful

in his contention that the capital gain rates were not

applicable. Therefore, applying this principle to the case

at bar, it is apparent that there can have been no sale or

exchange, since the petitioner Betty Rogers and her hus-

band by relinquishing their equity merely paid their

obligation.

2. In Order for There to Have Occurred a Sale or

Exchange, Parties to Any Transaction Must
Receive Something of Exchangeable Value.

Furthermore, for another reason, which has been held

by the Courts to negative the existence of a sale or ex-

change, there can be said to have occurred no sale or ex-

change in the case at bar. An essential element of a sale

or exchange is that something of exchangeable value be

received by the parties to the transaction. This principle

was recognized and relied upon in the recent holding of

this Court in Chester A^ Weaver Co. v. Commissioner, 97

Fed. (2d) 31 (C. C A. 9th 1938). wherein this Court

held that a taxpayer surrendering its preferred stock and

recei\ing a liquidating dividend could deduct as a loss the
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difference between the amount paid for the stock and the

amount of the dividend as against the contention that loss

was from an exchange of stock and was not deductible be-

cause taxpayer had no capital gains against which to

oifset such loss. The opinion states : "A 'sale or ex-

change' implies, we think, that each party to the transac-

tion shall obtain something".

Such also was the opinion of the Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Fifth Circuit in Dallas Transfer & Terminal

Warehouse Co. v. Commissioner, 70 Fed. (2d) 95 (1934),

wherein the Court decided that a taxpayer realized no in-

come when it transferred to its lessor property of a value

of some $17,500 in return for the cancellation of its obli-

gation in the amount of approximately $108,000.00. The

Court states:

"The transaction was not in form or substance a

sale for $107,880.77 of property which had an ap-

praised value of $17,507.20. * * * Taxable in-

come is not acquired by a transaction which does not

result in the taxpayer getting or having anything he

did not have before. Gain or profit is essential to the

existence of taxable income. A transaction whereby

nothing of exchangeable value comes to or is received

by a taxpayer does not give rise to or create taxable

income."

Applying this principle to the instant case, it appears

that petitioner Betty Rogers and her husband received

nothing of exchangeable value in the course of the events

under consideration here. At the culmination of the en-

tire transaction Mr. and Mrs. Rogers had actually lost

some $54,000 in money paid out and received nothing

for it.
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(b) The Decision of the Board of Tax Appeals in the

Case at Bar Is Inconsistent and Contrary to Its

Recent Decisions Where Taxpayers Have Lost

Property by Foreclosure or Transactions in Lieu

of Foreclosure.

By a series of recent decisions by the Board of Tax

Appeals commencing with Commonzvealth, Inc. v. Com-

iiiissioncr, 36 B. T. A. 850 (1937), and continuinj^- with

Godfrey S. Hamvnel v. Commissioner, 36 B. T. A. 1331

(1937); H. L. Rust, Jr. v. Commissioner, 38 B. T. A.

, No. 115 (Oct. 18, 1938, Docket No. 89171), Com-

merce Clearing House, Dec. No. 10,467, and C. Griffith

Warfield v. Commissioner, 38 B. T. A , No. 114

(Oct. 18, 1938, Docket No. 89170), Commerce Clearing

House, Dec. No. 10,466, the Board of Tax Appeals has

determined with regard to loss on mortgage transactions

inconsistent with its holding in the case at bar as follows:

In Commonwealth, Inc., supra, the facts were that the

petitioner had purchased property subject to a mortgage.

When the note secured by the mortgage became due and

was not paid, the petitioner in lieu of suffering foreclosure

proceedings conveyed its ecjuity to the mortgagee. The

Board held that the petitioner suffered ordinary loss as

distinguished from a capital loss to the extent of the pur-

chase price paid prior tu the conveyance.

In Godfrey S. Hammel, supra, the petitioner was the

mortgagor of property which was foreclosed and sold at

sheriff's sale. The Board held that the loss suffered by

the mortgagor in this instance was an ordinary loss, as

distinguished from a capital loss. Such likewise was the
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holding in cases of H. L. Rust, Jr., supra, and C. Grif-

fith Warfield, supra. In each of these cases the Board

looked at the true facts of the situation and determined

that no sale or exchange had taken place. Thus an anom-

alous condition of the law with regard to this subject is

presented by these cases and the instant case.

1. Where a mortgagor loses property by foreclosure,

the loss suffered by him is deemed an ordinary loss.

{Godfrey S. Hammel, supra.)

2. Where a person, not the original mortgagor, aban-

dons property to the mortgagee in lieu of suffering fore-

closure proceedings, the loss suffered by him is likewise

deemed to be an ordinary loss.

3. And yet in the case where substantially no different

result is reached, that is, where the mortgagor of prop-

erty abandons the property to the mortgagee, the loss

according to the Board of Tax Appeals' opinion in the

instant case is deemed to be a capital loss.

Viewed from a practical point of view, it seems that

what actually happened in the instant case was that Mr.

and Mrs. Rogers merely abandoned the property which

they started to purchase in lieu of submitting to fore-

closure proceedings. Certainly the loss in this situation

is just as real and of the same type or character as the

loss in the situation where property is taken by foreclosure

and to assert that there is no sale or exchange on a mort-

gage foreclosure, but that there is one on a voluntary

abandonment to a mortgagee in lieu of foreclosure seems

indicate a distinction without a difference. To follow
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through the contentions of respondent to their logical con-

clusion, it appears that a man about to lose his property

on foreclosure must necessarily resist foreclosure and have

the case go to Court and be determined there and there-

by put himself to additional expense and entail additional

loss in order that the loss which he is bound to suffer

may be deemed an ordinary loss instead of a capital loss.

\'iewed in this light the contentions of the respondent ap-

pear incredible and such a situation demonstrates clearly

how out of line with the existing law are such contentions.

In conclusion, it is submitted that by reason of the fact

that there was present in the instant case merely the pay-

ment of a debt, and, therefore, no sale or exchange, and

further that a holding for the respondent in the instant case

would be contrary to the existing law with regard to

mortgage foreclosures and transactions in lieu of fore-

closure, the decisions of the Board of Tax Appeals in the

instant cases should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

Claude I. Parker,

John B. Milliken,

Bayley Kohlmeier,

Harriet Geary,

Attorneys for Petitioners.

650 South Spring St.,

Los Angeles, California.
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No. 9007

Betty Rogers, petitioner

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent

AND

Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler,
James K. Blaice, executors of the estate of

Will Rogers, Deceased, petitioners

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent
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BRIEF FOR THE RESPONDENT

I

OPINION BELOW

The only previous opinion in these cases is that

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals (R. 31-

45), which is reported in 37 B. T. A. 897.

JURISDICTION

The petitions for review herein involve the indi-

vidual and estate income tax liabilities of the peti-



tioners in the amounts of $17,055.90 (R. 11-17, 32,

46, 49), and $16,894.61 (R. 24-30, 32, 46-47, 58),

respectively, for the taxable year 1933, and are

taken from decisions of the Board of Tax Appeals

entered May 19, 1938 (R. 46-47). The cases are

brought to this Court by petitions for review ^ filed

August 13, 1938 (R. 47-55, 56-64), pursuant to the

provisions of Sections 1001-1003 of the Revenue

Act of 1926, c. 27, 44 Stat. 9, as amended by Section

1101 of the Revenue Act of 1932, c. 209, 47 Stat. 169,

and by Section 519 of the Revenue Act of 1934, c.

277, 48 Stat. 680.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether the marital community loss sustained

by petitioners in the taxable year was a statutory

capital net loss or an ordinary loss within the mean-

ing of the statute.

STATUTE INVOLVED

Revenue Act of 1932, c. 209, 47 Stat. 169:

Sec. 23. Deductions from gross income.

In computing net income there shall be

allowed as deductions:*****
(e) Losses hy individuals.—Subject to the

limitations provided in subsection (r) of this

^ Both cases involve the same question and were consoli-

dated for hearing and opinion before the Board (R. 32-33,

65) upon motion of petitioners, concurred in by counsel for

the respondent. This Court entered an order consolidating

the causes for briefing, hearing and decision upon a single,

consolidated transcript of record. (R. 89-90.)



section, in the case of an individual, losses

sustained during the taxable year and not

compensated for by insurance or otherwise

—

*****
(2) if incurred in any transaction entered

into for profit, though not connected with the

trade or business. * * *

Sec. 101. Capital net gains and losses.*****
(b) Tax in case of capital net loss.—In

the case of any taxpayer, other than a corpo-

ration, who for any taxable year sustains a
capital net loss (as hereinafter defined in this

section), there shall be levied, collected, and
paid, in lieu of all other taxes imposed by
this title, a tax determined as follows: a
partial tax shall first be computed upon the

basis of the ordinary net income at the rates

and in the manner as if this section had not

been enacted, and the total tax shall be this

amount minus 12^2 per centum of the capital

net loss ; but in no case shall the tax of a tax-

payer who has sustained a capital net loss be

less than the tax computed without regard to

the provisions of this section.

(c) Definitio7is.—For the purposes of this

title—*****
(2) ''Capital loss" means deductible loss

resulting from the sale or exchange of

capital assets.*****
(6) "Capital net loss" means the excess

of the sum of the capital losses plus the



capital deductions over the total amount of

capital gain.

^ * * * *

(8) ''Capital assets" means property held

by the taxpayer for more than two years

(whether or not connected with his trade or

business), but does not include stock in trade

of the taxpayer or other property of a kind

which would properly be included in the in-

ventory of the taxpayer if on hand at the

close of the taxable year, or property held by

the taxpayer primarily for sale in the course

of his trade or business. * * *

STATEMENT

The material facts were summarized and found

by the Board of Tax Appeals (R. 33-35)
,
pursuant

to stipulations entered into between the parties

(E. 66-71, 83-85), as follows:

The petitioner, Betty Rogers, a resident of

California, is the w^idow of Will Rogers, who died

testate, a resident of California, on August 15, 1935.

She and the other petitioners were appointed exe-

cutors of the estate of the decedent by the Superior

Court of the State of California in and for the

County of Los Angeles, on September 17, 1935.

(R. 33.)

During September, 1927, the decedent and his

wife purchased for profit certain business real es-

tate situated in the county of Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, at a price of $105,000, payable as follows:

$15,000 cash at the time of purchase, the assump-



tioii t>\' a note in \\\r .niiounl nf $r)2,000. wliirli was

se<*urt'(l l)y a iii<n*ti:a;,^<' <tn siicli jn-npcrty and he-

ranic due and payal)lr in V.YM), an<l the ^ivini: of

tlu'ir pnnnissory n(»t(' fni- the l)alaniT of !i^5S,{XK),

sj-tMiri'd by a trust dcvd on tlic pmpriiy. (H. '.V^.)

The decedent and his wifr paid tlu» $ir),(XK) cash

and ju-ior to 193:; j.aid in lull the $:)LMXX3 note. ( H.

33.)

The note foi- $38,000 and tlic iM-ndicial intrir.M

inidcr tlic (Iced (d' tiMist which securrd it wcrr

transfm-cd and assi^necl to tlic ('alifni-iiia 'i'ru-t

Conii)any, a corjxn-ation. The note iH'cainr (\\n' and

payahh' on Auunist V.l 1932. ( R. :\X)

On Aup:ust 27), 1932, payment (d' the note and

accrued interest thereon was demanded of (h*ce(h*nt

and his wife and notice was p:iven that, uidess the

])i-incipal and interest were paid, the lioldcr of

such note would proceed to enforce its riuhts under

tlie provisions of tlu* deed of trust ^iven to secure

payment of it. (R. 33-34.)

Thereafter it was a.ijreed l)y and between dece-

dent and his w ife and tlic liohh'r of the $:J8,()00 note

and tnist dvrd tliat the propei'ty he conveyed by

tile former to th<' latter and that the note he can-

i'cled and sun*endei-ed. 'riici-cafer the |)rni>erty

was reconveyed by the Title (iuajaniee cV: Tnist

Comi)any to the decedent and his wife and nn .\|>ril

21. 19:?:;, they transferred and conve}-ed it to the

California Trust Conii)any, and the $3S,(XX) note

was surrendered to decedent and his wife and can-

celed. (R. 34.)



In addition to the $67,000 paid by the decedent

and Ms wife upon the purchase price of the prop-

erty they also paid, prior to April 21, 1933, escrow

expenses in the amount of $212.02, or a total of

$67,212.02. For the years 1927 to 1932, inclusive,

they were allowed depreciation on the improve-

ments on the property in the total amount of

$13,156.77. Their total unrecovered cash invest-

ment in such property at the time of its conveyance

to the California Trust Company was $54,055.25.

The decedent and his wife each sustained a loss in

1933 from the transaction in the amount of

$27,027.62. (E. 34.)

The decedent and his wdfe filed separate returns

for 1933. They computed a loss on the transaction

in the amount of $57,643.46 and each deducted one-

half of that sum, or $28,821.73, as an ordinary loss,

under the provisions of Section 23 (e) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1932. The respondent reduced the

amount of the loss to $54,055.25, and, in recomput-

ing the tax liability of each of them, treated the loss

as a capital loss within the meaning of Section 101

of the Revenue Act of 1932. The deficiencies result

from respondent 's determination that the loss was a

capital loss. (R. 34^35.)

Upon the basis of the foregoing facts, the Board

affirmed the Commissioner's determination that the

loss sustained by petitioners was a capital loss

(R. 45), and entered its decisions accordingly

(R. 46-47). From the decisions so entered, the



taxpayers petitioned this Court for review.

(R.47, 56.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The marital community loss sustained by peti-

tioners was clearly a statutory capital loss and not

an ordinary one mider the statute. The statute

defines ''capital assets" as property held by a tax-

payer for more than two years. Petitioners pur-

chased the property herein in 1927 and it was

deeded to them subject to encumbrances. It is not

necessary that a taxpayer own property outright in

order to come within the purview of the statute

since it is required merely that property be "held"

for more than two years. Petitioners conveyed the

property in 1933 by Grant Deed which of course

implies a sale. Moreover, they do not contend that

they did not own the property or that it was not a

capital asset within the meaning of the statute. It

is therefore not clear how the property, being a

statutory capital asset, could have been disposed of

at a loss without a statutory capital loss resulting.

Petitioners contend that it was not a capital loss

because it did not result ''from the sale or exchange

of capital assets," as required by the terms of the

statute and that the transaction constituted merely

the satisfaction and payment of an existing debt for

the reason that they received nothing in exchange-

able value in return and had nothing in the end

which they did not have in the beginning, except a

$54,000 loss. This argument is untenable, however.
117458—38-



since the deed of conveyance shows that they re-

ceived as consideration $10 in cash and cancellation

and surrender of their outstanding $38,000 note,

and "that the consideration received by grantors

(petitioners) is equal to the fair value of grantors*

interest in said land.
'

' This in itself concedes a val-

uable consideration. If they had received nothing

in exchangeable value in return, their loss would

have been almost twice as large as they claimed.

It is settled that release from liability is a valuable

consideration. Moreover, if they had conveyed the

property for $38,000 cash and used the money to

pay the note, they would have unquestionably made

a sale and the situation was not changed when they

handled the transaction as they did. From the

foregoing it is apparent that we have all the essen-

tial elements of a valid sale. It follows that the

loss, suffered upon the sale or exchange of a capi-

tal asset held by petitioners for more than two

years, is a statutory capital loss deductible only

as such.

Even if the transaction be treated as an exchange

instead of a sale, the same result follows since there

is no substantial difference between a sale and an

exchange. In either case title to the property is

absolutely transferred and the same rules of law

apply to the transaction.

The cases relied upon by petitioners are dis-

tinguishable or have no application to the facts

herein since, as petitioners state, the issue involved



is oiir which has nover boon ])assrd upon by th<'

cinirls, or l)v tlic I^oanl except in tlie inslant cases.

ARGUMENT

The m:uit:il community loss sustained by petitioners

upon the disposition of their real property in the tax-

able year is a statutory capital loss, and not an ordi-

nary loss, within the meaninjj; of the statute

The respondent determined tliat the transaction

wheichy ])etitioners transferred tlie |>i-(i|k'i-i y in

1933, full tith' to wliich The\- h;u\ a<'(iuired in 1927,

in consideration for the cancellation of tlieii- out-

standing note given in i)ayinent thereof, amounted

to an exchange of one asset for an<»tlier—real

estate for a trust deed note—and that therefore

the loss suffered on the disposition of the property-

is a ca])ital loss under the provisions of Section 101

of the Revenue Act of 1932, supra. (R. 16-17, 29,

32.)

The Board held that the ])roperty was deeded to

petitioners subject to the indebtedness which they

assumed and ])aid, and therefore it is a statutory

capital asset acquired in a transaction entered into

for pi'ofit, and was hvU] by the taxpayers for more

than two years (R. 36) ; that upon transfer of the

property to their creditor, petitioners not only i>aid

a debt—which of itself does not entitle them lo a

loss deduction—but also were released i'nnw their

promise to pay the $38,000 note (hereinafter called

the note) (R. 38) ; that therefore, under the author-

ities, their disposal of the proi)erty -constituted
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either a sale or an exchange—preferably a sale—of

all their right, title and interest in the property

for the price of their obligation (R. 39) ; that no

mere compromise of a note is involved for the rea-

son that if petitioners had transferred the property

for $38,000 cash and had paid the note therewith,

they would have made a sale of the property (R.

42) ; and that, accordingly, the respondent's deter-

mination that they sustained a capital loss is cor-

rect (R. 45).

Petitioners contend that the loss suffered was not

a statutory capital loss since it did not result "from

the sale or exchange of capital assets", and that

in the end, they had nothing they did not have in

the beginning but were concededly out of pocket

to the extent of approximately $54,000 (Br. 11-13)
;

that giving the ordinary meaning to the language

of the statute, an ordinary loss, as distinguished

from a capital loss, was sustained herein for the

reason that the transaction constituted merely the

satisfaction and payment of a debt existing between

two persons standing in the position of debtor and

creditor and, under the authorities, payment of a

debt does not constitute a sale or an exchange of

property (Br. 14-17) ; that at the culmination of

the transaction, petitioners had lost approximately

$54,000 in money paid out but had received nothing

of exchangeable value in return with the result that

there was no sale or exchange of the property (Br.

17-18) ; and that the Board's decisions herein are
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inconsistent with and contrary to its other decisions

wherein taxpayers lost their property through

foreclosure proceedings or in similar transactions

(Br. 19).

It is our position that the property, deeded to pe-

titioners in 1927 subject to the indebtedness which

they assumed and later paid, was thereafter actu-

ally owned by them subject to the encumbrances,

of course ; that the transfer of the property to the

creditor in 1933 was a transaction constituting

either a sale or an exchange of all their right, title

and interest in the property in consideration for

cash and the amount of their outstanding note

obligation; and that therefore the loss suffered

upon disposal of the property, which had been held

by petitioners for more than two years, constituted

a statutory capital loss within the meaning of Sec-

tion 101 (c) (2), (6) and (8) of the Revenue Act

of 1932, supra.

The amount or deductibility of the loss is not in

issue. (Br. 11.) The sole question is whether the

loss should be treated as ordinary or capital. We
submit that under the facts herein it is clearly a

statutory capital loss and deductible only as such.

This is true for the reasons that the property was

deeded to petitioners in 1927 for $105,000; they

paid approximately $67,000 toward the purchase

price before disposing of it in 1933 ; they claimed

and were allowed as deductions on their tax returns

approximately $13,000 depreciation of improve-
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merits on the property during their six years of

tenure ; they held it for more than two years, where-

upon it became a statutory ''capital asset" (Sec-

tion 101 (c) (8), Revenue Act of 1932, supra) ; and

they sold it in 1932 at a loss, having conveyed all

their right, title and interest therein for the con-

sideration of cash and the note obligation outstand-

ing against it, which necessarily resulted in a statu-

tory "capital loss" (Section 101 (c) (2), Revenue

Act of 1932, supra).

The statute defines "capital assets" as property

held by taxpayers for more than two years. Sec-

tion 101 (c) (8), Revenue Act of 1932, supra. The

Board held that the real estate in question was

"held" by petitioners for more than two years,

within the purview of the statute. (R. 36.) If

petitioners purchased the property, it follows that

they must have been the real owners. The stipu-

lated facts show that they purchased it in 1927. (R.

33, 67.) Petitioners themselves state that they

"purchased [the] real property", and that "This

property was acquired by Will Rogers and his

wife * * * as community property." (Br.

4-5.) "The property was deeded to them subject

to the indebtedness which they assumed and paid."

(R. 36.) Therefore they actually owned it even

though they did not have clear, unencumbered title.

Although they conveyed it in trust to secure pay-

ment of the note (R. 33, 68), this, of course, did not

divest them of equitable title. Moreover, the appli-

cation of the capital loss provisions of the statute
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do not depend upon whether a taxpayer owns the

property outright or has merely an equity or con-

tract right in it, since it defines "capital assets" as

property merely "held" by the taxpayer for more

than two years. Any contrary interpretation would

lead to absurd results such as, for example, where

a mortgagor and mortgagee of property could each

claim that they "held" less than the absolute title,

and consequently that it did not constitute "capital

assets" even though held for the statutory j)eriod

of two years.

Moreover, whatever may be said of the character

of their disposition of the property, the fact re-

mains that petitioners voluntarily conveyed it to

others inl933 by "Grant Deed." (R. 81-82.) This

implies a sale. Now^here in their brief do they con-

tend or suggest that they did not own the property

from 1927 to 1933, or that it did not constitute capi-

tal assets within the meaning of the statute. Rather

they admit (Br. 4-5) that they "purchased" and

"acquired" it as community property in 1927.

Therefore, it is not at all clear and petitioners do

not explain how the property, constituting statu-

tory capital assets because it was held by them for

more than two years, could have been conveyed to

others, at a loss without the loss having been a

capital loss which, under the statute, "means de-

ductible loss resulting from the sale or exchange of

capital assets" (Section 101 (c) (2), supra). If

the property was a statutory capital asset—and

this is not denied— conveyed by deed to another at
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a loss, therefore, it follows that the loss must neces-

sarily be a capital loss under the provisions of the

statute.

Petitioners contend, however, that the loss was

not a "capital loss" for the reason that it did not

result "from the sale or exchange of capital as-

sets," as required by the terms of the statute (Sec-

tion 101 (c) (2), supra) ; that, in the end, they had

nothing more than they had in the beginning ex-

cept a $54,000 loss (Br. 11-13) ; and that the tran-

saction was therefore merely the satisfaction and

payment of an existing debt (Br. 14-17) upon the

culmination of which they received nothing of ex-

changeable value in return (Br. 17-18) . If, there-

fore, they sold or exchanged the property and re-

ceived something of exchangeable value in return,

their argument necessarily falls. We submit that,

under the facts herein, the transaction was clearly

either a sale or an exchange upon the consumma-

tion of which they received adequate value in

exchange.

Petitioners, in addition to admitting that they

purchased and acquired the real estate as commu-

nity property (Br. 4—5), also admit that "on April

21, 1933, they conveyed the property to the Cali-

fornia Trust Company and the note in the amount

of $38,000.00 was surrendered and cancelled," and

they make reference to "the deed by which the con-

veyance was made * * *." (Br. 5.) They

characterize this as a satisfaction and payment of

the indebtedness existing between themselves and
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the transferee of the property, and not a sale or

exchange (Br. 16) even though they purchased and

had title to the jDroperty, as heretofore shown.

The deed (R. 81-82), however, clearly shows that

they conveyed the property to the holder of the note

in consideration of $10 and for the full satisfaction,

cancellation and surrender of the note, and ''that

the consideration received by grantors is equal to

the fair value of grantors interest in said land."

This, in itself, concedes an adequate and valuable

consideration. Contrary to petitioners' contention

(Br. 17-18), therefore, this negatives the argument

that they received nothing of exchangeable value in

return in the transaction. (Apparently the value

of the property had depreciated upon the inception

of the depression, although this is not shown by the

record). If, as petitioners contend (Br. 17-18),

they received no consideration or exchangeable

value in return, their loss would have been

$92,055.25 (cost of the property less depreciation

allowed) instead of only the claimed amount of

$54,055.25, as the Board observed (R. 38). More-

over, their release from liability through the sur-

render and cancellation of the note w^as a valuable

consideration for the sale. Ferguson v. Larsen,

139 Cal. App. 133, 33 Pac. (2d) 1061; Merchants

State Bank v. Chicago, B. d- Q. R. Co., 245 111.

App. 211 ; Bradley & Co. v. Klingman Inhplement

Co., 79 Nebr. 144 ; Rachman v. CJapp, 50 Nebr. 648

;

Billings v. Warren, 21 Tex. Civ, App. 77. There

was, therefore, a contract upon a valuable consid-
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eration between two or more persons for the trans-

fer of property (cf. Radehaugh v. Scanlan, 41 Ind.

App. 109) which, under the ordinary meaning of

the words of the statute, constitutes a valid sale.

Moreover, it is clear, as the Board points out

(R. 42), that if petitioners had conveyed the

property for $38,000 cash and paid the note with

the money, they would thereby clearly have made

a sale, and the situation is not changed where they

conveyed their property directly to the creditor in

satisfaction of their indebtedness. Cf. United

States V. HendUr, 303 U. S. 564.

From the foregoing it cannot be gainsaid that

we have all the elements of a valid sale—mutual

agreement, competent parties, a valuable money

consideration, and a transfer of title. lotva v.

McFarland, 110 U. S. 471, 478; United States v.

Benedict, 280 Fed. 76, 80 (C. C. A. 2d) ; Popp v.

Mimger, 131 Okla. 282, 268 Pac. 1100, 1102 ; City of

Cannelton v. Collins, 172 Ind. 193 ; Gallus v. Elmer,

193 Mass. 106', Howard v. Harris, 8 Allen (Mass.)

297, 299. It follows that the loss, suffered upon

the sale or exchange of capital assets held by peti-

tioners for more than two years, is necessarily a

statutory capital loss and deductible only as such.

Moreover, there is no substantial difference be-

tween a sale and an exchange in that in either case

title to the property is absolutely transferred and

the same rules of law apply to the transaction

whether the consideration upon the contract is

money or by way of barter. Hale v. Helvering, 85
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v. (2d) 819 (App. D. C). Therefore the provi-

sions of the statute are equally applicable in the

event of a "sale or exchange of capital assets."

Section 101 (c) (2), supra.

Finally, if the transaction constituted merely

satisfaction and payment of their existing debt, as

petitioners contend (Br. 16), that would in nowise

entitle them to a deduction for the loss, either ordi-

nary or capital, as the Board pointed out (R. 38).

What they are claiming is a loss realized upon the

disposition of property, admitted to be a statutory

capital asset, and since the assets were sold or ex-

changed for a valuable consideration, the resulting

loss may be deducted only as a statutory capital

loss.

The cases relied on by petitioners are distin-

guishable or have no application to the facts herein.

Thus, Hale v. Helvering, supra, relied upon prin-

cipally by petitioners (Br. 14-16), is distinguished

by the Board (R. 40-42) . There, the taxpayer sold

real property in 1925 for $60,000, transferred full

title to the purchaser upon the payment of $20,000

cash and $40,000 in notes secured by first mortgage,

reported the profit in his 1925 tax return, and paid

the tax thereon. At maturity of the notes in 1927,

the maker, although financially able, refused to pay,

whereupon suit was instituted in 1929, but before

judgment, a settlement was agreed upon in that

year which resulted in a loss to the taxpayer of

approximately $7,500. The Commissioner deter-

mined that it was not a capital loss, contending be-
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fore the Board that it was allowable only as a bad

debt deduction. The court held that it was not a

capital loss for the reason that it did not result from

a sale or exchange, stating (p. 822) :

the compromise with the maker, who was able

to pay them, of promissory notes, for less

than their face value, does not constitute a

sale or exchange of capital assets entitling

the taxpayer to a capital loss.

Thus, in that case, the taxpayer sold the property

only later, after institution of suit, to compromise

the sum still due on the notes at a greatly reduced

amount. Apparently, it was in the nature of a con-

sideration for settlement of the suit. The compro-

mise of liability on a note is not a sale of the note,

but that is not the situation herein. The court

there held, therefore, that such a transaction was

neither a sale nor an exchange, but merely the ex-

tinguishment of the liability on the notes. That is

quite different from the situation in the instant

cases, wherein the property was actually and volun-

tarily sold and conveyed to a third party for a valu-

able consideration (cancellation of the note) ''equal

to the fair value of grantors interest in said land."

(R. 82.) In the former, there was a compromise of

the contested obligation under the notes ; in the lat-

ter, a voluntary sale or exchange of the property

for a note at a loss, for the apparent reason that

the property in question, purchased in 1927 during

the time of higher prices, was sold after it had

decreased in value.
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Upon analysis, therefore, it does not seem so in-

credible, as stated by petitioners (Br. 15-16), that

the loss suffered by the mortgagee, pursuant to a

compromise under the peculiar facts in that case,

should not be treated as a capital loss, whereas the

loss suffered by the mortgagors in the present cases,

pursuant to a volimtary sale or exchange for a

valuable consideration, should be considered a

capital loss. It is apparent that a compromise set-

tlement between debtor and creditor, where the

notes are merely paid off at less than the amount

of the obligation, does not constitute a sale or ex-

change resulting in a '^ capital loss," as was held in

the Hale case, any more than does the satisfaction

and payment of a debt, under similar circum-

stances, between debtor and creditor, as stated by

petitioners (Br. 16), or than does the payment at

maturity of the face value of bonds purchased at a

premium, as pointed out by the court in the Hale

case, citing Watson v. Commissioner, 27 B. T. A.

463, also relied upon by petitioners (Br. 16).

Likewise, in United States v. Fairbanks, 95 F.

(2d) 794 (C. C. A. 9th), relied on by petitioners

(Br. 16), this Court, citing Watson v. Commis-

sioner, supra, held that the redemption of bonds or

other obligations—the mere payment thereof ac-

cording to their terms—admittedly statutory capi-

tal assets, is in nowise a sale or exchange, and

therefore could not result in capital gain or loss.

The same is true, of course, of the increment real-

ized upon the surrender of insurance and annuity
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policies. Hellman v. Commissioner, 33 B. T. A.

901. Cf . also, Braun v. Commissioner, 29 B. T. A.

1161 ; Brown v. Commissioner, 36 B. T. A. 178, and

Felin V. Kyle, 22 F. Supp. 556 (E. D. Pa.), all of

which are relied upon by petitioners (Br. 16-17),

and none of which involves a sale or exchange, and

therefore obviously can have no bearing on the

question in the instant cases.

In Dallas T. d T. Warehouse Co. v. Commis-

sioner, 70 F. (2d) 95 (C. C. A. 5th), the insolvent

taxpayer in 1928, owing its lessor approximately

$108,000 on a warehouse it had leased for 20 years

at $7,000 per month, conveyed certain property in

which it had an equity of approximately $17,000

to the lessor who later cancelled the balance of the

debt, charging it off as worthless. The court there

held that the taxpayer realized no gain or profit

since it received nothing of exchangeable value in

return, whereas in the instant cases, petitioners ad-

mittedly received a consideration equal to the fair

value of their interest in the property sold.

(R. 82.)

In Commonwealth, Inc. v. Commissioner, 36 B.

T. A, 850, relied upon by petitioners as inconsistent

with the instant decisions (Br. 19), the owner of

the real property, subject to a mortgage, deeded the

property to the mortgagee, without consideration,

and thereby sustained a loss held to have been ordi-

nary and not capital. No comment thereon is nec-

essary further than that there, as the Board points
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out [li. KJ—14), tlK'iv was no r«uii»iduration fur the

transfer of the title to the niort>rnKi^ and coiuie-

quently no sale or exchani^e, whereas hemn
petitioners reeeived a consideration of $10 eash

and "full s«itisfaetiun nf all obligations [the

$:W,(HK) note] secured by the deed (»f trust."

In lltimmd v. (Unnmissiont r, 'M\ U. T. A. VXW

(nn'Mmrandum njnnion), liust v. Commissium r,

38 H. r. A.. No. 1 1'), and Warfuhl v. Connuissioiu r,

38 H. T. A.. No. 114. also stat('<l by pet it loners to Ix*

similarly in<'onsistent with the iib^tant deeisiiins

(Br. H>-2()), the taxpayers were the niort^apors of

prop* rty which was foreclosed anil sold, and the

Board held that the losses suffere<l were ordinary

as distin^fuished from capital. In none of tluKS*'

eases, however, can it bi* siiid that an enforced side,

U|K)n foriM'losure pnK'cedin^s resultini; in an invol-

untary loss, is in anywise like or comparabh' with

the voluntary sale or <'xchanire herein fm- a con-

sideratinii e(|ual in value to the taxpayers' int«Test

in the property sold. Those cas(»s, unlike the in-

stant cases, involv(Hl involuntary eonveyances

without a valuable consideration tlowini? to the tax-

payers, the mort^aijors, and are more in line with

the ('otnnionu'falth, hie. mst , snpt'd, wherein the

property was conveye<l without consideration.

Petitioners, rather than submit to foreclosure pro-

eeedinp*, voluntarily sold their property (appar-

ently irreatly depreciated in value sin«'e pun*has<'d)

at a loss for a consideration admittcdlv onlv
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equivalent in value to the fair value of their out-

standing note.

Thus, it is apparent that the Board's decisions

in the instant cases are not in conflict with any of

its prior decisions and, as petitioners state (Br.

11), the issue involved herein is one which has

never been passed upon by the courts, or by the

Board except in the instant decisions. Moreover,

from the foregoing it is apparent that petitioners

are in error in stating (Br. 11) that the underlying

principle, disclosed by the facts herein, has been so

decided.

In view of the foregoing, it is submitted that the

marital community loss sustained by petitioners

upon the sale or exchange of their property in the

taxable year is a statutory capital loss, and not an

ordinary loss, within the meaning of the pertinent

provisions of the statute.

CONCLUSION

The decisions of the Board of Tax Appeals are

correct and in accordance with law, and should

therefore be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted.

James W. Morris,

^Assistant Attorney General.

SewALL Key,
Norman D. Keller,

S. Dee Hanson,
Special Assistants to the Attorney General.
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Betty Rogers,

Petitioner,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent,

and

Betty Rogers, O. N. Beasley, Oscar Lawler, James

K. Blake, Executors of the Estate of Will Rogers,

Deceased,

Petitioners,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITIONERS' REPLY BRIEF.

An examination of the brief for respondent in the case

at bar discloses that respondent is compelled to place

emphasis on form rather than substance to sustain his

position with regard to the taxing effect of the events

which took place in the instant case.

This attitude and emphasis in the interpretation of the

federal taxing statutes has been recently condemned by the

United States Supreme Court in an unanimous opinion in
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the case of Lyeth v. Hocy, -... U. S , 59 Sup. Ct. 155,

83 L. Ed. (Adv. Ops.) 176 (December 5, 1938).

In this case the question presented was whether property

received by the petitioner from the estate of a decedent in

a compromise of his claim as an heir was taxable as

income. It appeared that petitioner was the grandson of

the decedent who died in 1931, a resident of Massachus-

etts leaving several heirs, among whom was petitioner.

By her will decedent gave certain small legacies to her

heirs and bequeathed the residuary estate, amounting to

$3,000,000 to an Endowment Trust, the income from which

was to be paid to another trust created for certain religious

purposes. When the will was offered for probate in Mas-

sachusetts objection was made by the heirs on the ground

of lack of testamentary capacity and undue influence.

Eventually a compromise agreement was entered into by

the heirs, legatees, devisees and executors providing that

certain distributions from the residuary estate were to be

made to the heirs. It was petitioner's distributive share

under the compromise agreement valued by the Commis-

sioner at some $141,000 which was the subject of the liti-

gation, the Commissioner contending that this sum consti-

tuted income to the petitioner in the year it was received,

since the law of Massachusetts provided that the rights of

parties receiving property under compromise agreements

in will contests were contractual and not testamentary.

In holding that the sum thus received by the petitioner

did not constitute income but rather a sum received by

inheritance within the meaning of the Revenue Act, the

Court stated:

"There is no question that petitioner obtained

that portion, upon the value of which he is sought

to be taxed, because of his standing as an heir and
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of his claim in that cai)acity. It does not seem to

be questioned that if the contest had been fought to

a finish and petitioner had succeeded, the property

which he would have received would have been

exempt under the federal act. Nor is it questioned

that if in any appropriate proceeding, instituted by

him as heir, he had recovered judgment for a part

of the estate, that part would have been acquired by

inheritance within the meaning of the act. IVe

think that the distinction sought to be made betzvcen

acquisition through such a judgment and acquisition

by a compromise agreement in lieu of such a judg-

ment is too formal to be sound, as it disregards the

substance of the statutory exemption. It does so,

because it disregards the heirship which underlay the

compromise, the status which commanded that agree-

ment and was recognized by it." (Italics added.)

In the instant case, as in Lyeth v. Hoey, supra, the

respondent seeks to disregard the substance of the trans-

actions. Respondent regards as important the fact that

as the method of relinquishing their equity, Mr. and Mrs.

Rogers employed the vehicle of a "Grand Deed" which,

as do practically all the grant deeds that are or were

ever written, commences by reciting a consideration of

'Ten and no/100 dollars" (Resp. Br. pp. 8, 13, 15, 21).

Although petitioners are unable to perceive any imi)()rt-

ance in the fact that the deed makes such a recital, since

respondent appears to rest his case in such large measure

on this fact, it is believed that it should be pointed out:

First, that it has never before been contended by any

of the parties to these proceedings that Mr. and Mrs.

Rogers received $10.00 or any other sum of money for

this conveyance and respondent himself in computing the

alleged deficiency has not reflected the payment of any



such sum; secondly, that in assuming that such sum of

money was either paid or received merely from the fact

of the recital in the deed attached as an exhibit to the

stipulation in this case, respondent is reading into the

stipulation, a fact which is not stipulated either by con-

tent or inference in the stipulation itself, since the amount

of loss agreed upon by the parties in paragraph VIII

of the stipulation did not include any cash consideration

paid by the deed [Tr. 70].

Reverting to the substance of the transactions in the

instant case, it appears that Mr. and Mrs. Rogers pur-

chased the property in question paying a portion of the

purchase price in cash and for the remainder thereof

assuming an already existing indebtedness and conveying

the property under trust deed in favor of the seller. The

assumed indebtedness was paid and the indebtedness for

which the trust deed was given had become due. Suit

had been threatened and rather than suffering foreclosure

proceedings, Mr. and Mrs. Rogers relinquished their

equity in the property. It was natural that the vehicle

of a grant deed should be employed in doing so since

by such a deed, title records could be kept more clear

and free from doubt. There would be no question under

the status of the law as the decisions of the Board of

Tax Appeals now stand that had Mr. and Mrs. Rogers

allowed foreclosure proceedings to take place, the loss

which they suffered would have been an ordinary loss

rather than a capital loss. (Hammcl v. Commissioner,

36 B. T. A. 1331, and other foreclosure cases cited in

petitioner's opening brief.)

It is submitted that respondent has not successfully

distinguished the situation in the instant case from the

cases cited by petitioners in their opening brief, namely,
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Commissioner. 3S H. T. A. 115. and IVorficId z'. Com-

missioner, 3S B. r. A. 1 M. Ihc p^rnuiKJ upon which

respondent attempts to distinj^uish these cases is that

tliev in\(»l\e "in\(>luntary conveyance without a valuable

consideration tlowin.Li to tlie taxpayers." Certainly in sub-

stance the considerati(jn for such conveyances was exactly

the same as the consideration in the instant case, namely,

payment of a debt.

It is liclieved that the same reasoning whicli the

Supreme Court of the United States has applied in the

case of Lyctli v. Ilocy, supra, to the effect that if the

suit liad l)een prosecuted to judgement tlie contention of

tlie respondent could not he maintained, should he ai)plic-

able in the instant case. It is a tenet of the law, so old

and so well known as to be a le.i^al maxim, that
—

"the

law neither does nor requires idle acts". ( California

Civil C(xle, Section 3532.) Certainly it would have been

an idle act for Mr. and Mrs. Rogers to have suffered

foreclosure proceedings when all that would have been

accomplished by such foreclosure proceedings is exactly

what was accomplished in the transactions in the in.stant

case.

Respondent seeks to distinguish cases cited by the peti-

tioners in their opening brief, namely, Watson v. Com-

missioner, 27 B. T. A. 463, and United States r. I'liir-

banks. 95 b'ed. (2(1) 794 ( C. C. A. 9. 193S). merely by

stating that no sale or exchange occurred in these ca.ses.

Petitioners, of course, cited these cases on the ground

that the facts were analogous to the instant case and that

the Courts in the cases did decide tliat no sale or exchange

had therein (tccurred. Petitioners do not feel that the

authoril\- of these cases ha^ been satisfactorily ilisputcd



by merely stating the conclusion of the Courts in those

cases, namely, that there was not a sale or exchange,

without showing why the same conclusion should not be

reached in the case at bar. Certainly what happens when

bonds are redeemed is that sums of money are paid to the

bondholders in return for the surrender and cancellation

of the bond instrument which is the evidence of liability

of the obligor on the bond in the same fashion as the

note is the evidence of liability of the obligor on the

note. In other words, the payment of a debt does not

give rise to a capital loss.

For the reason, therefore, that the substance of the

transactions in the instant case discloses that what actu-

ally happened was that the taxpayers relinquished their

equity to pay off the debt still due on the purchase of

the property and for the additional reason that the

United States Supreme Court has recently stated that the

substance of a transaction should control its effect for

taxing purposes rather than the form and for the addi-

tional reason that respondent has failed to distinguish

satisfactorily analogous cases in which the loss has been

declared by the Courts to be ordinary rather than capital,

and for the additional reasons set forth in petitioners'

opening brief, petitioners respectfully submit that the

decisions of the Board of Tax Appeals should, be

reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

Claude I. Parker,

John B. Milliken,

Bayley Kohlmeier,
Harriett Geary,

650 South Spring Street, Los Angeles, California,

Attorneys for Petitioners.
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In the District Court of the United States of

America, in and for the District of Nevada

In Equity

No. H-117

RECONSTRUCTION FINANCE
CORPORATION, a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

LEO F. SCHMITT, as Receiver of BANK OF
NEVADA SAVINGS & TRUST COMPANY,
CARSON VALLEY BANK, TONOPAH
BANKING CORPORATION and VIRGINIA
CITY BANK,

Defendants.

BILL OF COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION
AND DECLARATORY RELIEF

Plaintiff complains of defendants and for cause

of action alleges:

I.

That at all of the times herein mentioned, Recon-

struction Finance Corporation was and now is a

corporation organized and existing under and by

virtue of the laws of the United States of America.

11.

That at all of the times herein mentioned The

[2] Reno National Bank was and now is a national

banking association, organized and existing under
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and by virtue of the banking laws of the United

States of America, and having its principal office

and place of business in the City of Reno, State of

Nevada.

III.

That at all of the times herein mentioned, each of

the following were and now are corporations or-

ganized and existing under and by vii-tue of the

laws of the State of Nevada:

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company

Carson Valley Bank

Tonopah Banking Corporation

Virginia City Bank
Huniboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Co.

Old Channel Ditch Comj)any

Union Canal Ditch Company

Yomig Ditch Company

IV.

At all of the times herein mentioned, John G.

Taylor, Inc. was and now is a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of Wyoming.

V.

That after due investigation of the financial con-

dition of The Reno National Bank, the Comptroller

of the Currency of the United States of America

found said bank to be insolvent, and on or about

the 9th day of December, 1932, in accordance with

the statutes of the United States of America in sucli

cases made and provided, appointed Walter J.
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Tobin Receiver of said bank and of the assets

thereof.

That thereafter, and on the 12th day of Decem-

ber, 1932, said Walter J. Tobin dnly quahfied as

snch Receiver [3] and ever since has been and now

is the Receiver of said The Reno National Bank.

VI.

That thereafter snch proceedings were dnly had

and taken in and by the District Conrt of the State

of Nevada in and for the First Jndicial District,

that by orders and jndgments duly given and made

by said court on the 28th day of February, 1934,

Leo F. Schmitt was appointed Receiver of each of

the following banking corporations

:

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company

Carson Valley Bank

Tonopah Banking Corporation

Virginia City Bank

That immediately thereafter said Leo F. Schmitt

duly qualified as such Receiver and ever since has

been and now is the duly appointed, qualified and

acting Receiver of said corporations, and of the

business, property and assets of each thereof.

vri.

That on the ninth day of June, 1930, and for

many years prior thereto, John G. Taylor was the

owner of the following number of shares of the

capital stock of the respective companies indicated:

37,273 shares Class A stock of Humboldt-Love-

lock Irrigation Light & Power Company
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2,857 shares of Young Ditch Company

150 shares of Union Canal Ditch Company

[4]

1,121-1/3 Shares of Old Chaimel Ditdi Com-

pany

That said shares of stock are hereinafter referred

to as "said water stock" and said companies are

hereinafter referred to as "said water companies".

VIII.

That by virtue of his ownership of certain huids

situate in the Lovelock Valley, more particularly

described in the schedule hereunto annexed and

marked Exhibit A, the ownership of said water

stock vested in the said John G. Taylor certain

rights (hereinafter referred to as "water rights")

to receive from the respective water companies cer-

tain quantities of water for use upcm said lands,

and/or to the use of the ditches and other facilities

of the respective water companies for the convey-

ance of water to said lands.

IX.

That said water rights, as well as said watei-

stock, now are and at all times have been comiected

with, belonging, appurtenant or incident to the said

lands referred to in the next preceding i)aragraph

hereof, or used in connection therewith, and of such

nature as to pass with a conveyance of said lands.

That without said water rights said lands ar(^ avitl

and practically without value.
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X.

That on the ninth day of June, 1930, said John

G. Taylor made, executed and delivered to John G.

Taylor, Inc., a corporation organized and existing I

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
;

Wyoming, a deed conveying to said John G. Taylor,

Inc. all property, real, personal and mixed, then .

owned by the said John G. Taylor, [5] w^ithin the

State of Nevada, save and except i)roperty standing
j

in his name and located within the corporate limits
(

of the City of Lovelock, State of Nevada. That said
|

deed was duly acknowledged so as to entitle it to be
\

recorded and that the same was duly recorded in i

the offices of the County Recorder of the Counties

of Pershing, Humboldt and Elko, State of Nevada,

on or about the 12th day of June, 1930. That no •

pai-t of the lands referred to in Paragraph VIII ,

hereof, or of said water stock or said water I'ights '

was or is located within the corporate limits of the

City of Lovelock, State of Nevada. That by virtue i

of said deed all of said lands, w^ater stock and water

rights passed to and became vested in the said John

G. Taylor, Inc.

XI.

That at all times since the execution and delivery

of said deed, John G. Taylor has been president

of John G. Taylor, Inc. and owner of all of its is-

sued and outstanding capital stock excepting only

directors' qualifying shares.
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XII.

That on the 12th day of March, 1932, said John

G. Taylor, Inc. made, executed and delivered to The

Reno National Bank its promissory note payable on

demand to the order of The Reno National Bank,

m the principal amount of $700,000.00. That simul-

taneously with the execution and delivery of said

promissory note, said John G. Taylor, Inc., for the

purpose of securing the payment of said promissory

note, made, executed and delivered to The Reno Na-

tional Bank a real estate mortgage and a chattel

mortgage. That each of said mortgages was duly

acknowledged by the said John G. Taylor, Inc. [6]

so as to entitle it to be recorded and each of said

mortgages was in fact recorded in the office of the

Comity Recorders of the Counties of Humboldt,

Pershing and Elko, State of Nevada. That there-

after, an error having been discovered in said real

estate mortgage, the said John G. Taylor, Inc. on

or about the 27th day of April, 1932, for the pur-

pose of securing the said promissory note, made,

executed and delivered to The Reno National Bank

a new real estate mortgage dated as of the 12th day

of March, 1932, which said real estate mortgage was

duly acloiowledged so as to entitle it to be recorded,

and the same was duly recorded in the offices of the

County Recorders of the Counties of Humboldt,

Pershing and Elko, State of Nevada.

XIII.

That in and by each of the real estate mortgages

mentioned in the next preceding Paragraph hereof,
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the said John G, Taylor, Inc. mortgaged unto The

Reno National Bank all of the lands referred to in

Paragraph VIII hereof, as well as all other lands

and interests in lands which the said John G.

Taylor, Inc. then owned, together with all water,

water rights, water applications, water permits or

privileges connected with, belonging, appnrtenant

or incident to the lands covered by said mortgage

or used in connection with all or any part of said

premises or Tised or nsable in connection therewith,

and all dams, reservoirs and ditches, canals and

other works for storage or carrying [7] of water

then owned by the mortgagor or in which the mort-

gagor then had or might thereafter acquire any in-

terest, and all applications then pending in the of-

fice of the State Engineer of the State of Nevada

for any and all watei' to be used upon any part or

portion of said lands, or used in connection there-

with.

That by virtue of said real estate mortgages said

water stock and water rights were hypothecated for

the payment of said promissory note in the prin-

cipal amount of $700,000.00.

XIV.

That at the time of the execution and delivery of

the aforesaid promissory note in the principal

amount of $700,000.00, share certificates evidencing

all of said water stock, duly endorsed for transfer,

were or had been delivered to and were held by The

Reno National Bank as further evidence of the

hypothecation of said water stock and water rights
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for the payment of the indebtedness evidenced by

said promissory note.

XV.
That prior to the fifth day of May, 1932, The

Reno National Bank endorsed, transferred and de-

hvered the aforesaid promissory note of John G.

Taylor, Inc. in the principal amount of $700,000.00,

to Reconstruction Finance Corporation, as col-

lateral security for a loan far in excess of the

amomit of said promissory note. That Reconstruc-

tion Finance Corporation ever since has been the

owner and holder of said promissory note and of

all liens securing the same. That no part of the

principal or interest of said promissory note of

John G. [8] Taylor, Inc. has been paid, save and ex-

cept that $70,779.27 has been paid on account of the

principal thereof, and that interest has been paid

thereon to June 30, 1932. That there remains im-

paid on account of the indebtedness for which said

promissory note was endorsed, transferred and de-

livered to this defendant as collateral security, an

amount far in excess of the principal amount re-

maining unpaid on said promissory note.

XVI.

That at all times prior to the 1st day of Novem-

ber, 1932, the businesses of both the Bank of Ne-

vada Sa\dngs & Trust Company and The Reno Na-

tional Bank were conducted in the same banking

rooms. That the directors of both banks were the

same and that the principal officers of both banks
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were the same. That the entire issued and outstand-

ing capital stock of tlie Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company was held by and vested in the di-

rectors of The Reno National Bank in trust for the

shareholders of The Reno National Bank. That both

banks were conducted as a single banking unit. That

after the aforesaid promissory note in the principal

amount of $700,000.00 was endorsed, transferred

and delivered to the Reconstruction Finance Cor-

poration, the certificates evidencing said water

stock, by some means unknown to Reconstruction

Finance Corporation, found their way into the pos-

session of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company, and at the time said Leo F. Schmitt was

appointed Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company, were delivered to the said Leo

F. Schmitt. That said Leo F. Schmitt, as Receiver

of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company,

by virtue of his possession of said certi- [9] ficates,

asserts a lien on said water stock for the payment

of three promissory notes in the aggregate princi-

pal amount of $32,500.00, made, executed and de-

livered to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company by John G. Taylor, Inc. subsequent to the

endorsement, transfer and delivery to the Recon-

struction Finance Corporation of the said promis-

sory note of John G. Taylor, Inc. in the principal

sum of $700,000.00. That said Leo F. Schmitt, in his

capacity as Receiver of Tonopah Banking Corpora-

tion, Carson Valley Bank and Virginia City Bank,

claims a lien as attaching creditor of John G.
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Taylor, Inc. and/or John G. Taylor for an indebt-

edness in the aggregate principal amount of

$24,000.00.

XVII.

That in applying for the loan made by the Re-

construction Finance Corporation to The Reno Na-

tional Bank, The Reno National Bank represented

to the plaintiff that the aforesaid promissory note

of John G. Taylor, Inc. in the principal amount of

$700,000.00 was secured by the hypothecation of the

lands referred to in Paragra])h VIII hereof, as en-

hanced in value by rights to the use of dams, reser-

voirs, ditches, canals and other works for the stor-

age and carrying of water, which said rights plain-

tiff alleges to be the same as the water rights re-

ferred to in Paragraph VIII. That the Reconstruc-

tion Finance Corporation would not have made said

loan to The Reno National Bank in the amount in

which said loan was made, if said water rights and

water stock were not to be hyj)othecated with the

lands referred to in Paragraph VIII hereof.

XVIII.

That the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany, at the time the aforesaid promissory note of

John G. Taylor, Inc. in the principal amount of

$700,000.00 was endorsed, [10] transferred and de-

livered to the Reconstruction Finance Corpora-

tion, had full knowledge of the facts alleged in

Paragraphs VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, XII, XIII,

XIV, XV, XVI and XVII.
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XIX.
That the Tonopah Banking Corporation, Carson

Valley Bank and Virginia City Bank, and each of

them, at the time the aforesaid promissory note of

John G. Taylor, Inc. in the principal amount of

$700,000.00 was endorsed, transferred and delivered

to the Reconstruction Finance Corporation, had full i

knowledge of the facts alleged in Paragraphs VII, i

VIII, IX, X, XI, XII, XIII, XIV, XV, XVI and

XVII.

XX.
That said Leo F. Schmitt threatens to transfer,

i

and unless enjoined by the order of this Honorable
j

Court, will transfer the certificates in his possession i

evidencing said water stock to third persons, to the
\

irreparable injury of Reconstruction Finance Cor-

poration. That said Reconstruction Finance Corpo-

ration has no adequate remedy at law.

XXI.
That prior to the commencement of this action

plaintiff obtained leave of the District Court of the \

State of Nevada for the First Judicial District to

commence and prosecute this action.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays that the court enjoin

the said Leo F. Schmitt, during the pendency of
j

this action, from transferring or parting with pos-

session of said certi- [11] ficates evidencing said

water stock, and that the court make and enter its

judgment declaring that said water stock and/or

water rights are subject to and covered by the lien
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of the aforesaid real estate mortgage and/or to the

lien of the plaintiff for the payment of the afore-

said promissory note of John G. Taylor, Inc. in the

principal amonnt of $700,000.00, and that the rights

and interests, if any, of the defendant in and to said

water stock and/or water rights, if any, are jnnior

and snhordinate to the rights and interests and lien

of the plaintiff, and generally declaring the rights

of the plaintiff and the defendant in reference to

said water rights and water stock in accordance

with the provisions of section 400 of Title 28 of the

United States Code; and awarding the plaintiff its

costs of suit incurred herein and such other and

further relief as may to the court seem meet and

just in the premises.

RECONSTRUCTION FINANCE
CORPORATION,

By ALLARD A. CALKINS
Manager, San Francisco

Loan Agency.

WILSON McCarthy
BROBECK, PHLEGER & HARRISON

Attorneys for Plaintiff. [12]

State of Nevada

County of Washoe.—ss.

Allard A. Calkins, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says:

That he is the Manager of the San Francisco

Loan Agency of the Reconstruction Finance Cor-

poration, the plaintiff in the above-entitled action,
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and that he makes this verification for and on be-

half of said plaintiff corporation; that he has read

the foregoing bill of complaint and knows the con-

tents thereof, and that the same is true according to

the best of his knowledge, information and belief.

ALLARD A. CALKINS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1st daj^

of November, 1934.

[Seal] H. S. GORMAN
Notary Public in and for the County of Washoe,

State of Nevada.

My commission expires Oct. 6, 1937. [13]

EXHIBIT "A"

All those certain j)ieces or parcels of land, situate

in the State of Nevada described as follows, to wit:

In Township 27 North, Range 31 East,

M. D. B. & M.

Section 3 : All of said section.

Section 4: Fractional part of the east half of

said section.

Section 10: Fractional part of the north half,

and that portion of the southwest quarter of said

section lying north of the Old Channel Ditch.

Section 20: The south half of the southeast

quarter.

Section 21 : The east half of the northwest

quarter; the east half of the southeast quarter of

the southwest quarter; that portion of the east half

of said section lying on the west side of what is

know^n as the Old River Channel.
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Section 22: The Ni/o of the SW^^; the ^Vn^
of the SWi4:j and 17 acres, more or less, in tlie

SE14 of the SWi/4 of said Section.

Section 28: The fractional W/o of the NEi/i and

that i)ortion of the NW/4 of said section lying on

the west side of the Old River Channel.

Section 29

Section 30

Section 31

Section 32

All of Section.

The EI/2 of the SE%.
The Ei/s.

Fractional part of the S% of the

NWi/4 and fractional part of the W/o of the STP^.

In ToA\Tiship 28 North, Ran^e 31 East,

Section 26

Section 33

Section 34

M. D. B. & M.

The EVs of ihe E^/o of said section.

The Ei/s of the NE% and the SE14.

All of said section.

In Township 28 North. Range 32 East,

M. D. B. & M.

Section 2 : The BYo of the SW^/i.

Section 16: The SE% of the NE14.

In TowTiship 30 North, Range 33 East,

M. D. B. & M.

Section 3 : The NW14 of the NW14.

Section 18: The SEi^ of the NE^^ and the

NEi/i of the SE%.
Section 21 : The Sl/o.

Section 28 : All of said section.

Section 30: The west half of the east half.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 1st, 1934. [14]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

DEMURRER
Comes Now defendant above named, and de-

murring to Plaintiff's complaint on file herein, for

ground of demurrer alleges:

I.

That said complaint does not state facts sufficient

to constitute a cause of action against said de-

fendant.

AVherefore, said defendant prays that said plain-

tiff take nothing by its said action, and that said

defendant be hence dismissed, with costs.

PLATT & SINAI
Attorneys for Defendant. [15]

I Hereby Certify that I am one of the attorneys

for the above named defendant, and that in my

opinion the foregoing demurrer is well founded in

point of law.

JOHN S. SINAI
Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 19, 1934. [16]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT JUNE 8, 1936.

This being the time heretofore fixed for the hear-

ing on defendant's demurrer, and the same coming

on regularly this day, Messrs. Brobeck, Phleger &

Harrison, of counsel, appearing by Mr. A. M.
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Dreyer, for the plaintiff; and Samuel Piatt, Esq.,

of counsel, appearing for tlie defendant. Counsel

stipulate, for the purposes of the record, that this

demurrer may he deemed a motion to dismiss. Fol-

lowing argument by counsel for the res])ectiv(^

parties the matter is submitted to the Court. Mr.

Piatt noAv files memorandum of points and authori-

ties and Mr. Dreyer states he, likewise, will file

memorandum of points and authorities. It Is

Ordered that the motion to dismiss herein be, and

the same hereby is, overruled and the defendaut al-

lowed twenty days from and after this date with in

which to file answer. [17]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

DEFENDANTS' ANSWER.

Now^ Come the above named defendants, through

their attorneys, Messrs. Piatt & Sinai, and by leave

of Court first had and obtained, file this their An-

swer herein, and admit, deny and aver, as follows:

I.

Defendants admit the allegations of paragra])lis

I, II, III, IV, V, VI and VII of said Bill of Com-

plaint. [18]

II.

Defendants deny that by A'irtue of the o^^^lel•ship

of John G. Taylor of certain lands situated in the

Lovelock Valley, more particularly described in
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Exhibit A of said Bill of Complaint, that the owner-

ship of said water stock, or any thereof, vested in

the said John G. Taylor, certain, or any rights, (re-

ferred to in said Bill of Complaint as "water

rights") to receive from the respective, or any,

water company or companies, certain or any quan-

tity or quantities of water for use upon, said lands,

or any thereof, and/or to the use of the ditches, or

any thereof, or other facilities of the respective

water companies, or any thereof, for the conveyance

of w^ater to the said lands, or any thereof.

III.

Defendants deny that said water rights, or any

thereof, as well as said water stock, or any thereof,

or either or any, now are or ever were or at all

times or at any time or times, have been connected

with, belonging, appurtenant or incident, or any or

either, to the said lands, or any thereof, referred to

in said Bill of Complaint, or used in connection

therewith; deny that said water rights, or said

water stock, or auy or either, or any part or por-

tion thereof, was or ever has been of such nature as

to pass with the conveyance of said lands. As to

w'hether without said water rights, as referred to

in paragraphs VIII and IX of said Bill of Com-

plaint, said lands are arid and practically without

value, these defendants have not sufficient informa-

tion wherewith to express a belief, and, therefore,

upon information and belief, deuy the same, [19]
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IV.

Defendants admit the allegations of paragi-aph X
of said Bill of Complaint, with the exception of the

last sentence thereof, and defendants admit that by

virtue of said deed all of said lands passed to and

became vested in the said John G. Taylor, Inc., but

deny that any part or portion of said water stock or

water rights passed to and became vested in the

said John G. Taylor, Inc.

V.

As to whether at all times since the execution and

delivery of said deed John G. Taylor has been

President of John G. Taylor, Inc., and owner of all

of its issued and outstanding stock excepting only

directors' qualifying shares, these defendants have

not sufficient knowledge whereby to express a be-

lief, and therefore, upon information and belief,

deny the same and place plaintiff on strict proof

thereof.

VI.

Defendants admit the allegations of para-

graph XII of said Bill of Complaint.

VII.

Defendants admit the allegations of the first

paragraph of paragraph XIII of said Bill of Com-

plaint; but in this connection aver that ''all water,

water rights, water applications, water permits or

privileges connected with, belonging, appurtenant

or incident to the lands covered by said mortgage,

or used in connection with all or any part of said
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premises, or used or usable in connection therewith,

and all dams, [20] reservoirs and ditches, canals

and other works fo]' storage or carrying of water

then owned by the mortgagor, or in which the mort-

gagor then had or might thereafter acquire any in-

terest", as set out in said mortgage did not include,

nor was never intended to include, any of the stock

held ])y John G. Taylor individually in the various

water companies and corporations set out in plain-

tiff's Bill of Complaint, nor did not create or estab-

lish, and was never intended to create or establish

any lien or encumbrance of any kind, character or

nature upon such stock, or any part or portion

thereof.

Defendants deny that by virtue of said real

estate mortgages, or any or either thereof, said, or

any, water stock or water rights, were hyi:)othecated

for tlu^ payment of said promissory note in the

principal amoimt of $700,000, or in any other prin-

cipal amount. Defendajits allege that none of said

water stock and water rights by virtue of said real

estate mortgages, or either thereof, or at all, were

hypothecated, by way of security, or collateral, or

otherwise, to the Reno National Bank, to secure the

payment of the promissory note referred to in para-

graph Xll of plaintiff's Bill of Complaint.

Defendants deny that at the time of the execu-

tion and delivery of the said promissory note in the

principal amount of $700,000, or at any other time,

share certificates, or any certificate or certificates

evidencing all or any part or portion of said water
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stock, duly endorsed for transfer, or endorsed at all,

were or ever had been delivered to or were or were

or ever have been held, by the Reno National Bank

as fui*ther, or any evidence of the hypothecation of

said water stock or water rights, or either, for the

payment of the indebtedness evidenced by said

promissory note. [21]

VIII.

As to the allegations of paragraph XV of plain-

tiff's Bill of Complaint, these defendants have not

sufficient knowledge whereby to express a belief,

and, therefore, upon information and belief, deny

the same and generally and specifically each and

every ])ai-t and portion and averment thereof, and

place plaintiif on strict proof thereof.

IX.

Defendants admit that at all times prior to the

1st day of Moveml)er, 1932, the businesses of both

\he Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company and

the Beno National Bank were conducted in the

same banking rooms. Defendants admit that the Di-

rectors of both banks w^ere the same and that the

principal offices of both banks were the same. De-

fendants deny that the entire outstanding and is-

sued capital stock of the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company were held by and vested in the

Directors of the Reno National Bank in trust for

the shareholders of the Reno National Bank. De-

fendants deny that both banks were conducted as a

single unit; and in this connection defendants al-
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lege that since the organization of each of said

banks, and ever since, the Reno National Bank was

a Federal Bank organized mider the laws of the

United States of America, and that the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trnst Company was a state bank

organized imden- and by virtne of the laws of the

State of Nevada ; that each of said banks was a

separate and distinct corporation one from the

other, and during all of the times that each was

open for the conduct of business, each of said banks

held itself out to the j)ublic, patrons, deposit- [22]

ors and others with whom it transacted business, as

a separate and distinct banking institution one from

the other, and so conducted its business with

patrons, depositors and persons with w^hom it dealt.

That as to whether after the i)romissory note in

the principal amount of $700,000 w^as endorsed,

transferred and delivered to the Reconstmction

Finance Corporation, the certificates evidencing

said water stock found their way into the posses-

sion of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany by some means imknown to Reconstruction

Finance Corporation, these defendant have no defi-

nite knowledge whereby to express a belief, but

uinm information and belief, deny the same, and in

this connection defendants aver that the share cer-

tificates of so-called water stock, referred to in said

Bill of Complaint, came into the possession of the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company through

hypothecation and pledge by way of security for

the payment of certain promissory notes duly exe-
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cuted by John G. Taylor, Inc., and endorsed l)y

Jolm G. Taylor to Bank of Nevada Savings &
Trust Company in the aggregate amount of $32,500

for money actually borrowed by the said John G.

Taylor, Inc., from the said Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Company. That the certificates of

stock in the various water companies referred to in

said bill of complaint, were duly endorsed, hypothe-

cated, transferred and delivered to Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Company by said John G. Tayloi*,

and the said John G. Taylor entered into a col-

lateral security agreement, in Avriting, with Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company, pledging said

so-called water stock as collateral security for the

payment of all of his then present indebtedness to

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company and of

all of his future indebtedness to said bank. Defend-

ants admit that [23] at the time said Leo F.

Schmitt was appointed Receiver of the Bank of Ne-

vada Savings & Trust Company, the certificates evi-

dencing said water stock were delivered to the said

Leo F. Schmitt. Defendants admit that said Leo F.

Schmitt as Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Company, by virtue of his possession

of said certificates, asserts a lien on said water stock

for the payment of three promissory notes in the

aggregate principal amount of $32,500, made, exe-

cuted and delivered to the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company by John G. Taylor, Inc., subse-

quent to the endorsement, transfer and delivery to

the Reconstruction Finance Corporation of the said
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promissory note of John G. Taylor, Inc., in the

principal sum of $700,000. Defendants admit that

said Leo F. Schmitt in his capacity as Receiver of

Tonopah Banking Corporation, Carson Valley
|

Bank and Virginia City Bank, claims a lien as at-

taching creditor of John G. Taylor Inc., and/or !

John G. Taylor for an indebtedness in the aggre-
j

gate principal amount of $24,000; but in this con- |

nection these defendants allege that the said Leo '

F. Schmitt as Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Sav- '

ings & Trust Company, claims and asserts a lien I

upon said water stock for the indebtedness of John
|

G. Taylor, Inc., to his said ])ank of Nevada Savings '

& Trust Company receivership, and in addition |

thereto an attachment lien for and on behalf of his
|

other receivership trusts hereinabove referred to,

upon such equities as may remain after his said first

lien has been satisfied.

X.

As to whether in applying for the loan made by

the Reconstruction Finance Corporation to the 1

Reno National Bank, the Reno National Bank I

represented to the plaintiff that the [24] aforesaid

promissory note of Jolm G. Taylor, Inc., in the :

princix)al amount of $700,000, was secured by the
I

hypothecation of the lands referred to in para-

graph VIII of said Bill of Complaint, as enhanced
\

in value by rights to the use of dams, reserv^oirs, '

ditches, canals and other works for the storage and

carrying of water, these defendants have not suf- '
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ficient knowledge whereby to express a belief, and,

therefore, upon information and belief, deny the

same, and place plaintiff on strict proof thereof. De-

fondants deny that said rights above referred to,

are the same as the water T'ights referred to in para-

gra.j)h VIII of said Bill of Complaint. As to

whether the Reconstruction Finance Corporation

would not have made said loan to the Reno National

Bank in the amount in which said loan was made,

if said water rights and water stock were not to be

hypohtecated to the lands referred to in para-

graph VIII of plaintiff's complaint, these defend-

ants have not sufficient knowledge whereby to ex-

press a belief, and, therefore, upon information and

belief, deny the same. Defendants further aver that

as to what the Reconstruction Finance Corporation

would or ^^'OTdd not have done, with respect to said

loan, is entirely irrelevant and immaterial.

XI.

Defendants deny that the Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Company at \he time the aforesaid

promissory note of John G. Taylor, Inc., in the

principal amount of $700,000 was endorsed, trans-

ferred and delivered to the Reconstruction Finance

Corporation, had full, or any knowledge of the facts

alleged in the various paragraphs of para-

grapli XVIII of plaintiff's Bill of Complaint; and

in this connection defendants [25] admit that the

Bank of Nevada Sa\angs & Trust Company bad

knoAvledge of the allegations of paragraphs VII and
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XII of said Bill of Complaint, but had no knowl-

edge of paragiv^phs VIII, IX, X, XI, XIV, XV,

XVI and XVIII of said complaint.

Defendants deny that the Tonopah Bankmg Cor-

poration Carson Valley Bank and Virginia City

Bank, and each or any of them, at the time the

aforesaid promissory note of John G. Taylor, Inc., •

rri the principal amount of $700,000 was endorsed,
^

transferred and delivered to the Reconstruction
,

Finance Corporation, had full or any knowledge of

the facts alleged in the various paragraphs set out

in paragraph XIX of said Bill of Complaint; but

in this connection defendants allege that said bank-
|

ing corporations had knowledge of the allegations

of paragraphs VII and XII of said Bill of Com-
^

plaint, but had no knowledge of j)aragraphs VIII,
j

IX, X, XI, XIV, XV, XVI and XVIII of said

complaint.

XIII.

Defendants deny that said Leo F. Schmitt
:

threatens to transfer, and unless enjoined by the

order of this honorable court, will transfer the cer-
j

tificates in his possession evidencing said water '

stock, to third persons, to the irreparable, or any,

injury of Reconstruction Finance Corporation, or

any one else. In this connection defendants allege

that through agreement and stipulation with the

plaintiff herein, said Leo F. Schmitt is holding said

certificates of stock pending the termination of the

within suit. [26]
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Aiid For a Further Affirmative Defense to Said

Action, these defendants allege that the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company loaned in cash

John G. Taylor, Inc., the principal amount of

$32,500, for which said corporation gave its duly

executed three several promissory notes duly and

regularly endorsed by John G. Taylor. That in the

course of said transaction said John G. Taylor

hypothecated, transferred and delivered, together

with other security, certificates of stock in the vari-

ous so-called water companies and corporations set

out in plaintiff's Bill of Complaint and executed

with the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany, a collateral agreement pledging said certifi-

cates of water stock as security for the payment of

the notes. That at the time of the execution of said

collateral agreement, both the Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Company and the Reno National Bank

by virtue of their common Board of Directors and

officials, had full knowledge that the Reno National

Bank had loaned John G. Taylor, Inc., the sum of

$700,000 and accepted a real estate mortgage re-

ferred to in said Bill of Complaint, but that also

the Reno National Bank had full knowledge that

the said John G. Taylor, Inc., had borrowed the

sum of $32,500 from the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company and had pledged, hypothecated and

delivered said water stock to said Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Company as security for said loan

and had likewise executed said collateral agreement.

That the said Reno National Bank at the time it
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loaned the said John G. Taylor, Inc., the sum of

$700,000 and accepted its promissory note, together

with the real estate mortgage, and at the time it

transferred said note and mortgage to the plaintiff

Reconstruction Finance Corporation had, and

always had full knowledge of the existence [27] of

the various water stock corporations and full and

complete knowledge that John G. Taylor was the

principal owner and holder of the stock therein.

Defendants further aver that the Reno National

Bank accepted the real estate mortgage as security

for the $700,000.00 loaned to John G. Taylor, Inc.,

with full knowledge and imderstanding that said

real estate mortgage did not contemplate the trans-

fer or hy])othecation or encumbrance or lien upon

any of the stock held by John G. Taylor in said

various water corporations, and that said real es-

tate mortgage did not cover or include or embrace

any lien or encumbrance upon any of the water or

water rights, water ways, ditches, dams or reser-

voirs held, owned or controlled by any or all of said

so-called water corporations, or that any of said

waters, w^ater rights, ditches, dams or reservoirs, so

held, o^^med and controlled by any or all of said so-

called water corporations, were appurtenant to or

connected with the lands described in said mort-

gage, or referred to or included therein.

These defendants further allege that at the time

the $700,000 note and attendant mortgage were as-

signed to the plaintiff Reconstruction Finance Cor-

poration by the Reno National Bank, none of said

so-called w^ater stock, or any share thereof, had been
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hypothecated, transferred or delivered by John G.

Taylor, or any one else, to the Reno National Bank,

by way of additional security to the mortgage, or

was ever held or possessed by the Reno National

Bank, and that the plaintiff Reconstruction Finance

Corporation accepted the assignment and delivery

of the note and mortgage without any demand upon

the Reno National Bank, or any one else, for the

hypothecation, pledging, transferring or delivery of

any certificates of stock in any of the so-called

water companies and corporations. [28]

And For a Second, Further and Affirmative De-

fense, These Defendants Allege

:

That the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light &

PoAver Company, a corporation, and the other so-

called water corporations in said bill of complaint

referred to, are each and all corporations which

were organized and maintained for profit, and that

certificates and shares of stock therein, and particu-

larly those of the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation

Light & Power Company were sold, traded in and

dealt with at market. That by virtue of their

articles of incorporation and their by-laws, no limi-

tation is or was placed restricting any person or

class of persons from purchasing, holding or own-

ing any shares or certificates of stock therein. That

w^hatever rights with respect to the use or appropri-

ation of water or waters upon any of the lands

owned by any of the stockholders therein, emanated

through contractual relations between the stock-

holders and the corporation or through affirmative

action by their respective Boards of Directors; and
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the use of any water or waters, reservoirs, ditches

or rights of way, owned, held and controlled by said

so-called water companies, is or was not restricted

to the use of the stockholders therein.

And For a Third, Further, Separate Affirmative

Defense Herein, These Defendants Allege:

That John G. Taylor, Inc., the mortgagor herein,

owned no shares or certificates of stock in any or

either of the so-called water companies and corpo-

rations referred to in said bill of complaint, could

not, and by virtue of said mortgage, or otherwise,

did not hypothecate nor could not have [29]

hypothecated or transferred or conveyed or encum-

bered any part or portion of the water or w^aters or

reservoirs or ditches or rights of way, held, owned

and controlh^d by said water corporations or any

thereof. And that at the time the said Reno Na-

tional Bank, as mortgagee, accepted said mortgage

from said John G. Taylor, Inc., it had full and com-

plete knowledge that said John G. Taylor, Inc., had

no title whatever to the water or waters, reservoirs,

ditches, canals and rights of way then held, owned

and possessed by Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation

Light & Power Company and other water corpora-

tions mentioned in said bill of complaint.

And For a Fourth, Further, Separate and Af-

firmative Defense, These Defendants Allege:

That the Reno National Bank, together with the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, operat-

ing by, imder and through the same officials and

Boards of Directors, had full and complete knowl-

edge of the said mortgage referred to in said bill
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of complaint and of the three several notes payable

to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Tmst Company

secured by the hypothecation, transfer and delivery

of the said so-called water stock. That should judg-

ment be decreed herein, in favor of plaintiff, the

said Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company

would not only be deprived of any benefits from its

said hypothecated stock security, but would suffer

an irreparable and appreciable loss. That further,

the said plaintiff in his said bill of complaint, while

seeking equity, is not doing or tendering equity, and

that said suit is unconscionable and inequitable.

PLATT & SINAI
Attomej^s for Defendants. [30]

State of Nevada,

County of Washoe.—ss.

Leo F. Schmitt, being first duly sworn, upon oath,

deposes and says: That he is one of the above

nained defendants, and makes this verification for

and on behalf of all of said defendants; that he has

read the foregoing answer and knows the contents

thereof; that the same is true of his own knowl-

edge, except as to those matters therein alleged on

information or belief, and as to those matters', he

believes it to be true.

LEO F. SCHMITT
Subscribed and Sworn to before me this 23rd day

of June, 1936.

[Notarial Seal] JOHN S. SINAI

Notary Public in and for the County of Washoe,

State of Nevada.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 24, 1936. [31]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

SUPPLEMENTAL BILL OF COMPLAINT

Now comes Pacific States Savings & Loan Com-

pany, hereinafter called the complainant, and pre-

sents the following supplemental bill of complaint

against the above-named defendant, and thereupon

complains and alleges

:

I.

That complainant at all times herein mentioned

was and now is a corporation organized and exist-

ing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

California.

II.

That at all of the times herein mentioned. Pacific
|

[32] States Auxiliary Corporation was and now is
j

a corporation organized and existing under and by

virtue of the laws of the State of California.

HI.

That on the 1st day of November, 1934, Recon-

struction Finance Corporation, a corporation or-

ganized and existing under and by virtue of the |

laws of the United States of America, duly filed its

original bill of complaint against the defendant, in

which said Reconstruction Finance Corporation

prayed for certain relief, the particulars of which

are set forth in full in the original bill of complaint

filed in the office of the Clerk of this court on the '

1st day of November, 1934, reference to which is

hereby made as if the same w^as set forth herein in

full.
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IV.

That thereafter, to wit, on or about tlie 24th day

of June, 1936, the defendant filed herein its answer

to said bill of complaint.

V.

Tliat on or about tlie 12th day of Fel)i-uaiy, 1936,

all of the right, title and interest of said Recon-

struction Finance Corporation, and all other parties

to that certain suit in equity lately pending in this

court entitled "W. J. Tobin, as Receiver of The

Reno National Bank as. John G. Taylor, Inc., a

corporation, et al" and numbered in the files of this

Oou.rt No. H-114, in and to the stock described in

Pni-agraph VIT of the original bill of complaint,

aud the lands described in the schedule annexed to

said original bill of complaint and marked Ex-

hibit ^'A'\ was i]i pursuance of the decree of f'oi-c-

closur(^ and sale gi^^en and iTiade by [33] this Coui-t

in said suit in equity on the 24th day of October,

1935, conveyed by the Special Master in Chanceiy

appoint(^d for that pui-pose by said decree of fore-

closure and sale, to W. J. Tobin, as Receiver of

The Reno National Bank, an insolvent national

banking association, who thereafter, to wit, on or

about the 10th day of September, 1936, couveyed

said stock and lands to Pacific States Auxiliary

Corporation, which thereafter in turn conveyed the

same to complainant; that by virtue of said con-

veyances, complainant has succeeded to and is now

vested with all of the right, title and int(M-est of
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said Reconstruction Finance Corporation in and to

said stock and lands.

VI.

That the defendant, as well as each of the corpo-

rations of which he is receiver, is a citizen or resi-

dent of the state and judicial district of Nevada;

that complainant is a citizen and resident of the

State of California ; and that the amount in contro-

versy in this litigation exceeds $3,000, and that the

jurisdiction of this Court over this cause has at no

time been defeated.

Wlierefore, complainant prays that it may be

substituted as party plaintiff herein for said Re-

construction Finance Corporation, and that this

cause may proceed to decree in complainant's favor,

in accordance with the prayer of the original bill

of complaint herein.

PACIFIC STATES SAVINGS
& LOAN COMPANY,

BROBECK, PIILEGER &
HARRISON

By N. J. BARRY
Its attorneys. [34]

We, the undersigned, attorneys for defendant,

hereby admit service by copy of the within and

foregoing complaint.

Dated: January 16, 1937.

PLATT & SINAI

[Endorsed]: Filed Jun. 18, 1937. [35]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

OPINION AND DECISION

By the Court, Norcross, Judge.

This is a suit in equity to enjoin tlie sale of cer-

tain corporate stock in cei-tain corporations and to

obtain a declaration of the relative rights of Plain-

tiff^' and Defendant therein. The corporations wcic

organized under the laws of the State of Nevada

and are named as follows: Union Canal Ditch Com-

pany, Old Channel Ditch Company, Young Ditch

Company and Huml)oldt Lovelock Irrigation Light

and Power Company.

The testimony and evidence submitted establishes

the following facts:

On and prior to June 9, 1930, John 0. TayL.r

was the owner of certain irrigated lands in Love-

lock Valley, particularly described in tlic ))ill of

complaint. For mam- years prior to 1930 watei- for

the irrigation of these lands had been and still is

obtained from two sources—directly from the nat-

ural flow of the Humboldt River and from flood

waters stored in the so-called [36] Pitt-Taylor Res-

er\'oir, which was and is owned by the Humboldt

Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power Company, 'i'he

water is conveyed from these sources to the lands

by means of the Yomig Ditch, the Old Channel

Ditch and the Union Canal, and certain other

ditches. The ditches named have long been owned

by incorporated ditch companies, namely the Yoimg

Ditch Company, The Old Chamiel Ditch Company

and the Union Canal Company, the sole stockholders
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of which have always been owners of land lying

adjacent to the ditches. Taylor ownied 1121-1/3

shares of the capital stock of the Old Channel Ditch

Company, 2857 shares of the capital stock of the

Young Ditch Company and 150 shares of the capital

stock of the Union Canal Company. On June 9,

1930, John G. Taylor conveyed to John G. Taylor,

Inc., all of his property, real, personal and mixed

(excepting only property located in the corporate

limits of the City of Lovelock) together with "all

water rights, ditches and canals appurtenant to said

land or used in connection therewith, and all shares

of stock of any water corporation appurtenant to

said land or the waters from which are used or

have ])een used in connection with the irrigation or

cultivation thereof. Water from the ditches and

reservoir above mentioned had been applied to the

beneficial use of the lands described in the bill of

complaint long prior to the date of said deed. On
April 17, 1932 John G. Taylor, Inc., as security for

the papnent of a promissory note in the principal

amount of $700,000. mortgaged to The Reno Na-

tional Bank all of the real property which it then

owned or should thereafter acquire, "together with

all water rights, water applications, water permits

or privileges connected with, belonging, appurtenant

or incident to the lands covered by said mortgage or

used in connection with all or any part of said prem-

ises, or usable in connection therewith, and all dams,

reservoirs and ditches, canals and other works for

the storage or carrying of water then owned or
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thereafter aequied by the mortgagor or in which the

mortgagor then had or might thereafter acquire any

interest, and [37] all applications then pending in

the office of the State Engineer of the State of

Nevada for any or all water to be used upon any

part or portion of said lands or used in connection

therewith." Immediately after the execution of this

mortgage, The Reno National Bank pledged it and

the note which it secured, to the Reconstruction Fi-

nance Corporation, as security for a loan. A day or

two after the Reconstruction Finance Corporation

had made to The Reno National Bank a loan in

excess of $1,000,000 for the payment of which the

Taylor mortgage was pledged as security, the Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Company obtained from

John G. Taylor a pledge agreement purporting to

give to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany a lien upon the stock involved in this litiga-

tion as security for the payment of all existing or

future indebtedness of John G. Taylor. At the time

of the execution of the agreement neither John G.

Taylor, Inc., nor John G. Taylor was indebted to

the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, nor

did either become indebted to that bank imtil some-

time later. A month or two after the delivery of the

agi^eement the Bank of Navada Savings & Trust

Company lent to John G. Taylor, Inc., a total of

$32,500 and took from John G. Taylor, Inc., three

promissory notes for the total amount mentioned.

These notes were endorsed by John G. Taylor, m-

dividually.
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The several ditch companies (namely, the Yomig

Ditch Company, the Old Channel Ditch Company

and the Union Canal Company) never have been

operated for profit. Their functions in practice have

at all times been and now are limited to the main-

tenance and operation of the ditches which they

respectively own. Whatever revenue they have re-

quired has been obtained by assessments levied upon

their shareholders. By virtue of the shareholdings

the stockholders of each of the companies are en-

titled to ratable shares of the carrying capacities

of the respective ditches proportionate to the num-

ber of shares which they hold. [38]

By State Court decree adjudicating relative rights

of appropi'iators of water from the Humboldt

River, the right to the use of water carried through

the several ditches above referred to are adjudged

to l)e appurtenant to the place of use. None of the

ditch companies are adjudged to have any wa,ter

rights, with the exception of the Union Canal Com-

pany, and as to this company its water rights are

adjudged to be appurtenant to certain specifically

described lands which are owned by shareholders of

the company, but which are not involved in this

litigation. The lands referred to in the bill of com-

plaint are adjudged to have certain rights of ap-

propriation of water from the Hiunboldt River,

but these rights are of such late priority that unless

water for the irrigation of the lands can be obtained

from the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir, the lands, except

in years of exceptional precipitation, are semi-arid
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and practically without value. In other words, water

from the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir is absolutely essen-

tial to the profitable operation of the lands.

I

The Pitt-Taylor Reservoir was and is owned by

the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Company, which in turn is possessed of the right

to store certain quantities of water taken from the

Humboldt River for use on certain designated lands,

including among other lands, the property referred

!
to in the bill of comjjlaint. These rights are evi-

denced by Certificates No. 2180 and No. 213L The

said certificates contain the following pro^dsion:

"The stored waters as granted by this cer-

tificate are to be used only to supply any defi-

1 ciency in the irrigation of vested right, lands

' herein listed as irrigated by direct diversion

from the Humboldt River, and in no event

shall such combined use exceed any duty of

water decreed to such lands."

All of the right, title and interest of the Recon-

struction Finance Corporation, The Reno National

Bank, and John G. Taylor, Inc. in and to the stock

through foreclosure of the mortgage executed in

favor of The Reno National Bank and mesne con-

veyances, has passed to and become [39] vested m
Pacific States Savings & Loan Company, which

has been substituted as plaintiff in this proceeding,

and the question presented for the Court's decision

I

is whether the defendant has any lien upon the stock

superior to the title of the plaintiff. On the basis

of the pledge agreement coupled with possession of
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the certificates evidencing the shares, defendant, as

Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company, asserts a lien upon the stock as security

for Taylor's endorsement of the three notes men-

tioned and that such stock represents ownership of

all the water rights in respect to the land described

in the said mortgage.

Shortly prior to the time of the final submission

of this case, this Court in another case had occasion

to determine the main question of law herein in-

volved. In the case of United States v. Humboldt

Lovelock Irrigation Light and Power Company,

19 F. Supp. 489, there was presented the question

whether the United States was the owner of certain

water rights in the Humboldt River for which it

had paid the then upstream owners $419,000, for

the purpose of changing the point of diversion down-

stream for use upon lands owned by others within

a Government Reclamation Project—the Pershing

Comity Water Conservation District. The United

States in that case, like the ditch and resei-voir

companies in this case was not the owner of any

land irrigated or to be irrigated by the water the

ownership of which was or is in question. Relative

to the law governing that question this Court in

the opinion rendered in that case (p. 491) said:

"The law is well settled in this state (Prosole

V. Steamboat Canal Co., 37 Nev. 154, 140 P. 720,

144 P. 744) and in the states of the arid region

generally, that water for irrigation is appurte-

nant to the lands irrigated and hence the prop-
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ei'ty of the owner of the land so irrigated. Ickes

V. Fox, 65 App. D. C. 128, 85 F.(2d) 294, 298."

When John G. Taylor transferred his land hold-

ings to John G. Taylor, Inc., the land transfer car-

ried with it all water rights appurtenant thereto,

[
irrespective of any other [40] expressions in the

I

deed of transfer. Such water rights, so appurtenant,

include means of transportation through the ditches

5
constructed for delivery of the same. It also in-

i
eluded a right to the water stored in the so-called

Pitt-Taylor Reservoir for the use of such land be-

cause the same would become appurtenant thereto.

! Rights to water for irrigation of arid lands within

I

this state is wholly distinct from rights which may

be evidenced by corporation stock certificates. A
corporation, except in the case of a water supply

for mmiicipal purposes, may not acquire a title to

water for irrigation, except in cases where such

corporation is also the owner of land upon which

such water is so used and so becomes appurtenant

thereto. A corporation like the Steamboat Canal

Company, referred to in the citation supra, may

acquire rights to charge and collect for supplying a

means of transportation from the point of diver-

sion to the place of use but, as in that case held,

the water so used becomes appurtenant to the land

to which it is applied and the right to delivery of

the water to the land is only subject to a conveyance

charge.

None of the corporations, the stock in which is

here involved appears to be the owner of irrigated
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lands. Such stock, therefore, does not present any

element of interest in rights to water as such, par-

ticularly is this the case of the several ditch com-

panies. It does not follow however, that because

said ditch companies and said Humboldt Lovelock

Irrigation Light and Power Company may have no

water rights such as is appurtenant to land owned

by said companies, that the stock therein may not

represent some other, more or less, valuable rights.

A reference to the articles of incorporation of the

several companies do not disclose that they were i

organized for the sole or primary purpose of sup- '

plying water for irrigation of any particular land.

In the case of the Humboldt Lovelock Light and

Power Company, as indicated by its name, it was

[41] incorporated for other purposes in addition to

that of storing and transporting water for irriga-
j

tion. Stock therein might necessarily have a value

for reasons wholly distinct from the matter of sup-

ph'ing water for irrigation of lands which, by its

charter, is not confined to any definite tracts.

Counsel for Defendant Receiver calls the Court's

attention to the Nevada statutes relating to corpo- •

rations organized mider the laws of this State pro-

viding that "shares of stock in every corporation

shall be personal property and shall be transferable

on the books of the corporation, in such manner and

under such regulations as may be provided in the

by-laws." Navada Compiled Laws ## 1617, 1722. :

The by-laws of each of the said corporations, the

stock of which is here involved, makes provisions ,

for such transfer.
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Attention, is also so directed to tlie State statute

requiring a mortgage of personal property to have

'^appended or annexed thereto the affidavits of the

j

moi-tgagor and mortgagee, * * * setting forth that

! said mortgage is made in good faith * * *." In the

< absence of such affidavit it is provided that the

I

mortgage '4s void as against creditors of the mort-

! gagor and subsequent purchasers or incumbrancers

of the mortgaged property in good faith and for

value." Navada Compiled Laws, #987. The mort-

gage to the Reno National Bank did not have ap-

pended such affidavits.

A considerable portion of the brief for Defendant

Receiver, is devoted to a contention that the equities

in this case are in favor of Defendant and for that

reason Plaintiff is not entitled to any relief. This

contention is based primarily upon the fact that the

officers and directors of the Reno National Bank

and the Bank of Nevada Savings and Trust Com-

pany were the same personnel and that the said loans

made by the two banks respectively were handled

mainly by the same official. The opinion and deci-

sion of this Court in Schmitt, Receiver, v. [42]

Reconstruction Finance Corporation, Case No. H-78,

dealing with the question of subordination a^Tce-

ments entered into between a number of State banks

and the Reno National Bank, all having in whole

or in the main a common directorate, is cited in

support of the contention. Without determining

whether there may or may not be equities also

growing out of the facts involved in this case, it
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is sufficient now to say that the rights of the parties

to this proceeding are controlled by rules and pro-

visions of law wholly independent of equitable prin-

ciples controlling upon the facts presented in the

case last referred to. As heretofore stated, it is set-

tled law that water diverted from a natural water

channel for irrigation of arid land becomes appurte-

nant to the land and is subject to any mortgage of

such land and passes with any conveyance thereof.

As water for the reclamation of arid lands by means

of irrigation may not be supplied thereto without

tlie aid of ditches or canals for that purpose, and in

some cases, also, the use of storage reservoirs, the

right to the water carries with it rights in the means

of delivery thereto. Such rights, as before stated,

HKiy be subje(*t to conditions such as maintenance

costs and other proper charges, not necessary or

possible here to fully consider and determine.

Plaintiff is entitled to a decree as against De-

fendant, Receiver, to the effect that Plaintiff, as

owner of the land described in the Bill of Com-

plaint, is owner of the water for irrigation thereof

as appurtenant to said land and also owner of rights

in the said ditches as means of transportation and

of storage rights in said reservoir, subject to main-

tenance charges. Whether any such transportation

or storage rights may or may not be subject to any

other charge is not herein involved.

Plaintiff is not entitled to decree respecting the

stock or certificates therefor, referred to in the

pleadings, otherw^ise than as such stock or certifi-
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cates thereof, may be affected hy the decree to wliich

I Plaintiff is entitled as a})ove indicated. [4:5]

I

The Plaintiff is gTanted a decree accordingly.

Each of the parties will ])ay their own costs of

suit.

Plaintiff is directed to submit proposed findings

of fact and form of decree.

Dated this 1st day of October, 1937.

FRANK H. NORC^ROSS
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed October 1, 1937. [44]

I

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

,
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS

j

OF LAW
' This cause came on regularly for trial on the

17th day of January, 1937, before the court ^^^thout

: a jury, and Messrs. N. J. Barry and Brobeck,

Phleger & Harrison by Maurice E. Harrison, ap-

pearing as attorneys for plaintiff, and Messrs. Piatt

. & Sinai, by Samuel Piatt, Esq., for defendant Leo

F. Schmitt, as Receiver of Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company, Carson Valley Bank, Tonopah

Banking Corporation, and Virginia City Bank, and

from the evidence introduced, the court finds the

facts as follows, to-wit:

i

^•

That at all of the times herein mentioned Recon-

struction Finance Corporation was and now is a
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corporation organized and existing under and by

vii-tue of the laws of the United States of America.

[45]

II.

That at all of the times herein mentioned The

Reno National Bank was and now is a national

banking association, organized and existing under

and l)y virtue of the banking laws of the United

States of America, and having its principal office

and place of business in the City of Reno, State

of Nevada.

III.

That at all of the times herein mentioned plain-

tiff, Pacific States Savings & Loan (Company, was

and now is a coi-poration organized and existing

inider and by virtue of the law^s of the State of

California.

IV.

That at all of the times herein mentioned each of

the following were and now are corporations organ-

ized and existing under and by virtue of the laws

of the State of Nevada:

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company

Carson Valley Bank

Tonopah Banking Corporation

Virginia City Bank
Hmiiboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Company

Old Chaimel Ditch Company

Union Canal Ditch Company

Young Ditch Company.
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V.

That at all of the times herein mentioned, J(>lm G.

Taylor, Inc. was and now is a corporation oi'^^an-

ized mider the laws of the State of Wyoming.

VI.

That after due investigation of the financial con-

dition of The Reno National Bank, the Comptroller

of the Currency of the United States of Amci-ica

found said bank to be insolvent, and on oi- about

the 9th day of December, 1932, in accordance w ith

the statutes of the United States of America in

such cases made and provided, appointed Walter J.

Tobin, Receiver of said bank and of the assets

thereof.

That thereafter, and on the 12th day of Decem-

ber, 1932 [46] said Walter J. Tobin duly qualified

as such Receiver and ever since has been and now is

the Receiver of said The Reno National Bank.

VII.

That thereafter such proceedings were duly had

and taken in and by the District Court of the State

of Nevada in and for the First Judicial District

that by orders and judgments duly given and made

by said court on the 28th day of February, 19:U,

Leo F. Schmitt was appointed Receiver of each of

the following banking corporations:

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company

Carson Valley Bank

Tonopah Banking Corporation

Virginia City Bank.
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That iinniediately thereafter said Leo F. Scliinitt

duly qualified as such Receiver and ever since has

been and now is the duly appointed, qualified and
i

acting Receiver of said corporations, and of the

business, property and assets of each thereof.

VIII.

That on the 9th day of June, 1930, and for many

years prior thereto, John G. Taylor was the owner

of the following number of shares of the capital

stock of the respective companies indicated:

37,273 shares Class A stock of Humboldt-Love-

lock Irrigation Light & Power Company

2,857 shares of Young Ditch Company
150 shares of Union Canal Company

1,121-1/3 shares of Old (Channel Ditch Com-

pany.

That said shares of stock are hereinafter referred

to as ^'said water stock" and said companies are

hereinafter referred to as "said water companies",
j

IX.

That as more fully hereinafter set forth, by virtue

of his (the said John G. Taylor's) ownership of

certain lands situate in the Lovelock Valley, more

particularly described in the schedule hereunto an-

nexed and marked Exhibit "A", the [47] o\\Tiership

of said water stock vested in the said John G.

Taylor certain rights (hereinafter referred to as

"water rights") to the use, in common with the

other shareholders of said water companies, of the
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reservoirs, ditches and other facilities of the re-

I spective water companies for the storage and trans-

portation of water for use upon said lands.

I X.

That on the 9th day of June, 1930, said Jolni (i.

Taylor made, executed and delivei-ed to John (!.

I Taylor, Inc., a corporation organized and existing

I under and by virtue of the laws of the State of

Wyoming a deed reading in part, as follows:

I

''That the party of the first part, * * *
, does

])y these presents grant, bargain, sell and con-

;

vey to the party of the second part * * *^ all

of the following described lots, pieces or parcels

of land situated in the State of Nevada, and

more particularly described as follows, to- wit

:

all property, real, personal or mixed, now

owned by me and located in the State of Ne-

vada, save and except such property * * *

located within the corporate limits of the City

of Lovelock, County of Peshing, State of

Nevada.

"Together with the appurtenances and all

rents, issues and profits thereof; also all watei-

rights, ditches and canals appurtenant to said

land or used in connection therewith, and all

shares of stock of any water corporation ap-

purtenant to said land, or the water from which

are used or have been used in comiectiou with

the irrigation or cultivation thereof."

That said deed was duly acknowledged and was

thereafter duly recorded in the offices of the Count \-



50 Pacific States Sav. d L. Corp.

Recorders of the Counties of Pershing, Humboldt

and Elko, State of Nevada, on or about the 12th

day of Jime, 1930. That no part of the lands re-

ferred to in Paragraph IX hereof, or said water

I'ights [48] was or is located within the corporate

limits of said City of Lovelock. That by virtue of

said deed all of said lands and water rights passed

to and became vested in the said John G. Taylor,

Inc.

XI.

That on the 12th day of March, 1932, said John G.
'

Taylor, Inc. made, executed and delivered to The

Reno National Bank its promissory note payable

on demand to the order of The Reno National Bank,

in the principal amoimt of $700,000. That simul-

taneously with the execution and delivery of said

promissory note, said John G. Taylor, Inc., for the

purpose of securing the payment of said promissory

note, made, executed and delivered to The Reno

National Bank a real estate mortgage and a chattel

mortgage. That each of said mortgages was duly

acknowledged by the said John G. Taylor Inc. so

as to entitle it to be recorded and each of said

mortgages was in fact recorded in the office of the

County Recorders of the Counties of Hiunboldt,

Pershing and Elko, State of Nevada. That there-

after, an error having been discovered in said real

estate mortgage, the said John G. Taylor, Inc. on

or about the 27th day of April 1932, for the pur-
;

poses of securing the said promissory note, made,

executed and delivered to The Reno National Bank
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I

a new real estate mortgage dated as of the 12th day

I

of March, 1932, which said real estate mortgage was

duly acknowledged so as to entitle it to be recorded,

and the same was duly recorded in the offices of the

I
County Recorders of the Coimties of Humboldt,

;
Pershing and Elko, State of Nevada.

XII.

That in and by each of the real estate mortgages

mentioned in the next preceding paragraph hereof,

the said John (x. Taylor, Inc. mortgaged unto The

Reno National Bank all of the lands referred to in

Paragraph IX hereof, as well as all other lands and

interests in lands which the said [49] John G. Tay-

lor, Inc. then owned, together with all water, water

I'ights, water applications, water permits or priv-

ileges comiected with, belonging, appurtenant or in-

cident to the lands covered by said mortgage or

used in connection with all or any part of said

premises, or used or usable in coimection therewnth,

and all dams, reservoirs and ditches, canals, and

other works for storage or carrying of water then

owned by the mortgagor or in which the mortgagor

then had or might thereafter acquire any interest,

and all applications then pending in the office of

the State Engineer of the State of Nevada for any

and all water to be used upon any part or portion

of said lands, or used in coimection therewith.

XIII.

That prior to the fifth day of May, 1932, The

Reno National Bank endorsed, transferred and de-
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livered tlie aforesaid promissory note of John G.

Taylor, Inc. in the principal amount of $700,000.00,

together with the mortgages securing the same, to

Reconstruction Finance Corporation, as collateral

security for a loan far in excess of the amount of

said promissory note.

XIV.

That in making said loan to The Reno National

Bank the Reconstruction Finance Corporation

placed a value on the lands described in the schedule

annexed to the complaint and marked Exhibit **A",

based on the assumption that the said mortgages

constituted a valid and paramount lien on all water

rights appurtenant to said lands or in any way

affected or evidenced by the stock referred to in

Paragraph VITI hereof. That the Reconstruction

Finance Corporation did not know nor did it have

any reason to believe that any of the said water

rights were evidenced by corporate stock, but as-

sumed that the said rights were appurtenant to said

lands so as to pass with a mortgage or conveyance

thereof. That if the Reconstruction Finance Cor-

poration suspected that any claim would be made

that [50] said water rights were not covered by

said mortgages, it would not have made to The Reno

National Bank any loan in the amount which it did,

but if it had made to said The Reno National Bank

any loan at all, then and in such case the amount

thereof would have been decreased at least to the

extent of the value of said water rights.
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XV.
That after the said Reconstruction Finance Cor-

poration had made said loan to The Reno National

Bank and said The Reno National Bank had pledged

said note and mortgages to the Reconstruction Fi-

nance Corporation, the Bank of Navada Savings &

Trust Company obtained from John G. Taylor a

pledge agreement purporting to give the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company a lien upon the

stock referred to in Paragraph VIII hereof, as

securit}' for the payment of all existing or future

indebtedness of John G. Taylor; that at the time

of the execution of said agreement, neither John G.

Taylor, Inc. nor John G. Taylor was indebted to

the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, nor

did either become indebted to that bank until a

month after the said mortgages had been pledged

and assigned to the said Reconstruction Finance

Corporation. That a month or two after the delivery

of said pledge agreement and the pledge and as-

signment of said mortgages to the Reconstruction

Finance Corporation, the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company lent to John G. Taylor, Inc. a

total of $32,500 and took from John G. Taylor, Inc.

three promissory notes for the total amomit men-

tioned, which notes were endorsed by John G. Tay-

lor individually. That by virtue of said pledge agree-

ment, defendant Leo F. Schmitt, as receiver of Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, asserted a

lien upon the shares of stock referred to in Par-

agraph VIII hereof, for the payment of the m-

debtedness evidenced by said notes.
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XVI.

That for many years prior to 1930, water for the

[51] irrigation of the lands referred to in Para-

graph XI hereof had been and stiU is, obtained

from two sources, directly from the natural flow of

the Humboldt River, and from flood waters stored

in the so-called Pitt-Taylor Reservoir, which at all

times herein mentioned was and now is owned by

the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Company. That water is conveyed from these sources

to the lands referred to in Paragraph XI of these

findings by means of the Young Ditch, which is

owned by the Young Ditch Company, the Old Chan-

nel Ditch, which is owned by the Old Channel Ditch

Company, and the Union Canal, which is owned by

the Union Canal Company, and certain other

ditches. That at all of the times herein mentioned,

water from the ditches and reservoir above-men-

tioned has been and now is, applied to beneficial

use upon the lands described in Paragraph XI

hereof.

XVII.

That the said Young Ditch Company, the Old

Channel Ditch Company and the Union Canal Com-

pany have never been operated for profit ; that their

sole functions and practice have at all times been

and now are limited to the maintenance and oper-

ation of the ditches which they respectively own,

which, together with works for the diversion of

water into said ditches, constitute their only assets.

That at all of the time herein mentioned the said
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companies have derived their only revenue fi-om

assessments levied upon their respective share-

holders. That with fev^, if any, exceptions the share-

holders of said companies at all of the times herein

mentioned have been and now are owners of lands

lying- adjacent to the ditches owned by said com-

panies. That by \drtue of their shareholdings, the

stockliolders of each of said companies are entitled

to ratable shares of the carrying capacities of the

;respective ditches proportionate to the nmnber of

shares which they respectively hold. [52]

XVIII.

That by a decree duly given and made by the

Third Judicial District Court of the State of Ne-

vada adjudicating the relative rights of the appro-

priators of water from the Humboldt River, the

right to use the water carried in the ditches above

referred to are adjudged to be appurtenant to tlie

place of use. That neither the Young Ditch (Com-

pany nor the Old Chamiel Ditch Company are ad-

judged to have any right to divert or appropriate

watei* from the Humboldt River, that the Union

Canal Company is adjudged to have certain water

rights but said rights are declared and adjudged

to be appurtenant to certain specifically described

lands which are owned by shareholders of the com-

pany, but which are not involved in this litigation.

XIX.

That the lands described in Paragraph XI hereof

are adjudged by said decree to have certain rights
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of appropriation of water from the Humboldt
River; that said rights are of such late priority

that unless Avater for the irrigation of the lands

described in Paragraph XI hereof can be obtained

by tlie Pitt-Taylor Reservoir, the said lands, except

in years in exceptional precipitation, are semi-arid

and practically \\dthout value. That water from the

Pitt-Taylor Reservoir is absolutely essential to the

profitable operation of said lands, and that without

the use of the ditches owned by the said Young
Ditch Company, the Old Channel Ditch Company
and the Union Canal Company, the said lands can-

not be irrigated, and the use of said ditches is

absokitely essential to the profitable irrigation of

said lands.

XX.
That the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir was and is owned

by the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light &
Power Company. That the Himiboldt-Lovelock Irri-

gation Light & Power Compan.y is possessed of the

right to store certain quantities of water taken from

the Humboldt River for use on certain designated

lands, including [53] among other lands the lands

described in Paragraph XI hereof. That the rights

of the Hiunboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Company to store certain water are evidenced by

certificates Nos. 2130 and 2131 issued by the State

Engineer of the State of Nevada; that said Certifi-

cates contain the following provision:

"The stored waters as granted by this certifi-

cate are to be used only to supply any deficiency
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in the irrigation of vested right, lands licivin

listed as irrigated by direct diversion from the

Humboldt River, and in no event shall such

combined use exceed any duty of watei- dccrccMl

to such lands."

That in practice the sole functions of said Hiim-

boldt-Loveloek Irrigation Light & Power Company

at all times have been and now are limited (a) to

diverting and storing water for the exclusive benefit

of lands owiied or then owned by its stockholders,

and (b) to the maintenance and operation, for the

jjurpose of diverting and storing water for the ben-

efit of lands owaied or then ow^ned by its stock-

liolders, of said Pitt-Taylor Reservoir and works

for the diversion of water into said reservoir; that

said reservoir and diversion works constitute the

sole and only tangible assets of said Himiboldt-

Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power Company; that

said Hmnboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Compam- has not at any time manufactured, sold,

or distributed light or power, or engaged in any

l)usiness or activity other than the business or activ-

ity of acting as the agent of its stockholders in

diverting and storing water to be applied to a l)en-

eficial use upon the lands owned by such share-

holders; that it has never been operated for protit;

that its sole source of revenue has consisted of an

annual charge collected from its stockholders 011 the

basis of the quantity of w^ater delivered to them ami

assessments levied upon its shareholders to make
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up the deficiency of the revenue provided by said

annual charge to cover the costs of maintaining and

operating said Pitt-Taylor Reservoir and works for

the diversion of water.

XXL
That the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light &

Power [54] Company has two classes of stock des-

ignated respectively as Class A stock and Class B
stock; tha,t the holder of each share of Class A
stock is entitled to receive from said corporation

that proportion of the first 10,000 acre feet of water

stored in the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir, which the num-

ber of shares which he holds bears to the total

issued and outstanding number of Class A shares

of said corporation, for use upon lands lying adja-

cent to certain designated ditches, including among

others the Yoimg Ditch, the Old Channel Ditch and

the Union (^anal. That upon transfer of any shares

of Class A stock of said corporation, except in con-

nection with the transfer of the lands upon which

said water has been applied to a beneficial use, said

shares of Class A stock automatically become shares

of said Class B stock.

XXII.

During the pendency of this action, in a suit to

foreclose the mortgages given by John G. Taylor,

Inc. to The Reno National Bank and pledged by

The Reno National Bank to the Reconstruction

Finance Corporation, as more particularly herein-

before set forth, a decree of foreclosure and sale
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was duly given and made by this Couit, in pursu-

;| ance of wliicli all of the proi)erty, real, personal and

mixed, of every nature and description, and where-

soever situate, subject to said mortgages, was sold

by a Special Master in Chancery appointed by this

Court, to the Reconstruction Finance Corporation,

which caused the said property to be conveyed by

said Special Master in Chanceiy to W. J. Tobin,

as Receiver of The Reno National Bank, in trust

nevertheless for the Reconstruction Finance Coi--

poration; that thereafter the property so conveyed

to the said W. J. Tobin, as such receiver in tnist

as aforesaid, was by the said W. J. Tobin as such

receiver, with the consent of the Reconstruction

Finance Corporation, sold, transferred and con-

veyed to Pacific States Auxuliary Corporation, a

California corporation, which corporation thereafter

sold, transferred and conveyed the same [55] to

Pacific States Sa\dngs & Loan Company; that

thereafter said I^acific States Savings & Loan Com-

pany was substituted as the plaintiff in this a(*tion.

From the foregoing Findings of Fact, the Coui-t

draws the following:

Conclusions of Law.

I.

That Pa,cific States Savings & Loan C\)mpany is

the owner of the lands described in Exhibit "A"

attached to the complaint and of all water and walci-

rights appurtenant thereto used for the irrigation

of the same and rights to all means of transporta-
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tion and storage of such appurtenant water rights,

such as dams, ditches, canals and reservoirs^ from

the places or points of diversion to the places or

points of use, subject only to normal costs of main-

tenance of such dams, ditches, canals and reservoirs.

II.

That, subject to the foregoing rights of Plaintiff,

Pacific States Savings and I^oan Company, Defend-

ant, Leo F. Schmitt, as Receiver of Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Company, Carson Valley Bank,

Tonopah Banking Corporation and Virginia City

Bank, is entitled to a lien on all the shares of stock

referred to in Paragraph VIII of the Findings of

Fact.

III.

That Plaintiff is not entitled to a judgment de-

claring said water stocks are subject to and con-

veyed by the lien of the real estate mortgage or to

the lien of plaintiff for payment of the promissory

note therein described or other than declaring the

rights of the parties as set forth in the preceding

Conclusions I and II.

Costs are not allowed either party.

Dated the 6th day of April, 1938.

(s) FRANK H. NORCROSS
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 6, 1938. [56]
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In the District Court of the United States of Amer-

ica, in and for the District of Nevada.

No. H-llT.

PACIFIC STATES SAVINGS & LOAN COM-
PANY, a corporation, substituted for Recon-

struction Finance Corporation, a corporation,

Phnntiff,

vs.

LEO F. SCHMITT, as Receiver of BANK OF
NEVADA SAVINGS & TRUST COMPANY,
CARSON VALLEY BANK, TONOPAH
BANKING CORPORATION and VTRGINIA

C^ITY BANK,
Defendant.

FINAL DECREE.

This cause for declaratory rehef came on to l>e

heard on January 17, 1937, and was thereafter,

upon oral arg-ument and briefs filed by respective

counsel, submitted March 25, 1938. The Court hav-

ing made Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law,

now in pursuance thereof, it is Ordered, Adjiul.ired

and Decreed as follows:

That the Plaintiff, Pacific States Savings ^: Loan

Company, is the o\A^er of the lands described in

Exhibit ''A" attached to the complaint and of nil

water and water rights appurtenant thereto used

for the irrigation of the same and rights to and ni

all means of transportation and storage of such

appurtenant w^ater rights, such as dams, ditches,
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canals and reservoii's, from the places or points of

diversion to the places or points of use, subject only

to novnial costs of maintenance of such dams,

ditches, canals and reserv^oirs.

That, subject to the foregoing rights of Plain-

tiff, Defendant, Leo F. Schmitt, as Receiver of

Bank of Nevada [57] Savings & Trust Company,

Carson Valley Bank, Tonopah Banking Corpora-

tion and Virginia City Bank, is entitled to a lien

on all the shares of stock referred to in paragraph

VIII of the Findings of Fact.

That Plaintiff is not entitled to a judgment de-

claring said water stocks are subject to and con-

veyed by the lien of the real estate mortgage or to

the lien of plaintiff for payment of the promissory

note therein described or other than declaring the

rights of the parties as herein above set forth.

Costs are not allowed either party.

Dated this 6th day of April, 1938.

/s/ FRANK H. NORCROSS
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 6, 1938. [58]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION OF PACIFIC STATES SAVINGS
AND LOAN COMPANY FOR REHEARING

The petition of Pacific States Savings & Eoan

Company for a rehearing, respectfully shows:

1. On April 6, 1938, this court made and filed

its findings of fact and conclusions of law and en-

tered its final decree.

2. Plaintiff respectfully petitions the Court for

a rehearing on the ground that the court erred in

each of the following respects

:

(a) In not concluding as a matter of law

and decreeing that plaintiff is the owner of the

[59] stock referred to in the bill of complaint

;

(b) In not concluding as a matter of law

and decreeing plaintiff to be entitled to the

possession of the certificate evidencing said

stock

;

(c) In not concluding as a matter of law

and decreeing that the rights to receive water

from the respective companies and to use the

diversion works, storage facilities, dams, ditches

and other facilities for the diversion, storage

and conveyance of water belonging to the re-

spective companies (all of which rights are

hereinafter in this petition referred to as water

rights) are appurtenant to the land

;

(d) In not concluding as a matter of Uiw

and decreeing plaintiff to be the owner of the

said stock, free from any claim or lien on the
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part of the defendant, at least to the extent

necessary to the full enjoyment of the water

Tig'hts evidenced thereby;

(e) In not enjoining the defendant from

transferring the certificates evidencing said

stock, except subject to the rights of the plain-

tiff as declared by the decree; and in not requir-
|

ing defendant to surrender up the certificates

evidencing said stock for the purpose of having

endorsed thereon a legend to the effect that
j

plaintiff is entitled to all of the water rights

evidenced hy said stock as declared by tlie

decree

;

(f) In not concluding as a matter law and

decreeing that plaintiff is entitled to vote the

stock in respect to all matters relating to the

rights which the Court has found to be vested

in the plaintiff;

(g) In concluding as a matter of la,w and

in decreeing that defendant in his capacity as

Receiver of the Carson Valley Bank, Virginia s

City Bank and Tonopah Banking Corporation,
i

has a lien on said stock;

(h) In concluding as a matter of law and

decreeing that defendant in his capacity as

receiver of Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company has a lien on said stock without spe- ,

cifying the amount or extent of such lien;

(i) In concluding and decreeing that plain-

tiff is not entitled to a judgment declaring the
j

water stock to be subject to the real estate

mortgage

;
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(j) In not concluding- as a matter of law

and decreeing that the deed executed by John

G. Taylor to John G. Taylor Inc. under date

of June 9, 1930 divested John G. Taylor of all

right, title and interest in and to the stock

involved in this litigation.

* * * (pp. 3 to 8 inc.) [60]

Wherefore, plaintiff respectfully prays that a

rehearing may be granted and the Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of I.aw and Final Decree be modi-

fied a,s herein prayed.

Respectfully submitted,

BROBECK, PHLEGER &

HARRISON
N. J. BARRY
T. W. DAHLQUIST

Attorneys for Plaintiff. [<)1]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco.—ss.

A. M. Dreyer, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That he is one of the attorneys for the plaintiff

in the above-entitled action; that he has read the

foregoing petition for rehearing, and that he does

now state that the grounds of said petition as stated

therein are believed by him to be well taken and m

conformance with the facts, decisions and authori-

ties relating thereto, and that all allegations of fact
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contained therein are true to the best of his knowl-

edge, information and belief.

A. M. DREYER
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day '

of April, 1938. '

[Seal] EUGENE P. JONES
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 20, 1938. [62]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MEMORANDUM DECISION RE PETITION
FOR REHEARING, MOTION TO VACATE
DECREE.

Norcross, District Judge:

Final decree wa,s entered in this suit April 6,

1938. Plaintiff on April 20, 1938, filed a petition

for rehearing and thereafter on April 26th filed a

notice of motion for an order vacating the final

decree and permitting plaintiff to file a Second

Supplemental Bill of Complaint.

The only question presented in the original suit

w^as that of ownership of certain stock certificates

in certain corporations organized for the purpose

of acquiring, constructing or operating certain ir-

rigation ditches, dams and resei-voirs, 20' F. Sup. 816.

In accordance with that decision plaintiff's w^ater

lights were not affected by the mere ownership

of the stock certificates, as such wafer rights and
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means of conveyance thereof were appui-tenaiit to

the lands owned by plaintiff. [63]

The purpose of the proposed Second Su])])l('-

mental Bill of Complaint is to make the particular

corporations, four in number, defendants and <)})tain

a final decree against such corporation defendants

forever enjoining- them and each of them "from

transferring upon their books the said shares or any

thereof, except subject to the rights of the plaintiff

as declared by said decree, and from issuing any

certificates evidencing said shares or any thereof

imless such certificates and each of them bear a

legend declaring the rights of the registered holders

thereof to be subject to the rights of the plaintiff

as declared by such final decree".

In accordance wdth the decree as heretofore en-

tered plaintiff can at any time maintain an action

against any of said companies in the event of inter-

ference with its water rights regardless of any

question of stock ownership. We may assume such

rights have been determined in the Humboldt River

suit.

The Court is not impressed that any sound reason

is presented for the granting of the Petition oi'

Motion. Cyclopedia of Federal Procedure, Vol. 3,

Sec. 917, Vol. 4, Sec. 1110; New Equity Rule 34;

21 C. J. Sees. 660' 662.

The petition for rehearing and the motion to

vacate the decree with permission to file a Second

Supplemental Bill of Complaint should be denied.

It is so ordered.
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Dated this 27th day of June, 1938.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 27, 1938. [64]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR APPEAL
To the Honorable the United States District

Court for the District of Nevada:

Comes now the plaintiff above-named, Pacific

States Savings & Loan (^onipany, a corporation, by

its undersigned attorneys, and, feeling aggrieved by

tlie decree made and entered in the above-entitled

Court on April 6, 3938, w^hich became final on June

27, 1938, upon the denial of a petition for rehearing

seasonably made and filed and duly entertained by

the Court, [65] hereby appeals from said decree

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, and claims that there are mani-

fest, material and prejudicial errors to its injury

in said cause; that said errors are specifically set

forth in the Assignment of Errors filed herewith

upon which said appeal is based and to which ref-

erence is hereby made ; and res^jectfully prays that

said appeal be allowed and that a citation be issued

in accordance with law; and tha,t an authenticated

transcript of the record, proceedings, exhibits and

papers on the trial of this cause be sent to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit at San Francisco, California.
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And your petitioner fiirtliev prays that an nnliT

be made fixing the amount of security to he u^iven

by appellant, conditioned as provided by law.

Dated: August 22, 1938.

BROBECK, PHLEGER &

HARRISON
ORRICK, BAHLQUIST, NEFF

& HERRINGTON
Attorneys for Plaintiff Pacific States

Savings & Loan (^ompany. [66]

Receipt of a copy of the ^^^thin Petition for Ap-

peal is hereby admitted this day of _
,

1938.

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 22, 1938. [67]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

i
Comes now Pacific States Savings & Loan Com-

pany, a corporation, plaintiff in the above-entitled

cause, and files the following Assignment of En-ors,

to vsdt:

1.

The Court erred in making and entering its (Iccive

that defendant is entitled to a lien on the shares of
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stock described in the complaint herein (hereinafter

called "water [68] stocks"), viz.,

37,273 shares Class A stock of Humboldt-Love-

lock Irrigation Light & Power Company

;

2,857 shares of Young Ditch Company;

150 shares of Union Canal Company;

1,121 1/3 shares of Old Channel Ditch Com-

pany.

Said companies are hereinafter referred to collec-

tively as "water companies."

2.

The Court erred in making and entering its de-

cree that phiintiff is not entitled to a judgment

declaring that said water stocks are subject to and

conveyed by the lien of the real estate mortgage

described in the complaint herein.

3.

The Court erred in not making and entering its

judgment that plaintiff is the owner and entitled

to the possession of said water stocks and that de-

fendant has no right, title or interest therein or

thereto or any lien thereon.

4.

The Court erred in not making and entering its

decree that defendant surrender and deliver said

water stocks to plaintiff.
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5.

The Court erred in finding, in Finding IX, that

the ownership of said water stocks vested in John

G. Taylor, the predecessor in interest of both parties

hereto, the right to use in common with other share-

holders of the water companies whose stocks are

described in the complaint, the reservoirs, ditches

and other facilities of said respective water com-

panies for the storage and transportation of water

for use [69] upon the lands then o^vTied by said

Taylor and now o\\Tied by plaintiff.

6.

The Court erred in finding, in Finding XVII,

that by virtue of their shareholdings the stockhold-

ers of each of said water companies are entitled to

ratable shares of the carrying capacities of the re-

spective ditches owned by said companies propor-

tionate to the niunber of shares which said stock-

holders respectively hold.

7.

The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the deed described in Finding X, said water

stocks were sold, assigned and transferred by John

G-. Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc., a corporation.

8.

The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the mortgage referred to in Finding XI and

XII, said water stocks were mortgaged by John

G. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National Bank.
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9.

The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the transactions described in Finding XXII,
plaintiff is now the owner and entitled to the pos-

session of said water stocks.

10.

The Court erred in failing to find that at the time

the pledge agreement and loan described in Find-

ing XV were made, John G. Taylor had no right,

title or interest in or to said water stocks and that

the interest of John G. Taylor, Inc. therein was

subject to the mortgage theretofore made by John

G. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National Bank, and

that the Bank of [70] Nevada Savings & Trust

Company at all said times had notice and knowledge

that said water stocks had theretofore been sold by

John G. Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc. and by the

latter mortgaged to The Reno National Bank.

11.

1'he Court erred in failing to find that said water

stocks were and are appurtenant to the lands de- \

scribed and referred to in said complaint now owned

by plaintiff, and that said water stocks were trans-

ferred by the deed and mortgage of said lands.

12.

The Court erred in denying leave to complainant

to file a supplemental bill of complaint and to make

'
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said water companies parties defendant herein, and

in failing to reopen said case in order that a com-

plete adjudication of the rights of the parties might

be obtained.

Wherefore, said Pacific States Savings & Loan

Company, a corporation, appellant, prays that the

decree of the District Court of the United States

for the District of Nevada, entered in the above-

entitled cause on April 6, 1938, be reversed and

said cause remanded to said District (burt witli

directions to enter a decree as prayed for in the Bill

of Complaint herein, and for such other and further

relief as may be just and appropriate.

Dated this 22 day of August, 1938.

BROBECK, PHLEGER &

HARRISON
ORRICK, DAHLQUIST, NEFF

& HERRINGTON
Attorneys for Pacific States

Savings & Loan Company.

[71]

Receipt of a copy of the within Assignment of

Errors is hereby admitted this (lay of

, 1938.

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 22, 1938. [72]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER ALLOWING APPEAL.

The above-named Pacific States Savings & Ix)an

Company, plaintiff in the above-entitled cause, hav-

ing filed herein its Petition for an appeal from the

decree made and entered in said cause on April 6,

1938, which ])ecame final on June 27, 1938, upon

the denial of a petition for rehearing seasonably

made and filed and duly entertained by the Court,

and having filed herein its Assignment of Errors,

and prayer for reversal, pursuant to the statutes

and rules in such [73] cases provided, now, on mo-

tion of the attorneys for said petitioner,

Tt Is Hereby Ordered that an appeal to the

United States Circuit Conrt of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit from said decree be and the same is

hereby allowed ; and

It Is Further Ordered that the Clerk ()f this

Court prepare and certify a transcript of the rec-

ord, proceedings, exhibits and papers on the trial

of this cause pertinent to and necessary for deter-

mination of said appeal and transmit the same to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, at San Francisco, California, withiii

the time and in the manner provded by the statutes

of the United States and the rules of Court; and

It Is Further Ordered that the appellant furnish

a bond on appeal in compliance with law and the

rules of Court, in the amoimt of $500.00, the same

to operate as a cost bond only.
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Dated this 22nd day of August, 1938.

By the Court,

FRANK H. NORCROSS,
District Judge.

Attest

:

[Seal] O. E. BENHAM,
Clerk of the United States District Court lor the

District of Nevada.

By O. F. PRATT
Deputy CMerk. [74]

Receipt of a copy of the within Order All(»wiii<r

Appeal is hereby admitted this day of

, 1938.

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 22, 1938. [75]

[Title of District Court and Clause.]

UNDERTAKING ON APPEAL.

Know All Men By These l^resents:

That Pacific Indenmity Company, a ('or])orntioii

organized and existing under and by virtue of the

laws of the State of California, having power to

execute bonds and undertakings in judicial jnocccd-

ings and duly authorized to transact a general surety

business mthin the State and District of Nevada,

is held and firmly bound unto Poo F. Schnutt. as

[76] Receiver of Bank of Nevada Saviuirs S: Tni-t
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Company, Carson Valley Bank, Tonopah Banking

Corporation and Virginia City Bank, in the full

and just sum of $500.00, for the payment of which,

well and truly to be made to said Leo F. Schmitt, as

Receiver of Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company, Carson Valley Bank, Tonopah Banking

Corporation and Virginia City Bank, it binds itself,

its successors and assigns, jointly and severally by

these presents.

Whereas, Pacific States Savings & Loan Com-

pany has prosecuted its appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to

reverse the decree made and entered in the above-

entitled cause by the United States District Court

for the District of Nevada, on April 6, 1938;

Now, Therefore, the condition of this obligation

is such, that if the said appellant shall prosecute its^

appeal to effect, and answer all costs if it fails to

make good its plea, then this obligation to be void,

otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

The said Pacific Indemnity Company, a corpora-

tion, agrees that in case of breach of any condition

hereof, the said District Court of the United States

may, upon notice to it of not less than ten days,

proceed summarily in the above suit to ascertain

the amount which it is bound to pay on account of

such breach and render judgment against it, and

award execution thereon.

In Witness Whereof, the corporate seal and name

of said Pacific Tudeiuuity Company is hereto affixed
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and attested by its duly authorized officers, this 22nd

day of August, 1938.

PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY
By W. F. AMES, JR.

Attorney-in-Fact.

The foregoing undertaking is hercjjy approved

as to form, amount and sufficiency.

Dated: August 22, 1938.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
District Judge. [77]

Receipt of a copy of the within Undertaking on

Appeal is hereby admitted this day of

August, 1938.

Attorneys for Defendant-Appellee.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 22, 1938. [78]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER ENLARGING TIME TO PREPARK

TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD AND TO DOCKET

APPEAL.

Good cause appearing therefor. It Is Hereby

Ordered that the time within which to prepare the

transcript of record on appeal and to docket the

appeal of the plaintiff in the above entitled snit n.

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the
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Ninth Circuit be and the same is hereby enlarged to

and including the 1st day of November, 1938.

Dated : September 7th, 1938.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
Judge of the United States

District Court.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 7, 1938. [79]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE.

The above-entitled cause came on regularly for

trial before the Court on the 18th and 19th days of

January, 1937, Messrs. M. E. Harrison and A. M.

Dreyer, of Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison, San Fran-

cisco, California, and N. J. Barry, of Reno, Nevada,

appearing as attorneys for plaintiff, [80] and Sam-

uel Piatt, Esq., of Messrs. Piatt & Sinai, Reno,

Nevada, appearing as attorney for defendant.

Thereupon witnesses were called by the respective

parties, duly sworn and testified as hereinafter set

forth, and exhibits were introduced by the respec-

tive parties, and the cause was submitted for de-

cision.

At the commencement of the trial leave was

granted by the Court to file the Supplemental Bill

of Complaint hereinbefore set forth, and Pacific

States Savings & Loan Company, a corporation,

was substituted as plaintiff in the place and stead
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of Reconstruction Finance Corporation, a corpora-

tion. It was thereupon stipulated that that portion

of Paragraph V of said Supplemental Bill of Com-

plaint which alleges that pursuant to the decree of

foreclosure and sale in said paragraph referred to

the stocks which are the subject matter of this

action were sold by a master appointed foi- that

purpose in said decree of foreclosure and thereafter

in turn conveyed to the substituted complainant,

should be deemed controverted.

The evidence adduced in said cause, condensed

and reduced to narrative form, is as follows:

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 1

is a deed dated June 9, 1930, from John G. Tayhu-,

of Lovelock, Nevada, to John G. Taylor, Inc., a

Wyoming corporation, duly executed, acknowledged

and recorded, by which said John G. [81] Taylor

did grant, bargain, sell and convey to John G.

Taylor, Inc., ''all property, real, personal and

mixed, now owned by me and located in the State

of Nevada, save and except such property as is

now standing in my name and which is located

within the corporate limits of the City of Tx)velock,

County of Pershing, State of Nevada. Together

with the appurtenances and all rents, issues and

profits thereof; also all water rights, ditches and

canals appurtenant to said land or used in connec-

tion therewith, and all shares of stock of any water

corporation appurtenant to said land, or the waters

from which are used or have been used in connec-

tion with the irrigation or cultivation thereof.
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It was alleged in the Bill of Complaint, and

admitted by the Answer, that none of the lands or

water rights involved in this cause were or are

located in the City of Lovelock.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 2

is a mortgage dated March 12, 1932, executed on

April 20, 1932, duly acknowledged and recorded, be-

tween John G. Taylor, Inc., a Wyoming corpora-

tion, and The Reno National Bank, a corporation!

organized under the laws of the United States, by

which, to secTire an indebtedness of $700,000, evi-

denced by a promissory note dated March 12, 1932,

made bv said mortgagor and payable to said mort-

gagee, the mortgagor did mortgage to the mortgagee

certain lands and premises in the Counties of Per-

shing, Humlioldt and Elko, State of Nevada, therein

specifically described, including the lands described

in [82] the Bill of Complaint herein,

"Together With all water, water riglits,

water applications and water permits, or privi-

leges, connected with, belonging, appurtenant

or incident to the lands hereby conveyed, or

used in connection with all or any part of the

said premises, or used or usable in connection

therewith, and all dams, reservoirs and ditches,

canals or other works for storage or carrying

of water now owned by the mortgagor, or in

which it now has, or may hereafter acquire any

interest, and all applications now pending in

the office of the State Engineer of the State of

Nevada, for any and all waters to be used upon
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any part or portion of tlic said lands, or usfd

in connection therewith.

"Together With all and sini^nilar tin- \n\v-

ments, hereditaments and ai)pnr1('nan(M's tlurc-

unto belonging, and in anywise aj)])('rtaiiiinir.

and the reversion and rcvcrsioiK, i-cinaindcr

and remainders, rents, issues and pntfits

j

thereof."

No affidavit setting forth that said iiior1ua<,n' was

I
made in good faith and without any design to liiiidri',

delay or defraud creditors was appendctl oi- annexed

to said mortgage.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. :)

is a chattel mortgage dated March 12. VXV2, duly

I executed, acknowledged and recorded, frnni said

. John (t. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National I^ank

as further security for the indebtedness and prnm-

issory note secured by the mortgage introduced as

Exhibit No. 2, mortgaging certain described live-

,
stock, machinery, tools, and merchandise upon tiie

' lands described in said real property mortgage and

: the crops growing or to be grown theiron. Saul

chattel mortgage did not describe [83] therein an.N

(d' the stock referred to in the Bill of C(»mplaint.

By instruments dated, respectively. Mairh "J...

1932 and April 23, 1932, duly executed, acknowl-

edged and delivered by The Reno National Bank,

said The Reno National Bank assigned to Recn

struction Finance Corporation the note and niort-

j^aires hereinabove described, and said av«<ii:ninents
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were duly introduced in evidence as Plaintiff's Ex-

hibits Nos. 4 and 5.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 6

is a certified copy of the Amended Articles of In-

corporation of Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light

& Power Company, duly executed on Jime 16, 1909,

and acknowledged and filed as required by law,

which Amended Articles of Incorporation provide:

''Know All Men By These Presents that we,

the undersigned, citizens of the United States

of America, desire to form a corporation under

and by virtue of the laws of the State of Nevada,

and do hereby associate ourselves together into

a body corporate and politic, and to become

incorporated for the transmission of the law-

ful business hereinafter set forth, and do hereby

make, execute, acknowledge, sign and adopt, in

duplicate, the following Articles of Incorpora-

tion, to wit

:

''First: The corporate name of our said

corpora- [84] tion is Humboldt Lovelock Irri-

gation Light & Power Company.

"Second: The object for which our said cor-

poration is formed and incorporated is:

"1. To engage in the business of furnishing

water for domestic and stock purposes and for

the irrigation of lands ; and the stockholders of

our said corporation shall always be entitled,

by virtue of being such stockholders, to a prefer-

ential use, over all other persons, natural or
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artificial, of all water owned or possessed by

our said corporation for the irrigation of lands

owned or possessed by such stockholders; all

water of our said corporation available for

such irrigation purposes to be divided each sea-

son among the stockholders according to the

respective rights of such stockholders, as here-

inafter more fully stated ; all water of our said

corporation i-emaining after supplying the de-

mand of the stockholders may be disposed of to

other parties desiring the same.

"To acquire by purchase, grant, gift, devise,

conveyance, condemnation, construction, loca-

tion, appropriation, lease, sublease, mortgage,

option, bond, assignment, transfer, agreement

or otherwise, and to own, hold, store, impoimd,

occupy, construct, develop, operate, maintain,

make and generate electricity, for power, hght

and heat, use, and to furnish, sell, dispose of

grant, bond, assign, exchange, lease, sub-lease,

mortgage, pledge, or otherwise dispose of, in

any lawful way or mamier for money, labor,

services or property, real, personal or mixed—

[85]

"a. Land, any and all interests in land,

buildings, reservoirs, dams, headgates, canals,

ditches, flumes, pipe lines, machinery, appara-

tus, power plants, power, electricity, transmis-

sion lines for transmitting electricity or elec-

trical ener.g>^ for light, heat and power, water

power, water, water rights, and any and all
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rights to the use of water, leases, sub-leases,

contracts, franchises, stock of this or other

corporations, privileges, money, securities, li-

censes, contracts or options for the securing or

disposing of any and all of the property, rights

or privileges, or any interest therein, above

enumerated

;

''b. Any and all real, personal or mixed

property whatever, and any and all interests

therein, which may be necessary or incidental

to enable our said corporation to carry on its

operations named in these Amended Articles.

"2. To pay cash or issue full paid assessable

stock in the payment for any and all property

of whatsoever nature or kind authorized to be

acquired, created, stored. ' nonndorl. held, de-

veloped, used and operated by onr said corpora-

tion.

''3. To otherwise do and transact any and

all business and to do any and all things with

any and all property it may acqiiire or control

as it sees fit ; and to do any and all other lawful

things in connection with and necessary or in-

cidental to enable our said corporation to carry

on its operations as named in these Amended

Articles.

"Third: The capital stock of our said cor-

poration shall be One Hundred and Forty-five

Thousand Nine Hundred and [86] fifty-three

($145,953.00) Dollars, and shall be divided into

One Hundred and Fortv-five Thonsand Nii^o
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Hundred and fifty-three (145,953) shares of

the par value of One ($1.00) Dollar each, and

said stock shall be full paid and assassable and

shall be divided into two classes to be desi^ated

as Class A stock and Class B stock; ownership

of stock of either Class shall entitle the holder

thereof to receive water for irrigation purposes

from said Company according to the respective

rights of such stockholders ; Class A stock shall

have certain preferential rights over Class B
stock, to wit: Class A ?tock shnll he entitled

to the preferential use of water from the Com-

pany of a maximum quantity of 10,000 acre feet

each year, to be (li^-.tribnted lU'o rata if re-

quested, for the irrigation of lands o^Mied or

irrigated by such stockholder, lyiug nuder or

irrigated by means of water used through either

the Irish American or Last Chance, Old Chan-

nel, Young or South West Bitch or ditches, sit-

uated in Loveloclc Valley, Xevada ;
that such

preferential use shall be expressly limited to

such lands lying under said named ditches, and

upon Class A stock being transferred to a.

transferee not a holder of Class A stock and

not entitled to exercise such prefereutial use,

Class B stock shall be issued to such transferee

in lieu of the Class A stock so transferred; that,

subject to such preferential right of Class A

stock. Class A. stock and Class B stock shall

be entitled and shall have the same rights to

the use of water from the Company each year,
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to be distri])uted [87] pro rata if requested, for

the irrigation of lands owned or irrigated by

such stockholder lying under or irrigated by

means of water used through any ditch or ditch

system in Lovelock Valley, Nevada; that the

price to be charged any stockholder of Class A
stock or Class B Stock for w^ater furnished for

irrigation purposes shall not exceed seventy-

five cents per acre foot per season; and this

limitation of a maxiiinim charge shall not be

increased by any amendment of these Articles,

or in any w^ay or manner whatsoever; provided,

however, that the limitation of said maximum

charge of seventy-five cents per acre foot per

v^eason shall not apply to any w^atei', in excess

of the pro rata share, received by any stock-

holder from the Company. The price to be

charged any stockholder of any class of stock

for water for irrigation purposes shall be fixed

by the Board of Directors, subject to the limi-

tations above designated, each season ; that the

total authorized issue of Class A stock shall be

limited to and shall not exceed One Hundred

Twenty Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-three

(120,953) shares, and the total authorized ag-

gregate issue of C^lass A stock and Class B
stock shall be limited to and shall not exceed

One Himdred Forty-five Thousand Nine Hun-

dred Fifty-three (145,953) shares.

''The original amoimt of subscribed capital

stock with which it commenced business was
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Two Thousand ($2,000) Dollars, the original

amount actually subscribed was Two Thousand

($2000) Dollars, and the original amount actu-

ally [88] subscribed was Two Thousand ($2000)

Dollars, and the original amoimt actually paid

up was One Thousand ($1000) Dollars. Under

this amendment all stock now outstanding and

amoimting to One Himdred Forty-five Thou-

sand Nine Hundred Fifty-three (145,953)

shares, of the par value of $1.00 per share fully

paid and assessable, shall be surrendered and

cancelled, and for each share of stock so sur-

rendered for cancellation there shall be issued

and delivered one share of Class A stock to

every stockholder except Lovelock Land & De-

velopment Company, and to said Lovelock Land

& Development Company for each of the twenty-

five thousand (25,000) shares held by it so sur-

rendered for cancellation, there shall be issued

and delivered one share of Class B stock.

''Fourth: The term of existence of our said

corporation shall be imlimited.

"Fifth: The affairs and management of

our said corporation are to be under the control

of a Board of Directors, said Board of Directors

to consist of five persons.

"Sixth: The Board of Directors of our said

corporation shall have power to do and perform

all acts not in conflict with the laws of the State

of Nevada, which our said corporation has

power to do under and by virtue of these
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Amended Articles of Incorporation and the

laws of the State of Nevada, and shall have

power to authorize the President and Secretary

of the corporation to make, execute, acknowl-

edge and deliver all docmiients of whatsoever

kind or nature, with [89] the seal of the cor-

poration affixed thereto, for the purpose of

carrying into effect all the powers and privi-

leges of the corporation as aforesaid. Said

Board of Directors shall likewise have power

to make and adopt from time to time such pru-

dential by-laws as they may deem proper for

the management and disposition of the stock

and business affairs of this corporation, not in-

consistent with the laws of this State and the

provisions of these Amended Articles of Incor-

poration, and prescribing the duties of officers,

artificers and servants that may be employed,

for the appointment of all officers, and for

carrying on all kinds of business within the

objects and purposes of this corporation; and

to fill vacancies which may exist in said Board

of Directors by reason of the death, resignation

or other incapacity of any director to serve;

said appointee or appointees to hold office until

the next election of directors.

"Seventh: The principal place or office of

business of our said corporation, within the

State of Nevada, shall be located in Lovelock

Mercantile Company's building on the south-

west corner of Fourth and C Streets in the

i
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Town of Lovelock, Comity of Humboldt, State

of Nevada.

"Our said corporation assumes to itself and

shall and does possess all the rights, powers,

privileges and franchises granted or conferred

upon corporations by the laws of the State of

Nevada, except as hereinabove limited."

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 7

is a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation

of Yoimg Ditch Company, duly executed on Au-

gust 14, 1915, and [90] acknowledged and filed as

required by law, which Articles of Incorporation

provide

:

''For the purpose of forming a coi^oration

under the laws of the State of Nevada, the un-

dersigned, whose names appear in full herein,

hereby certify and agree as follows

:

''Article I. The name of this corporation is

Yoimg Ditch Company.

"Article II. The location of \}\Q principal

place of business of the corporation in the State

of Nevada, is at the office of John G. Taylor,

at the Town of Lovelock, County of Humboldt,

State of Nevada, and all regular meeting of the

Stockholders, and all regular meetings of the

Directors, must be held at such office, but tlie

by-laws may provide, for the establishment of

branch offices elsewhere either in, or outside of

the State of Nevada, and provide for the hold-

ing of special meeting of the Directors, or ad-
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journed sessions of regular meetings at any

such office.

"Article III. The period of existence of this

corporation is unlimited.

"Article IV. In furtherance, and not in

limitation of the powers now, or hereafter con-

ferred upon corporations by the laws of the

State of Nevada, or any other State or Terri-

tory in which the corporation may do busi-

ness, the corporation shall generally have the

following powers, and is incorporated for the

following general purposes.

"(1) To acquire by, purchase, or otherwise,

to sell, lease, contract, exchange, or in any man-

ner secure lands for dam, ditch and reservoir

site, together with rights of way and ease- [91]

ments, and in any lawful manner dispose of

the same in whole or in part.

"(2) To acquire, own and in any lawful

manner dispose of water rights and pri^dleges,

of any and every kind, and w^hile the owner,

or entitled to the possession of any such rights,

to in any lawful manner control or handle the

same.

"(3) To issue, sell, or otherwise dispose of

bonds, debentures, promissory notes and other

evidences of indebtedness necessary^ to raise

money to conduct the business of the corpora-

tion ; and to secure the payment of any such

obligations, by properly executed mortgages,

deeds of trust, or other instruments in writinc^

necessary and proper for that purpose.
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''(4) To enter into, make and perforin con-

tracts of any kind, with any person, Hrin, cor-

poration or association, county, city, state, tei--

ritory, or government as fully to all intents and

purposes as natural persons might or could do.

"(5) Generally without limitation oi- re-

striction, to do any or all things herein set

forth, to the same extent as natural persons

might or could do, as principal, agent, oi- con-

tractor or otherwise, with all the powers con-

ferred by, or not in conflict with the laws of

the State of Nevada, or any other place where

the corporation may do business.

''Article V. The authorized capital stock of

the Corporation is Sixty Thousand ($60,000)

Dollars, divided into 6,000 shares, of the par

value of Ten ($10.) Dollars each, and the

amount of subscribed stock mth which it will

commence l)usiness is Three Thousand ($3,000)

Dollars. [92]

"Article VI. The names of the original sub-

scribers, the incorporators of this com]iany, to-

gether with the niunber of shares subscribed by

them respectively, are as follows:

John G. Taylor 100 shares

John Holmstrom 100

H. P. Kruse 100

Unsubscribed '^'^OO

Total 6,000 "
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"The Board of Directors shall have power

to accept payments, at pai', for any of the

capital stock of the corporation, in money or

property sold, to the corporation, taken at the

fair cash valne thereof, and any snch stock, so

issued, shall be fully paid, and so issued, but

shall nevertheless be subject to assessment as

herein provided. In the absence of actual

fraud, the judgment of the Board of Directors

as to the value of any such property shall be '

conclusive. 1

I

"Article VII. The members of the govern-

ing- Board shall be styled Directors, and shall

be five in number. They shall be elected in the

manner, and for the term prescribed by the by- >

laws and the Statutes of Nevada. All other offi-

cers shall be chosen by the Board of Directors

in the manner prescribed by the bylaws.

"Article YIII. The stockholders shall have

power to enact any and all by-laws necessary

for the government of the corporation, or the

conduct of the business of the corporation, not
,

inconsistent with these Articles of Incorpora-

tion, or with the laws of the State of Nevada, or

the United States, and to amend or repeal the

same at pleasure. [93]

"Article IX. The capital stock of this cor-

poration shall be subject to assessment, and

sale for nonpayment thereof, for the purposes

of paying the debts of, or purchasing property

for the corporation, in manner and form and
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to the extent prescribed by the by-laws and the

laws of the State of Nevada.

''Article X. The private property of tlie

stockholders or incorporators and stockholders

shall not be liable for the debts of the corpora-

tion."

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 8,

is a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation

of Old Channel Ditch Company, duly executed on

November 23, 1929, and acknowledged and filed as

required by law, which Articles of Incorporation

provide

:

"Know All Men By These Presents: That

we, the undersigned, who are citizens of tlie

State of Nevada, have this day voluntarily

associated ourselves together for the purpose

of forming a corporation under the laws of the

State of Nevada—and we hereby certify:—

"First: That the name of the said corpora-

tion shall be the 'Old Channel Ditch Conipanv.'

"Second: That the purpose and object for

which this Company is fonned is to purchase,

acquire, sell, convey, lease, mortgage and sren-

erally deal and operate in land, premises, water

and water rights, to build, rovf>frurf and main-

tain Dams, Reservoirs, Ditches, Flumes and

Acqneducts, for the storing, carrying and con-

ducting of water for irrigation and other pnr-

poses: to sell and lease water and the [94] nse

thereof for such purposes, and generally to deal

and operate in land, premises, water and water
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rights, and the acquiring and disposal of the

same, and the use thereof for irrigation and

other purposes :

''Third: That the place where the princip/e

business of said corporation is to be transacted

is in the town of Lovelock, Hiunboldt County,

State of Nevada:

''Fourth : That the term for which said Cor-

poration is to exist is Forty (40-years from and

after the date of this Incorporation:

"Fifth: That the nimiber of Trustees of

said Corporation shall be Seven (7), and that

tlie names and residences of the Trustees who

shall manage the affairs of the Corporation for

the first six months and shall serve until the

election and qualification of their successors

in said office are as follows to wit:

Name Office Residence

W. C. Pitt President Lovelock, Nevada,

John G. Taylor Vice-Pi*osideiit Lovelock, NcA^ada.

B. F. Lynip Secretary Lovelock, Nevada,

Hans C. Daiiim Treasurer Lovelock, Nevada,

Hiram Stoker Trustee Lovelock, Ncn-ada,

George Pitt Trustee Lovelock, Nevada,

J. T. Hauskius Trustee Lovelock, Nevada."

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 9

is a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation

of Union Canal Ditch Company, duly executed on

September 21, 1910, and acknowledged and filed as



vs, Leo F. ScJimitt 95

I required by law, which Articles of Incorporation

provide: [95]

I *'For the purpose of forming a corporation

I under the laws of the State of Nevada, the un-

dersigned, whose names appear in full herein,

hereby certify and agree as follows:

''Article I. The name of this corporation is

Union Canal Ditch Company.

"Article II. The location of the principal

place of business of the corporation in the State

of Nevada, is at the office of the First National

Bank, at the Town of Lovelock, County of Hum-

boldt, State of Nevada, and all regular meeting

of the stockholders, and all regular meetings

of the Directors, must be held at such office, but

the by-laws may provide, for the establishment

of branch offices elsewhere either in, or outside

the State of Nevada, and provide for the hold-

ing of special meeting odf the directors, or ad-

journed sessions of regular meetings at any

such office.

"Article III. The period of existence of this

corporation is unlimited.

"Article IV. In furtherance, and not iu lim-

itation of the powers now, or hereafter con-

ferred upon corporations by the laws of tlie

State of Nevada, or any other State or Terri-

tory in which the corporation may do lousi-

ness, the corporation shall generally have the

following powers, and is incorporated for the

following general purposes.
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**(1) To acquire by purchase, or otherwise,

to sell, lease, contract, exchange, or in any man-

ner secure lands for dam, ditch and reservoir

sites, together with rights of way and easements,

and in any lawful manner dispose of the same

in [96] whole or in part.

"(2) To acquire, own and in any lawful

manner dispose of water rights and privileges,

of any and every kind, and w^hile the owner,

or entitled to the possession of any such rights,

to in any lawful manner control or handle the

same.

''(3) To issue, sell, or otherwise dispose of

bonds, debentures, promissory notes and other

evidences of mdehtednaess necessary to raise

money to conduct the business of the corpora-

tion
;
and to secure the payment of any such

obligations, by properly executed mortgages,

deeds of trust, or other instruments in writ-

ing necessary and proper for that purpose.

''(4) To enter into, make and perform con-

tracts of any kind, with any person, firm, cor-

1

poration or association, county, city, state,

territory, or government as fully to all intents

and inirposes as natural persons might or could

do.

''(5) Generally without limitation or re-

striction, to do any or all things herein set forth,

to the same extent as natural persons might or

could do, as principal, agent, or contrnctor or
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otherwise, witli all the powers confeiTed by, or

not in conflict with the laws of the State of Ne-

vada, or any other place where the corporation

may do business.

'* Article V. The authorized capital stock of

the corporation is Eighty Thousand ($80,000.)

Dollars, divided into 8,000 shares, of the face or

par value of Ten ($10.) Dollars each, and the

amovmt of subscribed stock with which it will

commence business is Five Thousand ($5000)

Dollars. [97]

"Article VI. The names of the original sub-

scribers, the incorporators of this company,

together with the number of shares subscribed

by them respectively, are as follows:

Peter Anker 100 shares

Andrew Westfall - 100 "

Hans Jensen 100

Ing^^ert Hanson 100

Conrad Mortensen 100

Unsubscribed 7500

Total 8000 "

"The board of directors shall have power to

accept payment, at par, for any of the capital

stock of the corporation, in money paid or

property sold, to the corporation, taken at the

fair value thereof, and any such stock, so issued,

shall be fully paid, and so issued, but shall
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nevertheless be subject to assessment as herein

provided. In the absence of actual fraud, the

judgment of the board of directors as to the

value of any such property shall be conclusive.

'^ Article VII, The members of the govern-

ing board shall be styled directors, and shall be

five in number. They shall be elected in the

manner, and for the term prescribed by the by-

laws and the Statutes of Nevada. All other

officers shall be chosen by the board of direct-

ors in the manner prescribed by the })y-laws.

''Article A'lII. The stockholders shall have

power to enact any and all by-laws necessary

for the government of the corporation, or the

conduct of the business of the corporation, not

inconsistent with these articles of incorpora-

tion, or with the laws of the State of Nevada,

or the United States, and to amend or repeal

the same at pleasure. [98]

''Article IX. The capital stock of this cor-

poration shall be subject to assessment, and

sale for nonpayment thereof, for the purpose

of paying the debts of, or purchasing property

for the corporation, in manner and form, and to

the extent prescribed by the by-laws and the

laws of the State of Nevada.

"Article X. The private property of the

stockholders or incorporators and stockholders

shall not be liable for the debts of the corpora-

tion." [99]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 10

is a certified copy of a decree dated October 20,

1931, rendered by the Sixth Judicial District Court

of the State of Nevada, in and for the Coimty of

Humboldt, in Case No. 2804, entitled ^'In the Mat-

I ter of the Determination of the Relative Rights of

' Claimants and Appropriators of the Waters of the

i Humboldt River Stream System and Its Tribu-

taries," wherein the rights of claimants or appro-

priators of the waters of the Humboldt River

Stream System were determined by said court,

which decree, so far as here involved, determines:

''That the names of claimants or appropri-

ators or successors of the waters of the Hmn-

boldt River stream system and its tributaries

diverting waters from said Humboldt River

stream system for beneficial use, the source of

water supply, the means by which the water is

secured from the source and applied to bene-

ficial use, the year of priority, the cultured

acreage of harvest crop, meadow pasture and

diversified pasture, the legal subdivisions, sec-

tion, township and range, length of season and

duty of water for each of said claimants or ap-

propriators is hereby adjudged and decreed as

follows, to wit:" (Here are listed the respec-

tive priorities and rights of the various par-

ties, including certain rights and priorities ap-

purienant to the lands described in the com-

plaint herein, of which the following is typical

but not exclusive: [100]
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Cnlture Acres Location Doty of Water

Mea- DiTer-

dow sified Length

Pri- Har- Pas- Pas- Subdi- of Sea- Acre

orlty Test tare ture vision Sec, Tp. R. son CF.S. Feet

Claimant—JOHN G. TAYLOR
Source—Humboldt River.

Ditch—Old Channel in conjunction

with Young Ditch.

1888* 20.00 „ NI/2 3 27 31 3-15- 9-15 .163 60.00

1888* 60.00 NI/2 3 27 31 3-15- 9-15 .488 180.00

1888* 190.00 81/2 3 27 31 3-15- 9-15 1.545 570.00

1888* 66.10 N1/2 3 27 31 3-15- 9-15 .537 198.30

1888* 388.75
"

10 27 31 3-15- 9-15 3.159 1166.25

•As of May.

Source—Humboldt River.

Ditch—Irish-American, in conjunction

with Union Canal.

1887 136.05 SW14 22 27 31 3-15- 9-15 1.106 408.15)

Neither the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light

& Power Company, Yoimg Ditch Company, Union

Canal Ditch Company, nor Old Channel Ditch

Company are by said decree found or determined

to have rights in or to the waters of said Humboldt

River stream system, except that Union Canal Ditch

Company was found to have certain rights in re-

spect of lands not here involved, which rights are

those referred to in the testimony of A. Jahn.

Said decree further provides: [101]

'*It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and De-

creed that except such persons as may have

acquired rights to the use of the water of Hum-

boldt River stream svstem and its tributaries
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granted under applications to the State Engi-

neer under and by virtue of the provisions of

the statute, no person other than the parties

named herein have or claim any interest in or

to said water or in or to the use of said water

or any part thereof.

"That the order of the rights of the respective

appropriators of the waters of said stream and

its tributaries, and in which order they are

entitled to divert and use the said water, shall

be and is according to the date of the relative

priority of the right as herein set forth and

determined, and the first in order of time ac-

cording to the date of relative priority shall be

and is the first in order of right, and so on,

down to the date of the latest priority, and those

having prior rights are entitled to divert and

use the waters of said stream and its tributaries

when necessary for the beneficial use in con-

nection with the irrigation of their respective

lands, or otber useful and beneficial purposes

for which they are decreed a right of use, at all

times and against those having subsequent

rights, without let or hindrance, and whenever

the water is not required hy the appropriator

having a prior right to its use for the purpose

for which said water was appropriated, he must

and shall permit it to flow down in the natural

channel of the stream as it was wont to flow m

its natural course, without hindrance or diver-

sion thereof, and those having subsequent ri-hts
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are entitled to tlie use of such water and to

divert the same to [102] the extent of their

rights of appropriations, according to the order

of their priority rights; and at all times the

waters diverted shall be beneficially, econom-

ically and reasonably used without waste by

those having a right to do so by reason of the

priority of their rights.

"That the rights of appropriation hereby

confirmed are appurtenant to the lands herein

described for irrigation purposes, and the right

of use of the waters of said stream and its trib-

utaries by virtue of such T'ights of appropria-

tion are limited and confined to the irrigation

of the lands described herein to the extent of

said lands as herein set forth, and the priorities

herein confirmed confer no right of use of the

waters of said stream, and its tributaries, on the

lands other than those specified tracts to which

such rights of appropriation are herein set forth

as appurtenant. The right of a water user to

change the place of use of a vested water right,

in the manner, now or hereafter, pro^dded or

permitted by law shall not be prohibited or af-

fected by this decree." [103]

WILLIAM WOODBURN,

a ^^tness called on behalf of plaintiff, testified

:

I am an attorney at law, and in 1932 represented

The Reno National Bank in connection with a mort-
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(Testimony of William Woodburn.)

gage taken by that bank from John G. Taylor, Inc.

I was also at that time a director of the bank.

Prior to the execution of the mortgage I had a

conversation Avith Mr. Taylor, president of John G.

Taylor, Inc., at which Mr. Randolph, secretary of

that company, was also present. It was made plain

to Mr. Taylor, and he expressed himself as agree-

able, that all property of every kind, nature and

description owned by John G. Taylor, Inc. was in-

tended to be given to the bank as security for the

uote secured by said mortgage. I do not recall

whethe]" anything was specifically said alioiit the

water rights incident to or appurt(^nnnt to the

lands. I was familiar in a general way with the

property owned by Mr. Taylor and knew that it

was irrigated. It was the intention of both parties

to the transaction that everything that John G.

Taylor, Inc. owned was intended to go as security

for the note.

ALLARD A. CAT.KINS,

a witness called on behalf of plaintiff, testified:

I am Manager of the San FraiicisfM^ Loan Agency

of Reconstruction Finance Corporation, and have

been since [104] June 1, 1932. I was Assistant

Manager from the opening of that agency from

about February 8, 1932, until T became Manager.

I had charge of the transactions with The Reno
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National Bank at all times, both before and after

becoming Manager.

I am familiar with the $700,000 note of John G.

Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National Bank and the

mortgages securing the same. The Reconstruction

Finance Corporation advanced to The Reno Na-

tional Bank $1,120,000 on April 26 and April 27,

1932, secured in part by assignment of the John G.

Taylor, Inc. note and mortgages. Prior to such ad-

vances being made I had discussions with Mr.

Sheehan, vice-president of The Reno National Bank,

w\th respect of the properties covered by said

mortgages. These transactions occurred between

February 10 and March 4, 1932. I was told by Mr.

Sheehan that all the property belongin<r to John G.

Taylor, Inc. was covered by said mortgages. I also

received a copy of a statement as of December 31,

1931, of John G. Taylor, Inc., certified by Mr. Wil-

cox, of The Reno National Bank, which statement

lists, among other properties, 3,000 acres of land

at Lovelock, Pershing County, Nevada, valued at

$50 per acre, and contains the statement with refer-

ence thereto that "Each of these ranches are

equipped with good dw^ellings, bunk houses, barns,

sheds, corrals, blacksmith shops and plenty of

water."

The subject of these properties was discussed in

considerable detail, as there was not time for the

[105] Reconstruction Finance Corporation to have

an appraisal of the property made. The Lovelock
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i
properties were pointed out as the most desirable

properties held by John G. Taylor, Inc. largely be-

cause of the quantity of ha}- and grain raised

I thereon, their use as winter feeding ground, par-

; ticularly for sheep, and there were detailed state-

I
ments as to water, volunteered by Mr. Sheehan or

,

made in response to my questions.

No mention was made in these discussions of any

stock of any companies, but the Lovelock properties

were named as being of particular value because of

the water they had, and the source of water was

named as the reservoir built by Mr. Pitt and Mr.

Taylor, and of which Mr. Taylor o\Yned the major

l)art. The land would always be fully watered, and

that fact was stressed because we knew the lan.d

without the water was worth nothing. On behalf of

Reconstruction Finance Corporation I would not

have approved the loan if I had beheved that no

water rights went wdth the land.

No mention of any water stocks was made m
any of my discussions with Mr. Sheehan, and I

made no request for hypothecation of any shares of

any stocks. Mr. Sheehan made no such demand or

request in my presence. I did not demand any such

pledge because I didn't know of the existence of

such stocks and had never heard of those companies,

hut I had heard of the water rights. [106]

Prior to disbursement by Reconstruction Finance

Corporation of the moneys referred to no investi-
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gation had been made as to whether John G. Taylor

was the owner of stocks in any of the w^ater com-

panies here involved. I did not know of the organ-

ization of such water companies and was not told

of their existence by Mr. Sheehan. I first heard

of their existence late in 1933, or early in 1934, in

connection with other litigation instituted by the

Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company approximately one year after acceptance

of the assignment of the mortgages of John G.

Taylor, Inc. If I had known of the existence of the

welter companies I would have insisted on hypothe-

cation of their shares in order to preclude any

doubts and because we felt that we ought to have

everything and every scrap of paper owned by

John G. Taylor affecting the land, without evalu-

ating it.

JOHN V. MUELLER,

a witness called on behalf of plaintiff, testified:

I reside at Reno, Nevada, and am an engineer by

profession. I am familiar with lands in Lovelock

Valley, and particularly those which belong to John

G. Taylor and John G. Taylor, Inc., described in

the complaint herein and in the deeds and mort-

gages in evidence herein (Exhibits 1 and 2). Those

lands are to some extent irrigated, the source being

the Humboldt River. Those lands are irrigated

through the Irivsh American, the Sonth West, Young,

and Old [107] Channel ditches.
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The lands referred to are also described in Cer-

tificates 2130 and 2131 issued by the State Engineer

of Nevada September 18, 1935, for the appropria-

tion of water, certified copies of which certificates

were introduced in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibits

11 and 12, and which respectively read as follows:

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 11

"Application No. 1098 Certificate Eecord

No. 2130 Book 7 Page 2130

The State of Nevada

Certificate of Appropriation of Water

"Whereas, W. C. Pitt for H. L. I. L. & P.

Company has presented to the State Engineer

of the State of Nevada, Proof of Application

of Water to Beneficial Use, from Humboldt

River through H. L. 1. L. & P. Co. canal and

Reservoirs No's 1 & 2 for Irrigation stock-

watering and domestic purposes. The point of

diversion of water from the source is as fol-

lows: Approximately the center of the NW%
of Section 29, T. 33 N., R. 35 E., M. D. B. & M.

situated in Pershing County, State of Nevada.

'^Now Know Ye, That the State Engineer,

under the provisions of Section 29, Chapter 18,

Statutes of 1907 has determined the date,

source, purpose and amount of such appropri-

ation, together with the place to which such

water is appurtenant, as follows:
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Name of appropriator—Humboldt-Lovelock

Irrigation, Light & Power Co.

Post-office address—Lovelock, Nevada.

Amount of appropriation

—

°° 300 c.f.s. or

20,200 acre feet per annum of flood waters.

Period of use, from March 15th to Septem-

ber 15th of each year. [108]

"Date of priority of appropriation, August

21, 1908.

Description of works of diversion and stor-

age: Water is diverted by means of concrete

dam and headgates and conveyed through 121/2

miles of feeder canal to Reservoir No. 1 with

capacity of 17,700 acre feet and Reservoir No. 2

with a capacity of 2500 acre feet. Water from

the reservoirs is released through control gates

at the reservoirs into the main channel of the

Humboldt River and used for irrigation through

the Young, Old Channel, Lovelock Land and

Development Co., Irish-American and South

West ditches.

The stored waters as granted by this cer-

tificate are to be used only to supply any de-

ficiency in the irrigation of vested rights lands

herein listed as irrigated by direct diversion

from the Humboldt River and in no event shall

such combined use exceed any duty of water

decreed to such lands.

(See attached supplemental sheet for de-

scription of land to which water is appurte-

nant.)
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''The right to water hereby determined is

limited to the amount which can be beneficially

used, not to exceed the amount above specified,

and the use is restricted to the place where

acquired and to the purpose for which acquired.

In Testimony Whereof, I Alfred Merritt

Smith, State Engineer of Nevada, have here-

unto set my hand and the seal of my office,

this 18th day of September, A. D. 1935.

Recorded Sept. 21, 1935, Bk. #1, Page 26.

Pershing County Records.

[Seal] ALFRED MERRITT SMITH
State Engineer." [109]

(Supplemental sheet attached to

Certificate No. 2130)

"Description of vested right lands to which

water through Old Channel Dam and Ditch

System is appurtenant:

Portions of Sections 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15,

16, 21, 22, 23, 24, and 27 of T. 27 N., R. 31 E.,

M. D. B. & M., and Section 18, T. 27 N., R. 32

E., M. D. B. & M.

''Description of vested right lands to which

water through Young Ditch System is appur-

tenant :

Portions of Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 10, U, 12, of

T. 27 N., R. 31 E., M. D. B. & M.; Section 34,

T. 28 N.i R. 31 E.', M. D. B. & M.; Sections 6

and 7, T. 27 N., R. 32 E., M. D. B. & M.; and

Sections 30 and 31 of T. 28 N., R 32 E., M. D.

B. & M.
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''Description of vested right lands to which

water tlirough the Southwest Ditch is appur-

tenant :

Portions of Sections 27 and 28 of T. 27 N.,

R. 31 E., M. D. B. & M.

"Description of vested right lands to which

water through Irish-American Ditch is ap-

purtenant :

Portions of Sections 21, 22, 27, 28, 29, 30 and

31 of T. 27 N., R. 31 E., M. D. B. & M. ; and

Section 6 of T. 26 N., R. 31 E., M. D. B. & M.

"Description of vested right lands to which

water tlirough Lovelock Land and Development

Company 's Ditch System is appurtenant

:

Portions of Sections 7, 8, and 16, T. 25 N.,

R. 31 E., M. D. B. & M. ; and Section 12, T. 25

N., R. 30 E., M. D. B. & M."

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NO. 12

"Application No. 1948 Certificate Record

No. 2131 Book 7 Page 2131

The State of Nevada

Certificate of Appropriation of Water

"Whereas, Geo. C. Stoker, Pres., H. L. I. L.

& P. Co. has [110] "presented to the State

Engineer of the State of Nevada Proof of Ap-

plication of Water to Beneficial Use, from

Humboldt River through H. L. I. L. & P. Co.
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canal and reservoirs No's 1 & 2 for Iirigation

purposes. The point of diversion of watei- from

the source is as follows: Approximately the

center of the NWJ/4 of Section 29, T. 33 N.,

R. 35 E., M. D. B. & M. situated in Pershing

County, State of Nevada.

''Now Know Ye, That the State Kngineer,

under the provisions of Section 29, Chapter 18,

Statutes of 1907 has determined the date,

source, purpose and amount of such appropri-

ation, together with the place to which such

water is appurtenant, as follows:

Name of appropriator—Humboldt-IiOvelock

Irrigation, Light & Power Co.

Post-office address—Lovelock, Nevada.

Amount of appropriation

—

°° 450 c.f.s. or

29,570 acre feet per annum of flood waters.

Period of use, from March 15th to September

15th of each year.

Date of priority of appropriation—Febniary

10, 1911.

"Description of °°Note: This certificate cov-

ers additional and supplementary rights to

storage of flood and unappropriated waters of

the Humboldt River to those storage rights

granted under Certificate No. 2130 issued under

permit No. 1098. This additional storage has

been created by enlargement of feeder canal

and by raising levees of reservoirs No's 1 & 2

so as to provide maximum storage capacities
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of 28,970 acre feet and 20,800 acre feet respec-

tively for said reservoirs. The stored waters

under this certificate are to be used only [111]

to suj)ply any deficiency in the existing water

rights on lands irrigated by direct diversion

from the Humboldt River as described on sup-

plemental sheet and in no event shall such com-

bined use exceed the duty specified for such

lands

:

(Sve supi)lemental sheets for description of

huid to which water is appurtenant.)

"The right to water hei'eby determined is

limited to the amount which can be beneficially

used, not to exceed the amount above specified,

and the use is restricted to the place where

acquired and to the purpose for which acquired.

"In Testimony Whereof, I Alfred Merritt

Smith, State Engineer of Nevada, have here-

unto set my hand and the seal of my office, this

18th day of September, A. D. 1935.

[Seal] ALFRED MERRITT SMITH
State Engineer."

"Recorded Sept. 21, 1935, Bk. #1, Page 78.

Pershing Count}^ Records. Water Certificates.
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(Supplemental sheets attached to

Certificate No. 2131)

"Description of Land to Which Water Is Appurtenant

"Township Range Sec. SobdiTiaioB Acfm

25 N. 30 E. 11 620.00

12 633.40

25 N. 31 E. 2 WI/2 SWI/4 70.00

4 WI/2 NE14 76.35

4 WI/2, WI/2 SEV4 3GG.00

6 NVa NE14, SEI/4 NE1/4 GO.OO

7 NE14, NWI/4 NWy4, SV2

NWy4, S1/2 588.25

7 NEy4 NWI/4 •'^9.25

8 NEI/4 1-^0.00

8 Nwy4 i-^^--''

8 Sy2 305.00

9 m/2 200.00

10 wy> NEy4 '(^-^0

16 NEiA, Nwy4 SEy, NEy4 swy4,

sEy2 swy4 220.00

[Hi]
IfiO.OO

611.30

155.00

16 NWy4
18

19 NEy4

19 Nwy4, sy2
^^^-^^

20 SEys NEy4, Nwy4, Nys sy, 3bo.oo

26 N. 31 E. 12 Ny, NEy4 ^^-^

12 sy2 NEy4 ««-^^

12 Ny2 sEy4
^^-^2

12 sy2 sEy4
^^-^^^

12 wy2 2 .^.

20 Ey2 SEy4 '^'^

20 wy2 sEy4, Ey2 swy4 ^^-^-^o

2^ wy2 jggso
21 wy2 Ey2

22 Nyo, swy4, wy2 sEy4,

NEy4 sEy4 f6.f
28 NEy4, Ny2 sEy4

i«*-'^
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ship Range

31 E.

31 E.

Sec. SnbdiTisioB Acre*

28 SEI/2 SEI4 69.08

29 SWI/4 NEI/4, EI/2 NWiA 79.40

29 SEI/4 SEI/4 11.40

30 E1/2 NEy4, NEi/4 SEy4 30.00

32 E1/2 271.30

32 SW1/4 135.25

33 E1/2 NEy4 72.40

33 wy2 NEy4 69.60

33 Ey2 NWi^ 55.05

33 wy2 Nwy4 66.40

34 Ny, 225.00

34 sy, Ny, 45.00

34 SEy4 141.75

34 swyi 148.70

35 syo NEy4, SEy4 172.68

35 syg Nwy4, swy4 161.60

1 Ey2 EVo 71.55

1 wy2 Ey2 67.15

1 Ey2 wy2 63.75

1 \vy2 wyo 20.60

2 sy,, sy2 Ny2 253.30

3 336.10

4 Ey> 101.05

9 Ey2, Ey, WY2 340.95

10 Ny,, SWy4 N. of 0. C. Ditch 388.75

10 Ey2 SEy4 74.00

10 wi/2 SEy4 70.95

10 swy4 s. of 0. c. Ditch 67.00

]1 Ny, NEy4 19.00

11 wy2, Nyo SE14 295.51

[113]

n sy2 SEy4

1. -i

75.65

12 NEy4 147.51

12 Ny NW14 66.85

12 SEy4 155.00

12 Ey2 swy4 74.30

12 wy2 swy4 74.30
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Range See. SubdivUioB Arr*.

13 NEI/4 E. of Railroad 55.50

13 NEy4 W. of Ny. Nwy, I4:{,r)0

13 E1/2 SWV4 W. of
"

sy, Nwy4 y'j.r)0

13 EI/2 S\Vi/4 E. of
"

SEV4 152.98

13 wy^ SWV4 f.6.50

14 E14 NEV4 t:}.:};')

14 wy2 NEy4, Nwy4 224.70

14 sy2 27:{.r.r.

15 572.25

16 Ey,, Ey, wy. 30:].44

21 NEy^, eMj Nwy4, NVs SEy4,

SEy4 SEy4 lilO.'t.')

22 NEy4 145.05

22 Nwyt 153.00

22 SEy4 94.58

22 swy4 13G.05

23 NEyi, Nwy4 SEy4 w . of

Railroad 115.35

23 NW14 127.50

23 swy^ 1.S7.45

24 NWy4 E. of Railroad 9;M3

24 NW14 NWi/4 W. of Railroad 2.75

26 N1/2 Nwy4 w. of
< 1 :V2.H9

27 wy, NEy., Nwy4 179.70

27 wy2 sEy4 50.00

27 swy4 136.40

28 Eyo NEy4 73.14

28 Wi/s NEy4 70.75

28 NWy4 E. of Slouch 90.00

28 mYVi w. of " 57.76

28 sys
217.40

29 NEy4, sy2 Nwy4, swy4 238.95

29 sEy4 133.95

30 Ey2 sEy; 39.00

31 Ey2 NEy4 33.45

32 NEy> NEy4 51.20

32 NWiA, Ny2 swy4 80.92

127.80
33 Nwy4
35 Ey2, Ey2 wy2 364.34

369.60
36
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Township Range See. Sabdirision Acres

27 N. 32 E. 6

7

7

Ei/o, E1/2 of E1/2

NWI/4

Wl/o SEI4

of W1/2 179.50

150.95

65.40

7 SWI/4 W. of Railroad 54.63

18 E1/2 NWI/4 81.13

18 NWI/4 NWVi 35.00

18 SW14 NW1/4 35.60

18 NWI/4 SWI/4 35.00

28 N. 31 E. 33

34

EVa SEy4
NEI/4, SI/2

26.00

411.02

28 N. 32 E. 31 SEI/4

Total

155.00

18,340.44"

[114]

The so-called Taylor lands described in said cer-

tificates aggTegate a little over 2,000 acres. I have

been familiar with that property for over twenty

years. Alfalfa and grain are raised on that prop-

erty. I have made particular examination of this

property from time to time and am acquainted with

agricultural conditions generally in the State of

Nevada. Without irrigation these lands would be

valuable only for grazing land and worth from $1.25

to $2.50 per acre. As irrigated lands they are worth

from $50 to $100 per acre. These answers would

apply both as to the year 1932 and as of the present

time.

I am familiar with the decree adjudicating water

rights (Exhibit 10), and it is my opinion that with-

out the use of the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation

Light & Power Company facilities the Taylor lands,

relying only on the natural flow of the Humboldt
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River, would not receive a sufficient amount of

water to produce crops, and that the value of tlio

lands would be approximately half of what it is

with the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light &

Power Company reservoir rights.

The Taylor lands do not actually adjoin the Hum-

boldt River. Water is conveyed to those lands

through the Young, Old Channel, South West, and

Irish American, also known as Last Chance, ditches.

During the twenty years I have been familiar with

that property it has not received irrigation water

other than through these ditches.

The first ditch that irrigates lands in the Love-

lock Valley and any of the John G. Taylor lands,

is the Young Ditch. Water is diverted into the

Young Ditch by means of a dam in the Humboldt

River. The next point of diversion is what is com-

monly known as the Old [115] Chamiel Dam into a

ditch which, for a distance, carries the Old Chan-

nel Ditch water, the South West Ditch water, and

the Union Canal w^ater. The Old Chamiel Ditch

leaves this common diversion above the South West

Ditch and Avhere the South West Ditch takes off

and continues on is known as the Union Canal and

takes care of the Union Canal water. A\nien water

from the Humboldt from an upper reservoir, is

turned into the river at the opening of the reservoir,

it is carried down the Hmnboldt River and distrib-

uted to the Young Ditch, Old Channel, South West

and Irish-Americaji. The Irish-American has a
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separate dam in the Humboldt channel, the first one

below the Old Channel dam.

The State Engineer has regulated and directed

the diversion of water into these ditches for the past

six or eight years. The water when taken through

these ditches and on to the Taylor lands is devoted

to beneficial use thereon and has been since my
acquaintance with the property.

I know that the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation

Light & T\)wer Company, Young Ditch Company

and Old Cliannel Ditcli Company are corporations.

I know that the Irish-American Ditch is not incor-

porated. It is my opinion that the Humboldt Love-

lock Irrigation Light & Power Company have water

rights which are put to beneficial use on the Taylor

lands, which are those evidenced by Certificates

2130 and 2131. The Young Ditch Company and Old

Channel Ditch Company [116] merely own ditches

and, so far as I know, have no water rights. Their

ditches ai'e used for the transfer and conveyance

of water to the Taylor lands, and there is no other

means for irrigation of those lands except through

those ditches. As representative of the State En-

gineer I participated in the division of water

through these ditches, and in the course of such

v\ ork I would confer with some individual desig-

nated as in charge of the distribution in the ditches

by these companies. I dealt only with these parties

in diverting water to the ditches, and after it

reached the ditches I paid no attention to it. The
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ionly basis I had to distribute water was in accord-

ance with the determination of the State Engineer

I

prior to the entry of the so-called Bartlett decree.

The State Engineer's order of determination as-

: signed the water not to the ditch companies but to

the individual property owners, and in allowing

,
wa,ter to be diverted I based my decision on the

!

finding as to the rights of such individuals.

In distributing water pursuant to the State

, Engineer's order and determination I determined

the amoimt and priority of the individual land

' owners served by the ditches and allotted water in

accordance therewith, and some individual ap-

pointed by the ditch companies attended to actual

distribution among the users. The amount allotted

to the respective ditches was determined by the de-

termination of the rights of individuals owning

property served thereby. In carrying out my dutu's

I I treated the ditch companies as agencies and instru-

i mentalities through which [117] the individual land

I owners received the water to which they were en-

titled.

ARCHIE MILLER,

a witness called on behalf of plaintiff, testified:

I am Supervising Water Conmiissioner of tlie

: Humboldt River and have held that position about

' six years. My duties are to superintend the distri-
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bution of the water from the Humboldt River to

lands in the Lovelock Valley. My office is subordin-

r.te to that of the State Engineer.

Prior to 1930 we were guided by the order and

determination (^f the State Engineer determining

the rights and priorities of appropriators in the

district. Since 1930 we have operated under the so-

called Bartlett decree (Exhibit 10).

I am familiar with the various companies prev-

iously mentioned. In making allocations of water

I have not had occasion to interview the executives

of those companies. Prior to 1928 the water commis-

sioner in Lovelock Valley, in addition to the duty

of diverting water from the river into the ditches,

also handled the reservoir water, and there was

quite a bit of complaint. In 1928 the reservoir com-

pany employed their own man and the State En-

gineer had nothing to do with the reservoir water

other than to see that it got into the ditch. The State

Engineer's office made no effort to interfere with

the representative of the Humboldt Lovelock Irri-

gation Light & Power Company. [118]

I had no direct connections with the other ditch

companies. Indirectly I did, in that the total quan-

tity which these ditches were entitled to was ascer-

tained and turned into the ditches for distribution

by the ditch companies' representatives.

I know that the allocation of water was made by

the State Engineer and later, by the decree, was to

the individual property owners, and that is what we
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tried to follow, I determined from the order or de-

cree how much water had been appropriated by the

land ow^ners served by a particular ditch and I al-

lowed to go into the ditch the water to which the

persons owning land along the ditch were entitled.

It would have been impossible to provide water

to these lands pursuant to the decree or order

without use of the ditches owned by these corpo-

rations.

A. JAHN,

a witness called on behalf of plaintiff, testified

:

I am Secretary-Treasurer of Union Canal Ditch

Company, and have been since 1926. That company

for nmny years has carried water from the Hum-

boldt River to lands in the Lovelock Valley, in-

cluding the lands formerly owned by John G.

Taylor. The company was incorporated in 1910. Its

incorporators w^ere owners of lauds served by its

canal. The canal was in existence prior to inc()r])0-

ration of the company. [119]

The decree establishing water rights (Exhibit 10)

shows certain rights to the Union Canal as appni-te-

nant to the described lands. The company does not

own lands and makes no claim to the water as

against the land owner.

John G. Taylor is shown as the holder of record

of 150 shares of the company's stock, and has been

since 1913.

The work of the company is keeping the ditch in
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repair and distributing water to the several owners

after it is put in the ditch by the State Engineer. It

derives its entire revenue by assessment, which is

used to pay for the maintenance of the ditch. Land

owners are entitled to the use of the ditch propor-

tionately to the amount of stock held by them. Its

ditch has been used to convey w^ater from the Hum-

boldt River to the Taylor lands, where it is placed

to beneficial use.

8,000 shares of the company's stock were issued

for cash, sold to the land owners along the ditch at

par, and the money used to build the canal. The

company never issued any stock for property.

The form of stock certificates used by the com-

pany is as follows:

''Location of Principal Office: Lovelock,

Nevada.

Resident Agent: PETER ANKER
Incorporated Under the Laws of

State of Nevada.

No. Shares

Union Canal Ditch Company [120]

''Capital Stock $80,000.00 8000 Shares,

Par Value $10.00 Each

Fully Paid Up and Subject to Assessments
'

' This Certifies that

is the owner of Shares of the

Capital Stock of

Union Canal Ditch Company

transferable only on the books of the Corpora-
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tioii by the holder hereof in person or by Allor-

ney upon surrender of this Cei-tificatc |)i-()i)('rly

endorsed.

In Witness Whereof, the said Coiporatioii

has caused this Certificate to be si^ied by its

duly authorized officers and to ho scaled willi

the Seal of the Corporation this day of

, A. D. 19

[Seal]

President Secretary

Shares $10.00 Each"

I have made a nunibci- of ti-ausfcrs of certificates

to Federal Farm Land Bank, as pledgee. UndcM- my

practice I would not issue a new certificate except

to a land owner along the ditch without authority

of the board of directors, although there is no such

limitation in the articles or by-laws of the coi-porn-

tion. '{'he company derives no revenue from its

operiitions, but the users of the ditch have paid

about 50 cents an acre per year for thv past twelve

or fifteen years for the operation and maintenance

thereof, and were entitled to the benefit of the use of

the ditch to convey water to their lands. 'Phis is

done by assessment. The amomit has varied in dif-

ferent years. Aside from this source there iwv no

other revenues. In a number of [121] cases certifi-

cates wcM-e transferred fn the Federal Land "Bank,

as jtled.iiee. Later, when they had foreclosed. n(nv

certificates to the Bank, as owner, were issu(^d.
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The transfers to the Federal Land Bank, as

pledgee, were made at the bank's request when they

had a mortgage on the land. If they acquired title

to the land, then the certificates would be trans-

ferred to them as owniers. All of the stockholders of

the company own lands supplied by water through

the ditches of the company, with the exception of

John 0. Taylor. In his case water is carried

through the company's ditch to the lands described

in the decree which he then owned. The moneys re-

ceived for maintenance of the ditch have averaged

50 cents per acre over a number of years. These as-

sessments have been imposed in different amounts

as (]ermf>d necessary by the directors. All the money

received by the company was through such assess-

ments at a certain rate per share. The number of

shares ownied was in proportion to the number of

acres owned by these parties. The company has

never been engaged in any business except the

maintenance of its canal and the transmission of

waters. Its only expenses have been in connection

with such ditches, and no stock has been sold to

persons not owning lands served by the ditch.

John G. Taylor acquired 150 shares in 1913, be-

fore I was a director. He was not a land owner at

that time. That stock was originally connected watli

lands served by the Union Canal owned by a man

named Lauritzen, who bought the land Avith the

stock and transferred it to W. C. Noteware, to

whom Certificate No. 63 for 150 shares was issued
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April -(i. 1!>1:;. Ndtcw.nv t ransfcrn'd to Tnylor, to

wliorii Certificate Nn. (i,') was issued Man-h IG. 1914.

'I'liei-e is iiotliiiiLT in till' articles or hy-laws of the

[12'2] e()nij)an> i^v in it.s stock certiticatcs limiting

the nse of tlie ditch in ])i-n|)ortiou to tlic amount of

stock held, 'riirrc has nc\cj- heen any casi* whrre

stock has p>ne deliiKjUent for ixtn-paymciit of om-

s<*ssinent or the neccssitx' nf taking any steps l»y

reason of such non-jtaynicnt. Sin<*e tlie issiianrt* of

the li)0 sliares to John (i. T.iylo!- the canal has Uth

I
used foi- the t i-;nisniission of water to the lands

owned li\' him at the time of issuance.

11. W. KM)nKl?TS()N.

a witness called on hehalT of |)lMintifT. testifie<l:

I a.m Seci-etary (d" the Old Channel Ditch Com-

pany, and have heen for foiir years. Tins ditch is

\\<vi\ to transmit water fj-oni the IhimhoMt Rivrr

to lands horderin^ on the ditch, hoth natural tlt.w

and storage water. Water has heen divertnl thrr»ugh

the ditch to the lands formerly owned hy .lolui H.

Taxloi-, and ai'plied to henefi<'ial us»' thereon.

The .^to(d<holdeis of the company Jill own lands

served hy water tran-nntted throuu:!) the ditch. ThiH

ha< heen tine throuirhout my acpiaintance with the

company. Its s..le hnsiness i> the maintenance and

operation .d" the <lit(di, and it owns no property. The

expen.v;(.s of maintenanc- and opei-ati<»n an* paid hy

assessment on the st<»ckholders.
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I am also secretary of Humboldt Lovelock Irri-

gation Light & Power Company. It maintains a

dam, impounding- waters whicb are, when needed,

discharged into the river and taken [123] out by

the ditches to which reference has been made. Cer- '

tain of such water is transmitted to the lands

formerly owned by Taylor and put to beneficial use

thereon. Taylor has been a stockholder of the com-

pany since its incorporation, holding about 37,000

shares, and the W. C. Pitt interests now hold about i

28,000 shares, (^ertain transfers have been made,
j

when Pitt sold portions of his ranch and with the

land transferred shares of stock. After such trans-

fer the water was put to })eneficial use on the lands

so transferred. Both of these interests hold Class A
stock, and the remainder of that class of stock is

also held by land owners served with water from

the company's facilities. No water has been fur-

nished to Class B stockholders since my connection

with the company.

Certificates have been issued to the Federal Land

Bank, as pledgee, also to the First National Bank of

Reno, Richard Kirman and C. R. Lewis, the latter

as pledgees of Mr. Pitt. These last named parties

now own the Pitt ranch, having foreclosed on it.

The mortgage was foreclosed about 1932, and the

stock transferred to these people as owners. I know

of only one case where stock was transferred to a

party not a land owner, and that is 990 shares of '

Class B stock held by one E. E. Sullivan. There
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have been some sales of the stock bctwccii one

farmer and another. The corporation itself lia> not

sold stock other than to land owners.

I know of no class A stock held by a jiei-son not a

[124] land owner.

Mr. Prince A. Hawkins owns 16,553 shares of

Class B stock. He also owns lands in the Lovelock

Valley. The Class B stock has not receivc^d water

for approximately 10 years, as there was not enuiigli

available to sei-ve that class.

The form of stock certificate issued by the com-

pany is as follows:

'incorporated under the

laws of Nevada

u^^ - Shares

Class Stock

Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light &

Power Co.

Capital Stock $145,953

Class A Stock, $120,953, Assessable

Class A Stock and Class B Stock, $145,9^3,

Assessable

'
' This Certifies that _

^'^
|^

owner of shares, of one dollar each,

full paid, but assessable, of the Class - ( api-

tal Stock of Humboldt Lovelock Irnunt.on

Light & Power Company transferable .mly on

the })ooks of the Company at Lovelock, Nevada,

m person or by duly authorized attorney. n,on
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surrender of this Certificate properly endorsed.

''It is mutually agreed between the holder

hereof and the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation

Light & Power Company and its stockholders

as follows : That Class A stock is entitled to the

preferential use of water from the Company to

a maximum quantity of Ten Thousand acre

feet each year, to be distributed pro rata [125]

if requested, for the irrigation of lands, owned

or irrigated by such stockholder, lying under

or irrigated by means of water used through

either the Irish-American or Last Chance, Old

Channel, Young, or South West ditch or ditches

situated in Lovelock Valley, Nevada, that such

preferential use is expressly limited to such

lands lying under said named ditches, and upon

Class A stock being transferred to a transferee

not a holder of Class A stock and not entitled to

exercise such preferential use. Class B stock

shall be issued to such transferee in lieu of the

Class A stock so transferred; that, subject to

such preferential right of Class A stock. Class A
stock and Class B stock is entitled and has the

same right to the use of water from the Com-

pany each 3^ear, to be distributed pro rata if re-

quested, for the irrigation of lands owned or ir-

rigated by such stockholder lying under or irri-

gated by means of water used through any ditch

or ditch system in Lovelock Valley Nevada;

that the price to be charged any stockholder of
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Class A stock or Class B stock for water fur-

nished for irrigation purposes shall not exceed

Seventy-five cents per acre foot per seasou and

this limitation of a maximum charge shall not

be increased by any amendment of the Articles

of Incorporation, or in any way or manner

whatsoever
;
provided, however, that the limita-

tion of said maximum charge of Seventy-five

cents per acre foot per season shall not apply to

any w^ater, in excess of the pro rata share, re-

ceived by any stockholder from the Company.

"In Witness Whereof, the said Compan}' has

cansed this [126] Certificate to be signed by its

duly authorized officers and to be sealed with

the seal of the Company at Lovelock, Nevada,

this dav of -..- ,
A. D. 19 „

Secretary President '

'

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT B

is a copy of the minutes of the incorporators' meet-

ing of Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light &

Power Company held July 20, 1909. The original

articles of incorporation of said company as therem

set forth differ from the amended articles shown ui

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 1 in the provisions of para-

graph Fourth, which in the original articles pro-

vide as follows:

"Fourth. The total authorized capital stock

of this corporation shall be five hundred thou-
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sand dollars ($500,000.00), divided into five

liimdred thousand shares (500,000), of the par

value of one dollar ($1.00) per share, all of

which shall be common stock. The amount of

subscribed capital stock with which it will com-

mence business is two thousand dollars

($2,000.00) ; The amount actually subscribed is

two thousand dollars ($2,000.00), and the

amount actually paid up is one thousand dollars

($1000.00).

''After the amount of the subscribed price of

the capital stock has been paid in, or after it

shall have been issued as fully paid up, it shall

not be subject to assessments by the corporation

except for the following ])urposes. All stock

shall always be assessable and assessed by the

corporation, after the amount of the subscribed

price thereof [127] has been paid, and after it

shall have been issued as fully paid up, as well

as before, for the purpose of repairing and

maintaining the property and business of the

corporation and replacing its worn out or de-

stroyed property.

"The capital stock of this corporation may be

paid into the corporation either in cash, serv-

ices, or by sale and transfer to the company of

real or personal property, as in the judgment

of the Board of Directors seems most ad-

vantageous to the company, and stock may be

issued in exchange for such property, services,
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ov cash and in such amounts as the Board of Di-

rectors may advise."

Said minutes also show that upon tlic ofTci- of

W. C. Pitt to transfer to the company water

rights represented ])y Application No, 1098,

dated August 21, 1908, and other propei'ties,

15,000 shares of the company's stock were di-

rected to be issued to W. C. Pitt.

Said minutes further show that W. C. Pitt,

John G. Taylor and other parties liaving sub-

scribed for or expressed a desire to subscribe

for tlie capital stock of the corporation, it was

resolved

:

''Now Therefore, as an inducement foi- flic

immediate purchase of the capital stock of tlic

Company, in addition to the dividends, wliicli

said persons shall receive as stockholders, which

may from time to time be declared by the Di-

rectors, this Company is hereby authorizcnl to

enter into a contract with said persons whereby

this Company shall always, during the irrigat-

ing seasons, furnish to each of said [128]

persons, for irrigating purposes the use of such

proportion of the waters of this Company that

ma\' be designated by the Board of Directors

from time to time for irrigating purposes, as

his amount of stock in this Company, for which

he has now subscribed or shall subscribe for be-

fore August 19th, 1909, shall from time to time

bear to the total amoimt of subscribed stock in
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this Company, at a price not to exceed seventy-

five cents per year for each acre foot of water.

Provided however that the use of all waters of

this Company shall always be under and in ac-

cordance with the laws of Nevada, and all rules

and regulations which the Board of Directors

may from time to time establish. The President

and Secretary of the Company are hereby au-

thorized to execute such contra.cts on behalf of

the Company."

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT ''C"

is a copy of the by-laws of Humboldt Lovelock Irri-

gation Light & Power Company, which contain no

restriction as to sale or transfer of the stock of said

company. Said by-laws, however, provide in

Article XIII as follows:

"Sec. 1. The proper irrigation of lands be-

longing to the stockholders of this Company

shall always be this Company's primary object,

and during the irrigating seasons no waters of

this Company shall ever be used for any other
j

purpose if such waters are necessary to prop-

erly irrigate the lands of the Company's stock-

holders.
'

'

It was thereupon stipulated between counsel for

the respective parties that, pursuant to decree of

foreclosure and sale in an action pending in the

United States District Court, [129] in and for the
^

District of Nevada, entitled "W. J. Tobin, as Re- !
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eeiver of The Reno National Bank vs. .John (J.

Taylor, et al.," No. H-114, the lands sn])jeet to the

moT-t^age from John G. Taylor, Inc. t(» Tlic Reno

National Bank, set forth as Exhibit '2 licivin, .ind

the shares of stoek described in the coniidaint

herein were duly sold by the Special Master in

Chancery appointed by the Court, and that all liLrht,

title and interest of The Reno National Bank, Hc-

I

construction Finance Corporation, John 0. Taylor,

Inc. and John G. Taylor therein were duly sold ajid

thereafter became and are vested in the substituted

I

plaintiff, Pacific States Savings & Loan Company,

! without prejudice, however, to any rights of de-

fendant herein ; that said lands and said stocks were

separately sold pursuant to said decree; tbat such

separate sale was made without prejudice to the

claims of plaintiff that the stocks pass as an ap-

purtenance to the lands.

H. B. KRUSE,

a witness called on behalf of plaintiff, testified

:

I am Secretary of Yoimg Ditch Company, and

have been such since its organization in 191-). Hi''

total number of shares of said company is (i,(K)0, of

which 2,880 stand in the name of John G. Tnyloi-.

who is the largest stockholder of the conip.in> and

whose lands are the largest tract served l)y the

Young Ditch Company.
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The company maintains and operates the Yomig

Ditcli and I do not know of any other ])usiness in

wliich it [130] has heen engaged. Tliis has ])vei\ true

since its organization.

The water i)assed throngh the ditch is brought to

the lands of the various owners and there placed to

beneficial use. The stockholders are all land owners

served by the ditch, and I know of no stockholders

not owning lands served thereby. There have been

some transfers of stock to the Federal Land Bank,

as pledgee, in connection with mortgages on the

lands, but I do not think there have been any trans-

fers or sales of stock apart from such pledges.

The cost of maintaining the ditch is defrayed by

assessment on the stockholders. I know of no other

source of moneys wherewith to pay expenses. I do

not thiidv that the company itself claims any water

rights outside of the right to the ditch.

The form of stock certificate used by the company

is as follows:

"Incorporated Under the Laws of the State of

Nevada, August 21, 1915
^

'No Shares

Young Ditch Company

Capital Stock $60,000.00 6,000 Shares,

Par Value $10.00 Fully Paid and Assessable

Principal Office, Lovelock, Nevada

Resident Agent, John C Taylor

"This Certifies that _ is the

owner of _ Shares of the Capital
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Stock of Young Ditch Company transferable

only on the books of the Corporation by the

holder hereof in person or by Attorney upon

[131] surrender of this Certificate properly en-

dorsed.

"In Witness Whereof, the said Corporation

has caused this Certificate to be signed by its

duly authorized officers and to be sealed with

the Seal of the Corporation this day of

, A. D. 19

[Seal]

Secretary President

Shares $10.00 Each"

Certificate No. 14 for 142.81 shares of Yomig

Ditch Company stock was issued to Wanda Taylor

on December 23, 1918, and assigned to John G.

Taylor February 25, 1928. I do not know whether

she was a land owner along i^Q ditch during that

time. I think I know all the other stockholders.

When I issue certificates I do not require the stock-

holders to satisfy me that they are land owners be-

cause I know them all. I know of nothing in the

articles or by-laws of the company or the stock

certificate which requires that stockholders shall be

land ow^ners.

At the organization meeting of the company the

following resolution was adopted:

"On motion duly made, seconded and unani-

mously carried, it was resolved that the Presi-



136 Pacific States Sav. & L. Corp.

(Testimony of H. B. Kruse.)

dent and Secretary of the company be author-

ized and directed to have the proper and neces-

sary deed of conveyance to this company of all

the interest of the subscribers of the capital

stock of this company, transferring all their

right, title and interest [132] of, in and to all

water, water rights, dams, ditches, canals,

flumes and easements now held and owned by

them in what is known as and called the Yoimg

Ditch, a co-partnership, the tenants in common

of said interest in said Young Ditch being as

follows: (names of parties here stated in reso-

lution)
;

"And be it further resolved that upon the

execution by said above-named parties of such

deed of conveyance to said Young Ditch Com-

pany, that the President and Secretary of this

company are hereby authorized and directed

to issue said parties, as payment in full for their

said interest in said Young Ditch, certificates

of stock in this corporation, fully paid up, in

amount as their respective interest so conveyed

bears to the number of shares 6,000, represent-

ing the capital stock of this company."

Such conveyances were made and stock issued in

accordance with that resolution, as appears from

the minutes of the meeting of the board of directors

held on November 1, 1915, as follows:

u* * * {\^^\ proper deed of conveyance be-

tween the subscribers to the capital stock of



vs. Leo F. Schmitt 137

(Testimony of H. B. Kruse.)

this company, conveying all their interest in

the Young Ditch to this company had been

drawn and had been signed and executed by

all said parties, with the exception of S. R.

Young, who refused to join in the incorpora-

tion and desired to hold his interest [133]

separate and distinct from that of the corpora-

tion.
'

'

1

1 At that time I owned a two-share interest in tlie

ditch and owned lands served thereby. I still own

the land but think that I executed some conveyance

[
to Young Ditch Company. I do not know wbether

such conveyance included any water rights.

The stock book shows that certificates were issued

for 253.31 shares to Nevada Fire Insurance Com-

pany, as pledgee of Mrs. Paula Jacobson. for 393.2

shares to Federal Land Bank of Berkeley, as

pledgee of H. M. Damm, and for 642.80 shares to

said bank as pledgee of John Holmstrom.

i

A copy of the by-laws of Yonns: Ditch Company

was introduced in evidence 1w defendant as Exhibit

*'F". The same contained no provisions restrictins:

stock ownership to land owners served by the diteli.

P. L. NELSON,

a witness called on behalf of defendant, testified:

On May 12, 1932, I was Cashier of The Reno Na-

tional Bank and of Bank of Nevada Savmgs &
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Trust Company. I have been such cashier since

1931, and prior thereto for about fourteen years

Assistant Cashier of tliose banks. After the banks

were closed I was employed by the Receivers of the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company in con-

nection with winding up its affairs. [134]

Three notes payable to Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company, signed by John G. Taylor, Inc.,

by John G. Taylor, President, and A. R. Randolph,

Secretary, each dated at Reno, Nevada, payable on

demand, vdth interest at 7% per annum, one dated

May 12, 1932, in the principal amomit of $7500, an-

other dated May 28, 1932, in the principal amount

of .$10,000, and the other dated Jime 4, 1932, in the

principal amount of $15,000, were, while I was em-

ployed by the Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Company, in the possession of the

Receiver and among the files and records of that

bank. Each of said notes bears a lead pencil nota-

tion in the upper left-hand corner of the initials

'M.S." These are the initials of Jerry Sheehan.

According to the then practice and custom of Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Company and The Reno

National Bank, it was the custom for the officer

making the loan to initial it for future reference

as the party who handled the transaction or would

be responsible for the loan.

The first note for $7500 has an endorsement show-

ing payment of $675 on principal made June 30,

1936, from the sale of 5 shares of First National
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Bank of Lovelock stock to C. H. Jones, 'iluit note

also has an endorsement showing pa}inent of $70.

interest to June 30, 1932.

The second note for $10,000 has an endorsement

showing payment of $62.22 interest to Jmie 30, 1932.

The $7500 note also has a lead pencil notation on

the bottom '* shearing" in Mr. Sheehan's handwrit-

ing. According to the [135] banking practice and

customs, that notation indicates that the advance

was made for shearing expenses of the maker. T

cannot say definitely whether the money advanced

was so used.

The $15,000 note dated June 4, 1932, lins a lead

pencil notation "taxes and wages," wliidi indi-

cates that the advance wn^ for the purpose of pay-

ing such items.

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT "H"

is in words and figures as follows:

"Reno, Nevada, April 29, 1932

"As collateral security for the payment of

all of my present indebtedness to Bank of Ne-

vada Savings & Trust Company, of Reno, Ne-

vada, and all of my future indel)tedness to said

Bank, which I may incur hereafter fi'oni any

cause or upon any consideration I have as-

signed, and do hereby assign, deliver and de-

posit with said Bank the followin- descri])ed

property, to-wit

:



140 Pacific States Sav. d L. Corp.

(Testimony of P. L. Nelson.)

55 shs. Reno National Bank, Reno, Nev.

Ctf. No. 1030.

225 shs. First Natl. Bank, Winnenuicca,

Cap. stock, Ctf. No. 253

5 shs. First Natl. Bank, Lovelock, Nev.

Cap. stock Ctf. No. 49

50 shs. Reno Natl. Bank, Reno, Nev., Cap.

stock, Ctf. No. 673

15 shs. Churchill County Bank, Fallon, i

Nev., Ctf. No. 74

150 shs. Union Canal Ditch Co., Cap. stock,

Ctf. No. 65.

37,273 shs. Humboldt. Lovelock Irr. Lt. & Pr.

Class ''A" Ctfs. Nos. 2, 23, 59, 71, 74, 96,

99, 108 and 111

2,857 shs. Young Ditch Co., capital stock,

Ctfs. Nos. 16 and 24.

],121 1/3 shs. The Old Channel Ditch Co.

Cap. Stock, Ctfs. Nos. 27, 35, 59, 62, 70,

103.

of the - value of

Dollars, [136]

and hereby given authority to said Bank, or its

assigns, to call for such additional security as

it, or its assigns, may deem proper, which se- 11

cui'ity I agree to give on demand, and on de-

fault being made in giving such security or in
i

paying said indebtedness, then all of my indebt- !

edness to said Bank shall be considered due aud -

immediately payable, whether otherwise due or
j
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payable or not, at the option of said Bank, or

its assigns, and the said Bank is hereby given

authority to sell and deliver the whole or any

part of said property, at either public or private

sale, at any time or place, either with or without

demand for payment, either with or without

notice of such sale, and either with or without

advertisement of such sale, as said Bank, its

officers or agents may elect ; such demand, notice

and advertisement are hereby waived. At such

sale said Bank or any other person or persons

may become the purchaser of the whole or any

part of said property. After deducting all

costs and expenses incurred in connection with

such sale, including reasonable attorney's fee,

and the amount of said indebtedness, ont of

the proceeds of such sale, the snrphis, if any,

shall be paid to me or my heirs, or assigns,

and I agree to pay any deficiency there may be,

if any, in the payment of said indebtedness and

costs and expenses of such sale, after the pro-

ceeds of sale have been applied as aforesaid.

The Bank or its assigns, may permit the substi-

tution of security, and all substituted secuvitv,

and/or additional security, shall be subject to

the terms hereof as if oripnally deposited.

JOHN Ct. TAYLOR." fV>ll

All of the certificates described in Exhibit "H"

were in the possession of the bank at the time of the

receivership and have been and still are in the Re-
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ceiver's possession, except that for 5 shares of First

National Bank of Lovelock stock, which was sold.

Defendant introduced in evidence certificates rep-

resenting the stock described in the complaint

herein, all of which are in the form of the respec-

tive stock certificates of the companies, mentioned

as hereinbefore set forth, as follows:

Certificatv

No.

Ilun

Shares Date

boldt Lovelock Irrigation

Lif?ht. & Power Company Class A

2 7200 January 2, 1917

23 8120 January 2, 1917

59 100 January 2, 1917

71 1000 June 29, 1917

74 20000 June 17, 1918

96 450 November 10, 1924

99 270 May 18, 1925

108 49 September 12, 1927

111 84 November 12, 1927

Stock of Union Canal Ditch Company

65 150 March 16, 1914

Stock of Young Ditch Company

16 2714.20 January 23, 1918

24 142.80 February 27, 1928

27 20 January 31, 1902

[138]

Certificate Shares

No.

Old Channel Ditch Company

35 80 May 7, 1904

59 93% May 9, 1910

62 80 June 1, 1912

70 120 December 21, 1915

103 182 November 1, 1928
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! Each of said certificates was issued in the name
of John Gr. Taylor, and each thereof is endorsed in

blank by John G. Taylor in the presence of and

witnessed by J. SheehaJi. All of said certificates

were produced from the files and records of the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company re-

ceivership. The records of the Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Company show that there was

paid to John G. Taylor, Inc. the principal amount

of the notes above described, $32,500. The same note

teller handled the loan transactions for The Reno

National Bank and the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company. The teller at the time these trans-

actions were handled was Miss Jean Campbell.

Payments made for the account of the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company and receipts for

its account were totaled each day and the difference

credited or charged to the account of the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company on the books of

The Reno National Bank, with corresponding

entries on the books of the former. The $32,500

credited to John G. Taylor, Inc. was made through

a credit from The Reno National Bank to the First

National Bank of Winnemucca. Taylor had an ac-

count at the Winnemucca Bank but not at either

of [139] the Reno banks. The obhgation evidenced

by the notes mentioned was solely to the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company. With the ex-

ception of the pajanent on accoimt of principal and

interest previously described, the balance of prin-
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cipal and accrued interest, is still due to the Re-

ceivership of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Compam^
Mr. Seaborn, State Superintendent of Banks,

took over the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company December 9, 1932. I was employed by

him thereafter, in charge of its assets and supervi-

sion of necessary work. At that time the notes and

stocks previously described were in the files and

records of that bank and remained there through-

out the receivership of Mr. Seaborn and that of his

successoi*, Leo F. Schmitt, and have so remained

up to the present date.

The stock of the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company and that of The Reno National

Bank was held in corresponding interests by the

same stockliolders. The banks occupied the same

premises and had the same officers. The amounts

represented by the notes previously described were

advanced as follows: $7500, represented by the note

of May 12, 1932, was advanced on May 13, 1932;

$10,000, represented by the note of May 28, 1932,

was advanced on June 1, 1932, and $15,000, repre-

sented by the note of June 4, 1932, was advanced

Jmie 6, 1932. I do not recall seeing Exhibit "H"
prior to the time Mr. Seaborn, as Superintendent

of Banks, took charge of the Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Compan}^ [140] on December 9, 1932.

I had nothing to do with its actual receipt. It is in

the customarv bank form used for many years. I



vs. Leo F. Schmitt 145

(Testimony of P. L. Xelson.)

do not know what happened to this pai-ticular docu-

ment.

It was part of my duties as cashier to kccj) in-

formed as to collateral deposited to secure loans. I

have no recollection of having heard an\i:hing about

the advances made to John G. Taylor, Inc. Jt was

not always customary to make any notation of the

collateral on the notes representing particular h)aus.

Sometimes it was done. It was not custouiary to

note loans in respect of wliich collateral was held

on the collateral envelope itself.

JERRY SHEEHAN,

a witness called on behalf of defendant, testified

:

From 1924 mitil the bank closed I was Vice-

President of Bank of Nevada Savings &. Trust

Company, and during the same period I occupied

the same position with The Reno National Bank. 1

was also a director of both banks. The personnel

and directorate of both banks was the same, the

same i)ersons acting in an equivalent capacity for

both throughout the period I was there. Both banks

conducted their business in the same banking room.

The initials ''J. S." on the notes of John G.

Taylor, Inc. to Bank of Nevada Savings & Tnist

Company, above described, are my initials. They

represent my approval and authorization of tbc

loan. The notation ''taxes and wages" on the ?j<] 5,000

note dated June 4, 1932, is in my liandwritiug. Tbe
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notation [141] was placed thereon to indicate the

purpose of the loan. I think I received the infor-

mation from the cashier of the First National Bank

of Winnemucca. The loan was made because it was

imderstood to be necessary to furnish Mr. Taylor

with some expense money. The notation on the

$7500 note "shearing," is in my handwriting, and

signifies that the request for money was for that

purpose.

I have no recollection of having seen the collat-

eral agreement dated April 29, 1932, defendant's

Exhibit "H". I do not know how it was obtained.

I am familiar with Mr. Taylor's signature, and the

signature thereon is his. I do not know of my own

knowledge whether collateral was exacted from

Jolm G. Taylor, Inc. as security for the notes above

referred to. I was familiar with the Nevada law

that no loans could be made by a savings bank in

Nevada without collateral. Until this morning I

never saw the stock referred to in the collateral

agreement. The transaction was handled through

Winnemucca to the best of my recollection.

I made the request of Mr. Taylor for the collat-

eral by way of stock in various corporations. At the

time we attempted to consolidate the Tajdor loans

in the early part of 1932, there was discussion of

security with Mr. Taylor, and he furnished a list

of all his property, both that of John G. Taylor,

Inc. and of himself personally. I do not recall that

the water stocks were specifically mentioned. He
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agreed to furnish as collateral everything that he

had. He complied with our request that he funiisli

as collateral all the stock in the various coi-pora-

tions. I know Mr. Taylor borrowed $32,500.00 f'T-oiii

the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company

and gave his notes shown in the evidence and put

up collateral as shown by the collateral agreenient.

There was considerable discussion in the early

part of 1932 about the consolidation of the Tayloi'

loans, which were previously unsecured. Several

discussions were had, [142] both with Mi-. Taylor

and with the officials of the Reconstruction Finance

Corporation. It was repeatedly stated that all of

the ])ro])ei ty of John (1. Taylor, Inc. and John (I.

Taylor was to be put up as security. Following these

conversations the loans were consolidated into a

single loan of $700,000, represented by note from

John G. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National Bank,

secured by chattel mortgage and real estate mort-

gage. At the time the real estate mortgage was

being prepared, Mr. Taylor was told that he was

expected to give all the security which his company

had, and he agreed to do so. This note and the

mortgages were later assigned to the Reconstruc-

tion Finance Corporation, which advanced to The

Reno National Bank more than One Million Dol-

lars. In the discussions with the officials of the Re-

construction Finance Corporation the properties

of John G. Taylor aud John G. I^aylor, Inc. were

discussed at considerable length. I answered all
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questions respecting the same to the best of my
ability. I probably stated that the Lovelock prop-

erties were irrigated, and probably told them about

the Pitt-Taylor dam. I knew that about 2,000 acres

of the land in question were irrigated and that the

Pitt-Taylor dam was used for such irrigation. I

probably told these officials of the value attaching

to the lands by reason of such irrigation.

The transaction with the Reconstruction Finance

Coi-poration was with The Reno National Bank,

and the Taylor loan was made by that bank. The

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company had

nothing to do with it. At the time of the negotia-

tions v:e had no collatei'al. The mortgage was taken

[143] for the purpose of that transaction. The

mortgage was sulimitted to the representatives of

the Reconstruction Finance Corporation for their

consideration, and, after discussion, assigned to
;

them. I know of nothing other than the real estate I

and chattel mortgages so assigned. I

I supposed all the vested ^vater rights belonged

to John G. Taylor, Inc., but did not know that

they were represented by stock. I knew about the

reservoir stock but not about the ditch companies. :

I thought they were vested rights attached to the '

ranches. If I had known that John G. Taylor, Inc.

owned stock in the water companies I think I

would have asked for a transfer thereof. I do not

remember when, if at all, I first saw the water

stock certificates here in question. I must have ex-
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amined the collateral at the time of going through

the bank, but I do not recall it. It was our custom

to list the collateral behind each loan and furnish

the officers a copy of such report which should be

on file in each bank. I think this custom was ob-

sei'ved respecting these loans and collateral.

LEO F. SCHMITT,

a witness called on behalf of defendant, testified:

I am Receiver of the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company, and have served in that capacity

since February 28, 1934. 1 have possession of all

the assets and properties of that bank and received

the same from E. J. Seaborn, [144] the State Sup-

erintendent of Banks. Among the assets so received

were the collateral agreement and stock certificates

of the water companies, hereinbefore referred to.

These have been in my possession continuously

since my appointment.

In December, 1934, I paid an assessment of

$6522.77 on the stock of the Humboldt Lovelock Ir-

rigation Light & Power Company, and in No-

veiober, 1936, an additional assessment of $3354.57.

In March, 1936, an assessment of $112.15 was paid

on the stock of Old Channel Ditch Company. No

other assessments have been paid by me.

At the time of paying the assessments referred

to I kTi(>w there was a dispute respecting 0A\Tier-
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sMp of the stock, and before making payments it

was agreed with Reconstruction Finance Corpora-

tion that in the event it was adjudicated to be the

owner of the stock, the payments would be adjusted

in accordance with the rights of the parties;. [l45]

STIPULATION.

It is hereby stipulated that the foregoing state-

ment of evidence is a true, complete and properly

prepared statement of the substance of all of the

testimony and evidence introduced on the trial of

the above-entitled cause, and that the same may be

settled and allowed forthwith.

(Signed) BROBECK, PHLEGER &

HARRISON
ORRICK, DAHLQUIST, NEFF
& HERRINGTON
Attorneys for Plaintiff and

Appellant.

PLATT & SINAI
Attorneys for Defendant and

Appellee. [146]

ORDER SETTLING STATEMENT OF
EVIDENCE.

The foregoing statement of evidence is a true,

complete and properly prepared statement of the

substance of all of the testimony and evidence in-
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troduced and admitted on the trial of tlie above-

entitled cause in the United States District Court

for the District of Nevada, all parts not essential to

the questions presented by the appeal being omitted,

and the same is hereby settled, allowed and ap-

proved as the Statement of Evidence on Appeal

from the final decree of said court.

Dated : October 4th, 1938.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 4, 1938. [147]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AS TO RECORD.

It Is Hereby Stipulated by and between the

parties to the above-entitled matter that the parts

of the record, proceedings and evidence to be in-

cluded in the record on appeal herein be and the

same are hereby designated as follows

:

(1) Bill of Complaint;

(2) Denuirrer;

(3) Minute Order Overruling Demurrer; [148]

(4) Answer;

(5) Supplemental Complaint;

(6) Opinion of the Court;

(7) Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law;

(8) Final Decree;

(9) Petition for Rehearing (omitting the argu-

ment in support thereof therein contained)

;
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(10) Memorandum Decision on Petition for Re-

hearing
;

(11) Petition for Appeal;

(12) Assignment of Errors;

(13) Order Allowing Appeal

;

(14) Undertaking on Appeal

;

(15) Statement of the Evidence;

(16) Order Enlarging Time to Prepare Tran-

script of Record and to Docket Appeal

;

(17) This stipulation.

The Clerk is hereby requested to prepare for

transmission to the Clerk of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, at

San Francisco, California, certified copies of the

aforementioned papers as and for the record on

appeal and to transmit the same, together with the

original citation, to the Clerk of said United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

BROBECK, PHLEGER &
HARRISON

ORRICK, DAHLQUIST, NEFF
& HERRINGTON
Attorneys for Plaintiff and

Appellant.

PLATT & SINAI
Attorneys for Defendant and

Appellee.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 4, 1938. [149]
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CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

United States of America,

District of Nevada—ss.

I, O. E. Benham, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States for the District of Nevada, do

hereby certify that I am custodian of the records,

papers and files of the said United States District

Court for the District of Nevada, including the

records, papers and files in the case of Pacific

States Savings & Loan Company, a corporation,

substituted for Reconstruction Finance Cor])ora-

tion, a corporation. Plaintiff, vs. Leo F. Schmitt, as

Receiver of Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany, Carson Valley Bank, Tonopah Banking Cor-

poration and Virginia City Bank, Defendant, said

case being No. 11-117 on the equity docket of said

court.

I further certify that the attached transcript,

consisting of 154 typewritten pages numbered from

1 to 154, inclusive, contains a full, true and correct

transcript of the proceedings in said case and of

all papers filed therein, together with the endorse-

ments of filing thereon, as set forth in ''Stipulation

as to Record" filed in said case and made a part of

the transcript attached hereto, as the [150] same

appears from the originals of record and on file in

my office as such Clerk in Carson City, State and

District aforesaid.
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I further certify that the cost for preparing and

certifying to said record, amonnting to $58.25, has

been paid to me by Messrs. Brobeck, Phlegar &

Harrison, of connsel for appellant in the above

entitled cause.

And I further certify that the original citation,

issued in said cause, is hereto attached.

AVitness my hand and the seal of said United

States District Court this 17th day of October,

A. D. 1938.

[Seal] O. E. BENHAM
Clerk, U. S. District Court,

District of Nevada. [151]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CITATION ON APPEAL.

Tl)e United States of America—ss.

'V\w President of the United States of America:

To Leo F. Schmitt, as Receiver of Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Company, Carson Valley

Bank, Tonopah Banking Corporation and Vir-

ginia C'ity Bank, and to Piatt & Sinai, his

attorneys. Greetings
:,

You are hereby cited and admonished to be

and appear in the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Nintli [152] Circuit to be holden

at the City and Comity of San Francisco, State of

California, within thirty (30) days from the date

hereof pursuant to an order filed and of record in
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the office of the Clerk of the United States District

Court for the District of Nevada, allowing an

appeal from a decree made and entered on April

6, 1938, which became final on June 27, 1938, upoiL

the denial of a petition for rehearing seasonably

jnade and filed and duly entertained by the Court,

in the above-entitled cause wherein Pacific States

Savings & Loan Company, a corporation, substi-

tuted for Reconstruction Finance Corporation, is

appellant, and you are appellee, to show cause, if

any there be, why the said decree should not be

reversed and corrected, and why speedy justice

should not be done the parties in that behalf.

Witness The Honorable Frank H. Norcross,

Judge of the United States District Court for the

District of Nevada, this 22nd day of August, 1938.

FRANK H. NORCROSS
Judge of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of

Nevada. [153]

Due service and receipt of a copy of the within

Citation on Appeal is hereby achnitted, this 22nd

day of August, 1938.

PLATT & SINAI
Attorneys for Appellee.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 22, 1938. [154]
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[Endorsed]: No. 9015. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Pacific

States Saving's & Loan Corporation, a corporation,

substituted for Reconstruction Finance Corpora-

tion, a coT'poration, Appellant, vs. Leo F. Schmitt,

as Receiver of Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company, Carson Valley Bank, Tonopah Banking
i

Corporation and Virginia City Bank, Appellees.

Transcript of Record. Upon Appeal from the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the District of

Nevada.

Filed October 18, 1938.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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,
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BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF PLEADINGS AND FACTS SHOWING

JURISDICTION.

j
The District Court had jurisdiction under Title 28,

[u. S. C, Sec. 400, and under Title 1>S V. S. C, Sec. 41(1).

ihe matter in controversy exceeding the sum of $.^000 an.i

the action arising under the Uiws of the Fnited States.

The action was instituted in the T^nite.l States D.stnct

~^^ences (R ) are to pages of the Tran.soript of Rivonl.

All emphasis herein is supplied by us.



Court for the District of Nevada by Reconstruction

Finance Corporation, a corporation organized under tli

laws of the United States (15 U. S. C, Sec. 601), all o

the stock of which is owned by the United States (Ij

U. S. C, Sec. 602). It was brought to obtain a declaratioi'

that the plaintitf is entitled to a lien upon stock of certaiii

reservoir and canal companies alleged to be appurtenan-

to lands in the State of Nevada subject to a mortgage

'

which had been assigned to plaintiff (Complaint, R. 2)'

During the pendency of the action the mortgage was fore'

closed, the property subject thereto was sold, and Pacific

States Savings and Loan Company, a California corpora

tion, which had succeeded to the interest of plaintiff ii

the property in controversy was substituted as plaintif.

(Supp. Bill of Complaint, R. 32, Order R. 78, and Stipii

lation R. 132).

Issue was joined (Answer, R. 17, and Stipulation

R. 78 and 132) upon the original bill and supplementa

bill.

From the final judgment (R. 61 and 66) this appea

has been prosecuted by the substituted plaintiff. Thi^

court has jurisdiction of the appeal under Title 28, U. S. C.

Sec. 225(a).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

A. THE ACTION.

This action was commenced by Reconstruction Finance

Corporation (hereinafter referred to as R. F. C.) to ob-

tain a declaration that the stock of certain reservoir and



(itcli companies described in the complaint is subject to

lie lien of a mortgage executed by the then owner of

;rtain lands in the Lovelock Valley, also described in the

)mplaint, made to The Reno National Bank and by it

ssigned to the R. F. C. The facilities of the reservoir

Qd ditch companies had for many years been used to

ligate the mortgaged lands, and it was claimed that the

tocks of these companies were an appurtenance to the

md and as such subject to the mortgage. It was also

laimed that whether or not an appurtenance, the stocks

ad been in fact mortgaged. During the pendency of the

ction the mortgage was foreclosed and appellant Pacific

states Savings & Loan Company, which had acquired title

the mortgaged property, was substituted as plaintiff

,nd by supplemental complaint asserted its rights to the

tocks in question as the owner thereof.

Defendant, who is receiver of four Nevada state banks,

)y his answer asserted an attachment Hen on behalf of

hree of the banks for which he is receiver, but no evi-

lence was introduced in respect of such alleged attach-

nent liens. On behalf of Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Jompany, of which he is also receiver, defendant asserted

1 lien under a pledge agreement executed subsequent to

the mortgage of the land by one John G. Taylor, in whose

Qame the stock in question stood of record.

The District Court found that the companies whose

stock is here in controversy have at all times been en-

gaged solely in the maintenance and operation of certam

reservoirs and ditches for the diversion of waters in the

Humboldt River and their transmission to lands in the

Lovelock Valley and that plaintiff, as owner of the lands



in question, became and is entitled to all water rights anc

the use of the necessary facilities for irrigation as an ap

purtenance to the lands convej^ed. The court, however)

found that plaintiff was not entitled to the stock in ques!

tion otherwise than as it might be affected by the watei!

rights found to be owned by plaintiff (Opinion, R. 35)

i

The substituted plaintiff has appealed from the decree ii

respect of this latter determination.

B. THE APPELLANT'S GBOUNDS FOR REVEBSAL.

Appellant will rely on the following propositions a.'

grounds for reversal:

1. The stock in controversy is appurtenant to the land and passed

by conveyance thereof.

This question is raisod by the allegations of the bill

of complamt and by the findings of fact of the court

below. The conclusions of law and the decree of the couri

below are claimed to be unsupported bj^ the findings of

fact and contrar\^ to the legal effect of the facts found.

2. The defendant and the bank of which he is receiver are not bona

fide purchasers for value.

This issue was raised by the bill of complaint. The

court below made no findings thereon.

C. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS.

Prior to June 9, 1930, John G. Taylor owned, with other

property, certain lands in the Lovelock Valley, Humboldt

County, Nevada, specifically described in the complaint.

Without water these lands are practically valueless, but

with water for irrigation they are productive and of sub-



aiitial value. While the lands have certain rights to the

ise of the waters of the Humboldt Eiver based on appro-

riation and diversion for beneficial use, these rights are

f sucli late priority that only in times of exceptional

ater conditions are they sufficient fully to irrigate the

mds in question (Finding XIX, R. 55). Under an appro-

riation made by Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light &

'ower Company that company is authorized to maintain

dam known as the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir and impound

ertain waters of the Humboldt River during flood seasons

supplement the vested water rights of certain lands

escribed in the ijermit, including the lands then owned

|y Taylor and now owned by plaintiff (Finding XX,

I. 56, Exhibits 11 and 12, R. 107). In the transmission

;f the waters so impounded in the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir,

ts well as under the direct appropriation, the ditches

^wned ))y Young Ditch Company, Old Channel Ditch Com-

pany and Union Canal Ditch Company are used. Such

vas the situation for many years prior to June 9, 1930,

md such continued to be the situation thereafter.

On June 9, 1930, John G. Taylor conveyed to John G.

Taylor, Inc., a Wyoming corporation, all of the lands in

luestion, "together with the appurtenances * * * also

ill water rights, ditches and canals appurtenant to said

and or used in ('(mnection therewith, and all shares of

^tock of any water corporation appurtenant to said land

or the water from which are used or have been used in

L'onnection witli the irrigation or cultivation thereof"

(R. 79, Finding X, R. 49). The stock of the four water

companies continued to stand in the name of John G.

Taylor, and still stands in his name (R. 142, 143). The



water, however, continued to be used for the Taylor lands

as it had been prior to the conveyance to John G. Taylor,

Inc. and is still so used (Finding XVI, R. 54).

On April 20, 1932 (R. 80), John G. Taylor, Inc. mort-

gaged to The Reno National Bank, as security for an in-

debtedness of $700,000 evidenced by a promissory note

dated March 12, 1932, all of the lands in question

''Together with all water, water rights, water ap-

plications and water permits, or privileges, connected

with, belonging, appurtenant or incident to the lands

hereby conveyed, or used in connection with all or'

any part of the said premises, or used or usable in

connection therewith, and all dams, reservoirs and

ditches, canals or other works for storage or carry-

ing of water now owned by the mortgagor, or in

which it now has, or may hereafter acquire any in-

terest, and all applications now pending in the office

of the State Engineer of the State of Nevada, for

any and all waters to be used upon any part or por-

tion of the said lands, or used in connection there-

with.

''Together with all and singular the tenements,

hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belong-

ing, and in anywise appertaining, and the reversion

and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents,

issues and profits thereof."

This mortgage was dated as of March 12, 1932, the

date of the note, and replaced, to correct an error in

description, a mortgage executed on March 12, 1932 (Com-

plaint, R. 7 and Answer, R. 19). It was executed without

the formalities, required by law respecting the mortgage

of chattels (R. 81). A chattel mortgage dated March 12,



1,932 was also executed but did not describe the stock in

[uestion (K. 81). This note and the mortgages securing

he same were assigned by The Eeno National Bank to

jieconstruction Finance Corporation to secure in part a

oan exceeding One Million Dollars made by the R. F, C.

The Reno National Bank (R. 81). Default having oc-

i'.urred, the mortgage was foreclosed, the property sold,

imd the property subsequently conveyed to Pacific States

Savings & Loan Company (R. 132).

1
At the time the mortgage from John G. Taylor, Inc. to

irhe Reno National Bank was being arranged as a con-

isolidation of various loans then held by the bank, rep-

resentatives of the R. F. C. were in consultation with the

i-epresentatives of The Reno National Bank, it being

then contemplated that tlie mortgage was to be assigned

fo the R. F. C. (R. 104-106, 147-148). The lands in question

tvvere represented as possessing water rights and as being

[the most valuable of the Taylor lands by reason of their

agricultural possibilities through the possession of such

water rights (R. 104-105). It was not known by the

!R. F. C. that the water rights were in any way represented

by the stock of corporations (Finding XIV, R. 52). Mr.

^Sheehan, then executive vice-president of The Reno

[National Bank, through whom the transaction was ar-

ranged, testified that it was understood the mortgage was

to cover all property of every kind owned by the Taylor

I

Company, and tliat company agreed that it should; also

that the water rights and all incidents thereto were in-

cluded (R. 147-148).

The Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, a

state bank, was owned by the same interests as owned the
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stock of The Reno National Bank. It occupied the samo;

banking rooms and had the same officers and directors anc

personnel (R. 144). Subsequent to the execution of th(

mortgage from John G. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno Nationa

Bank and its assignment to the R. F. C, a pledge agree

ment was signed by John G. Taylor personally, datec

April 29, 1932, pledging to the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company as security for then or future indebted

ness certain described stocks, including with others, the

stocks here in question. At that time Taylor was nol

indebted to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany, but subsequently various sums were borrowed from

that bank by John G. Taylor, Inc., the notes being en-

dorsed by John G. Taylor (Finding XV, R. 53). The same

Mr. Sheehan acted for the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company in authorizing these loans. He testified

that he did not then know^ of the pledge agreement, didj.

not see the certificates representing the water stocks, and

in fact did not recall having seen them until the day of

the trial (R. 146). Mr. Sheehan is the same person who

had handled the $700,000 note and mortgage transaction

and who testified that he demanded that there be hypothe-

cated to secure that note all the property which Taylor

owned individually as well as all property which his

corporation, John G. Taylor, Inc., owned (R. 145-146).

The notes payable to the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company not having been paid, defendant, as re-

ceiver of that bank, claims a lien upon the stocks. While

the pleadings indicate a claim of defendant, as receiver

of three other Nevada state banks, by virtue of attach-

ments, there is no evidence in the record disclosing the

nature or extent of such lien.



The articles of incorporation and stock certificates of

he four water companies whose stocks are here involved

ippear in the record (R. 82, 89, 93, 94, 122, 127 and 134).

IkVith the exception of the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation

Aght & Power Company, there is nothing in the articles,

py-laws or stock certificates of these companies indicating

any particular restrictions on the disposition of the stock

l)r priority to their stockholders in the use of their respec-

ive facilities. However, the court found and evidence

^hows that the only assets of these companies are the

ditches constructed by use of the proceeds of the sale of

their stock to landowners served by the ditches ; that their

Qnly business is the maintenance of these ditches in the

transmission of water to the lands of the stockholders;

ithat their only revenue is obtained from assessment upon

the stockholders to meet the operating expenses; that in

practice the use of their facilities has always been con-

ifined to stockholders, and that their stocks have been

transferred only as an incident to a transfer of lands. In

some cases transfers in pledge have been made in connec-

|tion with mortgages of the lands of the stockholders, prin-

cipally to the Federal Farm Loan Bank (Finding XVII,

R. 54 and R. 123-137).

The stock of the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light

& Power Company is of two classes—Class A and Class

B. Only Class A stock is here involved. The articles of

incorporation of that company provide that:

''* * * the stockholders of our said corporation

shall always be entitled, by virtue of being such

stockholders, to a preferential use, over all other per-

sons, natural or artificial, of all water owned or
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possessed by our said corporation for the irriga-

tion of lands owned or possessed by such stock-

holders; * * *." (R. 82)

It is further provided:

a* * * Qj^^gg j^ stock shall have certain prefer-

ential rights over Class B stock, to wit : Class A stock

shall be entitled to the preferential use of water from

the Company of a maximum quantity of 10,000 acre

feet each year, to be distributed pro rata if requested,

for the irrigation of lands owned or irrigated by such

stockholder, lying under or irrigated by means of

water used through either the Irish American or

Last Chance, Old Channel, Young or South West

Ditch or ditches, situated in Lovelock Valley, Nevada;

that such preferential use shall be expressh^ limited

to such lands lying under said named ditches, and

upon Class A stock being transferred to a transferee

not a holder of Class A stock and not entitled to

exercise such preferential use. Class B stock shall be

issued to such transferee in lieu of the Class A stock

so transferred; * * *" (R. 85)

This preferential right is repeated in the form of stock

certificate (R. 128).

As in the case of the other companies, the only asset

of Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power Company

is the so-called Pitt-Taylor reservoir. Its only activity

has been in the maintenance of that reservoir and dis-

tribution of water to its stockholders. Its stock also was

issued only to landowners sei-v^ed thereby. Its only reve-

nue is the charge made against its stockholders and

assessments on the stockholders to meet the operating

expenses of its facilities (Finding XX, R. 56). Although
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|ts articles of incorporation would i)eimit engagement

|n other lines of business *'it has never engaged in any

business or activity other than the business or activity

of acting as the agent of its stockholders in diverting

and storing water to be applied to a beneficial use upon

the lands owned by such shareholders" (Finding XX,

R. 56) and its by-laws provide:

"Sec. 1. The proper irrigation of lands belonging

to the stockholders of this Company shall always be

this Company's primary object, and during the irri-

gating seasons no waters of this Company shall ever

be used for any other purpose if such waters are

necessary to properly irrigate the lands of the Com-

pany's stockholders." (R. 132)

I

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR RELIED UPON.

I

Plaintiff relies upon and will rely upon the follow-

ing assignments of error: (Note: The Roman Numerals

'refer to the assignments and Arabic numbers to the re-

spective pages of the record.)

II (70); III (70); IV (70); VII (71); VIII (71);

IX (72) ;X (72); XI (72).

ARGUMENT.

i I THE STOCK IN CONTROVERSY IS APPURTENANT TO THE

LAND AND PASSED BY CONVEYANCE THEREOF.

Assignments of Error Involved:

''11.

"The Court erred in failing to find that said water

stocks were and are appurtenant to the lands de-
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scribed and referred to in said complaint now owned

by plaintiff, and that said water stocks were trans-

ferred by the deed and niortgage of said lands."

"The Court erred in making and entering its decree

that plaintiff is not entitled to a judgment declaring

that said water stocks are subject to and conveyed

by the lien of the real estate mortgage described in

the complaint herein."

"3.

"The Court erred in not making and entering its

judgment that plaintiff is the owner and entitled to

the possession of said water stocks and that defend-

ant has no right, title or interest therein or thereto

or any lien thereon."

"4.

"The Court erred in not making and entering its

decree that defendant surrender and deliver said

water stocks to plaintiff."

"7.

"The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the deed described in Finding X, said water

stocks were sold, assigned and transferred by John

G. Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc., a corporation."

"8.

"The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the mortgage referred to in Finding XI and XII,

said water stocks were mortgaged by John G. Taylor,

Inc. to The Reno National Bank."



i:;

Discussion

:

riu' Distiiit Coiiil riv:litly coiicIikIimI that plaiiitifT iih

^^uccessor in owtifi•^^hil) n\' ih.- lands ilcscrilMMl in tlu- com-

plaint, is the owmr o!' all water riirlits apinirtcnant there-

jto, includinir nil riulits to all nicaiiK (if transportation ami

ptorau:*' <»t' water sin-li as «l.im>, ditelies. canals, and n-ner-

K'oirs, from tlu" places or point- of diversion to the placoM

or points of uso (Opinion, K*. 44). With the exception of

the ]Inml)ol(lt Lovelock Irriiration Lit;ht & Power f'om-

.jiany, none of the companies, the stock <»f which is in-

ivolved in tliis litiiiation, is ])ossosse(l of any rii^ht to

lapprojiriate water. A decree of the state conrt whirh

!adjiulieated the riirlit to diveit water from the natnral

flow of the Ilnmholdt l\'i\('r, exju'essly pro\idcs that the

riglits therein contirnie(l are a|)purtenant to the plaec of

• use (K. 104), and the certilicates wliicli constitute the

'sole basis of the watei- riii:hts |)ossessed hy the Ilnmholdt

Lovelock Irritration Liiclit «S: Power Company provide

"that the liirlit to watei- lieichy determined is limited

to the amount which can he heiielicially used, not to ex-

ceed the amount al)Ove specified. (lUfl the use is restricted

to tlir |)lace where acquired and to th»' pur|io<e for which

'acquired" (K. 109-112).

it is cleai', therefore, that all water liirlits pos.'<e.H8od

hy the owner of the stock involved in this suit are v«'.««tpd

in the plaintitT. and under the doctrine enunciate«l hy the

Supreme Couit of Xevada in /'msoh- r. Stnimhont Canal

Conipnn//, ;!7 Xev. 154. 140 I'ac 7J(). plaintiff is entitled

to an easement in the ditches, reservoirs ami other irriKH-

tion works of the respective companies for the diversion,
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storage and conveyance of water from the place of diver-

sion to the point of use upon plaintiff's land.

It is appellant's contention, however, that not only the

right to receive water and to the use of the facilities of

the respective companies for the diversion, storage and

conveyance of water, are appurtenant to the land, but

the stock itself is appurtenant to the land, and that the

court erred in not so decreeing.

At the outset it should be noted that stock in the

hands of one other than the plaintiff has nothing more

than a nuisance value, since none of the companies has ;

ever been operated for profit, or has ever derived any in-

come except from assessments and charges collected from

their stockholders in amounts sufficient to cover only the

bare cost of maintenance and operation, or has ever en- •

gaged in any activity other than operating irrigation

works for the benefit of and as common agent for the

persons who have applied the water to a beneficial use, ;

or has ever owned or possessed any assets except irriga-

tion facilities which are subject to easements in favor of

the persons who have applied the water to a beneficial use. «

In this aspect, the situation here is much the same as that

described in Twim Falls L. & W. Co. v. Twin Falls Canal
,

Co., 7 Fed. Supp. 238 (affirmed C. C. A. 9, 79 Fed. (2) 431, I

certiorari denied 80 L. ed. 466), where the court said:
\

(I* * * Each share was then to represent a water

right plus a proportionate interest in the property

which plaintiff was to hold in trust for defendant

until the project was transferred to the latter. But

a water right can only exist when appropriated for

and appurtenant to land upon which a beneficial use
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of the flow can be made. They were, when issued,

only indicia of a water right dedicated to a definite

parcel of land. If sold and appurtenant to land, each

share constitutes a proportionate interest in the works

and the water. Unsold, a share is of potential value

only under peculiar conditions. It cannot be placed

on the market like industrial stock and sold to the

public at large. The purchaser must be in a position

to apply the water represented to a specific tract of

land, subject to irrigation from the original appro-

priation. The most potent factor is that when all the

water appropriated has been applied to a beneficial

use, a share of stock has no value, actual or potential,

except for nuisance purposes."

On the other hand, unless plaintiff is adjudged and

decreed to be the owner of the stock, plaintiff stands the

risk of being deprived of the enjoyment of the very

rights which the court held to be vested in plaintiff.

The articles of incorporation of the Humboldt-Lovelock

Irrigation Light & Power Company, as the findings show,

provide that holders of the Class A stock of that company

shall be entitled to the preferential right to the first 10,000

acre feet of water stored in the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir an-

nually, and that in the event that any Class A stock is

transferred apart from the land of its owner to a person

not the owner of Class A stock, the stock will immediately

become Class B stock. It is probable that the right to

receive water from the company is so far appurtenant to

the land that it will follow the land even though the stock

falls into the hands of other owners. But the articles of

incorporation do not so provide,—on the contraiy they
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provide just tiie opposite. The court has no power in i

these proceedings to pass upon the vaUdity of the com- :

pany's articles, and unless the articles are invalid, then,

in failing to decree that the plaintiff is the owner of the

stock of the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power

Company, the court has placed it within the power of the

defendant to deprive plaintiff of the preferential right to

receive from the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light &

Power Company the water which the court decided the

plaintiff was entitled to receive.

The situation in reference to the ditch and canal com-

panies is much the same. Plaintiff contended and the court

held that the canals and other facilities for the diversion

and transportation of water owned by these companies are

subject to easements in favor of the owners of the lands

which have been irrigated by means of water carried

through such canals and ditches. The fact remains, how-

ever, that the right to have the water transported through

the canals and ditches is evidenced by stock, and the stock

has no value except as evidence of that right. Accordingly,

in the event that the stock is ever transferred to a person

ignorant of the rights of the plaintiff as adjudicated in

this proceeding, it would be open for the purchaser of

such stock to contend that the plaintiff is not entitled to

the enjoyment of the right to the use of the ditches and

easements. While such a contention might be without

merit the adjudication made in this proceeding is not

binding upon any of the respective companies, nor would

an innocent purchaser of the stock be bound by it.

On the facts of the case as found by the court on un-

refuted evidence, it is manifest that the court erred in
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'failing to decree plaintiff to be the owner of the stock

free and clear of any claim of the defendant. The lands

referred to in the complaint had a value of between $50

and $100 an acre if irrigated, but a value of only $2.50

lan acre if not irrigated (R. 116); if deprived of water

from the Pitt-Taylor Reservoir the lands would have

a value of approximately one-half of the value placed upon

them as irrigated lands (R. 117) ; the water carried in the

ditches of the several ditch companies is devoted to a

beneficial use upon the lands referred to in the bill of com-

plaint (R. 54); there is no other way of irrigating the

I

lands than through the ditches mentioned (R, 56); in

making its loan to The Reno National Bank the Recon-

struction Finance Corporation relied on the representa-

tions of the executive vice president of The Reno National

Bank who was also the executive vice president of the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, that the lands

, were irrigated lands (R. 105).

I

In these circumstances the great weight of authority is

' that stock of corporations such as those here involved is

) appurtenant to the land.

In In re Thomas Estate, 147 Cal. 236, 81 Pac. 539, the

i California Supreme Court was called upon to decide

whether stock in a water company similar to those com-

panies involved in this suit should be distributed to the

residuary legatee or to the devisee of the real estate. The

I

court said:

I
"No by-laws were adopted or certificates of stock

issued in conformity with section 324 of the Civil

Code as amended in 1895, providing that shares of

stock in a water company, when the section is com-
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plied with, shall be appurtenant to the land described

in the certificate. But in this connection it is proper

to note the fact that the corporation was formed,

and its practice of distributing water to its stock-

holders established, more than three years before the

passage of this amendment, and while it is true that

nothing can be claimed by respondent under this law,

it remains equally true that if before its enactment

the water-right became appurtenant to the tract de-

vised to her by other lawful means the law has no

invalidating effect upon the right so acquired."
• **«***•

li* * *
-g^ji. 'I. ^QQg j^Q^ follow from this that the

shares in controversy could not be appurtenant to the

land. Conceding that they were so far personal prop-

erty that the decedent might have transferred the

water right by indorsement of the certificate, and

thereby have severed the water-right from his land,

it remains undeniablj^ true that the right represented

by the certificate—the right to receive eight hours'

run of water in his turn—was appurtenant to the

land, though deemed personal property with refer-

ence to the mode of transfer. In this view the stock

certificate was merely the evidence of a water-right,

which right, though capable of severance from the

land to which it had become appurtenant, never was

alienated or diverted by the decedent in his lifetime,

but remained appurtenant to the six acre tract at the

date of his will and at the time of his death. There-

fore it was entirely proper to direct a transfer of

the certificate to the respondent. It is her muniment

of title and passes with the right of which it is the

evidence, just as title deed should go to the dis-

tributee of real property.
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"Nor is it aii> ohjcctiori to tlio (lcon*o tluit the cor-

poratioji may Ix- interested in the dispoHition of itH

stock. It is not easy to hcc liow a corporation \h a

necessary i)arty to a controversy lietweeii third par-

ties as to the ownersliii) (!" particnhir sliares of its

stock; hut if tlie Trahnca Water Company hnH a

possibh' interest in tliis controversy it is not hound

hy the decree and remains free to maintain itn ad-

verse risfhts wlienever they are drawn in (inewtion."

lu re Joliiisoii's Estate, (14 I'tah 114. -JlN |>ac. 74S, T.W,

was a case involvini; sultstantiaily similar faets. It was

there held

:

"heeeased left a water rii^lit reprosente<l by 5f>i/o

shares of the ca])itai stock of the Tnion & .lonhm Irr.

C^impany, wliich, dnrinii: his lifetime, had lieen \\s(h\

for the irrigation of tlie land owne<i and left by him.

The water rights were aj)|)raised to^ethei' with and

as a i)art of the land. When Tract 15 was soM. I'JV*;

shares of the water stock was tiansferred with it.

A|)])ellants, elaiininj? the 44 remaining shares of water

stock as an a])purtenant to tract A of the real estate,

))ra>(Ml for its distribution to them. It wa> allege*!

and not denied that the water right was nsetl in

connection with tiu^ land, and that the land is of little

or no value without the water right. 'IMie trial court

found that the water right had been used for the

irrigation of the lands owned l)y tlie testator, but tliat

notwithstanding such use the same was jx-rsonal

propei'ty, and was not included in the devise to ai)pel-

lants. The (juestion is whether a water right so owne<l

and used will ])ass by tlie devise, without mention,

with the land as an appurtenance.

"* * * The right to the use of water for irrigation

is inseparately relate<l to land. Without its continne<i
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use upon land the right ceases. The customary prac-

tical presumption is that water rights used upon land

are appurtenant to and a part of it. In this arid

country, in most cases, 'farm lands' are valueless

without water. It is inconceivable that the testator in

this case intended to devise 'eleven acres above-men-

tioned of my farm land' and not include the water

rights, upon the use of which depends the enjoyment

and value of the property and without which it would

scarcely be 'farm land'.

"Upon principle and authority we conclude that the

water right referred to passed by the will as an

appurtenance to the land selected by the executor,

and that the same should be distributed to the appel-

lants with the land.

"The judgment appealed from is reversed and set

aside, and the district court directed to enter a decree

in accordance with this decision awarding and dis-

tributing the whole of Tract A of the real estate, as

described, together with the 44 shares of capital stock

of the Union & Jordan Irrigation Company, repre-

senting the water right, to appellants. The decree

should also include as an appurtenance to the land

devised the right of way reserved across tract B to

provide the necessary access from the public high-

way. With respect to the division of the property

devised between appellants, the court will make such

disposition in accordance with the will as the circum-

stances may require."

In Ireton v. Idaho Irrigation Company, 30 Idaho 310,

164 Pac. 687, it appeared that one Lansdon mortgaged to

Boise Title & Trust Company 160 acres of land, together

with all water rights owned by the mortgagor or belong-
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ing or coimeeted witli the mortgaged premises. 'V\\\>. mort-

igage was recoi-ded on .)aimai>- S, 1{)1-J and the mortgaged

jproi)orty was on the l.'Mli da\' of Maicli of the >ame year

'sold n|)()n the foreclosure of the mortgage, to the phiin-

tiff Ireton. At tlie time of the execution of the mortgage
I

;Lansdon was the owner of certain shares of stock in IVig

iWood River Reservoir & Canal Co. Ltd. The shares rep-

; resented a ])roportionate interest in certain irrigation

works and entitled the holder thereof to certain cpiantitios

of water. Water was actually delivered to and applied to

a heneficial nse upon the mortgaged hmds dining 1911.

Prior to the execution of the mortgage, naniel\. on .\pril

1, 1910, the defendant Lansdon had executed an agi-ee-

ment conferring npon the defendant Idaho liiigation Com-

pany, a lien upon the stock. This contract was not re-

corded, but after the recordation of the mortgage the stock

I

was transferred on the books of the company, the stock

I certificates were transferred to the defendant. Both the

i plaintiff and defendant claimed the stock. The Supreme

Court of Idaho held that the stock was ai)|)nrtenant to the

land and passed with the mortgage. In so doing the court

' said (]). (iS9):

*'Tt is contended by appellant that the shares of

stock in the operating company are personal prop-

erty, and that the water right passed by assignment

of them, and did not l)ecome subject to the mortgage

on the land. While shares of stock in an ordinary

corporation, organized for profit, are personal prop-

eity (Section 2747 Rev. Codes; State v. Dunlap, 28

Idaho 784, and cases therein cited on page S02. ]')(">

Pac. 1141), and while this court has held shares in an

irrigation company to be personal property (Watson
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V. Molden, 10 Idaho 570, 79 Pac. 503) the fact must

not be lost sight of that a water right is, as hereto-

fore shown, real estate, and that in case of a mutual

irrigation company, not organized for profit, but for

the convenience of its members in the management

of the irrigation system and in the distribution to

them of water for use upon their lands in proportion
]

to their respective interests, ownership of shares of

stock in the corporation is but incidental to owner-

ship of a water right. Such shares are muniments

of title to the water right, are inseparable from it,

and ownership of them passes with the title which li

they evidence. In re Thomas' Estate, 147 Cal. 236, J

81 Pac. 539; Berg v. Yakima Valley Canal Co., 83 '

Wash. 451, 145 Pac. 619, L. R. A. 1915D, 292.

"It follows that, since respondents' mortgage is

a prior lien upon the land and upon the water right

appurtenant thereto, their claim to the shares of

stock, which evidence that water right, is superior to «

that of appellant."

In Yellowstone Valley Company v. Associated Mort-

gage Investors, 88 Mont. 73, 290 Pac. 255, it appeared that

the plaintiff owned two tracts of land and also stock in a

mutual ditch company which provided irrigation for the

said land. To secure loans, the plaintiff owner executed

three mortgages on this land, each with a similar provision

covering all irrigation rights, whether represented by capi-
,

tal stock of ditch or water companies or by direct owner-

ship, and at the same time assigned the certificates repre- '

senting the water rights to the mortgagee. In applying

for the loans the plaintiff represented that the hinds were

irrigated and the mortgages were made on the basis of
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irrigated land values. Without irrigation the lands were

semi-arid in character and comparatively without value.

The loans were based on the value of the lands as irri-

gated lands with water rights attached thereto; without

water upon the lands the loan value upon the same would

have approximated less than 30% of the loan value for

irrigated lands ; the lands at all times required all the

water that could be secured from the ditch by the owners

of the shares of stock. The plaintiff being in default as to

the payment of the second and third of these mortgages,

the holder of them foreclosed and bid the property in at

the foreclosure sale. The sheriff's certificate of sale and

deed failed to mention the appurtenances, water, water

rights, or shares of stock, and this was a suit by the

plaintiff to recover possession of the shares of stock or

their value. It was held that while shares of stock in

an ordinary corporation, organized for profit, are personal

property, the fact could not be lost sight of that a water

right is real estate, and that in the case of a mutual irri-

gation company, not operated for profit, as in this case,

the ownership of shares of stock in the corporation is but

incidental to the ownership of a water right, and owner-

ship of them passes with the title which they evidence,

' subject, in this case, to the lien of the first mortgage. In

so doing, the court said

:

''Plaintiff's theory is that the shares of stock in

the Ditch Company are personal property, are not

and cannot be appurtenant to the land; that the stock

was liy])othecated to the defendant by way of pledge,

and, the pledge not being foreclosed when the de-

fendant bid in the lands for the full amount of the
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judgment, the stock was released from its pledge, and

the debt being paid, the defendant has no interest

therein.

"The determinative question is: Under the facts

and circumstances shown, did the mortgage include

the water rights represented by the shares of stock?

" * * * As is shown in the agreed statement of facts,

the land in question was irrigated, and without irriga-

tion was of little value. It appears conclusively that the

water obtained from the canal of the Big Ditch Com-

pany was essential to the use of the land in question,

and had been used thereon for thirty years or more.

Upon the facts shown there can be no question that

the water rights represented by the shares of stock

in the Big Ditch Company were appurtenant to the

lands. The authorities sustain this position. The fact

that the certificates of stock—evidences of ownership

of an interest in corporate property—are personal

property, does not militate against this statement.

Personal property can become an appurtenance to

land without attachment or annexation. * * *

"The doctrine announced in the foregoing cases

is suited to our history and conditions and meets

with our approval. Defendant's counsel cite decisions

from the Supreme Court of Colorado to sustain the

decision of the lower court, but with these we are

unable to agree.
j

"We do not overlook the point that whether a i

water right evidenced by shares of stock is appur-

tenant to the land upon which the water is used is

a question of fact. But, upon the conceded facts,
j

that question does not trouble us: clearly, the water

is appurtenant to the land. Such being the case,

the governing rule is that everything essential to
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the beneficial use and enjoyment of the property-

conveyed is, in the absence of language indicating

a different intention on the part of the grantor, to

be considered as passing by the conveyance. Sheets

V. Seldon, 2 Wall. 177, 17 L. ed. 822. The owner of

land with an appurtenant water right may by appro-

priate conveyance, convey the land to one person

and the water right to another. But, if he conveys

the land without reservation, he also conveys the

appurtenance and whatever is incidental to the land.

He therefore conveys the appurtenant water rights,

unless he expressly reserves them. If the water rights

are represented by stock in an irrigation company

such as the Big Ditch, he may, of course transfer

the water right by mere assignment of the stock to

one person and may convey the land by deed to an-

other person. As a matter of course, controversies

may arise in transactions of this nature in which it

may be necessary to ascertain whether a grantor

has intended to sell the water to one person and the

land to another. But here, where it is clear that the

mortgagor intended to convey both the land and the

appurtenant water to the mortgagee to secure the

payment of debt, the question does not arise." (page

257)

From the foregoing authorities we submit that the

conclusion follow^s inevitably that the shares are muni-

ments of title to the water rights which are admittedly

vested in the plaintiff; that they are inseparable from

those rights and that ownership of the shares passes with

the title which they evidence. Such being the case, the

shares passed with the conveyance of the land l)y John

G. Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc. on April 9, 1930 and
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became subject to the mortgage of the lands executed by

John G. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National Bank and

passed with the conveyance under the decree foreclosing

that mortgage to plaintiff's predecessor in interest and

by mesne conveyances to the plaintiff. The shares being

appurtenant to the land and passing with the conveyance

thereof, it is obvious that the bank, of which the de-

fendant is the receiver, acquired no lien upon the stock

by virtue of the pledge agreement executed by John G.

Taylor more than two years after he had parted with

ownership of the land to which thej^ were appurtenant.

The District Court declined to decree the plaintiff to

be the owner of the shares free from any claim of the

defendant, on the ground that while the companies had

no water rights, the stock might nevertheless represent

some other more or less valuable rights, saying in this

connection

:

"A reference to the articles of incorporation of the

several companies do not disclose that they were

organized for the sole or primary purpose of supply-

ing water for irrigation of any particular land. In

the case of the Humboldt Lovelock Light and Power

Company, as indicated by its name, it was incor-

porated for other purposes in addition to that of

storing and transporting water for irrigation. Stock

therein might necessarily have a value for reasons

wholly distinct from the matter of supplying water

for irrigation of lands which, by its charter, is not

confined to any definite tracts." (R. 42)

The District Court overlooked the fact that the by-laws

of the Humboldt-Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power Com-

pany provided as follows:
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"Sec. 1. Tlie proper irrigation of lands belonging

to the stockholders of tliis Company shall always be

this Company's primary object, and during the irri-

gating seasons no waters of this Company shall ever

be used for any other purpose if such waters are

necessary to properly irrigate the lands of the Com-

pany's stockholders." (R. 132)

Irrespective of this fact, however, it is well settled that the

provisions of the Articles and By-Laws of the respective

companies are immaterial in determining whether or not

the shares are appurtenant to the lands. None of the com-

panies has any tangible assets except works for the di-

version, transportation and storage of water. These assets

are subject to the right of its shareholders to the beneficial

use thereof in proportion to their stockholdings, upon

payment only of the cost of maintenance. The court has

found and held that this right to the beneficial use of the

assets of the respective companies, insofar as the same

is represented by the shares involved in this litigation, is

vested in the plaintiff, and not in the defendant. The

Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation Light & Power Company,

unlike the other companies, owns, in addition to works for

the diversion and storage of water, certain water rights.

But these rights the court found to be held by the com-

pany for the beneficial use of its shareholders, and that

the plaintiff and not the defendant is entitled to the right

evidenced by the stock in question to the beneficial use of

the water. None of the companies have been operated for

profit. Each of them has been operated as a coinnioii

agency or instrumentality of the owners of the land serve* 1

bv their facilities. In these circumstances, the only right
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which the stock can evidence other than the beneficial

rights vested in the plaintiff, is a bare proportionate

interest in the naked corporate franchise of the respective

companies. This right can become valuable, if at all, only

in the event that the companies engage in a business

activity other than that of diverting, transporting and

storing water. Since all of the companies have been in

existence for more than a quarter of a century and none

of them has engaged in any business or activity other than

that of diverting, transporting and storing water, we sub-

mit that the right in the naked corporate franchise is so

inconsequential and utterly speculative as to make it ap-

propriate for the court to apply the doctrine of de minimis

non curat lex.

Quite apart from this fact, however, the evidence estab-

lishes that so far as the actual operation of the several

companies involved in this litigation is concerned, there

is nothing to distinguish them from the water companies

involved in the cases of In re Johnson's Estate (Utah)

228 Pac. 748; Ireton v. Idaho Irrigation Co. (Idaho) 164

Pac. 687; Yellowstone Valley Co. v. Associated Mortgage

Investors (Montana) 290 Pac. 255; In re Thomas' Estate

(Cal.) 81 Pac. 539, and other decisions, in which the courts

have held the stock to be appurtenant to the land so as to

entitle a transferee or mortgagee of the land to the stock

certificates. Whether or not the Articles of Incorporation

of the several companies involved in this action restrict

them to diverting, transporting and storing water for the

benefit of their stockholders, it must be borne in mind

that the Articles of Incorporation are in no sense con-
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[trolling. The character of a corporation is to he dotcr-

' mined by what it does and not by what it may do under

jits Articles of Incorporation. Southern CaUfoDi'ui Edisox

; Co. V. R. R. Commission, 194 Cal. 757, 7(53, I^.IO Pac. {\{\\ -,

Del Mar Water Co. v. Eshleman, 167 Cal. ()()(), 140 Pac.

591, 948.

In the case of In re Thomas' Estate, 147 Cal. 236, 81

l*ac. 539, neither the Articles nor the By-Laws restricted

the iK)wers of the corporation there involved to diverting,

transporting or storing water for the benefit of its stock-

holders. As a matter of fact, however, it had confined its

activities to doing that and nothing more. The court said

this had been done, not in pursuance of any by-laws for-

mally inscribed in the records of the corporation, but

solely in accordance with a common understanding of the

stockholders. The court held that the stock was neverthe-

less appurtenant to the land so as to entitle a transferee

of the land to the stock certificates.

It is, therefore, clear that notwithstanding the breadth

or scope of the powers conferred upon the respective

ditch and reservoir companies by their Articles and By-

laws, the stock was and is appurtenant to the land so as

to pass by conveyance thereof, with the i-esult that de-

fendant cannot, as against plaintiff, assert any interest in

or lien upon the stock.
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II. THE DEFENDANT NOT BEING AN INNOCENT PURCHASER

OK, ENCUMBRANCER FOR VALUE CANNOT ASSERT A LIEN

ON THE STOCK ADVERSE TO PLAINTIFF.

(a) Assignments of Error Involved:

''10.

"The Court erred in failing to find that at the

time the pledge agreement and loan described in

Finding XV were made, John G. Taylor had no

right, title or interest in or to said water stocks and

that the interest of John G. Taylor, Inc., therein was

subject to the mortgage theretofore made by John

G. Tayloi', Inc. to The Reno National Bank, and that

the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company at

all said times had notice and knowledge that said

water stocks had theretofore been sold by John G.

Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc. and by the latter

mortgaged to The Reno National Bank." (R. 72)

'*7.

"The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the deed described in Finding X, said water stocks

were sold, assigned and transferred by John G. Tay-

lor to John G. Taylor, Inc., a corporation." (R. 71)

"The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the mortgage referred to in Finding XI and XII,

said water stocks were mortgaged by John G. Taylor,

Inc. to The Reno National Bank." (R. 71)

"The Court erred in failing to find that, by virtue

of the transactions described in Finding XXII, plain-
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tift" is now the owner and entitled to the possession

of said water stocks." (R. 72)

(b) Discussion:

Irrespective of whether the water stocks in question

passed as an appurtenance to the lands now owned by

appellant, the transactions siiown by the record were suf-

ficient to constitute a conveyance and mortgage of the

stock, and by foreclosure of the mortgage appellant is the

owner thereof. The record shows that the banks, of which

respondent is receiver, had knowledge of these transac-

tions prior to parting with anything of value, and there-

fore, not being bona fide purchasers without notice, the

lien of respondent is subordinate to the rights of appellant.

John G. Taylor on June 9, 1930, was unquestionably the

owner of both the lands and the water stocks. The waters

stored and transmitted by the water companies for years

previously had been used to irrigate the lands in question.

The deed of June 9, 1930, from Taylor to John G. Taylor,

Inc. conveyed "all shares of stock of any water corpora-

tion appurtenant to said lands or the waters from which

are used or have been used in connection with the irriga-

tion ur cultivation thereof" (R. 79). As between the

parties this transfer was valid and vested title in the stock

to John G. Taylor, Inc. Although not transferred on the

books of the water companies from the name of John G.

Taylor, he held the stock thereafter merely as a trustee

for the company.

12 Fletcher, Cyclopedia Corporations 293.

Tlio record also shows that it was intended by the

mortgage from John G. Taylor, Inc. to The Reno National
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Bank to mortgage all the property which that company

then owned. In this connection Mr. Sheehan testified

(R. 146):

''At the time we attempted to consolidate the

Taylor loans in the early part of 1932, there was

discussion of security with Mr. Taylor, and he fur-

nished a list of all his property, both that of John

G. Taylor, Inc. and of himself personally. I do not

recall that the water stocks were specifically men-

tioned. He agreed to furnish as collateral everything

that he had. He complied with our request that he

furnish as collateral all the stock in the various cor-

porations. * * *

"There was considerable discussion in the early

part of 1932 about the consolidation of the Taylor

loans, which were previously unsecured. Several dis-

cussions were had, both with Mr. Taylor and with

the officials of the Reconstruction Finance Corpora-

tion. It was repeatedly stated that all of the property

of John G. Taylor, Inc. and John G. Taylor was to

be put up as security. Following these conversations

the loans were consolidated into a single loan of

$700,000, represented by note from John G. Taylor,

Inc. to The Reno National Bank, secured by chattel

mortgage and real estate mortgage. At the time the

real estate mortgage was being prepared, Mr. Taylor

was told that he was expected to give all the security

which his company had, and he agreed to do so. This

note and the mortgages were later assigned to the

Reconstruction Finance Corporation, which advanced

to The Reno National Bank more than One Million

Dollars."

Irrespective of the sufficiency of the description in that

mortgage, and irrespective of compliance with statutory



requirements as to the form of the mortgage, this mort-

gage was good as between the parties {Jones on Chattel

Mortgages, 5th ed., p. 3; 11 C. J. 454).

i
Section 987, Compiled Laws of Nevada, which provides

that a mortgage of chattels "is void as against creditors

of the mortgagor and subsequent purchasers and encum-

brancers of the property in good faith and for value"

unless certain atfidavits (admittedly not here present) be

attached, is not here involved, since it appears that the

. state banks for which defendant is receiver had notice

and knowledge prior to the time that they parted with

anything of value that the water stocks in question were

no longer owned by Taylor but were subject to the mort-

gage held by the R. F. C. made by John G. Taylor, Inc.

I Section 987, Nevada Compiled Laws, has not in its pres-

ent form been construed by the Nevada courts. It is,

however, identical in terms with Section 2957 of the Cali-

fornia Civil Code. The California statute has been con-

strued as available only to one who at the time he parted

with value had no knowledge of a prior mortgage not

executed with the requisite formalities.

I

Works V. Merritt, 105 Cal. 467

;

Treat v. Burns, 216 Cal. 216.

Such statutes have also been construed as applicable

only to tangible personal property and not applying to

corporate stocks or other choses in action.

Westinghouse etc. Co. v. Brooklyn R. T. Co., 288

Fed. 221;

Jones on Chattel Mortgages (5th ed.). Sec. 278.
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No evidence was introduced respecting the alleged at-

tachment liens of the three state banks for which re-

spondent was receiver, and the only lien claimed by re-

spondent as to which any evidence is shown of record is

that derived through the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company under an alleged pledge agreement from John

G. Taylor personally. The record shows that this pledge

agreement was made approximately two months after the

transaction between John G. Taylor, Inc. and The Reno

National Bank and after assignment of that mortgage to

the R. F. C. It was not until several weeks after the date i

of the pledge agreement that the Bank of Nevada Sav-

ings & Trust Company made any advances or parted with ^

value. At the time the pledge agreement was taken and

at the time the Nevada Bank loaned money on the strength

thereof, that bank had knowledge of the prior mortgage.

The Nevada Bank was owned by the same stockholders,

occupied the same banking rooms and had the same offi-

cers, directors and personnel as The Reno National Bank,
j

The Nevada Bank transaction was handled by the same

Mr. Sheehan who had handled the transaction between

John G. Taylor, Inc. and The Reno National Bank and

the assignment of that mortgage to the R. F. C. Sheehan \

testified that he knew that The Reno National Bank mort-
J

gage was intended to cover everything which John G.

Taylor, Inc. possessed; that the lands in question attained

their value primarily by virtue of their possibility of irri- j

gation derived through the facilities of the water com-

panies whose stocks are here involved. Sheehan testified

that in connection with the subsequent Nevada Bank
;



35

transaction he did not see (and therefore could not have

relied upon) the pledge agreement signed by Taylor per-

sonally, on which defendant's lien is founded. In fact,

Sheehan testified that he had not seen the certificates

representing these stocks throughout that period until he

saw them at the trial. His signature appears as a witness

to the endorsement of John G. Tajior on the stock cer-

tificates in question (R. 143). In light of his testimony,

Sheehan could have witnessed Taylor's signature only in

connection with some antecedent transaction, confirming

his description of The Reno National Bank transaction, as

to which he testified (R. 147)

:

"At the time the real estate mortgage was being pre-

pared Mr. Taylor was told that he was expected to

give all the security which his company had, and he

agreed to do so."

The knowledge acquired by Sheehan, who was the sole

representative of the Nevada Bank in the transaction

relied on by respondent, cannot be repudiated merely be-

cause Sheehan acquired that knowledge while acting for

The Reno National Bank. The knowledge possessed by an

agent of two or more corporations is attributable to each

irrespective of the capacity in which such knowledge was

acquired.

Restatement of the Law of Agency, §276;

Cook V. American T. d W. Co. (R. L) 65 Atl. 641;

Louisville Trust Co. v. Louisville R. R. Co., 75 Fed.

433.

The deed of June 9, 1930, was sufficient to pass title to

the water stocks from Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc. The
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mortgage of March 12, 1932 was intended to and did mort-

gage that stock to The Reno National Bank and by fore-

closure of that mortgage appellant is now the owner of

the stock. While it is true that when the stock was per-

mitted to remain in the name of John G. Taylor indi-

vidually, a bona fide purchaser for value of the stock

from Taylor might be protected, and while such a pur-

chaser would be entitled to the benefit of Section 987, Ne-

vada Compiled Laws, in view of the fact that the mortgage

did not contain the affidavit thereby required, respondent

is not such a bona fide purchaser. As receiver he can stand

in no better place than the banks for which he is acting.

These banks at the time they parted with value had knowl-

edge of the conveyance of the stock from Taylor to the

corporation and of the mortgage by the corporation to

The Reno National Bank. Having actual knowledge of

these transactions, informalities or irregularities in the

transfer of the mortgage cannot be relied on and liens

asserted based on transactions entered into with such

knowledge are subordinate to the interest of the prior

purchaser or encumbrancer. Appellant, therefore, having

succeeded, through foreclosure of The Reno National Bank

mortgage, to the title to the property affected thereby, is

now the owner of the stock and entitled to its possession

as against respondent.

It is respectfully submitted that the decree should be

reversed, with instructions to enter a decree adjudging

appellant to be the owner of the stocks described in the
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complaint, free from any claim of respondent, and direct-

ing the surrender of such stocks to appellant.

Eespectfully submitted,

Maurice E. Harrison,

T. W, Dahlquist,

James S. Moore, Jr.,

Attorneys for Appellant.

Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison,

Orrick, Dahlquist, Neff & Herrington,

Of Counsel.
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The Suit Is Inequitable and Unconscionable

As was stated by the learned trial Judge in his

Opinion upon the Merits (Tr. Rec. 35), ''This is a suit

in equity." Though the Bill of Complaint was filed on

the equity side of the Court, the facts disclosed by the

record establish the suit to be inequitable and uncon-



scionable. While the trial Court reached its conclusion

in favor of Appellees upon the law of the case, it is

respectfully submitted that consideration of equitable

principles involved is primarily essential.

The suit was brought to recover certain certificates

of stock in the possession of the appellee receiver. The

first pertinent inquiry is, how did the Receiver come

into possession of these stock certificates? It is ad-

mitted that they were among the files of the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company when the Receiver

took over its assets. (Tr. Rec. 149). In other words,

they were obtained while the bank was a going institu-

tion, and while the Reno National Bank (whose suc-

cessor in interest brought this suit) was likewise an

open operating bank. Therefore, it seems proper to

state, that whether this suit is equitable or not depends

upon the situation that existed while both banks were

open and doing a general banking business and prior

to respective receiverships, assignment or substitutions.

What was this situation?

A receiver stands in no different position as to the

obligations of a bank at the time of his appointment

than the bank.

Organ v. Winnemucca State Bank 6f Trust Co.,

26 Pac. Rep. (2) Nev. 237, 238.

Preliminarily, it is most important to observe that

both banks were operated and controlled by a common

and interlocking director. As pleaded in the com-

plaint (Tr. Rec. 9-10) and in defendants' answer (Tr.

Rec. 27), and as Mr. Jerry Sheehan, vice-president and

director of both banks, testified, ''The personnel and

directorate of both banks was the same, the same per-



sons acting in an equivalent capacity for both through-

out the period I was there. Both banks conducted their

business in the same banking room." (Tr. Rec. 145. See

also Appellant's Brief, page 8). Therefore, this common
management being a conceded fact, is it proper and

legal that one bank may be deliberately managed to

the detriment of the other and its depositors? Or, to

put it another way, is it legal and proper that one bank

may deliberately take a financial benefit at the expense

of the other? If the answer be in the affirmative, then

this suit is at least equitable. If it be in the negative,

then the suit is inequitable and unconscionable and

should be dismissed. Keeping in mind the common

directorate, what are briefly the essential conceded

facts surrounding the instant transaction!

The Reno National Bank loaned John G. Taylor, Inc.,

$700,000 and took its note and real estate mortgage.

The transaction w^as handled by Mr. Jerry Sheehan,

vice-president and director of this bank and the Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Company. Later, the

same corporation wanted to borrow $32,500.00 more. Its

president, John G. Taylor, interviewed the same Mr.

Sheehan, and was told substantially that the corpora-

tion could have the money, but it would be loaned out

of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company. Se-

curity was required, and Mr. Taylor pledged his per-

sonally owned, duly endorsed stock certificates as ac-

ceptable security. These are the stock certificates in

controversy here. Mr. Sheehan himself witnessed Mr.

Taylor's endorsement signatures. He also initialed the

notes and made notation in his own hand-writing to

indicate the purpose of the loan. (Tr. Rec. 145). The

stock certificates were placed in the files of that bank

and the money loaned was taken out of that bank, and

though the loan was manifestly approved by the com-



mon directorate and its common vice-president, Mr.

Sheehan, the Reno National Bank, through its succes-

sors and substituted party in interest, is suing here to

deprive the other bank of the only securities it had for

the loan, and permitting that bank to hold the empty

sack. Though in effect, the Reno National Bank through

the common directorate authorized the loan and in-

structed the appellee bank to accept the security, it

now sues to recover the security and makes no tender or

offer to reimburse the appellee bank. Such a proceed-

ing, it is respectfully submitted, is revolting to all prin-

ciples of equity. More than this, the common directorate

owed an equal duty of fairness and protection to both

banks. By approving the loan from the Bank of Nevada

and accepting the security, it could not properly in law

authorize the Reno National Bank to sue for the pos-

session of the security unless at least it first reim-

bursed in full the former bank for the money taken out

of its vaults. The duty of a common directorate of two

banking institutions has been well defined by the Su-

preme Court of the United States and Circuit and Dist-

rict Courts of the Ninth Circuit

:

"The relation of directors to corporations is of

such a fiduciary nature that transactions between
boards having common members are regarded as

jealously by the law as are personal dealings be-

tween a director and his corporation, and where
the fairness of such transactions is challenged the

burden is upon those who would maintain them to

show their entire fairness and where a sale is in-

volved the fnll adequacy of the consideration. Es-

pecially is this true where a common director is

dominating in influence or in character. This court

has been consistently emphatic in the application of

this rule, which, it has declared, is founded in sound-

est morality, and we now add in the soundest busi-

ness policy. Twin-Lick Oil Co. v. Marbury, 91 U. S.

5S7, 588; Thomas v. Brownville, Ft. Kearney &
Pacific R. R. Co., 109 U. S. 522 ; Wardell v. Bail-



road Co., 103 U. S. 651, 658; Corsicana National
Bank v. Johnson, 251, U. S. 68, 90."

Geddes v. Anaconda Mining Co., 254 U. S.

590, 599,65 Law Ed. 425, Citation from pa^e
432.

The Geddes ease, supra, was an appeal from the

Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, and while the decision

of the latter court (245 Fed. 225) was reversed, there

was no substantial disagreement respecting the rule ap-

plicable in cases of interlocking directors. (See page

235). See also opinions in same case by Hunt, Circuit

Judge, sitting as trial judge, 197 Fed. 860, 864, and

Bourquin District Judge, 222 Fed. 133. See also

Idaho-Oregon Light & P. Co. v. State Bank of Chicago,

224 Fed 39 ; 14A Cor. Jur. 125.

In a former opinion in another case in the United

States District Court for the District of Nevada, in-

volving the same appellee receiver as plaintiff, and the

Reconstruction Finance Corporation as defendant, the

same question of common and interlocking directors

was involved. In an opinion rendered by Judge Nor-

cross, there appears the following excerpt:

"It appears from the evidence that all of the

several banks involved are a part of what is re-

ferred to in the briefs as the Wingfield chain of

banks. It appears from the record that the presi-

dent and vice-president of the Reno National Bank
were respectively president and vice-president of all

of the other banks referred to in the complaint. It

also appears from the evidence that the Board of

Directors of all of the banks mentioned in the com-

plaint were the same, or at least a majority thereof

were members of the Board of Directors of the

Reno National Bank. The rule is well settled that

where two or more corporations are controlled by

the same or substantially the same board of_ di-

rectors, in transactions between such corporations

so dominated, in order for the same to be enforce-



able against a corporation a party to any such
agreement, it must appear that the agreement is

advantageous to the corporation against whom
such agreement or obligation is sought to be en-

forced."

Schmitt V. Reconstruction Finance Corporation

20 Fed. Supp. 813.

A further brief analysis of the instant situation is as

follows

:

The Reno National Bank entered into a contractual

relation with John G. Taylor, Inc., by and through

which it loaned the corporation a substantial sum of

money and took its security. Later, through the same

board of directors, the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company entered into a contractual relation with the

same corporation, by and through which it loaned the

corporation a substantial sum of money and took ap-

proved security. The Reno National Bank, through this

suit, is now attempting to take away from the Bank of

Nevada the benefits (the security) derived through the

contractual relation and placing these benefits with the

Reno National Bank. It is believed that in all con-

science, law and equity, this may not be done.
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WHAT THE APPELLANT FIRST CONTENDS

The equitable considerations above submitted are not

presented or argued in appellant's opening brief. It

first contends that its predecessor in interest had a real

estate mortgage, which, it asserts, carried with it a

pledge of the stock in controversy here. This we re-

spectfully deny, and the point will later be discussed in

detail. Attention, however, is invited to the estab-

lished fact that the stock was never assigned or deliv-

ered, as such, to the Reno National Bank, for the record

conclusively shows that it was pledged definitely to the

Bank of Nevada. Further, the record is clear that dur-

ing the entire transaction, the Reno National Bank

never treated the stock as pledged to it, nor did it ever

make demand that it be pledged. On the contrary,

through its common directorate it actively considered

the stock as unpledged and accepted it as security for

a loan from another bank over which it had exclusive

control. Is it not clear, therefore, that whatever pos-

sible claim it may have had to the stock as security, it

manifestly waived and forfeited by not only yielding

the stock to the other bank, but approving it as secur-

ity for the loan? As has heretofore been stated, an

attempt to repudiate that transaction by suit and fur-

ther to attempt to take away what had been authorita-

tively given and upon which a substantial amount of

money had been loaned, is evidence of the utmost bad

faith. If the appellant prevails, the common directorate

will have accomplished two results. First, it will add to

the assets of one bank by taking away security without

consideration from another bank. Second, it will dim-

inish the assets of one bank to the benefit of the other,

and in addition, cause the one bank to suffer a loss of

$32,500.00, plus interest due. It is respectively submit-
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ted that such conduct by a common directorate is con-

demned by the Federal Courts of this country.

Lack of equities and the unconscionable nature of this

suit were specially pleaded by the Fourth, Further,

Separate and Affirmative Defense set up in defendants

Answer (Tr. Rec. 30-31).

The Mortgage Relied Upon by Appellant, with Re-

spect to Personal Property, Is Absolutely Void

As Against Creditors.

We have urged the equitable considerations involved

as conclusive against the plaintiff-appellant ; and though

the appellant relies in part for recovery upon the con-

struction of the real estate mortgage introduced in evi-

dence herein, it is respectfully urged that equity estops

and forbids recovery however the mortgage might be

construed. It is, however, contended that the real estate

mortgage includes by blanket reference, all personal

property owned by John G. Taylor, Inc., and that this

personal property includes the shares of stock in con-

troversy here. This contention likewise may not be

sustained.

It is respectfully submitted that this real estate mort-

gage, insofar as it includes personal property, is ab-

solutely void as against creditors, and as against these

defendants who are confessedly creditors. As respect-

ing personal property, the mortgage was not executed

in conformity with the statutes and laws of the State of

Nevada in that it bears no affidavits that the mortgage

was made in good faith and not for the purpose of

hindering, delaying, or defrauding creditors. (State-

ment Evidence in Tr. Rec. 81). It is, therefore, urged,

that as against the defendants, the mortgage carried



nothing by way of encumbrance except the real estate,

and no claim of lien for any personal property included

therein may be successfully made against the defendant.

The statutes of Nevada with respect to chattel mort-

gages provide, among other things, as follows:

''MORTGAGE VOID UNLESS MADE IN
GOOD FAITH AND RECORDED.

Sec. 3. A mortgage of personal property is void as
against creditors of the mortgagor and subsequent
purchasers or incumbrancers of the mortgaged
property in good faith and for value, unless

:

1. There is appended or annexed thereto the

affidavits of the mortgagors and mortgagee,
or some person in their behalf, setting forth

that said mortgage is made in good faith,

and without any design to hinder, delay or

defraud creditors.

2. It is acknowledged or proved, certified and
recorded in like manner as grants of real

property.

N. C. L. 1929, Vol. 1, Sec. 987.

The mortgage in question here contains no appended

or annexed affidavits of the mortgagor and mortgagee

or some person in their behalf setting forth that the

said mortgage was made in good faith and without any

design to hinder, delay or defraud creditors. That be-

ing the fact, it must be declared, under the statute just

cited, that with respect to the personal property, it is

.void against the defendants in this suit.

f "By statute in manv jurisdictions, the mortgage

must be verified as to its good faith, consideration,

etc., by a sufficient affidavit annexed to and re-

corded with the mortgage to make it vahd agamst

creditors of the mortgagor and purchasers of the

property covered by the mortgage, and the omission

is not remedied by a subsequent affidavit without

again recording the instrument or by an affidavit

of renewal stating the requisite facts, including the
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averment of good faith. So, where the chattel
mortgagor neither signed the affidavit required by
statute nor was sworn to the facts therein required,
it doesn't render the instrument valid that he went
before a notary public for the purpose and with
the intent of performing every act required by law
to make the instrument a valid mortgage. But be-

tween the parties and as to third persons who have
no rights against the mortgagor, no affidavit is

necessary. As these statutes are in derogation of

the common law, they must be strictly construed.
No affidavit describing the debt for which the mort-
gage was given is necessary to a common-law mort-
gage. The want of an affidavit or a defective one,

is cured where the mortgagee takes possession of

the property before the rights of third persons
intervene. '

'

11 C. J. Page 481, Sec. 125.

This principle has been declared by adjudications of

courts of last resort in various jurisdictions and it

would be superflous to burden the record with a

lengthy citation of authorities. A large number of

them are cited in the footnotes of the text hereinabove

quoted. The rule applies with equal force to chattel

mortgages as such and to so-called real estate mort-

gages including a description of personal property.

"There was a large quantity of personal prop-

erty taken possession of by the receiver, and it ap-

pears a considerable portion thereof realized upon,

and the funds have been used by the receiver in his

management and control of the properties. There
was no affidavit of the mortgagor that any mort-

gage of personal property was made in good
faith and without any design to hinder, delay, and
defraud creditors, and it was not recorded as a

chattel mortgage." Section 1648 1 Hill's Code is

as follows: 'A mortgage of personal property is

void as against creditors of the mortgagor or sub-

sequent purchasers, and incumbrances of the prop-

erty for value and in good faith, unless it is ac-

companied by the affidavit of the mortgagor that
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it is made in good faith, and without any design
to hinder, delay or defraud creditors, and it is

acknowledged and recorded in the same manner as
is required by law in conveyance of real property.'
Section 1649 provides: 'A mortgage of personal
property must be recorded in the office of the

county auditor in which the mortgaged property
is situated, in a book kept exclusively for that pur-

pose.' The plain literal meaning of these sections

is against the contention of plaintiff that it has any
lien whatever upon the personal property in the

possession of the receiver, as against these peti-

tioners. There is no evidence whatever that the

petitioners had any notice of the existence of any
chattel mortgage in favor of the plaintiff. Counsel
for plaintiff and receiver argued that, as peti-

tioners as creditors have not negatived notice of

knowledge on their part, it should be inferred

against them: but this would be a novel rule, and
one that we have never seen applied. Such allega-

tion and proof of notice should come from the one

claiming the personal property under the alleged

mortgage. But we are not prepared to decide that

in any view, there could be here a chattel mort-

gage as against these creditors. In Willamette

Casket Co. v. Cross Undertaking Co. 12 Wash. 190,

40 Pac. 729, this court held a mortgage void, as to

subsequent creditors which was not recorded in a

reasonable time after its execution. The Court

said ' * The language of the statute and these author-

ities satisfy us that it was the intention of the legis-

lature to give no preference to a chattel mortgagee

over the claims of creditors who should become

such after its execution, unless it was recorded

within a reasonable time after its execution."

(Citing several authorities)

48 Pac. 333, particularly at Page 338.

It will be observed from an examination of the case

just cited that the mortgage declared void, as to its

effect upon personal property included therein, was m
fact a real estate mortgage, and to that extend was

similar to the character of mortgage relied upon by



12

the plaintiff in the case at bar. It is evident from the

evidence, that the Reno National Bank acquired its

real estate mortgage from John G. Taylor, Inc. with-

out the necessary affidavits, as to the personal property

included, being appended or annexed thereto. That

subsequently, John G. Taylor, Inc. became a debtor

of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company in

the sum of $32,500.00 and that John G. Taylor de-

posited by way of pledge with said bank, water stock

in controversy here, as collateral. Up to that time,

no demand had been made upon the Taylor corporation

by the Reno National Bank for the delivery of the stock

nor had any demand been made by the plaintiff assignee

in this case, upon the Reno National Bank for the de-

livery of the stock, nor has any demand been made by

plaintiff assignee upon John G. Taylor, or upon John

G. Taylor, Inc. for delivery of the stock up to the filing

of the present suit. If any such demands were made,

no evidence has been introduced to establish them. In

other words, the Reno National Bank and its assignee,

the Reconstruction Finance Corporation, plaintiff, not

only consented and authorized the pledging of the stock

to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, but

both are in addition to this, in possession of a real

estate mortgage which, in the law, establishes no lien

upon the stock. Before the suit was brought or before

any contention at all arose with respect to the posses-

sion of this stock, the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company became a creditor of John G. Taylor, Inc.,

through a loan of $32,500.00 and holds the note of John

G. Taylor, Inc. and John G. Taylor together with the

pledged stock and a collateral agreement. As such,

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company and the

receiver together wdth the attaching lien creditors-

defendants became intervening creditors in possession

of collateral absolutely unencumbered.
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It therefore follows, tlial the Keiio Xational iiaiik

never had any elaim upon the stock throu^di the ko-

called real estate mortgage, that the mortgage was
void as to the personal property ineluded as against

the claim of the intervening creditor, Bank of Nevada
Savings & Trust Company, and the attaching lien

creditors-defendants, and that the plaintiff assignee,

the Reconstruction Finance Corporation, stands in tlic

same position as its assignor, the Reno National I')ank.

In the case of Alferitz, et al. vs. Scott, 62 Pac. 7.}'),

a California case, the Court, on page I'M], hohls as

follows

:

**When the mortgage was recorded, it had at-

tached to it no affidavit of the mortgagee, or of

any person in his behalf, stating that the mortgage
was made in good faith, and without any design
to hinder, delay or defraud creditors." Subdivision
I Sec. 2957, Cov. Code reads as follows: "A mort-
gage of personal property is void as against cred-

itors of the mortgagor and subsequent purchasers
and incumbrancers of the property in good faith

and for value, unless, 1. It is accompanied by the

affidavit of all the parties thereto that it was made
in good faith and without any design to hinder, de-

lay or defraud creditors." This section of the code

requires the affidavit of all the parties to the mort-

gage to accompany it when recorded, but not ne-

cessarily all the members of a corporation or co-

partnership where the mortgage is made to or by

such corporation or co-partnership. Bank vs. Owens
121 Cal. 223, 53 Pac. 552. The subsequent affidavit

made by the mortgagee without recording the in-

strument was not a compliance with the statute,

and gave no additional validity to the mortgage;

and, had it been recorded after the affidavit of the

mortgagee was attached thereto, it would have been

noticed only from the date of recordation. The

creditors of the mortgagors had notice of no other

mortgage than such as they found recorded, and,

laeking'as it did the essential already pointed out,

they could proceed by attachment against the prop-
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erty then in possession of the mortgagors regard-
less of the alleged lien. The judgment was af-

firmed. '

'

And so it is here. The mortgage upon which plain-

tiff relies, did not contain the necessary affidavits re-

quired by the statute. The receiver of the various state

banks as is admitted by the pleadings, attached the

stock, which was not in law a part of the mortgage, for

the reason, among others, that the mortgage did not

contain the necessary statutory affidavits. It was, there-

fore, void as to the receiver, and the attaching defen-

dants herein. The property, namely, the water stock in

question, was in the possession of an independent third

party, and so far as the mortgage in question is con-

cerned, it was free from all liens and encumbrances and

subject to pledge.

A matter of further great vital importance, which

must be taken into consideration, is that it was not

John G. Taylor, Inc., but John G. Taylor personally,

who pledged his stock as security for the loan by the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Co. This corporation

mortgage gave no information whatever as to the pers-

onal holdings of John G. Taylor. The mortgage only af-

fected the property of the corporation so that under

no circumstances may it be assumed that the mortgage

in question gave any notice to attaching creditors or

third parties or anyone else, as to any liens or encum-

brances upon any property, real or personal, of any

kind, character or nature, held, owned, or possessed by

John G. Taylor personally.
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And, Again, the Real Estate Mortgage, With Re-

spect to Personal Property Is Void as to Cred-

itors for Lack of Certainty.

Reliance is placed by plaintiff upon the contention

that the mortgage included the water stock in question

here because the mortgage, by a blanket clause, mort-

gages all personal property held by the corporation.

By weight of authority, and by the law pronounced in

the State of Nevada, this description is far from ade-

quate so as to identify the personal property intended.

The natural inference to be derived from such a blanket

description, would be that the personal property re-

ferred to is such personal property as is situated upon

or approximately connected with the real property

described. It would be a far stretch of imagination

to assume that such a description would cause inquiry

with respect to certificates of stock held by an indivi-

dual, who was not even the mortgagor, or that the cor-

poration mortgagor itself was the owner of shares of

stock subject to the mortgage. As a matter of fact,

if a prospective creditor had known of the existence

of the so-called water stock corporations and had ex-

amined the books and records of these corporations

to ascertain the owners of the stock, he would have

found that no stock had ever been issued to John G.

Taylor, Inc., but that it had been issued, transferred

and delivered to John G. Taylor personally and that

he was the holder, possessor and owner thereof.

In a case decided by Judge Farrington, former United

States District Judge for the District of Nevada, it was

held, that the description of property in a chattel mort-

gage, then under consideration, was insufficient to exact

any adverse rights as against creditors and others.

In re Petersen

252 Fed. 850
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**The fact that the parties to the mortgage are

able to identify the property, or to state what stock

is to be covered thereby, is not what is required.

The description in the mortgage must direct the

attention to some source of information beyond the

words of the parties themselves. It must furnish

the data by which the mortgaged chattels may be

identified."

Barret v. Fisch 76 Iowa 553

41 N. W. 310

14 Am. St. Rep. 238, 239

"If the oral testimony of the parties was suffi-

cient, as the mortgagee here claims, few descrip-

tions would or could be fatally defective, and the

purpose of requiring chattel mortgages to be re-

corded in order to give notice to the public would
be defeated."

The reported opinion cites numerous authorities in

support of the doctrine that

*'The suggestion which indicates the line of in-

quiry must come from the mortgage itself, and can-

not rest alone in the minds of the mortgagor and
mortgagee. '

'

In Re Petersen 252 Fed. 849

See also Street v. Sederburg, 92 Pac. 29

Simonson v. McHenry, 92 Pac. 906

Souders v. Voorhees, 12 Pac. 526

The appellant, in opposition to this contention, asserts

in its brief that "The defendant not being an innocent

purchaser or incumbrancer for value cannot assert a

lien on the stock adverse to plaintiff." (Brief for Ap-

pellant, Page 30). This contention, because of the com-

mon directorate and the peculiar facts involved, leads

to an absurdity. Certainly the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Co. as a creditor had notice of the mortgage,

but this notice was had through the common directorate

of both banks. If, as urged, the common directorate
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had knowledge of the mortgage and likewise of the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Co. loan, and accepted

the collateral for the latter bank and approved the

deal, then how may the present plaintiff appellant in

all equity repudiate the transaction by insisting that

the Bank of Nevada was not an innocent incumbrancer

for value? If the legal doctrine of ''innocence" be

applied, it could be asserted with much force in that the

depositors of the Bank of Nevada were innocent that

their money, which had been loaned upon security ap-

proved by a common directorate, was to be later lost

because of a change of front of said directorate. These

depositors were undoubtedly innocent of the fact that

later the common directorate would, in effect, bring a

suit through an assignee to take away from them the

security which they once approved. In a word, if the

plaintiff appellant insists that notice was given, then

undoubtedly, in the light of the established facts, it

waived and gave up and surrendered all claim of lien

to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Co.
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John G. Taylor, Inc., Never Owned the Water

Stock and Could Not Have Mortgaged It. The

Deed From John G. Taylor to the Corporation

Did Not Pass Title to the Stock.

It is contended by the plaintiff that because the deed

of conveyance from John G. Taylor to John G. Taylor,

Inc. included reference to the so-called water stock,

that the corporation acquired title to this stock. Under

the law of Nevada, this contention may not be success-

fully maintained. The evidence shows conclusively and

without contradiction that John G. Taylor never de-

livered any water stock or the certificates therein to

the corporation. The evidence shows that he held them

in his private possession, that he treated them as his

own, that he actually pledged them to the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Co. and that they were never

transferred upon the books of the various corporations

which they represented. These undisputed facts de-

termine definitely that the corporation never received

title to the stock and therefore could not possibly have

mortaged it to the Reno National Bank. The certifi-

cates of stock are confessedly personal property. In

the absence of any delivery thereof and followed by

an actual and continued change of possession, his so-

called sale of the stock to the corporation, mthout such

delivery and change of possession is conclusive evidence

of fraud as against the defendant receiver, the Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Co. and attaching-defen-

dants.

Section 1536, Vol. 1, Nevada Compiled Laws provides

as follows:

''SALE, WHEN EVIDENCE OF FRAUD,Sec.64

Every sale made by a vendor of goods and chat-

tels in his possession, or under his control, and



19

every assignment of goods and chattels, unless the
same be accompanied by an immediate delivery,

and be followed by an actual and continued change
of possession of things sold or assigned, shall be
conclusive evidence of fraud, as against tlie cred-

itors of the vendor, or the creditors of tlie person
making such assignment, or subsequent purchasers
in good faith."

Section 1537 Ibid, provides as follows

:

"CREDITOR DEFINED. Sec. 65. The term
'* creditors" as used in the last section, shall be

construed to include all persons who shall be cred-

itors of the vendor or assignor at any time wliile

such goods and chattels shall remain in liis pos-

session or under his control."

Plaintiff contends that delivery may be either actual

or constructive, and that the delivery of the deed con-

stituted a constructive delivery of the stock. This con-

tention may be properly made under certain conditions

and circumstances, but it is inapplicable here, as will

later be pointed out, and is not supported by the stat-

utes of Nevada, or the adjudications of the Supreme

Court of Nevada.

In an early case decided by the Supreme Court of

Nevada, namely Doak vs. Brubaker, 1 Nevada 218, the

Court holds among other things, as follows:

"Delivery of possession of personal property

may be either actual or constructive, and it seems

that an actual delivery is contemplated by the

statute, unless, indeed, such deUvery were impos-

sible or extremely inconvenient, in which case a

svmbolical delivery would doubtless be sufficient.

If property mortgaged could be transferred to the

mortgagee by a mere constructive or symbolical

delivery, where actual delivery can be readily niade,

practically these sections of the statute would be

entirely nugatory, and their object totally de-

feated. There being no means by which the jiuhlic

can ascertain whether personal property is mort-

gaged or not, except by the change of possession,
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and the person in possession, and exercising own-
ership over it, being presumed to be the owner, if

after being mortgaged it were allowed to remain
in the possession of the mortgagor, mortgage after

mortgage might readily be placed upon it. This
being the very evil sought to be remedied by the

statute, we think such a construction should be put
upon it as will most effectually carry out its ob-

ject. To accomplish this purpose, and to secure
probity and fair dealing in transactions of this

kind, the opportunities of fraud must be removed.
There must not only be a transfer of the right of

the property, but the possession must accompany
it."

This decision not only establishes that there was no

sale of the water stock by John G. Taylor to John G.

Taylor, Inc., because of a lack of delivery of the stock

in question, but it also establishes that even if the cor-

poration had acquired title to the water stock, it didn't

mortgage it to the Reno National Bank because there

was no delivery of it and change of possession. It may
not be contended that it was inconvenient for Taylor

to have made delivery of the stock to the corporation

or that it was in the possession of a third party, or

that it was so cumbersome or bulky that he could not

conveniently have delivered it. There are no excuses

or reasons to apply the doctrine of constructive de-

livery. No such reason was disclosed by the evidence.

So far as the evidence shows, all he had to do was to

endorse the stock, deliver it to the secretary of the

corporation and request that it be transferred on the

books of the corporation to John G. Taylor, Inc.

In the Nevada case of Carpenter vs. Clark, 2 Nev.

243, while the Court in that case held the delivery

sufiScient, it announced the following doctrine constru-

ing the Nevada statute above referred to:

**It seems to us that the reasonable construction

to be placed upon the statute is that the change of
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possession must be actual, bona fide, and must con-
tinue for such a length of time as will under the
circumstances of each case, be likely to operate as
a general advertisement of the sale or change of
title of the property."

In another case, Lawrence v. Brunham, 4 Nev. ;U)1,

the Court in concluding its opinion states as follows:

"Upon the second proposition argued by counsel
we only deem it necessary to say that the statute

makes the want of delivery 'conclusive evidence
of fraud.' No court has the right to say tliat tlie

want of delivery shall not be so where the creditor

has knowledge that a sale has been attempted by
the debtor. Whether the attaching creditor knew
the fact or not is a matter of no consequence. The
law only requires him to show that no delivery ac-

companied the sale. When that is done his proof

is conclusive that the sale was fraudulent as to him,

and no evidence of an honest ]nirpose or fair in-

tention upon the part of the vendor or vendee, or

the knowledge by the creditor of the fact that a sale

had taken place, can overcome the conclusive evi-

dence of fraud which the want of delivery as-

tablishes."

In another Nevada case, Conway vs. Edwards, G

Nevada 190, the Court, among other things held as

follows

:

"Surely, if in this case an immediate delivery

had beenWde (and whether there had or not, was

a question upon the evidence in the case for the

jury to determine), no better evidence than a con-

tinuance of that change could be adduced than proof

that the plaintiff assumed the management and con-

trol of the property after the sale."

It will be observed in the case at bar that never at

any time did the Reno National Bank have possession

of the water stock in question. Nobody else but Jolm

G. Taylor had possession of it; and he only parted

with that possession when he pledged it to the Bank



22

of Nevada Savings & Trust Co. as security for the

corporate loan.

*'The vendee must take actual possession of the
property and the possession must be open, un-
equivocal, substantial and continuous, and must not
be taken to be surrendered back. When it appears
after the purchase, that the vendee exercised such
acts of ownership as is usual for persons who own
the same species of property, and that it was at

all time after the purchase under his direction and
control and was in his charge at the time of the
levy and had not been in the possession of either

of the vendors, it was held that there was a change
of possession."

Gray vs. Sullivan, 10 Nev. 416.

A Nevada case very much in point is Comiata v. Kyle,

19 Nevada 38. The Court on page 42 states as follows

:

''Since there was no delivery of the wood and
coal, actual or symbolical, should we assume that
the legal title to the ranch was in Locatelli nothing
less than a conveyance by deed of the real estate,

with surrender of possession thereof to plaintiff,

would have given the latter possession of the per-

sonal propertv thereon." (Sharon v. Shaw, 2 Nev.
292, Stephenson v. Clark, 20 Vt. 627, Shumway v.

Rutter, 8 Pick. 443).

''Plaintiff had neither actual nor constructive pos-
session of any part of the ranch outside of the

cabin, or of the wood and coal thereon, at the time
of the levy, and that motion for non-suit should
have been granted."

In the case at bar, after the execution and recording

of the Deed, the corporation, John G. Taylor, Inc., may
have had possession of the real property deeded, but it

never had possession of the personal property in con-

troversy here, namely the water stock. The corporation,

therefore, never had ow^ned the water stock.
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And, Again, There Was No Transfer of the Water

Stock in Question to John G. Taylor, Inc., to

Constitute a Sale or Change of Possession as

the Corporation Law of Nevada Provides.

The second paragraph of Section 1617 Nevada Com-

piled Laws, Volume 1, is as follows:

"The shares of stock in every corporation shall

be personal property and shall be transferable on

the books of the corporation, in such manner and
under such regulations as may be provided in the

by-laws. The delivery of a certificate of stock in

a corporation to a bona fide purchaser or pledgee,

for value, together with a written transfer of the

same, or a written power of attorney to sell, assign

and transfer the same, signed by the owner of the

certificate, shall be a sufficient delivery to transfer

the title against all parties except the corporation.

No transfer of stock shall be valid against the cor-

poration until it shall have been registered upon

the books of the corporation."

Section 1722 Ibid provides in part as follows:

''SHAEES DEEMED PERSONAL ESTATE-
HOW TRANSFERRED.

Sec. 27. Whenever the capital stock of any cor-

poration is divided into shares, and certificates

thereof are issued, the stock of the company shall

be deemed personal estate. Such shares may be

transferred by endorsement and delivery of the

certificate thereof, such endorsement being by the

signature of the proprietor, or his or her attorney,

appointed bv written power, or legal representative

duly authorized but such transfer shall not be

valid against such corporation until the sanae shall

have been so entered upon the books of the cor-

poration as to show the names of the parties by

and to whom transferred, the number or designa-

tion of the shares, and the date of the transfer and

the old certificate surrendered and cancelled, which

must be done in all cases, except in case of Joss or

destruction of the original, before a new one issue.
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It will, therefore, be observed, that not only was
there no delivery and change of possession of the water

stock in accordance with the express provisions of the

fraudulent conveyance statute of Nevada above referred

to, but there was an entire absence of observance of the

requirements of the Nevada statute as to what con-

stitutes a transfer or sale of corporate stock evidenced

by certificates thereof.

The Supreme Court of Nevada in the case of Bercich

V. Marye, 9 Nev, 312 determined in a case involving

the construction of a California Statute, similar to the

one above cited, that,

''This restriction upon the transfer of stock de-

termines the question of negotiability adversely to

appellant.
'

'

By this decision the Supreme Court of Nevada recog-

nized the applicability of the statute and held in effect

that the statute controlled with respect to the transfer

of corporate stock.

And, again, in the case of State of Nevada vs. Leete,

16 Nev. 242, the Supreme Court of Nevada recognized

the force of the statute, and on page 250 declared as

follows

:

''Under that statute, the whole title passes to the

transferee so far as the transferrer is concerned,

without an entry upon the books; but, as to every-

body else, the legal title remains where it was be-

fore the transfer."

"The mode of transferring shares of stock and
the validity and effect of transfers are governed
by the laws of the state or country in which the

corporation was created, although the transfer may
be made in another state or country, and both of

the parties may reside there. From the nature of

the stock of a corporation, which is created by and
under the authority of a state, it is necessarily, like
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every attribute of llie corporation to ho ^ovcrni'd
by the local law of that state, and nol by the local
law of any foreign state."

Fletcher's Cyclopedia Curpurations,

Vol. 6, Sec. 3777.

"Where the corporate charter, governing statute,
or a by-law prescribes the mode in wliich transfers
of stock shall be made in order to be valid as
against the corporation and third persons dealing
with such stock, such mode must be followed."

14 C. J. 672 Sec. 1042.

'* Under the provisions of the statutes of tliis

territory, the certificates of stock in a corporation
are personal property, and in order to transfer the

legal title to the shares of stock rejjresented by such
certificates, they must be transferred by endorse-
ment by the signature of the owner and delivered
to the transferee, and, to be good as against third

parties, must be transferred upon the books of the

corporation."

Haynes v. Brown
89 Pac. 1124

Isbell V. Grayhill

76 Pac. 550

Weber v. Bullock

35 Pac. 183 (Citation from 185)

In the following case cited, the Supreme Court of

the United States held that the mere assignment of a

certificate of stock was inoperative to j)ass title where

the charter of the corporation provides that all trans-

fers should be made on tlie books of the corporation.

Moores v. Piqua Bank. Ill U. S. 165,

28 Law Ed. 388.

In the following Federal Court case, it was held

that the title to registered municipal bonds wasn't com-

plete until transferred on the books of the obligor.

Cronin v. Patrick Co.

89 Fed. 79.
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In considering a statute similar to the Nevada Statute,

the Supreme Court of New Mexico held as follows:

''On the part of the defendant in error it is

insisted that under the assignment law it is com-
petent for a failing debtor to assign all of his

interests, of whatever character, in all classes of

property, real, personal, and mixed, and that this

transfer is not subject to the statutory require-
ments which are invoked in this case. We are
therefore called upon to determine whether that
provision of the statute which declares, "But no
transfer shall be valid except between the parties
thereto, until the same shall be so entered upon
the books of the company," is applicable to the

transfer made by an assignor to an assignee. In
Wisconsin, under a statute identical with ours,

it was held that the language of the statute was
inoperative, and that no transfer of stock was valid,

except as between the parties unless the transfer
was entered upon the books of the company. In
re Murphy, 51 Wis. 519, 8 N. W. 419 The same
is the doctrine of the California courts. Weston
V. Mining Co., 5 Cal. 186; Strout v. Mining Co.,

9 Cal. 78 ; Naglee v. Wharf Co., 20 Cal. 529. Chief
Justice Shaw, in the case of Fisher v. Bank, 5

Gray, 373, in passing upon a provision in the char-

ter of the bank to the following effect: "The
stock of said bank shall be transferable only, at

its banking house and on its books,"—said: "The
clause itself is too clear to admit of doubt—'shall

be transferable'; that is capable of being trans-

ferred. The largest and broadest term to express
alienation on the one part, and acquisition on the

other. The word 'only' carries an implication, and
is as distinct as negative words could make it.

There is no other mode. It was not to prescribe
one mode, leaving the others unaffected. It made
that mode exclusive." The cases of Bank v. Laird,

2 Wheat, 390, and Rock v. Nichols, 3 Allen, 342,

are cited as supporting the same proposition. The
facts in the case last cited were that Rock, the

holder of certain shares in a railroad company,
sold them to Nichols, but the conveyance was not

recorded in the books of the company, as required
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by the statute. Under the conveyance thus made,
the same shares were sold under an execution
against Rock; and the Supreme Court, speaking
by Judge Metcalf, say, "That they could lawfully
be so taken admits of no doubt." Fisher v. Bank,
5 Gray, 373. In the case at bar it is admitted that

the certificates representing the stock which it was
sought to attach were not in possession of the

debtor. They had been as already observed, hy-

pothecated. * * * It is enough for the purposes of

this case for us to determine—as we do determine
—that the assignor having failed to comply with

the terms of the statute prescribing the mode, and
only mode, by which property of this sort could

be conveyed, the assignee took no title, and that

therefore the motion to quash the attachment for

the reason that the property attached had already

been conveyed by assignment was improperly al-

lowed; and for that reason the action of the court

below must be reversed."

Lydonbille National Bank v. Fulsom,

38 Pac. 253.

The conclusion is, therefore, that John G. Taylor

never having delivered the water stock certificates to

John G. Taylor, Inc., the corporation never acquired

title to them. Not having acquired title, the corpora-

tion could not have mortgaged them to the Reno Nation-

al Bank.
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But in Addition to This, Even the By-Laws of Sev-

eral of the Corporations Carry Out the Express

Provisions of the Statute and Provide for Meth-

ods of Transferring Before Title Passes.

The by-laws of the Old Channel Ditch Co. provide as

follows

:

''Shares of the corporation may be transferred
at any time by the holders thereof, or by their at-

torney legally constituted, or by their legal repre-
sentatives, by endorsement on the certificate of

stock. But no transfer shall be valid until the sur-

render of the certificate and the acknowledgement
of such transfer on the books of the company."

The by-laws of the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation

Light and Power Co. provide as follows:

"Transfers of shares shall only be made upon the

books of the corporation by the holder in person or

by power of attorney duly executed and filed with
the Secretary of the corporation, and on the sur-

render of the certificate or certificates of such
shares. Provided, however, the power of attorney
above referred to may be endorsed upon the back
of the certificate of stock so transferred."

Therefore, concluding this phase of the brief, the

following points are noted:

1. The suit is inequitable and unconscionable.

2. There was no sale or transfer of any of the so-

called water stock by John G. Taylor to John G. Tay-

lor, Inc., because corporate stock in Nevada is personal

property and there was no delivery of any certificates

by transfer, endorsement or otherwise. Further, there

was no delivery in accordance with the express pro-

visions of certain of the by-laws of the corporations

hereinabove mentioned.

3. There was no mortgage of water stock by John

G. Taylor, Inc., because the corporation had no stock
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to mortgage, because further, the stock being personal

property, the necessary affidavits to a chattel mortgage

were not included in the real estate mortgage given and

because further there was no delivery of the certificates

of stock to the Eeno National Bank, and, in addition

thereto, John G. Taylor treated the stock as his own

and pledged it to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Co. as his own, and with the knowledge, authority, ap-

proval and consent of the Reno National Bank, appel-

lant's predecessor in interest.

Reply to Appellant's Argument (Brief 11) That

the Stock in Controversy Is Appurtenant to the

Land and Passed by Conveyance Thereof.

It must be admitted that the Humboldt Lovelock Ir-

rigation Light and Power Co., the Young Ditch Co., the

Old Channel Ditch Co., and the Union Canal Ditch Co.

are all corporations owning ditch and water rights

represented by shares of stock. Whatever rights John

G. Taylor had in and to the waters irrigating the lands

in question were and are now represented by his stock

in these various corporations. When John G. Taylor,

Inc., was organized, the only water rights or ditch rights

or canal rights or reservoir rights that John G. Taylor

could sell or assign or transfer or deliver to John G.

Taylor, Inc., were such rights as were represented by

his shares of stock in these various corporations.

Whatever may have been the intention of Jolin G.

Taylor to have transferred, assigned and delivered his

shares of stock to John G. Taylor, Inc., the undisputed,

admitted and conceded fact is that he never endorsed

the stock, assigned it, transferred it or delivered it.

There is no evidence in this case that John G. Taylor,

Inc,. through its board of directors or secretary or any
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authorized official, ever demanded delivery of the stock.

The undisputed evidence is that John G. Taylor, Inc.,

never held or possessed the stock, that it was never

transferred to the corporation, that there never was a

request made of the secretary to transfer it to the cor-

poration and that the records of the various water com-

pany corporations show the stock to be in the pos-

session and ownership of John G. Taylor. The only

person who ever had possession of the water stock, so

far as the evidence in this case shows, was John G.

Taylor, the original owner, and the Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Co. to whom it was pledged, and its

receiver.

The appellant did not place John G. Taylor on the

witness stand to ascertain why he did not deliver the

water stock to John G. Taylor, Inc., if he ever so in-

tended. No previous effort had been made by the cor-

poration to force John G. Taylor by way of specific

performance to deliver the stock ; and the Reno National

Bank, after it took its real estate mortgage, never made

any effort to secure the stock from John G. Taylor or

from John G. Taylor, Inc., but, on the contrary, per-

mitted and definitely authorized the Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Co. to take it by way of pledge.

It must be observed in the beginning that whatever

water covenants went with the land, held, owned and

possessed by John G. Taylor personally, were merged

in these various companies and held, owned and rep-

resented through the shares of stock issued by them.

If these shares of stock were never transferred to John

G. Taylor, Inc., then this corporation never acquired

any water covenants and neither did the Reno National

Bank through its real estate mortgage. It must, there-

fore, necessarily follow, that there is no premise what-

ever upon which to base the plaintiff's suit, even though
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we set aside for the moment the equitable considerations

referred to at the beginning of this discussion. It is

again insisted that equity alone defeats the suit, but

aside from this, if the plaintiff has failed to establish

at the very inception that John G. Taylor, Inc., acquired

any water covenants running with the land, through

a transfer of the stock, then the real estate mortgage

and assignment thereof to this plaintiff without such

covenants obviously defeats the plaintiff's claim.

The appellant contends that John G. Taylor in his

deed to John G. Taylor, Inc., conveyed the shares of

stock in question. (Assignment of Error 7—Brief, page

12). The answer to this is, he never did. This seems

to be the premise for the plaintiff's suit, but it is a

premise not founded upon fact as has heretofore been

argued.

It is also contended that the real estate mortgage

encumbered all water rights belonging to, incidental to,

or appurtenant to, or used in connection with the land.

(Assignment of Error 8—Brief, page 12). The answer

to this is that all of the water rights were owned and

controlled by the various water companies, that there

was no transfer of title to any of the stock in these

companies, and that, therefore, John G. Taylor, Inc.,

had no water rights to mortgage. Another answer is

that John G. Taylor, Inc., never acquired the water

rights represented by the stock. Another answer is,

that if this were the original intention, the Reno Nation-

al Bank certainly waived all claim of lien on the stock

by way of mortgage when its board of directors author-

ized the stock to be pledged for a valuable consideration

to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Co.

It is also asserted in the brief that the several ditch

companies are not and never have been operated for

profit; that because of this, and irrespective of stock
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delivery, the stock was a covenant running with the

land. The purpose and function of a corporation is not

to be ascertained by rumor or report or secondary evi-

dence, but by the corporate charter and the by-laws.

There is nothing in the Articles of Incorporation of the

Young Ditch Co. to even indicate that the corporation

was not to have been operated for profit or was not a

corporation organized for profit. In fact, Sections 28

and 29 of the By-Laws provide expressly in what man-

ner dividends may be declared and also provide that

there may be set aside, out of the net profits of the

company, such sum or sums as the directors may from

time to time in their discretion think proper as a re-

serve fund to meet contingencies or for equalizing

dividends. Article V of the By-Laws of the Old Chan-

nel Ditch Co. imposes a duty upon the board of direc-

tors to declare dividends out of the surplus profits

when such profits shall, in the opinion of the directors,

warrant the same. Paragraph 28 of the By-Laws of

the Union Canal Ditch Co. provides that dividends

upon the capital stock of the company when earned shall

be payable as the directors shall prescribe. Section 1 of

Article IX of the By-Laws of Humboldt-Lovelock Ir-

rigation Light & Power Co. expressly provides for the

payment of dividends out of profits. And further, the

organization set up and its Articles of Incorporation

not only prove its purposes and functions, but aside

from engaging in the business of selling water, it also

is in the business of selling light and power. An at-

tempt is being made to establish the various water

canals and ditch companies as non-profitable mutual

corporations for the purpose of applying certain prin-

ciples of law (hereinafter to be considered) to the cor-

porations in question, but this effort must fail in the

face of the corporate set-up of the corporations here

involved, since the record firmly establishes them to be
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corporations organized, in part at least, for profit and
organized generally, and without limitation, under the

general corporation law of Nevada.

The fact that money was raised for the operation

of some of these corporations through assessing the

stockholders, does not at all establish that the cor-

porations were not organized for profit. The test is

not as to whether the corporaion was making money
so that an assessment would not be necessary, or that

it was losing money which required assessment to main-

tain it, but what were its fundamental purposes and

functions as disclosed by its Articles of Incorporation

and By-Laws? The fact that all of these corporations

were organized under the general corporation law of

Nevada and that there was nothing in their corporate

set up or by-laws to restrict or limit their operations

under the general law, is conclusive proof that they

were not joint stock companies or mutual associations

not organized for profit. The appellant is endeavoring

to maintain the contrary because its only hope to es-

tablish a stock water covenant running with the land

is to place these corporations in the catagory of non-

profit organizations. Here again, the appellant ad-

vances an argument in its brief, based upon an erron-

eous premise.

Furthermore, the evidence in the case shows that the

stock in these various corporations was traded in as

stock in corporations generally. Much evidence was

introduced showing that many of the private stock-

holdings in several of the corporations were actually

pledged for money borrowed from the Federal Land

Bank. (Tr. Eec. 123, 126-7, 133-134). In the Union

Canal Ditch Company alone, sixteen stockholders

pledged their several stockholdings and borrowed money

upon the stock. This is significant in not only estab-
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lishing that the stockholders treated their holdings

normally and in the usual method, but that banking

institutions placed a definite value upon the stock as

such, accepted it in the due course of business as col-

lateral for loans advanced, and by virtue of the pledges

themselves, these banking institutions, upon foreclosure

or otherwise, were entitled to hold and possess the stock,

even though they held no land or real property what-

ever in the section of the country involved here or

adjacent to or connected with any canals or ditch com-

panies or power companies or irrigation companies or

individuals to which any waters or water rights could

possibly become appurtenant.

Not only this, but the evidence shows that these

Banks, in accepting these pledges had the stock trans-

ferred to their respective names as pledgees upon the

books of the corporation. This is additional evidence

of the fact that the corporations themselves acknowl-

edged the rights of their stockholders to trade in and

deal with their stock, independently as they desired.

Later, the Federal Land Bank actually foreclosed some

of the pledges and became owner in its own right of

certain of the stock, and had the stock transferred on

the books and re-issued to it. (Tr. Eec. 126). Further,

John G. Taylor himself acquired stock in the Union

Canal Ditch Co. away back in 1913 AND BEFORE HE
WAS A LAND OWNER. (Tr. Rec. 121). Richard

Kirman, Mr. Lewis, and Mr. Harris are owners of

something like 28,700 shares in the Humboldt Lovelock

Irrigation Light & Power Co. which the bank, of which

they were officials, accepted in pledge. At the time

of the pledge, neither of these individuals, nor the bank,

owned any land in that district and only became owners

of such land after foreclosure. (Tr. Rec. 126). A Mr.

Sullivan acquired 990 shares in this corporation from
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one J. H. Henry, and he was not an owner of any land

in the particular district when he acquired it. (Tr.

Rec. 126). The stock of the Humboldt Lovelock Irriga-

tion Light & Power Co. was traded in and sold from
one farmer to another. (Tr. Rec. 126-127). Prince

Hawkins acquired 16,553 shares of stock in this corpor-

ation after irrigation had ceased; when the corporation

was not furnishing any water at all and when his lands

were not being irrigated by that system. Stock in the

Young Ditch Co. was transferred by the secretary of

the company without any inquiry at all as to whether

the new owner of the stock was a land owner. (Tr. Rec.

135). Various certificates of stock in the Young Ditch

Co. were likewise pledged by stockholders to Nevada

Fire Insurance Co. and to Federal Land Bank.

Shares of Stock in These Various Corporations

Are Not Appurtenant to the Land.

There is ample authority that water rights may be

sold separate and apart from the land, to which it is

appurtenant. This principle was followed in the in-

stant matter by transferring all water rights and water

rights of way to the various corporations herein re-

ferred to. The stockholders in the various corporations

own these rights proportionate to the shares of stock

held by each.

It must also be conceded that the stockholder had a

perfect right to sell, assign, transfer and deliver his

stock whether actually for consideration, or pledge it

or deal in it as he saw fit. There is nothing in the

corporation set up or the by-laws of any of these cor-

porations which limits this right.

''Unlike ordinary easements the right to the use

of water of a stream may be sold and transferred
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separate and apart from the land to which it is

appurtenant or reserved and excepted from a grant
of the land."

67 C. J. Page 1077, Sec. 553.

' * The rights to a supply of water of a stockholder
in an irrigation company organized to supply water
only to its stockholders, are dependent on, and
evidenced by, his shares of stock in the company,
and will be lost to such stockholder on his legal

transfer of such stock to another and will pass
with such transfer of the stock to the transferee
thereof, but the transferee cannot acquire greater

or different rights to water than his transferor

had."

67 C. J. Page 1399, Sec. 1069.

It is not disputed that a corporation may be organ-

ized with limitations and restrictions providing that

stock shall only be transferred with land or that cor-

porate stock, as such, is appurtenant to the land, or

that it is a covenant running with the land. But that

is not the situation here. The evidence is all the other

way.

It has also been well established that in the absence

of any restriction or limitation in the Articles of Incor-

poration or the By-Laws, the stock is separate and

distinct from the land.

"A corporation may provide that the water-right

shall be regarded as attached to the land, and shall

pass only with it. In the absence of such provision,

however, the stock is separate from the land and an

execution sale of the land will not pass the stock."

Farnum on Waters and Water Rights.

Vol. 3, pages 2001-2002.

There are many authorities in support of this doc-

trine, some of which being "on all fours" with the case

at bar.

''While Baun caused the land to be conveyed to

his wife and children, he did not convey the stock
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nor does it appear that he entered into any con-
tract or received any consideration for the con-
veyance of the stock. On the contrary, he retained
the stock, and continued to act as a stockholder of

the company, in his own name. It is true, Baun
used the stock as a means of procuring water for
the benefit of the land which had been conveyed to

his children; but he continued to occupy the land
for his own benefit, while he pledged the stock as
collateral security, and thereby lost it. With the

loss of the stock, he lost all title to the water rights

dependent thereon; so that neither he, nor his

grantors of the land, can have any water rights

by means of such stock. Whether the purchasers
of such stock are so situated that they are entitled

to receive and apply the water represented by such

stock to beneficial use is a question not involved in

this litigation. See Combs vs. Ditch Co., supra.

Water rights acquired by appropriation in this

state, for purposes of irrigation cannot be held to

be inseparably annexed to the land in connection

with which such rights were acquired. Even though,

under certain circumstances, such rights may be

considered appurtenant to the land,—a point we
do not decide,—they may undoubtedly be severed

from the land, and may be sold and conveyed sep-

arate and apart therefrom; and where such sev-

erance, sale, and conveyance have taken place, as

by the assignment and sale of stock representing

water rights in an incorporated ditch company, a

subsequent sale and conveyance of the land does

not pass title to such water rights."

Oppenlander vs. Left-Hand Ditch Co., et al,

31 Pac. 854. (Citation from page 857.)

*'As to the extension company, more difficult

questions are presented. It is not contended that

there was any assignment, delivery, surrender, can-

cellation or re-issue of the certificate of the exten-

sion stock, or that it was transferred upon the

books of the company to the trustee. The only thing

relied upon is the trust deed hereinabove quoted,

by which all other water rights are attempted to

be conveyed and the further fact that the extension
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ditch had been used to carry water for more than
twenty years. It is sufficient to say that, previous
to the foreclosure sale Mrs. Marshall's right to

carry water of the extension ditch was based upon
her ownership of stock in that company. Under the

rules of the company, when the ownership of stock

ceased, the right to carry water ceased. Plaintiff

and its grantors failed to secure that stock,, so that

the right can no longer be based upon it. The
foundation for its existence having been destroyed,

the right itself no longer exists. Mrs. Marshall's
right to carry water having been dependent upon
her ownership of the stock, and plaintiff failing to

secure this, the right cannot be said to have been
transferred to it. While there are many cases which
hold that a water right or a private ditch may pass
with a conveyance of land as appurtenant thereto,

yet we know of no case, and counsel has called

our attention to none, wherein it is held that a cor-

poration owning a ditch, and furnishing the right

to carry water for land to its stockholders only,

must continue to carry water for land which has
been conveyed to a stranger, while the stock which
gave the right remained in the hands of the original

owner or had been transferred to other parties."

Oligarchy Ditch Co., et al., vs. Farm Inv. Co.

88 Pac. 443. (Citation from page 444.)

*'So far as appears from the proof, each stock-

holder had the right to use the water to which he

was entitled on any land he saw fit. Under such
arrangements as are here disclosed by the testi-

mony, the water cannot be regarded as a part of

the land, and is not appurtenant to it. The stock

of such a corporation is mere personal property,

and may be sold and transferred independent of

any land; and the sale carries with it the right to

use the water on any land or for any purpose the

new owner may choose. The stock is merely the

evidence of the holder's title to a certain amount
of water. That it is personalty is settled in this

state by statute. Section 330, Rev. St. 1898. It is

not a corporeal, but an incorporeal, species of prop-
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ertv, and has nothing wliich gives il the charachT
of realty."

George vs. Rubisou, ct al., ()."> I*ac. 818

(Citation from page 820)

**The contention of the plaintiffs, and tlie theory
upon which this suit was brought, is that said
shares of stock were appurtenant to said lands,

and ])assed with said lands under execution sale.

Aside from general well established rules of law
which forbid the sanction of said contention, it is

directly opposed to the statutory law of tliis state
Under the provisions of section 4.']0(), Hcv. St.,

"shares which the defendant may have in the stock

of any corporation or company" may be attaclicd.

Subsection 4, Sec. 4307 Kev. St., is as follows:

"Stock or shares or interest in stock or shares, of

any corporation or company, must be attached by

leaving with the president, or other head of the

same, or the secretary, cashier, or other managing
agent thereof, a copy of the writ, and a notice

stating that the stock or interest of the defendant is

attached in pursuance of such writ." By section

4477, Rev. St., "shares and interest in any corpor-

ation or company * * * # jj^y i^^. attached

on execution in like manner as upon writ of at-

tachment." Under the provisions of these statutes,

the procedure is prescribed by which shares of stock

and interests in corporations may be seize<l and

subjected to the satisfaction of debts of the execu-

tion defendant. The subjection of shares of stock in

a corporation to the payment of a debt must, when

done by legal process, be done in the manner pre-

scribed by "the statutes. The complaint in the case

at bar shows that the statutory procedure was not

followed. Shares of stock in an irrigation corpora-

tion are not appurtenant to the land owned by the

owner of such shares, even though such land be

irrigated by water from a canal owned by such

corporation^ The court properly sustained the de-

murrer."

Wells vs. Price, et al.,

56 Pac. 266.

"The several corporations, in which the said ap-

pellant has thus become a stockholder to the extent
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above set forth, are corporations organized under
the laws of the State of California, and as such are
invested with the powers and duties with respect
to both the properties thereof and the stockholders
therein as the Constitution and statutes of Cali-

fornia, and the by-laws of such framed in accord-
ance therewith provide. They are not, however, such
corporations as are referred to in section 324 of the

Civil Code, the stock holdings in which have been
by the by-laivs thereof made appurtenant to certain

lands and are to be transferable only with such
lands. The capital stock of the foregoing corpora-
tions is transferable in the ordinary manner pro-

vided by law, and the owners thereof are the equit-

able owners of that proportion of the properties of

each of such corporations which their respective
number of shares of stock thereof bear to the en-

tire subscribed capital stock of the corporation,
and as such equitable owners of the properties of

the corporation are also equitably entitled to the

proportionate distribution of such waters as such
corporation acquires by appropriation or other-

wise for the various uses for which such waters
are acquired. Such stockholders are in that sense

and to that extent, but to none other, owners of the

water and water rights which the corporation pos-

sesses, and over the distribution of which it ex-

ercises under general laws and under its particular

by-laws full and exclusive control. The term ''mu-
tual water company," much stressed by the appel-

lants herein as defining these sev^eral corporations,

has no defined legal meaning which would serve
to differentiate corporations, organized for the ac-

quiring of water rights and the distribution of

water, from other corporations owning and admin-
istering property for the benefit of their stock-

holders nor have the stockholders, in that class of

corporation, any other or further rights than have
those of corporations in general with respect to the

administration of the affairs and properties of the

corporation."

Consolidated Peoples Ditch Co., et al.

vs Foothill Ditch Co., et al.

269 Pac. 915

(Citation from page 920)
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''Since shares of stock in an irrigation corpora-
tion, which shares have not been made appurtenant
to land are personal property, a deed conveying
land, or land and water rights pertaining thereto,

will not operate to transfer stock which is not ap-
purtenant to the land conveyed."

67 C. J. 1400.

"The right of a stockholder in a mutual water
company to receive water by virtue of his owner-
ship of stock is real property, but the shares them-
selves are personalty and do not pass upon a con-

veyance of land unless they are appurtenant there-

to; they may become appurtenant by adoption of

appropriate provisions in the by-laws of the water
company under section 324 of the Civil Code, but

one claiming that they are appurtenant is required

to prove it."

26 Cal Jur. 449 et seq., and cases in note

;

also Imperial Water Co. v. Meserve, 62

Cal. App. 593, 217 Pac. 548 and Palo

Verde, etc., Co. v. Edwards 82 Cal.

App. 52, 254 Pac. 922.

Wheat vs. Thomas

287 Pac. 102
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APPELLANT'S BRIEF FURTHER
CONSIDERED

Appellant, in order to avoid the legal effect of cor-

porations organized under general laws, as in the

instant case, advances the doctrine that,

"The case of a corporation is to be determined
by what it does and not by what it may do under

its articles of incorporation." (Brief App. 29).

In support of this contention, appellant cites two

California cases, which, it is respectfully submitted,

do not support the doctrine announced. In the case

of Southern California Edison Co. v. R. R. Commission,

194 Cal. 757, 763, 230 Pac. 661, a petition for Certiorari

to the California Railroad Commission was filed to

review and annul an order theretofore made by the

Commission. The Railroad Commission had established

the corporation as a public utility. The Court was

asked to review this finding. The articles of incorpora-

tion provided that the corporation might operate as a

public utility. The Court found that,

"There is no merit in this contention. The mere
fact that its articles of incorporation empower a

corporation to engage in public service does not

of itself constitute proof that it is engaged in

public service, or that it has dedicated such pro-

perty as it may own to such service. * * * It may
or may not engage in such service, and until it

does, it cannot be said to be subject to the juris-

diction of the State Railroad Commission." (Cita-

tion from page 664, supra).

It may readily be observed that this case does not

establish appellant's contention.

Appellant also cites the case of Del Mar Water Co.

V. Eshleman, 167 Cal. 666, 140 Pac. 591, 948. (App.

Brief 29). This is a similar case involving a review
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of an order made by the Railroad Commission as to

whether a corporation was operating as a public utility

so as to confer jurisdiction upon the Railroad Com-
mission. The crux of this opinion is stated in the first

paragraph of the syllabus as follows

:

''The Railroad Commission has no power to com-
pel a corporation which owns property in private
right and has not dedicated it to any public use to

apply it to a public use of any kind."

Here again the authority just cited does not support

appellant's contention.

Appellant also contends that in this proceeding the

appellee receiver should be compelled to turn over the

stock to the appellant because Mr. Sheehan, the common
vice-president and director and agent of both banks,

testified substantially that "at the time the real estate

mortgage was being prepared, Mr. Taylor was told

that he was expected to give all the security which his

company had, and he agreed to do so." (Brief App. 32).

In the first place, it must be observed that Mr. Tay-

lor's company did not have the stock, and that there-

fore it could not be given as security. In the second

place, there is no evidence in the case that the bank

ever made a demand upon the corporation for the de-

livery of the stock. The evidence was conclusive that

the bank accepted the real estate mortgage as ample

security for the loan, which real estate mortgage made

no mention of the stock. (Tr. Rec. 80). The implica-

tion is strong that the mortgage security was considered

adequate. This implication is further stressed by

the undisputed fact that the same bank through its

common directorate authorized the stock to be pledged

to the Bank of Nevada as security for a loan to the

same corporation from that bank. Further, Mr. Taylor,

the owner of the stock and w^ho pledged it for the loan.
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is not a party to this action. No attempt has been made
here to adjudicate his rights as a pledgor, or in any

way to affect his equity in the stock. Both he and the

two banks treated the stock as belonging to him when
he pledged it with the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company. Appellant contends that his equity in that

stock should be taken aw^'ay from him without suit

against him, without notice to him, and mthout demand

upon him.

It will be observed that the appellee receiver was

not only the receiver of the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company involved here, but of three other

additional banks. Appellant contends that,

"No evidence was introduced respecting the

alleged attachment liens of the three State banks
for which respondent was receiver, and the only

lien claimed by respondent as to which any evi-

dence is shown of record, is that derived through
the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company
under an alleged pledge agreement from John Gr.

Taylor personally." (Brief App. 34).

The record facts are that the additional three bank

receiverships must have been made parties defendant

because of knowledge by the plaintiff of these attach-

ment liens. There could be no other reason for making

them parties. It is also alleged in plaintiff's complaint

(Tr. Rec. 10-11),

"That said Leo F. Schmidt in his capacity as re-

ceiver of Tonopah Banking Corporation, Carson
Valley Bank, and Virginia City Bank claims a lien

as attaching creditor of John G. Taylor, Inc., and/
or John G. Taylor, for an indebtedness in the ag-

gregate principal amount of $24,000.00."

This allegation of the complaint was admitted by

the defendant receiver in his answer. (Tr. Rec. 24).
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A fact admitted by the pleadings need not be supported

by evidence.

Council on page 13 of the Brief state

:

**The District Court rightly concluded that plain-

tiff, as successor in ownership of the lands des-

cribed in the complaint, is the owner of all water
rights appurtenant thereto, including all rights

to all means of transportation and storage of water
such as dams, ditches, canals, and reservoirs, from
the places or points of diversion to the places or
points of use. (Opinion R. 44)."

With this statement, we are in accord. However,

there is omitted from the statement a very significant

fact. Notwithstanding the well-established principle

of water law announced by the trial court, the appellant

failed in its brief to observe that under the facts of this

case the Court declined to award the stock in contro-

versy to the plaintiff. It is plain to see that the trial

Court reached the conclusion that the stock in con-

troversy here did not constitute a water right appur-

tenant to the lands described in the complaint. The

trial Court referred in its opinion to the case of Prosole

Steam Boat Canal Company, 37 Nev. 154, 140 Pac. 720,

in support of the well-recognized doctrine that the

owner of land containing appurtenant water rights is

entitled to an easement in ditches, reservoirs, and other

irrigation works for the diversion, storage, and con-

veyance of water from the place of diversion to the

point of use upon plaintiff's land. But again, the trial

court declined to hold that the plaintiff was entitled

to the possession of the certificates of stock. The Court

properly held that whatever water had been placed by

the plaintiff or its predecessors to a beneficial use upon

its lands, it was entitled to have and to have delivered

by a canal company on paying the necessary costs and

expenses for such delivery ; but the Court in so holding
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declined to hold that the stock in controversy here

should be delivered to the plaintiff.

Counsel on page 35 of the Brief attempt to apply a

so-called rule of agency. They assert that, "The
knowledge acquired by Sheehan, who was the sole

representative of the Nevada Bank in the transaction

relied on by respondent, cannot be repudiated merely

because Sheehan acquired that knowledge while acting

for The Reno National Bank. The knowledge possessed

by an agent of two or more corporations is attributable

to each irrespective of the capacity in which such

knowledge was acquired." This statement leaves out

of consideration entirely a very significant fact that

Mr. Sheehan, the agent, was acting as a representative

of two banking corporations with a common directorate,

engaged in the same business, and operating under the

same roof. We are making no contention here of a

repudiation of Mr. Sheehan 's knowledge, but we are

urging that when he, as an agent of the Bank of

Nevada, accepted the stock certificates in pledge for

a loan by that bank, he repudiated and waived all claim

he ever had to that stock as a representative and agent

of the Reno National Bank. This repudiation and

waiver, of course, binds his principal, the bank, for

it may not be successfully contended, that the loan

having existed for upwards of two years, and the secur-

ity reposing in the vaults for that length of time, that

the bank had no knowledge of it.
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BRIEF SUMMARY
It is therefore urged here that the laws of conveyanc-

ing and mortgaging preclude a recovery by the appel-

lant. Should the trial court's opinion be reversed des-

pite the common directorate and the application of

attendant equitable principles, the appellee bank will

not only have parted with its money, but with the

security approved and accepted by the predecessor of

the appellant. The only possible way that the appellee

bank may be made whole and its depositors and cred-

itors protected, is for the appellant to reimburse the

appellee bank in the full amount of the loan and ac-

crued interest and take the stock. No such equitable

tender has ever been made. In short, the plaintiff,

suing in equity, has made no effort to do equity. It is

therefore respectfully contended that the opinion of the

trial court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

PLATT & SINAI,

Attorneys for Appellees.
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APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF

PREFATORY STATEMENT

The principal claim of appellant is that the stocks in

question were an appurtenance to the lands formerly owned

by John G. Taylor and now owned by it, and as such ap-

purtenance passed with a conveyance and mortgage of the

lands, without the necessity of any specific description or

other formality of transfer.

Secondarily, it is claimed by appellant that the deed in

1930 and the mortgage in 1932, in the light of the circum-

stances shown bv the record, were sufficient to constitute

All emphasis herein is supplied by us.



a conveyance of the water stocks treated as personalty, and

that the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company, ini

whose shoes appellee stands, had actual notice and knowl-

edge of these antecedent transactions, so that, as pledgee,

it is in no position to assert a superior claim thereto ; and

that the other banks for which appellee is receiver, claim-

ing to be mere attaching creditors of one who had, long

prior to the attachment, parted with all interest in the

stocks, have no rights therein.

Appellee in his brief, contends

:

1. That by reason of certain common ofiBcers of the

Reno National Bank and the Bank of Nevada Savings

& Trust Company, he has some superior equity as

against appellant.

2. That the deed and mortgage were insufficient to

convey or encumber the stock, since it is claimed

(a) The mortgage was not executed with the for-

malities required by the Nevada law in respect to

chattel mortgages;

(b) There was not an open and continuous change

of possession of the stock certificates

;

(c) The description of the stock was uncertain; and,

(d) The transfer was not in the form of an endorse-

ment on the certificates.

3. That the stock is not appurtenant to the lands.

No exception is taken to the statement of facts contained

in our opening brief. The facts are simple and practically

undisputed. The companies, whose stock is in controversy,

have not and never have had any activity other than the

ownership and maintenance of certain facilities for im-

pounding the water of the Humboldt River and transmit-



ting it to the lands of their stockholders. Throughout the

corporate history of these companies the lands now owned

by appellant have been irrigated by use of the water com-

panies' facilities. The District Court found that all water

rights are appurtenant to appellant's lands, and that under

Nevada law such water right includes the easement to have

water conveyed from the place of diversion to the place of

use. Appellee admits (brief, page 45) the correctness of

this ruling. The primary question, therefore, is whether

the stock of these companies, representing in fact nothing

more than the right to the use of their facilities, is itself an

appurtenance of the lands. Appellee admits that the stock

in question represents the water rights (brief, page 30).

Since the water right necessarily can exist only as an ap-

purtenance to land, the stock which represents the right

must also be an appurtenance. If this be so, it completely

disposes of the case, as there is no question of appellant's

title to the lands and any appurtenances which could have

passed by a deed of the lands.

THE STOCK IS AN APPURTENANCE

All of appellee's arguments respecting the irregularity

in the mode of transfer or encumbrance of the water stocks

may be wholly disregarded if the stocks constitute appur-

tenances to the lands so as to pass with the conveyance of

it. A similar situation was considered in San Gabriel Valley

Bank v. Lakevieiv, etc. Co., 4 Cal. App. 630, 633, where the

court said:

''Appellant McNutt makes the point that the mort-

gage of the water stock is ineffectual as to him, argu-

ing that it is personal property and not of the list

subject to be mortgaged under the statute, and is not
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mortgaged with the formalities required * * * and

though it may be good as between the parties, it is not

operative as against him without an averment of no-

tice or knowledge on his part which is not contained in

the complaint. The point appears to us to be without

merit for two reasons: (a) the stock is declared by the

mortgage to be a water right appurtenant to the land.

Anything appurtenant to the land passes with it***."

In other words, the mode of transfer of the stock is en-

tirely immaterial if the stock was an appurtenance to the

land, since, in that event, a conveyance of the lands (ad-

mittedly made) would without more pass the stock as

such appurtenance.

Appellee also concedes that the stocks here in question

represented the water rights appurtenant to the Taylor

lands. At page 30 of his brief, he says

:

* * It must be observed in the beginning that whatever

water covenants went with the land held, owned and

possessed by John G. Taylor personally, were merged in

these various companies and held, owned and repre-

sented through the shares of stock issued by them."

At page 45 of his brief, appellee concedes that the district

court rightly concluded that appellant is the owner of the

water rights appurtenant to the lands. Under the law of

Nevada, as construed by the Supreme Court of that state

in Prosole v. Steamboat Canal Co., 37 Nev. 154, 140 Pac.

720, water rights are inseverable from the land. They can

exist only as an appurtenance to land.

In the Prosole case, the Supreme Court of Nevada said

(140 Pac. at p. 722):

" * * * a water right for agricultural purposes, to

be available and effective, must be attached to the land



and become in a sense appurtenant thereto by actual

application, '

'

and also that (140 Pac. at pages 723, 724)

:

a * * * ^YiQ very right itself, relating as it does to

the land upon which it is applied, although in a sense

incorporeal, nevertheless, by reason of its application,

becomes an integral part of the freehold. The water

and the land to which it is applied become so inter-

related and dependent on each other in order to con-

stitute a valid appropriation that the former becomes

by reason of necessity appurtenant to the latter."

If, as appellee concedes, the stocks in controversy rep-

resented the water rights, the stocks are appurtenant to

the land since the right they evidence can exist only as an

appurtenance to land. This would seem to dispose of the

case.

In other jurisdictions, water rights may be severed from

land and be transferred apart from the land. It is in such

jurisdictions that the cases arose upon which appellee re-

lies in his claim that the stock is not appurtenant. What-

ever might be the case if severance were possible in Ne-

vada, the fact is that here there was no severance nor at-

tempt to sever the water rights from the Taylor lands,

and the District Court properly found that from the be-

ginning the water rights, and the easement to use the

facilities of the water companies in enjoyment of that right,

were always appurtenant to the lands now owned by ap-

pellant. The adjudication of water rights by the state court

(Ex. 10, R. 101) and the certificates of appropriation (Ex.

11 and 12, R. 107-112) both show that the water rights

which appellee says w^ere represented by the stock, exist

solely as appurtenances of the lands where used. The find-

ings of fact (R. 55) are in accord. Such being the case, it is



unnecessary to consider texts or cases which treat of a sit-

uation where the water right has been severed from the

land.

Of the eight cases cited by appellee in support of his con-

tention, four of them {Consolidated Peoples Ditch Co. et

al. V. FootJiill Ditch Co., 205 Cal. 54; 269 Pac. 915; 7m-

perial Water Co. v. Meserve, 62 Cal. App. 593, 217 Pac.

548; Palo Verde, etc. Co. v. Edivard, 82 Cal. App. 252, 254

Pac. 922; and Wheat v. Thomas, 209 Cal. 306, 287 Pac. 102)

are California cases, decided after the adoption of the 1895

amendment to Section 324 of the California Civil Code

(now Section 330.24), prescribing certain formalities which

must be complied with in order to make stock appurtenant

to land. They are all founded upon a statute, no counterpart

of which is to be found in Nevada. Prior to the adoption

of the amendment, as held in In re Thomas' Estate, 147 Cal.

236, the law of California was the same as the law of Mon-

tana, Idaho and Utah, as declared by the Supreme Courts

of those states in Yelloivstone Valley Company v. Associa- \

tion Mortgage Investors, 88 Mont. 73, 290 Pac. 255, and the

other cases cited in appellant's opening brief.

Of the four remaining cases, two {Oppenlander v. Left-

Hand Ditch Co., 18 Colo. 142, 31 Pac. 854, and Oligarchy

Ditch Co. V. Farm Inv. Co., 40 Colo. 291, 88 Pac. 443) are |

decisions of the Supreme Court of Colorado, which, as j

pointed out in Yellowstone Valley Company v. Associated

Mortgage Investors, 88 Mont. 73, 290 Pac. 255, are at vari-

ance with the rule adopted in all other Western states. But

even the Colorado courts do not go to the extent of holding ,

stock in water companies to be not appurtenant to the land '

where the articles of incorporation contain provisions simi-

lar to those contained in the articles of the Humboldt-Love-



lock Irrigation Light & Power Company (Roconl, p. 85), as

is demonstrated by the recent decision of the Supreme

I

Court of Colorado in James v. Barker, 99 Colo. 551, (14

Pac. (2) 598.

Of the two remaining cases cited by aj)pellee, tlie I'lali

I case {George v. Robinson, et al., (Utah) 63 Pac. S19)

I
was distinguished from cases such as this in /// n- Jolm-

son's Estate, 64 Utah 114, 228 Pac. 748, and the Idaho case

{Wells V. Price, 6 Idaho 490, 56 Pac. 266) is directly con-

trar}^ to the later decision of the Supreme Cr,\ivi of Idaho

in Ireton v. Idaho Irrigation District, 30 Idaho 310, 164

Pac. 687.

Even if the cases cited by appellee were authority for

the proposition that ordinarily stock in a ditch and reser-

voir company is not appurtenant to the land, they would

have no application to the present case, where the water

rights have never been severed from the land and are vested

in the landowners and not in the corporations.

Since the only beneficial rights represented by the stock

are rights to the use of the facilities of the respective cor-

porations for the diversion and conveyance of water, and

since these rights, as found, declared and adjudged by the

court below, in its opinion (Record, p. 41), findings and de-

cree, are appurtenant to the land upon which the water has

been applied to a beneficial use, it necessarily follows that

the stock itself is appurtenant. In the hands of one other

than the appellant, the stock "has no value actual or

potential except for nuisance purposes,'' Tivin Falls L. d

W. Co. V. Twin Falls Canal Co., 7 Fed. Supp. 238 at page

246 (affirmed CCA. 9, 79 Fed. (2), 431, Cert, denied.

SOL. ed. 466).
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APPELLEE HAS NO EQUITY STJPEmOR TO APPELLANT

Appellee argues that inasmuch as The Reno National

Bank and the banks of which appellee is receiver had com-

mon officers and directors, the appellee should be adjudged

to have the paramount right to the stock regardless of all

other considerations. This argument is based on the princi-

ple that transactions between banks or corporations having

common directors are viewed with suspicion and will not

be sustained unless entirely fair to both corporations. This a

principle can have no room for application in the case at

bar. No contract or transaction between The Reno National

Bank and The Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company-

is sought to be set aside or rescinded or enforced. As a mat-

ter of fact, the record fails to disclose any contract, transac-

tion or dealing between the two banks, of any nature what-

soever, regarding the subject matter of this suit. There is,

therefore, nothing upon which the principle relied upon

by the appellee can operate.

Aside from this, however, the record shows no breach of

trust or duty on the part of the officers of the two banks

with which appellant can be charged. When, on April 23,

1932, The Reno National Bank assigned the Taylor mort-

gages to the Reconstruction Finance Corporation, neither

that bank nor its officers committed any breach of duty or
j

trust toward the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com- .

pany. When, a month later, the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company made its advances to John G. Taylor, Inc.,

the officers of that bank may or may not have been guilty

of having committed a breach of trust or duty ; but if they

were, neither the Reconstruction Finance Corporation nor

its successor, the appellant, could be prejudiced by it, since

neither had any knowledge that the advances were made,

nor did either participate in or sanction the making there- i



of. Nor did either have any knowledge of, or any active or

I
tacit participation in, the alleged pledge of the stock to the

Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company.

I If appellee's argument were carried to its logical con-

clusion, it would follow as a necessary consequence that if

a corporation sells property to a third party and subse-

quently sells the same property to an affiliated company,

' the latter, from the mere fact alone that it has the same

' officers and directors, would obtain a better title than tlie

third party.

The fallacy of appellee's argument lies in the failure to

distinguish between the Reconstruction Finance Corpora-

tion and its successor in interest, the appellant, on the one

hand, and The Reno National Bank, the assignor of the

Reconstruction Finance Corporation, on the other. An as-

signee takes subject to equities and defenses existing at the

time of the assignment, but once the assignment has been

made nothing assignor may do can in any manner impair

the title of the assignee. True, a subsequent assignee may,

under certain circumstances, be entitled to priority over a

prior assignee, but, as pointed out in Salem Trust Co. v.

Manufacturers Finance Co., 264 U. S. 182, 197, 198; 68

L. ed. 628, 635, this results, in the absence of statute, only

where by some act or omission of his own the prior assignee

has estopped himself from asserting priority over the later

assignee. In the case at bar, as appellee concedes, the Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Company made the advances

and obtained possession of the stock certificates with full

knowledge of the fact that the stock had previously been

hypothecated to the Reconstruction Finance Corporation.

The advances were made and possession of the stock cer-

tificates was obtained by the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company without knowledge or consent of the Re-
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construction Finance Corporation, and there is nothing in

the record to show that any act or omission on the part of

the Reconstruction Finance Corporation misled the Bank

of Nevada Savings & Trust Company in any manner.

THE TRANSFER AND MORTGAGE OF THE STOCKS WAS VALID
AS AGAINST APPELLEE

Even though the stocks were not appurtenant to the

lands, the 1930 deed and the 1932 mortgage were effective

to convey and encumber the same as between the parties

and as against the world except a bona fide purchaser or

encumbrancer for value.

The objections urged by appellee to the mode of trans-

fer can not be availed of by him since he is not such a bona

fide purchaser or encumbrancer. As receiver, appellee

stands in the shoes of the banks for which he is acting in

that capacity. The Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany, as pledgee, admittedly had actual knowledge of the s

antecedent transactions, and is not a bona fide purchaser

or encumbrancer. The other banks for which appellee is

acting, are mere attaching creditors, whose rights accrued

long after the party whose rights they sought to attach,
,

had parted with all interest in the property. I

1

All of the contentions advanced by appellee as to the <

irregularity in the mode of transfer depend entirely on

the question whether appellee is a bona fide purchaser.
(

We will, therefore, first discuss that question, and then

the several contentions advanced by appellee respecting

the mode of transfer. i

Appellee concedes that the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company had full actual knowledge of the mortgage

and its assignment to appellant's predecessor in interest, i
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but seeks to escape the effect of that knowledge on the

ground that The Reno National Bank and the Bank of

Nevada Savings & Trust Company had the same officers

and directors. Thus, on page 16 of his brief, appellee says:

''Certainly the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company as a creditor had notice of the mortgage, but

this notice was had through the common directorate

of both banks."

Again, on page 46 of his brief, appellee says

:

"We are making no contention here of a repudiation

of Mr. Sheehan's knowledge, but we are urging that

w^hen he, as an agent of the Bank of Nevada, accepted

the stock certificates in pledge for a loan by that bank,

he repudiated and waived all claim he ever had to that

stock as a representative and agent of the Reno Na-

tional Bank. '

'

Appellee cannot escape the effect of the actual knowl-

edge of the officer of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company on the ground that that Bank and The Reno

National Bank had the same officers and directors. The

fact remains that they were the sole representatives of

the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company. Being the

sole representatives, there was no one from whom they

could have concealed or communicated the information.

Such being the case, the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company stands charged with their knowledge.

"If Cornish was the sole representative of the bank

in the transaction with himself, there was no one from

whom information could have been concealed or to whom

it could have been communicated. If he was the sole

representative of each party, each must have had equal

knowledge. As the representative of the bank, his knowl-

edge was not affected by his private interests, however
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much his conduct may have been. He necessarily knew
as much in one capacity as he did in the other. The bank

is charged with the knowledge which Cornish had."

First National Bank v. Blake, 60 Fed. 78, 79.

See also National Bank of San Mateo v. Whitney, 40

Cal. App. 276, 283; 180 Pac. 845; 2 Am. Jur., 300.

Independently of this rule, there is another reason why

appellee cannot escape the effect of the actual knowledge

of the officers of the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company. The Reconstruction Finance Corporation, ap-

pellant's predecessor in interest, did not authorize or par-

ticipate in the making of the advances and actually had no

knowledge of the fact that they were made until long after-

wards. In these circumstances, the appellee cannot escape

the effect of the knowledge of the Bank's officers by charg-

ing that in making the advances they were acting adversely

to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Company.

''The fact that those agents committed a fraud can-

not alter the legal effect of their acts or of their

knowledge with respect to the company in regard to

third parties who had no connection whatever with

them in relation to the perpetration of the fraud and

no knowledge that any such fraud had been perpe-

trated. There is no pretense of any evidence that the

defendants had any connection with these alleged

frauds and no pretense that they had any knowledge

of their existence if they did exist. In such case the

rule imputing knowledge to the company hy reason

of the knowledge of its agent remains."

Armstrong v. Ashley, 204 U. S. 272, 283, 51 L. ed.

482, 487.

Appellee as receiver of the Bank of Nevada Savings &

Trust Company is not, therefore, an innocent purchaser,
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and is in no position to attack the mortgage under which

appellant claims. A receiver, as stated by appellee, stands

in no better position than the bank or corporation which

he represents.

Organ v. Winnemucca State Bank S Trust Co., 55

Nev. 72, 26 Pac.(2) 237, 238.

As receiver of the banks other than the Bank of Nevada

Savings & Trust Company, appellee is a mere attaching

creditor, not of John G. Taylor, Inc., but of John G. Tay-

lor, individually. As such, he is obviously not an innocent

purchaser for value.

'*It cannot be successfully maintained that an at-

taching creditor stands in the position of a bona tide

purchaser for value. He has in fact parted with noth-

ing of value, but has merely instituted an action in

which he utilizes the provisional remedy of attach-

ment for the purpose of rendering more secure the

judgment which he hopes to obtain. (4) An attachment

lien attaches only to the debtor's interest in the prop-

erty at the time of its levy (3 Cal. Jur., p. 483; National

Bank v. Western Pac. Ry. Co., 157 Cal. 573, 576, (21

Ann. Cas. 1391, 27 L.R.A. (N.S.) 987, 108 Pac. 676).)

In National Bank v. Western Pac. Ry. Co., supra, it

was held that the purchaser for value of stock in a

corporation, which was not transferred on the books

of the corporation at the time of an attachment levy

in a suit brought by a creditor of the seller, may com-

pel a transfer upon the books of the corporation and

the issuance of a certificate for the stock free from the

attachment lien.
'

'

Ahem v. Tulare Lake Canal Co., 115 Cal. App. 93,

101, (2) 490.

In view of the foregoing, we respectfully submit that

under no circumstances can the appellee be said to be an
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innocent purchaser or encumbrancer without notice. With

this foreword we may proceed to consider appellee's argu-

ments. In order to permit of a more orderly consideration

of the subject, the four arguments or contentions urged

by the appellee will be discussed in a slightly different

order than that in which they are advanced in appellee's

brief.

The Transfer of the Stock by Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc., Was
Not Void Under Sections 1617 and 1722 N.C.L. 1929 or the

By-Laws of the Respective Companies

Appellee argues that the transfer of the stock by the deed

executed and delivered by John G. Taylor to John G. Tay-

lor, Inc. in 1930 (Appellant's Ex. 1) was ineffectual to pass

title to the shares as against the appellee as a subsequent

pledgee and creditor of John G. Taylor, because of the

provisions of Sections 1617 and 1722 N.C.L. 1929. The two

sections are substantially identicah Section 1617 applies

only to corporations organized under the Corporation Law

of 1925, and since none of the corporations involved in this

action was organized under that act, no further considera-

tion need be given to it.

Section 1722 can afford appellee no help, for contrary to

appellee's contention, the section does not restrict the man-

ner in which shares of stock may be transferred. It merely

^prescribes a mode by which transfers of shares may be

made and does not prohibit a transfer by other methods nor

declare that when made in another manner a transfer may

not be enforced by the party entitled to the shares. Thus,

in Young v. New Pedrara Onyx Co., 48 Cal. App. 1, 192

Pac. 55, the court, in construing a similar California

statute, said:

''A share of stock being an incorporeal right, in-

capable of manual delivery, and the certificate being
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nothing more than evidence of its existence, it is ob-

vious that, in the absence of any controlling statutory

inhibition, the shares, without an assignment or de-

livery of the certificate, may be assigned in any man-

ner appropriate to the transfer of incorporeal personal

property, as, for example, by a bill of sale, or any

mode that will suffice to pass title to a chose in action

or intangible property. The jus disponendi in shares

of stock is an incident of ownership, and may be exer-

cised in any manner not prohibited by law. {Lipscomb

V. Condon, 56 W. Va. 416, (107 Am. St. Rep. 938, 67

L.R.A. 670, 49S.E. 392).

n* * * ^g ^Ye satisfied that even where, as

here, certificates have been issued, a transfer of

title, good as between the parties thereto, may
be made in manner other than that recognized as a law-

ful mode of transfer by Section 324 ; that a transfer of

title, good as between the parties, may be made in

any manner appropriate to the assignment of choses

in action or intangible personal property. * # # ? ?

A transfer valid as between the parties is of course valid

as against all the world, excepting only innocent pur-

chasers and encumbrancers for value. Thus in construing

a statute which in express terms provided that unregis-

tered transfers of stock should not be valid ** except be-

tween the parties," the California courts have uniformly

held that such transfers of stock "are nevertheless valid

as against all the world except subsequent purchasers in

good faith without notice."

National Bank v. Western Pac. Bij. Co., 17)1 Cal. 573,

108 Pac. 676

;

People V. Elmore, 35 Cal. 653;

Spreckels v. Nevada Bank, 113 Cal. 272, 45 Pac. 329.
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Neither the Transfer of Stock to John G. Taylor, Inc., Nor the

Mortgage Thereof to the Reno National Bank Was Void Under

Sec. 1536 N.C.L. 1929

Corporate stocks are incorporeal property incapable of

possession.

Jean v. Jean, 207 Cal. 115, 120, 277 Pac. 313

;

Payne v. Elliott, 54 Cal. 339;

Vidal V. South Amer. Securities Co., 276 Fed. 855, '

868.

Notwithstanding this, appellee contends that the transfer

of the water stock to John Gr. Taylor and the mortgage

thereof was void under the provisions of Section 1536,

N.C.L. 1929, which provides that a sale of "goods and

chattels" is void as to creditors of the seller and subse-

quent purchasers in good faith, unless there be an imme-

diate and continued change of possession.

It is impossible to conceive how this section can be made

to apply to things which by their very nature are incor-

poreal, incapable of possession and not susceptible of
j

manual delivery. Not only is this so, but it has been affirma-

tively held that similar statutes do not apply to stocks and

bonds {Westinghouse Electric & Mfg. Co. v. Brooklyn

R. T. Co., 288 Fed. 221, 239).

The fallacy of appellee's argument to the contrary re-
i

suits from the failure to distinguish between certificates for

corporate stock and the stock itself. The two are not the

same.

A stock certificate is evidence of the title to stock and

is not the stock itself, nor is it necessary to the existence

of the stock.

National Bank v. Watsontown Bank, 105 U. S. 217,

222, 26 L. Ed. 1039;
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The statute requires an actual and continued change of

possession of "the things sold or assigned." It does not

require a change of possession of the muniments of title

of the things sold or assigned.

It is submitted, therefore, that appellee's contention that

the transfer of the stock to and hypothecation thereof by

John G. Taylor, Inc. was void under Section 1536, N.C.L.

1929, is without merit. A statute requiring a change of

possession cannot be applied to a thing which from its very

nature is incapable of physical possession.

The Mortgage Was Not Void Under Section 987, N.C.L. 1929

For much the same reason, appellee's argument that the

mortgage under which appellant claims was void under

Section 987, N.C.L. 1929, not valid. The section mentioned

provides that a chattel mortgage is void as against cred-

itors of the mortgagor and subsequent purchasers and by

encumbrancers of the mortgaged property unless affidavits

of good faith are appended thereto.

This statute is substantially identical to similar statutes

adopted in almost every state of the union. Such statutes

uniformly have been construed as inapplicable to mortgages

of intangibles such as corporate stock. In Jones on Chattel

Mortgages, 5th ed., sec. 278, it is said:

^^Choses in Action.—Statutes respecting the record-

ing of mortgages of personal property apply only to

goods and chattels capable of delivery, and not to de-

feasible or conditional assignments of choses in action.

It is not necessary to the validity of such assignments

that they be recorded. The capital stock of a corpora-

tion is not goods and chattels within the meaning of

the act concerning chattel mortgages, and therefore a
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mortgage of such stock need not be filed or recorded,

and the record of it is of no effect."

See also : Williams v. New Jersey S. R. Co., 26 N. J. Eq.

398, 403; Westinghouse, etc. Co. v. Brooklyn R. T. Co., 288

Fed. 221, 229.

Considering the purpose and background of the statute,

there is no reason why the Nevada Statute should be con-

strued differently from its counterparts in other states. It

was intended to apply and in fact does apply only to mort-

gages of tangible personal property and not to mortgages

or defeasible assignments of choses in action or other in-

tangibles. It has, therefore, no application whatsoever to

the case at bar.

Moreover, appellee is not a subsequent purchaser or en-

cumbrancer in good faith, notwithstanding the fact that the

stock is described in the pledge agreement executed by

John G. Taylor to the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company. The uncontradicted testimony of appellee's own

witness shows conclusively, and appellee in his brief ad-

mits, that at the time the Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust

Company made the advances it had full knowledge of the

fact that the stock had been hypothecated to the Recon-

struction Finance Corporation. As hereinbefore shown,

appellee is chargeable with that knowledge.

The Mortgage Is Not Void for Indefiniteness

Appellee urges that even if the mortgage is sufficient to

create a valid lien upon the stock, as between the parties

to it, it is not sufficiently definite to create a valid lien on

the stock as against third parties. No consideration need

be given to this contention for the reason that as herein-
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before shown, tlie Bank of Nevada Savings & Trust Com-

pany had full knowledge of the hypothecation of the stock

to the api)ellant's ])redecessor in interest, the Reconstruc-

tion Finance Corporation. In such circumstances, ai)[)ellee

is not in any position to assert that the description con-

tainod in the mortgage is insufficient to create a \alid lien

on the stock:

"Insufficiency or inadequacy of description in a chat-

tel mortgage is an attack open to creditors, incum-

brancers, and purchasers in good faith, wliom it is

souglit to affect by reason of the constructive notice

attaching to the recording or filing of the mortgage;

but, inasmuch as actual notice is of a liii;)ier oliaractcr

than constructive notice, one who has actual kn(j\vledge

of the existence of the mortgage and of the property

aifected thereby cannot avail himself of any lack of

sufficiency of description as could one to whom con-

structive notice alone was attributable. The creditor

with actual knowledge of all the facts does not rely upon

the public records to give him constructive notice of

that which he already knows."

Fenhy v. Hunt, 53 Wash. 127, 101 Pac. 492, 493.

As receiver of the banks other than the Bank of Xevada

Savings & Trust Company, appellee is a mere attaching

creditor of John G. Taylor. Whatever interest Tayh)i- had

in the stock passed to John G. Taylor, Inc. in lf).")(), long

prior to the time appellee levied his attachment. As an at-

taching creditor, therefore, appellee has no lien on tlie

stock and is not in a position to attack the sufficiency of the

mortgage.

Stowe V. Harvey, 241 U. S. 199, 60 L. ed. 199, 36

Sup. Ct. 541.
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None of the four legal defenses urged by the appellee,

although plausibly advanced, is well founded, even if the

stock is not appurtenant to the land. If the stock is appur-

tenant to the land, then, as we pointed out at the outset of

our discussion, all of the legal defenses advanced by the

appellee are wholly irrelevant and immaterial, for the rea-

son that whatever is appurtenant to the land will pass

with the conveyance of it.

The decree should be reversed, with instructions to enter

a decree adjudging appellant to be the owner of the stocks

described in the complaint, free from any claim of appellee,

and directing the surrender of the certificates for such

stocks to appellant.

Respectfully submitted,

Maurice E. Harrison,

T. W. Dahlquist,

James S. Moore, Jr.,

Attorneys for Appellant.

Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison,

Orrick, Dahlquist, Neff & Herrington,

Of Counsel.
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upon the following grounds and for the following reasons:

1.

The Court, In Its Opinion, Did Not Pass Upon
Appellees' Point, Raised In the Brief, That the Suit

Is Inequitable and Unconscionable

This contention was urged in appellees' pleading in the

trial court, was advanced upon the trial, and orally argued

upon appeal. May we presume further to clarify the

point as follows:

The common directorate managed both banks. As such,

it owed an equal duty to the depositors of both banks.

This obligation carried with it a requirement that good

and sufficient security be demanded for money loaned out

of either or both banks. The responsibility for the suf-

ficiency of this security rested with the common directorate.

The definite acceptance of security for depositors' money

loaned from either bank was notice to the depositors that

by duty, morals, and law, the common directorate was

conscientiously attempting to protect their deposits. The

depositors were justified in feeling secure that after their

money had passed to a borrower, the common directorate

could not later repudiate the security and leave them

without protection. If these assertions be convincingly

correct, then this suit by the successors of a ^ommon

directorate, not only to repudiate the security, but to

pass it over for the benefit of the other bank over which



it had equal supervision, is a glaring example of unfairness,

double-dealing, duplicity, and implied fraud.

Here, the common directorate approved two mortgages

as good and sufficient security for a $700,000 loan from

the Reno National Bank. They must be assumed to have

known what the mortgages provided and what property

they encumbered. With this knowledge, THEY MUST
HAVE CONCLUDED THAT THE STOCK IN

QUESTION HERE WAS NOT PLEDGED BY

EITHER MORTGAGE, FOR THEY ACCEPTED

THE STOCK AS GOOD COLLATERAL FOR THE
LOAN FROM THE OTHER BANK. Their every

official action in handling both loans proves this. Never

once, while the banks were open, so far as the record

discloses, was the validity of this stock security for the

Bank of Nevada loan ever questioned or assailed. With

knowledge of the common directorate, it passed every

directors' meeting of both banks and every Federal and

State bank examiner. After the depositors' money was

handed over the counter, the stock-collateral was in no

other place but in the vaults of the Bank of Nevada. The

common directorate always treated and considered it as

pledged to this bank. Their authorized Vice-President and

General Manager of the Reno National Bank, Jerry

Sheean, personally witnessed the endorsed signature of

Taylor, by which the stock-collateral was deposited with

the Bank of Nevada. It was approved and accepted by

him, and he even endorsed upon the notes the purpose



for which the money loaned was to be used. Never once^

so far as the record shows and while the banks were open,

did the Reno National ever make a demand upon the

Bank of Nevada for this stock. Never once during this

time, was it ever hinted or suggested that the stock was

included in these mortgages. It has been carried continu-

ously up to this very day on the books of the Bank of

Nevada as an asset of that bank, AND WITH THE
VERY CONSENT AND APPROVAL OF THE RENO
NATIONAL, PREDECESSOR TO THIS APPEL-

LANT. Is it not certain in law, equity, and business

morals, that an assignee or substituted plaintiff, in a case

like this, is bound by the acts of his predecessor in interest?

If the Reno National, tacitly, openly, and undoubtedly

waived any claim to this stock and lulled depositors into

a sense of security, may the R. F. C. or the present

appellant come along, take the security away, and leave

the depositors holding an empty sack? Is it possible that

he who seeks equity need not do equity, and innocent

depositors, who have no redress here at all, may, in equity,

have valuable assets taken away from them without being

reimbursed by a single dollar? Does it restore equity and

protect the depositors by adopting appellant's contention

that the assignee, the Reconstruction Finance Corporation,

knew nothing about any water-stock when they loaned

money to the Reno National and overlooked interpreting

their collateral until long after both banks were closed?

It was their duty to examine and construe their collateral



and investigate the facts. If they were guihy of any

dereliction, should these depositors be compelled in equity

to make good their mistake, and without compensation,

part with valuable assets? And if it was the duty of the

Reno National to explain to the R. F. C. that the stock

was pledged to the Bank of Nevada by the very direction

and order of the Reno National, that money was loaned

on it, that it was held by the Bank of Nevada, that the

Reno National considered it outside and not a part of

the Taylor mortgages, and the Reno National failed to

perform that duty, who is responsible, the Reno National,

or innocent depositors in the Bank of Nevada: Should

they have sued themselves or the depositors? Or should

the R. F. C. have sued the Reno National for concealing

material facts with respect to securities? It seems revolting

to all principles of equity that this suit should be main-

tained against the Receiver of the Bank of Nevada, whose

duty it is to protect his depositors.

The same reasoning, of course, applies to the substituted

plaintiff, the appellant herein, who is bound by predecessor

acts. While the appellant becomes a substituted party

through purchase by mortgage foreclosure, the court must

not be misled by the belief that the purchase definitely

includes the stock in controversy here. Counsel have stipu-

lated that the status of this stock is to abide the final

determination of this case. (Tr. Rec, 132-133.)

There is some irony in further contemplation of the



equities involved, which was suggested in the brief and

oral argument. Taylor, Inc., gave the Reno National a

chattel mortgage encumbering "certain described livestock,

machinery, tools, and merchandise upon the lands described

in said real property mortgage." (Tr. Rec, 81.) When the

same corporation applied for the additional loan from the

Bank of Nevada, Mr. Sheean, authorized representative of

both banks, endorsed his initials "J. S." on the notes. In

addition, he endorsed on one note "taxes and wages," and

on another note "shearing." He testified that the loan

was made "because it was necessary to furnish Mr. Taylor

with some expense money." He also testified that the

word "shearing" was in his handwriting and testified "that

the request for money was for that purpose." (Tr. Rec,

15-146.) "Expense money" for what? Whose sheep were

going to be "sheared"? "Taxes and wages" for what?

The answer is plain. The money so borrowed from the

Bank of Nevada was to be used to protect the property

mortgaged to the Reno National Bank. The corporation

owned no other property. Therefore, the money MUST
have been used to protect this very property. Taxes due

on the real property mortgaged, perhaps some on the

personal property mortgaged! Wages to pay employees

for taking care of the real and personal property and for

shearing the sheep, likewise mortgaged! By this loan, the

Reno National Bank was relieved from advancing thirty-

two thousand five hundred dollars expense money, and the

mortgages assigned to the R. F. C. had that much greater



[lunalnet value as collateral. Though both the Reno Nati

and the R. F. C. accepted the benefits of this large amount

of money for the protection of their own securities, they

not only do not make a tender of the money in return,

but they bring suit to take away all the collateral besides,

and put it in their own coffers for their further exclusive

use and benefit.

Therefore, a summary of the point briefly stated is,

that the directors here are in fact suing themselves in

equity to take away security, which they solemnly and

advisedly accepted for one bank, to give it to another bank

for the benefit of the latter and to the detriment of the

former. As stated in our brief, according to high authority,

this is implied fraud. It is believed that this court has

the power and authority to order such a suit dismissed,

either on its own motion, or by suggestion, if the evidence

and the record undeniably disclose a state of facts such

as are conceded here.

2.

The Court, In Its Opinion, Did Not Consider the

Point Raised In Appellees' Brief, That the Rule of

Knowledge or Notice Does Not Apply Here

In a foot-note on page 3 of the opinion, the court states,

"It is conceded that the pledgee bank had actual knowledge

of the prior mortgages to the Reno National Bank." It

is assumed that the fact of notice had some bearing upon



the ultimate conclusion reached by the court. While the

statement in the foot-note is literally correct, it takes out

of consideration the fact, as we argued in the brief, that

knowledge was acquired because the directorate was the

same for both banks. It is not the case of a separately

managed corporation accepting security with the knowledge

that it was pledged to another. The statement of the

court followed the contention of appellant, which, it must

be observed, disregarded the very important admitted fact

of the common directorate. We again respectfully stress

the point that the very knowledge of the directors, as to

the mortgages referred to, only adds emphasis to our

contention that in the face of this knowledge, they approved

the stock-collateral for the other bank and waived all right

to claim it as pledged to the former bank. They were

estopped from denying the validity of a pledge which

they had solemnly declared was good and valid, and upon

which they loaned a large sum of money.

3.

The Court Inadvertently Disregards Another

Important Conceded Fact

It is established, without contradiction, that the corpora-

tions, whose shares of stock are in controversy here, OWN
NO IRRIGATED LANDS WHATEVER. As the

opinion of the trial court discloses (Tr. Rec, pp. 41-42),

"None of the corporations, the stock of which is here

involved, appears to be the owner of irrigated lands. Such



stock, therefore, does not present any element of intcrt^t

in rights to water as suchj particularly is this the case of

the several ditch companies."

It is believed that it is accurate to state that in NiA'ada,

in order to apply the doctrine of appurtenant water, there

must first be established some form of title or interest in

land, and second, there must be established a given amount

of water put to a beneficial use upon the land. Both of

these elements are lacking insofar as the certificates of

stock here involved may be concerned. The ditch com-

panies own neither water nor land. The Humboldt-

Lovelock Irrigation, Light & Power Company owns a

reservoir in which are stored flood waters, and which

waters are sold to anybody who will pay the price, but

Class A and Class B stockholders are given preference as

to water and price. (Tr. Rec, 82.) This corporation owns

no irrigable lands to which any of its stock could possibly

be appurtenant. A purchaser of water from this corporation,

which water was placed to a beneficial use, could obligate

the corporation to continue furnishing it, as the Prosole

case holds, but this would not entitle the purchaser to

shares of stock in the corporation. This is substantially

what the trial court determined (Tr. Rec, 41) in declaring

that "rights to water for irrigation of arid lands within

this state are wholly distinct from rights which may^ l^

evidenced by corporations' stock certificates. A corporation,

except in the case of a water supply, for municipal pur-

poses, may not acquire a title to water for irrigation
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except in cases where such corporation is also the owner

of the land upon which such water is so used and so

becomes appurtenant thereto."

It is believed that this Honorable Court has not taken

into consideration that the appellant has not established

that these various corporations own any irrigable land to

which water may become appurtenant. If the corporations

have not acquired any appurtenant water rights, then it

must follow that no appurtenant water right attaches to

any capital stock of a stockholder therein.

Berg vs. Yakima Canal Co., 145 P. 619.

See particularly pp. 621-622.

4.

The Court Has Apparently Misconstrued the Nevada

Water Decree Adjudicating Rights On the Humboldt

River

It will be observed from the decree (Tr. Rec, 100),

that "neither the Humboldt Lovelock Irrigation, Light

and Power Company, Young Ditch Company, Union Canal

Ditch Company, or Old Channel Ditch Company are by

said decree found or determined to have rights in or to

the waters of said Humboldt River stream system, except

that Union Canal Ditch Company was found to have

certain rights in respect to lands not here involved, which

rights are those referred to in the testimony of A. Jahn."
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The court evidently recognizes this finding by declaring

in its opinion (page 2) that "None of the ditch companies,

so far as material here, was adjudged to have any right

to divert or appropriate waters of the stream."

It will therefore be noted that these corporations not

only did not own any irrigable land, as previously stated,

but by the very court decree it was determined that they

did not have any rights in or to the waters of the Hum-

boldt River stream system. If they owned no irrigable

land and no water, how may it be established in this case

that these corporations owned any appurtenant water rights

and were depriving the appellant of any? If the corpora-

tions owned no appurtenant water rights, then shares of

stock in them would represent no such rights. How may

appellant recover on the theory of a right to appurtenant

water, if the stock it seeks to possess represents neither

water nor a water right?

The court in its opinion (page 2), declares, "In the

state decree, the right to use the water carried in the

distribution systems of the ditch companies was adjudged

to be appurtenant to the place of use." While this state-

ment is undoubtedly accurate, may it be respectfully

suggested that it may only apply to a holder of land who

actually puts water to a beneficial use. It could not apply

to these corporations, because, as has been shown, they

hold no irrigable land, and they have performed no acts

of beneficial use entitling them to a right to water or to
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ownership thereof. Their general function is to transport

and convey water for other people, including stockholders,

to use
J
and it is not denied that by established authority

and precedent, once water is so conveyed and appropriated

and placed to a beneficial use by a recipient thereof, the

corporations are obligated to furnish such transportation

so long as use continues.

5.

It Is Respectfully Submitted That the Court Placed

a Construction of the Deed From Taylor to Taylor,

Inc., Not Justified By Conceded Facts

The court on page 2 of the opinion, observes that "The

deed (from Taylor to John G. Taylor, Inc.) conveyed all

the real and personal property of the grantor, together

with appurtenant water rights, ditches, and canals, 'and

all shares of stock of any water corporation appurtenant

to said land or the waters from which are used or have

been used in connection with the irrigation or cultivation

thereof." (Italics ours.)

It will be observed that the deed purported to convey

APPURTENANT water rights and shares of stock of any

water corporation APPURTENANT to said land. It will

also be noted that the expression "the waters from which,

etc.," refers to any water corporation APPURTENANT
to said land.

It has been shown that none of the corporations whose
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stock is here involved owns any water rights appurtenant

to the land conveyed. Therefore, the deed could not

possibly have conveyed or assigned any of the stock in

controversy here. That this was the adopted constructicjn

of the deed by Taylor, by Taylor, Inc., and by the Reno

National Bank is apparent, for never once, over a period

of years, did any of them ever make demand upon Taylor

for the delivery of the stock.

The statement in the opinion of the court (page 6),

that "His (Taylor's) deed of conveyance to John G.

Taylor, Inc., expressly included all water and distribution

rights and all shares in water corporations," does not take

into consideration that the conveyance was limited to

APPURTENANT rights. It is also respectfully suggested

that the further declaration of the court (Opinion, p. 6),

that "The subsequent attempt of Taylor to pledge the

shares are ineffectual, for they were no longer his to

pledge," is a conclusion not justified by the facts and

record, as above indicated.

6.

The Court Seems Not to Have Taken Into Considera-

tion Essential Matters Upon Which the Trial Court

Concluded In Favor of Appellees

On page 3 of the court's opinion, the following is stated:

"The trial judge appears to have believed that the stock

in question might represent something of value other than
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an interest in the irrigation systems. In his memorandum

opinion, he calls attention to the circumstances that the

articles of incorporation of the several companies do not

disclose that they were organized for the sole or primary

purpose of supplying water for the irrigation of any par-

ticular land. 4n the case,' said the court, 'of the Humboldt-

Lovelock Irrigation, Light & Power Company, as indicated

by its name, it was incorporated for other purposes in

addition to that of storing and transporting water. Stock

therein might necessarily have a value for reasons wholly

distinct from the matter of supply water for irrigation

of lands'."

This court apparently did not take into consideration

other essential facts found by the trial court, namely, that

"None of the corporations, the stock of which is here

involved, appears to be the owner of irrigated lands. Such

stock, therefore, does not present any element of interest

in rights to water as suchj particularly is this the case of

the several ditch companies." (Tr. Rec, pp. 41-42.) The

trial court also declared (Tr. Rec, p. 41), that "A cor-

poration, except in the case of a water supply for municipal

purposes, may not acquire a title to water for irrigation

except in cases where such corporation is also the owner of

the land upon which such water is so used and so becomes

appurtenant thereto."

This court, in its opinion, appears to have made no
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comment upon these factual and legal conclusions of the

trial court.

7.

The Court Having Apparently Overlooked Some
Essential Facts Established By the Record, Its

Conclusions That These Corporations Are Mutual

Water Companies, It Is Believed, Should Be

Reconsidered

The cases of canal and ditch companies OWNING NO
WATER RIGHTS, AND OWNING NO IRRIGABLE

LAND, and which are only carrying companies, are to be

distinguished from those having rights to water acquired

through appropriation. This was the evident distinction

made by the trial court as one reason for concluding

against appellant's contention that the corporations, whose

stock is involved here, are mutual water companies. An

examination of the cases cited in support of the court's

opinion herein will disclose, it is believed, that in every

case in which the fact appears, the corporation involved

had appropriated or owned water to furnish to stockholders.

In Prosole v. Steamboat Canal Co., 37 Nev. 154, 140

P. 720, the opinion opens with the statement, "The ap-

pellant company, being the owner of the Steamboat Canal

HAS FOR MANY YEARS BEEN ENGAGED IN

THE BUSINESS OF DIVERTING WATER FROM
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the Truckee River and delivering the same to and upon

the lands under that canal for a valuable consideration."

In Twin Falls L. &' W. Co. v. Twin Falls Canal Co.,

9 Cir., 79 F. (2nd) 431, it is stated that "Appellant

APPROPRIATED FROM the waters of Snake River

for this project, 3,000 second feet * * * on the river."

In re Thomas Estate, 147 Cal. 236, 81 P. 539, the

ditch owners and owners of water rights "CONVEYED
to the corporation, by deed of grant, the ditches then in

use for the conveyance of the water, AND ALL THEIR
WATER RIGHTS which may have accrued to said parties

by their use of the waters of said creek for irrigation,"

and in consideration thereof, obtained corporate certificates

of stock.

In Ireton v. Idaho Irr. Co., 30 Ida. 310, 164 P. 687,

"the contract provided that appellant should SELL TO
ENTRYMEN WATER RIGHTS and shares of stock

in the Big Wood River Reservoir Canal Company, Lim-

ited." The implication is plain that in order to sell water

rights, the corporation must have owner or appropriated

water.

In re Johnson's Estate, 64 Utah 134, 228 P. 748, in-

volved the construction of a will. The court stresses a

greater latitude of construction is justified in the case of

a will as compared with a deed, but the fact as to whether

the corporation had or had not owned or appropriated

water to sell to stockholders is not disclosed by the opinion.
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In Yellow Valley Co. v. Associated Mortgage Investors

88 Mont. 73, 290 P. 255, the case was tried on an agreed

statement of facts, and these are not set out in the opinion.

Neither does the opinion disclose the fact herein discussed.

The same observation is therefore made as in the preceding

case cited.

In Burnett v. Taylor, ZG Wyo. 12, 252 P. 790, an

application for a permit to APPROPRIATE water was

made by and on behalf of the reclamation company. The

corporation was given limited rights to DIVERT and

USE this water, which it furnished to its stockholders.

In the case at bar, there was no evidence of diversion

or appropriation of water by any of the corporations. There

is nothing in the record to show that these stock holdings

represented interests in irrigable lands or appropriated

water. The most that may be claimed is, that as stock-

holders, they were entitled to a preferential right to the

use of the water-transportation facilities at a minimum

preferential cost, and to the use of flood waters from the

reservoir, BUT ONLY TO SUPPLY A DEFICIENCY

BASED UPON PRIOR USE AND APPROPRIATION

BY THE LAND-HOLDER. Other land-holders, not

stockholders, could use these same facilities if they paid

the cost fixed by the Board of Directors, and if, like the

stockholders, they had placed a given amount of water

to a beneficial use.

Attention is further invited to the case of Berg v. Ydima
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Valley Canal Co.^ 145 P. 619, and particularly p. 622,

in which it is held that, "The stock in the extension com-

pany did not represent independent water rights, but only

the right to carry water obtained from the Oligarchy Ditch

Company. It was held that a deed conveying the land,

together with all rights to use water for irrigating the

premises, did not include stock in the extension company.

This company owning no water right, but being only a

carrying company, it is plain that the right to have water

carried which the stock represented would not pass as

appurtenant to the land. There would seem to be a dis-

tinction between stock in a ditch company which represented

the right to the water which had been appropriated and

owned by the company, and stock in a corporation which

owned no water rights, and only carried water for its

members which they owned, evidenced by certificates of

stock in another corporation."

8.

Has the Court Taken Into Consideration Important

Evidence In the Case In Determining With Appellant

That In the Hands of Appellees, the Stock In

Controversy Here Has Only a Nuisance Value?

On page 6 of the opinion, the court states, "In the

hands of appellees, these shares possess no more than a

nuisance value, but to appellant, they represent indicia of

title and the essential right to participate in management."

It is a definitely conceded fact that the common directorate
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loaned $32,500 on this and other stock. There must be

something more than a nuisance value in this. In fact,

the appraised value, at the time of the loan, must have

been greater than this, for it may be assumed that the

bank required some margin of value in the security pledged

in order to make the loan bankable. It will also be

observed that the loan was made on the stock as such.

It will further be noted that the independent value of

this security was estimated by the Reno National Bank,

sitting jointly with the Bank of Nevada, a predecessor of

appellant. How may the Reno National now successfully

contend, in the face of the record, that the stock only has

a nuisance value, after deliberately appraising it as good

and valuable security? If the Reno Nadonal would be

foreclosed against such a claim, then certainly its assignee

and the appellant would likewise be foreclosed.

Attention is also invited to the record-fact, that by

authority of the Board of Directors, and otherwise, stock

was issued to those NOT LAND OWNERS (Tr. Rec,

123, 124, 126, and 135) ^ that it was pledged to Federal

Farm Bank and others (Tr. Rec, 123, 126, 137)j that

"there have been some sales of the stock between one

farmer and another. (Tr. Rec, 127.)

The Reno National, or its successor appellant, now

desires to participate in management of these corporations

and would deny to the Bank of Nevada such right in

protection of the security so pledged. In the face of the
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record, is it unreasonable to contend that the right to

participate in management should accrue to the bank who

holds the security? Also, in the face of the record, has

not this right something more than a mere nuisance value?

9.

As a Further Ground for Re-Hearing, It Is Uurged,

As Previously Contended In Appellees' Brief, That

the Corporate Set-Up and By-Laws Establish That

the Corporations Are Not Mutual Water Companies

While it is conceded that, as a general rule, the acts

of a corporation often evidence and interpret its purpose,

yet, it is respectfully submitted, that it appears from the

authorities that this general rule does not apply in deter-

mining whether a so-called water-corporation is organized

under general corporation statutes or whether it is organized

as a mutual water with certain defined limitations and

restrictions.

As is declared in a monograph on "Mutual Water

Companies," Southern California Law Review, Volume

XII, Number 2, January, 1939, page 194, "The form of

the articles, by-laws, and the stock certificates have much

influence upon the determination as to whether or not the

corporation formed is a mutual water company." It is

respectfully submitted that the court in its opinion (page 5),

apparently disregarded "nomenclature and the formal recital

of powers" and based its conclusion solely upon powers
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"asserted or exercised." We again refer the court to p. 32,

et seq., of appellees' brief, which we believe conclusively

establishes by the record that neither the articles of in-

corporation, the by-laws nor the stock certificates indicate

at all that any of these corporations were organized NOT
for profit. In fact, the corporations referred to in the brief

(page 32) all expressly provide and contemplate in their

articles the payment of dividends out of profits. It is

stated with confidence, that there is nothing in the cor-

porate set-up, by-laws, or stock certificates which differen-

tiates these corporations from those others organized under

the general corporadon laws of Nevada. As such, the

stock is personal property not appurtenant to any land,

not a covenant running with any land and not passing

with a conveyance or mortgage of real estate. The rule

is definitely stated by a respectable authority (cited in our

brief, page 36), as follows:

"A corporation may provide that the water-right shall

be regarded as attached to the land, and shall pass only

with it. In the absence of such provision, however, the

stock is separate from the land and an execution sale of

the land will not pass the stock."

Farnum on Water and Water Rights, Vol. 3,

Pages 2001-2002.

That the California courts of last resort have seriously

considered, as a primal factor, the corporate set-up, the

by-laws, and the stock certificates as determinative of the

question as to whether a water-corporation is a mutual

organization or not, is disclosed by the following cases:
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Security Com. &' Sav. Bank v. Imperial Water Co. No. 1,

193 P. 22, in which, on page 25, it is stated, "Under

these circumstances, we think the proper course to pursue

is to reverse the judgment without directions to enter

judgment for defendants so that the complaint may be

amended, if necessary, to show the true character of said

stock and the existing facts regarding the by-laws of the

corporation as above indicated."

Riverside Land Co. v. Jarvis, 163 P. 54, wherein the

court appears to have determined the controversy, not

unlike this case, through an examination and interpretation

of the articles of incorporation, the by-laws, and the stock

certificates. On page 59 of the opinion, the court states

that, "The articles, by-laws, and certificate constitute the

evidence of the contract between the parties. Taken to-

gether, they are in effect, an agreement between the stock-

holder and the company that the stock shall be transferable

only with the land, and, conversely, that a transfer of the

land shall pass to the grantor thereof the right to the stock,

that is, the equitable title thereto."

In Spurgean v. Santa Ana Val. Irr. Co., 52 P. 140,

the court sets out in the opinion several of the by-laws

and "rules" of the corporation and appears to have deter-

mined the case upon a construction of the articles, by-laws,

"rules," and certificates of stock.

In Smith v. Hallwood Irr. Co., 228 P. 373, the

court held the stock in controversy "personal property"
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and not appurtenant to the land, and based its conclusions

upon the fact that the corporate set-up did not in express

terms make the stock appurtenant.

See also, Consolidated Peoples Ditch Co. v. Foothill

Ditch Co., 269 P. 915, especially page 920.

John G. Taylor became a stockholder in the various

corporations and was bound only by his contract with these

corporations evidenced by the "articles, by-laws, and cer-

tificates." (Riverside Land Co. v. Jarvis, Supra.) He could

not convey, transfer, mortgage, or hypothecate any of his

stock and by so doing modify the express provisions of his

contract. In other words, his stock, by the contract, not

being appurtenant to the land, he could not make it appur-

tenant by violating his contract. Therefore, when he deeded

to John G. Taylor, Inc., and conveyed "appurtenant stock,"

it could not have been the stock in controversy here, be-

cause by his contract with the corporations, evidenced by

"the articles, by-laws, and certificate(s)," the stock was

not made appurtenant to the land. (See Appellees' Brief,

31, et seq.)

WHEREFORE, appellees pray that a re-hearing may

be granted herein.

Respectfully submitted,

PLATT & SINAI,

Attorneys for Appellees.
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